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Defendant's Evidence
No. 5 

Evidence of E. M. Nicholls
Mr WALLACE : Q. Are you a Registered Architect in New South Wales in ate.
•inrl Vip+nrisi ? A VPSI Supremeana victoria? A. \ e&. Court of ye

Q. Are you an Associate of the Royal British Institute of 
Architects ? A. Yes. Equitable

Q. And an Associate of the Royal Australian Institute 1 A. Yes.
Q. A member of the Town Planning Committee  the Town 

Planning Institute ( A. Yes.   -
0 No. ~>.

10 Q. Have you been in practise for over 30 years ? A. Yes. KM.
Q. Did you commence your professional life as a partner to the    

late Walter Burley Griffin ? A. Yes. Examination.
Q. Have you had extensive practice in Civic, Industrial and 

Commercial buildings ? A. Yes.
Q. Are you at present the Architect for a very large building 

known as Caltex House, at the entrance to the southern end of the 
Bridge >. A. Kent Street.

Q. Are you currently designing a 300-bed hotel in the Kosciusko 
Park Trust area '? A. Yes.

20 Q- Have you designed a 400-bed hotel in Melbourne I A. Yes. 
Q. Are you a member of the Planning Committee set up by the 

Willoughby Council to prepare a plan for the Willoughby Municipality ? 
A. Yes.

Q. Are you preparing a plan for the Mittagong Shire as a consultant 
town planner ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you visit America about a year ago at the request of Caltex 
in connection with their new building and there further study your 
profession '. A. Yes.

Q. According to modern trends of thought in America I A. Yes.
30 Q. Do you claim to be conversant with modern trends and modern 

architectural designs for hotel buildings ? A. Yes.
Q. You are the architect, aren't you, who designed or prepared 

the plans which form part of Exhibit '' L " (shown) ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you have a set of your own plans ? A. The solicitor has 

a set. I have not a set here.
Q. Have you also examined tin- plan* which form part of 

Exhibit " H '' (shown) I A. Yes, I am conversant with these.

Mr PERRIGrNON : I wish to make an application, as follows. I am
instructed that the Licensing Court, in order to embark upon the hearing

40 of the matter before it, requires the recent pluns in respect of which



in the approval is now being sought, also the plans dated May, 1954, and the 
two orders, one of November, 1953, and the other of May, 1954. They 

South Wales are the four Exhibits that the Licensing Court does require.
in its

HIS HONOR : Those four Exhibits are also necessary and essential in 
this Court, but I am prepared, if I am satisfied that the Licensing Court 
re(luires them for their proper purposes, to allow the custody of those 
documents into the Clerk of the Court, on his giving his personal 
undertaking to me to return them to me on demand, and provided I 
have before me documents which will enable me to go on while the

Examination origmal exhibits are absent from this Court ; in other words, documents 10 
' which I am satisfied are copies.

Regarding Exhibit " F ", subject to what counsel may say, I see 
no reason why this document should not go down to the Licensing Court 
on the Clerk undertaking to return it if this Court requires it and when 
this Court requires it to be returned. I have no copy, and as part of the 
undertaking he should undertake to lodge a copy with me before taking 
this one.

Mr PERRIGNON : I am prepared to give that undertaking on behalf of 
the Clerk of the Court.

HIS HONOR : In regard to Exhibit " G ", on a similar undertaking and 20 
with a similar copy being lodged, I am prepared to allow that one to go 
out of this Court.

Mr PERRIGNON : The next one is Exhibit " H ", which is the 1954 
plans.

HIS HONOR : At the moment I cannot release that exhibit, but if and 
when I am satisfied I have a copy that will enable this Court to proceed 
with its work, I will be prepared to let that one out on an undertaking 
to return it when this Court so requires it. That again will be a personal 
undertaking on the part of the Clerk of the Court.

Mr PERRIGNON : The next exhibit is Exhibit " L ", the plans in 39 
respect of which approval is now being sought.

HIS HONOR : I am willing to follow a similar procedure so far as that 
exhibit is concerned, but at the moment I cannot allow these documents 
to go out because I have to deal with them in the ordinary course of 
this case.

SIR GARFIELD : Your Honor takes it that we do not consent to 
this.

HIS HONOR : Yes.

Mr PERRIGNON : If and when the substituted plans are available, 
might I mention the matter again ? 40



HIS HONOR : Yes. Meanwhile I shall allow you to have in Court /» the
those two files so that you will know what copies are necessary to be made.
It would be a good idea to get somebody to certify that they are copies. South Wales

in iL?

Mr WALLACE : Q. Have you also examined what I shall call the Ham
plans (Exhibit " H "). Do you know what I mean by that ? A. Yes. ., , ,r \ . ' J J ' Defendant s1 have examined them. Evidence.

Mr WALLACE : Mr Ham designed the 1954 plans. E.'M.'
Q. Could you give His Honor an outline of what you have designed    

and what accommodation will be included therein ? In your own words, Examination.
10 describe to His Honor with any sketches or any other illustrations that 

you may have the nature of the plans that are included in Exhibit " L " ? 
A. As a basis for doing this design, I was asked by my clients to produce 
for them the beginnings of a modern hotel that could be added to. I am 
not a hotel specialist, therefore I adopted the customary procedure that 
I do, put a research inquiry through the Public Library, and there they 
collect for you all of the current data they have on modern hotels, and I 
made a folder of that, which I have here. With that data in hand, I 
commenced the design, and then, to describe it in the manner that the 
builder will build it, the first part of the building that is effected is at the

20 Wynyard Lane level.

Q. I think I should first of all get a description of the subject 
land and its contours or topography. I shoAv you Sheet No. 9. A. This 
is Sheet No. 9, being a diagrammatic presentation of the Ham scheme 
and my own scheme.

Q. We will call it Sheet No. 9. What is this one that I now show 
you ? A. It is Sheet No. 10, an isometric representation of the Ham 
scheme and my own.

Q. Dealing first with Sheet No. 10, does this diagrammatically 
represent the respective continuations and ultimate completions of the 

30 Ham and the NichohV plans ? A. Yes.

Q. As you look at it, on the left, is that the Nicholls' plan ? A. I 
am pleased to say that that is the Ham plan.

Q. As you look at it on the left is the representation of the 
completion of the Ham plans ? A. Yes.

Q. When I say " completion ", I mean by that how the present 
Ham and Nicholls' plans could ultimately be extended to the building 
height limit ? A. Yes, within the framework of the present Acts.

Q. Within the framework of the present Acts and Ordinances f. 
A. Yes.

40 Q. As you look at this No. 10 Sheet, on the right there is a similar 
view of what could be built on your plan ? A. Yes.



4

in the Q. Looking at those two representations, which of the two in your 
dofn'oTNew opinion produces a better and more efficient result from modern views ? 
South Wales (Objected to by Sir Garfield).

Kquitabie (Sheet No. 10 m.f.i. (7)).
   Q. Looking at m.f.i. (7), we see, first of all, that the land on which 

^ fendants these projected buildings appear fronts George Street and goes over a
   lane called Wynyard Lane, and then fronts Carrington Street ? A. Yes.

E. M. Q. The level at George Street, 1 think, is considerably lower than 
NichoUs. ^g ievei Of Carrington Street ? A. Approximately two storeys.

Examination. Q Q-eorge Street, as we all know, is a very busy commercial \Q 
street ? A. Yes, particularly at the Plaza.

Q. That is particularly at the Wynyard Railway Station entrance; 
whilst Carrington Street is quite a quiet sort of street, comparatively 
speaking. A. Relatively quiet.

Q. Is it a one-way traffic street '{ A. One-way traffic, the 
quiet side being the Plaza side.

Q. You have told His Honor that these diagrammatic portrayals of 
how the Ham and NichoUs' plans respectively would appear completed 
to the maximum height under existing ordinances and Acts, and, having 
regard to the basic framework of their respective designs, would appear 20 
when completed ? A. Yes.

Q. On the assumption that one of the tests of your respective 
designs would be how the design lends itself to efficient development 
at a later date, which of those two do you say lends itself best to such 
later development ? (Objected to by Sir Garfield).

Q. In connection with the erection of a building of this sort in 
this type of area, is the qiiestion of light of paramount importance ? 
A. Particularly essential.

Q. In the Ham design on this m.f.i. (7), do we notice in the centre 
of the building two sides or slabs going up to a lower height than the on 
major outside slabs ? A. Yes.

Q. In between those two inner or lower slabs is a light-well shaded 
dark ? A. Yes.

Q. We will call the Ham plan the 1954 plan and yours the 1956 
plan. Is that right ? A. Yes.

Q. In relation to the 1954 plan, why is it in the first instance that 
you have shown the inner slabs as of a lower height than the two major 
slabs facing George and Carrington Streets ? A. The inner court 
is determined by the City of Sydney Building Regulations, which say 
that the court cannot be in height greater than three times its width. AQ 
Therefore, it ceases at some mathematical point.

Q. Does that work out, on the 1954 plans, at about a height of 
seven storeys ? A. Yes.



Q. That is why the centre portion of that building is considerably /« the 
lower than the two major outside slabs ? A. Yes.

Q. Going to that centre portion again, what distance apart are 
those two internal slabs the seven storey maximum slabs approx- Equitable, 
imately ? A. About 22 feet. ' J«ri*dMo».

Q. Would that mean that the bedrooms on the inner side of those Evidence. 
slabs would be facing each other and only 22 feet or 23 feet apart ? - ;

A ~r-r AOi «'K 
. Yes. E. M.

Q. In your opinion, is that a good feature, an indifferent feature    
10 or a bad feature ? A. It is a very bad feature. Examination.

Q. Turning to another aspect of the respective designs, what do 
you say of the lighting results produced by way of comparison on the 
1956 plan ? A. The lighting is particularly good. The two blocks 
are far apart.

Q. Does your profession describe or rate lighting according to 
classes first, second, third and so on ? A. Yes.

Q. Reverting to the 1954 plan, have you worked out what 
proportion of accommodation there would be, first, second and third 
class ? A. Yes.

20 Q. Have you worked out what proportion of the 1956 plan would 
be first, second and third ? A. Yes.

Q. I think His Honor will allow you to look at any notes you have 
prepared for the purpose of qualifying yourself to give evidence. 
A. Yes.

Q. Going to the 1956 design, what proportion of its accommodation 
would be first class ? A. The whole of it.

Q. In regard to the 1954 plan, how would it be apportioned into
the classes ? A. Taking a gross area at one floor level, there are
200,000 square feet approximately, and the first class space would be

30 134,000 square feet, second class space 39,000 square feet, and third
class space 32,000 square feet.

HIS HONOR : They are in round figures.

WITNESS : Yes.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Can you indicate roughly where the third class 
space would be 1 A. Surrounding the inner court.

Q. And the second class would be ..... A. On the outer 
side, as it were surrounding the two outer courts.

Q. Is there any other feature appearing on m.f.i. (7), apart from 
lighting which in your opinion shows that one is a better design than 

40 the other ? A. Yes. You can take air movement.



in the Q. Just what is that ? A. In a hotel it is most important, if the
(,0f,^r0fm̂ ew hotel is not air conditioned, to be able to open the windows and to
South Wales get a movement of air. If you have totally enclosed courts or partly

EmtiteMe encl°se(l courts then the movement of air is greatly restricted, whereas
jurisdiction, in the 1956 design it is quite open, and the air is not impeded.

Defendant's Q. Before I leave m.f.i. (7), are there any other features to which
vijsnce. vou ^-Q-jjjcL wish to refer on the subject of which in your opinion is
\o. 5. the better design ? A. Only to reiterate the point that where

xic'hoik people are in their bedrooms, in any design with courts of such small
^- . dimensions, then you automatically look into the bedroom windows 10 

Examination. Q£ ^e people across the court. Perhaps I could also say this, that 
in the 1956 design the bulk of the bedrooms are towards the Carrington 
Street frontage and away from the George Street frontage where all 
the noise is.

Q. Do you regard that as an important feature ? A. Well, it 
is obviously pleasanter to overlook a park and be quiet than it is to 
overlook George Street and be disturbed by noise.

Q. Both designs, of course, only cater for a small portion of what 
is shown on m.f.i. (7) .....

HIS HONOR : The phrase I used at the beginning covers it. This is 20 
the conception of two plans, carried out to the fullest extent.

Mr WALLACE : Q. By the way, is this 1956 design in your profession 
known as the thin slab design ? A. That class of building has 
become known in architectural parlance as a slab building.

Q. That is the 1956 plan ? A. Yes.

Q. Has that a modern trend, and is it well regarded by both 
buildings' owners and the architectural profession ? A. Yes.

Q. What have you in mind to elaborate that ? A. I have here 
from the Public Library reproductions of modern hotels dating back as 
far as 1929. They all adhere to the simple form of slab building, not 30 
covering the whole of the site, with a corridor in the centre and rooms 
on either side.

Q. By " a corridor in the centre " you mean, of course, that in the 
1956 building you have tall rectangular section slabs, comparatively 
narrow, with a corridor running transversely across it, so that rooms 
open on either side of the corridor, to open air ? A. Yes. That 
shows more clearly on Sheet No. 9, where the plan shows it.

Q. We will come to Sheet No. 9 shortly, but I want to obtain from 
you at this stage this : when we go to the 1954 plans, we will find, 
will we not, that they are so designed, although they only go up a 40 
short distance, the same as the 1956 plans they are so designed that 
what you have drawn on m.f.i. (7) must of necessity represent the 
future development "? A. I think that is inevitable,



(m.f.i. (7) now tendered and marked Exhibit 2). in the 
(Sheet No. 9-m.f.i. (8) ). 
(Schedule of areas m.f.i. (9)). 

Q. Taking m.f.i. (9), that is called on its face a schedule of areas ? Equitable
i -y- Jurisdiction.

Q. Does m.f.i. (9), schedule of areas, show the actual areas of the 
floor plans of the 1954 and 1956 designs ? A. Yes, at a typical 
bedroom floor level. °'

Q. It is, of course, diagrammatic, and are you speaking of a typical Nicholls - 
10 floor level under the actual design or under the projected development Examination, 

that we have been speaking about in m.f.i. (7) ? A. As regards 
the 1954 plan, that is from the actual plans. As regards the 1956 one, 
that portion facing Carrington Street refers to my plans   the immediate 
work. That section facing George Street refers to logical development 
in the future.

Q. The section facing George Street is not part of the 1956 plan 
as at presently existing ? A. No.
SIR GARFIELD : Nor is the whole of this Carrington thing, I should 
imagine.

20 Mr WALLACE : I thought he said the whole of Carrington Street is. 
WITNESS : It is.

SIR GAEFIELD : I was thinking of the height. When you come to 
these total areas, then the height makes all the difference.

Mr WALLACE : Q. I have already made it clear that on the right- 
hand side of what is called the present scheme, at the foot, that is not 
part of what we know as the 1956 plan, but only capable of being 
developed. However, the top one is part of the 1954 plan as it presently 
exists without development ? A. That is so.

Q. Taking what you have done on m.f.i. (9), do the figures show a 
30 comparison of the areas 1 A. The site coverage.

Q. What do you mean by " site coverage " ? A. At a typical 
bedroom floor level, presuming each of the schemes to be developed to 
their full, then the area of the site coverage is as shown on those two 
schedules.

Q. That is to say, the proportion of the total area built on ? 
A. It is not expressed in proportions. It is expressed in square feet.

Q. I know that, but may I say it this way by indicating that in 
each case they are drawn to the same scale ? A. Yes.

Q. And the area of land which you understand to be included in the 
40 lease is shown in the way I point (demonstrating) ? A. That is so.

Q. Of that area, the total under the 1954 plan would be 21,682 
square feet, the total area being 29,200 square feet. Is that right ? 
A. Yes.
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in the Q. 21,682 square feet ..... A. Square feet coverage. 
Court of New Q. And on the 1956 design, 18,189 ? A. That is right.

inits Q. Of that coverage, all the 18,189 would be first class space, 
Equitable according to your standards ? A. Yes.

Jurisdiction. ° J
—— Q. While only 9,650 would be first class in the 1954 one ? A. Yes.

Defendant's ^ J '
Evidence. Q. Whilst the remainder of the 21,682 would be made up by 6,670

ifofjj. as to second class, and as to 5,354 of third class space ? A. Yes.
 KTE°J^; (Luncheon adjournment).Nicholls. x j /

Examination. ^r WALLACE : I have not had the opportunity of drafting any
amendment, but I would like to say that at present I propose to attack the 10 
26th May, 1954, proceedings of the Licensing Court rather than the order 
of the 9th November.

HIS HONOR : While the suit is before me, all that time you have every 
chance of making an amendment you think appropriate, and it is better 
for you to do it when you have finally decided what you are going to do.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Just before lunch you had given the details of the 
schedule of areas from the point of view of site coverage ( A. Yes.

Q. Going back to Exhibit 2 for the moment, can you tell His Honor 
of the two buildings, if they were completed, which of the two the 
1954 and 1956 buildings would provide the greater floor coverage. 20 
A. 1956.

Q. Have you got the figures there ? A. On another plan, 
(m.f.i. (9) now tendered and marked Exhibit 3).

Q. I now go to another document. What do you call this (showing) ? 
A. Sheet No. 9.

Q. It is m.f.i. (8). Does that show sections respectively of the 1954 
and 1956 plans ? A. Yes, diagrammatic sections.

Q. That is on the top line ? A. Yes. There are sections. The 
low ones are the plans.

Q. Going to the sections on the top first of all, would it be correct 30 
to say that on the left-hand one, which is the 1954 one, if you were to 
draw, for the purposes of distinction a red line just above or on the 
second floor ..... A. Yes.

Q. And you continued on the left-hand side that is, the side near 
Carrington Street and continued that right across to George Street, 
would you get the roof level of the the 1954 actual plans ? Is that 
clear ? A. Yes. That is substantially right.

HIS HONOR : Where it has " second floor ", that is the roof.
Mr WALLACE : Q. The roof of the first floor of the 1954 plan then 
provides for a first floor facing Carrington Street. Is that right ? 40 
A. Yes, ground floor and first floor.

Q. The ceiling of the first floor ? A. That is right.
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Q. Then you carry it across, and there is some construction envisaged i»> 
where the words " Wynyard Lane " are ? A. That is so.

Q. Then you carry it across to George Street, and there the line s 
on the same level gets where the words " second floor " are ? A. Yes. Equitable

Q. That is to say, the roof of the first floor of George Street. Is J»»^io»-
that clear ? A. Yes. Defendant's

Q. Constrasting that with the 1956 plan, would it be correct to say vi-!!l e "
that in the 1956 plan the building goes to where the words " fourth W°M'
floor" are ? A. Yes. Nichoiis.

10 Q. That is to say, the roof of the third floor is the ceiling of the Examination, 
actual building ? A. Yes, that is substantially so.

Q. Then it comes down, and the existing building facing George 
Street is left untouched; that is to say, where the roof of the second floor 
is, it is left untouched in its present form ? A. Yes.

Q. So that under the 1956 plan the work consists of going up as 
high as and including a third floor facing Carrington Street ? A. Yes.

Q. Then, going underneath to the plan, do we find diagrammatically 
again a plan of the actual buildings envisaged by the two designs. On 
the left do we find the plan of the 1954 design ? A. Yes.

20 Q. Showing, from a bird's eye view, the so-called first floor fronting 
Carrington Street, then a light court of a width of 22 feet 6 inches in 
the centre, going back towards the back and across Wynyard Lane ? 
A. Yes.

Q. Then, on each side of that, is some building work. Is that so ? 
A. Yes.

Q. Then, in George Street, the position is the same ? A. Under 
the two schemes ?

Q. Yes. A. No.
Q. Under the 1954 plan, they have got a storey put on top of the 

30 existing building facing George Street ? A. That is not quite correct.
Q. Would you just detail it ? A. At present in George Street 

existing there is a floor of bedrooms and other things above the ground 
floor.

Q. Above the George Street level I A. Yes. Then this scheme 
presupposes you come in and change that somewhat by virtue of this 
other building impinging into it and altering it.

Q. The 1954 design impinges into and alters the existing first 
floor, fronting George Street ? A. Yes.
HIS HONOR : Q. But its height will be the same as the height of the 

40 first floor in George Street, will it *. A. Substantially.
Mr WALLACE : Q. Going back to the left-hand bottom plan, the 1954 
plan, you see a light court on the northern top side, broken shape ? 
A. Yes.

•38632—IA
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in the Q. It has the letter " C " with a flag pennant facing towards the
Supreme i * ? * Vpq Court of New lelt   A. I 68.

Souf itsaks Q' And down below there is another light court of somewhat irregular 
Equitable shape ? A. Yes.
__ ' Q. In between those and the centre light court, you have a line of 

second-class accommodation and then a line of third-class on both sides, 
an(j ^ eack case the third-class fronts the inner light court ? A. Yes.

E?"M.' Q- Does that mean what you said this morning, that there would be a
corridor running along the centre with a second-class bedroom facing the 

Examination, public light court to the north ? A. Yes. 10 
Q. And to the south ? A. That is correct. 
Q. And the third-class facing the small inner light court ? A. Yes.
Q. You have an extract, in the footing, " from the City Corporation 

Act, By-Law 52, made under the City Corporation Act " ? A. That 
is so.

Q. I will come to corridors and so on later. I now want to go to the 
bedroom accommodation in the respective plans ? A. Yes.

(m.f.i. (8) now tendered and marked Exhibit 4).
Q. What is the difference between these two documents (showing) ? 

A. This section, the centre section, was added, and the rest remains. 20
Q. Why was the centre section added ? A. To make clearer the 

City Ordinance in regard to light courts.
Q. The centre section just shows the height three times the width ? 

A. Yes.
Q. And just shows the angular result of the light, having regard to 

the width of the light well ? A. Yes.
Q. The next things I go to are the bedrooms and corridors. (Exhibit 

" L " shown.) Would you tell His Honor in some logical method what 
the various sheets consist of ? A. This (Sheet 4) is a plan of bedrooms 
at the second and third floor levels above Carrington Street. 30

Q. That is Sheet 4 of 1956 ? A. Yes. This (Sheet 5) is a plan 
showing the roof at the top of the bedrooms ; that is to say, at the fourth 
floor level of Carrington Street.

Q. The ceiling of the third floor ? A. Yes. 

SIR GAEPIELD : That is what is green ?

WITNESS : Yes, that section (indicating). These are miscellaneous 
pieces that relate to the lift that is being put in at varying lower levels, 
where the whole plan is not justified. For instance, that is at the George 
Street-Wynyard Ramp level.

HIS HONOR : Q. It has the phrase " Wynyard Ramp " on it ? 40 
A. Yes ; and there at the Hunter Street level, which is one below, and this 
again is at the basement (indicating). That is right down the bowels of
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the building. Varying things arc affected that the builder needs to /» '/"  
know of, and the City Council, and we drew those part plans just where court"of"xew 
it was affected. Mouth Wales
Mr WALLACE : Q. AVhat, giving access to and the environs of the lift ? Equitable
A Jurisdiction.

Q. Which alter, according to the floor >. A. Exactly. Defendant's
Q. What is Sheet 3 ? A. This is a floor of bedrooms at the first    

floor above Carrington Street.  jj,"-^'-
Q. And the lightly shaded area, facing AYynyard Lane, what is x"'h" lls- 

10 that ? A. That is the roof of the ground floor of the Carrington Street Examination. 
structure ; Wynyard Lane below   George Street there (indicating).

Q. I want to ask you about the concourse and the shopping centres 
later. What is Sheet 1 ? A. Sheet 1 is a plan at AYynyard Lane level, 
that being Carrington Street, this being George Street, and that being 
the existing ramp that you come up from George Street to Wynyard Lane, 
showing one-half of the shopping court here, the other half of the shopping 
court there, the access stairs which go up to Carrington Street.

Q. Look at Sheet 1 . Is this the general scheme   correct me if I am 
wrong. The public, having come in through the George Street entrance, 

20 can go via steps across AVynyard Lane and then on to what you call the 
concourse ? A. This is a shopping court (indicating).

Q. Then, up some steps into the foyer of the front of the hotel, and 
thence into Carrington Street ? A. Xo, that is not literally true. 
It shows better in a section.

Q. Before I leave this, would this be true : under this design, the 
frontage of the area into Wynyard Lane on both sides is recessed so 
as to provide a modern shopping centre ? A. Indeed. I have a 
picture of both of those here. The footpath is vastly wider on each side 
to create a shopping court.

30 Q- The idea is to have about nine modern shops grouped about that 
court ? A. Yes.

Q. I now pass to the next sheet, Sheet No. 6. A. Sheet Xo. 6 
comprises two sections, one going from George Street, through Wynyard 
Lane up to Carrington Street. The other one, which is marked on a 
plan sheet, parallels Carrington Street and cuts right through the bedroom 
and the Carrington Street block.

Q. Which is Carrington Street on the upper sections, " BB " ? 
A. Right there is Carrington Street. That is termed " ground floor " 
in this scheme.

4Q Q. And this is a section ..... A. Running parallel to Carrington 
Street.

Q. And that shows three storeys of bedrooms and a ground storey of 
miscellaneous and reception rooms and so on ? A. Yes. This is the 
clear one as to how you get from spot to spot, (indicating).
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the Q. The lower one shows how you get from Carrington Street to 
oTNew George Street and vice versa ? A. Yes.

Sm'iii Usaks Q- Starting from the right of the lower diagram, you find George 
Equitable Street entrance underneath the existing building, which you say consists 

of bedrooms ? A. Yes.
Q- Then you go downstairs to a dining room, and you can go along, 

up some steps, to Wynyard Lane ? A. Yes, there it is, in grey 
(indicating). You continue on through more shops, up more steps, to 
the public concourse bounded by shops at Carrington Street level, and 

. thence to Carrington Street. 10

SIR GARFIBLD : Q. Is this the existing Wynyard Lane ? A. That 
is so.

Q. Is this the only dining room in the plan 

Mr WALLACE : I am coming to that.
Q. It is the only dining room in the 1954 plan ? A. That is 

correct.
Q. But in the 1956 plan, there is one underneath Carrington Street, 

on the Carrington Street side, for residents, with a kitchen ? A. Yes.
Q. By the way, how many bedrooms are provided for in the 1954 

plan ? A. I have a schedule. It is 64. 20
Q. Do you produce a schedule which you have prepared ? A. Yes.
Q. Showing a comparison of the accommodation under the two 

plans '? A. Yes.
Q. Under the 1954 plan were there 64 bedrooms as compared with 

76 under the 1956 plan ? A. Yes.
Q. Under the 1954 plan there were 23 twin bedrooms as compared 

with 39 ? A. Yes.
Q. Nine doubles as compared with three ? A. Yes.
Q. 32 singles as compared with 34 ? A. That is correct.
Q. Under the 1954 design, 12 twin bedrooms had baths, five had 30 

showers ....

HIS HONOR : You are just reading a document really, Mr Wallace.

Mr WALLACE : I only want to come down to the baths and bedrooms. 
I did want to inform Your Honor by evidence at this stage that under 
the 1954 plan there were 28 persons, residents, who had to rely on public 
pan and bath facilities, and under the 1956 plan every room had its own 
bath or shower room.

Q. Is that so ? A. That is correct.

HIS HONOR : Q. Under the 1956 plan did they have their own pan, 
to use your words ? A. Yes, they each have a pan and a basin and/or 40 
a bath or shower.



Mr WALLACE : Q. Whilst under the earlier plan there were only 43 in the 
of the 64 bedrooms that had bath or shower rooms ? A. That is cofrTo/"tfe«-
Correct. South Wales

Q. Six twin rooms, one double room and 14 single rooms had neither EquitiiMi- 
baths nor showers ? A. That is correct. Jurisdiction.

Q. Is the rest of the information on this schedule to the best of   .,
1 i- p n A ^7- T i -j n Evidence

you belief ? A. Yes, I prepared it all. _
Q. You have said that the 1954 bedrooms are designed on an obsolete E°'M. 

basis and there you have given your reason ? A. Yes. \ichoiis.
10 Q. Are those matters all important in your opinion ? A. Yes. Examination.

SIR GARFIELD : Is this document more than a mere extract of the 
plans ?

Mr WALLACE : Yes, it does contain opinions as well as facts.
(Abovementioned document by which witness compares previous 

and present schemes tendered and marked Exhibit 5.)
Q. What does Sheet No. 7 show ? A. Sheet No. 7 comprises two 

levels. The lower one is as you stand in Carrington Street, looking at the 
building. The upper one is as you stand in Wynyard Lane, looking 
at the building towards Carrington Street.

20 Q- But which building ? A. This (sheet 7) is the 1956 scheme.
Q. What is Sheet 2 ? A. Sheet 2 is a plan of the work that occurs 

.at the Carrington Street level and confined between Carrington Street 
and Wynyard Lane.

Q. I notice here a room called a coffee lounge with a kitchen annexed 
to it ? A. Yes.

Q. Was that designed .to service the residents with breakfast, lunch 
and grills ? A. Yes. It is more than that. I used this coffee lounge 
parlance, having come back from America, where in so many hotels 
they have dining rooms at different levels, and the cheaper ones are 

30 often called coffee lounges; but this has a complete kitchen to serve 
meals in the same way as Repins and Cahills serve meals.

SIR GARFIELD : This is a dining room, as it was called before ? 

WITNESS : Yes. That will take about 100 people.

Mr WALLACE : Q. That is on the ground floor level of Carrington 
Street ? A. Yes.

Q. Under the 1954 design there is no such dining room provision at 
all ? A. None.

Q. Do you regard that as an advantage ? A. Most desirable, 
I think ; economically and geographically.

40 Q- This concourse is the method by which members of the public can 
go ultimately right through to George Street ? A. That is correct.
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in the Q. Do you say you have got Wynyard Lane widened out with a cover
<<ourtPtfmNew and ro°f> to allow for modern shops ? A. It is roofed over, in
South Wales contradistinction with the 1954 scheme. As soon as you step onto

Equitable Wynyard Lane, going towards George Street, you are in the open, because
jurisdiction, it is underneath the well. Then you make a run for it and get under
Defendant's COVer

Evidence. Q Underneath the centre light well ? A. Yes.

B?M. Q- Before I put these Exhibit " L " sheets to one side, is there any 
Niohoiis. matter which you yourself wish to refer to ? A. Only insofar as 

Examination ^ne comparative document refers to the merits of each. 10

Q. That is, Exhibit 5 ? A. Yes. I think that covers all that I 
have to say as regards the two.

Q. I will now take you through the sheets making up Exhibit " H ". 
Is Sheet 1 a design of these pillars we have heard about ? A. This is 
a plan of the existing building at the Hunter Street concourse level.

Q. Are you actually speaking of the entrance in Hunter Street 
itself, where you turn to the left just above Fairfax & Roberts, go down 
a hollow which turns to the right, and go down to George Street ? 
A. Yes. This has been called by all and sundry the Hunter Street 
level. 20

Q. Where would it be, underneath ? A. That is Carrington Street 
and that is George Street. You can always identify the wider end as 
Carrington Street and the narrower end as George Street. Wynyard Lane 
goes across there (indicating).

Q. This is George Street, isn't it ? A. Yes.

Q. If I came in here off the footpath of George Street I would be 
above what this represents ? A. Yes.

Q. A storey above it ? A. Yes. The two main ramps that you 
walk down to the buses and such are virtually above those.

Q. And shops in the centre \ A. Above, yes. 30 

Q. Is this a dining room here ? A. No, this is nothing here.

Q. This is in the bowels of the earth. All this is black and gloomy 
stuff? A. Yes.

Q. And on this side too ? A. Yes.

Q. It goes underneath Wynyard Lane, which is about there, and it 
comes out there ? A. Yes.

Q. There might be cool rooms or some lift belonging to the Railway 
Commissioner there ? A. That is the main lift of the Railway 
Commissioner for the lorries.

Q. Neither design touches that ? A. The 54 design touches it 40 
only insofar as that lift shaft is created for the new lift to come in. Our 
design affects it in those little individual bits of drawings around the 
lift shaft. I did not reproduce the whole floor,
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Q. (Exhibit "L " now shown). A. These five columns here are in the 
those five columns there. Had I drawn this whole plan, that little piece (<0fl "tpZ"l'yew 
would have been there, at the George Street level, and this little piece south Wales 
would have been drawn there at that level, and that little piece would P "l .! tl,
i i i i i 111 -11 *. . . Equitablehave been drawn there on a lower level that you might have (indicating). Jurisdiction.
SIR GARFIELD : Have we any means of recording that ? Have we Defendant's 
any means of indicating on this the relationship of these two plans ? T1

"Vo 5
Mr WALLACE : Could I put a blue cross in a blue circle just above k M. 
the diagram on Sheet 5 of Exhibit " L ", which contains a sort of Nlcholls -

10 Circular ..... Examination.

HIS HONOR : Call it the plan " lift enclosure, George Street building ".

SIR GARFIELD : I would be content with a ring around this and a 
notation " Plan, lift enclosure, George Street level " and " Lift enclosure 
Hunter Street level ".

HIS HONOR : I do not think you need that. These are all one above the 
other. If you mark it with a cross I will know precisely what is is.

SIR GARFIELD : Put a ring around those four columns and put 
" Lift enclosure ".

Mr WALLACE : Q. Sheet 2 shows what ? A. This is one floor level 
20 below George Street, where you come down the dining room steps, and you 

enter there. By virtue of the George Street ram]) cutting away, you 
cannot continue this floor through.

Q. The floor diminishes ? A. The George Street ramp is going 
down all the time.

Q. And under here is an ever receding triangle ? A. You can 
look up here, see the preceding one .....

Q. This is the dining room ? A. The only alteration that is 
affected here is the lift shaft, which is newly constructed on the 1954 
scheme. I think it is common to both plans that the new work is coloured.

30 Mr WALLACE : Q. That is to say, new work presupposed by either 
scheme. The architectural custom is you either leave the existing 
work black or grey. A. Yes. This (sheet 3) is a plan at the George 
Street level, and they are the two main ramps that go down to the trams 
and trains, and that is where you go down to the dining room first 
entrance, or you can go down to the dining room second entrance. If 
you wish to walk up to the present bedrooms above George Street, you 
walk up that stair. This is the new lift, shaded by the other plan. That 
is the comparable section. There is the island bar, with those five 
columns that occur there, so if you put a cross there and a cross there

40 (indicating), they are comparable.
Q. I now turn over to Sheet 4. A. Sheet 4 is at the Wynyard 

Lane level. There are stairs existing that you go up to Wynyard Lane.
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in the, Q. From the ramps ? A. Yes. This plan maintains the narrow 
New Wynyard Lane and narrow footpath, where they splash muck all over 

South Wales you. Then you start your stairs there, to go up. This area (indicating) 
Equitable ™ substantially unused. The footpath is increased in width by roughly 

Jurisdiction. 12 feet on either side, with shops there and shops there.
Defendant's Q. That is in the 1956 plan ? A. Yes.

VL!^ ' Q. But in the 1954 plan the footpath is left untouched and very 
NO. 6. narrow ? A. Yes.
-fcj. M.

Niohdb. gIR GARFIELD : What is the bit of pink there ?

xamma ion. WITNESS . rpj^ wou^ j^ a waj^ lookmg On the top. When you show 10 
an elevation you use a lighter colour. Then you start to get here the first 
indications of the building above the Wynyard Lane. That is an escape 
stair coming down, and that is a stair coming down.

Mr WALLACE : Q. All these are existing rooms, untouched, over 
George Street ? A. Yes.

Q. I now turn over to Sheet 5 ? A. I have never seen this one 
before. This is nothing like the final one submitted to the Licensing 
Court, I understand.
SIR GARFIELD : This is the Licensing Court's document.
HIS HONOR : But do not forget that there were two sheets put in. 20
WITNESS : This is completely changed.
Mr WALLACE : This is not the thing that went to the Licensing Court.
SIR GARFIELD : It did originally.

Mr WALLACE : Q. What is this one ? A. I am quite sure this is not 
the last one before the Licensing Court, because the last one before the 
Licensing Court has a foyer entrance there.

Q. What is the next one ? A. That is at bedroom level. That 
is the roof above the bedrooms.

(Plans part of Exhibit " H '" now shown to witness).

Mr WALLACE : Q. What is this ? A. This is a plan of the 1954 30 
scheme.

SIR GARFIELD : We will call it " 5A ".

WITNESS : This is the plan of the 1954 scheme at the Carrington 
Street level showing substantially the whole area between Carrington 
Street and Wynyard Lane is built over, and comprising the public 
concourse whereby you go through to George Street, bars, bottle 
department, drinking lounge, foyer, office, toilets.

Mr WALLACE : Q. And no dining room ? A. None.
Q. What is this on the right-hand side 1 A. Plant room. There 

is air conditioning not air conditioning, ventilation plant there. 40



Q. What about 6A I A. This is a plan of the 1954 scheme at the i>< 
first floor level above Carrington Street and showing new floor and cowT 
bedrooms. south Wales

Q. That is only one floor: that is the last floor ? A. The one Equitable 
and only floor. Jurisdiction.

Q. The one and onlv floor under the 1954 design ? A. Yes. Defendant's
0 Evidence.

Q. What is the blue area '. A. That woitld be the roof of some of -, ; 
the bar down below. E'.\I. 

Q. Where is Wynyard Lane ? A. AVynyard Lane is just there, x'cholls - 
10 because the lower building is built right to the edge of Wynyard Lane. Examination.

Q. It is built over AVynyard Lane ? A. Yes.
Q. Where is the light court ? A. There is the light court. This 

is the inner court. There are the outer courts.
Q. Have you anything to say in relation to that bedroom plan about 

the length of corridors or efficiency from administrative viewpoint ? 
A. Yes, it is more inefficient.

Q. In what respect ? A. The greater the length of corridor you 
get, the greater the amount of walking. Supposing people try to get 
into this place, and supposing they are driven to George Street, and then

20 they fight their way in the traffic to get to this one little lift that is 
almost on George Street, and then you get up in the lift, here, and if 
your room is some distance, you can have quite a hike to get to it. 
Then, in the little comparative statement I have made, if you are one 
of the 28 guests who have no toilet facilities and you try to go to some of 
these public toilets there are some public toilets there (indicating) if 
those few are occupied, then you have to come around here, climb up 
here, go across the roof, and you find some more on the roof; which is 
rather bad. You come out in the open. If you have the few toilets 
here occupied by the 28 odd guests, then you either stand and wait,

30 or climb up and go to some on the roof, which seems to me to be archaic.
Q. Have you made any other comment ? A. I have spoken 

about the narrowness of some of these bedrooms down to 6 feet 6 inches 
in width, a single bedroom. Nearly every bedroom is a different shape, 
which reflects itself in the fantastic cost of this scheme. AVhen you 
have all different shaped bedrooms they are hard to furnish uniformly 
and you can put an extra cost on for that. When it comes to living in 
the bedrooms, substantially all these bedrooms are designed on the old- 
fashioned idea in that when you walk into a bedroom, somewhere in the 
bedroom protruding from the wall is a wardrobe. All that went out 

40 of date so long ago. The scheme we have in the 1956 arrangement is 
uniform, and one of these two types fairly well practised throughout 
the world. You go from the corridor, and there is the wardrobe. Then, 
if it is a twin room, you walk into the bathroom, which has the pan and 
basin and bath. As a consequence that is a bed-lounge room. It has 
not a wardrobe protruding, breaking it all up. Then, if you get onto the
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in the single bedroom, there is the same principle exactly. There is the 
Ctmrt^New wardrobe, there is the basin and pan   no bath   but with a shower, with a 
South Wales plug, and if you wish to have a plunge .....

in its
Sm GARFIELD : A bath in the bottom of the shower ?

Defendant's WITNESS : That is quite common. Lots of motels do that now.
Evidence.
~5 Mr WALLACE : Q. Where do you enter ? A. You enter through 
E. k. there.

Nicholls.
  HIS HONOR : Q. You put the wardrobe alongside the shower, which is 

Examination. gmaller than tlie bath ? A Yes. That keeps your bedroom clean
for bed-lounge purposes. You enter there, and that is like a little 10 
hollow, and here is the wardrobe, and you go straight into your bathroom. 
This is so common that is is standard practice in all hotels   all these 
illustrations are from all over the world, and they all show the same 
thing   and that is how you do it.

Mr WALLACE : Q. What is that plan ? A. That plan (Sheet 7) 
is the last plan over the roof of the bedroom, showing the flat roof on 
top and showing where I indicated. If you cannot get a toilet, then 
you have to climb up these stairs, get outside here, run around here in 
the open, and go in there.

Q. And that is just flat roof, is it ? A. Yes. 20

Mr WALLACE : Your Honor has indicated you consider you have full 
power to order the release of the Court's plans.

HIS HONOR : I consider 1 can release the Court's plan provided I 
am satisfied no harm will come to the plan and provided I get an 
undertaking from the appropriate officer, and provided the administration 
of justice in this Court will not be hampered.

Mr WALLACE : I have plans which I am now informed are similar to 
these that the Licensing Court, through Mr Perrignon, has requested 
to be lifted.

HIS HONOR : It might save time if I adjourned for a few minutes and 30 
enabled the witness to look at them properly, because he has to pledge 
himself on whether they are copies.

(Short adjournment.)

Mr WALLACE : Q. Take the 1956 plans first of all, that is to say 
Exhibit " L ". You have compared Exhibit " L " with the copy plans 
that were handed to you just before the adjournment, this bundle which 
I show to you. You have compared Exhibit " L " with that bundle, 
haven't you ? A. Yes.

Q. What do you say in regard to the similarity ? A. The two 
sets are substantially similar, when it comes to the actual printed drawing. 49 
They are microscopic, and incidentally it is all colouring by my staff.
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Sometimes a hand rail is coloured blue and not on another, and sometimes in 
a gate is coloured blue on one and not on another. On one plan it says 
" Public Bar " and on the other plan it says " Saloon Bar " for the same South Wales 
place. It has been altered. Then, on this set, having been to the City ff '"^,/f 
Council, there are a good number of stamps and notations by the City ./«( /«//< //««. 
Council which are not on the Exhibit plans. Defendant's

Evidence.
SIR GARFIELD : Then there are some ink notations as well as the   
City Council notations. E°M

WITNESS : I think they all relate to the City Council. They all stem 1^- 3 '
10 from it. Examination.

Mr WALLACE : Q. In your opinion, as an architect, is there any 
difference between the two which is of any consequence, so far as obtaining 
an idea and an understanding of what the plans involve ? A. On 
that basis there is no difference at all.

Mr WALLACE : In regard to the 1956 plans my request is that they 
be substituted and that Exhibit " L " be given into the custody of the 
Licensing Court's representative.

HIS HONOR : They will not be substituted. I will have them marked 
with the same number and I will use them, and the others will come 

20 back whenever I ask for them. I can only adopt this procedure, to see 
whether I can use these conditional ones for the purpose of administering 
justice in this Court.

Mr WALLACE : Q. With regard to the 1954 plans Exhibit " H ", 
and the set that was shown to you are there some substantial 
differences ? A. Yes, every sheet is substantially different.

Q. So that you could not say the same thing at all of the 1954 
plans ? A. On the contrary, you could have confusion.

Q. By the way, the evidence that you gave about the 1954 plans 
was based on Exhibit " H " ? A. That is true.

30 Mr WALLACE : I cannot make any application about the 1954 plans.

SIR GARFIELD : All I want to say about the others is that there are 
notations on these plans, and it is not possible at this moment for me 
to say yea or nay as to whether they may be of materiality. It is all 
very well to say that one can put them out of mind, but when the choice 
is between keeping your exhibits and dealing with them, and letting 
them out of hand and dealing with something that has endorsements 
on it which may be relevant and damaging, 1 do suggest there is no such 
balance here which calls for Your Honor releasing Your Honor's exhibit 
and taking in exchange that which is not in every respect identical. 

401 am now talking about the endorsements. As I say, I saw one which 
is not a mere City Council endorsement. It is a notation which touches 
on certain aspects of this matter, and if it were that Your Honor could not
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in ihr get a plan that was written on, then, of course, we would have to use it, 
ofirt'ofmNew ^u^ when Your Honor can get something which is regular, then I say we

Nomii Wait-* should use that.
ill it*

KquiuMe Mr WALLACE : Your Honor is sitting without a jury, and my friend has 
. Hti^ntiun. obtained in evidence a lot of correspondence and other material which if 
Defendant's one did not have trust and confidence in the learned Judge might be
Evidence. calculated to prejudice the Judge's mind.

B?'M.' HIS HONOR : I have decided to let the bundle that the witness 
\ichoiis. identified be called Exhibit '' L2 ". Every sheet will have to be marked 

Examination. m the same fashion as the others. The crosses on the lift part I can ]Q 
remember, and if it is necessary to check them at any time I will get the 
originals back.

What I am going to do is to say that you or somebody on your side 
will take the responsibility of marking those sheets with the same numbers 
that are marked on the original exhibit, and Mr Perrignon, then giving 
the undertaking which I mentioned before, can take them in his custody 
on the condition that I mentioned before, and Mr Perrignon, on behalf 
of the Licensing Clerk, will sign for the dociiments, so that this Court 
puts them into his custody, and he, through his client, will have to get 
them back if 1 want them. 20

SIR GARF1ELD : What is going to happen if somebody starts putting 
markings on them down below ?

HIS HONOR : 1 shall also extract the condition that they should not be 
marked. It amounts to this : the document is released on the basis 
that when I call for it back it will come back as that document.

Mr PERRIGNON : Those conditions will be made clear.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Under the 1956 plan, do you have a roof or structure 
over Wynyard Lane ? A. Yes.

Q. Just elaborate what it is and what it is for. A. The roof over 
Wynyard Lane is primarily to give coverage to pedestrians walking from 30 
George Street across Wynyard Lane to Carrington Street. It also adds 
great use and convenience to shoppers who are there in this newly created 
shopping court.

Q. How wide is this planned for ? A. From memory, about 40-ft., 
up and down Wynyard Lane.

Q. I think you explained to His Honor yesterday that under the 
1954 plan, the 22-ft. wide light area in the centre would go right across 
Wynyard Lane, straddling so to speak, the steps in the centre leading 
across from George Street, across Wynyard Lane, I think to the Carrington 
Street side ? A. That is so. The light well coincides with the passage- 40 
way of pedestrians

Q. Would you take the 1954 plans ? Could you direct your evidence 
for the moment to the position regarding the distance from the small 
lift which gives access under the 1954 plan to the dining room the



distance between the small lift and the furthest removed bedrooms in in the 
that plan; how residents in bedrooms removed from the lift would ( <„?,',!'/' o/''s e,, o/ 
journey to it and the distances they would travel ? A. The most South
distant bedroom from the lift would be about 200-ft.

Q. That is along a corridor and around the corner of a corridor '? """ lclon ' 
A. Along one direct corridor, and a long irregular corridor. Defendant's

0 'oo Evidence.

Q. Would you check on that and see if you can get it a little more ,;   ; 
accurately ? A. A more careful check is about 240-ft. E. M.

Q. Do you offer any comment on that situation? A. Well, it    
10 is most undesirable for people to have to come up in the lift and then Examma*lon ' 

carry their luggage for 240-ft. It is not quite what YOU call modern 
hotel standards.

Q. Going just for one moment to that question of George Street 
again, in accordance with modern architectural thought, is it desirable 
or not to have bedrooms overlooking such a busy street as what George 
Street is there, from the point of view of noise ( A. Most undesirable.

Q. Would you say there would be serious traffic problems if you had 
a big hotel frontage at \Yynyard Station, facing George Street ? 
A. Yes. I can imagine occasions when it would be quite impossible, 

20 if y°u happen to arrive by taxi or other means at about traffic peak time, 
when there is a surge of people coming or going, it would be very difficult 
getting to this lift.

Q. Actually under the 1956 plans you are the designer of them, 
1 understand, aren't you * A. That is so.

Q. Do you envisage in the future development of the site that the 
Carrington Street frontage would be the hotel accommodation and 
that the George Street frontage could be for commercial offices and 
soon. Would that be one desirable method of development ? A. Yes. 
In my judgment that is the best way to develop it as a site. On the 

30 Carrington Street frontage facing the park, where it is pleasant to overlook 
and quieter, that is where you can develop your hotel and get 
300 bedrooms, which in my judgment is as many as you would want 
of that class and for that location. Then, on George Street, the quite 
separate block could well and very profitably be commercial.

Q. So far as the 1956 plans are concerned, you have pointed out to 
His Honor what the dining room described in the plans as a coffee lounge 
011 the Carrington Street side is ? A. Yes.

Q. I think it is on the Carrington Street level ? A. Yes. 
Q. To service the residents ? A. Yes.

40 Q. I think you indicated that that sort of thing is in accordance 
with modern trends ? A. That is quite true.

Q. The dining room, under the 1956 plans, does not actually have a 
lift to it. Is that so >. A. I think \ve are a little at cross-purposes.



in foe, Q. I am speaking of the other dining room presently existing in 
mNew George Street ? A. Yes, the 1956 plans have no direct lift connection 

South Wales with the existing dining room.
Equitable Q- Can you explain to His Honor how, if it were desired to have a 

Jurisdiction, lift to it, under the 1956 plans it would be readily possible to do so with 
Defendant's ^ne slightest additional area ? A. The lift in the 1956 plans is located 
Evidence, in the lift shaft that was originally designed for lifts in the major building, 
^^ but no provision was made in the early plans for connection from that lift 
E. M. directly to the dining room; but by simply stopping the lift at the 

Niohoiis. (jmmg room level and creating as it were a landing down above the 10 
Examination. Hunter Street unused level, you could walk directly from the lift along the 

landing straight into the dining room.
Q. That is the part you have marked yellow in this plan you now 

produce ? 
SIR GARFIELD : This is not part of the plans that have been submitted 
to anybody ?
Mr WALLACE : No.
HIS HONOR : This is a suggestion as to how a lift could be got over.
Mr WALLACE : I wish to make it quite clear to my friend that there 
is no provision under the 1956 plans to have direct lift access into the 20 
George Street dining room as it presently exists.

Q. Without that alteration, the position then would be that the 
residents of the 1956 building would be serviced for their meals in the 
so-called coffee lounge with a proper kitchen alongside it, and if they 
wanted to go to the existing dining room on the George Street side, they 
would walk through the concourse and the public channels, down steps, 
leading in to it ? A. That is one of two ways. That is the longer 
of the two ways. The shorter way is simply to take the lift down to the 
George Street northern ramp level, get out of the lift, cross the ramp and 
enter the dining room by the lower of the two existing stairs. 30
SIR GARFIELD : He means you would walk through part of the public 
part of the station to go to the dining room.
WITNESS : That is what the present residents now do.
Mr WALLACE : Q. I am not sure whether it is you or another architect 
that I have to ask this, but if you do not know, say so. Is it a modern 
trend in America and elsewhere in most modern hotels to have the public 
dining room serving the hotel physically removed from the hotel 
altogether, independently servicing and available to the hotel as well as 
the public ? A. I understand and to the best of my research that is 
the common practice now in modern hotels. 40 

(Plan of proposed lift alteration tendered and marked Exhibit 6.)
Q. In Para. 26 of the plaintiff's statement of claim in this suit, it 

is alleged that the 1956 plans are for a building considerably smaller 
than and of less value than the 1954 plans. What do you say to that ? 
(Objected to by Sir Garfield ; pressed by Mr. Wallace; allowed.)
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Q. Smaller than and of less value than the 1954 plans. What do in the 
you say about that !-

HIS HONOR : Take them one at a time.

Mr WALLACE : Q. " Smaller " first. A. The allegation that the 1956
plans are smaller than the 1954 plans is incorrect. If you measure an ,. , .,Mir>iii i • i Defendantsarea or the two you will rind that the 1956 plans are approximately, Evidence. 
as I remember it, about 500,000 sq. ft. more in area than the 1954 plans. ^~s 
Then it comes to a question of a building of less value. Then you have k k. 
to consider what you got for your money. I understand that the 1954 Nlcholla - 

10 plans which gave only 62 bedrooms were going to cost about £525,000. Examination.
Q. That was the tender ? A. Yes, which per bedroom is 

approximately £9,000   which is one measuring stick. The 1956 plans, 
which comprise about 75 bedrooms and more shops, work out pro rata at 
about £5,000 per bedroom. If you compare the two bedrooms you will 
find that on the average the 1956 plans have bigger bedrooms than the 
1954 plans. Not only are they bigger bedrooms but also they all have 
toilet facilities. Then, I think if you impartially compare the two 
groups of bedrooms you will find the 1956 bedrooms are much better and 
individually more costly then the 1954 ones. Therefore, the only 

20 conclusion you can draw is that in 1954 plans somebody is not getting 
their money 's worth.

HIS HONOR : That is an argumentative way. It conveniently puts 
things which one would take into account.

Mr WALLACE : In your opinion, if the building envisaged by the 1954 
plans were constructed and the building envisaged by the 1956 plans 
were constructed which would be the more valuable on completion ? 
(Objected to by Sir Garfield; rejected).

HIS HONOR : The witness has already given his reasons, and one can 
summarise his reasons as follows : run as an hotel it would bring in more 

30 money.

WITNESS : It is a better standard building and a bigger building.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Is it, within architectural terminology, correct to 
describe the 1954 planned building as a beam and slab building, whilst 
the 1956 one is described in such terminology as a flat plate type of 
building ? A. Yes, that is substantially so.

Q. Going to the pillars that we have heard about, what purpose if 
any do those pillars serve at the present time ?  

SIR GARFIELD : Which pillars are you speaking about ?

Mr WALLACE : I am speaking of the pillars which are referred to in one 
40 or more of the letters that you have had tendered in evidence, referred 

to by the Railway Commissioner in the correspondence.

SIR GARFIELD : The witness has not seen the correspondence.
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in the. Mr WALLACE : Q. Where are those pillars shown '( Was it the 1954 
Court"of"NewP^an ^ -A- At which level ? Do you want to go right down to the
South Wales bottom ?

EquMie Q- Yes. First of all, this building goes down three storeys, down 
Jurisdiction, below the level of George Street at present, doesn't it ? 

*.' 8 SIR GARFIELD : Which building ?

Mr WALLACE : The site. There are railway premises between George 
Street, Carrington Street, going over Carrington Street into Wynyard 
Park.

Examination. Q j£ j . were stan(iing Oii the platform that is furthest west in 1Q 
Wynyard Station, say, the platform where I would take the train to 
Pymble do you follow that ? A. Yes.

Q. That would be underneath where; Wynyard Park ? A. Yes, 
it would be. It would be outside the limits of the lease; under the road 
or under Wynyard Park.

Q. Some reference is made in the correspondence in evidence to some 
pillars, and in that Exhibit H on all the sheets we see smallish in 
some cases rectangular, in others hexagonal, in other octagonal markings, 
and in some cases rectangular and square markings. What do they 
represent ? A. They are the structural pillars that hold up the whole of 20 
the building and all within it.

Q. When you say they hold up the building, can you say whether 
any of them, and if so which of them, are serving the purpose of holding up 
railway buildings at the present time ? A. I am not fully conversant 
by what "railway buildings" mean.

Q. I mean the ramps leading on to Wynyard Station '? A. Well, 
that is very clear. There are ramps at two levels, one at the so-called 
Hunter Street level and one at the George Street level a pair of ramps in 
each instance and a whole bracket of columns right in the centre of 
the buildings hold up the ramps at those two levels. 30

Q. And Wynyard Lane itself ? A. Yes, indeed.

Q. Wynyard Lane itself is held up by some of these pillars to which 
you have referred ? A. Yes because we go underneath it.

Q. Would these pillars be shown on Sheet No. 1 of Exhibit H ? 
A. Yes.

Q. Could you indicate which of the pillars you are referring to ? 
A. Yes, starting from there, to there (indicating).

SIR GARFIELD : These pillars are bearing some particular load '(
Mr \VALLACE : Q. These pillars are supporting the Railway ramps 
and also Wynyard Lane, which are used by the Commissioner in 40 
connection with Wynyard Railway Station ? A. If we take the ramps 
for a start they are the columns (indicating) if you take that whole group 
of columns through there, they are the ones that support the ramps



at those two levels. Then, Wynyard Lane goes there and there 
(indicating), so therefore, you take that bracket of columns and that 
bracket of columns that help to hold up Wynyard Lane. South"waks

Q. And they were always necessary to give structural stability Equitable 
to the Railway Commissioner's works, right from the inception >-  Jurisdiction.

SIR GARFIELD : Does he say these that are there were necessary to Evidence * 
hold up the ramps ?  :

__ -pi "vr

Mr WALLACE: Q. Were pillars necessary from the Railway Nichoiis. 
Commissioner's viewpoint to serve those ends right from the inception    . 

10 of the planning of Wynyard Railway Station ? A. Do I understand 
you call the ramps part of Wynyard Railway Station ?

Q. Yes. A. The answer is most certainly.

Q. When I speak of the ramps, to make it clear, 1 am speaking of 
the following : if I, as a traveller, were walking along George Street 
and I went to Pymble, I entered the entrance to the station and I turn 
into the ramp and walk down to the Railway ticket collectors, and 
then on to the various parts of the station. That is one thing that I 
call a ramp. A. Yes.

Q. To enable the public to have access to the Wynyard railway 
20 platforms ? A. Yes.

Q. Now there is another ramp below that, isn't there, leading down 
to the Hunter Street entrance ? A. Yes.

Q. And you get on to that by steps halfway down, towards the 
ticket gate ? A. Yes.

Q. That I also describe as a ramp ? A. Yes.
Q. Are both those ramps supported by pillars today ? A. Yes.
Q. Were pillars necessary to give support to such ramps right from 

the inception of the planning of Wynyard Railway Station ? A. Yes.
Q. Assuming the public were to have access from George Street ? 

30 A. Yes, the ramps could not have been there without pillars to hold them 
up.

Q. And also those ramps, of course, go right underneath Wynyard 
Lane ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know how far below Wynyard Lane ? Is there anything 
between the top of the ramp and Wynyard Lane ? A. As I remember 
it, just a thick slab. I think it shows here. There must be more sheets 
somewhere, the sections sheets.

Q. In connection with the 1954 plans ? A. Yes. We had them 
yesterday.

40 HIS HONOR : Q. Do you say that yesterday there were other sheets 
here ? A. Yes, yesterday there were sections here.
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in the SIR GARFIELD : I came in here this morning and there were people 
rNew nere I do not know who they were but they had a lot of blueprints 

South Wales and the plans.
in its

j^Son. HIS HONOR : Who made the comparison yesterday between those plans 
   and some others ?

Defendant's
Evidence. WITNESS . l did; with two other gentlemen.

No. 5.
E. M. Mr MAY : I was present.

Nicholls. r
Examination. HIS HONOR : It may be that the sections were in the other set.

Mr MAY: That would not be so, because I can tell Your Honor what 
happened. First of all we examined them with reference to Exhibit L  10 
the 1956 plans and then L.2, which we were satisfied could be 
substituted. It was apparent to me, a book having been produced 
to me with a number of plans folded up in it that were said to be possibly 
a copy of Exhibit H, it was apparent to me on first glance that they 
might at one stage have been the basis of the development of Exhibit H, 
but it was quite clear to Mr. Nicholls and myself and the officers of the 
Railway that in no sense could they be considered satisfactory copies.

There would be no possibility, so far as we were concerned, of any 
of these plans being abstracted, because these others were in a folded 
book form in which they were bound. May I add that, through going 20 
through the sheets, my recollection is I do not recall seeing any sectional 
elevations. My recollection is what is now in front of the witness was 
all that was actually tendered by the plaintiffs out of the file, and it may 
well be that some other aspect of the plans are still with the file. 
Therefore, there would not have been any possibility of their being 
abstracted and taken away yesterday afternoon.

WITNESS : I could be confused. I just take it for granted that there 
are sections with these drawings, and I automatically look for them.

SIR GARFIELD : The witness said he saw them.

WITNESS: I think I saw them. 30

Mr MAY : My recollection is to the contrary, that there were no sectional 
plans there.

HIS HONOR : It looks to me on this material that these are the only 
sheets. There is only one other possibility. Two people looked at the 
plans in my Chambers.

SIR GARFIELD : They were here when I came here this morning. 
Somebody had blueprints and I do not know who the people were. 
They may have had authority I do not say they did not have authority  
but I do not know anything about them, and whilst I was talking here 
with others, they went. 40



WITNESS : The more I think of it, the more I am convinced I spent in the 
time talking about the sections on the 1956 plans when Your Honor was cj^f 
here and saying how the section was parallel to Carrington Street. I South Wales 
think that is where I spent the times of the section, and I think that is EmiitMe 
how I became confused. I think that is right, now that I think over it. Jurisdiction.
HIS HONOR : I have a recollection we went through these sheet by 
sheet, and I think they were all marked on the bottom corner. _ 1

No 5
Mr WALLACE : I marked them up to Sheet No. 7, and Sheet No. 7 is E.'M.' 
here. I did not mark an " 8 ". Nicholla - 

10 Q. I want you to tell me from Exhibit L.2, and tell me if you can Examination. 
inform the Court as to what space, if any, lies between Wynyard Lane 
and the top of the ramp that the public use just as they go through the 
ticket barrier ? A. I am sorry. My section does not cut that deeply. 
My section merely shows the slab under Wynyard Lane. It does not 
relate to the floor below that.

Q. So you cannot tell me ? A. No.
Q. At all events, you say some pillars were in the two areas you 

have indicated, being sections at right-angles to each other in the form of 
a cross   were necessary for the Railway Commissioner's own works ? 

20 A. To hold up Wynyard Lane, certainly.
Q. Would you be able to express any view as to whether the pillars 

which are in fact erected are heavier or stronger than would be necessary 
for such work or not ? A. I could not answer that.

Q. You have seen what we have called the Joe Gardiner or Kerr 
plans. For the purposes of identification I described the outline of them 
as " The World's Biggest Building '', perhaps jocularly, but that will 
identify it. You have seen those plans, haven't you ? A. I have seen 
part of them only. I have seen plans up to about one floor up above 
Carrington Street. I have seen a perspective in the office of my clients, 

30 and last night, when I was rolling my drawings, I saw other drawings 
here, which presumably are the Kerr drawings, down on the floor here.

Q. But are you competent to say whether the 1954 plans bear any 
resemblance whatever to the Kerr plans of some years before ? A. My 
cursory viewing of the Kerr plans   I would say the 1954 plans differ 
considerably from the Kerr plans.

Q. Would you indicate very approximately how much you would 
say it would cost to erect the Kerr plans ? (objected to by Sir Garfield 
on the question of competence; allowed.)

Q. I am only asking it in the very roughest sense. Can you give 
40 an outline or a suggestion of what it would cost ? A. Yes, on the 

experience I have had with City buildings I am sure the Kerr plans 
now would cost approximately £4,000,000.

Q. We know they were designed or prepared either between 1925 
and 1930, or 1934 or thereabouts ? A. I would not know.
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in the, Q. You told us that YOU have been practising as an architect for
Supreme on vpoT-o rlirlrvt vnn 2 A YP« f'oart of New rfU vears > alan l 7OU   A- les -

S°"^ iteatoi Q. Is that in Sydney ? A. Partly in Sydney, partly in Melbourne. 

Equitable Q You were a practising architect in Sydney in about 1941, weren't
(/ UT'tS(t'lCt.lO'tt, n i -\T

you ? A. res.
Q- Very roughly, how much do you think it would have cost to erect 

that building somewhere in the years 1941 or 1942, had people been 
E?'M. allowed to build any hotel. Assuming they had been allowed to build . . . 

Niohoik (objected to by Sir Garfield; pressed: allowed.) A. 1 i'ear it woiild be 
Examination ] us^ a guess, but I would say about one-third of that. JQ

Q. When you say " just a guess ", would you say that your answer 
of about one-third would be a rational sort of estimate ? A. Yes, 
based on the relative costs of buildings then and now.

HIS HONOR : You can work it out another way, by taking a remark 
made by Sir Garfield during the course of this case; that what was 
worth £116,000 in 1941 was now worth three-quarters of a million.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Would you tell me the estimated cost I think 
there is something in the correspondence of the 1956 plan ? A. We 
have a signed contract with the builder. I think it is a little over £400,000.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. Has that got a rise and fall clause in it ? A. As 20 
I remember, it has a clause which said that if the work does not proceed 
within a certain time . . .

Mr WALLACE : Q. No: a rise and fall clause. A. No, there is no 
rise and fall.

Q. It is a lump sum, something like £400,000 ? A. 'I speak from 
memory, but I know it is a contract very similar to what we have in 
Caltex House. It substantially fixes the cost, except on site labour 
only there is a rise and fall.

SIR GARFIELD : Perhaps I should object so that the document can be 
produced. 30

Mr WALLACE : Q. Have you a copy ? A. No. The proprietors 
have a copy and the builders have a copy.

HIS HONOR: If the witness is basing it on the contract, the contract 
must be produced.

Mr WALLACE : My question was not directed towards a contract, 
my question was based on an estimate.

HIS HONOR : But the answer you got was based on a contract.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Can you tell me as an architect what you yourself 
estimate would be the cost of building the 1956 plan ? Leave out any 
question of contract. What do you estimate would be the cost of building 40
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as at 1956 or 1957. Would there be any difference in your estimate ? in.
A. Yes, the cost would have increased since the time we had the contract
signed, which is about five months ago. uwth Wales

Q. Are you able to answer this question : I want you for the moment Equitable 
to forget about any contract. I am asking you, as an architect what Jurisdiction. 
would you estimate would be the cost of building the 1956 plan in or Defendant's 
about the year 1956, or in the period 1956/1957 ? A. About £400,000 Eviden('e - 
to £420,000. xo.5.

K. M .
CROSS-EXAMINED

10 SIR CIARFIELD : Q. Have the engineering drawings for this 1956 Examination. 
scheme been prepared '. A. Yes, to a point. ^^

Q. What do you mean, " to a point " : to the point where you could examination. 
get to work ? A. No.

Q. What is the point to which the engineering drawings have gone '? 
A. The engineers approximately sized all their measurements . . .

Q. I am asking you about some drawings. To what point have the 
engineering drawings gone of this scheme ? A. To a very elementary 
point.

Q. Where are the engineering drawings ? A. In the possession 
20 of Stanley & Llewellyn, the consultant structural engineers.

Q. Have you no copy as architect ? A. I think I have a copy.
Q. Whereaboitts would your copy be ? A. If I had one, in the 

office.

SIR ( JARFIELD : Perhaps Mr Wallace would accept a notice to produce 
the engineering drawings about which he speaks.

Mr WALLACE : 1 cannot, very well.

SIR C4ARFIELD : I shall have a subpoena issued.

HIS HONOR : If the witness promises to look for them and is willing 
to produce them . .

30 Mr WALLACE : I am going to call Mr Llewellyn, and I will request 
Mr Llewellyn to bring his drawings with him.

SIR (4ARFIELU : Q. How far away is your office < A. Caltex House, 
Kent Street.

Q. Is there anyone in the office who could bring those plans up, if 
you phoned him ? A. I think he is down in the Licensing Court now.

Q. Is there anyone in the office ? A. He is the one that deals with 
the job and knows about it.

Q. Do you think you could get them here in a quarter of an hour ; 
get them here, or get somebody to bring them here in a quarter of an 

4Q hour ? A. I am not sure about a quarter of an hour. I have to get 
there, and I have to get back, and T have to look for them.
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ike Q. Would you be willing either to send for them or to go and get 
tnese engineering drawings ? A. If I have them, yes.

Q But j thought you gaid they WQuld be in yQUr office ? A Jf
Equitable I had them.

Jurisdiction.
— Q. In this contract with the builders, how is the structural steelwork

DEveidence. 8 dealt with if there are any engineering drawings ? A. The
  engineering sizings and information that the engineer gave to the builders
E?M was °f sufficient nature for him to give a cost.

Xichoiis. Q YOU mean it is not a prime cost item ? A. No.

examination. Q- ^° 7OU nave a builder who has been willing to give you a firm price 10 
without engineering drawings, simply on engineering sizings. Is that 
right ? A. No, I did not say that. I am sorry, I do not remember it 
exactly. The drawings are done at considerable speed and I do not 
remember all of the intimate details. I do not draw these things with 
my own hands, and I do not remember all of the details.

Q. But is this the position : you found a builder who will give you 
a firm price with no structural engineering drawings, simply some sizings 
given to him by an engineer ? A. I did not say that.

Q. What more was given to your builder on which he was to give you 
a price than some sizings by the engineer, so far as the structural steelwork 20 
is concerned ? A. I will be pleased to look and tell you.

Q. You are the architect. You let this contract, didn't you ? 
A. Yes.

Q. What more did you give your builder but engineer's sizings to 
get a price off him ? A. I am sorry, I don't remember the exact 
nature of the drawings, and it is no good my saying I do if I 
don't remember.

Q. But did you give the builder the drawings in order to get a price ? 
A. I think there were preliminary drawings as well as sizings and other 
data. 30

Q. You told us this contract was let but five months ago ? 
A. Yes.

Q. You negotiated it ? A. Yes.
Q. What was the material you gave the builder on which he gave you 

the price ? A. We gave him drawings such as have been submitted to 
the City Council.

Q. Let us get them specifically in relation to the Exhibits. Just 
take this bundle and satisfy yourself. Was your builder given that plan 
or a facsimile of it ? A. He was given one of these (indicating Exhibit 
L.2) and a specification as well. 40

Q. Have you a copy of the specification ? A. Yes, I would have 
a copy.

Q. Would that be in your office too ? A. Yes.
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Q. Would you be able to get that for us when you are looking for in the 
the structural steel drawings ? A. I will be pleased to.

Q. He would be given the specification; what else ? A. That 
would be on the plans, the specifications, the structural information such Equitable
as it is. Jurisdiction.

Q. What is the structural information to your recollection that was Defendant's 
given to this builder ? A. I will tell you after I go through my files v̂ _^nce -
and see. No- 5 -

E. M.
Q. Was it given to him wholly in writing ? A. From my 

10 memory, I would think so.
Q. Is that the best you can do, as architect ? A. Yes, it is the examination 

best I can do at present.
Q. By whom would the writing be made to give to the builder ? 

A. By the structural engineer.
Q. Would you have a copy of that information forwarded to you 

as architect ? A. I would think so.
Q. Would you have that in your office '? A. I would think so.
Q. Would you be prepared to bring that up ? A. I would be 

pleased to.
20 Q- Did you firstly give the builder any oral information with respect 

to the structural steel ? A. No.
Q. In your presence did the engineers give him any oral information ? 

A. I cannot recall any.
Q. Does that answer mean you neither heard it given nor heard of 

it being given ? A. I cannot recall it being given in that manner.
Q. Are you still a partner with Mr Ham ? A. No.
Q. When did you cease to be a partner of Mr Ham ? A. In 1952 

I terminated an arrangement I had with him to be architect in association 
with him for one job. That commenced in 1946 to do certain 

30 alterations to bar work within the Hotel Plaza. The work ran on until 
about 1950 and then ceased. It was not until 1952 that we unravelled 
certain financial matters between us, and our architects in association 
for that job then terminated.

Q. You were associated then with Mr Ham in connection with the 
Hotel Plaza, from 1946 ? A. The bars.

Q. You yourself produced drawings, didn't you, which were not 
limited to bars. Just think, will you between 1946 and 1952 ? A. I 
do not recall them.

Q. Would you be prepared to deny that you did not ? A. No, 
401 would not be prepared to deny it.

Q. And you personally called on officers of the Department to 
discuss generally plans which finally took form in the 1954 scheme ? 
A. Called on whom ?
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Q. You called on officers of the Department ? A. I do not think
Supreme +u ,   Court 'of Neif rUdli 1S 8O '

Q- You do not think that is so   A - Xo > l do not -
Q- You would not nave forgotten it ? A. I could have. 

Defendant's Q- You saw *ne 1954 scneme in the course of its preparation, didn't
Evidence. VOU ? A. I did not.

Xo. 5. Q. Never saw any of the documents '? A. No, I had nothing to 
xfchl. do with Ham.
^^ Q. Nothing to do with Ham > A. In that scheme. 

examination. Q j)^ vou never see these plans, do you say ; the 1954 plans ? 10 
A. I do not recall seeing them until relatively recently.

Q. What was the bar work you say you were doing ? A. The 
bar work was at the George Street level, mostly on the northern side of 
the northern ramp. That was the substantial ....

Q. But what were you doing in connection with the bars ? 
A. They were reconstructed and extended. We also did certain work 
in the dining room.

Q. Who is " we '' '. A. Ham and I, in association for that one 
job.

Q. During that time you tell His Honor you did not see any plans 20 
which related to the final 1954 scheme ? A. I cannot recall having 
seen them.

Q. And he never discussed them with you ? A. He certainly 
did not.

Q. W'ere there no other schemes for an hotel at this site discussed 
with you before 1954 by Mr Ham ? A. No, I cannot recall having 
discussed any other schemes.

Q. What sort of architectural work were you engaged in then, 
between 1946 and 1952 ? A. I think mostly Industrial at that time.

Q. What do you mean by that, what sort of buildings were you 30 
connected with ? A. Factory work.

Q. Of any dimension ; give me the largest of the industrial buildings 
you dealt with between 1946 and 1952. A. I think at that time we 
were doing one for W. E. Smith, about 150,000 ....

Q. That would be a fairly small factory, wouldn't it, in that span of 
years ? A. On the contrary : it was quite a substantial factory.

Q. How many storeys i A. One storey.
Q. What, it was a saw-tooth industrial building ? A. Yes, a 

typical factory.
Q. A typical factory; saw-tooth construction ? A. Yes. 40 
Q. I suppose steel, closed in with fibro cement \ A. No.
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Q. But it would have to be steel if it were saw-toothed, wouldn't it ? in the 
A. Steel columns, brick external walls and concrete floor.

Q. May we take that as typical of the work you were doing between Soufi
1946 and 1952 ? A. That was the predominant character of the work. Equitable

Q. Prior to your coming to Sydney, what was the sort of work you unŝ c_ imi-
had done in Melbourne ? A. I was there a partner of Walter Burley defendant's
Griffin, and I think the largest of the jobs we did there was the Capitol __.__ce '
Theatre and office building in Swanson Street. ^" J>-

Q. What was the general type of the work you did; theatre 
10 construction work ? A. No, we were general practitioners, not

specialists in any field. examination.
Q. What does that mean; predominantly domestic I A. No, 

office buildings, factory work, domestic work.
Q. Was the factory buildings the type of work you did like that 

which you told us ? A. Similar work. There was an office building 
in Elizabeth Street   Leonard House.

Q. What size is that ? A. Six-storeys, concrete structure.
Q. What year was that ? A. 1 am sorry, I could not tell you.
Q. Broadly, in the 30's ? A. Oh, about thirty years ago.

20 Q. It is not unfair to you to say that in Melbourne your work was in 
a relatively small industrial field and domestic field, with an occasional 
office building. Would that fairly describe the practice ? A. I do 
not think so. The Capitol Theatre and ....

Q. Well, I will add the theatre. A. ... office building was a 
substantial undertaking. It was a maximum height concrete office 
building on top of a huge theatre.

Q. That was with Burley Griffin I A. Yes.
Q. What was your particular function with it ? A. I was in 

charge of the job, the whole of the work. I made most of the drawings 
30 myself.

Q. But you mean planned by Burley Griffin, and you carried out 
the drawings and supervised the drawings. Is that right ? A. Yes. 
That is partly so, yes.

Q. From 1 952 onwards you have been practising on your own or in 
partnership '? A. Prom 1952 ?

Q. You say you terminated the arrangement with Ham in 1952 ? 
A. I have been practising on my own all the time. Ham was just a 
convenience of geography for one job. I am not his partner.

Q. Were you in the same 'office as Ham then '! A. No. We had 
40 quite separate practices. It was a matter of convenience for one job.

Q. Now, let us come forward from 1952 to 1956. Were you mainly 
engaged in industrial work ? A. No, I had industrial as well as civic 
and municipal work.
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in the Q. Let us take them piecemeal. Was the industrial work of the 
C(mrt"oTNew same sort that we were talking about ? A. Yes except more of it. 
8°Uin us"*™ Q' Buildings about the same size, but more of them. Do you mean 

Equitable that ? A. Yes, and larger.
un ' Q. But still of the same type of construction ? A. Not

Defendant's necessarily.
Evidence. J

-— Q. But were they ? A. Well, I will tell you. Most of them were
KM. saw-tooth work. One large factory at Parramatta has a complete

Nichoiis. concrete roof with permanent water on the top.
Cross- Q. But for the rest, they were all saw-tooth construction ? \Q 

examination. A Yes which is the characteristic type of factory.
Q. Yes, that is a sort of industrial stock-in-trade, isn't it ? A. Of 

course.
Q. You say you did civic work for a period ? A. I did work for 

the Willoughby Municipal Council.
Q. Doing what ? A. Altering their Town Hall, doing the whole 

of their stores and yards and so forth for all their equipment; also work 
for the Mittagong Shire Council.

Q. This alteration of the Town Hall you mean some internal 
alteration of the structure ? A. Adding to it and altering it. 20

Q. That is a brick building, I suppose ? A. Yes.
Q. You say you did something in the yards ? A. Yes, in their 

yards, to keep all their equipment and machinery and stores.
Q. Sheds in the yards and things like that ? A. Series of brick 

structures and things like that.
Q. What about the Mittagong Shire ? A. Before I leave 

Willoughby I have done several Baby Health Centres for Willoughby.
Q. I suppose in the main they are single-storey brick buildings ? 

A. Yes.
Q. Of a more or less rectangular kind ? A. Yes; semi-domestic. 30
Q. Now, what about Mittagong ? A. We have architected their 

Shire Council Chambers, absorbing in the process certain buildings that 
were there. For the Berrima County Council we are now doing a small 
branch place at Moss Vale, at Picton.

Q. These are relatively small, and I suppose semi-domestic sort of 
architecture in brick ? A. Not semi-domestic. They are municipal 
and civic.

Q. Some, I suppose, single-storey; any multiple storeys ? 
A. Mittagong two storeys; the others single storeys.

Q. And you say, besides that, domestic work ? A. Yes. 49
Q. When you were asked to prepare plans for the Plaza Hotel, you 

might first give me the date when you were first asked to do that ? 
A. Amongst the list of work that I have been doing now, of course, you 
know we are doing Caltex House.
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Q. Yes, I will not diminish you there. A. On the 8th June, 1956. in t 
Q. I want to be quite clear about this; prior to that you had not cwTo 

seen the 1954 plans ? A. No, I did not say that. Smth
1 J in its

Q. Well, you had not seen them when you were with Mr Ham ? Equitable
A. I certainly had not. J^MMM.

Q. You had closed your association with him in 1952. A. Yes. Defendant's
^ J Evidence.
Q. Had you seen the 1954 plans between 1952 and 1956 ? A. I   

could have seen them perhaps a week or so before the authority to E°'j£'
proceed and give a design for the remodelled hotel.

10 Q- You have no recollection of that, but you think you could have ?
A. I think I most likely did. " examination.

Q. Until a week prior to the 8th June or a fortnight, if you like  
you had not seen the 1954 plans ? That is what you tell me ? A. That 
is to the best of my memory.

Q. You had not seen the sub-structure plans, covering the sub­ 
structure at Wynyard, prior to that time ? A. Do you mean the 
existing building when you say the " sub-structure " ?

Q. I mean what I say, the sub-structure plans ? A. Oh, I have 
seen the plan of the existing work from time to time over the years.

20 Q- In Mr Ham's possession ? A. Yes, and possibly also in the 
possession of Avrom Investments; also in the possession of the structural 
engineers.

Q. But you yourself did not have copies of them in your own office ? 
A. I might have had proofs of certain drawings.

Q. So at any rate, at this date about a fortnight before the 8th June, 
the material you had in the way of plans would be limited, would it, 
to the plans of the existing structure, including the sub-structure, which 
you may have had, and at any rate you had seen. Is that right ? 
A. And including the drawings that were made when Ham and I acted 

3Q in association for this one job.
Q. That only touched the bars, you say ? A. Oh no, the work 

touched that, but the plans could well have gone beyond and shown in 
black, as these do, some of the existing work.

Q. They could not have been the 1954 plans or the prototype ?
A. No, not for 1954.

Q. Or any prototype of them ? A. No.
Q. But merely the existing building ? A. The existing building, 

yes. As I remember it, the plans that Ham sent to me to supervise did 
include drawings of some of the lower floors, blacked in in this same 

4Q manner.
Q. I included that in the sub-structure plans. I took you to 

understand that from me. And you began then, sometime about the 
8th June or a fortnight before, to devise a scheme. Is that right ? 
A. That is correct.
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in the SIR GARFIELD : Q. Have you now with you the structural drawings 
t'0«rTo7"iVe«. wnicn existed at the date of the contract ? A. Yes. 
8ou*lLal'" Q- May T liave tliem ? A - Yes (produced). 

jurisdiction, SIR GARFIELD : May I have the contract ? Mr Wallace, have you
Defendant's a COP7 °^ ^^ Contract ?

Evidence. Q Qr did you ? A. I haven't a copy.

E'.'M. Mr WALLACE : I produce a contract with some drawings which have 
Nichoiis. been given to me by my solicitor.

Cross- (Three sheets being structural drawings in existence at date of
examination. contract, m.f.i. 10.) 10

SIR GARFIELD : Q. Do you call those structural drawings, these things 
that you produced to me as m.f.i. 10 ? A. They are preliminary 
structural drawings.

Q. They are not such as you could build to or with ? A. Certainly 
not.

Q. Did you find any correspondence with the builder giving him 
any further structural details ? A. Not correspondence, but the 
specification which defines the provisional quantity of reinforcing steel.

Q. What is produced here does not include the specification ? 

HIS HONOR : The witness has that specification. 20

SIR GARFIELD : Q. It is a provisional item of 500 tons of reinforcing 
steel ? A. Yes; quantity, not price.

Q. Without any reference to price ? A. Then, to make the 
matter fully clear, the small structural drawing you have before you 
there was produced at a later time than the two previous ones and it 
covered the shops on Wynyard Court and you will see it has its own 
structural size there, and also an additional provisional quantity for steel 
for that section.

Q. Do you mean this small sheet, part of it, was not produced at the 
time of the contract ? A. No, no. It is part and it was produced 39 
later than the two other sheets underneath. It is part of the contract. 
It enlarges the quantity of steel provisionally beyond the 500 tons.

Q. There has been no amendment to the specification ? A. No.
Q. So, so far as the building contract is concerned, there is a 

provisional quantity for steel, the two large sheets of m.f.i. 10, and no 
mention in the specification of structural steel in the third small sheet 
in m.f.i. 10 ? A. No.

Q. Is that right or wrong, what 1 say ? A. 1 think that is correct. 
The two sheets and the 500 tons form one part for the main building. 
That secondary sheet with its notation on it covers the quantity of steel 49 
and the amount of concrete for the shops and the hood over Wynyard.
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of the cover over Wynyard Lane ? A. Yes. " r," 

Q. It does I A. Yes."•

Q'. There is no special mention in the specification of the work 
comprised in the small sheet of m.f.i. 10 ? A. No. The reason for 
that was that our clients wondered whether they would do the shops at 
this juncture and later asked the builder for a full price and the two _ ' 
prices were consolidated into the contract. That is why it appears in *p"\f' 
two parts. Nio'hoiis. 

10 Q. But there is no separate specification for this \ A. No,
because the general specification would cover the general things in the examination. 
shops. The shops had been specified previously.

Q. You are quite clear that this contract covers the shops and the 
cover over Wynyard Lane ? A. Certainly.

Q. In one price ? A. Yes.

SIR GARFIELD : I will need to look at this quietly for the other detail 
and I will do that through the lunch hour.

Mr WALLACE : I would like to see it at the same time.

WITNESS : 1 have an office copy. 
20 (Specification produced to Sir Garfield by witness, m.f.i. 11.)

SIR GARFIELD : Q. You are quite sure that these three sheets would 
be called structural steel drawings ? A. It would be better to say 
preliminary structural steel drawings. The procedure is as follows : 
The City Council, prior to giving their preliminary approval, need the 
general sizing. This supplies the general sizing, the specification provides 
the quantities of steel for the builder's guidance, then as the job proceeds 
the usual arrangement is you give the City Council, for approval, detailed 
drawings.

Q. Have they yet been completed ? A. No.
30 Q. And, of course, at the stage of the actual drawing, a number of 

questions of practicability and so on, often arise '. A. Indeed.
Q. Which, not infrequently   (Objected to)   necessitates a re-design 

of other drawings, architectural drawings ? (Objected to). A. I 
wouldn't think so.

Q. My question was directed as a general question, that generally 
speaking the experience is that when you get down to the structural detail, 
not infrequently you find you have to re-design the architectural   
(Objected to; allowed). A. I think that is quite wrong.

Q. Quite wrong ? A. Yes.
40 Q. It has not been your experience at all >. A. No.

Q. When you got your instructions on or about  -Sth May, was it ?
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in the HIS HONOR: June.
Supreme

Court of New SIR GARFIELD : Q. Did you then get a set of the 1954 plans ?
South WaUs A N J & v in its A - i>io -

jurMMon Q- Have you never had in your own office a set of the 1954 plans ? 
A. Yes, I had them when I made the comparison for the two jobs to 
WQicn we referred yesterday and which Mr Wallace tore out of his brief.

^~~5 Mr WALLACE : Q. For the purpose of giving evidence in this case ? 
kk' A. Yes.

Xicholls.
-   SIR GARFIELD : Q. But you didn't have them at any stage before 

examination, you were asked for the purpose of giving evidence to compare them ? 10 
A. I can't remember having them.

Q. Then I may take it you were instructed to prepare designs for 
a hotel on part of the site ? A. Yes. I had my instructions in 
writing.

Q. Might I see them ? A. (Folder handed to Sir Garfield by 
witness). That letter.   That is not part of the instructions.

Q. This is the third sheet before your signature ? A. My 
apologies.

(Letter dated 8th June, 1956, to witness, m.f.i. 12.)
Q. We are quite clear that at the date of your instructions   and I 20 

now particularise to 8th June   you did not have a copy of the 1 954 plans 
in your possession ? A. No.

Q. And prior to that you would never have seen them. Had you 
seen them at all ? A. I don't recall having seen them before that at 
all.

Q. Had you had any discussions prior to the receipt of this letter 
with a representative of the defendant, in particular, Miss Randall ? 
A. Yes.

Q. As to any of the past history of the planning of this hotel ? 
A. She had a discussion with me as to whether I would be prepared to 30 
make plans for them. She explained to me the difficulties they were in 
with their licence and the vast cost of the previous plans, but I recall 
she made a point of saying she did not wish to show me the previous 
plans.

Q. So she told you in short that she wanted you, if you could,   or 
would you undertake or endeavour to produce plans within certain 
financial limits which might satisfy the licensing authority seeing that 
they were in difficulty with respect to their licence ? Does that fairly 
sum up what she said to you ?
Mr WALLACE : That is not what he has said. 40
SIR GARFIELD : Does that fairly sum up what she said to you, the 
substance of it ? A. No, I don't think you could put it quite like 
that,



39

Q. She did tell you they were in some trouble about their 
license ? A. Yes, that was apparent from reading the press, but I 
can't remember exactly what she said. But the general tenor was that South wale* 
they had lost their license, somewhat on account of the type of building Equitable 
they had designed for them and the cost  Jurisdiction.

Q. And what she wanted you to do was to get a cheaper building Defendant's 
which might satisfy the licensing authority ? Evidence.

Mr WALLACE : There are two questions there  E°M.'
Nicholls.

WITNESS : No, it wasn't put that way.  
r J Cross- 

10 SIR GAKFIELD : Q. She did mention the financial limit to which you examination, 
might go in designing the building ? A. Yes.

Q. And did she tell you that it would have to be less than the sum 
they anticipated spending on the existing plan ? A. I recall she told 
me this, that they did have it represented to them by their previous 
architect that the 1954 plans would cost them about £300,000, and that, 
as a consequence, much of their difficulty particularly economical  
stemmed from the fact that when they opened tenders the lowest tender, 
from memory, was about £525,000 for only 62 bedrooms making it 
economically impossible to go ahead. There, in a nutshell, was their 

20 problem and they wanted me, without reference or knowledge of the 
plans prepared in 1954, to prepare a new scheme that was economical 
and could be built. I recall she mentioned to me that it had been 
suggested by their previous architect that the building should be built 
for about £5,000 per bedroom and in a measure, that was my target.

Q. And you were told you would have to hurry up with these plans ? 
A. I was asked could I, in three weeks, make a new design, make the 
drawings ready for the City Council and substantially save £200,000 out 
of the cost.

Q. At that point of time, you had never designed a hotel ? A. No. 

30 Q. You mentioned that you had been in America ? A. Yes.
Q. You said Caltex sent you to America but that was prior to June 

1956, wasn't it ? A. Yes, it was.
Q. How long prior to June 1956 was it that you went to America ? 

A. About the end of 1955.
Q. And you were there how long ? A. About six weeks for the 

whole trip.
Q. And you had covered what ground ? What cities were you in ? 

A. San Francisco, New York, I went North to Vancouver 
Q. Toronto ? A. No, up in Canada; not Quebec, Montreal; 

40 Vancouver, Honolulu and back.
Q. You were in two American cities of size and two Canadian cities 

of size ? A. Yes, and Hawaii Honolulu,
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in the Q. And your task was to look at industrial buildings ? A. No,

;« its e Q- You were then engaged on the design of Caltex House, were you ? 
Equitable A. That is not an industrial building ; it is a commercial building,Jurisdiction. ° °

T. ,~T~ ., Q. You are right. Your interest was commercial buildings ?Defendants . _ . ., to &
Evidence. A. Primarily.

NO. 5. Q. You had no thought at that time of becoming a hotel designer,
Nkjmiis did you ? A. From memory at that time, I had started to make
   preliminary drawings of a scheme for Eastern Markets in Melbourne.

examination. J wil1 naVC to check the dateS °f tllat- 10

Q. Perhaps you will, will you ? A. Yes.

Q. Eastern Markets, Melbourne   where would you check your 
dates ? What is it you look at to refresh your memory ? A. I would 
have some dates of drawings or file notes and relevant files.

Q. Would you bring with you those notes you look at to refresh 
your recollection ? A. Yes.

Q. In order to answer me that question ? A. Yes.

Q. What are these Eastern Markets? A. Do you know 
Melbourne at all ?

Q. Vaguely ? A. Well, there are two major properties in the 20 
city owned by the City Council and undeveloped. One is called the 
Western Markets in Collins Street and the other one is the Eastern 
Markets up off Bourke and Exhibition Street and Little Collins Street 
and the City Council have been semi-offering to whoever might be 
interested, they would consider schemes for their development.

Q. It is not exactly a competition but it is some plan whereby you 
are going to offer a scheme gratuitously and if the City Council adopted 
it you would then be architect to the project, is that it ? A. That is 
quite wrong.

Q. I thought you said   30 

HIS HONOR : You put it to him about 

WITNESS : I would be pleased to explain. A client of mine asked me 
would I prepare a scheme for him which he could put to the City Council.

SIR GrARFIELD : Q. On somewhat that basis to see whether they 
would accept it ? And does that scheme involve a hotel ? A. Yes, 
for about 400 rooms, I seem to think   I am trying to think   my memory 
is not good on back dates. I think in time I must have had all the 
relevant data for that prior to this Plaza Hotel design.

Q. Do you say you studied any hotels in America ? A. Only in 
the sense of living in them and going in them. 40
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Q. What are those hotels, the ones you were in in America ? San in the 
Francisco, which of them? A. I stayed at the Plaza. oourf

Q. That is not in the top flight of hotels in San Francisco, is it ? Sow% 
A. No. It is a good average hotel. In New York, at the Lexington.

Q. Again, that is not a new hotel ? A. No, and at Montreal at  L 
the Lawrentian. Defendant's

JjiViaence.
Q. That is not a modern hotel, is it ? A. On the contrary, it   

j ]Sfo. 5.
is very modern. E. M.

Q. Whereabouts in Montreal ? A. Right near the station. It is Nicho"8i
10 the most modern hotel they have. Cross-_

Q. What about the one in Vancouver '. A. I didn't stay in a 
hotel in Vancouver.

Q. While in America there was one modern one and one in San 
Francisco which is not modern or top-flight? A. No.

Q. And the Lexington in New York, that is not modern ? 
A. That is so.

Q. And really not top-flight? A. No.

Mr WALLACE : The top-flight ones are not modern though. The 
Waldorf Astoria is not modern.

20 WITNESS : I deliberately dined at the Waldorf Astoria coffee lounge 
to see how they functioned.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. Is it called the coffee lounge, by the way ? 
A. Yes.

Q. And you went in to see whether it would make a good dining 
room or not ? A. Partly so that I could boast when I came back 
that I had been to the Waldorf Astoria.

Q. That is usually the reason for visiting, isn't it ? A. You tend 
to go to the coffee lounges because you are short of dollars.

Q. When you got this assignment on 8th June or thereabouts you
30 went up to the Public Library, as you say, to get some photographs and

detail ? A. I think I might be wrong in setting the time. I think
we must have had a lot of data in the office for our Eastern Markets
project.

Q. Well, you said before when you gave evidence on another 
occasion let me read it to you and see if this is right. Is this right: 
"' Before doing that " that was to proceed to draw certain plans  
'' did you consider in detail the modern type of hotel construction 
overseas '? A. Yes, in this manner : I was given a letter of instruction 
asking to produce a hotel having, amongst other things, 63 bedrooms. 

40 Not having had a large hotel experience I did as we ordinarily do, 
searched in our office records for what others have done, made a research 
inquiry from the Public Library and then get the best of what people
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in the have done all round the world". Does that mean that this research 
CourtPof"Neu< inquiry was made after you got your instructions ? A. I would have 
South Wales to check the times of that. That reply is correct in substance. It 

Equitable, could be wrong in time as to when I did the research.
Jurisdiction. Q jg ^ foldej. ^ regearcll ? A Thig ^ ^ products Qf the
Defendant's research.
  ' Q. By the Mitchell Library ? A. Yes, partly Mitchell Library, 
E°'M' partly our own office records.

Nichoiis. Q "Would you indicate in it what part came from the Mitchell 
Cross- Library and what part from your own records ? A. I am sorry, I 10 

examination, couldn't do that, because I have had my staff compile all this and I 
wouldn't know which came from the library.

Q. Is there no marking on it which will tell ? A. I don't think 
so. You get these photographs reproduced 

HIS HONOR: Q. You get them from journals and  A. We usually 
photograph some journals but the Library don't put the stamp on the 
photographs they sell you.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. So you can't tell what was what ? A. No.
Q. Then, having got that, you got to work on these plans ? 

A. That is correct. 20
Q. Have you designed any other hotels since ? A. Yes. 
Q. Which ones 1 A. For the project that yoxi know of.
Q. The Eastern Market ? A. No, the Kosciusko Park Trust of 

which you are a member. We designed a hotel in the Thredbo Valley.
Q. And that building, of course, has no semblance no resemblance 

whatever to a city hotel ? A. In fact, it resembles a city hotel 
remarkably in its planning.

Q. Does it ? A. Yes.
Q. That is a good augury ? 

HIS HONOR : No, it depends on which city hotel you have in 30 
mind.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. You had told me you had designed one hotel  
one other hotel and you named it. It would be right to say that you 
have never supervised the building of a hotel ? A. The only 
supervision of hotel work I have done is the alteration of the bars and 
such at the Plaza and a small alteration at Moss Vale.

Q. In that letter of instruction I had marked 

SIR GARFIELD : It might be convenient if I tender this contract 
about which I was asking him so that these drawings can now pass into 
Your Honor's custody and out of mine. This is the bundle which was 40 
given to me.
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Mr WALLACE : I object to that on the ground of irrelevancy. in the
Supreme,

HIS HONOR : I will admit them at this stage. I find it almost 
impossible to work out what is relevant and what is irrelevant. On this . 
issue of reasonableness it is almost impossible to define it. junsdMm 

(Contract dated 24th August, with accompanying documents,
marked Exhibit Q). Evidence.

SIR GARFIELD : They have a stamp on them that would identify ^;
them. I did not check that as to all the sheets but I did notice that the Nic'hoiis.
sheet of which I am speaking was the same as m.f.i. 10. That had a ^^

10 Stamp on it. examination.

Q. Your instructions gave you a financial limit to include architect's 
fees and engineering fees ? A. That is so.

Q. And the limit was £300,000 1 A. Yes.
Q. Have building costs increased since 8th June 1956 ? A. Yes, 

they are increasing all the time.
Q. And does that go both for labour and for materials ? A. A 

little of each, not  
Q. Each are increasing, I mean ? A. Some of each, yes.
Q. Have you in your mind any percentage figure of increase ? 

20 A. No.
Q. But it is a substantial increase progressively ? A. Not 

substantially in the last year.
Q. An increase, and it is still progressing ? A. Progressing.
Q. When you gave that figure of £420,000 to my friend, as at what 

date were you fixing that price ? A. That was about the date when 
we finished the drawings, if I remember rightly.

Q. You gave it as at when you finished the drawing, June 1956 ? 
A. Yes.

HIS HONOR : Q. What is the figure £420,000 ?

30 SIR GARFIELD : That is his estimate of the cost of this building 
according to the 1956 plans and he says that was his estimate as at 
June 1956.

Q. You were also told, of course, that the area that was to be used 
was the Carrington Street frontage ? A. I wasn't told that, as I 
remember it.

Q. Were you not told that that was to be the main part of the 
hotel ? A. It could be I was ; I don't remember.

Q. You don't remember ? A. No.

Q. However, you at no time contemplated utilising the whole of the 
40 leased area ? A. For the immediate 60 odd bedrooms  
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/« flu* Q. What were you told to do ? A. I was told to think out the 
^New beginnings of a hotel development that could be added to economically 

South Wales so that as time went on and circumstances permitted, they could add 
Equitable more and more bedrooms. My design had to be basically sound to be 

Jurisdiction, added to.

9' ^le (luesti°n I asked you was, did you at any stage consider 
utilising the whole of the leased area ? A. For a hotel, no.

E.M. Q- And I would be right, would I not, to conclude from  
Nicholls.
   Mr WALLACE : I didn't object to that last question for obvious reasons 

examination ^ut ^ am sure Your Honor will appreciate, when it comes to addresses, 10 
I will be submitting that there is such a question as development.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. Would I be right in concluding from Exhibit 2 
that the scheme which you propounded in 1956 when fully developed 
would still not utilise the whole of the leased area ? A. That is so. 
It would not cover it all.

Q. And the scheme necessarily left the space which is shown between 
two blocks on what, to you, is the right-hand end, Exhibit 2   
A. Yes it left  ?

Q. It necessarily left that space when completed which is shown 
between the two blocks of buildings in this exhibit ? A. The answer 20 
is no.

Q. It didn't ? A. Not necessarily.
Q. What did you think might be done with the area between when 

you had built up the way you have got it at the extreme right-hand side 
of this exhibit ? A. It is a little difficult to see what the future use 
of those two blocks might be. It could be that on George Street a hotel 
would be needed. Then you could connect the two blocks at each floor 
or at certain floors.

Q. I am speaking of what you have drawn '? A. Yes.
Q. Two blocks, as you have drawn ? A. I am answering exactly 30 

what you have asked.

HIS HONOR : I think he is right ; he is answering your questions.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. What you have drawn here necessarily leaves the 
space between undeveloped ? A. The answer is no.

Q. What would happen to your light and your first-class bedrooms 
on the George Street side of your Carrington Street building if you 
connected it with a building on the George Street frontage ? A. The 
answer to that is, it is dependent upon where you put the connection 
and in what manner.

Q. Well, to be of any use, a connection would have to be of sufficient 40 
width to make a serious inroad on what you claim to be a virtue of this 
design ? A. No.



45

Q. What you think is that the economic way to join these two /« Hie 
buildings might be by some narrow construction which would not interfere cou'rToT'vcir 
with the light to the bedrooms in the Carrington Street block ? A. If Smith Wales 
it were necessary, you could put a covered corridor at floors, as you /. ',"//^,/,, 
wished. ./«/-i'.w<»»«i.

Q. The sort of development when you told me it was not Defendant's 
unsusceptible of development, what you had in mind was covered Kv^ ep - 
corridors across from one building to the other at various levels ? A. If x,,. -,. 
necessary. JVMii

J Nu-holls.
10 Q. If necessary > A. Yes.  -

Cross-
Q. But there could be no more substantial development of the examination, 

intervening area than that ? A. There could be.
Q. Tell me what, without endangering the developments you have 

extolled in your Carrington Street block ? A. IS ot without endangering 
the development. You can build over the whole of the inner area and 
get very poor class space.

Q. You have thought of this chiefly as a hotel site, have you ? 
A. No.

Q. As far as a commercial building is concerned, the access to 
20 external light is not of so much moment in modern days, is it ? A. The 

answer is the opposite; it is most paramount.
Q. You don't agree that the tendency in commercial buildings today 

is to rely much more on artificial light than on natural light ? A. I 
quite disagree. Indeed, modern buildings in Sydney and generally 
round the world will support that vi<>w.

Q. Do you think that the need for natural light is as great in 
commercial buildings as in a hotel building ? A.I think it is more 
necessary.

Q. In this development that you show on the extreme right-hand
30 side of Exhibit 2 do you envisage this building will have to have a

separate lift of its own ? A. If it were a commercial building, yes.
Q. Well, any sort of a building 150 feet high would need lifts, would 

it not ? A. Yes.
Q. So that the development that you show on the extreme right 

hand side of Exhibit 2, if both blocks are devoted to hotel use, would 
virtually entail construction of two independent hotels ? A. No.

Q. You think that one hotel could be run satisfactorily with these 
two blocks with no other connection between them than the covered 
way over the Wynyard Lane or the concourse below ? A. If both 

40 George Street and the Carrington Street sides were developed as a hotel 
you could connect the two sections near where the main lift shaft is 
without trouble and with convenience of operation.

Q. Just where would this connection be, again ? A, Where the 
main lift shaft is now, and alwavs has been.
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in the Q. You mean on the Carrington Street side ? A. Yes. 
Court of New Q. And you could connect that through to where ? A. You 
S°WiniLaleS could put covered ways from there to George Street. 

Eqmtabie Q Tjris is over Wvnyard Street ? A. Yes, if that were a hotel.
Jurisdiction. ^ J J

Q. And your knowledge of hotels and hotel administration lead you 
to think you could satisfactorily run a hotel with that means of 

   communication between the two blocks ? A. There might be more 
E°'M.' efficient ways.

Nichoiis. Q Would that be a satisfactory administrative project ? A. To 
Cross- the best of my knowledge, yes. 10

examination. r\ -\.T
Q. Now you have produced amongst the plans a plan of some shops 

to be built at the Wynyard Lane level ? A. Yes.
Q. That was not part of the original plan ? A. It was, yes.
Q. Well, that is to say, not something that was originally proposed 

to be done, to be done by you ? A. It was originally proposed by me 
to my clients and wondered by them whether they would do that section 
simultaneously with the first section of the hotel.

Q. Is it right to say as of 2nd August first of August to be precise  
that it was not intended that this shop project should form part of the 
proposal at the present time ? A. That could be so. I don't 20 
remember all the dates.

Q. I notice the date on this additional sheet of what you call 
preliminary structural drawings and the small sheet is 15th August 
1956 ? A. Yes.

Q. How long before the 15th August were you instructed to prepare 
that sheet or did you instruct anybody else to prepare it ? A. The 
structural engineers prepared that.

Q. How long before ? A. I am sorry, I can't remember.

Q. Was it some time between the 1st and 15th August ? A. I 
couldn't remember. 30

Q. You have no diary with you or anything of that sort ? A. It 
wouldn't be recorded.

Q. Did you get a plan of the sub-structure of this area before you 
began to design the 1956 proposal ? A. I would have had in the 
office a drawing from the time of my association with Ham.

Q. What drawing would that be, in relation to anything we know 
here ? A. That would be, from memory, a drawing at George Street 
level and possibly a drawing at the Hunter Street level and there may or 
may not have been a drawing at lower levels.

Q. (1954 plans handed to witness). Did you have any of these 40 
sheets or copies of any of the sheets of that exhibit when you began to 
produce this design in 1956 ? A. I would think not.
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Q. Have you still got the plans which you say you had when you in the 
began to draw this design, conceive this design ? A. I wouldn't 
remember that. South Wales

Q. Would they not be filed in your office ? A. They might be. Equitable 
I might have borrowed them. I might have had a loan of some from Jurisdiction- 
my clients and returned them. There has been a lot of taking and Defendant's 
giving of plans in connection with getting sets for all these legal Evidence- 
proceedings. NO. 5.

Q. But you must have some better recollection than that of what
10 material you had when you began to design that building ? A. I -   

don't remember all of these individual sheets. I don't work on the examination. 
sheets personally.

Q. You must see them at some stage ? A. I do. I regret I 
can't remember every sheet that comes and goes through the office.

Q. But this is a very special job you have got, isn't it ? A. No.
Q. As at 8th June what other jobs were going on in your office of 

comparable magnitude ? I know the Oaltex building ? A. That is 
the only one of comparable magnitude.

Q. And you can't tell His Honor what were the plans of the 
20 substructure you had before you when you began examining this 1956 

proposal ? A. No, I cannot remember.
Q. I suppose a very important thing for you to know would be their 

strength if you were going to build on them ? A. That is the function 
of the consulting structural engineer we had employed who has all these 
plans.

Q. But what about the position of them, as well as their strength ? 
A. I would have had some plans showing the position but which plans 
I could not remember.

Q. What were they like ? Were they like that ? A. Similar.
30 Q- What do you mean by similar ? A. As we have found in 

trying to compare these plans with others and then with others, they all 
seem to differ a little. They were substantially like some of these lower 
level plans.

Q. And do you think you kept them so that they are still in your 
office ? A. I might have.

Q. Would you look for them over the adjournment ? A. T will.
Q. The plans which you may have had ? A. Yes.
Q. When you began this design. Was there no peculiarity about

any of the columns or pillars of the substructure which figured in your
40 mind when you were preparing this proposal ? A. Yes, there were.

Q. What were the columns with respect to which there were 
peculiarities that were important to your design ? A. When I first 
started on this job I had a consultation with our consulting structural 
engineer and he warned me that at the best of his knowledge at that
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in ti<* stage, his partner, Mr Stanley, having died and he having just taken 
^ew over ^ne work that certain of the inner columns were only designed to 

South Wales go to a certain height.
Equitable Q. Did you not get anything more than that when yon began to 

Jurisdiction, design this proposal '? A. That is a substantial matter in itself.
Defendant's Then he told me he would have to look into some of the perimeter
Evidence, columns as }ie didn't know their final loading capacity and we actually

NO. 5. drew a, design in a certain manner which we had to change in one
"vlhoiis particular when the structural engineer, who was able to gain from his
~    ' records the information he needed, as to the columns to carry certain 10

Cr.088;. loads.
examination.

Q. Did you get this information from the structural engineer in 
writing ? A. No, never.

Q. Did you make no notes of what the structural engineer told you 
with respect to the capacity of the columns ? A. No, it does not 
happen like that.

Q. So that there is no record, is there, in your possession which we 
can see which records what the structural engineer told you about the 
capacity of these columns '? A. None whatsoever. You must 
appreciate that when we started to design this hotel there was a great 20 
rush and the structural engineer spent quite some time in our office 
giving personal advice as to which columns could carry the load required 
and which were doubtful and he guided us as we went.

Q. Who is responsible for the precise design of this 1956 proposal ? 
A. T am responsible, as the overall architect.

Q. But, I mean, whose idea was it ? A. Mine.
Q. That goes to the shop and the building, amongst other things, 

doesn't it ? A. Yes.
Q. And the fact that the building is stepped back from Wynyard 

Lane is part of the idea, isn't it, the upper floors of the building ? 30 
A. Yes.

Q. Was that your idea ? A. You mean the upper floors ? The 
bedroom floors ?

Q. Yes ? A. Yes.
Q. Was that your idea ? A. Yes.
Q. Well, you had some reason for that ? A. Yes.
Q. When you decided that you wanted to step back the bedroom 

floors did you not think to get specific information as to the capacity of 
the substructure ? A. Yes.

Q. And did you get that in writing in some way ? A. No. 40
Q. Are you able, from recollection, to tell us which were the columns 

of the substructure which you have told had peculiarities, relevant 
peculiarities for your purposes ? A. Yes. I think if I looked at the 
set of plans that I prepared I could locate those.
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HIS HONOR : That is L2. i» a»
Supreme,

WITNESS : I think we can see them here. (Documents handed to Court of New
  __ v South Wales

witness.) Yes. inita
Equitable

SIR GARFIELD : Q. f'ould I see them ? (Approaches) ? A. Yes. Jurisdiction.
Those two (indicates). j,ete^nt' s

Q. Perhaps we better mark these. He has sheet 1 of L2. This is Kvidence -
the column ? A. That there. NO. .-,.

Q. I will mark them. '" A '', is that so ? A. Ye,-. Tliose there, sichoiis.
Q. And I will mark those " B " ? A. They were the only ones <^TS . 

10 I was interested in. examination.

Q. The ones that concerned you ? A. Yes.
Q. The peculiarity about these columns was that they were designed 

not to go up higher than a certain height ? A. Yes, approximately. 
T understand the first floor above Oarrington Street.

Q. That was apparently to suit some earlier design or plan ? 
(Objected to).

Q. It was evident to you as an architect there had been a reason 
for these c'olumns being so constructed '. A. I was advised  
(interrupted).

20 Q. From your observation ? A. No, you couldn't tell it that 
way.

Q. At any rate, these two columns (A and B) were only designed to 
carry a certain height ? A. That is what my structural engineer 
advises me.

Q. And what is shown here, these two, long rectangular green things 
which I mark " 0 " ? They represent two heavy beams, do they not ? 
A. That is so.

Q. Which bear back on the columns which T mark " D : ' ? 
A. That is so.

30 Q. And then your superstructure is borne on the beam ? 
A. Portion of it.

Q. Well, the superstructure shows it is above this area it is carried 
on those beams \ A. Yes, portion of them.

Q. Well, that is the portion that rises above the area ? A. Yes. 
Q. Marked out by the beams ? A. Yes, that is partly true. 
Q. What is wrong with that statement ? A. Becaiise the whole 

of them half of it throws its weight back to there.
Q. But it is carried on the beam ? A. No, it isn't. 
Q. Well, there is nothing below the beam except these four columns ? 

40 A. That is true.
Q. And the building proceeds up on the top of these two beams ? 

A. Yes.
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in the Q. That was dictated because of the fact that these beams were not 
designed to go up higher than a certain height, higher than the certain 

South Wales height I speak of ? A. No, not fully.
in its

Equitable Q. Was that an element at all in the decision ? A. No.
Jurisdiction.   T ,
  Q. It wasn t ? A. No.

Evidence. 8 Q- This construction of the two beams was unrelated in your design
-   and in your consideration to the fact that the columns A were not designed 
E°M. to go up beyond a certain height ? A. That is so.

  Q. Quite unconcerned with it ? A. Yes.
examination Q' ^ course, if a building was to be built up above the columns " A " 10 

or for that matter, above the columns " B "   it would be necessary at 
some stage to put a very substantial truss across the opening constituted 
from " A " to " A " ? A. That is not correct.

Q. Could be built over with no truss ? A. No truss would go 
from there to there.

Q. From the two outside ? A. Yes.
Q. T will mark that with " E ". That makes it a bigger truss still ? 

A. Yes, about 80 feet.
Q. A very big truss ? A. Fantastic.
Q. Was your placement of these beams " C " in this position dictated 20 

by the consideration that you wanted to avoid putting a truss from 
" E " to " E " ? A. No."

Q. Not concerned with that at all ? A. Unrelated. 
Q. Quite imrelated ? A. Yes.
Q. What was the consideration that led you to use these two beams 

rather than to build over the existing columns, on the existing columns ? 
A. If I could refer to the plan I will show you.

HIS HONOE : That is sheet 4.

WITNESS : The basic design of a modern hotel as per my research 
and as is now being built is that you have a corridor. You walk into 30 
your hall for your wardrobes or bathroom and your bedroom and that 
is the basic unit. You build up from the basic unit. So where this 
wall comes is dictated by an assemblage of the best type of basic units 
giving the best light and air.

SIE GARFIELD : Q. It is right to say that the extent to which you 
used this area was dictated by two factors : One, that you decided 
it was to be dedicated to use as a hotel and, secondly, that it was to be 
used with bedrooms of a particular dimension ? A. Taking those 
separately  

Q. With the combination of them ? A. No, I won't take them as a 40 
combination. I did not assume that this was dedicated as a hotel 
but while it is used as a hotel, I have designed it to be an efficient one.
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Q. Well, you designed it to be a hotel ? A. Yes. but not not in the 
unchangeable.

Q. Well, if it was cut into offices the considerations that you 
mentioned about the corridor and place for the bedroom would disappear ? Equitabl
A. Of COUrse. Jurisdiction.

Q. So it is right to say that the position of the wall was dictated 
by the fact that you were building a hotel and a hotel that, to your 
mind, was of a particular size ? A. Yes, that would determine where S°Vj?'
it is. Niokolis.

10 Q. And you tell me that was the only consideration that caused you Cross. 
to use those beams " C " and to build above them in the manner the examination. 
plan provides ? A. That is the only consideration.

Q. You have told me that the putting of a truss across from " E " 
to " E " would be a very costly business ? A. Indeed.

Q. I suppose it occurred to you that the development of the central 
portion of this site, that which lies across Wynyard Lane, would not 
be possible without the use of such trusses, at some level ? A. Yes. 
When the structural engineer mentioned to me the weaknesses of these 
columns I was then aware of it.

20 Q. And you agree with what I have said to you, that the development 
of the centre of that area would not be possible without the use at some 
level of trusses of the kind T described ? A. I am so advised by my 
structural engineer (Objected to by Mr Wallace).

Q. Don't you accept him or have you no opinion about it yourself ? 
A. I haven't got the calculations. T accept his advice.

Q. Have you not yourself gone into that very question of the 
development of the centre of this area and the manner in which it might 
have to be done structurally ? A.I have, and the answer is negative; 
I don't think it should be developed in the way you are implying.

30 Q- I am speaking on the assumption that somebody wants to do it ? 
A. Yes.

Q. Have you gone into the question as to how it would have to be 
done ? A. No. We have merely left everything as it stands 
unimpeded.

Q. And I am to take it that you at no stage considered the 
development of the entire area or so much of it as, subject to regulation, 
might be built upon ? A. I considered the development of the whole 
site and my consideration is shown on my diagrams.

Q. Which means not to develop the centre of it ? A. Most 
40 certainly not. It should be open.

Q. You scheme virtually pledges the owner not to develop the 
centre of the area ? A. That is not so at all.

HIS HONOR : What has been said so far doesn't prove it.



i,nh<- SIR UARFIELD : Q. I thought you just A. 1 just said the whole of 
"New ^e centre columns were unimpeded, they were not touched, and none 

South Wales of their load was taken, so the whole of the centre can be filled up with 
Equitable buildings to the carrying capacity of the columns untouched. 

junidMtian. Q guf. vou ^old me ^hat yOU yOurself hacl no opinion as to what 
Defendant's would have to be done in order to carry a building up over those central 
Evidence, columns. When 1 put it to you, about the trusses, you- said you had 

NO. r». not considered that ? A. No, it is not part of the scheme.
V M

Nichoiis. Q- But you did tell me you had not considered it ? A. I have 
   not deeply considered it. 10Croaa- r J

examination. Q. go you have given no consideration to the practicability of 
development of the centre of this area if your full proposal as shown 
at the extreme right hand side of Exhibit 2 were carried out ? A. I 
have given consideration, in my judgment, to the best development 
of the site. I have not been asked to give consideration to filling up 
the centre with buildings. If I am asked to give consideration to filling 
up the centre with buildings I will be pleased to carefully do so.

Q. I accept that answer. That is what I thought it was from the 
beginning. You have told me that you have prepared these plans in 
some three weeks ? A. Yes. 20

Q. And you were told to prepare them so that they might be the 
number of bedrooms could be increased a little, were you not ? A. As 
I remember it, yes.

Q. But you were asked to provide for the possibility of another 
37 bedrooms ? A. Yes.

Q. And to permit the building over, what you were providing for 
at any future time to the full limit of 150 feet ? A. Yes.

Q. Have you any structural drawings or calculations which would 
enable you to satisfy, yourself, that what you have designed would carry 
a building up to 150 feet above it ? A. My only advice is verbal 30 
advice from my structural engineer who tells me that is so.

Q. You have no documentary matter and you have no personal 
opinion about it yourself ? A. No. I accepted the advice of my 
structural engineer. I made no investigation myself.

Q. I suppose you looked at the lease before you drew these plans ? 
A. I looked at the diagrams on the lease. I didn't read the lease.

Q. And you still, I suppose, have you yet got a complete set of 
substructure plans in your possession ? A. No.

Q. (Plan No. 6 handed to witness). When you drew this plan 
did you have the substructure plans with you, near you ? A. Yes, 40 
I think I would have had a Hunter Street level.

Q. Did you have the diagrams of the lease there ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you agree that what you have drawn intrudes into areas 

withdrawn from the lease ? A, Yes,



Q. And do you agree that the head room of what you have drawn in the 
there is between 7 feet and 7 feet 6 ? A. I don't remember the c^T^Ne,,- 
measurement. I merely know it is a prolongation of what exists a little South Wales 
further along. e^Mbu

Q. Will you agree that the headroom is somewhere in the area of Junsdlctwn- 
7 feet to 7 feet 6 ? A. I don't know, and I tried to help you by that Defendant's
answer. Evidence.

Q. (Approaches with 1954 plans.) Do you remember telling my ^°-*f- 
friend Mr Wallace that a number of these columns were necessary to Nichofis. 

10 support the ramps '? A. Yes. ~ 
Q. And other things. Did you mean to convey that columns of examination, 

that dimension were necessary to do that particular function ? A. No.
Q. Did you know when you were making those answers whether or 

not those columns had been specially strengthened to do more than the 
work of carrying the ramp ? A. My advice from the structural 
engineer is that they are stronger than is necessary to only carry the 
ramps.

Q. Did you not at some stage see in the possession either your 
own possession or possession of your client plans of the substructure 

20 coloured the same as the documents lam showing you ? A. I don't 
recall ever seeing such plans.

Q. Did you have your plans which showed which of these columns 
had been put in for tho account of your clients and which i'or the account 
of the Railway Commissioner ? A. Not ever.

HIS HONOR : When you say " his client " 

SIR GARFIELD : I mean the defendant.

Mi 1 WALLACE : What would he know about the dociinn-nt 

.SIR GARFIELD : 1 suppose I should say his predecessor in title.

HIS HONOR : That is what I was going to put to you.

30 SIR GARFIELD : He said he didn't know and he has not seen that 
plan.

(Plan of substructure No. 10CJ72, m.f.i. 13).
Q. You say you had the drawings or the diagrams which are annexed 

to or form part of the lease when you were preparing this scheme ? 
A. Yes.

Q. And you had to keep within the confines of the leased area '( 
A. To the best of my knowledge we are within the confines of the leased 
area. That was my purpose.

Q. Would you agree that you show a concrete slab which extends out 
40 of the demised area and through the Commissioner's lift area ? A. I 

am not aware of it.
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in the Q. Through the motor room. (L2 handed to witness.) Would 
ourNeio 7OU P"^ out the P^an tnat showed the roof over the ground floor ? The 

Smith Wales first floor of bedrooms, I suppose ? A. That is the roof (indicates).
in its

Equitable ]\jr WALLACE : Q. What does it consist of ? A. It is a concrete roof.
Jurisdiction.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. It is a concrete slab ? A. Yes.
Evidence. Q rj,^ floor |jeneatn ft wiij jje wnicn \ A. Carrington Street, 

NO. 5. the ground level, so-called. That is the substituted one.
IT 1VT

Nichoiis. Q. That is the 1954 plan ? A. That is the Ham plan. 
Crogs. Q. I want to get one that easily superimposes this withdrawn area. 

examination. I want you to agree with me   you see the diagram ? " K " is it not ? 10 
A. Yes.

Q. Which should join on to " G ", should it not ? A. Yes.
Q. I want you to agree with me   and you can check it for yourself   

that you have got that roof right through the motor room and that one 
of those walls is some two feet in size, outside the demised area. You 
just check it for yourself. I have marked it on mine, if that would assist 
you. I suggest to you the wall goes through like that. There is the 
slab, and your walls lead over here ? A. If it does so, it is my error, 
but I will see, firstly.

Q. Mr WALLACE : Would you need any accurate scale or anything 20 
of that sort ? A. I have to study these for a little while.

HIS HONOR : You study them and when you are ready to give an 
answer, you can give it.

WITNESS : I will agree with you that this roof slab is wrongly coloured. 
I will disagree with you that our slab goes through.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. It is shown to cut through on the plans ? A. It 
is coloured on the top there quite erroneously.

Q. There is nothing to indicate it is cut off anywhere ? A. I 
regret to say it is a mistake on our drawing.

Q. At any rate, my proposition that your plans, as presented both 30 
to the Court and to the Commissioner, show that roof as going through 
the motor room   A. Could I just see the structural plans ? (handed 
to witness).

Mr WALLACE : This has nothing to do with the ground   is this the 
ground that you refused our building on ? If so, why didn't you put 
it in writing ?

SIR GARFIELD : We were given about two days to look at these. 

Mr WALLACE : You have been fighting in the Law Courts for six weeks.

WITNESS : This matter clarifies itself quite simply in our favour. 
When the structural engineer prepared his plans in which he gave thought 40 
to all these things, then he showed those two areas as existing slabs.
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SIR GARFIELD : Q. But the structural plans are not part of the plans in the 
presented either to us or to the Licensing Court ? A. I can't answer
for that. South Wales

Q. First of all, in answer to my question, the plans as presented Equitable 
do show the feature I speak of ? A. The architectural plan erroneously Jw™diction. 
colours the roof where it should not be. Defendant's

Q. Now, what about the wall that is encroaching by about two feet ? _ 
A. I haven't found that.  I am sorry, I still can't find that. NO. 5.

Q. If you would like to look at it during the night you can. I 
10 suggest it is there, because 

Mr WALLACE : Could yOU show it to him ? examination

SIR GARFIELD : I don't propose to give evidence on his plans.
(Discussion ensued during which Mr Wallace contended that 

both he and the witness should be informed of the location 
of the feature mentioned by Sir Garfield)

SIR GARFIELD : It is into the lift shaft of the motor room.

HIS HONOR : Into one of the withdrawn areas which is described as the 
lift shaft of the motor room.

SIR GARFIELD : I have asked the witness can he see it on the drawings 
20 and if he can't I am entitled to my own comment when, later on, I prove 

clearly where it is because my experts will, later on, give evidence about 
it. I have told him the wall, staircase No. 1.
WITNESS : That is the Eastern wall of staircase No. 1.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. Which encroaches about two feet into the left 
shaft of the motor room ?
Mr WALLACE : Is that this wall there (indicating on plan) ?
SIR GARFIELD : It is where the staircase is. It may be inconvenient 
for him to do it now.
HIS HONOR : If you think you can do it now, by all means do so. 

30 If y°u think you would like to look at it more carefully, then do so.
WITNESS : I would prefer to look at it more carefully this evening.
SIR GARFIELD : That is what I suggested. My question, I may say, 
is based on what is here. As far as I know it is identical. I am not 
suggesting if my friend wants to look at the originals and answer the 
question for the witness, he can do it.
HIS HONOR : What he is saying, Mr Wallace, is that this is L2, not L. 
This is the same as L and, for the purposes of this question, L2 will do, 
otherwise I will get L back.

Q. Are you satisfied that, for the purposes of the question, L2, the
40 copy, will be the equivalent of the one called L ? A. Yes. I will

check it on my base drawings in the office, from which these were printed.
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/» tite Q. And after you do that, you will have to come back and identify 
it; there ? A - Yes' identify it there.

Q' Then, if you do find the area you will be asked about it and you 
Equitable will be ready for that ? A. Yes.

Jlll'iwIirtioH.
   SIR GARFIELD : I am not to be taken that the fact that something 

DEevMence.'S ™ °n his base drawing-

x... 5. HIS HONOR : The witness is going to use his base drawings because 
 ?; A[; he has more figures on it and then he will come back and look at these.>ucholls. «

Cross- Mr WALLACE : I will be submitting, in any event, that it is irrelevant.
examination.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. This area you have marked " Coffee Lounge "', \Q 
how many square feet per person is the rate you worked out that it will 
hold 100 people dining ? A. About eight square feet per person.

Q. What is regulation requirement of the licensing authorities for 
a dining room in licensed premises ''. A. I do not know.

Q. Do you know it is 12 feet '! A. No.
Q. If it is 12 feet that won't hold 100 people, will it ? A. No.
Q. About 80 ( A. Yes. \Ve would have to enlarge it a little if 

we needed 100.
Q. And you intended this as a dining room right from the beginning ? 

A. Y;es. ' 20 
Q. As a dining room ! A. Yes.
Q. Xot as a coffee lounge in the sense of some places where you get 

some very light refreshment, but as a meal room ? A. More in the 
nature of a Repins.

Q. As what ? A. The class of place that Repins run where you 
can get a light meal.

Q. T have never thought of that as a coffee lounge or a dining room 

HIS HONOR : It is neither one nor the other. It is a bit of both. 
The dinners are not sumptuous but you can get dinner there.

WITNESS: Yes. 30

SIR GARFIELD : Q. You contemplated this as a place where hot meals, 
for example, could be obtai ued by the occupants of this hotel ? A. Yes.

Q. Their friends ? A. Yes.
Q. And members of the public ? A. Yes.
Q. How was the food to be taken into this kitchen place you provided, 

to get your food supplies in ? A. Bring it up the lift or take it through 
the foyer or up the lift from the service and take it around there (indicates).

Q. Carry the food in through the main foyer ? A. Yes. 
Q. Or you brought it up some lift that opened on to the main foyer ? 

A. Yes. "40



Q. That is very modern in a modern hotel I A. It is very common Evidence. 1*
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Q. And carry it out through the dining room into the kitchen ? in the
A Vp« ' Supreme 
A - i Kb - Court of New

Q. And that went for all supplies, whether eggs, potatoes, fish or Sou^ Wale* 
ham ? A. Yes, which is also very common. Equitable 

Q. And very modern ? A. In the Repin class of
Q. That is very m 

in this class of place.
r Xo. ;j.

Q. This is not a Eepin class ? A. This particular section is. ^E. M.
Q. So the main foyer of this hotel is to have a Repin-class   I can't "   ' 

10 say a word about Repins   the Repin-class dining room or whatever Crpss-
,, ., g A ^ i-iv -4. 4. n u-il' -f VI examination.you call it ? A. You can hit it to a Cahill s it you like.

Q. Carting all the food through the public places ? A. They do 
it early when customers are not there.

Q. But in a hotel close to a railway terminal, not so far from your 
termini, do you feel it is going to have long dead periods when food can 
be ferried in and out ? A. I think there will be.

Q. So that your modern dining room depends upon convenient dead 
periods to ferry the food in  A. Yes, I think that would be desirable.

Q. You think it would be desirable '>. A. Yes.
20 Q. When you have managed to scrape all the plates and you have a 

lot of garbage how do you get it out of the kitchen ? Somewhere through 
the public dining room and out the main foyer ? A. You can take   
you go into the lift.

Q. You have to get it out of the kitchen first ? A. Yes.
Q. Through the public place with the garbage, in the lift or carry 

it out into the main   A. No, you would go to Wynyard Lane.
Q. Who is intended to use this lift ? Who is going to be serviced 

by this lift ? The guests, aren't they ? A. Also.
Q. So the food comes in to the lifts and the rubbish goes out in 

30 them, too ? A. Yes.
Q. A very modern feature ? A. Yes.
Q. What about the area of this kitchen ? Have you ever gone into 

the question of how much gear you could get through it ? A. Yes.
Q. Have you got a note somewhere of what the proposed gear in that 

kitchen would be ? A. Yes.
Q. It is 18 x 16, isn't it '>. A. Yes.
Q. 18 feet 9 by 16 ? A. Yes.
Q. Have you a list there ? A. Yes.
Q. Tell me what it is you propose to put in ? A. A pie heater, a 

40 griddle plate, a hot cupboard and Bain Marie combined, counter-type 
deep fryer, water boiling urn, two-compartment urn, coffee percolator. 
heavy duty range, boiling table, potato peeler.
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the Q. Did you, by any chance, get the dimensions of any of these items 
and work them out against the floor space in that area ? A. Yes.

South Wales Q Did yQU d(J thftt ? A No> Qne Qf my gtaff di(J jt<

Equitable Q Would his workings be about ? A. They could be.
Jurisdiction. ° ^
  Q. Would you look overnight and see whether you can find the

Defendant's i • j. i_Evidence, workings to show   

NO. 5. HIS HONOR : You will have longer that ; over the week-end.

Q ^(j you tllmk tnat lot of gear would be adequate 
Cross- to serve meals to 100 people ? A. Yes. We took some expert advice,

. from kitchen experts from that and that was the product. 10
Q. For a dining room service ? A. Of that character.
Q. When the cook is finished and wants to get changed into his 

clothes and tidy himself up, where does he go, in this luxury hotel, this 
most modern hotel, from that kitchen ? A. He would have to go 
down to some of the staff rooms that exist in the present building.

Q. He would have to come out here through the public part ? 
A. Yes.

Q. And down with the guests in the lift, somewhere to the bowels of 
the building where there were some staff rooms ? A. If he takes the 
lift, yes. 20

Q. Otherwise, he can walk ? A. Yes.
Q. And when he is putting his cap on again he comes back up. 

When did you first think of using this coffee lounge as a substitute for 
a dining room in this hotel ? A. I never thought of using it as a 
substitute for the dining room.

Q. So it is still true that anybody who wants dining room facilities 
in this hotel must go down and get through Wynyard somehow or other 
to the dining room on the George St. side ? A. It is not true. They 
can dine in the coffee lounge. If they wish to dine at another level they 
can go to the existing dining room. 30

Mr WALLACE : Q. Or the Hotel Australia ? A. Yes.
Q. SIR GARFIELD : Or else walk through Wynyard through the 

concourse as you have described to get to your George St. dining room ? 
A. They can go two ways to the George St. dining room.

Q. Both of which take them through part of the concourse of the 
station ? A. Yes, they traverse a little of the concourse.

Q. Did you provide there a separate lounge for the house guests 
from the public lounge in the scheme ? A. Yes.

Q. Just show me where that is. (Sheet No. 4 shown to witness.) 
What level is that on ? A. It says it there (indicates). 40

Q. That is up in the bedroom part ? A, Yes.
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Q. A sitting room and writing room on the second floor, 17 x 19 ? 
A. This is in addition to the large lounge at the Carrington St. level.

Q. The one that was for guests as distinct from the public lounge   8out̂  
that is the one for guests ? A. Yes, for guests. Equitable

Q. When this hotel in your scheme was extended to 300 bedrooms, Jur!sdictiml - 
where was the dining room to be ? A. Consideration has not been Defendant's

V ' 1
given to any change in the location of the dining room. V1 ence '

Q. It would still be that coffee lounge, that size, and the same ^°-['- 
kitchen ? A. Not necessarily at all. 

10 Q. You have told us that this was appropriate for extension to 300 .
bedrooms ? A. Yes. examination.

Q. Where would the dining room be when you got 300 bedrooms ? 
A. Perhaps I could answer a good deal of your questions by this simple 
reply : I have been commissioned to do certain work to a certain stage. 
I have not been commissioned in detail to plan the whole building in full 
detail to its maximum size.

Q. Tell me if this is unfair : Your answer is this, that you have 
not really given consideration to what would have to be done to this 
building to increase its accommodation beyond the point to which you 

20 were going in your present scheme ? A. Yes, I think it would be fair 
to say that I have confined my thought to the present extensions.

Q. You were told, with respect to the dining room, this : I am 
quoting from your letter of instruction : " Remember present dining 
room is on George St. Frontage. Access from bedroom to it. May 
consider if within cost limit transfer to Carrington Street or new dining 
room there whilst retaining the old one ". Do you remember that ? 
A. Yes.

Q. Do you say that that coffee lounge so provided by you was 
provided in pursuance of the instructions to provide a new dining room 

30 in Carrington Street whilst retaining the old one ? A. That is not 
quite so.

Q. Is the answer yes or no ? A. The answer is neither yes nor no. 
They were general requests given to me by my client asking for my 
advice and my advice resolved itself in these drawings.

Q. What do I take from that, that you didn't  

HIS HONOR : Q. That, in the circumstances, that coffee lounge was 
the best proposition, having regard to the rest of the plan, I take it ? 
A. Thank you, Your Honor. That is exactly correct.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. You produce, do you,   or somebody produced 
40 the contract. Are you familiar with its provisions ? A. Reasonably 

well. I was not in at the final stage, the negotiations of it, and I have 
not a copy.

Q. Have you never read it ? A, No, I haven't seen either of the 
signed copies.
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f n the Q. You have never seen a copy of one ? A. No.
Supreme r\ r\ ^ i i vCourt of Ne>r Q. Or read a copy '. \. iNo.

1 '":» its eS Q- I asked you whether there was an escalator clause in this 
Equitable, contract ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you remember when I asked you that there was an escalator 
clause as to labour   I think you made some remark to that effect ? 
A. I told you to the best of my knowledge it \\~\\ < a similar contract to 

B?M. what we had at Caltex House but the material prices arc fixed and the 
only variable was on site labour. That is what I have been led to believe. 
It is the same builder. 1 also commented that I understood if a certain 10_

examination, period of time went by, then the builder would have an opportunity of 
revising his price.

SIR GARFIELD : You know the contract fairly well. That is what I 
was going to ask you about ? A. I said that before.

HIS HONOR : He said that earlier. That was one of the first things 
he said.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. It is provided that if the approval of the Railway 
Commissioner amongst other consents is not obtained within sixty days, 
the builder has the right   either party has the right within two years, 
for a period of two years   to terminate the contract, or, in the case of 20 
the builder, after 60 days to increase the contract price by an amount 
equivalent to the increase in the cost of materials by reason of any 
variation or variations in cost of materials or services or otherwise 
occurring between the 2nd July 1956 and the date on which possession of 
the land is given to the general contractor for the commencement of the 
building ? A. Yes.

Q. I suppose you realise the sixty days has gone by ? A. Yes.
Q. So at the present moment there is no fixed and settled price as 

between the builder and this owner   as a money sum ? A. It is not 
definite as a money sum. It is definite as a formula. 30

HIS HONOR : It could be specially endorsed.

SIR GARFIELD : I do not want to say any more than this : I would 
disagree, with respect, because I do not know how you would ever apply 
the formula to a money sum. This is not the sort of rise and fall, where 
you get a formula directly. It says simply that he can increase his 
material price   add something for materials   if there is a variation in 
the cost of materials.

HIS HONOR : I have known juries to work out much more difficult 
things than that. I think I remember one or two cases where worse 
than that was endorsed. However, that is immaterial at this stage. 40 
I do not think it will become material so far as I am concerned.

SIR GARFIELD ; Except that it bears on estimates and things like 
that.



Q. You said in relation to this Exhibit 2 that any development of /» the 
the centre of the building inevitably led to certain dimensions of the cour 
light area and a certain height of the centra] connecting structure ? South Wales

A \- in ite 
A. 16S. Kquitabk

Q. What do you mean by  ' inevitably '", that it could not be done ""f_f_'°"- 
anv other way ? A. Under existing regulations. Defendant's^ e Evidence.

Q. It could not '. A. Xo. ^r~
Q. (Exhibit H shown). These columns that we marked before are xkJhoik 

numbered on this plan '29 and 30, and 55 and 53. Are they the same -  
10 ones ? A. T think so, yes. That is right, they sire the equivalent examination 

four.

Q. Do you recall they were apparently designed to go up to a. certain 
level so that the ami above the top of the columns could be a huge open 
space ? (objected to by Mr Wallace).

(). That is apparent from the look of the plans, isn't it '. (objected 
to by Mr Wallace).

HIS HONOR : He can say whether in his opinion that is a reasonable 
inference to draw, or he can say otherwise. He is an architect. If he 
cannot say. the answer is " I cannot say \

20 SIR (rARFIELl) : (). You know these columns: you have seen them >. 
\. Yes. Firstly, what yon say does not apply to the two marked " B " 
and never has. It applies here only to the two marked " A ".

Q. My question was really directed to " A ( \. You mentioned 
"B".

Q. I will reframe my question so that there can be no mistake. 
Was it apparent to you, both from what you saw and the plans of the 
sub-structure, that the columns 53 and 55 and the columns in the same 
line as those passing towards Ueorge Street, down to the one. which on 
this sheet I mark ' : A "- (sheet 6A of Exhibit L.2) those columns were 

30 designed so that the space above them could be one large open space? 
A. It was not apparent.

Q. Is this the situation, that you could draw no conclusion as to 
why they were built in the way in which they were built ? A. T could 
draw no satisfactory conclusion.

Q. If I might return to this for the moment, as vou see. this area ­ 
if that area was built over completely at the lower level, instead of leaving 
that light area ... A. Yes.

Q. . . . and trussed above it. it would be possible to go up with a 
narrower piece, which would have the advantage's of light on both sides 

40 and a single corridor ( A. Yes.
(). And go to the full limit, I suppose '. A. I can sec no reason 

u'hv it should not.
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in the Q. So if use were made of this centre section as I call it, you can 
CourTcirffew see ^ would be possible to build up to the limit a building having light 
South Wales to both sides of it in this central area ? A. I think that would be
j£*«. p°ssible -

jurisdiction. Q jf yOur Carrington Street block was put on the land and it was 
Defendant's then decided to develop the centre in the manner I have sketched to you 
Evidence, there, there would have to be quite extensive alterations made to the 

x«. 5. Carrington Street block ? A. The answer is " No ".
Nichoik Q- Do you mean there would be no need for any ? A. No, you
-  would have to make certain alterations. Presumably you would have 10 

examination, to break the walls away, to walk through.
Q. Can you envisage where these trusses would go, if you were going 

to truss over an open area there ? A. Yes, they can go at several 
levels.

Q. But they would stand from the column 57 in one line and 51 in 
the other ? A. Yes.

Q. They would stand those columns, as you pointed out before. 
Q. And they would be what, 10ft. or 12ft. deep ? A. I am sure. 
Q. It would be wide ? A. Wide.
Q. And they would have two members as it were between the top 20 

and the bottom ? A. I would not like to say how they would 
be composed.

Q. But you know they would be very large trusses ? A. Most 
substantially.

Q. And if one were to be put from column No. 57 do you agree 57 
is " E " on the other plan (Exhibit L.2, Sheet No.l) ? A. Yes.

Q. If a truss was passed from 57 to 51 at any level, with your 
Carrington Street structure there, a great part of the truss would be out 
in the air ? A. It would be out in the air until you built something 
around it or on it. 30

Q. These columns are here and there (indicating) ? A. Yes.

SIR GARFIELD : I am looking at Sheet 4 of Exhibit L.2, and I put an 
" X " there.

HIS HONOR : These columns, once they are identified, are identified 
and they are easily picked up by the eye.

SIR GARFIELD : These have no numbers or anything on them. I have 
put " X " on them. These are not numbered on Sheet 4.

WITNESS : They are numbered on a lower sheet.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. If you were to put a truss from the column 
marked " X " on sheet 4 to the other column marked " X " on sheet 4, 40 
and this existing structure was there, you would have these trusses in
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the air for some considerable distance, wouldn't you I A. Of course in the 
you would have them in the air, until you do something else.

Q. But while your bedrooms are here, what do you do with these Sout:h Wales 
trusses ? A. I do not follow that. Equitable

Q. I have been putting it to you that the trusses are going to carry uns tchon' 
a building up the centre, which is narrower than the full base line of Defendant's
,1 10 * AT- Evidence.the columns ; A. Yes. _ 

Q. And the trusses bear that building ? A. Yes. ^°-^- 
Q. So the building won't fully cover the truss, will it, if it is narrower 

10 than the total width of the truss ? A. You are quite wrong, because
the truss is under the narrow building. examination.

Q. You are sufficiently familiar with the design of this building 
and with what I have suggested to you to say that there would be 
something under those trusses, covering them ? A. I think, if you 
don't mind me saying, you are confused in the matter. You said to 
me that these trusses presupposes, with the level of Ham's bedrooms, 
that you have one complete block of buildings.

Q. I said at any level; I did not trouble about what the level was. 
A. We start at the bottom. Then you can put your trusses over that. 

20 Then you can build your narrow building over that. 
Q. On top of part of the truss ? A. Yes.
Q. And the truss is about 12ft. deep ? A. Yes. Then, if 

you wish, because your truss is blanking this section, you can extend this 
on to that " T ". It is all a matter of planning. You have to make 
connection between your suggested narrow and what exists. It is all 
a matter of architectural planning.

SIR GARFIELD : I shall explain that to Your Honor. I put to him 
that these two columns are to - be trussed over, because below them 
there is an open spaced building, a building that is not bearing internal

3Q columns. It is not proposed to build the full width of the truss, so that 
you have a building proceeding up that, narrower than the base of the 
truss. The truss is some 12ft. deep, so from the top side of the lower 
building to the underside of the next storey, there is 12ft.; and this 
truss, he agrees with me, is then put out in the air for the amount, I 
suppose, of the difference between the base width of the truss and the 
base width of the superstructure. I put to him that with his building 
there these would remain in the air, and his answer to me is you would 
have to extend your building out in some way over to the truss, and he 
says it is all a matter of architectural planning.

40 Q. But my question began with this : you would need to have 
substantial alterations to your building. Do you call this building-out 
an insubstantial alteration ? A. Quite. The point you have been 
making is very little in fact. I shall get a rule. The trusses would be 
out in the air each end for a distance of about 12ft. at one floor level  
at one floor level only. There is just one level of trusses.
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J >i the Q. Would you like to check your measurements about the 12ft., 
c'ourtPof"yeu> so that there is no misunderstanding, I suggest to you it is 25ft. You 
South Wales just measure it again. A. Dependent on the class of bedrooms that

EquitabU y°u Put m the centre, it could be either 16ft. or 12ft. 
Jurisdiction. Q YOU are thinking of bedrooms. I think you said before than on 
Defendant's a long-range view it could be that the owner of this land may prefer
Evidence, commercial accommodation ?  

E'.'M'; Mr WALLACE : That is at the George Street entrance.

No . the middle.
Cross-  

examination. WITNESS : I will be pleased to work it out for you. If it were a 10 
commercial building, the exposed length of truss each end would get 
down to about 8ft.
SIR GARFIELD : Q. At what floor level are you speaking ; it does not 
matter where you put the truss in. A. Whichever floor you select to 
put your truss, then you will have 8ft. of truss each end. Then the 
truss is finished  and it is normal building. So you are concerned with 
an alteration to a piece about 8-ft x 12-f't each end, which is not 
substantial.

Q. Of course, you   through or over the truss   must make 
communication with the Carrington Street building, must not you, 20 
because it is this part which will provide the means of joining the two 
buildings ? A. Are we still talking about the central block you 
presupposed ?

Q. Yes ? A. Yes.
Q. What is the ceiling height of your floors ? A.I think we have 

it 9-ft floor to ceiling.
Q. What would you do with the 12-ft truss in relation to the floor 

levels '? A. 12-ft is an arbitrary figure. The truss has never been 
designed by anybody.

Q. As far as you know. Wliat warranted you for making that 39 
statement ? A. Structural engineers' advice.

Q. What, Stanley £ Llewellyn ? A. Mr Llewellyn.
Q. Nobody from the Department ? A. No, I do not deal with the 

Department. I have not met the gentleman.
Q. When you say " nobody '' you exaggerate, so far as your 

knowledge is concerned ? A. That is a misstatement, yes.
Q. If the truss in point of actual structure needed to be 12-ft. deep 

in order to carry the superstructure, what would you do about the 
levels once you had this building to contend with ? A. Well, I think 
the answer to that is you would not have a 12-ft. truss. 49

Q. My supposition was something neither of us knows. Suppose 
the engineers say it must be 12-ft. What do you do then < A. Then 
you make it deeper than 1_>, if 12-ft. is the minimum.



65

Q. You make it 18-ft., to make it two floors instead of one ? 
A. Y'es, with holes in it for doors, and you walk through the truss.

Q. Have you any actual knowledge or experience that would warrant outin its 
you saying that that could be done, having regard to the loads which the Equitable. 
truss might have to carry ? A. Yes. ' ttn* lctlon -

Q. This bedroom space was, you told us, first, second and third Evidence."
class space in the 1954 plans ? A. Y'es.   J L \o. ~>.

Q. I think you told my friend I have not the precise expression N?'hJJjR
in my mind that it was a regular professional expression; that in your "   '

10 profession that was a regular method of dividing up space as for light. ( ' r:'S8 ;.
f i • ji j. i \ ^ 1,1- f R , examination.Do you remember saying that : A. 1 remember something of that 
character, yes.

Q. Would you be able to offer me some professional journal in which 
that is mentioned or referred to '. A.I cannot think of one offhand, 
but I could refer you to a very good precedent in this matter.

Q. Your statement was that this was a sort of regular professional 
method of division of rooms or space in relation to light. You say you 
cannot offhand tell me of any journal or periodical. A. No.

Q. 1 want to put to you straight that that is not an expression known 
20 at all in your profession, amongst your professional men ? A. Then 

you are quite wrong.

Q. Your answer at p.5 was " Q. Does your profession describe 
or rate lighting according to classes 1st, 2nd. 3rd and so on ? A. Y'es." 
Do you mean it is in common parlance amongst your profession that 
lights and rooms are associated with 1st, 2nd and 3rd class '? A. I 
would not put it that way It has come into being with the advent of 
the modern flat building, where vou get all obviously 1st class prime 
space.

Q. How would you define a slab building ? A. A corridor in the 
30 centre, rooms on either side.

Q. How would you define a thin slab structure building ? A. I 
do not understand that.

(,). Or a flat plate building ( A. That is structural, quite apart 
from planning. They are two things you are mixing.

Q. I did not say they were the same. How do you define a flat plate 
building '. A. That defines it. The ceiling is just simply from the 
underside flat. There are no beams coming down, nor are there any 
column caps coining down.

Q. This building in your 1956 plan, do you describe that as a flat 
40 plate building i A. It is substantially flat plate.

Q. The essence of the flat plate building is it does not have beams, 
isn't it ? A. Yes.
 38632 -3



66

in the Q. This building has a lot of beams in it ? A. The beams have 
TNew ^een eliminated as far as possible, and the engineer is still to investigate 

South Wales the elimination of other beams, to get as near a complete flat plate as

Jurisdiction. Q Is it right to say ^hat fae building that is in the Exhibit of the 
Defendant's 1956 plan is rightly described as a flat plate building, in the way those 
Evidence. wor(js are understood in your profession ? A. It is not a pure flat 

NO. 5. plate building, nor is it a pure beam and slab building.
Nichoiis. Q. At any rate, it could not be properly called a flat plate building 
^^ without qualification ? A. Without qualifications. JQ

examination. Q j understand you are still in the process of altering the structural 
details of this proposal, in the way of eliminating beams ? A. Yes, 
our engineers are working in that direction.

Q. Is this building rightly called a slab building or a slab constructed 
building ? A. Yes, you could call this a slab building.

Q. Your instructions require you to contemplate another 37 
bedrooms ? A. Yes.

Q. How many bedrooms are there on a floor of this 1956 scheme ? 
A. Each floor, one-third of 75 whatever that is.

Q. 25 ? A. Yes. 20
Q. Where were the 37 bedrooms you were instructed to provide for, 

to go ? A. Both the 62 requirement in my instructions and the 37 
were as it were arbitrary amounts, arbitrary numbers. Then I set to 
work designing this thing and found, consistent with the site and with 
the columns, to work in a unit of 62 was not economic. As I could see 
it the only economical way was to design along Carrington Street and 
get units per floor of about 25, and that is why there are 75 bedrooms, 
and that is the explanation somewhat as to why the cost has increased 
from the £300,000 in the instructions. Then I showed to my clients how 
they can add in units of 25. 30

Q. How does the level of your bedroom floors in this proposal compare 
with the level of the George Street bedroom. Do they correspond or 
not ? A. No, they differ in about the same measure as the 1954 
plans differ.

Q. But they do differ ? A. Yes, they do differ.
Q. You told me that they differed to the same extent as the 1954 

plan would. Just show me what this difference was in the 1954 plan, 
say, in the floor level ? A. Unfortunately the section we desired is 
not here. It is not one of this set you remember.
HIS HONOR : That is the one we thought was missing, and I made up 40 
my mind it was never there, so it was never missing. This witness at 
one time has obviously seen a section which is in none of the plans.
WITNESS : I have.
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SIR GARFIELD : I did not see what the Licensing Court brought, and /» ike 
if the Licensing Court has not brought it naturally it is not here.

HIS HONOR : As far as I am aware nobody went through every bundle. °"-m , // e*
'

SIR (4ARFIELD : But the Licensing Court would not accept them, I Jurisdiction. 
do not think, without the sections. They would require a section, and Def~^nt's 
I would be very surprised if there was not a section there ; and there Evidence. 
must have been sections drawn because the witness has seen sections. xTT

I\O. O.

HIS HONOR : What Mr May says makes me certain they were not taken 
yesterday afternoon. Either one of two things has happened. As you 

10 say, either the whole of the plans were not brought up, or, in dealing 
with the bundles it was overlooked that somewhere there was another 
plan.
SIR GARFIELD : I am not saying that anybody took them from here. 
All I am saying is it might not have come from the Licensing Court.
Mr WALLACE : You have copies yourself.
SIR GARFIELD : Of course I have copies. I have never denied we 
have got copies; we have been working on them. However, I am 
endeavouring to get a copy to show the witness.
Mr MAY : Having regard to the way in which the Licensing Court does 

20 deal with the application, they would not be direct!}' concerned with 
the detailed building construction, and it may well be they were never 
put in at the Licensing Court.
SIR GARFIELD : Apparently we have not got a section here. I shall 
have to defer the question.

Q. Am I quite right in saying that you at no stage paid any attention 
to the centre columns, the ones I was thinking of before ? A. Yes.

Q. When designing your project, with a view to avoiding the use of 
those columns ? A. Most certainly not.

Q. You have told us that the shop downstairs has now been added to
30 the contract. It was added to the proposal by the time the contract

was entered into ? A. Yes. They were all drawn at the one time,
but the first price of the contractor excluded the shopping court, which
he later added, and it was included in the total contract price.

Q. Would you open up the sheet showing the shops at the Wynyard 
Lane level ? These black marks mean " existing construction ", don't 
they ? A. That is right.

Q. By stepping your building back off the columns marked " A " 
and utilising these beams marked " C ", you as it were were left with or 
created the area that is now marked for the shops ? A. That is 

40 partly true.
Q. The shops were really dictated to an extent by the fact that you 

had stepped back off the line of AA. to the existing line of your proposal ? 
A. Most certainly not. It had nothing to do with it.
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lathe Q. Was this area not made available by reason of the fact that you 
mNew stepped back ? A. It had no relationship.
ai* Q jjad you built right on to the level of the line EE. you would 

Equitable still have had this provision for shops ? A. The whole of this space 
Jurisdiction. wou\^ have been vacant, to do what one wished shops or anything
Defendant's else.

- -nce " Q. By the way, do you remember I showed you the 1954 plan. If one
W°'M ' were to cover the whole of the area at the lower level across Wynyard

Nichoiis. Lane and then build above it with a narrower building on the truss,
'-^- you would have a complete cover, of course, across Wynyard Lane ? in
Cross- A -cr , i , r .   i J J 1U

examination. A. Yes not a complete cover; a partial cover.

Q. It would be a cover extending ... A. ... from there to 
there, (indicating).

Q. Where there is a downpipe, to the one over here near the duct? 
A. It would complete that area partially for the site.

Q. But it would cover as much of Wynyard Lane as this cover you 
are talking about ? A. It would cover more.

Q. What has dictated the line of the shops ? A.I did.

Q. I mean, just arbitrarily? A. No, to gain width of coverage 
and to make access around the back of these little stems of columns 20 
there.

Q. There being four columns, you stepped back I A. To 
circumnavigate.

Q. When you made your estimate the original perspective that you 
saw for a building on this area costing £4,000,000 today . . A. Yes.

Q. Did you take it out and square it ? A. Oh, roughly.

Q. How many squares or cubes did you make it I A. I did this a 
little while ago; something like 360,000 sq. feet of floor very roughly.

Q. When you say "a while ago" ... A. Lunch time; just 
sitting here at lunch time. 30

Q. Is that squares, you say I A. Yes.

Q. How many floors are there on that ? A. About ten more.

Q. Eleven altogether '? A. Yen.

Q. About how much per square do you calculate ? A. About 
£10 per square foot.

Q. How much does your construction work out per square foot t 
A. I have not worked it out.

Q. Is it possible for you to do it quickly ? A. It is not possible 
for me to do it quickly. I shall do it over the weekend and have it on 
Monday morning. 40
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Q. When you said that this site would only stand 300 hotel bedrooms, in UK 
in your judgment what, are you gauging that on >. What experience c,uw?rof"yw 
have you got ? A. Very little. South.Wales

(Letter of instruction from the witness' file tendered by Sir Garfield; Kquitabh 
objected to by Mr. Wallace. Mr. Wallace suggested that Sir ' "" '""'""'  
Garfield re-tender the document next Monday.) Defendant'*

Evidence.
Mr WALLACE : Would Your Honor rule on it on Mont lav > v :No. ji.

HIS HONOR : Yes. xl^, 
(m.f.i. 11 now tendered and marked EXHIBIT R.) (~

10 Mr HARRINGTON: (Crown Solicitor's office) .Might I inform the examination- 
Court that I am instructed by the Clerk of the Licensing Court that that 
Court has adjourned until the 9th April.

HIS HONOR : That means you will not need any other documents before 
the 9th April ?

Mr HARRINGTON : That is so.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. Did you ascertain the date at which you began 
the Eastern Markets project in Melbourne, or began to design it ? 
A. Yes, about the year before I commenced on this Avrom, 1956, period.

Q. You were going to bring with you the documents you refreshed 
20 your recollection to be able to tell me that date. Did you do that ? 

A. I do not remember.
Q. You do not remember that { A. No. I remember I had to 

ascertain that.
Q. Will you make a note to get the documents by reference to which 

you were able to refresh your recollection ? (Witness makes note.)
Q. You were going to look to see if you had a copy of the sub­ 

structure plans with respect to which you began your design; could 
you find those ? A. The only ones 1 have are the ones that have now 
been taken to the Licensing Court.

30 SIR GARFIELD : I call for the plans to which the witness refers. The 
witness said there is a copy of the sub-structure plans which came from 
him, which he had in his possession at some stage and which he thought 
were at the Licensing Court and they are the plans for which I call.
Mr WALLACE : They would be the Railway Commissioner's plan, 
wouldn't they ? (Not produced.)
SIR GARFIELD : Q. Did you get for me the workings of one of your 
staff showing how they computed the kitchen areas and the ability of the 
kitchen to take the various items of plant ? A. Yes, I have those.

Q. Have you got those there ? A. Yes,
40 Q. Could you produce them for me \ A. Yes. I have them 

written here.
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the Q. Do you mean you copied them out or did you get the originals ? 
ew ^-- No, I have simply taken copies from the notes we received when we 

South Wales were given a list of all the fitments.
Equitable Q. I thought you told me on the last occasion that one of your staff 

Junction, j^ worke(j out something for you and it was that document which 1 
Defendant's want, not some copy that has been made ? A. Yes.
  ' Q. Is that a document which you have now had prepared for you by 
E°M' your staff before this case began ? A. No, that is a copy of it. 

Nichoiis. Q. Where is the original ? A. The original is in my office. 
Cross- Q. I want the document ? A. I am sorry, I thought you wanted 10

examination. the jength Qf footage

Q. Did you check up over the weekend whether my suggestion to 
you that the wall was encroaching was correct or incorrect ? A. Yes, 
I checked that up and 1 frankly confess that my office made a mistake 
and I have made a drawing showing the effect of it.

Q. I did not ask you to do that. I wanted to know was what I 
put to you right that the wall of staircase No. 1 encroached into the 
motor room ? A. Yes, it does.

Q. (Approaching witness with Exhibit L2, sheet 3) Have you got a 
section there through this area that way (indicating) in those plans ? 20 
A. Not through there, through there (indicating).

Q. I first look at Sheet 3. Have you verified this basement at all 
at any time ? A. Yes, from the lease that is supposed to be taken.

Q. Have you checked on your plan this measurement to make 
sure it is exact ? A. Consistent with the lease, do you mean ?

Q. No that it is exact as far as the plan is concerned; it says 
44 feet 6 inches ? A. No, I have not checked it.

Q. I do not want to know whether your plan shows 44 feet 6 but 
also whether 44 feet 6 ties in with the rest of your plans ? A. No, 
I have not checked it. 30

Q. If that measurement of 44 feet 6 is understated, the extent of the 
understatement would have to be added to the extent of the encroachment 
of the wall into the motor room ? A. Yes, if the 44 feet 6 is correct.

Q. It is understated ? A. If it is correct in itself.
Q. My question was if it is understated as a measurement the extent 

of this understatement would have to be added to whatever dimension 
had already been shown on the plan, the dimension of the encroachment 
of the wall of staircase No. 1 ? A. No, I do not think that is the 
answer at all.

Q. You do not think that is right ? A. No. 40
Q. If this was 44 feet 9 inches, for example, instead of 44 feet 6, 

would it have any effect on the extent of your encroachment ? A. Not 
the slightest.
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Q. What is the 44 feet 6 said to represent the precise measurement in the 
of those walls ? A. That is supposed to be the limit of the base line. cout^jr

Q. You mean this plan does not show if I were to scale this plan Sou'^ ^ 
off it would not show 44 feet 6 ? A. It is supposed to. Equitable

Jurisdiction.
Q. We know that at 44 feet 6 you agree that the wall is encroaching ?  

A Voo Defendant's 
A- * eb ' Evidence.

Q. It is encroaching by 1 feet 7 or 1 feet 8, is it ? A. About x~_ 
that, yes. E- M.

J Nicholls.
Q. What I put to you was if your 44 feet 6 dimension is understated, -  

10 so that it should, for example, be 44 feet 9, the wall would encroach examination. 
more than is shown on your plans ? A. If the 44 feet 6 were the correct 
dimension, then what do you say follows ?

Q. You mean correct in relation to the lease or correct in relation 
to the plan ? A. Both the lease and the plan.

Q. I am content with the plan. If the 44 feet 6 is an understatement 
in relation to the plan then the extent of the encroachment will be so 
much greater ? A. If the 44 feet 6 is correct basically.

Q. I do not follow what you mean by that ?

HIS HONOR : Q. What do you mean by that answer ? A. I mean 
20 this, that I have not personally, Your Honor, checked every one of these 

dimensions and I cannot swear to their exactness or their Tightness 
but if basically 44 feet 6 is right, and as it should be, then if it does not 
compare rightly with the plans, the discrepancy, as Sir Garfield said, 
would be greater if it were wrong.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. You see on this plan between the arrows is marked 
the figures 44 feet 6 inches ? A. Yes.

Q. Is that intended to indicate that the distance from the outer side 
of the two walls is 44 feet 6 inches ? A. Yes, it is.

Q. On the plan ? A. Yes.

30 Q. If one were to take the rest of your plans, for example let me 
suppose this and ascertain that that measurement ought to be 44 feet 
9, then you would have to move the position of this wall on the plan by 
3 inches, wouldn't you ? A. No. I think the basis of your whole 
thesis is incorrect.

Q. Never mind about any basis of my thesis, just answer the question 
If the distance between these two walls on this plan scales 44 feet 6 
inches do you see ? A. Yes.

Q. And if in relation to other parts on your plan it is apparent 
that it must be 44 feet 9, that would result, would it not, in this wall of 

40 staircase No. 1 having to be moved on the plan some three inches ? 
A. That could be so, to keep the plan consistent,
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in the Q. And if you did that, the extent of the encroachment on the motor 
New room would be three inches greater than that plan shows ? A. On that 

South Wales basis, it could be.
in its

Equitabk Q j)^ you gO over the plans, by any chance, over the week end to
Jurisdiction. .^ , i ,1 i i i 110_ see ii there were any other places where your plans encroached (
Defendant's A. No. 

Evidence.
   Q. On reserved areas ? A. No.

No. f>.
E. M. Q. Did you do any checking of them at all over the week end ? 

Xichoiis. A None whatsoever .

( '".' ss:. Q. Would you mind turning up you see on the sheet I opened for 10examination. ^ £ . & f J . £ x "
you, sheet 2, there is a block of lavatories set beside the railway lift 
area ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you look at the lease and the reserved areas when you were 
preparing that sketch ? A. Well, my staff presumably did; I did not 
personally.

Q. I want you to agree with me, if you think it is right, that that 
vent or shaft which is shown by small red edged rectangle at level eye 
amongst the reserved areas of the lease goes right through that lavatory ? 
A. Yes, that is so.

Q. That is so ? A. Yes. 20 
Q. And that reserved shaft goes up one floor above where that 

lavatory is, it goes up to the level above ? A. Yes, that could be so.
Q. You see Sheet 2 that I have opened in front of you ? A. Yes.
Q. This shows a lounge area, does it not ? A. Yes.
Q. And it shows two columns marked C55A and C53A ? A. Yes.
Q. And they are the only columns which are shown in that lounge ? 

A. Yes.
Q. And from the point of view of your plan. A. When you say in 

the lounge, that is free standing in the lounge ?
Q. That is right ? A. Yes. 30
Q. And they are the only free standing columns for which you had 

planned in the lounge ? A. Yes.
Q. And I have no doubt you would have found it highly inconvenient 

to have other free standing columns in that lounge ? A. No.
Q. You would not mind having another couple ? A. Not at all.
Q. Over the top of the lounge there is a ceiling or floor is there not, 

of concrete ? A. Yes, that is right.
Q. Did you compute the strength of the concrete slab that goes over 

the lounge ? A. No.
Q. So far as you are concerned, was it designed so as to be supported 40 

by those two columns to which I have called attention as well as the two 
columns which I will call the back wall ? A. The East ?



Q. The Eastern wall of the building ? A. Yes. in the
Q. What is the span between them ? A. About 39 feet. Court of New

T . i TIT T ^ South, Wales
Q. No more than that ? A. No, not between them. in iti

Q. What do you mean between them   within them ? A. I mean jurisdiction. 
what you said   " between them ".    ,

J Defendant s
Q. From inside edge to inside edge I A. Yes. Evidence.

Q. What are they, in centres, apart ? A. 42 feet. NO. 5.

Q. Not 43 ? A: Not by my scale; 42.
Q. What is the dimension of the slab that was to span that opening 1 croas- 

10 Do you remember how thick it was I A. No, I do not remember. examination.

Q. You leave that to the structural engineer ? A. Yes.

Q. You see, do you not, that according to your structural steel 
drawings there are two columns in the lounge in addition to the ones 
you show in that plan ? A. That is not quite correct. There are two 
columns in the lounge here.

Q. In a different position ? A. Yes.
Q. So your structural steel drawings do not show 053 A and C55A, bxit 

they show 53 and 55 ? A. Yes. They show two columns in different 
positions.

20 Q- And the span between 53 and 55 from the centre of those columns 
to the corresponding columns on the Eastern wall is what '? A. 29 feet 
6 inches.

Q. So that your structural steel drawings provide for a slab over this 
lounge which is differently supported to the slab which you propose in 
your architectural drawings '? A. That is true.

Q. And when you work it out, if you did, that this structure, would 
carry a building up to 150 feet, which of these columns, which group of 
columns were you thinking of   53A and 55A or 53 and 55 ? A. My 
instructions to our structural engineers were that the columns at first 

30 floor level were ooA and 53A, which columns continued throughout 
the bedroom floor and then presumably on.

Q. What about my question ? Which of these columns were the 
ones you had in mind when you said this building could be projected up to 
1 50 feet on the structures you were providing in this proposal ? A. The 
ones I just mentioned, 55A and 53A.

Q. Did you make any computations I A. None.

Q. Are you able to tell His Honor whether you could have gone up to 
this height, using columns 53A and 55A as shown in that plan '? 
A. When you say " this height : ', what is this height '.

40 Q. 150 feet > A. Not with those columns.

Q. Or with any extension of them vertically ? A. No. They 
would not go the full load, I was so advised by our structural engineer.
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in the Q. They would not go the full load ? A. The full height. 
New Q. I want to show you Exhibit 4 in relation to that answer. In Ex. 4 

sec^ons BB on the left hand side, you show the projection of this 
Equitable building in sections up to 150 feet and by " this building " I mean the 

Jurisdiction. Carrington Street frontage building ? A. To be specific, I show some
Defendant's of it Up to 150 feet.

vijmce. Q you notice at about floor 8   is it ? A. Yes.
E?M. Q- The structure steps back from the East ? A. That is right.

Nichoiis. Q TQ what extent doeg it gtep back_20 odd feet ? A. I will
Cross- measure it. (Measures). About 16 feet. 10

Q. What measurement is that ? Between what points is that 
measurement   just you specify it will you ? A. That is from the 
base of column C55A to the face of column 030.

Q. Why not take the centres ? You have taken the face, have you ? 
A. I have taken the face, because it steps back from there.

Q. To the face of the column ? A. Yes.
Q. That apparently was necessitated in your design because the 

structure you were providing at lower level was not adequate to support 
the building called up to its full depth of 150 feet ? A. That is partly 
right. 20

Q. What other reason was there for forfeiting that amount of space ? 
A. Those columns necessitated, my engineer advised, at the eighth 
floor, a setting back of about 16 feet for a certain length as indicated on 
this plan.

Q. That was because of the strength or want of it in the members 
below ? A. That is true.

Q. And what would be the resultant depth of the building when you 
had gone back 16 feet ? A. About 28 feet for that section.

Q. It would remain 28 feet wide ? A. No, it would not remain 28.

Q. You would lose 28 feet ? A. No. The building as its 30 
narrowest point would be 28 feet for a given length, then it would assume 
the normal contours.

Q. What length of the building is the setback ? A. Could you 
get me an ordinary first-floor plan of this scheme ? (Shown Sheet 3.) 
Eighty. 16 by 80 feet.

Q. So far as the bedrooms are concerned the greatest length of the 
building in bedrooms is what ? A. The greatest length, you mean from 
there to there (indicating) ?

Q. Yes ? A. That is the whole front of 172 feet.

Q. And on the Eastern side of the building the greatest length of 40 
bedrooms is what ? When you take out the staircase and all the 
other appointments ? A. 133 feet 6 inches.



75 

Q. Of that length you include 80, due to the set back ? A. That is in the,
rio-llt Supreme 
11&Ul ' Court of New

Q. For that 80 feet the depth of the building is 28 feet ? A. Yes. *" » 
Q. And what is its depth prior to the setback   44 is it ? A. I ^

• n ., ,-,,, x , 7. Jurisdiction.will measure it. (Measures.) 44. __
Q. One of the major virtues of this plan, according to you, is that 

it enables this structure with a central corridor to take place ; that 
is right, isn't it ? A. No. I think you are putting the emphasis on the E?M. 
wrong thing. Nichoiis.

10 Q. Didn t you tell us it was an advantage to have the central corridor
with bedrooms on either side ? A. I would put it the other way. The examination - 
advantage is to have the bedrooms facing open space, which result in a 
central corridor.

Q. The width of corridors is a controlled thing, is it not   controlled 
by authorities ? A. Yes.

Q. What is the minimum width permissible in a hotel of this kind at 
this site ? A. As I remember it, about five feet.

Q. Would you be able to have a central corridor with bedrooms on 
either side, and with 28 feet ? A. I would not think so.

20 Q. What is to happen in the 28 feet in your idea   bedrooms only 
along one side ? A. Yes. It was the front of the 1954 plan.

Q. I am not worrying about any other plan, that is your idea ? 
A. Yes. I am just giving you an illustration of what would happen.

Q. Along one side 1 A. For the 80 feet.
Q. Would you have the bedrooms 23 feet deep ? A. No.

Q. With a five foot corridor ? A. No. You would just have 
bedrooms towards Carrington St. and then your corridor.

Q. But between the two you would absorb the whole in bedrooms and 
corridor ? A. Not necessarily. You might just build the bedroom and 

30 the corridor. You have to remember that this is simply a diagram of a 
general character.

Q. You have not thought out what would be done in this setback 
portion ? A. No, I have not.

Q. You gave us some figures earlier on as to the comparative floor 
space available in the 1954 scheme and the 1956 scheme; do you 
remember that ? A. Yes.

Q. I want you to tell me what you include in the area for the purposes
of these comparisons, will you ? What is included in the two schemes  
the previous and the present   for the purpose of those comparisons ?

40 A. You mean you want to know at each and every level of the building ?

Q. In total will do me, to start with, what is the total ? A. It 
includes the bulk of the building as shown on those diagrams.
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in the Q. So what you have compared is a completion of the 1954 scheme
o/x™- Avhich y°u have notionally effected ? A. Yes. 

in ftsales Q - ^nrl no* merel,y a completion of your scheme, but a building in
Equitable George St. ? A. Y('S.

'°"' Q. Which is not part of your scheme ? A. It is part of my scheme.
Q- A building in George St. of this kind ? A. Yes, the ultimate 

  scheme. They arc all ultimates.
Xo. .3. •
E. M- Q. You did not, by any chance, first work out a comparison of what 
lc ° s- you were carrying out at present with what was actually proposed to 
Cross- be built in the 1954 scheme did you ? A. Yes. I think somewhere we 10 

examination, ^^.g an exact comparison, the result of which showed that we were 
biiilding about 5,000 square feet more than the 1954 scheme. 

Q. Is that right I Is that what you say ? A. Yes.
Q. Will you deny this, that if you were to measure up the work that 

you actually proposed in the 1956 scheme with the work that was actually 
proposed in the 1954 scheme, the comparison is of this order : 1956, 
8,800 square feet (Avithdrawn).

Q. If you compared a bedroom floor as actually proposed in the 1954 
scheme and a bedroom floor in the 1956 scheme did you work that out 
at some stage ? A. Yes. 20

Q. Would you deny that on the 1956 scheme there is 8,800 square feet 
as against 22,348 feet in the 1954 scheme ? A. I would not deny it 
because the simple answer is that we have three bedroom floors and the 
1954 has one. By one bedroom floor, obviously, the 1956 scheme is 
less than 1954. If you take the bulk, we are greater.

Q. HOAV many square feet did you include in your comparison 
with the George St. development in your 1956 diagram of Exhibit 4 ? 
A. You mean we are now only on this scheme '?

Q. Yes. How many square feet attributed to that George St. 
section ? A. I am sorry. I haven't the figures here. 30

Q. You could work those out, could you ? A. I am not going to 
work them now.

Q. I am not asking you to do it now. Make a note, will you, and be 
able to tell me how much of the 1956 total footage was attributable to 
the George St. development ? A. Yes (makes note).

Q. T want you to open Sheet 3 and structural drawings. Do you see 
there is a column marked C51 there ? A. 51, yes.

Q. There is an existing column provided in the substructure, the 
column which is called 51 ? A. Yes.

Q. Your plans provide for an extension of that column, that is to say, 40 
a column to be built above it, which is of lesser dimension than the 
existing column ? A. I could not say that.

Q. You could not say that ( A. No.
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Q. Have you at any stage either yourself computed or had computed in the. 
the load that is to be placed on 051 ? A. I certainly have had.

Q. And have you had computed the load bearing quality, the strength *"'(* 
of the column that you prepose to place above Col ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you mean you have got that written somewhere }. A. No. "'
The structural engineer has all of that. Defendant's

~ Evidence.
Q. Do you remember telling me on the last day   I made the -  

suggestion to you   that you put a trass in between two columns there 1 E°'jf'
A. Yes. '

10 Q. At almost any level ? A. Yes.
/-\ i i i • , i ; i « r i • i examination.Q. And you agreed with that answer I A. I did not say at 

almost any level. You suggested the first floor or perhaps the second 
floor above Carrington St.

Q. You agreed with my suggestion I A. At those levels, yes.
Q. At that time did you have in mind the load bearing quality of 

C51 ? A. Tn general principles, yes.

Q. Is it your idea, in answering me as to what should be done with 
the truss and what the effect of the truss would be if inserted in the way 
I mentioned last year, is it your idea that C51 as extended by you or 

20 under your plan would cany the truss I A. Not necessarily.

Q. What do you mean '' not necessarily " I A. Because 1 have 
not worked out C51. I do not know its load bearing capacity. My 
structural engineer does that. You asked me in principle could I do so.

Q. Could you tell from those structural drawings whether (.'51 as 
extended would be adequate to bear the truss ? A. Of course not. 
I mean you cannot tell.

Q. You cannot tell I A. No.

Q. And you will agree that it would be essential if you were going to 
place the truss in at any level above the first floor that the extension 

30 of Col should be specially guarded to see that it had adequate strength to 
bear the truss '? A. Yes.

Q. May I take it that you have taken no such precaution ? A. On 
the contrary.

Q. On the contrary >. A. Yes.

Q. Have you given some instructions to the engineer about Col ? 
A. Yes.

Q. In writing ? A. No.

Q. What was it >. A. The common instructions that he has in 
regard to all of the columns.

40 Q. I did not ask you about that. CoO we are interested in ? A. I 
have not given him instructions, column by column and I cannot answer
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in the it in that form. The only form I can answer it in is this : That the 
mNew structural engineer has been instructed to design the columns to go as 

South Wales they were originally able to from maximum height.

Equitable Q. "Which columns are you talking about the ones that are actually 
unjicion. uge<j ^y ^ig keeling A. Yes, insofar as they had originally sufficient 

Mendant's ]oa(j bearing capacity to carry it out.

^~~5 Q. In giving that instruction did you have in mind, did you bear in 
E. M.' mind the possibility of the use of a truss at any level ? A. Yes.

Nicholls.
   Q. What did you tell him about that ? A. Only by implication.

examination. Q. Only by implication ? A. This way : My scheme has never 10 
envisaged using any of the trusses.

Q. By implication did you did not require him to have any special 
care about C51 ? A. On the contrary, I did.

Q. Although it was not part of your scheme ? A. It might be 
done by others at a later date. Therefore, he had to allow to take the 
original loads for which the building was originally designed.

Q. Did you give written instructions to this structural engineer ? 
A. No.

Q. We have got no documentary matter we could look at that would 
record your instructions ? A. None at all. 20

Q. Are you able to read this structural plan yourself, understand the 
strengths of the members that are shown on there at all ? A. Not 
from this, no.

Q. That is what the builder tendered on apparently this thing ? 
A. Yes.

Q. You are able to deny from a perusal of the structural plan and 
your architectural plan that the extension of 051 would be quite incapable 
of bearing the truss \ A. I could not affirm it nor deny it from this, 
because they are not detailed drawings.

Q. Of course, it is essential to any extension across the open area 30 
between your two buildings that a truss be used at some point ? 
A. Say that again ?

Q. I say this is essential, if there is to be any development across 
that central area, that a truss be used at some point ? A. Yes.

Q. (Approaching witness) Can't you tell me from this structural 
steel plan the size of the extension of C51 ? A. You could get from 
this the size of the outside of the concrete. You cannot get from this 
the nature of the reinforcement in the concrete because it has never 
been detailed and these are preliminary sizings for the purpose of the 
builder giving a quote. They are not structural sizes for a builder to 40 
work on.
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Q. If you compare the sizing of the columns in the structural steel jn 
preliminary drawings, m.f.i. 10, with the substructure plans you will ^"^ 
be able to see the relationship in size between C51 as constructed and the South, 
extension of C51 as projected, will you not ? A. Yes. Editable

Q. Will you deny that what is planned*is at least no more than half  / "r '-'irf"'/ ':o"- 
the size of the existing C51 ? A. I will neither affirm nor deny it Defendant's 
because I have not compared it. Evidence.

Q. Does this C51 figure at all have bearing between the wall of your No. 5. 
building ? A. Yes, it was a determinant. Nichoiif.

10 Q. When you decided to step your building back at the eighth floor Croaa. 
it was not the weakness of C51 as extended, amongst other things, that examination, 
caused that stepping back, was it ? A. I am not so advised by my 
structural engineer.

Q. What do you mean ? You do not know or were you advised to 
the contrary ? A. I was advised to the contrary, as best I remember 
it.

Q. But C51 was strong enough to carry the building up to its full
height of 150 feet without being stepped back ? A. As I remember it
that is my advice. I can only say this, that we did not fully develop the

20 upper sections of the building and the investigations were necessarily
preliminary.

Q. I think I asked you the thickness of the concrete floor over the 
ceiling of the lounge ? A. Yes.

Q. And you told me you did not know it ? A. It is on the 
drawings.

Q. 14 inches, isn't it ? A. Oh look here, I do not remember all 
these sizes.

Q. Have a look, will you ? A. 14 inch floor slab.
Q. Would you be content to put a 14 inch slab over a 43 feet opening ? 

30 A. It so happens it spans two ways. I would be prepared to do whatever 
my structural engineer says.

Q. Take the actual span that is there on your lounges. Tell me what 
the other length of the projection span is ? Can you tell me from that 
what is the dimension of the slab ? A. The other way ?

Q. Yes in centres ? A. Centre to centre, 26 feet.
Q. Now, answer me specifically; would you be prepared to span 

43 x 26 feet with a 14 inch slab ? A. If my structural engineer gives 
me the final details in that manner, then I would be prepared to do it.

Q. Have you no opinion on it as an architect ? A. I leave it to 
40 my structural engineer.

Q. That is not the question. Have you no opinion on it as an 
architect ? A. I have no opinion at this juncture.

Q. It does not strike you immediately as an unlikely operation ? 
A. No.
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in the Q. I want to ask you about those ducts   (withdrawn).
Court of New Q. Do you remember saying this was a thin slab structure building 
South Wales you were proj ecting or partly so ? A. Do you mean in the architectural 

Equitable or engineering sense ? 
. unicon. worfj you know what I am talking about
rtefendant's a thin slab construction ? A. A building with a corridor in the middle 

vi^ence. an(j corridors or bedrooms either side ?
E?M. Q- That is a slab structure, you told me before, but I am speaking 

Nichoiis. of a thin slab structure building ? A. You are getting mixed.
Cross- Q. You have never heard of that expression ? A. No. 10 
mina 10 . ^ What do you call the Caltex building ? A. A flat slab.

Q. Well, a flat slab building. Do you say this building was 
substantially a flat slab biiilding ? A. I do not think I used the word 
substantially.

Q. Was it partly ? A. It is partly. It is a transition from the 
present column and beam structure to a flat slab about which, if I 
remember rightly, I said the engineers were still working to make the 
transition more complete.

Q. In the case of a flat slab construction, the slab is taking the place 
of the more conventional beam between the columns ? A. That is 20 
correct.

Q. So I suppose it is essential that the slab goes up to the beam all 
round, makes up with the column   I am sorry, with the column ? 
A. Yes, generally.

Q. I do not suppose you would really pass, a slab construction that 
had a large area uncovered by a slab adjacent to a column ? 
A. Certainly not.

Q. If I could just point out something here before I go on   
(approaching witness)   there is a beam, is there not ? Does 48 
correspond with the one I point to there ? A. Yes. 30

Q. And what is the number of that column there ? A. C24.
Q. Between C48 and C24 there is a beam, is there not ? A. That 

is true, yes. (024 altered to C26.)
Q. There is a beam between those two points, isn't there ? 

A. Yes.
Q. And its dimension is 27 x 18 ? A. Yes.
Q. And it is placed apparently so that the beam is, in my layman's 

language, flush with the Western face of that column, C26 ? A. It is 
really not placed in detail at all. That is only a diagram. The detail 
has not been done yet. 4Q

Q. So I am wrong to assume from these structural drawings where 
the engineer puts it it will be place ? A. Yes. It is purely 
diagrammatic.
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Q. Where, in your opinion, would it be placed in relation to the centre in the 
or the face lines of the columns ? A. I would ask my structural court 
engineer. He would design it consistent with loads. '?<*««*

. »» its
Q. Where do you think now ? Can yoxi tell me ? A. I do not Equitable 

think now. That is why I pay them. " Jurisdiction.
Q. You have got a 4j inch wall there on that staircase ? A. Yes. ^^*'8 
Q. And have you worked out what will happen when there is a beam ^ ^

through there 18 inches wide and 27 inches deep, or vice versa '? A. I E.M.
do not follow what you require. NichollB.

10 Q. If you have a beam there, won't you have to move the staircase ? Cross-
A T i j. j.i   i examination. 

. 1 do not think so.

Q. How much headroom is there in the staircase ? A. We have 
nine feet from floor to floor.

Q. There is a further floor below that floor, is there not, with a 
staircase in it ? There is a staircase below that where there is similarly 
a beam ? A. Yes.

Q. What I was asking you was have you worked out what the head­ 
room was on the staircase below this one was ? A. I think it has been 
worked out. 

20 Q. Do you know what it is ? A. Not offhandedly.
Q. It is very low about six feet '! A. I would not think so.
Q. It would be very bad if it was only six feet ? A. It would not 

be sufficient. Then you would have to change your cross-sections of 
your beams, as does happen, to make that a little broader and a little 
shallower. These are only for tender purposes and not final design for 
structure.

Q. What do you think is the minimum width that can be satisfactorily 
be made with a beam from C26 to C24 ? A. I would ask my structural 
engineer and he would tell me.

30 Q. You must have some idea as to what is the thickest beam you 
could have to get away with ? A. Yes.

Q. There is a limit, isn't there ? A. There is a limit.

Q. And your structiiral engineer starts off with 27 x 18 ? A. Yes.
Q. How much do you think you could get ? A. I think you are 

working round the wrong way. If the beam is too deep and impinges 
on your headroom then you would make the beam wider, not thinner.

Q. If I have a beam in there, lying where the staircase is, it is going 
to project out into the staircase area, is it not ? A. Not necessarily.

Q. Not necessarily ? A. Not at all.

40 Q. When you were planning this, did you take into account there was 
a beam there ? A. Yes.

Q. There would have to be a beam there ? A. Yes, somewhere.
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in the Q. Did you have in mind what its approximate dimensions might be ?
Supreme . - 

Court of New A
8<mfn Yte Us Q- Now I Pomt out if there was a beam there that was 1 8 inches wide, 

would you not agree it would come out when you were half way up the 
gtairg or a little more ? A. I do not agree.

^' ^ou ^° not a§ree ? A- ^"O- Nobody said you have to put 
the beam out there, you must put the beam out this way.

E?M. Q- Out into the corridor ? A. Yes.
Would mean the beam would be sticking out over the edge 

Cross- of the column ? A. It would not stick out over the edge of the column ; 10 
examination. ^ wouj^ impinge into the edge of the other beam.

Q. This is a case of moving the structure around to suit your bedroom 
plan on that beam ? A. No. The beam may be a little eccentric to 
that column. That may be so. It does happen.

Q. You have not thought that out ? A. I have not thought any 
of the structure out, not in sizing.

Q. Well, may I ask you straight out ; will you deny that the beam 
between these two columns will necessitate the removal of that staircase ? 
A. I can neither affirm nor deny.

Q. You are not in the situation to tell me ? A. No, indeed not. 20

Q. And I do not think you are in a position to tell me that it has 
very little headroom ? A. No.

Q. On the turn there ? A. No.

Q. Aren't you very familiar with these plans, which are your 
creature ? Don't you know them well ? A. Perhaps I could say 
again that the drawing of 1954 took two years to prepare.

Q. 1956 it is ? A. I am just saying what I am saying so you get 
some comprehension of the position. These drawings   1956   we had 
three weeks to design them, to draw them, get preliminary structural 
engineer's details and prices, and the thing that pleased me greatly 30 
is that, despite the microscopic small toothcomb these have been 
through, nobody has found anything that has been substantially wrong.

Q. However, is it the fact that because they were put together so 
quickly that you ought to be excused from understanding them ? Is 
that what you suggest to us ? (Objected to : allowed.) A. Yes, I 
can answer that. I do not know every set of drawings that go through 
the office entirely. I have 11 draughtsmen all producing plans and I 
cannot know the intimate details of every set of drawings.

Q. But these are a very special lot, aren't they ? A. That is 
what you told me before and I said no. 4Q

Q. Let me come to these ducts, will you. These bathrooms in the 
bedrooms have got ducts ? A. That is right.
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Q. And some of these ducts are adjacent to columns ? A. Yes, in the
i« ricrht Supremeis rigni. Court of New

Q. And this point that I am pointing to, which is a duct in bedroom Soufn ^les 
19, for example, there is no beam coming up to the column ? A. Yes. Equitable

Q. There is a beam ? A. There is a beam, yes.
Q. And I may take it that the duct is above the beam ? A. It 

could be at the side of the beam.  
Q. What does your plan show in relation to the structural drawings ? E. M. 

Can we tell whether the duct is above or inside or where in relation to Nlcholla -
10 the beam ? A. These plans do not show the setting out of the beam.

Q. With the two together, with the structural drawing, can we tell ?
A. No, because these are only the preliminary diagrammatic set out
of where beams are required and their sizes but eventually, structural
details will position those exactly.

Q. What happens if the engineer insists upon putting a beam through 
where you have got the duct ? A. Well, you will shift the duct or 
shift the beam, whichever is the better.

Q. You contemplate in the amendment of these plans, which you say 
is still progressing, endeavouring to have a flat slab construction for 

20 example, around about bedrooms 18 and 19 ? A. In those matters 
I am guided by the engineer, to his siting it to see how best he can do it. 
If it eventually turns out that he cannot change this completely to a 
flat slab then it remains beam and slab or a combination of both.

Q. So the plans are not sufficiently finished to determine what will 
be done at that area ? A. Structurally, no.

Q. Tell me what is the principle of these ducts ? Are they intended
to run through the building vertically   the sort of duct I was calling
your attention to at bedroom 19 ? A. When you say through the
building, that is an overstatement. They run parallel through the

30 building.
Q. Parallel through the building ? A. Yes.
Q. What is the lowest point to which they would reach ? A. The 

ceiling of the Carrington St. ground floor.
Q. So that your plans provide for a duct and internal shaft running 

from above that ceiling where to   right through the building ? 
A. That has not been worked out.

Q. At any rate, all through the floors you have planned ? 
A. Indeed.

Q. What is the principle of their being used ? Do you have some 
40 au> draught through them either by suction or forced draught ? 

A. You have various things in them.
Q. What is the plan relating to those ? A. These would have air 

extraction from the bathrooms and they would have pipes in them.
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in the Q. Pipes where ? A. Waste pipes, supply water pipes, hot water 
/liew PIP68, miscellaneous pipes.
wales Q You use ducts for plumbing ? A. Essentially, and for small 

ventilation extraction ducts.
extraction ducts from the bathroom ? A. Yes.

Q- And where is the air, according to that plan, to go when you 
  ; extract it from the bathrooms and into the ducts ? A. Through the 
E?M. f&ns on the flat roof at the third floor bedroom levol. 

Nichoiis. Q jjow (joeg ft get £rom tnese vertical ducts to the point where the 
Cross- fan is ? A. The fan can either sit on top of the duct or sit on the roof 10 

examination. an(j combine varying ducts by overhead piping.
Q. Where is that shown on the plan ? A. Not shown anywhere. 
Q. Not shown anywhere ? A. No, not the machinery of the top. 
Q. These ducts are shown on the section BB ? A. Yes. 
Q. These are the ducts here (indicating) ? A. That is right, yes.
Q. And this is the sheet 6 of L (shown). They are not shown 

there as cutting the floors but they are intended to be continuous ducts ? 
A. No.

Q. They are not continuous ducts ? A. Not really because 
structurally it is very inadvisable to have holes through flat plates, so 20 
therefore you put more of a concrete bridge across, such as we are doing 
now at Caltex House.

Q. These are going to carry the plumbing ? A. Yes.

Q. They are going to carry the internal metal ducts ? A. That 
is right.

Q. For the air ? A. That is right.

Q. And all these pipes and so on are going through the slabs at each 
floor level ? A. They go pre-arranged holes in the slabs.

Q. When they get to the roof, the ceiling of the Carrington St. level, 
what happens to them then ? A. Approximately all the sewer wastes 30 
turn approximately at right angles and find their way to the sewer. 
They are the main ones.

Q. Show me where that direction is on that plan, if you can ? 
A. It is really not on this section.

Q. Indicate to me where you mean " on this section " they Avoukl 
go ? A.I cannot. It all depends on the position of the present wastes 
to connect up with the Water Board's sewer and these drawings are not 
sufficiently far developed to show every pipe line in the job. They 
do not purport to.

Q. Are they even developed to the stage where the practicality of 4Q 
taking the plumbing where you suggest has been worked out '> A, Yes.
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Q. Well, show me where practically you would take this plumbing ? /« '/»< 
A. You would have to go to the job and look where the wastes are and c0i^/"A>»< 
you run laterally through the false ceiling in these drops and pick up /?<>««*. Wait* 
and go across to the waste but that, in its details, would take a lot of Equitable 
study which it has not been given yet. Jurisdiction.

Q. You mean that may or may not prove practical, due to what is Defendant's 
there already ? A. No. The contractor's drainage and plumbing Evidence - 
sub-contractor has already taken these plans, walked around the job, NO. 5. 
sized the position up and given their quote based on the practicality of it. Nfpn^js

10 Q. What you mean is he has to say where he will piit his pipes 1  ; 
A. No, he works consistent with the regulations of the Water Board and examination, 
the location of the pipes, in a big measure, are between the plumber and 
the drains inspector.

Q. What happens if the pipes go to a place that is inconvenient from 
the point of view of the building ? A. How do you mean ?

Q. If he wants to run the pipe across the open ceiling or something 
in order to get to where he wants to get ? A. We do what we usually 
do, we have a conference and find the most practical answer.

Q. So this building contract does not specify any control over the 
20 plumber of where he is going to put his waste pipes ? A. Yes.

Q. Where can I find it in the contract ? A. Will you show me the 
contract (shown Exhibit R). There is general reference here under 
" Sanitary plumbing '' which says " pipes where possible are to be 
concealed ..... concealed by false ceilings ''.

Q. That is just a general common specification, isn't it '>. A. It 
means what it says, be it general or common.

Q. Whereabouts do you suggest he could move those pipes if he 
followed this plan, if they come down those ducts, having in mind the 
beams that are there ? A. I have not studied all those individually, 

30 so I cannot tell you.
Q. You cannot tell me whether there is a practical way of putting in 

the plumbing or not 'I A. I can tell you that the plumbing sub­ 
contractor has been all over the job and he has said it is quite practical.

Q. As far as he is concerned, he is not bound to anything at the 
moment is he? A. He is bound to something. He is bound to a price, 
which is a very material thing.

Q. I suppose his price is like the builder's price, after 60 days it 
is open again ? A. It is not very open. With due respect to you, it is 
a very tight contract.

40 Q- When you drew this plan was it drawn so as to conform with the 
requirements of the Chief Secretary and fire brigades 1 A. May I 
answer it my way ?

Q. I would like it my way yes or no ? Was it drawn so as to 
comply with it ? It is a simple question (Objected to.)
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in the HIS HONOR : Q. When the plan was being drawn were all Statutory 
requirements of the three authorities taken into account ?

in its SIR GARFIELD : Q. I asked was it drawn so as to show, by the manner 
Eqmtabie of ^g drawings that their requirements were complied with ? A. I

Jurisdiction. ,°   ,   i iivi ™ • r o , ican answer that positively. The Chief Secretary has no requirements 
^or a building OI" tms height.

Q. By " this height " you mean what ? A. The height we are now 
building.

Q What about the Fire Brigade ? A. The Fire Brigade have 
Cross- requirements. 10

Q. Was it built   drawn to conform with their requirements ? 
A. The drawings were taken to and submitted to fire brigade officers, 
and, to be quite sure of the position, submitted to the Chief Secretary 
after and, although they said they could not give us formal permission 
because it did not come under their purview, they were satisfied with 
the plan.

Q. And the fire brigade ? A. Similarly.
Q. What dimension walls have you got round those ducts that I 

pointed out to you a moment ago ? A. 4|.
Q. 4% inch walls ? A. Yes. 20
Q. Are you telling His Honor that either the Chief Secretary or the 

Fire Brigade said they would be content with 4| inch walls around those 
ducts ? Is that what you are saying 1 A. That is my understanding.

Q. Who was it took them   you or somebody else ? A. No, one of 
the men in my office.

Q. You know, do you not, that that would not comply with either 
the Chief Secretary's office or the Fire Brigades office ? (Objected to.) 
A. To my knowledge, they approved of them. We are building the same 
ducts at this very moment.

Q. With 4i inch walls ? A. Yes. 30 
Q. In a hotel building ? A. No.
Q. I suppose you know there are some variations in their require­ 

ments ? A. Yes.
Q. According to the use of the building ? A. Yes.
Q. And is there not a distinct fire rating of walls which determines 

their dimension at certain positions in a hotel building ? A. Yes.
Q. I want you to assume then, if you know that,   will you tell 

His Honor that these plans comply with those ratings ? A. I am 
sorry, I do not know all the ratings by heart.

Q. Can't you tell us that these plans do apply with the ratings or 4Q 
not, whether you remember them at this moment or not ? A. To 
the best of my knowledge they comply with the ratings.
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Q. And in particular the ducts, and the large ducts, that are shown in the 
towards the Northern end of the building ? A. Generally, I understand
they approve. South

J rr . in its
Q. That is as far as you can go ? A. Yes. Equitable
/~\ mi   j. £ i i i     T i Jurisdiction.Q. This set of plans was drawn under your supervision, I suppose ?  

A Vacs Defendant's . JL GO. -n .,
.Evidence.

Q. Were they checked over by you personally at any stage ? -  
A. As far as time permitted. E.°M.'

Q. Does that mean yes or no ? You did not check them all, or Nlcholls -
10 you did ? A. I did not check them minutely; I did not have time. Cross-

examination.
Q. You made a remark a moment ago that the 1954 plans took two 

years to draw; do you remember saying that ? A. Yes.
Q. You have told me you never saw them before until you began to 

compare them ? A. Yes.
Q. I think you told me you did not discuss them with Mr. Ham ? 

A. No.
Q. You told me you were only associated with them for the very 

limited purpose of doing some work round some bars ? A. That is 
correct.

20 Q. And you were not occupying the same premises as Mr Ham ? 
A. Never.

Q. But you know they took two years to prepare ? A. I have 
been told.

Q. Who told you that I A. Miss Randall of Avroms.
Q. Since this began or before this began ? A. Well, when they 

contacted me as to whether I would produce some drawings, they told me, 
in essence, they were asking me an impossible task ; in fact, she said to 
me something in words something like this   could I do in three weeks what 
their previous architect had taken two years to do and yet save them 

30 £200,000.
Q. Do you realise that this building is being built as an investment 

building so far as the landlord is concerned ? A. I cannot speak for 
his motives.

Q. I suppose you would regard the landlord of a building which was 
designed to be a hotel to be in possession of an investment building, 
would you not? (Objected to; question withdrawn.)

Q. (Showing Exhibit 2.) The representation on the right hand end 
is of two blocks of building on the subject land ? A. Correct.

Q. And quite obviously investments buildings, buildings that 
40 somebody is going to own to let ? (Objected to; allowed.)

HIS HONOR : Q. You have drawn this plan to show, to say the least, 
possible future development, is that so ? A. Yes.
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in the SIR GARFIELD : Q. It is development for investment purposes; no 
fourfoT^'ew one *s gomg *° ^ve in ^ne wretched thing and own it himself, is he ? 
South Wales He is going to let it, that is what you envisage ? A. That is the 

presumption, yes.
^stance between the two blocks internally is what  

Defendant's about 80 feet ? A. That could be right.
  te' Q. So that the suggestion is that the owner of the piece of land
^0-^- which he is devoting to investment purposes, according to you, would be

Nichoiie. well advised to develop it with two blocks 80 feet apart on his piece of
-   land ? A. Yes, that is my iudgment. 10

Cross- J J ° iu
examination. Q. And that 80 feet, so far as you are concerned, is accidental, isn't 

it '>. A. (No answer).
Q. That 80 feet was not planned as a measurement, that is accidental ? 

A. No, that is the result of other things.
Q. If the land, by some chance was 20 feet deeper between Carrington 

St. and George Street, would you still suggest what you suggest there ? 
A. Not necessarily.

Q. But your Carrington St. dimension is determined by the corridor 
and the two bedrooms, isn't it ? A. Yes.

Q. And, as far as possible, you could develop the George St. frontage 20 
the same way ? A. If it were a differently shaped site you would 
consider it from that aspect.

Q. I am assuming it is the same shape. If it were deeper between 
Carrington St. you would have a larger opening in the middle ? A. I 
might.

Q. Are you familiar with investment properties in Sydney and 
Melbourne '? A. Not particularly.

Q. You would not be able to tell us of any site that is developed for 
investment purposes by having two buildings and a large area in between 
them up to 80 feet undeveloped ? A. I can think of none in Melbourne 30 
or Sydney.

Q. I suppose the fact that underneath the site   (withdrawn).

Q. Have you ever seen calculations as to the load which the sub­ 
structure at Wynyard would carry ? A. No.

Q. But have you no ideas yourself, having looked at the columns and 
known their dimensions, what the load would be ? A. No.

Q. Would you be prepared to deny that they are the strongest 
foundations, that is to say, they bear a greater load than any other 
foundations in the city 1 A. I would not know.

Q. You have not computed at any stage the portion of their bearing 40 
load that your super-structure fully developed would represent ? 
A. No.
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Q. And when I asked you when you thought a development in this 1 
matter with an open space was desirable, may I now add to that, assuming Co^ 
the owner had already prepared very substantial foundations which South \ 
woiild bear a building in the intervening area (Objected to). Kgu/uMe

Q. Assume the owner with this land and with the sub-structure Jitrt*iictiim. 
which you know to exist available for use over the whole area of the land, Defendant's 
is it your view that it would still be advisable for him to develop it in Ev«ience - 
the manner you suggest ? A. Most certainly. x<>. 5.

Q. Do you remember I asked you I may not have whether the \icnoiis. 
10 levels of the project building in George Street were the same as the levels - - 

of your projected building in Carrington Street ? examination.

HIS HONOR : He said they would be generally the same, not exactly.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. Do you say they are the same ? A. I say they 
would relate to the George St. building in about the same way as the 
1954 drawings related. Then we had the mix-up about the sections of 
the building. I did not ask you for any comparative statement, I asked 
for an absolute statement. Are they at the same level, that is to say 
your projected Carrington Street development and your projected 
George Street development 'I A. The first floor at Carrington St. is 

20 higher than the existing roof of George Street.

Q. That is not what I asked you. I will give you the opportunity to 
say that. I am asking you whether the levels of the projected 
development as per Exhibit 4 in Carrington Street are the same as the 
levels as the projected development in George St. ? A.I have no idea 
because they have not been thought out.

Q. Look at them on your plan ? A. These are pure diagrams.

Q. You know, don't you, they do not correspond ? A. They 
might not.

Q. Can't you do better than that ? A.I have not compared them.

30 Q- Will you do it now ? I want you to agree with me they do not 
correspond ? A. What you say is quite incorrect, they do correspond.

Q. What is the meaning of the figures on the side which indicate the 
contrary ? Isn't the level at Carrington St. on your second floor 87.08 ? 
Yours has not got the figures on it ? A. No.

Q. Will you agree with me that the level at Carrington St. is 87.08 ? 
You can check this overnight ? A. Yes. T do not agree or disagree 
what is that level.

Q. Second floor, Carrington St., 76.67. And on the third floor, 87.08 
and then on the third floor George Street, 77.82 ? A. I can tell you 

40 now there were no levels ever given by us to George Street.
Q. But you see, those floors have heights we can work those things 

out ? A. You can not. That is where we differ.
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in the Q. Will you say whether you can check overnight whether your third 
^oor °^ George Street, according to the plans and diagrams you produce, 

South Wales is not 77.82 ? A. I can tell you now that there is no way of checking
Emiitabie ^hat because these are diagrams only.

Jurisdiction. Q j)o vou wan^ £O ^gjjg the ngure down or do you want me to take 
Defendant's your answer finally ? You say you cannot work it out ? A. No. 

.v^ence. Q ^^ ^ ^^ ^^ ^^ work it out ? A. No.
E?M. Q- In this 1956 scheme that you produced, you get to two floors of 

bedrooms, do you not, by demolishing the existing structures on the 
George St. front above the first floor ? A. Pardon ? JQ 

examination. Q yOu get two floors of bedrooms on the George St. development 
by demolishing the existing structures from the first floor up ? A. That 
is not correct.

Q. That is not correct ? A. No.
Q. You show here a series of bedrooms ? A. Yes.
Q. First floor up ? Q. Yes.
Q. I suggest to you that you have had to demolish what now exists 

facing George St. in order to fit in those two bedrooms in the scheme 
you offer there ? A. Perhaps T can answer that  

Q. What about my question ? A. Yes. 20
Q. Have you had to demolish something in order to get those two 

bedrooms in floors of bedrooms ? A. No, and they are not floors of 
bedrooms.

Q. Those two floors, whatever they be, they are two floors of ceiling 
height of how much ? A. Diagrams only.

Q. But you have got the total of 150 feet ? A. Yes.
Q. You have worked out how many floors you could get into the roof. 

What is the ceiling height, floor by floor ? A. I would be pleased to 
work it out for you, but not now.

Q. You cannot work it out from here ? A. No. 30

Q. You have got two ceiling floors of some height you will tell us 
about tomorrow ? A. Yes.

Q. Will you deny you would have to demolish something to get the 
benefit of those two floors ? A. I do not deny we would have to alter 
the existing building.

Q. I said demolish ? A. Removing one brick is demolishing it, 
to alter it.

Q. Pulling it right down I mean ? A. Indeed not. 

Q. You deny that, do you ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you see what is pencilled in in my copy of Exhibit 4 in the 40 
first and second floors on the George St. frontage ? A. Yes.
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Q. Do you see a pencil line ? A. Yes.
Q. Will you agree that that represents the existing structure that is 

there ? A. I agree there is an existing structure there but not 
necessarily as per those pencil lines. Equitable

Q. My question is specific to you ? A. I cannot tell you. «
Q. Look at anything you like there. I want you to tell me if you 

can, whether those lines do not represent what exists there today ? - ; 
A. They represent it diagrammatically. E?M.'

Q. Diagrammatically what is there today ? A. Yes, diagram- Nictlolls - 
10 matically. Ooss-

. . examination.
Q. And will you agree with me that the whole of that would have 

to be demolished in order for your scheme to have the benefit of those 
two floors as set out in this Exhibit 4 ? A. You are quite wrong. 
I disagree.

(Copy of Exhibit 4 marked for identification 14.)

SIR GA.RFIELD : Q. You were going to get me the material by which 
you fixed the date when you were thinking about the Eastern Markets. 
What were the things that you looked at to enable you to fix that date ? 
A. Firstly, my own data, when I shifted from NRMA House to Caltex 

20 House I threw away all my data about jobs that were defunct. The 
Eastern Market job was defunct, so I threw the data away, but I am 
trying to get here this morning a letter from my client in Melbourne, 
and we have also rung up the Public Library-  

Q. I asked you the documents that you looked at to enable you to 
tell me the data your own documents, not someone else's documents ? 
A. I disposed of them, and I tried to get supplementary documents.

Q. That is not what I am asking you. So far as your own documents 
are concerned, you have no material that I can look at to show when 
you were thinking about the Eastern Markets ? A. No.

30 Q. You were going to see if you could get your copy of the sub- 
structural plans which you had in your possession when you were 
designing this matter ? A. Yes, that comprised all of this (indicating).

(Document m.f.i. " 15 ".)

SIR GARFIELD: May I look at them at a later stage perhaps in the 
break so as not to waste time ?

HIS HONOR : Yes. They are the sub-structural plans that the 
witness had ?

SIR GARFIELD : Yes.

Q. I forgot to ask you yesterday you were going to calculate out
40 your work for me. How much a square was your basic unit price when

you computed in 1954 or whatever date the original scheme for this
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/» the land was propounded, would have1 cost ? Do you remember that you 
gave me a figure of £4,000,000, and you were going to tell me at what 

South Wales rate per square you got to the £4,000,000 ?
in its

';„_ Mr WALLACE : I think he gave it. "

Defedant1* SIR GARFIELD : No, I do not think he did.
Evidence.

j^7r,_ WITNESS : 1 sat down here one lunch time ar.;l ;.>av!' you a figure of 
E. AI. about £10 per square foot.

Nicholls. r ^

Cross- SIR GARFIELD : Q. I thought you were going to do something more ? 
examination. A. Yes, I did, and I gave you the answer.

Q. That was the answer, £10 ? A. No; there was a second 10 
answer. You asked me what our scheme cost, and I said, :i About £9 
per square foot ".

Q. Then you were going to get what I called the kitchen work '{ 
A. The original list ?

Q. Yes, the material the original list ? A. Yes. (Document 
produced).

Q. May I have a look at that ? A. Yes (handed to Sir Garfield). 
(). This, I take it, is in the handwriting of one of your employees '? 

A. No.
Q. In your own ? A. No. 20
Q. Whose ? A. In the handwriting of an officer of the County 

Council whose advice was sought about the kitchen equipment.
Q. On the basis that it was to be a dining room ? A. Yes.
Q. Or a coffee lounge ? A. A dining room a coffee lounge type 

of dining room.
Q. What type of mechanical washing-up facilities are in this >. 

A. There are none in that because that is cooking equipment, separate 
from the washing-up.

Q. In your plan you showed two sinks one for salad work and the 
other for washing-up ? A. Yes. 30

Q. This is the ordinary domestic size sink, is it *. A. I have 
forgotten what size was shown.

Q. Would you like to refresh yourself ? A. Yes. (Document 
handed to witness).

HIS HONOR : Going back, I have just been looking at the notes 
relating to that £10 per foot: 

" Q. How much per square do you calculate ( A. About £10 
per square foot.

Q. How much does your construction work out per square foot ? 
A. I have not worked it out. 40



Q. Is it possible for you to do it quickly '( A. It is not iittite 
possible for me to do it quickly. I shall do it over the week-end c0 ^"ipr0f"yfll , 
and have it on Monday morning/' ftoutk Wales

. That was at page 68.
Jurisdiction.

Mr \VALLACE : And that was inv recollection. ., ,   r .,Doiendants

SIR GARFIELD : I had a note to ask him yesterday ; that is my note "  
on the pad. I do not remember him telling me the £9 5s. Od.. but he p"^-
has now told me, so it does not matter. Xichoiis.

Q. You have had a look what sort of sink is it I A. Just two ooss- 
10 ordinary sized bowls shown. examination.

Q. Domestic size f. A. Or a little larger than that.
Q. If you sat 100 people down to dine in this place, how many pieces 

of crockery do you think you would have to wash up ? This is a dining 
room for 100 ? A. Yes.

(). If 100 people came in to dine you would have something in 
the order of 400 pieces of crockery ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you think that this single domestic sink could cope with that '. 
A. Most certainly not.

Q. It would not '. A. No.
20 Q. You could not run a dining room, even on your modest conception, 

without mechanical washing-up facilities, could you t A. Of course- 
not.

<). And have you gone into the question of whether this kitchen 
could take the necessary mechanical aid ? A. Yes.

( v). You have, have you '. A. Yes.
Q. When did you go into that ? A. Originally there was ample 

aid for that.
(,). When did you go into it ( A. When we thought of the kitchen 

and went into the size of it.
30 Q. You did not get a price for it ? A. Xo.

Q. You thought, from the beginning, that there would have to be a 
mechanical washing-up device ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you think where you would put it ? A. Not necessarily.
Q. Can vou tell me now where you would put it '. A. No; the 

kitchen has not been planned in detail.
(). That is one of the items that Mr Broadbent of the County Council 

dealt with that was the man. was it not ? A. Yes.
Q. He would be dealing with washing-up devices ( A. Xo.
Q. Do not they deal with washing-up devices t A. We went to 

40 them for the cooking side, and his advice was not sought on the washing-up
side.
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in the Q. Who did you go to on the washing-up side ? A. Nobody.
Supreme „ . . .Court of New (J. What food storage provision have you in the kitchen ? A. Ihe 

8°utiii UsUleS ^OO(^ storage is mostly down below. There is very little food storage
Equitable in the kitchen.
uns^icio . Q rpnere js none, is there not very little; there is in fact none ? 

Defendant's ^ There is some. We could store some food.
Kvidenco.

 ; - Q. I am talking about that you show in the plan ? A. I have not 
E'.J M. shown that, so that you could not determine one way or the other. 

Nichoiis. Q g0 £na.f. vou na(j noj. gOne mt0 the fOO(j storage facilities for a 
Cross- dining room to seat 100 people ? A. Not at this upper level, no, but 10 

examination. tnere js ampie Space down below in the building for it all.
Q. So that every time you wanted something you rushed through the 

dining room down through the guests' lift ? A. No.
Q. How would you manage it ? A. You would manage it in a 

very simple way, that I overlooked the last time you examined me.
Q. What is the simple way ? A. Just next to the kitchen there 

is an existing service lift, only about 8 ft. away. This is an existing 
service lift; it serves the floor below this (indicating), and all floors to 
the basement.

Q. There is no provision there for any access to that lift in the plan, 20 
is there ? A. Can I finish ?

Q. Yes ? A. While these alterations were going on, I remember 
going through the process of reasoning that it would be quite ill-advised 
to stop this lift and leave the Plaza without a lift, so that therefore 
we did not touch that lift within the ambit of this contract, so that the 
arrangement I went through in my mind and determined was that as 
soon as this lift was put in  

Q. Which one ? A. The new one. That could serve the place 
of this lift (indicating), and then they would simply elevate the motors 
and put a doorway through there and there is the lift directly from 30 
the kitchen to serve the chef, the food, and the garbage.

Q. And this was all thought out before I asked you questions the 
other day ? A. It certainly was, because it is a separate thing from 
this contract.

Q. Does this service lift service liquor ? A. From the liquor 
store ?

Q. Yes ? A. Well, to my knowledge.

Q. You have told me that you had thought out that that lift would 
not be interfered with during construction because it was servicing 
the Plaza. What was it that you had in mind that this lift would be 40 
doing in servicing the Plaza during the constructing of this new block ? 
A. The functions that it is now doing, which include bringing liquor 
up from the storage at the lowest level.
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Q. But it does not come up to the level of that lounge ? A. I in the 
think we are at cross-purposes. It serves the existing Plaza building. cour

Q. But that is not on that side at all that is on the George Street *>"£ 
side of the existing Plaza, is it not ? A. No; you are quite wrong. Equitable

Q. Is there anything on the first floor that that lift is servicing __ 
during construction ? A. The first floor of Carrington Street ? Defendant'se e Evidence.

Q. Yes ? A. No. but it serves everything below.  -
Q. So that you thought that it would be ill-advised to show on E. si.

your plan a prospective opening into that service lift and into the kitchen ? Nlcholls'
10 A. Yes, because it would be a separate contract later. Cross-_

Q. What was there to stop that lift being connected to the kitchen 
while the building was being built ? A. Because the moment you 
break into a lift you stop it running, and therefore during the construction 
the Plaza would be without a lift.

Q. So that you thought all that out on the last occasion and it 
escaped your mind ? A. Yes.

Q. And T suppose you made some sketches of it ? A. No. 
Q. Or some calculations about it ? A. No.
Q. So that you have no written data which I could see to check your 

20 assertion that you had thought it out ? A. None at all.
Q. And so you say that that service lift would be available for 

bringing food up ? A. Yes.

Q. And you thought this out, that you would have food storage in 
the basement ? A. Yes.

Q. Whereabouts in the basement were you going to put the food 
storage one question at a time. A. Yes.

Q. Whereabouts in the basement had you thought out that you were 
going to put the food storage ? A. I had not thought out the specific 
spot because there is so much space in the basement. Thousands of 

30 square feet unused so that you could put it where you wished.
Q. Have you thought out how much storage space you wished  

cupboard space that you would need to provide this 100-person dining 
room ? A. I had not put it on paper.

Q. Had you thought it out ? A. Yes.
Q. How much cubic content of storage space do you think you 

would need ? A. You would need a dry store of about ] 2 ft. square, 
and then you would need some refrigerator space.

Q. How much of that ? A. About 25 sq. ft.
Q. You are estimating it as you sit there, are you not ? A. Well, 

40 I am trying to recall the process I went through in my mind.
Q. You are trying to recollect a figure that you thought out before ? 

A. Yes.



Q. Are you trying to recollect a figure that you thought out before, 
w ol &K ^ou ^y^g *° think up one now '. A.I am trying to think out 

South Waits the thought processes I went through some time ago.
Equitable Q. Of course your client was asking you, in your instructions, to 

juriHtttrtioii. fay to prepare a plan with the necessary fittings and equipment for 
Defendant's running a hotel ? A. Yes.

vijsnce. Q ^n(j ^, our ci{en£ get, yOU au Upper money limit within which you
x<>. s. had to keep ? A. Pro rata with the bedrooms.
E. M. L

Xrehoiis. Q. A total money sum within which you had to confine yourself ? 
Cross- -^- ^ total money sum pro rata with the bedrooms. 10 

examination. Q /^j vou woui(j have to confine yourself for food storage and all 
the necessary alterations to enable this dining room to function, within 
that total money sum ? A. In a measure they being so small a,s 
to hardly be a factor.

Q. Did you estimate the food storage ? A. No.
Q. Or the cost of the alterations to enable the kitchen to have 

access to what you say is a service lift ? A. No.
Q. What exactly is the full travel of the existing service lift '? 

A. It serves \Vynyard Lane level, and all floors below.
Q. So that I may take it that the motor of the lift is either at or 20 

lower than the Carrington Street level I A. Xo; the motor is higher 
than the Carrington Street level because you need an overrun.

Q. Where is it in relation to the Carrington Street level ? A. It is 
approximately 10 ft. higher than the Carrington Street level.

Q. And it would not be adequately sited to enable that lift to serve 
that lounge dining room ''. A. No, because there would be no overrun.

Q. Did you go into the question of the cost of taking that service 
lift up any further ? A. No.

Q. Could I see the next floor plan '. Did you make provision in 
the floor plan above to raise the motor 1 A. No. 30

Q. That is a strange thing, is it not ? A. Xo. 1 told you that it 
was separate, apart from this (indicating).

Q. Just lay those plans over one another, will you, so we can see 
where, this lift would be f. A. It would be about there (indicating). 
That corner is that corner (indicating). So that it is approximately 
there (indicating).
Mr WALLACE : May T put a little, red cross there ? 

SIR (URFIELD: Yes.
(Mr Wallace marks plan.)

Q. This roof is over this area (indicating) >. A. Yes. This 40 
(indicating) is the existing old work.

Q. And you make no provision in this for the lift which would have to 
go through it, would it not ? A. In fact it is already above that.
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Q. It would have to go through what is shown coloured there in 
(indicating) ? A. You cannot put it that way, because this already is 
through it and standing above it (indicating). South Wales

Q. You mean that this black work goes up another storey ? Equitable 
A. Yes ; in fact that exists on a higher level. The draughtsmen, in their JunsdKtwn- 
hurry, did not draw this wall here at the higher level. Defendant's

Q. So that this sticks through this and above it (indicating) ?
No. 5. 
E.M.

Q. And it would be necessary to extend it ? A. Yes, that is Nichoiis.
10 true - fro^s"-

Q. And that is not shown on any plan ? A. None at all. examination.

Q. And the cost of lifting those motors and re-siting them has not 
been gone into by you ? A. No.

Q. You know that that is a very expensive pastime ? A. It is 
not an expensive pastime ; it is quite a trifle in the complete cost.

Q. How much do you think it would cost you to uplift those motors 
and re-site them at such a height to give you the necessary lift and over­ 
run ? A. £3,000 or £4,000.

Q. £3,000 or £4,000 ? A. Yes.
20 Q. You say that you would get over the food storage by this device 

with the service lift ? A. Indeed.
Q. This heavy duty range which is shown here of a given number   I 

want you to be precise, if you will, about this. Did you specify, when 
you asked for this information, that you wanted a range that would 
serve hot meals for 100 people   if need be several courses   in this hotel 
dining room ? A. I did not see this man directly, but, as I recall it, 
that was the instruction that I gave to my staff who went and saw the 
man.

Q. You did not see the range of this number ? A. No.
30 Q. You did not know whether it would do this task or not ? A. I 

have not personally checked it.
Q. Have you, at any stage, got the dimensions of these various items 

of plant, and set them out in a kitchen layout to see where they would 
fit and whether they would fit ? A. No, as I told you, we merely 
have the lineal footage, and we find that the lineal footage of this 
equipment, together with other equipment, takes up half the lineal 
footage that we have available.

Q. What other equipment did you go into besides what is on this 
page (indicating) ? A. None other, besides the sinks and benches 

4Q shown all round.

Q. The cost of the kitchen equipment was to be included in the figure 
to which you were to confine yourself in planning ? A. Yes.

(List of utensils for kitchen, m.f.i. " 16 ".)
'38632—4
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in the Q. You told His Honor that you could make the shower recess into 
bath by increasing the height of the hob ? A. Yes.

south Wales Q Qf coursej tte idea of tiled baths  a bath-place made of tiling  
Equitable is completely out of date, is it not ? A. I do not think so. I have

Jurisdiction.

Q' ^ course a lot of us have to put up with things in houses. You 
-   ' know that one of the great troubles is that you cannot keep that hygienic 

No.^5. without a great deal of labour ? A. I have not found that so. It is 
Nichoiis. no different to a shower.

Cross. Q. You think it is modern. I was asking you about these levels JQ 
examination, yesterday. Did you do any work about them overnight ? A. Yes.

Q. You did ? A. Yes.
Q. First of all, what you have drawn on the right hand side of Exhibit 

4 is a diagram of a building to rise to 150 ft. ? A. Yes.
Q. And you have built it taking the ceiling of the first floor to George 

Street as it now exists, as the datum, as it were, and you have built 
above there ? A. Yes.

Q. And all the floors have the same ceiling height ? A. Diag- 
rammatically.

Q. What ? A. That is diagrammatic. 20 
Q. I am only asking you what is here ? A. Yes.
Q. And the level of the Wynyard ramp at George Street, it is the 

ground level of the George Street building, is known and fixed, is it not ? 
A. Yes.

Q. And the level at Carrington Street ground level is known and 
fixed ? A. Yes.

Q. And do you agree, having looked at it overnight, that if one 
takes these known data and takes your floors as drawn, of equal ceiling 
height, they will not correspond with the floors in the Carrington Street 
block ? A. I disagree. 30

Q. You disagree ? A. Yes.
Q. You say that they will ? A. Yes ; they can be made to.
Q. I did not ask you that. I am asking you as shown here, not as 

can be made ? A. Thi^ is a diagram only.
Q. I am only asking you as shown do you think or do you think not ? 

A. Diagrammatically, they do not.
Q. I was asking you yesterday whether, in order to achieve these 13 

floors on George Street as sketched, you would need to demolish what 
now exists above the ceiling of the ground floor or the floor of the first 
floor of George Street ? Do you remember that I asked you that ? 40 
A. Yes.

Q. And I think you told me that you would not have to ? A. That 
is correct.
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Q. See if this is not correct. Put your own tracing away, and we in the 
will have Exhibit 4. (Document handed to witness). You show the c^Tffiew 
existing Wynyard structure on the left hand side of Ex. 4, do you not ? South Wales 
A. Yes. No; on the right hand side. Equitable

Q. Yes, I am sorry. The left hand side as you look at it ? A. No; Jurisdiction. 
that is Carrington Street there (indicating). Defendant's

Q. No; I mean of the whole plan ? A. This is the 1954 scheme ? vi^ence.
Q. Yes ? A. Yes. K
Q. And of that scheme what exists just indicate it as you say Nlcholls '

10 it is on that plan ? (Witness indicates). This is shaded in ? A. Yes. Cross- 
examination.

Q. So that if I put my tracing over that I can get these two marks 
to agree ? I have traced this piece here (indicating). A. Yes.

Q. That is right ? A. Yes.
Q. These points are fixed, are they not (indicating) ? A. Yes.
Q. If I superimpose them, of necessity you must, in order to get 

your floors, cut through them ? A. No.

Q. You do not ? A. No.

Q. How do you get that floor in there without demolishing what 
now exists ? A. Because it would not be exactly there. This is 

20 onty diagrammatic of the number of floors you can get in there between 
this and 150 ft.

Q. You now tell me that you might not be able to get that many 
floors in ? A. I said nothing of the sort.

Q. Could you get those floors in without now demolishing what 
now exists ? A. Yes.

Q. You pledge yourself to that ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember telling me that your 1956 plan in your 
diagram, Exhibit 4 would necessitate some alteration to the new 
existing George Street building, and you made a remark that it would 

30 be no more than the work that was to be done in the 1954 scheme by 
way of alteration of the existing work ? Do you remember that ? 
A. That is in regard to the developing of the whole George Street 
scheme ?

Q. Yes 1 A. I made that remark.

Q. Look at Exhibit " H ". That is the sheet which indicates on 
the 1954 plan the extent of any amendment of the existing work, does 
it not, on the George Street face ? A. Yes.

Q. And the coloured material is the new work, apart from the 
piers ? A. Yes.

40 Q. And that involves some work in the way of 4j inch walls and a 
counter and some other bits and pieces is that right ? A. Yes.
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in the Q. And what you are saying is that to build your 1956 plan there 
^New would be no more alterations to the George Street side of the existing 

South Wales building than appears on sheet 4 ? A. Well, if I have said that I 
Equable have given the wrong impression. (Objected to).

Jurisdiction. Q What do you want to say   that there would be more extensive 
Defendant's alteration to carry out your 1956 plan than is shown on sheet 4 ?
Evidence.

^°- 5- Q. But the continuation of it that you have shown diagrammatically ? 
A. Take the whole scheme developed as I have presupposed. Then,

  one day, this will be abandoned on George Street as a bedroom floor \Q 
examination, and used as an office floor, and then of necessity you would pull out 

all this internal arrangement and use this as office space.
Q. And what about the ceiling height ? A. The ceiling height 

would stay.
Q. I take it that your last remark contemplates that the licence 

would remain on the George Street side ? (Objected to.)
Q. Does your remark to me, as to future development, contemplate 

that the licence would remain applicable to the George Street frontage ?

Mr WALLACE : The question of the licence is a question of law, and 
the Liquor Act provides for half of the building to be licensed, and for 20 
the area to be licensed to be shown on the licence issued by the Court.

HIS HONOR : Yes ; I think the question is admissible on this basis, 
that this witness does not contemplate these bedrooms being part of 
the licensed premises.

SIR GARFIELD : I only know what the witness is saying to us.

Mr WALLACE : Wherever you see a large hotel with shops inside it, 
they are not part of the licensed premises.

HIS HONOR : I realise that. That is a very neat question that arises 
under the Landlord and Tenant Act.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. What do you contemplete there ? A. As I 30 
contemplate it, the steps will be as follows : the new bedrooms will be 
built on Carrington Street, then, at a later stage as determined by my 
client, they would build more bedrooms on Carrington Street and 
abandon the bedrooms on George Street, but in the meantime transition- 
ally they could well use them for staff quarters.

Q. And what is going to happen to any licence activities in the 
George Street frontage on your view   only what I think ? A. In 
my view it would be confined to the ground floor   the George Street 
ground floor level.

Q. You contemplate that the existing bars and dining room would 49 
remain licensed, with an office building above ? A. Yes.

Q. That is your contemplation ? A. That is my contemplation ? 
Yes.
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Q. Yesterday I asked you a question about a 42 ft. or a 43 ft. in the 
span protected by a slab of some thickness of which you were not aware ?
A. Yes. South Wales

Q. And you corrected me, that I had not given you the other Equitable 
dimension ? A. Yes. Jurisdiction.

Q. And then I gave you the opportunity of yourself measuring the 
other dimension ? A. Yes.

Q. And you told me that it was 28 ft. Now, when one is talking E°M.
about the span of a slab, one is talking about the distance that it will 

10 span between beams ? A. Yes, if there are beams.
Q. And if there are no beams, you measure the span up to the exammatlon- 

place where you would get beams ? A. Yes.
Q. Now open up the plan and tell me the other dimension of the 

slab as shown on the plan. Have a look at Exhibit " L2 " (handed to 
witness). Yesterday you measured between " C55A " and " C53A ", 
in their centres ? A. Yes.

Q. And you told me that the slab was 28 x 42 ? A. Yes. In 
that particular I made an error. There is a discrepancy between these 
drawings and the structural drawings. The structural drawings show 

20 columns there which should be here (indicating), and the structural 
drawings omit those which I have. But not one drawing or the other 
is correct.

Q. Do you contemplate having four columns there (indicating) ? 
A. Yes.

Q. Four there ? A. Yes.

Q. I was asking you yesterday, on the assumption that there were 
no columns there, what would the other dimension be. There are no 
beams between " C57 " and " C53A " ? A. I would have to look at 
the engineer's drawings.

30 Q- Here are the engineer's drawings (indicating). This is the area 
that would be applicable ? A. Yes.

Q. So that the beams, as far as he is concerned, come from 51 to 
57   that is the beam on which that slab could lay a load, is it not ? 
A. I think you are incorrect.

Q. Tell me what is the span   the other dimension of the slab 
between the available beams ? A. Between the supports   that is 
29 ft. x 28 ft.

Q. I am speaking of the slab which, according to your architectural 
drawing, is over this area (indicating) ? A. Yes.

40 Q. I put to you yesterday that it was 43 ft. this way (indicating) ? 
A. Yes.

Q. And you said that you did not have that dimension ? A. Yes.
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in the Q. I want to put to you that in lieu of the 28 ft. a proper measure- 
TNew ment °f that slab is something like 80 ft. from here to there (indicating) ? 

South Wales A. No, of course not.
Equitable Q. So that as an architect you would be content to put a slab from 

Jurisdiction. ^ere ^ght across this area (indicating), from " C57 " to " C51 " ?
Defendant's A. Yes.

Thence. Q Tffftfr no intervening beams or columns, 43 ft. wide ? A. No; 
NO. 5. I have not said that.
j^. M.

Nichoiis. Q. Is not that what those plans provide for ? A. As I have 
c^. just mentioned, these plans  10 

examination. Q j am gpeakmg about those plans (indicating) those plans do 
provide for that feature, do they not ? A. These plans on their 
own, yes (indicating). Read in conjunction with the structural drawings, 
which are a counterpart, no.

Q. Do you say that you actually planned to have four columns in 
that lounge ? Did you actually plan that ? A. I will put it this 
way; how many columns is it the function of the structural engineer to 
provide, and if we need that many columns to sustain the structure then 
we will have that many columns.

Q. Did I not ask you yesterday-that your plans would need alteration 20 
when the structural engineer got down to business ? A. I do not 
remember that.

Q. This is what I asked you at the bottom of page 66 of the 
transcript: 

" Q. And of course, at the stage of the actual drawing, a number 
of questions of practicability and so on often arise ? A. Indeed.

Q, Which, not infrequently (Objected to) necessitates a 
re-design of other drawings, architectural drawings ? (Objected 
to.) A. I wouldn't think so.

Q, My question was directed as a general question, that 30 
generally speaking, the experience is that when you get down 
to the structural detail, not infrequently you find you have to 
redesign the architectural {Objected to; allowed,) A, I think 
that is quite wrong. 

Q. Quite wrong ? A. Yes.
Q. It has not been your experience at all ? A. No." 

In point of fact, you are telling me that you will have to re-design your 
architectural drawings ? A. You will have to put two or more 
columns there, yes (indicating).

Q. And that does not trouble you as a feature of this hotel ? 40 
A. No.

Q. How far up will these columns go ? A. They go to the 
underside of the Carrington Street ground floor ceiling.

Q. They are just there to carry the ceiling ? A. That is all.
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Q. That does not trouble you as a piece of design  ? A. No. in the
Q. To put a pair of columns in the middle of a public area just CourT 

to hold up the ceiling ? A. No. 8outh Vale3r t> mitg
Q. Of course, you cannot, with your design, do without 53A and Equitable

K - A o A XT Jurisdiction.55A, can you l. A. JNo. __
Q. Have you, at any stage, tied in the levels of your plan with ^Ideace.8 

the levels shown in the lease ? A. I am not aware of doing that.  
Q. You are not aware of doing that ? A. No. E. M.
Q. So that you are not able to say " Yes " or " No " as to whether __ 

10 there is any correspondence in level ? A. No. I will have to check Cr?S8;.
. , , J , r , -. . examination.

up with those who worked on it.
Q. Do you remember that I was asking you last night what would 

happen to the plumbing that came through ? A. Yes.
Q. And I think you told me that it would be dissipated in some way 

over the ceiling of the lounge  ? A. Yes.
Q. Where that coffee lounge is ? A. That is where the space is.
Q. It comes down to that ceiling, does it not ? A. Well, the 

coffee lounge is only a small part of that ceiling.
Q. I mean the whole ceiling I am not suggesting that it will only 

20 go out over the coffee lounge ? A. No.
Q. But it would get away, according to you, somewhere, using the 

whole of that ceiling ? A. Yes.
Q. How high is that ceiling ? A. I would need the plans again. 

(Plans handed to witness.) Is this the false ceiling or the structural 
ceiling ?

Q. The total available height to the underside of the beams, I 
suppose ? A, That is the dimension 12 ft.

Q. That is to the underside of the beams ? A. To the underside 
of the vault ceiling,

30 Q. So that you are contemplating getting the pipes there 
(indicating) ? A. Possibly.

Q. There is no other place for the piping to go ? A. Yes, there 
is.

Q. Where ? A. Piping can come down the wall and be boxed in.
Q. But what has the builder got to do what is your plan ? 

A. I told you yesterday that these plans are not sufficiently developed. 
The whole of the pipe runs are not set out until a lot of study is given 
to it, and I therefore cannot answer your question.

Q. So that any criticism of them ought to be postponed until they 
40 are finished ? A. Yes.

Q. One of the things that you have told His Honor is that this 
design or plan is suitable for extension up to 300 bedrooms ? A. Yes.
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in (he Q. And you contemplated, according to your instructions, some 
Ttfew extension by another 37 at any rate up to 100 bedrooms in all, at 

South Wales some near future date ? A. Yes, that is true. There have been 
Equable varying schemes.

Jurisdiction. Q Let ug tajfe ft m steps. Of course, when you had 300 people 
Defendant's there the coffee lounge would be a little bit overcrowded would it not ?
Evidence. J^ YeS

E°'I|' Q. And you would need more public rooms ? A. Yes. 
Nichoiis. Q \yhere would you put those when you got the 300 bedrooms ? 
Cross- A. I have not fully designed that, but there are possibilities to put 10 

examination, those at the Carrington Street first floor level, over the present lounges, 
and perhaps absorbing some of the bedrooms there.

Q. It is not unfair to say that when you told His Honor that this 
scheme could accommodate 300 bedrooms, you had not thought out 
the matter in such detail as to be able to justify that statement ? 
A. I had not thought it out, no.

Q. You made a suggestion that the first floor might accommodate 
the public rooms ? A. Yes, that is one way, and extend the ground 
floor level and absorb the coffee lounge in that way at the expense of 
the drinking lounge space. 20

Q. So that you would cut down the drinking lounge space ? 
A. Yes.

Q. Not the bar space ? A. No.
Q. Do you think that you could successfully put public rooms on 

the first floor as you have designed it ? A. Yes.
Q. What is the ceiling height on the first floor ? A. 9 ft. 5 ins.
Q. Do you know sufficient about the regulations in this city to 

realise that they would not stand for 9 ft. 5 in. ceiling height for public 
rooms ? A. No.

Q. You do not know whether they would or not ? A. I could 30 
not speak positively.

Q. However, if you wanted to use the first floor for public rooms 
and dining rooms and so on, you would be limited, on your plan, to 
9 ft. ?

HIS HONOK : 9 ft. 5 ins.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. 9 ft. 5 ins. ? A. No, you would not necessarily 
be at all.

Q. Well, what would you do ? A. Because on the open deck, 
which you would mostly use, you can get a ceiling height of about 12 ft.

Q. What happens to the lighting of the bedrooms if you put a dining 49 
room out there ? A. As I told you before, you would absorb some 
of that run of bedrooms.



105

Q. And you think that you would be allowed to build on that slab ? /» theA. without a doubt.
Q. Have you gone into the dimensions of that slab \ A. No. Soufn 
Q. What is the permissible live weight on those slabs ? A. I am EquitableT i , , , -1 r, T, p ° Jurisdiction.sorry ; 1 haven t that all irom memory. _
Q. Haven't you an idea ? A. About 100 Ibs. Evidence.'8
Q. And are you able to assess the position now, as to whether you No 5

think that that slab, as you have designed it, would carry this live load ? E. M.
A. I could not assist you. N^ls -

10 Q. You could not assist us ? A. No. ^P88:.^ examination.
Q. There is one thing more. You produced the contract, or 

somebody produced the contract here for these 1956 buildings ? 
A. Yes.

Q. Were tenders called at the time ? A. No.
Q. That was the only price obtained then, I take it ? A. Yes.
Q. No other builder's price was obtained ? A. No.
Q. And you negotiated the contract with the builder ? A. Yes; 

it was what was called a negotiated contract.
Q. And this builder is building the Caltex building ? A. Yes.

20 Q. Which is a flat-plate building ? A. Yes, that is correct   
substantially.

Q. Not entirely ? A. No.

Q. Were there any oral understandings with the builder which were 
not recorded in the document ? A. No.

Q. None at all ? A. No.

Q. As to the manner of building, or anything of that sort ? 
A. No ; there has been a discussion, but not an understanding.

Q. What do you mean by " a discussion " 1 That touches what 
he is to be asked to do ? A. Well, this was mentioned before, and I 

30 repeat it again. The builder is anxious, as far as is structurally possible, 
to build a flat-plate structure at the Plaza. These plates can be produced 
at great speed, and as I said previously, the structural engineer has been 
working, since the signing of the contract, to try and transfer this building 
over to more of a flat-plate building than has at present been the design. 
So that if you can call that an understanding, that is so.

Q. So that the builder has been given to understand that what he 
will be asked ultimately to build will be as near as possible a flat-plate 
building so far as its general construction is concerned   is that right ? 
A. Yes ; I think you can put it a little differently to that  

40 Q. What is wrong with my way of putting it ? Is my way of 
putting it sufficiently accurate ? A. No.

 3H032  4A
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In tKe, Q. Well, was lie told that by the time he was asked to build, the 
plans would be so altered that the building would be a flat-plate type of 

South Wales construction ? A. No.
Equitable Q. Was he told that the plans would be altered before he was asked 

Juntxhchon. £o build ? A. He was told that the engineer would investigate the 
Defendant's structural design to see whether it was possible.

Q j£g price was to remain the same ? A. Yes. 
Q- So that his price was given on at least the representation that 

you were going to endeavour to alter the plans to make them as near 
Cro8B. to a flat-plate type of building as possible ? A. Yes. 10 

examination. Q j^^ Q£ course none of that can ke discovered from your 
architectural drawings tendered to the landlord ? A. No.

Q. You show some shops projecting into Wynyard Lane. Do you 
remember this additional work for shops to go into the Wynyard Lane 
area ? A. Yes.

Q. You would agree that in any development of the centre of that 
area the centre of the demised area those shops would need to be 
demolished ? A. I would not think so.

Q. You would not think so ? A. No.
Q. You think that you could develop that centre area and leave 20 

those shops as they are ? A. Yes. In fact these shops are under the 
permanent construction of this site (indicating), so that there is no 
reason 

Q. All right, as long as it is your idea ? A. Yes. 

Re- KE-EXAMINED
examination. , _ /-VIT..ITM ^ ^ • ^

Mr WALLACE : Q. A little while ago you were asked a question by 
Sir Garfield as to whether you had made sufficient investigation to justify 
your statement to His Honor that the plan for 1956 was capable of 
development to have 300 bedrooms do you remember that ? A. Yes.

Q. You answered to the effect that you had not made a detailed 30 
investigation ? A. Yes.

Q. What I want to ask you is, have you made a sufficient study of 
the 1956 plan to justify your statement that it is capable of development 
to the extent of having 300 bedrooms ? A. Certainly.

Q. And are there several ways in which the dining room and lounge 
problem if it may be called a problem in connection with the 300 
bedroom extention, could be dealt with ? A. Yes.

Q. And do you, as an architect of experience, envisage any great 
difficulty or untoward expense in connection therewith ? A. Indeed,

no. ... 40
Q. And have you made your position clear to His Honor that you 

have gone into the 1956 plans with more detail than any development of 
a 300 bedroom accommodation plan ? A. Would you say that again ?
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HIS HONOR : It is an awkward question. I suggest that you reframe in the.
 j_ Supreme 
n- Court of New

Mr WALLACE : I withdraw that question. in its" *"
Q. At all events, you assure His Honor that in your opinion the jurisdiction. 

1956 plans are quite capable of extention to 300 bedrooms ?   
A rt _r   i Defendant's 

. Certainly. Evidence.
Q. With appropriate lounge-dining room accommodation ? No _ g 

A. Certainly. E.M."
/ . Nicholls.Q. This morning you were asked about two extra pillars in the    

10lounge-? A. Yes. exj£ation
Q. To support that concrete slab of 14 inch thickness ? A. Yes.
Q. Would there be anything from a designing viewpoint wrong 

with having say lounge settees around pillars in a lounge of that size ? 
A. On the contrary; it is quite a desirable feature.

Q. You were asked about storage space below the kitchen serving 
your Carrington Street coffee lounge or dining room, and you said  
I was not sure whether it went in the record because some other 
conversation took place at the time but I think you said that down 
below there were thousands of spare feet lying idle ? A. That is so.

20 Q. And would there be more than abundant space to have the dry 
storage and refrigeration space to which you alluded ? A. Oh 
goodness, yes.

Q. And in regard to the extension of the motor site upwards, some 
few feet would be all that would be involved, is that so ? A. About 
10 ft. approximately.

Q. And you have given His Honor a rough estimate of the cost 
thereof £3000 to £4000 (Objected to). A. That could be a little 
high. I said " £3000 to £4000 ". On reflection I think that is a little 
high.

30 (At the direction of His Honor the following questions and answers 
were read from the shorthand notes) : 

" Q. How much do you think it would cost you to uplift those 
motors and resite them at such a height to give you the necessary 
lift and overrun ? A. £3000 or £4000.

Q. £3000 or £4000 ? A. Yes." 
Q. Anyhow, you now think that that is somewhat high ? A. Yes.
Q. As far as you are aware as an architect, is there some complication 

in design involved ? A. No; it is a very simple task.
Q. And you assured His Honor that in the planning stages you did 

40 give thought to the question of raising that service lift ? A. Yes; 
as a matter of fact I spoke to one of the lift firms about the matter, 
I recall now.
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the Q. Do you remember which lift firm it was ? A. Yes, I think 
Elevators. They are doing quite a lot of work for us.

8outintiaales Q. And at all events, whether you thought about it or not, does 
Equitable that lift, in your opinion as an architect, supply the full answer to my 
uns ichon. }earnec[ friend's questioning of you the other day as to what you would

Defendant's do about food coming in and garbage going out, and so on ? A. Yes ; 
vl ence' that is complete answer.
E°M. Q- You have not, during the minute cross-examination of my 

learned friend, on your own plan   (Objected to).

Re- HIS HONOR : Just " cross-examination ". 10examination.

Mr WALLACE : Q. You have not, during the cross-examination, been 
asked any questions with a similar wealth of detail about the 1954 
plans, have you ? (Objected to as not being a question in re-examination; 
rejected.)

Q. Have you any views about the details of the 1954 plans ? 
(Objected to as not being a question in re-examination; pressed.) 
HIS HONOR : If you think that there is some evidence that you wish 
to get, and it is not strictly in re-examination, and if I think that it is 
proper for you to get it, I will allow you to get it, because my view is 
that all relevant evidence in this case gets in, but I think that Sir 20 
Garfield is right at this stage, that it is hardly re-examination.

Mr WALLACE : Q. You were asked to prepare, the other day, some 
figures, or to produce some figures regarding the areas to be occupied 
or taken up by the kitchen equipment ? A. Yes.

Q. And some document went in this morning ?

HIS HONOR : No; it did not go in.
(Document m.f.i. " 16 " tendered and marked Exhibit " S ".)

Mr WALLACE : Q. What does " W.H.D." on this mean (indicating) 1

SIR GARFIELD : " Width, height and depth ".

WITNESS: Yes. 30

Mr WALLACE : Q. Have you also had any other document prepared 
relating to that kitchen equipment, showing the areas occupied and the 
remaining space ? A. Yes; I prepared some suggestions that I 
thought of at Sir Garfield's request, but he did not want them.

Q. May I have a look at them ? A. Yes. (Document handed 
to Mr Wallace.)

Q. In this document, which is dated 8th March 1957, you show  ? 
(Contents of document objected to; pressed.)

Q. What is the lineal footage of space available in the kitchen for 
fittings and for bench tops? A. As I remember, about 65 ft. 40
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Q. And what is the lineal footage of space for the kitchen cooking in the 
equipment as set forth in Exhibit " S " how much lineal footage would courtP
it OCCUpy ? A. 25 ft. South Wales

Q. And does that leave a balance of 40 ft. 6 ins. for workbench Equitable 
tops and sinks ? A. Et cetera. Jurisdiction.

Q. Et Cetera ? A. Yes. Defendant's
Evidence.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Is there any difference between costs of construction No 5
by the flat-plate method on the one hand, and slab and member method E. M.
on the other ? A. Yes; we have found that the flat-plate method Nicho118-

10 is cheaper. Re-
/-\ni-r>-iiii . . .. examination.
Q. bo that if Mr Llewellyn, your construction engineer, in this 

case is successful in achieving a greater measure of flat-plate work, the 
difference between the quote in the contract and the ultimate price 
would be for the owner's benefit ? A. Indeed.

Mr WALLACE : That is not what he told me, but still I do not mind.

HIS HONOR : That does not follow.

Mr WALLACE : He said the opposite.

HIS HONOR : He said that the contract price would remain the same.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Did you say that the contract price would remain 
20 the same ? A. If I did, I said it in error.

HIS HONOR : Q. You said it ? A. I am sorry. I said that in error.

Mr WALLACE : If I had known that I would have put my question 
differently.

HIS HONOR: The witness definitely said it, because I remember 
noting it mentally.

(Copy of instructions from Avrom Investments Pty. Ltd. to 
Mr Nicholls, dated 8th June, 1956, tendered.)

SIR GARFIELD : I do not mind as long as the originals are kept in 
their present condition.

30 HIS HONOR : Q. You understand that you have undertaken to keep 
the original document ? A. Yes.

Q. You undertake in Court to preserve it in its present condition ? 
A. Yes.

(Copy of instructions from Avrom Investments Pty. Ltd. to 
Mr Nicholls admitted and marked Exhibit " 7 ".)

Mr WALLACE : Q. The instructions were as regards costs not to exceed 
£300,000, including building furniture but excluding other furnishings, 
and the requirements included a requirement for 63 bedrooms with 
ancillary services ? A. Yes.
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in the Q. It was designed for 75 bedrooms and at a cost which considerably 
Ne«, exceeded £300,000 ? A. Yes.

8°Uin te^ Q- Di.d tnat meet with y°ur client's subsequent approval ? 
Equitabk A. Yes; it was increased pro rata substantially.

Jurisdiction. „ a . . TT-II-I-
   (j. bo that in the result, reading Jiixhibit 7 with your subsequent 

Defendant's verkal instructions were they verbal when you agreed to the
Jividence. .... ,.-'... A -*-r • ••
   75 bedrooms, or was that in writing ? A. Not in writing.
E. M. Q. Reading Exhibit 7 with your subsequent verbal instruction, 

Nichoiis. it amounted to this, that you were authorised to design the immediate
Re. erection of 75 bedrooms at a cost of something of £400,000 ? A. Yes; 10 

examination that was upon the representations of my client.

HIS HONOR : It was £420,000, was it not ? 

Mr WALLACE : Yes.
Q. Something has been said or indicated by Sir Garfield with regard 

to the area of the site which your design covers ? A. Yes.
Q. Is it your opinion in accordance with modern architectural 

planning to occupy the whole site when a building of a commercial 
type or this type of building is required ? A. Certainly not.

Q. Do you have photographs there of some modern buildings, showing 
the modern practice of using only a portion of the site ? A. Yes; 20 
I have collected photographs.

Q. They are in America, are they ? A. Most of the buildings ? 
Q. Yes; the photographs that you have ? A. Yes.
Q. Can you tell me of any construction of buildings in Sydney at 

present on valuable sites which do not occupy the whole site area ? 
A. The ones that I know are I.C.I., Melbourne; M.L.C., North Sydney  
what is the new one down at the Quay on the right-hand side ?

HIS HONOR: Q. Lever Bros.? A. Yes, Lever Bros.; and Caltex 
House.
Mr WALLACE : Q. And of course the 1954 plans were not designed to 30 
occupy anything like the whole site, either ? A. No.
Mr WALLACE : Q. I think I.C.I, in Melbourne only occupies about 
60% of the site, does it not ? A. I have diagrammed that, which 
show it exactly. I think it might be even less than that.

Q. Is the modern trend away from the solid block or the lightwell 
type of building occupying the entire site, or substantially the entire 
site and going to the narrow slab type of building occupying only a 
portion of the site ? A. That is the modern trend in many buildings 
around the world.

Q. Does that gain better light and air, the modern tendency ? 40 
A. It gains better light and air and the better light and air is preserved 
for all time.
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Q. Under modern methods of constructions is it also considered In 
cheaper to build up narrowly to a height ? A. Yes.

Q. It is cheaper to build to a height these days than it used to be, (SoM*
is that the position ? A. Yes, and it is cheaper to build to a height Equitable
than to spread in bulk in a city building. Jurisdiction.

Q. It is you or Mr. Bunning who has a photograph, by way of ^^ence'8 
example, of the United Nations Building on the Hudson River ?    
A. That is Mr. Bunning. I have others. ™?-£

Q. And you have photographs here in this folder which I show NichoUa. 
10 you ? A. Yes. "iT

Q. I hand you the folder. Will you indicate to His Honor which exammatlon 
you refer to as illustrating this point ? A. The whole of this latter 
bracket of photographs, commencing with the I.C.I, in Melbourne.

SIR GARFIELD : Very little of this arises out of cross-examination' 
This is all fresh.

HIS HONOR : I know.

SIR GARFIELD : I would respectfully submit 

HIS HONOR : I think you are right, but I will allow Mr. Wallace to 
ask it.

20 Mr WALLACE : Q. First of all, you see a building shown as I.C.LA.N.Z. 
in Melbourne ? A. Yes.

Q. Does that show occupation of only part of the site ? A. Yes.
Q. And of a building of the thin slab type ? A. Yes. It shows a 

comparison between a building with a surrounded lightwell and a building 
of the slab type with no light well.

Q. What is the next one ? A. The Chase Manhattan Building 
in Wall St., near Wall Street.

Q. Wall Street is notorious for the height of buildings going straight 
up from the footpath, is it not ? A. Yes.

30 Q- A high type of old building ? A. Yes, and very expensive 
land.

Q. And the modern building design shows this Chase Manhattan 
Building standing well back and occupying portion of the site, and 
of the thin slab design ? A. Yes.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. Is there a space index system in operation in 
Wall Street ? A. I do not know. I think not.

Mr WALLACE : Q. I turn now to the next one, the Chicago Greyhound 
Bus Terminal, is that so ? A. Yes.

Q. Another illustration of this point ? A. Yes.
40 Q. The rest of the book also contains photographs of modern buildings 

of this type built on portion of the site ? A. Yes.
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in the Q. And here is a photograph (indicated) of Lever House in New York,
is that BO ? A - Yes-

Q. In your cross-examination you were asked from time to time 
Equitable questions about the centre arrangement on the pillars on the subject 

jurisdiction, property ? A. Yes.

Defendant's Q ^n(j now on the outside of the centre on each side there were some
Evidence.

much stronger pillars than those in the centre ? A. Yes.
E?M.' Q- And Sir Garfield put to you that was to provide for planning 

Nichoiia. whereby somewhere about the 4th floor, very large trusses were to be
^7 put across these outside strong pillars and which would support the 10 

examination, ballroom with uninterrupted space, uninterrupted that is to say by 
pillars ? A. Yes.

Q. And the trusses to be 80 feet long, I think ? A. Yes.
Q. And a figure of 12 feet in depth has been mentioned to you by 

my learned friend ? A. Yes.
Q. I want to ask you this as an architect, is that in your opinion 

an acceptable type of planning for this type of building according to 
any modern standards of architecture ? (Objected to; rejected.)

Q. Could that be considered in your opinion as a satisfactory modern 
design of architecture for a building of this type ? (Objected to; 20 
allowed subject to relevance later.)

Q. What do you say to that ? (Answer struck out by direction 
of His Honor.)

Q. What do you say, is that satisfactory ? A. No.
Q. With regard to the cost of such architectural planning, in your 

opinion would the cost of such a design be of an excessive nature, having 
regard to the results to be achieved ... A. Quite excessive. 
(Objected to; allowed.)

Q. What do you say with regard to the cost of such a design, to 
have an 80 feet truss, 12 feet deep or a series of 80 feet trusses 12 feet 30 
deep, four floors up, do you offer any comment on the cost of constructing 
such a design ? A. I would think it would be economically unsound.

Q. Have you yourself ever designed such a length of truss for 
commercial or other buildings ? A. I had experience once with a 
wide truss, but to take no superimposed load such as these trusses 
would have to take, and even that truss to carry one floor with that 
little load was terrific. When you add the superimposed load of the 
building it would be fantastic.

Q. Would you give me your opinion as to whether on this site for 
this type of building such a design would be favoured by you or not ? 40 
A. Not.

Q. You were asked about portion of the projected or developed 
completion of your 1956 plan being the portion which is stepped in from 
the eighth floor upwards over a width of 80 feet ? A. Yes.
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Q. And you pointed out that the width of that stepped-in portion /" the
, f i .,„ Jf. , % . -rr rr r Supreme

would be 28 feet ? A. Yes. Court of New 
Q. I think yesterday Sir Garneld was asking you questions as to °\i««aes 

whether that portion could be satisfactorily used or whether it otherwise Equitable 
conformed with the general planning of the completed building. Do urî _ton - 
you remember some questions to that end ? A. Yes. Defendant's
J ... . Evidence.

Q. I think you indicated to His Honor that details of course had    
not been gone into ? A. No. E°'M.

Q. I want to ask you this general question, is there any reason NlchoUs' 
10 after you have listened to Sir Garfield's questions and given your answers Re- 

why you should think that the stepped-in portion could not be fully examination- 
useful and correct designing ? (Objected to.)

Q. From an architectural viewpoint ? (Objected to.)

HIS HONOK : As I understand it, he has already said although he has 
not given attention to any details he has no doubt in his mind that it 
can be usefully used. He cannot take it any further than that, Mr 
Wallace.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Can you offer any example of the way in which 
it might be used, without committing anybody, just as an illustration ? 

20 Can you give me just one illustration of how it could be properly and 
efficiently used ? A. Yes. I could give you two illustrations.

Q. What are they ? A. Instead of it being used just as a 
bedroom suite, it could be a bed-lounge suite of a larger dimension.

Q. On those upper floors ? A. On the upper floors, or 
alternatively you could replan your suite a la the Swedish fashion and 
elongate it and get some in your width.

Q. That is the Swedish planning, is it ? A. They tend to plan 
that way.

Q. Then you were asked about the two feet encroachment on that 
30 Northern end of your Eastern side of the Carrington St. building, is 

that correct ? A. Yes.
Q. Have I correctly positioned it ? A. Yes, the North-eastern 

corner.
Q. If you brought the wall in by two feet, what would be the 

consequences ? A. The consequences practically would be nil.
Q. Something would have to be done ? A. Yes.
Q. What would that detail be ? A. The only element that is

changed is an escape stair which previously was over-size in the landings
and we simply shrink the landing to bring it down to normal size and

40 take out the protrusion and everything else remains the same, for which
purpose I made a plan showing it.

Q. Overnight 1 A. Yes.
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S«TO H?S HONOR : Q. Did you not have it yesterday ? A. I have had 
Court of New this with me, yes.
South Wales 

in its
Equitable Mr WALLACE : Q. You had that with you yesterday, did you ?

Jurisdiction.

Evidence." Q- When did you make that ? A. The same evening as I  

N°- 5- Q. The question was originally asked last week apparently ?
A.. Yes. (Handed to Mr Wallace.) We, in error, drew those two lines

  through there (indicating). They should have been here. The whole 
examination. OI> that remains constant the two landings are shrunken to normal size.

(Plan of scheme to remove encroachment, Exhibit 8.) 10

Q. How many floors that that pertain to ? A. This is from the 
Carrington St. level upwards.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. All floors above ? A. All floors above.

Mr WALLACE : Q. The next matter is this, you were referred to 
what I described as a tiny duct preserved from the lease which appears 
to go through your lavatory block ? A. Yes.

Q. That is shown in one of the sheets of Exhibit L2 ? A. Yes.

Q. What is the size of the duct, can you inform the court ? 
A. From memory it is about 3 ft. some inches, by 4 ft. some inches.

Q. And it is a fact that it goes through your lavatory as designed ? 20 
A. Yes it goes through one of the W.C.'s at the Carrington St. level.

Q. What do you say about that and what are the consequences ? 
A. The consequences are that we lose one W.C. and we would have to 
replan this little sector to gain it in another position, but the sum and 
substance would be within this same little area, less the duct, we would 
have the same toilet facilities.

Q. Is it a matter in your opinion of an appreciable consequence ? 
A. Not at all.

Q. By the way, speaking generally, is it infrequent for architects of 
original drawings or designs to require some amendments as the progress 30 
of the work takes place ? A. I would have to answer that this way, as 
I originally answered it to Sir Garfield, if the instructions are clear and 
you go ahead with the work undisturbed, then there are not usually 
amendments. When drawings are done at great speed such as when 
we did these, then amendments are often inevitable.

Q. How many draughtsmen were working on these plans ? A. I 
had 11 simultaneously.

Q. Working on this preparing this exhibit ? A. Yes.
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Q. Is there anything unusual or abnormal about the expert in the 
structural engineer checking or amending the architect's design so as o0f^ 
to make it more structurally sound ? Is there anything unusual about South Wales 
that? A. No. ,£&.

Q. Is that one of the reasons why the structural engineer comes in Jurisdiction. 
and goes into detail ? A. Yes. You could explain it another way, Defendant's 
that ordinarily the architect makes his sketches, submits them to the Evidence- 
structural engineer who presents his considered thoughts and then the NO. 5. 
sketches are modified accordingly. In this building we had no time wi&o'Ua 

10 to go through those stages and things were proceeding concurrently,   
working drawings and structural engineers and then conflicts came into exan^~ation 
being.

Q. When you say working drawings, do you mean working drawings 
or structural drawings ? A. I mean this exhibit which, to a stage, 
were working drawings.

Q. Did you tell His Honor why you stepped back the bedroom floors 
from Wynyard Lane ? A. Yes. The reason was that I took as a type 
of modern hotel building and you start on the park side, Wynyard Lane, 
then you measure the dimension of one bedroom, then your toilets, 

20 then your corridor, then your toilets, then your bedroom and the product 
brings you some distance from Wynyard Lane which was left open.

Q. You told Sir Garfield that you could get the same number of 
floors shown on Exhibit 4 without demolishing the existing George Street 
building ? A. Which is Exhibit 4 ?

Q. The one on which I drew a red line across and you stressed that 
was diagrammatically only (handed to witness) ? A. Yes.

Q. Can you explain to His Honor why you can get the same number 
of floors as shown on Exhibit 4 without demolishing the existing George 
.St. building ? A. Yes. It is simply a matter of mathematics. If you 

3Q work from the top downwards you would have a gross height of 150 feet 
from George St. Then if you take 11 floors, being 9 feet 8 from floor 
to floor, that is 9 feet ceiling height plus the 8 inch slab, that gives you 
106 feet. Then if you measure from George St. upwards to the top 
of the present slab that is 30 feet 6. So you have a difference of 13 feet 2 
for the extra floor consistent with this diagram which has to be fitted 
between the top 11 and the room existing, and that 13 feet 2 is in excess 
of the 9 feet 8 by sufficient to adjust your floor lines to conform with the 
floor levels of Carrington Street.

Q. Will you look at these two documents I show you. Do they in 
40 any way help you to answer Sir Garfield's question as to the date when 

you did some work or planning in connection with the Melbourne project, 
the markets ? A. Yes.

Q. What are those documents ? (Objected to.) 
Q. What are those documents that you have ? (Objected to; 

rejected.)
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in the Q. Those documents do refresh your memory, do they ? A. Yes. 
Q- Now what date do you say it was that Sir Garfield was asking you 

South Wales about when you did some work on the Melbourne markets project ? 
Editable A. Prior to 9th September, 1955. (Objection by Mr Wallace to Sir 

Jurisdiction. Garfield seeing documents. His Honor ruled Sir Garfield entitled to 
see them).

Evidence. gIR QARFIELD : Q. (By permission). As to some of the photographs 
NO. 5. you were shown by Mr. Wallace, they are not photographs of buildings 

a^ au' aPParently, they look like models. May I take it that you or your 
staff have combed through all the available journals, architectural 10 

examination journals and trade building journals to get illustrations of buildings built 
in various parts of the world upon less than the total available area of 
land ? A. My staff looked through fairly recent journals.

Q. As many as they could lay hands on ? A. I would not say 
that.

Q. You will agree that this compilation here has been a case of 
putting your best foot forward to give us illustrations of what you are 
speaking of. You have done your best to get as many illustrations as 
you can ? A. I would not say that. I think that is a fair 
representation of modern buildings. 20

Q. I did not ask you that. Does this represent the best, the greatest 
number you were able to get together ? A. No.

Q. Were there others and you have discarded them ? A. We 
did not search as assiduously as you said.

Q. And you put forward the Chase Manhattan building in this as an 
illustration of an owner who has deliberately utilised merely part of 
his available land for the benefit of light and air do you ? A. Yes.

Q. First of all, you know that New York city has a space index 
system which requires the buildings to step back as they go up ? 
A. Yes. 30

Q. And the effect of the space index system is to fix a height limit 
in relation to any given block of land ? A. That is the practical 
effect.

Q. And you know from the letterpress with this illustration, do you 
not, what happened in this case was that architects found that by building 
on a portion of the land without restriction as to height limit they were 
able to get more space than if they built over the whole land and conformed 
to a space index system ? A. Yes.

Q. So that the utilisation of part of the land in that case was simply 
to get more available space for letting ? A. I would not agree with 40 
that.

Q. Does it not say so in the letterpress ? A. That is one factor.
Q. Just look at the letterpress. Is there anything said there about 

getting light and air ? A. There might not be but that does not mean 
it could not have been a consideration.
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Q. But the whole panegyric is devoted to the ability to get more in the 
space by building on a smaller area of the land than if one built on the court 
whole area and stepped back. You will agree that is the whole point South Wales 
made in the letterpress, will you not ? A. As far as it goes, yes. EmMie

Q. As far as what goes ? A. The letterpress. Jurisdiction.
Q. Have you got the rest of it ? A. No. Defendant's
^ J & . . Evidence.
Q. You took Chicago as the next one. This Chicago terminal is   

said to have been built down in the loop area. Do you know where that E°k5
is in Chicago ? A. Yes. Nic'hoiis.

10 Q. Where the overhead runs around ? A. Yes. Re-
Q. It is a particularly dense little area ? A. Yes. examma ion.
Q. And you do not know what various reasons the designer had for 

using this particular type of structure ? A. No.
Q. In that special site ? A. No.
Q. And the next one you show is a railroad site in Boston, apparently 

and again I suppose you do not know what local conditions caused what 
was designed ? A. No.

Q. The next one is the Parelli building at Milan, which is apparently 
a model ? A. Some scheme.

20 Q. You do not know whether it has been built or anything ? A. I 
think it has not.

Q. Take the case of the Lever building in New York. You know 
that too was built because of the space index difficulties. They get more 
space by stepping back in one line than if they had attempted to go 
back in steps ? A. I had not known that and I doubt it.

Q. What material have you got on which to doubt that statement ? 
A. Because I think you could build a much taller building in New York 
than that.

Q. You mean with a space index ? A. Yes, simply by judging 
30 the other buildings which have been put along Park Avenue which are 

higher.
Q. With space index ? A. Yes.
Q. The next one is the Carnegie building in New York is it ? 

A. Yes.
Q. Do you know anything of the site where it is '? A. No. 

Perhaps if you showed it to me I might.
Q. That building has been built to house, apparently, some part of 

the Carnegie Foundation offices ? A. Yes.
Q. Specially built for their purposes ? A. I do not know the 

40 facts as well as that.
Q. The one in Havana, again I suppose you do not know what are 

the particular' reasons for building this Havana building ? A. No.
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same ^s ^rue °f Prudential of New York which is a 
Court oNew building of no very great height considering what you find in Los Angeles,
8°Ufn Us^3 *S ^at ri^ ? A< Jt St^ kaS t0 d° W^tn S*te coverage and C0st - Tne

Equitable base of the whole scheme is that you have a building not too thick.
Jurisdiction. . . , . . ,

Q. Of course, you realise that an owner in a particular site might 
^ave no use ^or a building above a certain capacity ? A. He might 

   not.
E.'M.' (Book of photographs from what is called I.C.I.A.N.Z. Melbourne, 

NichoUa - to the latter end of the book; Exhibit 9.)
Re- 

examination. -»T s- 1 r\No. 6 10 
No g Evidence by H. A. Llewellyn.

Llewellyn TO Mr WALLACE : I am a chartered engineer and an Associate Member 
Examination, of the Institute of Engineers and an Associate of the Sydney Technical 

College.

Q. Have you been engaged in the profession of structural engineering 
for the last 23 years ? A. Yes.

Q. Were you up to about 10 years ago chief engineer for Trust 
Concrete and Steel Co. Ltd.? A. Yes.

Q. Have you been in partnership in a firm known as Stanley & 
Llewellyn, the other partner, Mr. Stanley, having died a few years ago ? 20 
A. That is so.

Q. Have you been in partnership since then ? A. Yes. The 
firm name was carried on with another junior partner.

Q. Has your firm been responsible for the solution of structural 
engineering problems in a number of large structures ? A. Yes.

Q. Would you be good enough to give His Honor some illustrations ? 
A. On City building, the Berger House, Caltex building, Phoenix 
Insurance building, and at present working on a new multi-storey hotel 
at King's Cross.

Q. What about the Shell building ? A. That was in my previous 39 
firm, not this present partnership.

Q. And other large buildings elsewhere ? A. In Melbourne and 
jn Brisbane, yes.

Q. What is this multi-storey hotel at King's Cross ? Where is that ? 
A. It is in Springfield Avenue.

Q. Are you the structural engineer for that building ? A. Yes.
Q. What stage has that reached ? A. The revision stage. It was 

designed, estimates taken out, proved slightly too costly and the architect 
is now revising his plans to slightly reduce the building.
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Q. It is part of your professional duties, routine work in connection in the 
therewith, to examine the original architect's drawings and designs and 
advise as to whether they need amendments from the constructional South Wales 
point of view, from the design of strength and stability ? A. Yes, Equitabk 
it usually starts earlier than that with the architect getting us in Jurisdiction. 
conference, he having a germ of an idea, producing a sketch plan and then
asking us would it work, and the scheme is really evolved together. Evidence.

Q. Going somewhat out of my order of questions, I want to ask you NO.JJ. 
at this stage something about the 14 inch concrete slab which is over the Llewellyn. 

10 lounge room and other rooms on the ground floor of the Carrington St. Exan~ti 
level in this 1956 design ? A. The slab over the ground floor, at first 
floor level ?

Q. The concrete slab ceiling or roof to the lounge. In your structural 
drawings you show supporting pillars in a somewhat different position 
from those shown in the relevant sheet of Exhibit L2, that is to say, 
the architect's drawings. I show you the exhibit ? A. I think that 
is one of those things that came out of the terrific rush to get both 
architectural drawings and structural drawings completed on this 
particular scheme.

20 Q- Will you show His Honor and Sir Garfield what you are speaking 
about ?

SIR GARFIELD : I do not know what this rush is you are talking about. 
You have had since last July.

(Plans previously m.f.i. 10 now Exhibit 10 (1), (2) and (3).)

Mr WALLACE : Q. Taking now sheet 1 of Exhibit 10 and using also 
sheet 3 of Exhibit L2, will you explain to His Honor what has taken place ? 
A. C53A and C55A are new columns which go down through the Eastern 
face of the Carrington St. building and are carried on two heavy concrete 
beams between columns 30 and 55, 28 and 53, but in order to support this 

30 roof section as shown in our structural drawing marked 1 , it was necessary 
to continue the original columns 53 and 55 up to the first floor 
level and that is why they actually appear on structural drawings.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. Does 55A and 53A appear on the structural 
drawings ? A. No. The strange thing has arisen   as a matter of 
fact since these drawings were prepared we have been continuing on 
with our detail drawings and you can see where the engineer working 
with them has pencilled on them. This is again part of the rush and 
tear to get them out. Those two columns, if both these drawings were 
complete, 55 would appear approximately there (indicating), 53 would 

40 appear approximately there (indicating) and in our drawing of this floor 
C55A would appear there and 53 A would appear there (indicating). 
They would be picked up on the detailed sheets.
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in the Q. You as an engineer draw what is below the floor, whereas the 
architect draws what is above it ? A. That is usual.

Wales WQuld not be gticking up through the floor ? A. No.
Q' Would y°u mark them for us ? A. (Witness marks on sheet 3 

of Exhibit L2, the position under the ceiling of columns 53 and 55). 
Actually, they would be on another drawing below this.

   Q. Would you locate them for us from an architectural point of 
H°'A.' view ? A. I refer to sheet 2 of Exhibit L2. Column 55 would appear 

Llewellyn, there (indicating). As a matter of fact, I recall now I rang Mr. Nicholls 
Examination, to mention this to him in the rush and bustle and I was worried as to 10 

whether these columns would affect his margin and he looked at the 
plan while I was on the phone and he mentioned he could easily incorporate 
this one into this one (indicating). He intended, I think, swinging this 
part out (indicating),

Q. Would you line them exactly ? A. (Witness draws in columns 
53 and 55 on sheet 2.)

Mr WALLACE : Q. Going back to sheet 3 now, they come up and stop as 
the support   A. Come up and support that (indicating).

Q. Come up and support the roof ? A. Yes. 
Q. Does that give a satisfactory structural support for that roof ? 20 

A. Yes.
Q. No doubt about that ? A. No question about that.
Q. We know of course that you were the structural engineer whom 

Mr. Nicholls consulted ? A. That is right.
Q. At what stage did you come into the matter ? A. With 

Mr. Nicholls ?
Q. In connection with this 1956 plan, when was the first that you 

knew about it ? A. May I refer to my diary ?

HIS HONOR : Yes.

WITNESS : The first calculation sheet is dated 13th June 1956. It may 30 
have been a few days earlier than that when we consulted together.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Were you also conversant with the 1954 plans ? 
A. Yes.
Mr. Stanley had died just before the completion of the structural design 
and I had to take over the completion of that design and prepare the 
final documents for tender.

Q. You spent some time on the 1954 plans did you ? A. Yes. 
Mr. Stanley died in June 1955 and I think tenders were called somewhere 
about April 1956, so I was working on them during that interval. Mr. 
Stanley, of course, had discussed the 1954 scheme with me on numerous 40 
occasions while he was working on the job.
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Q. So you are quite conversant with the 1954 plan as well as the in the 
1956 plan ? A. That is so.

Q. The walls in this 1956 building, do they carry any load at all ? 
A. No. It is what we know as a drum building, in which the walls are Equitable 
purely used in filling the openings between the floors and the columns. Jurisdiction.

Q. So if at a later stage, in development in years to come, it were Defendant's 
desired to have access to, say, the Eastern wall at any floor, would that V-_ 
be a comparatively simple matter ? A. Quite simple. The whole of NO. e. 
the Eastern wall could, in effect, be demolished without affecting the Llewellyn. 

10 stability of the structure.
Q. I want to ask you straight away, does the 1956 plan in 

your opinion in any way interfere with the use of a big truss 80 feet in 
length or a series of trusses about which we have heard earlier and which 
you know about  A. Yes.

Q. Does that 1956 plan interfere with any person who might be so 
desirous as to want to put 80 feet by 12 feet trusses on the 4th floor level ? 
A. No, not at all.

Q. Not at all ? A. Not at all.
Q. Does the 1956 plan interfere or prejudice the use of pillars 

20 presently existing there at any future time if anybody might be so 
desirous ? A. You mean the pillars beyond the confines of this ?

Q. Yes ? A. No. The only limit is the residual carrying capacity 
of the columns. On any scheme that is the only limit.

Q. I asked you about column 51. Can you call to mind without 
reference to the plans which is column 51 ? A. Yes.

Q. That is the big one ? A. Yes.
Q. Has that been extended or planned for extension in the 1956 plan ? 

A. It is used in the 1956 plan. The extension is actually expected, on 
the site, to amount to an extension that would be used and that has 

30 been used.
Q. Would that extension be of sufficient strength to take this portion 

of the trusses, the big trusses, to which I referred, if it were further 
extended ? A. Yes.

Q. There has been a suggestion made in cross-examination, suggesting 
that it is not. You do not agree with that ? A. I requested a check 
last night but I was sure of it and I am doubly sure now.

Q. You were sure last night and you made a check and you are doubly 
sure now ? A. Mr. Stanley investigated all the columns for the 
original 1954 scheme and that came under check at that stage. In 

40 trying to complete the job we had largely carried on from that and assumed 
it was right. I have a letter in the office files which I have here. It 
says column 51 is capable of carrying the trusses, amongst other columns 
and also our calculations on this 1956 scheme since show that it is quite 
ample to carry the load.
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in the Q. Generally, from a structural engineer's viewpoint what do you say 
Ttfeio °f the 19£>(5 plan, from a constructional viewpoint ? By that I mean 

South Wales how would you comment on them from the point of view as to whether 
EquMh they are clean °r clear, straightforward or difficult or offer structural 

Jurisdiction, difficulties ? A. The whole problem of the Plaza Hotel was the 
Defendant's cen^ral core of weak columns so any plan which avoided that central 
Evidence, core must of necessity from the structural engineer's point of view be a 

j^~jj better one than the one over it, and therefore we think that any scheme 
H. A. which builds over the perimeter columns and the 1956 one used that 

Llewellyn. permieter facing Carrington St. as being a much cleaner better scheme 10 
Examination, involving many less problems than any scheme that went over the centre 

core of the building.
Q. What comment would you make from that point of view of the 

1954 plan ? A. It works in reverse then. The 1954 plan broiight in a 
tremendous amount of a number of problems because of the greater 
number of columns affected. That is, of course, thinking in terms of an 
ultimate 150 feet building. The checking of each of those columns and 
avoiding the weak ones presented a tremendous amount of work wherein 
there was only revision that had to be made to Mr. Nicholls' Carrington St. 
scheme the 1956 plan because of one column that was found not 20 
capable of carrying the load where he wanted it.

Q. Were there revisions necessary in the 1954 plan ? A. Dozens 
of them. The procedure was that Mr. Ham would produce a sketch, 
Mr. Stanley would then check the columns affected and say " You can't 
do this " or " You can't do that ". It would go back to Mr. Ham, and 
from the architect's point of view he would produce another sketch and 
we had at least four such sketches from my memory, and towards the end 
of the job that caused a long delay in tidying up the odd bits and pieces 
because of this characteristic of the site, building a building over a 
series of columns and their foundations not designed to carry it. 30

Q. We know that the use of those very large trusses is associated 
with the weak design of the central columns ? A. That is right.

Q. But you say that there is nothing to prevent the centre columns 
and the big trusses being exploited at some time in the future if someone 
saw fit to do so ? A. Nothing at all. The central weak column 
could go to the fourth floor. Your trusses would then go between the 
5th and 6th floors and then the only restriction on the site is what I call 
the residual carrying capacity of all the columns affected.

Q. In the 1956 design, in your opinion, as a structural engineer, is 
it quite competent for a building to the present maximum height of 40 
150 feet to be added to the immediate building projected by those plans ? 
A. Yes. We have just about completed that design in our office.

Q. You have ? A. Yes.
Q. With regard to what has been referred to in this Court as a flat 

plate building, in your experience is there such a thing as a 100% flat
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plate building ? A. No. I have not seen one here or any buildings in the 
overseas. oSt

Q. What is the reason for that ? A. Mainly because part of the 8oufn %sales
building is lift shaft and wells that have to have walls around them, and Equitable
usually fairly substantial walls, and while it is possible to carry these wns tchon-
on a flat plate, in other words, eliminating beams, which is an essential Defendant's
of the flat plate construction, it is much more economically to put beams Evidence-
in at those points. The same thing applies to an external wall unless No. 6.
that external wall be what is known as a curtain wall, the glass and LieweUyn.

10 aluminium front you see in the modern building.  
Examination.

Q. A very light wall ? A. Yes. The flat plate is really a relative 
term usually applied to the central part of the building. May I use 
as an example this King's Cross hotel and Caltex House, two examples 
of what is probably the ultimate in what we can get of a flat plate in 
modern building in which about 80% of the floor is flat plate and then the 
remainder around these difficult surface areas has been in slab.

Q. Is there a sort of intermediate method of building associated with 
mushrooming of pillars ? A. Yes. The flat plate is a modern 
development of what was known as the mushroom floor system, the 

20 columns flared out on the capital before they merged into the ceiling. 
That was the mushroom floor. The original Joe Gardiner scheme for 
the Plaza had many such mushroom capitals. The existing lower floors 
there now are mushrooms in many cases.

Q. Would they be the beams which are presently supporting the 
two railway ramps ? A. Yes.

Q. They are mushroomed ? A. Yes.

Q. And that is a sort of transition development between the old 
slab and member, and the modern flat plate ? A. That is so. The 
mushroom caused a lot of inconvenience to the architect in his finishing 

30 trades, putting his partition walls and such surfaces on ceilings and 
that sort of thing, so that the cleaning up of the design by eliminating 
the mushroom gave us a flat plate which makes the formwork for the 
initial concrete so much cheaper, makes the architect's job and his 
finishing trades so much simpler.

Q. I understand the formwork for the concreting of an ordinary 
slab and member type of building involves very expensive labor, 
carpentering and joining ? A. That is right. The general contractor 
on the Caltex House job quotes it at six times the cost of flat plate 
forming. They are his own words.

40 Q- We do not have to have the wooden framework when you are 
doing the flat plate ? A. You have wooden framework. It is a 
combination of wood and steel framework but it is somewhat simpler 
and there are many man-hours less in erecting it. Generally laborers 
can do it in place of carpenters.
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in the Q. We have heard from Mr Nicholls that you have for some 
Court"oTlNew unspecified time past been engaged in endeavouring to eliminate as 
South Wales many members as possible from the 1956 plan ? A. As many beams, 

that is so.
jurisdiction. Q Have you come to any result yet ? A. Yes. We have been 
Defendant's able to make the central core of the building flat plate. There are still 
Evidence. ]3eams around the perimeters of the building and in the staircase and 

NO. e. lift areas, but the central part is free of beams.

Llewellyn. Q- Have you gone so far as to be able to offer a view as to what
-7  . portion of the 1956 structure will be flat plate ? A. That is difficult 10 

xamma i . ^ answer in percentages because it would be misleading. The only
way would be to take the number of lineal feet of beams in the original
beam and slab scheme and compare it with the final flat plate scheme.
I have not done that accurately but I assume it would be about 50%.
The perimeter beams of that Carrington Street front form a big
proportion of the total.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. You have eliminated 50% ? A. That is right.

Mr WALLACE : Q. I think you said even Caltex has quite a number of 
beams ? A. That is right, around the lift and stairs area, in fact 
around the lift area the beams serve a dual purpose. They help to 20 
support the lift doors and the internal lift gear. It would not be 
desirable to eliminate them.

Q. We have in evidence here some structural drawings prepared by 
you ? A. Yes.

Q. For what purpose were those drawings prepared by you ? 
A. To enable the contractor to give a ceiling price for the construction 
of the 1956 scheme.

Q. Were they sufficient for that purpose ? A. Yes. We had no 
complaints from him at all.

Q. Is the contractor who gave that ceiling price, in your experience 30 
a highly experienced contractor ? A. Very experienced. He is an 
overseas man, much better than any local contractor I know. He is 
the same contractor of Caltex House.

Q. A man who does good work ? A. Yes, first class work.

Q. Is it usual or unusual for structural drawings to be developed 
only to the extent that you had developed them at the time they were 
offered to the contractor for tender ? A. That depends on the 
interpretation of " usual ". On this sort of ceiling price contract, 
say, the M.L.C. building, Phoenix Insurance, this Kings Cross hotel, 
and many other jobs are done on that basis, where a ceiling price is4Q 
given by the contractor, that type of structural drawing is quite sufficient 
Where open tenders are called, the structural drawings and architectural 
drawings are developed another stage so that a quantity surveyor, an 
independent man, can take off accurate quantities. Then there is the
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third class which is very rare and only done for government departments in 
where all complete details are done long before the building starts. The cou-r 
obvious reason is that, say in the middle class, if all complete details South Wales 
were done and the job did not go on, then the client has to pay quite Editable 
high fees for sheets of paper, and that happens with government work Jurisdiction.
quite a lot. Defendant's

Q. It does ? A. Yes, quite a lot. We had an example in our Evidence- 
office only last week. NO. e.

J H. A.
Q. What is that ? A. A big technical college at Wollongong Llewellyn. 

10 estimated to cost over one million pounds and the drawings will be torn Examination. 
up. I have several sets at home of a big domestic science school at 
Penshurst which have never ever been issued by the department.

Q. Is that because of a change or policy ? A. Not always. 
Sometimes it is shortage of money.

Q. What is the position about the M.L.C. Building ? Was that a 
ceiling price ? A. I do not know the exact details but it was not 
open tender. Only one contractor was ever in the picture. It has been 
called a negotiated contract. Sometimes on a schedule rate basis he 
gives rates for various materials, and as in that case, the client does 

20 not know what he pays until the job is finished.

Q. The next matter is this, are you able to tell His Honor can this 
architectural plan of Mr. Nicholls, be built, from a structural viewpoint 1 
Is there any reason why it should not be built ? A. No, not that I 
know of.

Q. We have heard something about an error of 2 feet on the Northern 
end of the Eastern wall where some land of the Commissioner, reserved 
for a lift shaft leading to the motor room has been encroached upon 
by Mr Nicholls' plan by approximately a couple of feet. Do you follow 
where I mean ? A. Yes.

30 Q. Would any amendment of that so as to give that part of the wall 
two feet further to the West make any alteration or create any difficulties 
in your structural task ? A. I do not remember the exact details 
of that but I think we had picked that up on our structural drawings. 
I would not be sure of that point but I think we had shown the limit 
of our structural work on our drawings, but in any case I would imagine 
there would be many such cases arise on the job during construction. 
On an alteration job such as that, where the building was not originally 
designed to go up as it is being built would of necessity involve many 
changes that would have to be made in construction.

40 Q. (Approaching) I show you sheet 3 of Exhibit L2. I think the 
portion of the wall in question is along there (indicating). At all events, 
on the lease the position is that there has been a part reserved for a shaft 
to a lift well. I show you also sheet No. 1, in particular with the goods
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in the lift and sheet No. 2 which also shows the goods lift. This well, which is 
New sa/id- t° encroach a couple of feet forms one of the containing walls of the 

South Wales stairway well, is that so ? A. That is right.
Equitable Q. And if we had to move that wall over two feet to the West would

jurisdiction, that create any structural problems of any sort which would prejudice
Defendant's the contruction of this architectural design ? A. I do not think so.
Evidence, j^ would depend whether columns C49 and C48 are reserved as part of

NO. e. that reservation in the lease but I should not imagine so because they
LieweU always carried the upper part of the building and if C49 and C48 are
  ' not reserved there will be no structural difficulty at all. 10

Examination. /-» -vr i_ j. n A TVTQ. None whatever ? A. No.
Q. The only guide to that is the red enclosure on the annexures to the 

lease, and that is the lift well shown on D, is it not ? I want you to 
assume there is no reservation on the pillars ? A. Then there is no 
structural difficulty in moving that wall back.

Q. Again, if you were told there is a small duct going down through 
one of our plans in a lavatory, would there be any structural reason 
why you could not either build around it or otherwise take no notice 
of the duct ? A. What sized duct approximately ?

Q. About three feet by four feet ? A. No. 20 
Q. No structural difficulty ? A. No.
Q. Does the 1956 scheme utilise the minor pillars to the limit of 

their capacity ? A. Two of them.
Q. Which two are they ? A. 53 and 55, the ones you were 

speaking about this morning.
Q. With regard to the thickness of the concrete slab over the lounge, 

is that in your opinion structurally sound ? A. Yes.
Q. And the pillars which are not shown on this particular plan, 

what are their numbers ? A. 53 and 55.
Q. Now shown ? A. That is right. 30
Q. Did you describe them as new pillars or pillars which exist but 

which were not shown on his plan ? A. They are extensions of existing 
pillars.

Q. Are those extensions actually in being ? A. No. 
Q. They are planned extensions ? A. Yes.
Q. And those planned extensions are shown on your structural 

drawings ? A. That is right.
Q. Is there the slightest structural difficulty about those extensions ? 

A. No.
Q. Going to the inset of the 1956 plan which occurs on the isometric 40 

sketches, those dealing with the complete development which occurs 
about the 8th floor, if I remember correctly, the inset being some 16 feet 
over the width of about 80 feet, can you give His Honor any structural
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reason why that inset occurs ? A. It is brought about because of the in the 
lack of any further carrying capacity in columns 53 and 55. Had the court 
building been completed out to the eastern wall, those columns would South Wales 
have been overloaded so it is a question of taking up that eastern wall Equitable. 
of the 1956 scheme until the limit of the carrying capacity of columns 53 Jurisdiction. 
and 55 have been reached. Then it was necessary to recess the building Defendant's 
so that no more load came on those two columns from the new building. Evidence.
SIR GARFIELD : Q. Do you mean 53A and 55A ? A. The load No.^6. 
goes down through 53A and 55A and then it is transferred partly to two Llewellyn. 

10 columns in front.   ~r~,.lv/ Examination.
Q. You mean 53 and 55 ? A. Yes.

Mr WALLACE : Q. I want you to show diagrammatically, what is the 
design down below where the first extension occurs. Is there a position 
down below where you use one of the strong pillars and one of the weaker 
ones and put a member across ? A. Yes.

Q. Where does that occur ? A. That occurs between the 
Wynyard Lane level and the Carrington St. level.

Q. Do you remember the number of the pillars concerned ? 
A. No. Well, 53 and 55 would be the easterly pair of stanchions 

20 affected. I have just forgotten the Westerly ones.
Q. Could you explain on a piece of paper diagrammatically what is 

taking place there ? A. Yes, (witness draws sketch) I think this will 
explain it. That is Wynyard Lane level, Carrington St. level, the 
building alignment and the front of the building (indicating). There 
is a large reinforced concrete beam between that line. In two places 
this occurs in a north-south direction across the job, spanning from 
those two columns to columns 53 and 55. That carries 53A and 55A 
which start from the Carrington St. level and go right to the recess we 
spoke of. Then there is a small extension of 53 and 55, above the large 

30 beam to support the roof garden. Those are the columns left of 
Mr Mcholls' plan. That occurs once on the line or 53 and once on the 
line of 55.

(Sketch of loads on beams; Exhibit 11.)
Q. Have you got to the stage where you can tell His Honor whether 

the building from the ceiling of the ground floor as you enter Carrington 
St. where does that finally disappear on the 1956 plan ? A. On 
the alignment of Wynyard Lane and steps down to become a narrow 
covering over Wynyard Lane and widens again on the other side.

Q. Would that covering be about 40 feet in width ? 
40 A. Approximately.

Q. Then it re-appears ? A. Over the shops.
Q. It crosses Wynyard Lane at a height of 20 feet ? 

A. Approximately.
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in the Q. And then steps down on the George St. side of Wynyard Lane and 
becomes the roof of the shops ? A. Yes.

Q. And widens out again ? A. Yes.
Q- What would be the width of that ceiling on the Carrington St. 

side of Wynyard Lane where it widens out ? A. The roof over the
Evidence.

-   Q. Yes ? A. I am sorry, I would have to refer to the plans. It 
H!'A.- was wider than 40 feet, but I could not remember exactly without reference

Llewellyn, to the plans.

Examination. Q. I show you sheet No. 3 of Exhibit 10. Can you work it out from 10 
there ? A. Yes. It is 82 feet 6. That is the roof over the shops on 
the Eastern side of Wynyard Lane.

Q. How far towards the East does that go ? I also want the width 
of the western side of Wynyard Lane ? A. It is in two widths, the 
roof over the shops. That is the narrower width of approximately 
21 feet 6, and the wider of the two is approximately 31 feet 6. Those 
dimensions may be accurately marked on Mr. Nicholls' plan. I was 
scaling those dimensions.

Q. What does sheet 3 of Exhibit 10 represent ? A. That is the 
roof over Wynyard Lane (indicating) and that is a lower level roof over 20 
shops facing Wynyard Lane on the Eastern side.

Q. What would be the position West of Wynyard Lane ? A. That 
is on both the architect's and engineering drawings of the main scheme. 
The main building stops on that line (indicating) in the area over that, 
that is between columns 51 and 53. That area (indicating) is mainly 
flat roof area at the first floor ceiling on Carrington St. between Carrington 
St. and Wynyard Lane.

Q. Could you give me the approximate dimensions of that ? A. It 
would be much easier and more accurate if I could measure that off the 
architectural drawings. It is an irregular area and its maximum width 30 
is 43 feet and its length is the total length of Carrington Street which 
is 172 feet 1 1^, 172 feet by a maximum width of 43 feet, and the narrowest 
width is 19 feet.

Q. Is the part you have just been alluding to which is coloured pale 
green on sheet No. 3 all one level ? A. Yes.

Q. And that is all concrete slab ? A. Yes. 

Q. 14 inches in thickness ? A. Yes.

Q. Are the stands such that they can take a load ? A. Yes. 
It is designed in what is known as an accessible roof, a roof on which 
people can walk around. 40

Q. Going to the 1954 plans for a moment, would it be in your opinion 
easier or more difficult to extent and develop the 1956 plans than the 
1954 plans ? A. That is a building construction question and there is
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no question about it because of the multiplicity or re-using of this concrete in the 
form work this is from a structural point of view re-using the same courf 
units a number of times instead of having to provide a great number of South Wales 
units once and then they are scrapped. Editable

Q. Is that what happens in the 1954 plan ? A. The 1954 plan is un̂ _"m- 
one floor largely, over one area, and so the form work for the concrete Defendant's 
a great deal is largely non-re-usable, whereas in the 1956 scheme the v]_t^ce - 
units are used a number of times so that it would be much cheaper to NO. *>  
extend the 1956 scheme than the 1954 scheme. It is basically the Llewellyn. 

10 problem of a small building going a long way as a building spread out.    .
Q. Would there be a difference obviously in the cost of development ? 

A. Yes. That is a basic reason for the modern trend in developing 
buildings vertically rather than horizontally, from a cost point of view, 
not only structural.

Q. The 1954 plan, if it were to be developed later, would there be 
some material alteration or semi-demolition required of its roof in the 
central part ? A. The roof of each scheme is a concrete roof which 
forms the floor in any future extension but on that concrete roof 
is a very costly water-proofing material because the concrete itself 

20 is not watertight. That concrete roofing material would have to be 
removed and wasted. It is non-recoverable. The effect of that is that 
there is a greater area of such material in the 1954 scheme making it 
more wasteful than the 1956.

Q. You say that would be a very costly thing, would it ? A. I 
could not give you figures per square foot.

Q. Going to the George Street side of the 1956 plan, can you envisage 
that for a moment ? A. Yes.

Q. There again, have you got the repetitive work to which you 
refer in going upwards being able to re-use the form work and so on ? 

30 A. The same thing.
Q. If someone were so minded and wanted to reproduce to its full 

development the 1956 plan, and have those two buildings in that isometric 
scale which I think you have seen, said to be 80 feet apart from the centre, 
if someone were so minded and wanted to join them with some right- 
angled building, say, in the centre of the two, would there be any structural 
difficulties in so doing ? A. Not up to the 4th floor, not difficult but 
a great cost of providing these trusses to avoid assuming the plan 
covered the areas of the small weak columns if the area of those columns 
were covered then it would be necessary to provide the heavy trusses to 

40 carry the work above the 5th floor.
Q. Would that be the same with the 1954 plan ? A. Exactly.
Q. So that whoever wishes to build on the centre of that site on the 

pillars that have been laid down would be confronted with that heavy 
truss difficulty or complication about the 4th floor ? A. That is so.

* 38032 5
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in tu HIS HONOR : Q. Unless 1 suppose you build pillars underneath that 
mNeio were atrong enough ? A. That was the original scheme, to build these 

South Wales trusses, and would still I think be more costly than the most economic 
E*nibble wav- ^ ^s always possible to go down into foundations of buildings 

jurisdiction, and underpin and put new columns in, but to do that in this case would
Defeat's be Ver7 COS%" 

Evidence. Mr WALLACE . Q J want to faeci your ^^ to fae 1954 plang ^^

NO. 6. I now hand you (Exhibit H).
Llewellyn. Q. I want to go to the 1954 plans that you now have in front of 

Examination you Exhibit " H ". There are just a few things that I want to get \Q 
' out of the way, first of all. In connection with the design of the 1954 
plan, the columns continued up to the first floor on the Carrington Street 
level ? A. Yes. (Objected to.)

Q. Were some of the columns planned to be continued up to the 
first floor on the Carrington Street level ? A. That is so. Some of 
them went higher.

Q. Which of them were planned to go up to the first floor ?
HIS HONOR : Q. Have they numbers on them ? A. Not on this 
plan.
Mr WALLACE : Q. Would they be on the western side, or the southern, 20 
northern, or eastern ? A. They would be on the western side of 
Wynyard Lane, but not all of them on the western side went up.

Q. Well, what about those on the western side that did ? A. They 
went up.

Q. They were planned to go above the first floor ? A. They went 
above the first floor to the second floor.

Q. But supposing any extension of the building in height were to 
be erected at some future time on that inside portion of the building that 
is to say the portion Mr Nicholls does not use do you follow ? A. Yes.

Q. Would those columns involve the erection of those heavy trusses ? 30 
A. Once you go above the fourth floor.

Q. What do you say the depth would be ? Sir Garfield suggested 
12 ft. A. Well, it would depend on the height of a storey. Normally 
that is 9 ft., and approximately 1 ft. for the thickness. So that they 
would be approximately 10 ft. If for structural reasons they could 
not be got within the 10 ft., then they would have to go through 20 ft., 
to the next floor. They would be almost certainly approximately 
10 ft.

Q. Have you ever used an 80 ft. x 12 ft. truss in a building ? 
A. Not in a building. 4Q

Q. Have you seen a few ? A. It has been used.
Q. You yourself have not used it ? A. No, and it certainly 

has not been used in recent years. In the good old days they had plenty 
of money.
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Q. In connection with the 1954 building, once he got above the in the 
fourth floor on that central portion which Mr Nicholls had not used, Cfmrt'oj^New 
he was all set for the central trusses ? A. Yes. South Wales

Q. He had to have them ? A. Yes. Equitable. 
Q. How many of them would there be ? A. Four. unhewn.
Q. And with the approximate width of these big columns, they would Evidence. 3 

have to carry many hundreds of tons ? A. Not many hundreds of    
tons approximately 100 tons per truss. H°'A.'

Q. Yes, I see per truss 1 A. Yes. LieweUyn. 
10 Q. And going to the 1954 plans the first floor thereof have you Examination, 

the plans there ? A. Yes. Originally all the floors were named from 
the George Street level.

Q. I think I am referring to the floor above the first floor on the 
Carrington Street level ? A. That would be the first floor of bedrooms ?

Q. Yes; the first and only floor of bedrooms on the 1954 plans ? 
A. Yes.

Q. The 1956 plans having two floors of bedrooms above that ? 
A. Yes.

Q. Directing your mind to that first and only for the bedrooms, 
20 can you say whether it appears or not that those enormous trusses, 

if built, would cut off a portion, and if so, what portion, of the floor area 
on the floor above that first floor on the Carrington Street level ? A. It 
would not be above this (indicating). The columns would go up to 
support the fourth floor, and the fourth floor would be completely free of 
central columns, and then this truss would be required on the fifth or 
sixth floors. That truss would be of the order of 3 to 4 ft. wide, running 
in a north and south direction across the two bedroom wings with suitable 
access doorways through it corridor doorways and therefore it would 
reduce the bedrooms. It looks as if apparently 8 bedrooms would have 

30 to be replanned, because the amount taken off would make the remainder 
unusable as a bedroom.

Q. When you say " replanned ", do you mean that at all events 
as presently planned they would have to disappear ? A. Yes.

Q. And then, after the huge beams have been erected, the smaller 
columns would reappear ? A. Yes.

Q. And the loss of bedrooms, I suppose, in fairness to the 1954 
plans, would be confined to the one floor where the big trusses are ? 
A. Yes.

Q. It does involve eight of them ? A. Yes.
40 Q. And if you stood at the bottom of the central light well of the 

1954 plan, would you see what are called the huge beams crossing the 
light well at the Carrington Street level, being then about 4 ft. wide 
and 12 ft. in height is that right ? A. Not at the Carrington Street
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in tu level. In Wynyard Lane looking up you would see four which appear
CourtPofmNew as concrete walls they would be steel trusses encased in concrete,
South Wales approximately 10 ft. deep x 3 or 4 ft. wide they would be flying beams.

Equitable Q. And would there be bedrooms in the walls near them ? A. Yes.
__ ' Q. So that the inhabitants of those bedrooms would have the trusses

Defendant's on either side of them or around them ? A. Yes; on that particular
_ ' floor they would be looking up at them or down at them.

H.'A.' Q. And with all that treatment on the 1954 plans with these trusses 
Llewellyn. an(j neavy beams and columns, does that have repercussions in the 

Examination, regularity or lack of regularity of the bedroom design ? A. Yes. 10 
The plan, as I see it here, on the third floor, could not possibly repeat 
exactly on the fifth floor.

Q. Then you would have on some floors irregularly shaped 
bedrooms of different sizes, and it has been said here, by an earlier 
witness, that some of the bedrooms would be only 6 ft. in width ? 
A. That would be so.

Q. You agree with that, do you ? A. Yes. There is a bedroom 
8 ft. wide, and one of the trusses would be running along one wall of 
it, so that that particular bedroom, if left as is, would be less than 6 ft. 
wide. 20

SIR GARFIELD : You cannot have it both ways.

WITNESS : That particular bedroom is 8 ft. wide (indicating). The 
truss must come in that position so that whatever the width of the 
truss is would have to be taken from the bedroom. The immediate 
trouble I see from the architectural plan is that that white line (indicating) 
is a duct, and the architect would have to replan his bedrooms within 
those points, dodging that wall (indicating). The same would apply 
there (indicating), and there is another small one there. The nett effect 
means that he has 10 ft. less in the length of that wing in which to plan 
bedrooms. I was taking it as 3 ft. wide. 30

Mr WALLACE : Q. There was another aspect, a sort of corollary to what 
I have been asking you, and I will put the question in this form. Is 
there any other consequence of irregularity in the shape of the bedrooms 
which necessarily flows from the presence of those big trusses and pillars  
irregularity in the shape of the bedrooms in order to dodge them and make 
allowances for them, and that sort of thing ? A. The columns as they 
exist would dictate the planning of the bedrooms.

Q. Some of the columns in that portion of the building vary in 
size and diameter, do they not ? A. They do vary, but this 
architectural plan is not correct, in that the column shown on that 40 
particular floor the inside column is not of that size. The architects 
have not transferred the accurate size of the column on our column 
schedule onto this plan.
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Q. I understand that what you are indicating is that although on in the 
this sheet of Exhibit H the columns appear to be of much the same size  oofrT 
in fact, they are marked different, is that so ? A. Quite markedly. South Wales 
That particular column is shown as 4 ft. wide, whereas in effect it would Equitable 
be any more than 3 ft. or 2 ft. 6 ins. Jurisdiction.

Q. And then how would that column compare in width or diameter Defendant's 
with this one (indicating) ? A. Roughly the same. There are eight Evidence-
columns obviously drawn oversize. NO. 6.

H.A. 
HIS HONOR : Which sheet is that again ? Llewellyn.

10 WITNESS : That WOuld be six. Examination.

Mr WALLACE : Q. What is this (indicating) ? A. This one is 6A. 
That is a duplicate of this one (indicating).

(At this stage Mr Wallace marked a plan " 6A ".)

WITNESS : I see that the architect has corrected the column size on 6A. 
I would suggest that this one (indicating) was prepared after the receipt 
of our column sizes. He then corrected this plan (indicating).

HIS HONOR : What I am not certain of is this, that that document 
you are now looking at is part of the original exhibit ?

SIR GARFIELD : We numbered every sheet originally. 
20 HIS HONOR : If it is not numbered I think it must have got in 

somewhere.

SIR GARFIELD : Perhaps they may be removed.
Mr WALLACE : I removed temporarily the sheet which was numbered 7
by me the other day, and a new sheet which was numbered 6A today.

HIS HONOR : Those two documents can be pinned together and kept 
here, and marked for identification.

Mr WALLACE : They both have been marked part of Exhibit H.

HIS HONOR : Well, they were both marked when they were put in, 
because my Associate marked them immediately. I will rescind the 

30 direction that I gave for marking them for identification, and what I 
am going to do is put those two sheets together and call them part of 
Exhibit H, and I will keep them out of the way until they are wanted. 
Sheets 7 and 6A will be pinned together and marked part of Exhibit H, 
but kept out of the way for the time being.

Mr WALLACE: I am afraid that there is something still wrong 
somewhere, and I would like to get it straightened out.

Q. Take sheet 7 (indicating). What is that ? A. That is the 
roof plan.

Q. That is the only roof plan amongst all these documents, is it 
40 not ? A. Yes.
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in the Mr WALLACE : Therefore, that ought to come off that and be part of the 
Exhibit H"

Uin its S HIS HONOR : Very well. Leave the one out that is duplicated for the 
Equitable moment. Sheet 6A will be kept separate from the rest of Exhibit HJurisdiction. , .-., . .L ^> -n i -i -i TT
  but will remain part 01 Exhibit H.

Defendant's
Evidence. Mr WALLACE : I have marked two of them " 6 A ". I will call the 

j^~jj one taken out " 6B ".
H A

Llewellyn. HIS HONOR : Very well, provided it is out of the way, it won't get 
_, ~~ . mixed up.
Examination. r

Mr WALLACE : Q. Look at 6A, is that the same as 6B ? A. No. 10 
There is quite a wing which has been put on it. They both represent 
the third floor. That drawing (indicating) is dated January 1954, 
and this one (indicating) is dated June 1955. That (indicating) is a 
major amendment.

HIS HONOR : I have a faint recollection, from the other case, that 
there was some amendment that the Licensing Court agreed to.

Mr WALLACE : I have now taken 6B out.

HIS HONOR : Yes ; only for the purpose of conveniently referring to 
the plan. Another way of doing it would be to call it 6B and only 
refer to 6A. What is the best way of dealing with it ? 20

Mr WALLACE : I will re-number part of Exhibit H.

HIS HONOR : I will simply say tha't Mr Wallace renumbers part of 
Exhibit H, and that sheet (indicating) will be numbered " 6B ".

Mr WALLACE : The difference between " 6A " and " 6B " there are 
two differences, are there not, that I can see at once. One is that the 
pillars in " 6A "   the later of the two plans   have been drawn more 
accurately, according to your belief ? A. That is right.

Q. As regards their diameter ? A. Yes.
Q. And secondly, " 6A ", the later of the two, has had added to it 

a small bedroom ring   is that right ? A. That is right. There is 30 
also this roof section.

Q. What is that blue thing at the foot of 6A ? A. That is a roof 
at the third floor level over the Carrington Street level   the roof of a 
public bar.

Q. Before I leave you here I just want to ask you this. In the 
1954 plans, Exhibit H, do we find considerable irregularity in the size 
and shape of the bedrooms, due to the presence of those columns ? 
A. I cannot say that it is entirely due to the presence of the columns. 
I imagine so. It may have been due to the architect's layout, but he 
certainly would be controlled, in designing the bedrooms, by the presence 40 
of the columns.
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Q. The 1954 plans use the beam and slab method of construction, in the 
do they not ? A. Yes.

Q. And because of the existence of the beams, on each floor must 
there be a false ceiling ? A. Not necessarily must, but usually so, Equitable 
because the architect likes to have a flat ceiling, and it also serves the Junsdlction- 
purpose of concealing a lot of service pipes. Defendant's

Q. If you do not have a false ceiling you have ungainly beams __ 
sticking out, do you ? A. Yes. No- 6-

Q. So that invariably a false ceiling serves a dual purpose ? Llewellyn. 
10 A. No; I would not say invariably. In many cases the architect is 

content to let the beams project.
Q. But at all events, that does not arrive with a flat-plate system 

of construction ? A. No.
Q. And of course a false ceiling would mean added expense, would 

it not ? A. Yes; much added expense.
Q. Another matter is this. If you compare the 1954 with the 1956 

plans, is there any difference with regard to flexibility of future building ? 
A. Yes. The 1956 scheme, because it completely builds over one area 
of columns, leaves the remainder of the site to be developed as any 

20 future planner may wish to develop it, keeping in mind the restriction 
laid down by the columns. The 1954 scheme, of course, almost dictates 
that any future development must be only upwards. I hesitate there, 
because it may be possible to fill in some of these areas left as light courts, 
but of course they would be controlled by light-well regulations the 
light-wells to the bedrooms.

Q. Well, assuming that they were covered by existing ordinances, 
we can eliminate that possibility, can we not ? A. Well, the 1954 
scheme would be fixed in its plan development.

Q. Its future is pegged for all time ? A. Yes.
30 Q. Whereas in the 1956 building there is plenty of room for 

flexibility in regard to future planning if desired ? A. That is so.

Q. Were you ever fully satisfied, as a structural engineer, that the 
1954 plans were capable of being developed to the full 150 ft. ? A. No, 
not completely satisfied, but satisfied to this extent, that we knew it 
could be done with the possibility of the " could " being changed because 
of cost later on. In other words, if we find that a certain column will 
not carry any more load at, say, the second top floor, it may be possible 
to span a beam across to two columns which are able to carry that load, 
and that proviso applies to any future development. In other words, 

40 we won't really know until the last floor goes on what the engineering 
solution will be, until we get that floor there.

Q. What does the structural engineer say now, that you will or will 
not be able to build to the full 150 ft. on the 1954 plans within reasonable 
expense limits, of course ? A. We can say that now. I hesitate,
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in the because the regulations regarding these columns are in a state of flux, 
f^eio and also building materials. For example, the original columns on the 

South Wales Carrington Street were not designed for the same loads as on the George 
Equitable Street, but since then regulations have changed as regards fire-proofing. 

Jurisdiction. It is now possible to use a 4^ inch wall, rendered on both sides, whereas 
Defendant's a 9 mcn wa^ was required before.
Evidence. Q jf vou went back to 1954 your doubt would have been much 

NO. e. greater that is the position, is it ? A. Yes.
Llewellyn. Q- Some comment was made, during my learned friend's cross- 

T~ . examination of Mr Mcholls regarding the thickness of the walls 10
xamina ion. surroun(jmg the ducts in the 1956 building. Does that you said about 

the 4j" walls apply to them ? A. The instructions we have in regard 
to the Kings Cross Hotel are that the walls to the ducts are to be 4J inch, 
rendered on both sides. It was 9 inch.

Q. Providing it was rendered on both sides ? A. Yes.
Q. What are you doing in Caltex ? A. The duct walls there are 

4| inch, rendered on both sides, but in the older city buildings they are 
9 inch.

Q. But that is apparently a fairly recent change ? A. Yes; 
12 months. I doubt whether it is in ordinance. 20

Q. But the 4j inch, rendered on both sides, has been approved by 
the authorities ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you have any doubt about some of the outside columns in the 
1954 building plans doubts about their ability to stand the 150 ft. 
height the side columns ? A. The columns on the adjoining property 
sites ?

Q. Yes ? A. Originally some of those columns were not designed, 
for architectural reasons, to go to the full height, and some of those were 
just used to their capacity, and they have already been stopped off.

Q. When you say " used to their capacity ", do you mean used to 30 
the full extent of height that they intended to go ? A. In some cases 
another storey was added because of this allowable increase in stress, 
in which case the foundation then becomes the determining factor. 
The column, because of the modernising regulations, becomes stronger, 
but the foundation 

HIS HONOR : Q. The margin for safety, in effect, was too great ? 
A. Yes.

Q. It was discovered ? A. Yes.
Q. And they allow the lesser margin ? A. Yes, that is so. As 

an example, the highest concrete strength that we used in the city was 40 
3,000 Ib. per square inch, only a few years ago, but the columns in Caltex 
House are 5,000 Ibs. per square inch, so that the limiting factor of any 
column becomes the foundation to that column, which of course has not
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•

changed unless the City Council, or in this case the Railway Authorities, in <*« 
say that we were conservative with the loading on. the rock, and that we courtP 
can increase. From the investigations that we have made, we are just South Wales 
about at the stage that we can say that it looks as if there will be no trouble Egui^bu 
about all of the Carrington Street 1956 scheme going to 150 ft., with the Jurisdiction. 
exception of that internal recess on the eastern face. Defendant's

Mr WALLACE : Q. I think you were asked to direct your mind to the    
question of the extention of the lift in connection with the 1956 plan, ^o.^e. 
so as to give access to the existing dining room ? A. Yes; there was Llewellyn. 

10 an extension of the lift in both schemes. There was one on the western _, ~ A .
  i f -ITT iT'i i Examination.

side of Wynyard Lane in the 1956 scheme.
Q. The western side of Wynyard Lane ? A. Yes. There was 

also one involved on the eastern side in the 1954 scheme.
Q. I think that there is only one lift legislated for in the 1954 plan, 

is there not ? A. One additional lift, yes.

Q. Where is that ? A. That is on the south-eastern side I am 
sorry, the south-western side of the George Street block.

Q. The south-western side of the George Street block ? A. Yes- 

Mr WALLACE : Does Your Honor see that ? 

20 HIS HONOR : Yes, that goes down to the dining room, does it ? 

WITNESS : Yes.

Mr WALLACE : Q. If in future development that portion of the 1954 
plan only goes up to the seventh floor do you follow ? A. Yes.

Q. Whether it be due to height or area restrictions of the City 
Council or structural difficulties or otherwise ? A. Yes.

Q. And if the George Street portion goes up to 150 ft. ? A. Yes.
Q. Then, under that sort of planning, there would be no lift access 

to the upper storeys of the George Street building in the 1954 planning ? 
A. That is so. There is no lift provided in the 1954 scheme.

30 Q. There is no lift provided in the 1954 scheme whatsoever ? 
A. Yes, that is right.

Q. That would be unusual in your experience in a city building, 
would it not ? A. As a citizen, yes.

Q. What I want to stress is this. In the 1954 plans no liftwell 
whatsoever is planned for not even the liftwell, in the 1954 plans, in 
the George Street building ? A. Where that lift is shown was an 
existing well in the old scheme.

Q. Yes, but there is no liftwell shown in any part of the George Street 
building ? A. I am sorry no.

40 Q. Not at all ? A. No.
 38632 6 A
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in the jjjg HONOR: You got to the stage that there was no liftwell in the(supreme , Q^ ~ ~.Court of New 1954 scheme on the George Street side.
South Wales

in its Mr WALLACE : Q. Yes. Of course that was only a lift that would hold
Junction. two or three people ? A. It was a small lift. I could not say its
   capacity.

Defendant's
Evidence. Q. Would that ,be suitable, in your opinion, for the servicing of
j^j the George Street building, as the only means of lift, disregarding the fact
H. A. that it does not go up the final four floors ? A. Architects do not

Llewellyn. a^QW me ^Q have such opinions.

Examination. . Q j have been reminded that to provide a liftwell in this 1954 plan 10 
in the George Street building would that be a matter of some structural 
consequence ? A. Quite a problem, yes. It is possible, of course, 
but to cut a hole through a building for a liftwell that has not been 
planned is possible, but quite difficult structurally, and as regards the 
replanning of the area around the liftwell.

Q. With regard to the service lift I am referring to the 1956 
plan do you know that there is a service lift on the Carrington Street 
side  ? A. Yes.

Q. Coming down at present to the floor immediately above where 
the kitchen is planned for near the coffee lounge ? A. Yes. 20

Q. And only a few feet away from it ? A. Yes.
Q. A service lift which is actually in use at the moment ? A. Yes
Q. Mr Nicholls has indicated  (Objected to; pressed.)

HIS HONOR: Why not ask him that ?

Mr WALLACE: Q. Could the continuation of that service lift down below 
so as to service the kitchen, present any structural difficulty ? A. I 
have not investigated it, but I should not imagine so, because the columns 
surrounding that area to trim that lift well would be in existence.

Q. They would be in existence ? A. They would be in existence 
because they go beside the existing lift. Taking it another floor down 30 
should be a fairly easy matter.

HIS HONOR: No another floor up.

SIR GARFIELD : The question was " down ".

WITNESS : I am sorry. If it is a floor up it depends on the carrying 
capacity of the columns, and seeing that we have not gone very far 
with our building I doubt whether there would be very much difficulty.

Mr WALLACE : Q. It was my mistake; I had forgotten. The service 
lift at present services two or three floors below where the kitchen is 
to be ? A. Yes.

Q. And then there would be the question of bringing it up to the 40 
kitchen floor level with corresponding raising of the motor ? A. Yes.
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I see no real difficulty at all about that. That is done many times in a in the
HiiilrKmr SupremeDunning. Cmrt oj. New

Mr WALLACE : Q. Yesterday you gave me an answer directed to the °"i»;«/ e 
weight that the proposed beam would carry. I suggested that it would Equitable

i i i r j. ^   i « /-\ 1 i T A. » T Jurisdiction.
carry some hundreds of tons, and you said, One hundred tons. I _ 
think you want to correct that ? A. Yes. My mental arithmetic Defendant's 
was not too good. An approximate estimate would be 800 tons per v̂ J^ce - 
truss. My mental arithmetic gave me " 80 ". No- 6 -

Q. So that the correct answer is " 800 tons " ? A. Yes; that Llewellyn. 
JQ depends on the height that that centre court is taken to. But the 800 tons Examination, 

is based on the diagramatic sketches that we had from Mr. Ham.

Q. Would 800 tons be the maximum or the minimum ? A. I1" 
the centre court was taken to the full 150 ft. height and entirely closed 
over, of course it would be much more than that. The 800 tons was based 
on the Ham scheme the 1954 scheme taken to 7 floors.

Q. But if, contrary to evidence that has been given about ordinances 
relating to permissible heights and having regard to angles, and so on, 
they went up to 150 ft., it would be much more than 800 tons ? A. Yes.

Q. I want to ask you this in the event that I have not already done 
20 so. Is it possible to apply the flat-plate system of construction to the 

1954 plans ? A. Not those plans. The flat-plate system preferably 
requires three spans to the columns. In the 1956 scheme it only covered 
two spans on the Carrington Street frontage. That was the reason why 
we did not give a direct answer to Mr Nicholls when first asked, but we 
have been able to develop a scheme for the two-span column, so that it 
is completely possible to do a flat-plate.

Q. You said something about the service lift yesterday. Do you 
wish to add something to what you said yesterday on that ? A. Yes. 
Because I was depending on memory, I inspected the site last night 

2Q after the Court. The motor room of the lift at the moment is one floor 
above Carrington Street, so that it looks as though it may be possible to 
use the lift as existing, but that is for the lift people to say, but at the 
most it will necessitate raising the motor room about 6 ft. We did 
extensions around that area about 1947. The motor room floor is a 
temporary floor and it would be quite a simple matter, if necessary, to 
extend the lift and get overrun to serve the Carrington Street level.

Q. No constructional problems at all ? A. None at all.
Q. Have you any idea of costs at all, assuming that you had to lift 

it ? A. Assuming that you had to lift it it is purely an estimate  
40 £2,000.

Q. You said something about doing work in 1947 ? A. Yes.
Q. That was around the service lift ? A. Yes.
Q. As a matter of fact, you have done other work relating to cool 

rooms, and pillar work, in recent years, have you not ? A. Yes, 
that is so.
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In the
Supreme,

Court of New
South Wales

in its
Equitable

Jurisdiction.

Defendant's 
Evidence.

No. 6.
H. A.

Llewellyn.

Examination.

Q. Just tell His Honor briefly what has been the nature of that 
work ? A. The structural part of it was the building of a single-storey 
structure over the Wynyard Lane level, which brought the roof of the 
cold rooms to the Carrington Street level. That was on the southern 
side of the site, and approximately between the boundary line of columns 
and these heavy steel columns in this case.

Q.. When was that done approximately ? A. About 1953.
Q. I think the cool room was enlarged, or the position of it was 

raised. Was something like that done ? A. No; there were additional 
steel stanchions erected. That was last year. 10

Q. Was there what you know as contract No. 2  ? A. That 
was contract No. 2.

Q. Let out to the building firm of Whittles ? A. Yes. In the 
construction of the cool rooms several large steel stanchions were affected, 
and they were constructed as part of the cool room contract.

Q. That was earlier than the contract No. 2 ? A. Yes. The cool 
room contract had steel stanchions, but additional steel stanchions were 
put up under contract No. 2.

Q. And did those additional steel stanchions consist of extensions 
to some of the pillars we have heard about ? A. Yes. 20

Q. And was that done under a separate contract to Whittles ? 
A. Yes. Mr Whittle actually was a contractor for both schemes.

Q. And the work that Whittle did in contract No. 2, was that shown 
on the 1954 plans ? A. It was not part of those documents. The 1954 
plans took those stanchions to be then existing.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. When the work was being done on contract No. 2, 
were these stanchions then existing ? A. Yes; these stanchions were 
put in under a separate contract, and they would be then existing.

Mr WALLACE : Q. But at the time that the work was done there were 
no detailed drawings at all of the 1954 plans, were there ? A. There 30 
may have been preliminary sketches, but there were no detailed drawings.

Q. By the way, that ran into quite a sum of money> did it not the 
extension of columns ? A. Yes ;  it was about £20,000, I think. I 
cannot remember exactly.

Q. And I think that about that time there was some pressure from 
the Licensing Court to show sincerity on the part of the lessee in connection 
with building ? A. Yes; that was the reason why it was decided to 
proceed with the design of these columns, and in discussion with the 
Railway Department it was agreed because nobody knew at that stage 
what sort of building would be put on the column. The existing columns 40 
which were projecting slightly above the roof at Wynyard Lane level 
were continued up on the same side so that no matter what buildings 
went up on top they would be capable of carrying the full load.
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Q. That work was proceeded with and done by Whittle ? Has it in the, 
concluded ? A. Yes ; only just completed. There was a question 
of the plumbing. South Wales

Q. By " plumbing " you mean whether they were truly vertical ? Equitable
A Jurisdiction.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. They were in fact straightened up ? A. Yes. 
It was a question of allowable tolerances, and there is a disagreement 
amongst engineers as to what are allowable tolerances in plumbing. ^°- *> 

Mr WALLACE : Q. Another matter is in connection with the step-in LIeweUyn' 
10 towards the west on the 1950 isometric plans   that is the fully developed Examination. 

plans ? A. Yes.
Q. The step-in towards the west on the Carrington Street building ? 

A. Yes.
Q. You have explained why that was stepped ? A. Yes.
Q. If some person in future were so advised as to want to build on 

the central portion of this site, would it be structurally possible to fill 
up that step by cantilever processes ? A. Yes. After these heavy 
columns were built and the trusses taken up, the floors could be 
cantilevered over into that recess.

20 Q. Is cantilevering common enough in building work ? A. Yes.
Q. It is the foundation of a major type of bridgework, is it not ? 

A. Yes; one form of bridge construction.
Q. Assuming that in the 1954 plans they did not have false ceilings 

tinder the beams   assume the two cases, one where they did and one 
where they did not ? A. Yes.

Q. Now, where they did not have false ceilings, would the cost of 
maintenance be higher ? A. The re-decorative cost would be higher- 
Obviously the flat surface is much easier to redecorate than in the case 
where beams are projecting.

30 Q. Something was said about breaking up the light effect also ? 
A. Yes ; beams cast shadows on the ceiling, which reduced the reflection.

CROSS-EXAMINED Cross-
examination.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. Have you finished your structural designs for this 
1956 scheme yet ? A. No.

Q. To what point have you got ? A. To the stage where they are 
practically ready to hand over to the draughtsmen. There will be 
another fortnight's work.

Q. Have you been working at that continuously since you were 
instructed ? A. No.

40 Q. How long have you been working on them ? A. I would 
have to remember the time.
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in the Q. When did you start on them ? A. We started on them in June 
New I 956' and what has happened is that because of the pressure of other 

South Wales work the engineer directed to continue the design after the preliminary 
Equitable, framework had been done, has been called upon to do other work. 

jurisdiction. Q j gUppOge for costing purposes you keep account of the time
Defendant's OCCUpied ? A. Yes.

V-— ' Q. Could you look up and tell me how many hours your staff has 
NO.JI. been engaged on the job ? A. Yes. 

Llewellyn. Q And are your designs actually in existence on paper, that I
Ooss- could look at ? A. No; the designs are done on calculation sheets. \Q 

exam-nation. We could show the calculation sheets.
Q. And you have nothing on paper in the way of a structural design  

planwise ? A. The procedure in our office is to put tracing paper 
over the architectural drawing, and the designing engineer uses coloured 
pencil to mark out the different members of the structure.

Q. You have that ? A. Yes.
Q. And you also have your calculations ? A. Yes.
Q. Could you get them at half past 11 when we have a break, and 

bring them up ? A. Yes.
Q. And you will do that ? A. Yes. 20 
Q. And your staff has spent on them many hours ? A. Yes.
Q. What would it run into hundreds of hours ? A. I am 

guessing, but I would say about 100 hours.
Q. You have told my friend that you would not be sure that what 

you are contemplating to be built immediately on the Carrington Street 
frontage could carry a building to the 150 ft. height ? (Objected to), 
A. I say that we are not 100 per cent, sure yet, but we could tell the 
architect with confidence that that could be done.

Q. As a result of recent calculations ? A. Calculations that have 
been going on. 30

Q. You have got to that stage ? A. Yes.
Q. You are not sure, but you think you could advise him ? A. I 

am trying to explain the assumptions that we have to make. When the 
building goes to the full height there will be superstructures on the roof 
which we will have to just guess at tank rooms and services on the roof. 
What will probably happen is that, with regard to the columns that are 
in doubt and that are causing me to say that we are not 100 per cent, 
sure, we will probably have to say that any such superstructures cannot 
be put on that area and will have to go to another area. Those are the 
sort of doubts that we have. 40

Q. They are doubts as to what can be done on the existing proposed 
work ? (Objected to). A. No; it is a restriction on whoever 
completes the building, as to where he puts certain parts of his work.
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Q. Of course the job of determining a sub-structure to carry a 
projected 150 ft. building is not novel to an engineer, is it ? A. No.

Q. But, as you say, it takes a long time to work out and check up ? °^n itsa es
A. It takes a long time when you are not designing the foundations, Equitable
which are already there, and you are putting a centre section in. uns

Q. It takes some time ? A. Yes. Evidence.

Q. I want you to take this bundle of plans (handed to witness), and No. 6. 
just look at them quietly yourself, will you ? A. Yes. LieweU n

Q. Could you tell me, from those plans, whether what is there (^0̂ . 
10projected would be capable of extension up to 150 ft.? A. Assuming examination, 

that these were the same drawings   ?

Q. Yes ? A. If these are the exact copies of those we are working 
on in the office, with the same proviso, yes.

Q. Assuming that I was an engineer and I was just given that 
plan   ? A. No.

Q. So that if you were merely given what you are shown, you could
not tell whether it was capable of extension to 150 feet ? A. If given
time for checking you could. I mistook your first question. If given
this set of drawings and given time, it is a matter of calculation as to

20 whether you could take it to 150 feet.

Q. But it is a matter of design ? A. Yes.

Q. But if you were given no structural plan and if you were asked 
that question and given a short time   ?

HIS HONOR: What do you mean by a " short time " ? 

SIR GARFIELD : Three weeks.

WITNESS : Yes,
Q. Would you be able to tell whether it would go to 150 feet ? 

A. Yes.
Q. What would you have to do ? A. It would have to be 

30 calculated for each floor. It is easy to see how many bedrooms you would 
have to 150 feet, and by allowing for those loads taking the loads on 
each floor and taking them down to the foundation you could determine 
the total load. When it is put in that form it is not a detailed design, 
but it is possible to calculate whether it could go to 150 feet.

Q. But in order to determine what is proposed by these plans could 
be carried up to 150 feet, you would need to design a structural plan for 
it and would out loads and so on ? A. Yes, but it would only be an 
estimated design.

Q. And it would take you some time ? A. Yes.
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in (he Q. And could you tell, by looking at these plans, whether a building 
built to that design and carried up to 150 feet was susceptible of lateral 

South Wales extension across Wynyard Lane ? A.I am sorry. Are you presuming 
that the substructure is existing ?

Q yes;. I am assuming that. A. Across Wynyard Lane ?
Defendant's _^ , . . .
Evidence. Q. Yes. A. Well it is not a general case; it is a particular case.

j^~jj We have done a lot of investigation in relation to the substructure for
H. A. the previous 1954 scheme, and therefore it is a question of saying that any

Llewellyn, structure could be put across that easterly extension, the only limit being
Cross- the carrying capacity of the columns. 10

examination.
Q. But Where can you get to the carrying capacity of these columns 

from these drawings ? A. We say that any structure can be put over 
the columns according to their carrying capacity.

, Q. The columns need not be made any stronger for that design so 
far as those drawings are concerned is that the position ? A. The 
internal columns on the Carrington Street frontage are not affected by 

Q. I am not asking.you that. So far as these drawings are.concerned, 
the columns could be made just strong enough to carry any structure so 
far as those plans are concerned ? A. Yes.

Q. From those plans alone can you tell me whether a building built 20 
in accordance with those plans could have been extended laterally across 
Wynyard Lane ? A. I am sorry; I do not follow you exactly because 
these plans do not indicate anything.

Q. Exactly that is what I mean. A. Well, the answer is " No ".

Q. And from those plans alone you could not even tell whether that 
building was structurally possible ? A. Given time I could.

Q. By drawing other plans ? A. Yes.
Q. But from these plans, I mean ? A. No. Remember again 

that we did a lot of investigation into the 1954 scheme, and we could say 
that that part in the 1954 scheme would be possible because the loadings 30 
are similar.

Q. I am asking you about this plan ? A. Yes,

Q. In point of fact, that bundle is little more than a design, is it 
not ? I do not want you to be answering me in this sense, that you have 
done a lot of work since.

Mr WALLACE : Or before.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. It does not matter when. I do not want you to 
be answering me in the sense that because you have done a lot of work 
since you have certain advantages ? A. Could I put it this way ?

Q. What is the date on those plans (indicating) ? A. 25th June. 40
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Q. Put out of your mind the work you have done since the 25th June. in Me 
Then your answers to me would stand, would they not ? A. No. courtPojrNew 
What in fact happened was that Mr. Nicholls came along with some such South WaUa 
plan and said, "-Would it be possible ? "    EquMU

Q. Let me withdraw the question. Supposing you had not prepared Junsdtchon- 
any structural design for this building at all ? A. Yes. NO. e.

Q. That you were simply an engineer with a knowledge of what was Llewellyn. 
at Wynyard ? A. Yes.

Q. And you were given this plan only (indicating) ? A. Yes. examination.
10 Q. The question is, firstly, could you tell from those plans 'the 

strength of the columns ? A. On the spot, no.
Q. Or could you tell from those plans ? A. These plans do not 

give any detail of the structural carrying capacity of any parts   no.
Q. Nor could you tell, from those plans, whether that building was 

susceptible of extension to 150 ft. ? A. Well, I find a difficulty in 
putting myself in this hypothetical position. If another engineer looked 
at that, he would say, " Well, if the columns are to scale they look as if 
they would be capable of carrying a lot more ", and he would have to 
investigate.

20 Q. But he could not tell from this plan alone I A. No. ,
Q. And if I asked you whether the building could be extended 

laterally across Wynyard Lane, that indicates nothing ? A. That is 
so.

Q. And those plans are little more than a design ? A. Well, 
they are the sorts of plans that are put before us regularly, from which 
to prepare material.

Q. But from that point of view it is little more than a design ? 
A. An architectural design.

Q. After you get these architectural designed plans, the normal 
30 practice is that you set to work on structural plans ? A. Yes.

Q. And when you have finished your structural plans, it is quite 
common for the architectural plan or design to suffer modification ? 
A. Yes.

Q. And sometimes drastic modification ? A. Yes.
Q. And that is common experience ? A. Except this, that they 

run parallel. As soon as the engineer finds something he lets the 
architect know.

Q. And in this case the parallel running has not finished yet ? 
A. No ; it does not finish until the building is completed.

40 Q. But there comes a time when you do get structural plans which 
accord with the architectural plans, or vice versa ? A. Yes; that 
depends on the contract. If there is a multiple tender, that happens at 
the time you are going to tender.
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in the Q. You remember some preliminary structural sketches ?
Supreme A ~y Court of New  fl" x es>

S°1* Us"*™ Q- In Exhibit 10 which were produced to your office ? A. Yes.
Jurisdiaion Q' ^OW *onS WOU^ these take to prepare ? A. A matter of days.

^r  Q. They are so preliminary as to be the result of very short
H°'A.' preparation ? A. Yes. No, that is not quite right, because those

Llewellyn, columns usually take a long time, as regards work, but they had already
(>oss. been investigated in connection with the 1954 scheme, 

examination. Q jg ^ ̂ a£e Q^ ^ese piang true ? ^ That would be the date
on which our office system works. The final date would be when they 10 
were amended. If there is a letter after the number it would indicate 
that they had been amended, and they are supposed to change the date 
each time they are amended.

Q. There is a number on the plan " 1A " ? A. That indicates 
that there was some slight amendment made, and it was called " lA ", 
and then it would be immediately printed.

Q. This is dated 18th June (indicating) ? A. Yes.

Q. And you said that you made your calculations on the 13th June ? 
A. Yes.

Q. And these are the product of your calculations in the intervening 20 
days ? A. Yes.

Q. Well, it would be fair to say that they are very preliminary, 
would it not ? A. Except that the architect was asked to prepare 
plans so that the builder could give a ceiling price.

Q. I am not criticising what you did. A. If they were so 
preliminary that there was a tremendous extra on the job, we would be 
very unpopular, so that they are made with an eye to the fact that a 
builder is pricing on them. When the jobs are prepared to the stage 
of going to tender, that is the position.

Q. What about the provision of reinforcing steel ? A. Yes. 30
Q. That gives you great latitude of course, does it not ? A. No; 

the P.O. item is always a self-adjusting item in the tender, so that it 
does not give you great latitude. Those plans show the amount of 
concrete and the amount of formwork needed for the concrete, that the 
builder has to provide. Therefore, if they are a long way out, they are 
misleading to the builder. The reinforcing is a provisional item, anyway, 
and while it gives you a bit of latitude, it is not very much.

Q. Any change in these columns necessitated by this redesign is 
for the account of the building owner, is it not ? A. Yes.

Q. And any diminution, once you have a price from the builder, is 40 
not for the account of the building owner, is it ? A. In this case, 
yes.
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Q. You do not know that, do you ? A. Yes; I do know that. in the 
These plans were prepared on the beam and slab system, and the particular Cofrf o/"^ 
contractor who was giving the price was very keen on the flat-plate South Wales 
system. His prices were taken out on that drawing, and we are now EauMde 
preparing a flat-plate design, and savings will be made. jurisdiction. 

Q. That is what you think, is it ? A. Yes. Defendant's 
Q. Would you deny that the builder's price was to be on the ^_^ce - 

understanding that you would try and get it on a flat-plate design ? NO. e. 
A. I did not know that. All I was asked for was to make a flat-plate Llewellyn. 

10 design, and I said that we would.   
. .... Cross-

Q. You were asked about a scheme in 1954. Am I right in thinking examination, 
that the basis of your comparison is ease of construction ? A. To 
build, you mean ?

Q. Yes, to build, and perhaps simplicity of structural design, You 
have prepared them to see which is which from that point of view, have 
you not ? A. Yes. Simplicity of structural design would be a 
matter of individual design by individual engineers.

Q. But they were the factors that you had in your mind ? A. Yes- 
Q. You were a partner of Mr Stanley, were you not ? A. Yes.

20 Q. And were you working with him when he was designing the 
substructure at Wynyard ? A. I was a partner with him. I was not 
actually working on the job.

Q. And you know that he was the then lessee's engineer ? A. Yes.
Q. And he was working in conjunction with Mr Innes Kerr, the 

architect 1 A. In what scheme was that ?
Q. In the original scheme ? A. Yes.
Q. He was working with Mr Innes Kerr, the architect ? A. Yes,

Q. And he was the lessee's architect ? A. The then lessee's 
architect.

30 Q. I suppose you would know, would you not, that the actual 
dimensions of the columns in the sub-structure, as they now exist, were 
dictated by Mr Stanley's design ? (Objected to; pressed.)

HIS HONOR: On this question that we are now debating, as I 
understand, it is a question of reasonableness.

SIR GARFIELD : From the lessor's point of view.

Mr WALLACE : My friend says " from the lessor's point of view," but 
I do not agree with him.

HIS HONOR : Well, from both the lessor's and the lessee's points of
view what is reasonable in one case may be unreasonable in another.

40 I propose to let this evidence in. The logical thing in this class of case
is to go through the pleadings, look at the documents and then say,
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in the " Well, these are the issues; this is the true construction of the document; 
New ^na^ *s relevant and that is relevant, and this is irrelevant ", and to shut 

South Wales out everything on that basis which is irrelevant. What happens when 
EquMie *ae case §oes on *° aPPeal ig that the position sometimes is hopeless, and 

Jurisdiction, the whole thing comes back. I propose to allow it in. It is not getting 
Defendant's *°° ^ aneld, by any means. An objection has been raised and that 
Evidence, position has been protected. I think that it would be impossible for 
j^j me to conduct this case on the line of dealing with everything strictly 
H. A. as we go along; we would never get finished. I may be doing a wrong 

Llewellyn, thing, but my present intention is to let all this in. It is not getting too 10 
Cross- far afield, anyhow.

examination.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. Were not the sizes of the columns in the sub­ 
structure at Wynyard dictated by Mr Stanley's design ? A. I cannot 
answer that except from the evidence that I see in our office. I was 
not in his office then. I was not a partner of Mr Stanley. I joined him 
in 1946, so that I can only say that from the evidence in our office.

Q. You still have Mr Stanley's calculations ? A. Yes.
Q. And you still have his drawings in your office ? A. Yes.

Q. Could you get those for me ? A. Might I explain that Mr. 20 
Stanley was a man who was too impatient to put calculations on paper. 
I can show you lots of calculations that were prepared by his staff, 
to summarise the position. There are plenty of them there are drawers 
full of them. They are not indexed. Those are the sorts of things I 
am referring to (indicating).

Q. Do you recognise these as copies of Mr Stanley's calculations of 
the sizes of these columns that the Railways were asked to build for the 
lessee ? (Objected to.)

HIS HONOR : That does not prove that, Sir Garfield. 

WITNESS : They appear to be copies.

SIR GARFIELD : Will you see whether you have the originals of his 30 
calculations ? A. I would not have the originals. These are the 
originals I think (indicating).

Mr WALLACE : If you do not recognise, say so. Please be very careful. 

WITNESS : May I produce some ? 

HIS HONOR : Yes.

WITNESS : These are the sorts of things that we take to be calculations 
for the Plaza.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. Those are Mr Stanley's records ? A. Yes. 
Some of them are marked " Copy No. 1 ", others are marked " Copy 40 
No. 2 ", and so on.
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SIR GARFIELD : I want to directly establish that that actual plans of in the 
these columns and their dimensions were stipulated by the lessee for the ^J^o/"^^ 
lessee's purpose for a structure designed by the lessee, and that we build South Wales 
them at the lessee's direction. E^M>U

Jurisdiction.
Mr WALLACE : I submit that it is grossly irrelevant, and I think that   
I am fully justified in taking technical objections, and I do not want this Evidence. 8
witness to gloss over what I regard as technical matters.   

H.A.
HIS HONOR : Very well; you may take objection to anything that is Llewellyn, 
bad in form. Cross-

examination.

10 SIR GARFIELD : That is why I wanted the witness to get the drawings.

Q. Will you, without subpoena, bring all the drawings that you have 
in Mr Stanley's records all the drawings that relate to the Plaza Hotel, 
its substructure and its superstructure ? A. Yes.

Q. And secondly all his calculations which are still in the records, 
of the sizes of columns ? A. When ?

Q. You can fix your own time for that ? A.I have a space in the 
roof over my place at home, stored full of them. Mr Stanley had these 
drawings stored at his home. The Chief Draughtsman a nd I went through 
a lot of them. We destroyed what we thought were preliminary schemes, 

20 and there are still bundles and bundles of them. I am prepared to bring 
them to Court, if given transport, but I think they are going to clutter up 
the Court. I can bring in all documents relating to the Plaza Hotel, 
but it is a difficult job.

Q. Have you got his final set ? A. That is the difficult problem to 
determine what is the final set. The original design was done in 1933. 
There was an amendment to that design in some form that we are not 
able to find, in 1938, but . . . (The concluding portion of this answer 
was objected to and directed by His Honor to be struck out from the 
notes).

30 Mr WALLACE : If Sir Garfield wants documents produced, I do think 
on this particular matter that he will have to have a subpoena. I 
will argue this subpoena the same as he has argued all my subpoenas.

HIS HONOR : Let us take the matters one at a time. The first 
submission is that that is not an answer to the question, so that it has been 
struck out. Therefore, he had better go back to where he was describing 
the documents.

WITNESS : May I say this   ?

SIR GARFIELD : You had better not.
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HIS HONOE : The next thing is that the witness is asked, in the witness 
^OX' wnetner he is able to do something. He is not to be put into any 

South Wales worse position than if a subpoena had been served on him; so that I 
think that the better thing to do would be to give him a subpoena.

QABFIELD : Yes, and I give him foreknowledge of it now.

Evidence. HIS HONOR : Yes. As far as bringing them to the Court is concerned,
j^~~~j; I think he ought to have a subpoena ; otherwise it is not fair to the
H. A. witness. Mr Wallace, you have said that this matter of the earlier

T 1 11 > v

ideweuyn. pians jg quite immaterial and irrelevant. You may be right. Is it not 
Cross- possible for your side to check up the facts, and even if it be an irrele- 10

examination. vftnt fa(jt it ^^ be admitted if it be & f act ?

Mr WALLACE : I would certainly do that. My learned friend would 
only have to come to me and ask, and I would admit it for the purposes 
of the suit.

HIS HONOE: Yes; that is what I would thoroughly recommend. I 
have already said that I am going to allow evidence in which I think 
should go in. It might take weeks to do this technically, to get all the 
plans. The inference I have to draw is whether or not these columns 
which are actually there were put substantially in the form that they 
are there because of an earlier plan. Take an extreme case. If it be a 20 
fact that the sum of £109,000, that £109,000 must have covered specific 
work. It should be possible to discover whether those columns, for 
which £109,000 was expended, were columns to take the superstructure 
to a certain height, or whatever it was. That admission may be made 
without deciding whether the matter has got any relevance whatever.

SIE GAEFIELD : I submit that this is an issue in the pleadings. I 
want to bring the documents out in this way. The alternative way is 
very cumbersome.

HIS HONOR : I think that it should be possible to answer the question 
without going into all this detail. As a matter of common sense, it is 30 
apparent that interest would be paid on the £109,000, and that ought 
to be able to be checked up.

SIE GABFIELD : There is somewhere in our possession here the actual 
allocation showing which ones were paid for and which ones were not.

HIS HONOE : You may want some little time, Mr. Wallace, to think 
about this matter. In the meantime, this witness will have to get his 
subpoena. -

Mr WALLACE : If my friend wants to establish something which I 
think is irrelevant, I would, nevertheless, meet him in every case, but 
where I think the matter is grossly irrelevant and where he was attempt- 40 
ing to get it in this very inconvenient manner from this witness, then I 
would ask why cannot he get it from his own records?
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HIS HONOR: When we come to the records we will deal with them in the 
but if the records are available I cannot see why they cannot be shown 
and the question asked whether they were put there for the upper South Wales 
structure in this plan. E^UMU

Mr WALLACE: If, during the adjournment at half past eleven, my 
learned friend shows me what lie has and asks me to make an admission 
subject to relevance, I may be able to assist him.

No. 6.
HIS HONOR: Yes. That is an obvious suggestion. H.A.

Llewellyn.
SIR GARFIELD: Yes. That is the first time we have had that. _ Cross-

10 HIS HONOR: Have you asked for admissions on that ? examination.

SIR GARFIELD: Not specifically. My friend said that he was going 
to put me to formal proof and I indicated what were the specific facts 
I wanted to get out.

HIS HONOR: We won't waste any further time on it for the moment, 
but you might have a discussion during the short adjournment.

SIR GARFIELD: I obtained from Mr Nicholls certain plans which he 
had at the time and which were marked for identification No. 15.

Mr WALLACE: My clerk took those down to my chambers, and they 
are at present there.

20 SIR GARFIELD: Perhaps we could get those back again and I am 
prepared to discuss the matter.

HIS HONOR: Have you enough material to go on with, with this 
witness, on other matters between now and the short adjournment?

SIR GARFIELD: The next thing I have noted was to take him to 
m.f.i. "15", but if I ask him some questions now perhaps he could look 
at m.f.i. "15" himself.

HIS HONOR: Yes.
(At this stage a set of plans dated 25.9.56 were m.f.i. "17".)

SIR GARFIELD: My friend might later be prepared to admit that 
30 they were sent to us.

Q. You have, from time to time, looked at the plans of the sub­ 
structure prepared by Mr. Stanley? A. Not to any great extent. 
Remember that Mr Stanley had carried on the job up to the 1954 
scheme. Now we are presented with a number of columns sticking up 
at their respective levels, and with figures indicating what load they 
would carry, and that is where I start.

Q. But did you not look at any stage at any plan of Mr Stanley 
for the projected use of these columns ? A. Not for the use of the 
columns, no; for minor details on the job, that each architect requires  

40 not for the use of the columns.
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in the

South Wales 
in its

Equitable
Jurisdiction.
   

Evidence. 8

H° A.
Llewellyn,

Q. When we get these documents m.f.i. "15" L want you to have a 
a^ them and see whether you have seen them or their duplicates.

A. Yes.

HONOR : Q. You say that you started with columns showing
. ,     j , » TTabove certain points? A. Yes.

Q- And with figures showing earlier calculations"? A. Yes; as 
to what loads they were carrying.

Q- Did you accept those earlier calculations ? A. Yes ; otherwise 
ft would have meant checking right through.

. SIR GARFIELD: Q. And you had the advantage of seeing physically 10 
what was there? A. Yes, and Mr Stanley had said that he had 
checked with the Railway Department and they had agreed that that 
was the carrying capacity of those columns.

Mr WALLACE: Q. When was that? A. Some time before his 
death. I would not know when. It would be approximately somewhere 
about 1953/1954 when he first started the thorough investigation of the 
1954 scheme. He himself was in doubt as to which were the final calcu­ 
lations. That is why it is impossible for me to tell you.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. You say that figures were agreed to with the 
Railway Department? A. Yes. 20

Q. And were they recorded ? A. I cannot find any letter or any 
note of Mr Stanley to show that those are the final figures. I have 
two drawings, one indicating a set of final figures, and another set of 
drawings indicating another set of final figures, and   

Q. Show me the drawings. (Documents handed to Sir Garfield). 
This is one of those documents that you have got (indicating)? A. 
Yes.

Q. Whose handwriting is on it? A. That is definitely Mr Stan­ 
ley's handwriting. Those (indicating) are his initials. "These load­ 
ings were determined on the basis of the 1933 designs and are modified 3Q 
by the 1938 designs ; see the new third floor sheet No. PXIII. ' ' I found 
what I took to be "PXIII" (indicating) which gives another system of 
loadings.

Q. You, with your knowledge of plans, think that this PXIII coin­ 
cides with the PXIII in Mr Stanley's handwriting on the first of the 
sheets that you produced? A. Yes.

(Documents tendered).

HIS HONOR : Mr Wallace has indicated that he may or may not make 
admissions. I think, however, that these documents are only loading 
the case at the moment. The witness does not mind leaving these 40 
documents in the custody of the Court.

WITNESS : No.
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HIS HONOR : He wants them back because they are part of his per- /» the
rmnpnt rp^nvrle Suprememanent records. Court ^ New

( Two drawings m.f .i. " 18 ". ) So"*

HIS HONOR: The witness has indicated that he does not mind them jurisdiction. 
remaining in the custody of the Court.   

Defendant's

SIE GARFIELD -. Q. You have two other column plans, one relating to Evidence. 
the second floor level? A. Yes. No. 6.

Q. And the other relating to the fourth floor level! A. Yes. Llewellyn.

Q. And with a column loading calculation on each? A. Yes. Cross- 

10 Q. And these (indicating) you have got from Mr Stanley's records, examination- 
I take it? A. Yes.

Q. What is this one (indicating)? A. This is a photostat which 
I think Mr Stanley got from the Railway Department.

Q. You found them in his records immediately ? A. Yes, it indi­ 
cates   again I have no means of showing that this is the final plan   it 
indicates a foundation plan.

Q. This has a date  1934? A. Yes.
Q. Does this show any floors (indicating) ? A. That is the foun­ 

dation.
20 Q- This other document that you produced   what is that? A. 

This is a Department of Railways plan of column 51, immediately below 
where we started to extend. It would be the last length of column 51 
built under the Joe Gardiner's scheme.

Q. It carries up to where? A. That section, SL36.76 (indi­ 
cating).

Q. SL is street level, is it? A. No, standard level. That 
amount of it (indicating) would be projecting above the concrete. 51 
would have been at the Wynyard Lane level.

Q. When you said "that much", you meant that much which is 
30 above the line 36.76? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see anything amongst Mr Stanley's records like plans 
of columns at Wynyard? A. Yes.

Q. There were a large number of them? (Objected to). A. 
There would be 5 or 6 such sheets.

Q. Whether or not there were more would depend upon a search 
of his records? A. Yes.

(Four sheets of plans forming part of Mr Stanley's records 
m.f.i 19).

HIS HONOR: Q. Do you mind if they remain in the Court tempor- 
40arily? A. No.

Q. You can always have them back later. A. Yes.



154

in the SIR GARFIELD: Q. At the bottom of some of these documents I 
ourtirNew notice tne name of James Bell? A. Yes. James Bell was really 

South Wales retained in those days (Objected to).
Equilabu Q- Mr Stanley had some connection with James Bell? A. Yes. 

jurisdiction. Q DQ you know the James Bell referred to? (Objected to).

Q- D° you know what James Bell did? (Objected to; pressed; 
admitted). A. I know one of the things they did; they supplied 

g°' - the coke breeze, the blocks used in plaster.
Llewellyn. Q j)0 yOU remember telling my friend something about what you 

Cross- called weak columns? A. Yes. 10
Q. And by "weak columns" do you mean columns which were 

only designed to go up a certain distance in a projected building  
therefore to carry a limited load? A. Yes.

Q. Have a look at Exhibit 10, sheet 1 (shown to witness). What 
are the weak columns on that? A. 53, 55, 78 and 79 (indicating).

Q. They are not the only weak ones in the sub-structure? A. 
No.

Q. There are more? A. Yes.

Mr WALLACE: I want to make an application for the sake of con­ 
venience. I wish to call, amongst others, an architect named Mr Laurie 20 
who has been waiting to be called for some days and who has important 
engagements out of the city after this afternoon. I think that his 
evidence will be much shorter than either of the two witnesses already 
called. Could I have Your Honor's permission, with my friend's con­ 
currence, to interpose him at 12 o'clock, and finish his examination 
and cross-examination so that he may get away?

SIR GARFIELD: That would be contingent, as far as I am concerned, 
in having him perhaps recalled if I ascertain something from a witness 
during the course of the case.

Mr WALLACE: The only difficulty is that tomorrow he will in the 3Q 
ordinary course be in another part of the State.

SIR GARFIELD: Well, the day after will do. I would rather not 
interrupt this witness, but of course I would like to meet Mr Laurie's 
convenience.
HIS HONOR: If he is not here tomorrow, nobody will demur.

Mr WALLACE: He will be away from the city tomorrow.

HIS HONOR: The convention is that that will not prejudice you.

SIR GARFIELD: I show you document m.f.i. "15". (handed to wit­ 
ness). You have the sheet which 'shows all these columns which you 
call weak? A. Sheet 1. 40 

Q. Sheet 1 of m.f.i. 15? A. Yes
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Q What are the numbers of them? A. 53, 55, 78, 79, 98, 99, in the
I 14. aurl 117 Supreme 
114 and II I. Court of New

South Wales
Mr WALLACE: Q. That is eight? A. Yes. in its

Equitable
Mr WALLACE: The witness has pointed out on sheet 1 the weak Juriadiction-
columns. Defendant's

Evidence.
SIR GAEFIELD: Q. Did you see in this set of drawings just look ^-^
to see if you can see in this 'set of drawings anything that would indi- H. A.
cate to you that these columns were originally designed to be trussed kk^eUyn-
over? A. In this set of drawings? Cross- 

examination.
10 Q. Yes, ni.f.i. 15. (Witness peruses documents). You do not 

see anything in that bundle. You do not see anything in that bundle? 
A. No.

Q. Do you see anything in that bundle that indicates the purpose 
of having those columns with less carrying capacity than other 
columns ! A. No purpose, but some are indicated to be steel, and 
some are indicated to be concrete.

Q. Some are not as strong as others? A. That is so.

Q. Does it indicate any purpose of having some weaker than 
others? A. Yes.

20 Q- Have you seen a copy of that bundle of plans in Mr Stanley's 
records? A. I certainly have not seen a bundle like that (indicat­ 
ing). I recognise individual sheets.

Q. I do not mean bundled up in that way. Just take them sheet 
by sheet and tell me if you have 'seen duplicates of those in Mr. 
Stanley's possession? A. I cannot answer precisely that I have seen 
a duplicate of that, but I have seen sheets like this (indicating).

Q. What do you call those (indicating)? A. Reinforcement 
detail plans of one section of one floor.

Q. See whether anything is indicated on those plans of the purpose 
30 of not having that line of columns as strong as the rest? (Witness 

peruses documents). A. No, nothing.

Q. Do you notice that these are all plans bearing Mr Stanley's 
initials? A. Yes.

Q. What do you call these plans (indicating) ? A. Engineering 
working details of the sub-structure.

Q. Are you sufficiently familiar with the existing sub-structure to
be able to agree with me that what is at Wynyard in the sub-structure
is in accordance with these drawings ? A. Only in the external shape
but not the internal details, with this proviso, that all of this was not

40 built.
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in the Q. But so much as is there? A. Yes ; so much of that as is there 
Court* of >New ^s in accordance with the drawings.

in its (Bundle of engineering plans m.f.i. 20.)
Equitable

Jurisdiction. Q. I want to now show you m.f.i. 4. (handed to witness). The
Defendant's first question is whether you have seen copies, either originals, tracings,
Evidence. Or blueprints, of the same drawings in Mr Stanley's records? A. 1

NO. 6. have memories    
H. A. 

Llewellyn. Q. I do not want you to strain }'our memory. A. I have not
seen any of these recently. I did think we had copies of those, but I

examination, have not been able to find them of recent weeks. 10

Q. But you have seen things like those amongst his records? A. 
Yes.

Q. Looking at m.f.i. 4, can you say whether you can see the purpose 
of not making that line of columns which were mentioned as not as 
strong as the others? (Witness peruses documents).

Mr WALLACE : These are all produced by my friend from his archives. 

WITNESS : Could I have the question again?

SIE GARFIELD : Q. The question is, can you now see the purpose, 
from those plans, of not making the line of columns which you called 
"weak" as strong as the others! A. Yes, the reason for it is    20 
(Objected to).

Q. Can you see the reason? A. Yes. (Objected to).

Q. Can you tell me what the apparent reason is on those plans? 
(Objected to).

HIS HONOR: If the argument is that the columns that were there 
were columns to suit a certain design, and the design called for trusses 
across and so on, then it is only a detail of the general picture. Anyway, 
I am very hopeful that you will have a fruitful conference, and if you 
do I would suggest that you put down in black and white that which 
is admitted and that which is not admitted as the case may be. If 30 
any time you spend produces an admission covering the field we are 
now discussing it will save so much time and expense that it will be 
worth while extending the short adjournment a little longer. I regard 
this as very important.

SIE GARFIELD: Yes, but I have an expert witness here at the 
moment, and I would like to put a question to him.

HIS HONOR: The evidence can be taken in this form, that to his 
expert mind, those plans show certain things which can be linked up 
later.
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SIR GARFIELD: I can talk to my friend afterwards on this matter. in the
Supreme

HIS HONOR: I will admit this question on the basis Hint those plans Court of New
 ...,,,, , ,. . ' x South Wales

m.r.i. 4 will be subsequently linked up. in its
Equitable

SIR GARFIELD: Q. Having looked at these plans (indicating), are Jurisdiction. 
you able to say that they indicate to you that the strength or weakness Defendant's 
of that line of columns and the fact that they only were designed to Evidence, 
go up to a certain level, was dictated by features of the design which ^Te. 
are shown in this set of drawings (indicating)? A. Yes, because H - A - 
of that ballroom (indicating)   (Objected to). ewe yn'

10 HIS HONOR: Q. A ballroom shown on one of the sheets ? A. Yes. examination,

SIR GARFIELD: Q. And was the necessity to insert trusses in a 
building to go over the Wynyard Lane area the centre area of this 
site determined by features of this design? (Objected to; admitted). 
A. Yes, because the building was continued with internal columns above 
the ballroom.

HIS HONOR: Q. That is what those plans disclose to you as an expert? 
A. Yes.

HIS HONOR: That is not evident yet; it depends on the plans being 
linked up. 

20 Q. You have been asked to produce something? A. Yes.
Q. And you made a promise that you would go somewhere and get 

it? A. Yes.
Q. How long would it take you? A. Twenty minutes.
Q. If it would take longer, you might say so. A. N'o, 10 minutes.

SIR GARFIELD: If we could adjourn till '2 o'clock I might be able 
to get an admission that would obviate a tremendous lot of evidence.

HIS HONOR: Mr Wallace is quite well aware of the general situation. 
Are you now in a position to discuss the matter with the other side  
this question of any proposed admission?

30 Mr WALLACE: I do not know what the proposed admissions are. I 
would want to know with precision what the form of the admissions 

  sought is.

HIS HONOR: Well, the first step will be that Sir Garfield will write 
down the form of the admissions that he wishes you to make. You will 
get that in a short time.

SIR GARFIELD: Within half an hour.

HIS HONOR: You will then be in a position to look at it and discuss 
it, and you have your clients here who may be able to help you. I would 
suggest that you discuss the matter between now and '2 o'clock.
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In the Mr WALLACE: Yes, but I make no promises. I would want to know 
wuat the admissions sought are, and what they are aimed at. I will 

South Wales have to think very carefully whether I ought to make these admissions 
Equable, but ^- w^ do whatever I can.

unsj.ci . jjjg HONOE: I will make this comment, that it seems to me that this 
matter ought to be able to be decided "Yes" or "No" that those 
columns were the result of a certain idea. However, I will say no 

No. 6. more.
JdL A.

Llewellyn. ^v WALLACE: I will give the matter very serious consideration.

examination. HIS HONOE: On Sir Garfield undertaking to put his suggested admis- 10 
sions in writing, and Mr Wallace undertaking to look at them and 
consider them carefully, I will adjourn till 2 o'clock.

SIE GrAEFIELD: I drafted and gave to my friend the admissions in 
principle that I wanted. There was not time to tidy the language 
completely. I supplied such files and other material as he asked for. 
My friend tells me he is as yet uncertain, and asks me to defer it. 
I do not mind that to a point, though 1 may not be able to go along 
with trespassing on the ground. I tried to phrase what I asked him 
in accordance with what I firmly believe can be proved from documen­ 
tary matter. It will need to be pieced together because of the lapse 20 
of time. Having given my friend the admissions I am content to let 
the matter rest for the afternoon, but I would not be prepared to let 
it rest indefinitely. We have prepared a subpoena for this witness and 
whein he is in a situation, he can be served he will be served.:

HIS HONOE: Mr. Wallace, you will no doubt as soon as possible go 
into these matters.

Mr WALLACE: Some of the admissions put to me by my friend I 
will note. The ones causing me doubt are due to the fact that I do not 
have sufficient information in my possession to make an intelligent 
decision, nor has the material which my friend has been good enough 30 
to supply me with just before lunch seemed to me to quite cover the 
position.

SIE GrAEFIELD: You remember before we adjourned I showed you 
m.f.i. 4 and you answered certain questions in interpretation of those 
plans. Will you agree with this, that the real problem in the develop­ 
ment of the leased area stems from the fact that in order to build over 
the line of weak columns it is necessary to construct large trusses? 
A. Above the fourth floor.

Q. At some level? A. Yes.
Q. The 1956 design of Mr Nicholls avoids those difficulties ? A. 49 

Yes.
Q. By not delving into the area where the line of weak columns is? 

A. Yes.
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Q. In short, his design takes a portion of the demised land where in the 
there is no such problem? A. Yes.

Q. And in short, it leaves the problem of the development of the So«* 
centre of the area for somebody else in the future? A. Yes. Equitable

/-VAT .  ." 11) >^r Jurisidction.
Q. i ou remember seeing the 19o4 plans ? A. Yes.    
Q. You made certain comments to my friend as to them? A. Evidence. 8

Yes.
No. 6.

Q. There would be no difficulty in (leave out questions of economics H. A. 
for the moment; I am talking about structure) trussing over this line LleweUyn' 

10 of weak columns if the trusses were placed at say the first floor level, Cross- 
viewing the matter from the Carrington St. level? A. No difficulty. examination-

Q. Column 51 and its counterpart, column 57, on the Northern end, 
are already constructed up to that level, in steel ? A. Yes.

Q. If you were to truss over the line of weak columns at that level, 
that is the first floor level, you would be able to carry on on the platform 
formed on the trusses a building which did not extend to the full 
width of the trusses"? A. YTes.

Q. From your knowledge of the columns and of the possibilities of 
structure with the trusses there would be nothing to prevent a building 

20 built on the platform on the trusses at that level from going up to the 
full permissible height'? A. That would need checking for one small 
point. The so-called weak columns, the low load bearing columns were 
designed to carry loads up to the 4th floor. In your suggestion you are 
taking some of that load and putting it on to the trusses, which transfers 
it across to 57 and 51, thereby putting more load on 57 and 51.

Q. You could check that for me'? A. Yes.
Q. Columns 57 and 51 are calculated to something like 6i million 

Ibs. You could check that ? A. It needs a lot of checking.
Q. You have not enough information to which you have already 

3Q been'? A. You mentioned the building, not the full width of the 
space between 57 and 51. Obviously it is a question of how wide the 
building is as to how much load. I would have to make some assump­ 
tion.

Q. You know what load could be transferred to those iwo columns, 
51 and 57, and those in the same line East and West of them ? A. 
We know the load they will carry.

HIS HONOR: Q. That is the load they are capable of carrying ? A. 
Yes.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. You could compute the load which a building 
40 from the first floor Carrington St. Level up to the building height 

would constitute. You can take for example its width arbitrarily to 
begin with? A. Provided we have a plan of what the proposed 
building is, we could do that.
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In the
Supreme

Court of New
South Wales

in its
Equitable

Jurisdiction.

Defendant's 
Evidence.

No. 6.
H. A.

Llewellyn.

Cross- 
examination.

Q. Either just a plan commercial building or a building of hotel 
rooms? A. It is capable of calculation.

Q. I was wondering what the great difficulty about it was? A. 
Firstly what does this building look like 1 Do we take something out of 
the air or have we a sketch plan of what the building is to be ? I got 
from your question that you were not going to fully enclose the space 
between 57 and 51. Obviously if it is a quarter of the space you have a 
quarter of the load.

Q. You could tell me without very much calculation what per­ 
centage of the width between 51 and 57 could be occupied by a building JQ 
up to 150 feet? A. It is not quite as easy as that. It would be a 
long calculation.

Q. I suppose when m.f.i. 17 was offered it would have been a singu­ 
larly long calculation to determine what was offered in m.f .i. 17 to carry 
up to 150 feet? A. At that stage we had checked the columns and 
knew the loadings. Now you are asking me to check a column remote 
from that which is carrying quite a different loading.

Q. You know the loading? A. I know the carrying capacity but 
not the new load. Most of that had been checked for the 1954 scheme, 
and only a few columns had to be re-checked. 20

A. WeQ. I was asking you about taking it up to 150 feet high ? 
had to check that for 150 feet.

Q. Did that take a long time ? A. The complete thing took nine 
days.

Q. You do not think you can answer me firmly if you trussed over 
the first floor level Carrington Street you could send the building up on 
trusses? A. I think it could be done, but it would have to be checked 
for me to say yes.

Q. From your knowledge gained from the past association you 
have with the original scheme, the 1954 and 1956 schemes, and any 39 
intervening work, you see nothing improbable or unlikely in that? 
A. That is so.

Q. You told my friend that there was a contract called contract 
No. 2 to do something connected with the cool room? A. Contract 
No. 1 was the cool rooms. Contract No. 2 was additional steel stan­ 
chions.

Q. Can you show me on one plan where the cool rooms are ? A. 
Yes.

Q. Which plan would you need? A. The 1954 scheme, Wynyard 
Lane. 40

HIS HONOR: Q. You were speaking of Nos. 51 and 57. Show me 
them on the plan (shown). You get over the difficulties of getting
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across by putting1 a hole through the truss ? A. Yes. My main cliffi- In the 
culty in answering Sir Gal-field's question was that he said the first oof^ 
floor. This truss is on the foiirth floor. South Wale*

in its
SIR GARFIELD: Q. You would see no difficulty if I posed the ques- jSS». 
tiou by suggesting a truss at the 4th Hoor? A. That is so.   

Defendant's

Mr WALLACE: Q. The reason is that with the trussing on the first ETidence- 
floor you would be putting additional weight on the outside big columns No- 6 - 
which would have been taken by the inside small columns at the fourth Llewellyn, 
floor level? A. Yes. (Sheet 4 of Exhibit H shown). That is the c~ 

10 cold room area there. It is the South-western corner. examination

SIR (iAKFIELD: < L>. It is the portion edged black on the South-western 
corner of Sheet 4? A. The roof slab extended beyond those columns 
to a point approximately a quarter of the distance between that line 
of columns and that line.

( t). Can we fix the numbers of those columns.' A. That is 51.

< t>. Beyond the line of columns of which 51 forms part ? A. That 
is so. The steel columns were constructed at that stage and a con­ 
crete bridge taken over.

(,). That was the cool room work that was done? A. Yes.

20 ^- Were some of the columns extended after this work on the 
cool room? A. Yes. those columns taken in in Xo. 1 contract were 
extended higher.

Q. Let us get the numbers of them. Take Exhibit P. Can you 
see the numbers on that one? A. Column 76.

Q. These are the columns that were extended? A. It is a little 
difficult because the first lift of 76 and 51 were in contract No. 1, but 
then an additional storey of the same column was put on under contract 
'2. Columns numbered 76, 51, ~2S, ;->(), ?>'2, 57 and SI arc the columns.

<. L>. Do not worry at what stage or under what contract. They 
30 were at some stage extended in steel ? A. Yes.

Q. Up to what level? A. From memory one floor above 
Carrington Street.

Q. A whole floor? A. One complete storey height above 
Carrington Street. I am not certain of that.

Q. You can verify that. Not '26'! A. '26 should have been 
included. -6 was structural steel.

< t). The full order is 76, 51, '26, :2S, ISO, :\'2, 57 and Si.? A. Yes.

(,). They were carried up to one floor level above Carrington 
Street in steel 1 A. That is right. 

40 Q. What year? A. 1956.
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In the. Q. Tell me what plans you will need to answer this question. You 
New are familiar with what exists at the existing Plaza Hotel! A. With 

South Wales large slices of it.
in its

Equitable Q. Tell me if you need another view to answer me. Is not every- 
jurMiction. t^ns ^^ ig constructed there, with tlie exception of the cool room, 
Defendant's in conformity with the documents m.f.i. 4 that I showed you and m.f.i.
Evidence. 2() ^ wnich wag the preceding detail of the sub-structure? A. The 

No. 6. early part of your question was "is everything in conformity Avith
Lle^eUyn. this"?

c   Q. Yes.' A. No. 10 
examination. Q. What divergence ? A. The 1947 minor additions. There are 

several fan rooms, motor rooms built on the Wynyard Lane that do 
not conform.

Q. Apart from those tilings, the rest that is there conforms to 
the plans which were shown to you as m.f.i. 4 and 20? A. To the 
best of my knowledge.

(}. And the extension of those columns is in conformity with tlie 
original plans ? Would you like to look at them ? A. Yes. These 
arc architectural drawings and they would be correct as regards 
location but not as regards size. These drawings do not indicate any 20 
size of column.

(L). Are the steel extensions to the same specification as the 
immediately sub-jacent portion of the same column? A. The sub­ 
section of the same column, yes. That sheet shows reinforced concrete 
columns. The ones we have been talking about arc steel.

Mr WALLACE: Which sheet shows reinforced concrete? 

SIR GARF1ELD: He has m.f.i. 20.

WITNESS: There is a reinforced concrete schedule. The sheet No. 
C660 39A, 40A and 51.

SIR (JARFIELD: Q. First of all the sheet shows the columns we are 30 
talking about ought to go up in the area where these now go up in 
structural steel? A. Yes.

Q. Now you want to sec the dimension? A. Unfortunately it 
is marked "060 " and it is blank. "Structural steel column 51 typical 
for all columns.". There are no structural steel sizes.

Q. Oannot you tell the sixes from that? A. No.

Q. You may have to look right through it quietly. It may not be 
there. I will reserve that question whether the plans do not demon­ 
strate to you that the extension that has been effected in structural 
steel, the columns we spoke of, is in fact in accordance with the original 40 
drawings.



I think you were satisfied that that column as extended to that 
distance in steel that column and those in the same line would have c 
been sufficiently substantial to carry these trusses of which I have South Wales 
spoken! A. Yes. Equitable

Q. So as to permit development over the centre of the leased area? J""sd>^ 011 -
A. Yes. Defendant's

Q. Do remember tolling my friend that you were in some doubt __
as to whether you could carry the building up over the Carrington St. «''\°'
1956 project to its full 150 feet height ? A. Yes. Lie^iyn.

10 Q. Did I understand you to say that one of your reasons was some CTOSS- 
doubt as to the strength of column 51 ? A. Xo, 51 is one of the ones examination, 
wo know are all right.

Q. You told my friend that any person who came to this area after 
the 1956 Carrington St. project had been built, would be able to insert 
trusses at, I think, you said, the 4th or 5th floor levels; that would be the 
4th or 5th Carrington St. levels? A. Between the 5th and 6th floors, 
but measured from George Street. They are the historical floor levels.

Q. What would they be in relation to Carrington St. A. Car­ 
rington St., 2nd floor.

20 Q- ^t any rate that would bo at least one floor above the upward 
limit of the extension of those columns in stool? A. That is right. 
1 cannot quite remember whore the tops of those stanchions are at 
moment. They would be higher.

Q. Whether a whole floor or part of the floor? A. Yes.
Q. The stool stanchions do stand up a little more than one floor 

level. They would have to bo decapitated? A. They are spliced.
Q. In the engineering structural preliminary plans, Exhibit 10, 

sheet '2, you have a columns schedule of sorts? A. Yes.
Q. The two columns that would bo concerned with a truss if you 

30 wcilt to go into it subsequently between the 5th and 6th floor would be 
Xos. 51 and 57? A. That is so.

Q. They are carried up according to your column schedule above 
their existing level in reinforced concrete? A. That was the inten­ 
tion at this stage.

Q. Assume that schedule to be the building project, you will agree 
that it would be impossible to put a truss in between the 5tb and 6th 
floor on a reinforced concrete extension of columns 51 and 57? A. 
1 would not agree with that.

Q. You have your dimensions of the reinforced concrete? A. 
40 Yes.

Q. Are you prepared to say that you could insert on that rein­ 
forced concrete extension a truss and carry a load upon it to the build­ 
ing limit height? A. Yes.
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in the Q. Have you worked it out :' A. That column was designed to 
(/0fr7o/"^ei« rarl'.v th° full height building. T have not worked that particular one
South Wales Out.

Equitable Q. 1 am not talking about your Carrington St. building. If some- 
jurisdiction. one came along and put in a truss to carry a further load of a building 
Defendant's in the centre of this area up to the height, you say that reinforced
Evidence, concrete member would carry it.' A. Yes. 

No.e. Q. you do? A. Yes.
xi. A.

Llewellyn. Q. Have you calculated it ? A. No.

Cross- Q. Do you want time to calculate it or arc you prepared to pledge 10 
examination. you] . 1. oputa tioii on it? A. 1 will put my reputation on it. May I 

explain why ?

Q. No. You know why. You say notwithstanding the fact it is 
(xtended in reinforced concrete it would carry the trusses we are 
talking about? A. Yes.

Q. That is both 51 and 57 ? A. Yes.
( t). Do you remember that \vas an isometric drawing of the 

possible extension of the 1!>5(> scheme both in Carrington St. and in 
George St.? A. Yes.

< t). (Exhibit 2 shown and also Exhibit !')  Vou will agree that the 20 
Western wall of the suggested George St. extension in this isometric 
drawing and in Exhibit 4 (shown), that is to say this wall in section 
BB at the left hand corner and the same wall below in the plan 
view and the Western wall of this isometric drawing is intended to 
uo above the line of columns in Exhibit P which run from 117 to 119; 
is that right, that that wall is vertically above that line of columns? 
A. I have never chocked it.

< LK I want you to check it? A. That necessitates scaling this 
»irawing, which has not a scale marked on it. I should imagine so. 
There is nothing to indicate columns. 30

(t). It has dimensions on it to calculate floor areas? A. I did 
not. calculate it.

(,). Just look at these two exhibits, P and the diagram. Can you 
see any other place that this Western wall could be placed except over 
the line of columns 117 to 119? A. It could be between columns. 1 
should think the architects would determine the back wall by the width 
of the bedrooms, corridor and bedrooms and if that came over 
the line of columns it would be good luck.

Q. You will agree with me that if the ^\'estern wall in George 
Street came over that line of columns it. could not lie built without 40 
trussing over 117 to 119 ? A. Not above the fourth floor.

< t). If this docs indicate a wall which is over that line of column-, 
it could only be built by trussing above the fourth floor? A. It could
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be built by trussing; not "only'', there are many oilier ways, but that / 
is the logical way. fV)*j

Q. On the ('arrington SI. side the architect obviated the need for 8m'fn
trussing by stepping back and putting the line of columns on a beam Equitable
borne on a heavy truss below it? A. Hardly the architect. Jim^><-iwn,

Q.You did? Between the two of vou ">. A. It was avoided. Defendant's
Evidence,

(). Tt was avoided bv that device ? A. Yes.  
Xo. 0.

Q. You could not repeat that device on the George St. side without H. A. 
demolition? A. I have never investigated that. Llewellyn.

10 Q. I may take it that Mr Nicholls at no time asked yon as to the 
practicality of the point of view of structure of that George St. 
projected development? A. No.

Q. (Exhibit 10 shown.) You made a remark to me when you were 
looking at these that at the time this column schedule showed an exten­ 
sion of columns 51 and 57 in reinforced concrete? A. That is right.

( L). Do T take from that that you have altered that subsequently.' 
A. Xo.

(,). Xot as yet? A. Xo. This design is not complete, as I 
explained.

20 (v). Have you yet altered it in some way? A. Xo.
Q. Do yon project altering it in that respect? A. We do not 

know until the design is completed.
Q. This extension of 51 and 57 in reinforced concrete above tlie 

first floor is a reinforced steel column 44 x 44? A. Yes.
Q. That is true of 51 and 57 ? A. Xo.
Q. 57 is slightly smaller; is it 44 x 40? A. Yes.
Q. Where do I get any reinforcing steel sizes on this preliminary 

sketch? A. Yon don't. They are included in the p.c. items.
Q. There is nothing to indicate looking at this? A. Xo.

30 Q. (Exhibit L2, shown.) That is LL>, which is the architectural 
drawings of the 1956 project. Do you recall that all the columns aiv 
shown in the architectural drawings as new or extended columns are 
shown as reinforced concrete columns on the drawings ? A. You 
would not take the architectural drawings to indicate what the columns 
are made of. They colour them green sometimes whether they are steel 
or concrete.

Q. One could not tell by looking at L2 or any plan coloured simi­ 
larly to it, whether the columns proposed to be built were in steel or 
reinforced concrete? A. That is so.

40 Q. May I take it that without your structural preliminary drawings 
and the column schedule you could not tell their size from the architec­ 
tural drawings? A. That is so.



166

lathe Q. If one had beside the architectiu-al drawings, your preliminary 
structural drawings one could still not tell the size of the reinforcing 

South Wales material that was to he used in the columns? A. No.

Equitable Q. If one had in addition to the specification (Exhibit El shown) 
Jurisdiction. onp eould ]lf)t ^n thp siz(J of th<? re{nforcing material? A. No.

Defendant's Q_ () ]ie woult| observe from the specification that there is no provi-
   ' sion for stnctural steel except, I think, in connection with some awn-

No. 6. i 118. s? A. That is so, I think.
il, A.

Llewellyn. Q other than that, there is no provision for structural steel ?
Cross- A. That is so. 10

examination. j)ave ^]e arciutectural drawings and the specification
one could conclude that the columns Avere all to be of reinforced con­ 
crete? A. That is so.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. You did agree, did yon not, at the Licensing 
Court where you gave evidence     ? A. Yes.

< t). That the 1954 plan could be so adjusted as to make a fiat-plate 
building? A. The 1954 scheme ?

Q. Yes? A. No.
Q. You did not? A. No.
Q. Down at the Licensing Court the 1954 plan was called "Scheme 20 

B", was it not? A. No ; the other way round. Wasn't it scheme A ?
Q. Well, that was my mistake. Tlie 1954 plan was scheme A ? 

A. Yes.
Q. This was what was said at the Licensing Court :  

"Q. And could scheme A be varied to make it a flat plate? 
A. It could, but not this plan. ' '

A. I think that we must have been discussing the filling up of the 
section.

Q. Let me read you the questions on each side of it   p. 11. You 
were being asked about flat plate in Scheme B ? A. Yes. 30

Q. You were asked these questions :  
"Q. You cannot produce an actual plan showing a flat plate 

scheme for scheme B ? A. I think we can   I would like to be 
sure of this   we were asked to go ahead preparing details to 
save time when the contract was ready to proceed, and we have 
gone further than the preliminary exploration needed to get the 
thing under way. I think the flat plate was not shown.

Q. It shows a beam and slab the same as scheme A ? A. 
Yes.

Q. And could scheme A be varied to make it a flat plate .'40 

A. It could, but not this plan. ' ' 
A. Yes; that is it,
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Q. That means that it could be adjusted ? A. Yes, if the plan in the 
shape was altered. ,, *f f";Court of New

Q. And that is my question it could if the plan was adjusted? South Wales
\ -TT- * IH 'llS 

• J- OS. Equitable

Q. And if you had a truss either at the first floor level at Carrington ' 
Street or between the 5th and 6th floor level   ? Defendant's

Jividenee.
H1S HONOR: George Street. ^

SIR GABFIELD: Yes; George Street. Lie^eUyn.
Q. One could built a flat-plate without any difficulty? One could Cross. 

10 design a flat-plate building? A. Structurally, but not generally, examination, 
because of the absence of light courts.

Q. You are understanding what I am putting to you, that instead 
of trying to get an internal light court, as in the 1954 effort, you had 
a narrower building? You had light on both sides? A. Provided 
that building covered more than one span between two columns, the 
answer is "Yes.", but if you had a narrow building .spanning only 
between two columns, the answer is "No".

Q. Tt depends on the width of the building? A. Yes.
(,). The wider you made it the more likely you would be to succeed 

20 in a flat-plate design J? A. Yes.

HIS HONOR: Q. That depends on the width of your rooms? A. 
The span between the columns.

Q. If you wanted light on either side, it would depend on the width 
of your rooms ? A. Yes.

Q. And whether you used one or two lines of columns would depend 
on economics? A. Yes; it is tied up with the architect's economics, 
and other things. There are a lot of factors.

SIR GARFIKLD: Q. But when you come to build a commercial build­ 
ing, there is no limitation on the depth of a room from a window, is 

30 there? A. Yes there is.
Q. Is there a statutory regulation governing the matter? A. 

Yes. Well, I must be careful here. It is not directly within my pro­ 
vince, but it happens so often that we come up against that particular 
problem of architects.

Q. But they do not like to go too far  (Objected 1o). A. I am 
pretty certain there is a restriction on them. The City Council By-laws 
govern the matter, I think.

Q. You think they do? A. Yes.
Q. Just look at this plan which shows the columns at the level 

40 of the ramps (handed to witness). A. This would lie the one, I think 
(indicating).

Q. Have they got the column numbers on them? A. Yes,
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inttie Q. The ramps are hung, arc they not, between a line of columns 
^iew which includes 57, 81, 101 and 119 on one side, and 30, :>f>, 79, 99 and 

South Wales 117 on the other side'? A. Yes.

Equitable Q. We know, from what has already been said, that in the line 
Jurisdiction, foat I have spoken of are the weaker columns? A. Yes.

Q- On the other side the ramps are hung between 51, 76, 96 and
   112? A. Yes.

No. 6.
H. A. Q. And on the inner side, 5.">, 78, OS and 1 14 ? A. Yes.

Llewellyn.
   Q. You know, of course, from your various associations with this 

examination, project, the approximate bearing capacity of these columns the num- 10 
bers of which 1 have mentioned? A. Xot at that level, I am afraid. 
I am more familiar with those at the Wynyard Lane level.

Q. But, at any rate, you would be able to answer this, that just 
to hold the ramps up would not require columns of the strength and 
dimensions of those that I have mentioned previously? A. Xo.

( L). Columns 51 and 57 would take 6i million pounds .' A. Yes.

Q. And you tell me, as an expert, that it is quite obvious, from 
the plans, that these columns that I have numbered were designed to 
bear a building above and not merely to carry the ramps ? A. Yes.

Q. I suppose, so far as the ramps are concerned, you could have 20 
carried the ramps on reinforced concrete columns'? A. Yes; these 
are reinforced concrete columns (indicating).

<»J. Yes, but the others are not? A. That is so.

<(J. You did want to tell me, a little while ago, why it was that you 
said that column 51, extended in reinforced concrete according to this 
column schedule in Exhibit 10, could bear a truss between the 5th and 
6th floor levels ? A. I wanted to explain   

<*. 1 will give you a chance, but I want to ask you this first. When 
this Carrington Street project is carried up beyond the 6th floor    
A. Yes. ' 30

(,). Carried up higher than that   with reinforced concrete columns 
in extension of columns Nos. 51 and 57 above the first floor of < 'urring- 
ton Street-    ? A. Yes.

Q. There would have to be a very considerable amount of demoli­ 
tion iu the first place to make an entry in order to insert a truss   A. 
No; I am sorry. The existing steel columns finish at  oh, you mean 
in the future?

Q. Yes? A. I am sorry. Unless provisio?) were made in the 
present i'cneme there would have to be.

Q. There is no provision made in the scheme as drawn, is there. '40 
A. Well, it has not been detailed.
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Q. Well, there has not been any provision in the scheme as drawn! in the
A n 11 j • • ~i j *^ UJtl G1H& 

. That IS right. Court of New

Q. Could you just give me any idea of what would have to be done °uiin itsa *" 
if you were going to put a truss between the 5th and 6th floor rating Equitable
„ ft CIA j. a A -^ Jurisdiction.
from George Street  ? A. \es. __

Q. A truss of sufficient dimension to bear, with other trusses of Evidence. 3
a like kind, a building above the Wynyard Lane area to the permissible   
height what would have to be done in order to structurally get in 1? H°'A.'
A. Assuming that the reinforced concrete column is there? Llewellyn.

10 Q. Yes I A. It would be a question of holding the building up, Cross- 
but of course the prudent thing would be to provide for that in the 
detail plan.

Q. Assuming that nothing is done? A. Assuming that nothing 
is done, it is possible.

Q. Well, what would you do yourself ? A. Well, that is difficult 
without knowing the reaction of the truss to the amount of load coming 
down on the column in other words, it is a question of how much 
of the existing concrete column has to be exposed for this work. If 
it was more than 33^ per cent, it would mean "tomming" the build- 

20 ing, probably that is supporting it. If it were less than that it 
would be a difficult but normal building construction job and it would 
mean replacing the concrete around it.

Q. That is a substantial and risky operation in some respects, 
is it not? A. All operations are risky in some respects. It is a 
difficult but normal building practice.

Q. Have you seen, amongst Mr Stanley's records, a design of 
the truss to go across from 51 to 57? A. All I have seen is a repre­ 
sentation, and it was not a truss; it was one of his famous arches. It 
was not detailed or designed; it was purely an idea of what might be 

30 done.

Q. Have you ever yourself made any calculations as to the size of 
the truss? A. No, only to the extent of saying that I think that 
it could be done within the 10 ft. depth.

Q. Do you know a man called Weniger? A. No.

Q. Or a man called Crookes 1? A. Yes, Crookes, engineer; he 
has since retired.

Q. Were you with Mr Stanley at any time when Mr Crookes had 
anything to do with this project? A. No; I did not know that he 
had. 

40 Q. Mr. Weniger ? A. I have never heard of Mr. Weniger.

Q. Did you ever work on the 1954 plan before? A. Only to 
tidy up the structural designs.

 38632 6A
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Q. Did you have anything to do with Mr Nicholls in respect to 
the 1954 plans? A. Not that I remember.

In the
Supreme

Court of New
8mfn to** SIB GABFIELD : I think that that is as far as I can go at the moment.

HIS HONOR: Was not this witness going to bring back something?

Defendant's 
Evidence.

No. 6.
H. A.

Llewellyn.

Cross-

SIB GARFIELD: His calculations.

HIS HONOR: Yes.

WITNESS: Yes (documents produced).

SIE GABFIELD: Q. These calculations, as far as you have gone, are 
examination. in connection with the completion of that scheme? A. Yes.

Q. Are they just a series of mathematical calculations, or are they 10 
diagramatic representations? A. They are diagramatic, but I do 
not know whether they are intelligible. That is the sketch plan which 
is put over our architectural plans to see what loads are carried. These 
are the calculations for each unit of the structure.

Q. Are these other sheets similar? A. Yes, for different parts 
of the building and for different schemes. That (indicating) is a 
terrible mess along that wall. We were trying to take the load there 
from the weaker columns and put it on to the stronger columns 
(indicating).

Q. This is the staircase at the northern end (indicating) ? A. 20 
Yes. It is linking up with work that is there existing.

Q. Did you hear anything about an encroaching wall ? A. That 
is it there (indicating).

Q. Along B4 and B5? A. That beam would have to move back 
sufficiently far to avoid an encroachment. It would be quite a simple 
matter to move that beam back.

Q. Have you done anything on headroom there? A. No.
Q. In connection with the flat-plate construction, it is very inadvis­ 

able that the plate should not meet with the column all the way round? 
A. It could all be carried on three faces. It is a question of the intensity 30 
of shear.

Q. Have you worked out, in relation to this architectural plan, 
whether such openings as are shown adjacent to columns will be permis­ 
sible from a structural point of view? A. No.

Q. Have you any objection to giving us access to these calculations 
that you have made available today? A. I would not mind going 
through them with any engineer, but I would not like access being 
given to anybody else.

Q. You have no objection to an engineer  ? A. Discussing 
them with me.

Mr WALLACE: I object to this procedure.
40
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HIS HONOR: The documents belong to the witness, as far as I know. in the 
If they belong to your client, that is another matter. Cm^T^New
Mr WALLACE: I thought that my client has some proprietary interest. ,-n its 
I object to my friend asking this witness to hand over some confidential E^itabiej , j. ,,n ? n • Jurisdiction.documents to put them under the microscope.   
HIS HONOR: Surely the witness can make up his own mind. You Evidence, 
can give him advice if you wish to. j^VxfT.
Mr WALLACE: The procedure is so unusual that I would prefer that Llewellyn, 
the witness not hand them over.   

Cross-
10 WITNESS: I have no alternative but to say "No". examination

SIR GARFIELD: What we want to do is to look at his calculations, 
because we are making some calculations, and it may be that we might 
be able to obviate a lot of evidence.
Mr WALLACE: I do not want it that way.

HIS HONOR: Well, the witness, on reflection, has decided that he 
would rather not hand his documents over.
SIR GARFIELD: Q. I suppose you will keep them preserve them  
until something else happens? A. Yes.
HIS HONOR: He is not likely to destroy them.

20 SIR GARFIELD: Q. You have said that there was some argument 
about tolerances in connection with the steel extensions of that group 
of columns of which you gave the numbers, beginning with 51 and 
running round to 57? A. Yes.

Q. The question is whether they were out three-quarters of an inch 
from the vertical ? A. Yes; one was out three-quarters of an inch 
from memory.

Q. That is not an argument about tolerances, is it? A. No.
Q. At any rate, there were some that were quite beyond the ques­ 

tion of just an argument about tolerances? A. Three.
30 SIR GARFIELD: That is as far as I can take this witness until 

I know what my friend wants to do.
HIS HONOR: Mr Wallace, you have permission to go on with such 
re-examination as does not touch the other problems, without binding 
yourself.
SIR GARFIELD: I had forgotten that I had said that I would give 
the witness a chance to say something that he wanted to explain.
HIS HONOR: Yes.
SIR GARFIELD: Q. You wanted to explain why columns 51 and 57,
extended in reinforced concrete above the first floor of Carrington

40 Street, as shown on your column schedule in Ex. 10, would bear the
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Si? e'me truss between the 5th and 6th floors, from which the building may be 
New built up to the permissible limit ? A. It seemed to me that someone 

South Wales had indicated that the column would not be strong enough. I remem- 
Equitabie bered that the columns in the Caltex building, which are carrying 20 

Jurisdiction, floors of building, are much more than those which have only to carry 
Defendant's another 8 floors.

_!^ e' Q. That was your reason? A. Yes.
No. 6. 
H.A. 

Llewellyn. RE-EXAMINED

Cross- Mr WALLACE: Q. You were explaining to Sir Garfield about some
examination. work you were doing on the southern and northern sides of the Car- 10

Re. rington Street buildings, and he might have misinterpreted something
examination, ^j^ you sai<j["? A. Yes.

Q. You were looking at a plan, and do you remember that you said 
you would only have to look at a certain portion to see the mess that 
it is in? A. That is the 1956 scheme the architectural drawings.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. They are four sheets of tracings on the archi­ 
tectural drawings is that right? A. Yes.

(Documents m.f.i. 21.)

SIR GARFIELD: The area that the witness was concerned with was 
an area around beams 4 and 5. 20

Mr WALLACE: Q. You told the Court earlier, did you not, that in 
your opinion the 1956 plans may be extended up to the maximum 150 
ft? A. Yes.

Q. And I think the only note of reserve you expressed related to 
the siting of installations on the roof? A. Yes.

Q. Tanks and motors and the like? A. Yes.
Q. Which might have to be re-allocated on the roof? A. Yes.

Q. Apart from that, you are quite satisfied that the building could 
go to 150 ft.? A. Yes.

HIS HONOR: I think the witness said that he was virtually in a 30 
position to say that it could.

SIR GARFIELD: He now is, by virtue of his calculations.

Mr WALLACE: Q. A little while ago you were speaking about this 
southern side? A. Yes.

Q. And I think Sir Garfield misconstrued what you were saying? 
A. Yes.

Q. In regard to that southern side, what work are you doing on 
that in the way of computation at the moment? A. To check which 
of these columns will go right to the 150 ft., and which will have to stop 
off because of their inability to carry further load. 40
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HIS HONOR: Q. You use the one that will carry the further load? in the,
A Vne Supreme   co. .-, / . ,TCourt of New

Q. You are satisfied that one would do the iob? A. Yes. South Wales''in its
Q. The question is, which one ? A. Yes. Equitable

Jurisdiction.
Mr WALLACE: Q. You said that on the northern side there was a

A. Yes. Evidence.

Q. Could you elaborate that? A. In connecting the building No.6.
with the existing structure which has been there since 1933, with pro- Llê ;ê ' n
jecting reinforcement there is a structural mess there.   

Re- 
10 HIS HONOR: Q. Assuming that the steel just projects up into the examination, 

air, does the air affect them at all? A. Yes. Column 81 had to be 
"revived", as it is called. They do deteriorate fairly rapidly.

MR WALLACE: Q. If it is not encased it deteriorates fairly rapidly? 
A. If it is not protected in some way.

Q. If it is protected, it will last more or less indefinitely? A. 
Yes.

Q. My learned friend was asking you about this encroachment, and 
he went on to ask whether you had checked the head room and you said 
"No"? A. That is so.

20 Q- Does that failure to check the head room mean that there was a 
possibility or not? A. There was a very remote possibility that head 
room would be affected.

Q. Some questions were put to you this morning by Sir Garfield 
directed to the fact that if you were a stranger to all these matters  
the Plaza Hotel sub-structure and so on and were merely given Mr 
NicholPs architectural plans, whether you could tell from them whether 
the building was capable of developing to a maximum height of 150 ft., 
and you informed the Court that you had a little difficulty in dissociating 
yourself from your previous knowledge? A. Yes.

  Q. And you further informed His Honour that you could do it in 
about three weeks? A. Yes.

Q. I suppose if you could do it, if the Railway engineer's architects 
had the same previous knowledge that you had they ought to be able 
to do it also? (Objected to; pressed.)
HIS HONOR: You cannot put to this witness what the Railway people 
could or could not do. You can only get it on the basis that a man of 
his knowledge would be able to do the same thing. That is a matter 
for argument rather than of evidence. The only way to put it is, can 
you see any reason why another man with the same qualifications could 
not do it in three weeks'?
Mr WALLACE: Q. Can you see any reason why any other experienced 
engineer would not be able to ascertain the same matter in a similar 
time if he had your information?
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in the SIR GAEFIELD: I object to that. The witness said that he was able 
New ^° draw a set of appropriate structural drawings in three weeks, but 

South Wales when I asked him whether he could tell from the plans, he said that he 
Equitable could not because there were no sizes on them. He had to make the 

jurisdiction, sizes, and the question whether some other engineer could make a set 
Defendant's of plans is one question, but when my friend asks whether another 
Evidence, engineer could tell more from the plans as to sizes, that is another

NO e. question. H.'A.' 

Llewellyn. Mr WALLACE: Q. As I understand it, you told His Honor that having
lie? regard to your knowledge and work on the 1954 plans you could have 10 

examination, computed, within three weeks of seeing the Nicholl's plans, whether they 
could be developed to a maximum height of 150 ft. (Objected to; 
pressed.)

Q. Do you say that? A. Yes.
Q. And is there any reason why, in your opinion, any other 

engineer who had your knowledge could not do the same thing? A. 
No.

Q. And from your association with this project and your associa­ 
tion with the Railway engineers in connection with the 1954 plans and 
earlier, also later, are you able to say whether the knowledge which 20 
you had was more than the knowledge than the Railway engineers 
had! (Objected to.)

HIS HONOR: I won't allow that. That is an argumentative question. 
It may be that you will have to bring the witness back at some later 
stage, but you cannot ask it at this stage.

Mr WALLACE: Q. During your association with the Plaza project  
by the way, to when does that go back 1947 1 A. 1946.

Q. 1946 and 1947 have you yourself had dealing with Railway 
engineers and architects? A. With engineers, not architects.

Q. Who are they? A. Mr Hutchinson is the man I was dealing 30 
with after Mr Stanley's death, but I dealt with others in the Railway 
Commissioner's office.

Q. Mr Hutchinson was on the engineering staff? A. Yes. 
Q. You dealt with the engineering staff? A. Yes.

Q. And had you had dealings with him over a long period, relating 
to the project? A. Yes; the 1954 scheme, and then the contracts 1 
and 2 as you call them, and then the straightening of the columns.

Q. And have you had correspondence with him? A. I cannot 
remember any direct correspondence. They wrote to us on several 
occasions, and most of the correspondence went straight through the 40 
lessee. We discussed things informally, but correspondence from the 
Railways must come through the secretary.



175

Q. We understand that it was the Eailway people themselves who in the 
originally constructed the pillars'? A. I only know that from hear- Co^ 
say they were their drawings. South Wales

Q. I want you to assume that these pillars were constructed by Equitable 
the Eailway people? A. Yes. Jurisdiction.

Q. What sort of matters have you discussed  ? Defendant's
J Evidence.

HIS HONOR: You will get all sorts of objections to this because it is No 6
quite obvious that this witness saw a number of people. You can ask H. A.
me to draw the inference that the Eailway people knew as much as Llewellyn'

10 he did. Why bother this witness with conversations he might have had Be-
With this One or that One? examination.

Mr WALLACE: I am going to pass to another subject immediately, 
but my learned friend seemed to join issue with me on these series of 
questions.

HIS HONOE: If there is one inference easy to draw in this case up 
to this point of time, it is that the Eailway people knew as much about 
these columns that these people did. It therefore becomes a question 
of argument.

Mr WALLACE: Q. Can you assist me by giving me the date of the 
20 document m.f.i. 17?

HIS HONOE: It has got on it "25.6.56", according to my notes.

SIE GAEFIELD: The documents are dated 25th June. That is the 
date that is on the plans.

Mr WALLACE: Q. There is some matter put to you by Sir Garfield 
about that date. Was that the correct date he asked you do you 
remember? A. I do not remember the matter under discussion.

Q. Do you remember the structural plans referred to? A. I 
think that they were a 'set of drawings that Sir Garfield brought up, 
which were part of the 1956 plan.

30 HIS HONOE: The ones that Sir Garfield was discussing were the ones 
that were sent to his client, and I made a note, "25.6.56."
SIE GAEFIELD: At the same time I drew attention to the fact that 
the structural drawings bore the date the 18th, and they do.
Mr WALLACE: Q. Sir Garfield asked you whether it was possible 
to put in a big truss at the first floor level because of columns 51 and 
57 when he was dealing with the 1954 plan? A. Yes.

Q. Could that be done on the 1956 plan? A. At the first floor 
level?

Q. Yes; that is the way he put it to you? A. Yes, providing 
40 it was incorporated in this present design.

Q. Providing you incorporated it? A. Yes.
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in the HIS HONOE: Which set of plans are you asking about?
Supreme

Court of New Mr WALLACE: The 1956 ones.
South Wales

Equitebie HIS HONOE: The witness did not say what the nature of that truss
Jurisdiction. WOuld be.

WITNESS: I was answering the question in the same way that Sir 
Garfield was asking me what would happen if it were lowered to the 

No-^6- first floor?

Llewellyn. Mr WALLACE. Q. But at the same time, you would not be satis- 
Re- fied  ? (Objected to as leading).

examination.
Q. If someone were to put those trusses across the first floor, do 10 

you have it clear or is there some doubt as to whether the stresses 
involved would give a satisfactory result because of the fact that the 
two internal weaker columns would not be supporting, as they are 
designed to, up to the 4th floor? A. Well, that would be subject to 
checking but I felt confident that we could put the truss across the 
first floor.

Q. Then Sir Garfield asked you in connection with the column work 
extension done under what I would call or what you would call contract 
No. 2 that is the Whittle recent contract whether they are in con­ 
formity with mfi 4 and mfi 20. Do you remember? A. Yes. 20

Q. We are going back to the Gardiner-Kerr plan? A. Yes.
Q. I think you first of all said "No", but later you said "Yes, with 

some exceptions". A. There were no details.
Q. All I wish to ask you about it is, do they also conform to the 

requirements of any substantial building which might be erected in 
that area? A. Yes.

Q. And when the work was done, so far as you, as a structural 
engineer, are concerned, from anything that you heard, was there 
the faintest intention to revert to the Gardiner-Kerr plan? (Objected 
to; pressed; rejected.) 30

Q. I am not sure whether you informed His Honor whether the 
whole of mfi 20 is in reinforced concrete or designed for that? A. 
What is mfi 20?

SIE GAEFIELD: That was the schedule I showed you.

WITNESS: There were some columns on the schedule, but they were 
not in detail. They were just marked "Structural steel see future 
drawings". They referred to future drawings.

Mr WALLACE: Q. Then, going over to George Street again for the 
moment, you were asked a question this afternoon about the western 
wall of George Street, and then Sir Garfield went on to the position 4Q 
arising" from extending it above the fourth floor? A. Yes.
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Q. Sir Garfield suggested that that could only be done by the use in the 
of the device of a truss   do you remember? A. Yes.

Q. And you said, I think that there were other ways in which it 
could be done? A. Yes.

Q. Such as what! A. His Honor suggested one yesterday. New    
columns could be brought up from the ground floor and a very heavy Defendant's 
beam put across at each floor level, or an extreme way would be to    
bring the columns up and hang the load from roof level. g0^

HIS HONOE: Q. That is a very costly method, is it not? A. Yes. n-

10 HIS HONOE : The witness did say that you went down and under- examination. 
pinned anything that would be a very costly method.

Q. Is that so? A. Yes.

Mr WALLACE: Q. But the device of the truss is a very normal pro­ 
cedure, is it not? A. The lesser of many evils.

Q. One that is frequently employed? A. Not frequently em­ 
ployed.

Q. But one that you employ yourself? A. It is one that is most 
frequently used to solve that sort of problem.

HIS HONOR: What the witness is saying is that if you have good 
20 engineers in the first place you do not have that sort of thing* happening.

WITNESS : That is right.

Mr WALLACE : Q. And are you satisfied to say that the George Street 
building can also go to 150 ft.? A. We have not actually tested it, 
but in my opinion it can.

Q. You were asked about the circumstances in which you can use 
flat-plate, and I think the question arose out of some evidence you 
had given in the Licensing Court regarding 1954 Scheme A. Do you 
remember? A. Yes

Q. And you said, apparently, in the Licensing Court, that it was 
30 possible to use the flat-plate method of construction in connection with 

the 1954 plan by changing the design? A. Yes. Well, what I 
intended there was that if the 1954 plan was modified to suit the 
engineering requirements for a flat-plate floor, then the flat-plate 
scheme could be used, but it would depend on the architectural layout.

Q. Would you just say briefly why it is that the flat-plate method 
is not appropriate to a very narrow building? A. Yes, because a 
flat-plate necessitates a minimum of two plans to three lines of columns.

Q. I think you said that unless provision wore made in the present 
scheme when the Carrington Street scheme goes beyond the 6th floor, 

40 there might have to be a certain amount of demolition to make an entry 
for the truss? A. Yes.
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in the Q. That is on the further assumption that somebody wanted to
Ntw use a truss for the central building? A. Yes. 

8outin UsaUs Q' ^S tm' s the position that provision would only have to be made 
Equitable at the time when plans for the further completion of the building 

jurisdiction. became necessary that is to say, when the work became imminent 
Defendant's and detailed plans were necessary? A. Yes.
   ' Q. The fact that no provision was made in Mr Nicholl's plans for
g°-^- the three storeys of bedrooms would that have any bearing on the

Llewellyn, matter ? A. That would come into our plans for the complete details
-^7 of the job. 10 

examination. Q_ ^nd assuming that Mr Nicholl's plan was gone on with up to the 
three storeys of bedrooms overlooking Carrington Street, could provi­ 
sion be made to avoid the demolition when later on it was required to go 
up higher to the 150 ft. ? A. For the provision of the truss to carry 
the load?

Q. Yes? A. Yes.

Mr WALLACE: That is all I want to ask at this stage. I would like 
to formally complete my re-examination, if I could have that indulgence, 
tomorrow morning.

HIS HONOE: Yes; the time between now and tomorrow could be well 20 
spent in pursuing these questions of the admissions. It seems to me 
expedient to make as many of them as possible.

SIE GARFIELD: I have those additional sheets about the size of the 
column that is extended up, and I do not know whether the witness 
would co-operate or not, but if he would care to look at these sheets, he 
could do so and see whether he could answer me.

HIS HONOE: Yes.

SIE GARFIELD: Q. If the columns 51 and 57 are extended in steel 
in the same dimensions as the sub-jacent columns, what would be the 
position? A. I can only check 51 by chance because we have the 30 
detail.

SIE GARFIELD: But I have material prepared here. These drawings 
may satisfy the witness and he may be able to answer me.

HIS HONOE: Yes; it will save time.

SIR GARFIELD: You may have a look at them. (Documents handed 
to witness.)

Mr WALLACE: Q. How long will it take you? A. About 10 
minutes.

HIS HONOE: I will allow the witness to look at them out of my 
presence, and I will now adjourn. 40
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SIR GARFIELD : Do you produce the written calculations made by you in the 
or on your behalf in connection with the 1956 Carrington Street 
frontage proposal for Avrom Investments? South Wales

in its
Mr LLEWELLYN : Yes. EguM,ie

Jurisdiction.
SIR GARFIELD: Hand them to His Honor's Associate, and those Defendant's 
sketches that were marked for identification yesterday. Evidence. 

(Certain documents were handed to the Associate, and Mr. NO. 6. 
Llewellyn was allowed to leave the Court.)

SIR GARFIELD: I will not deal with the other subpoena at this "ieT 
10 stage. I have been instructed to inform Your Honor that if those examination. 

calculations of Mr Llewellyn are mislaid in any way it will cause 
tremendous inconvenience.

HIS HONOR: Anyone who wants to have a look at these particular 
calculations will have to look at them under supervision in the Asso­ 
ciate's room.

No' 7
Evidence of W. R. Running

Examination.
Mr WALLACE: Q. Are you a qualified architect! A. Yos.

Q. Are you a Fellow of the Royal Australian Institute of Archi- 
20 tects? A. Yes.

Q. And an Associate of the Royal Institute of British Architects 1 
A. That is correct.

Q. A Fellow of the Australian Planning Institute? A. That is

so.
Q. An Associate in Architecture of the Sydney Technical College 1? 

A. Yes.
Q. You are a practising architect of many years standing? A. 

My practice was commenced in 1945 as a partnership.
Q. You are a town-planner? A. Yes.

30 Q. And are you Chairman of the New South Wales Town and 
Country Planning Advisory Committee ? A. That is correct.

Q. Which is the official committee established under the Local 
Government Act to advise the Minister for Local Government on town 
planning matters"? A. That is so.

Q. Have you had overseas experience? A. Yes.
Q. Were you a travelling scholar from the Board of Architects 

in 1935, and did you travel the world for three years for the purpose of 
studying architecture? A. Yes.
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in the Q. When you returned to Sydney you became a practising archi-
Supreme fpf,f9 A Ype, Court of New ILGI ! A> * es -

r the war you started out on your own? A. Yes.
Equitable Q. And is your practice of a general character! A. Yes. 
   Q. Did your firm win the contract for Anzac House? A. Yes. 

W°'R: Q. The National Memorial for World War II? A. Yes. 
Bunmng. Q_ ^nd ag Chairman of the Advisory Committee is it part of your 

Examination, duty to consider each and every town planning scheme that the Minis­ 
ter deals with? A. That is correct.

Q. Have you been to America fairly recently 1? A. Yes; last 10 
year, between May and September.

Q. During those months did you study modern trends of archi­ 
tecture abroad   in America in particular ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you take a number of coloured photographs ? A. Yes.
Q. Which can be projected? A. Yes.
Q. You are a lecturer of the University of Sydney on town plan­ 

ning? A. I am not lecturing at the moment, but I have lectured for 
three years.

Q. And you have lectured to the Institute of Architecture on 
architectural matters? A. Yes. 20

Q. You have given lectures on your recent overseas tour? A. 
Yes.

Q. And have your lectures on town planning been printed and 
distributed amongst the profession? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know what I will call the "thin slab" type of building? 
A. Yes.

Q. What do you say about modern tendencies in relation to such a 
type of building as opposed to former types of city buildings? A. I 
would say that the type of building where the whole of the site is 
occupied by the construction and which has light areas to pierce the 30 
structure and therefore allow light and air to penetrate, is obsolete by 
modern standards. The contemporary trend is to have a base which 
may occupy the ground floor and then on top of that to have a tower 
type of building which projects upwards and which in some cases is 
square and in other cases is a slab on its end, and which enables better 
light, better air and a better view to be obtained and is more efficient 
in planning and also of lower cost.

Q. Does it also have an effect on town planning in relation to facili­ 
ties for car parking in congested city areas? A. That is correct 
in the sense that the tower part of the building has to conform to 40 
certain economic standards. For example, the bay spacing may be 
between 20 and 25 feet underneath the tower, and the remainder of 
the site which is not occupied by the tower can have any spacing to 
suit car parking underneath, which is a big advantage.



181

Q. Do you know of important modern buildings which only occupy J» tlie 
a portion of the site on which they are built? A. Yes. Overseas in cw? 
America there are several very good examples, and the trend is now South Wales 
so established that a good number of the new buildings which are under Equitable 
construction also take this tower form. In Australia, in Sydney, there Jurisdiction. 
are already several examples, Caltex building, the I.C.I., Lever House Defendant's 
and also the M.L.C. building at North Sydney, which in some cases Evidence, 
do not occupy the whole of the site; I am not certain of my grounds NO. 7. 
in the case of Lever House but I understand that Caltex House and the w- ?  

10 M.L.C. building do not occupy the whole of the site. In the case of the UMUng' 
building that my own firm has constructed and which is to be opened Examination- 
on the 25th April, Anzac House, quite a large part of the site has been 
"given away" in order to give a more efficient structure on the upper 
doors.

Q. And you have some slides which can be projected in this Court 
room in order to illustrate the point you are making? A. That is so.

Q. Have you studied plans which are Exhibit H, the 1954 plans of 
Mr Ham, and Exhibit L2, which are the 1956 plans of Mr Nicholls? 
A. Yes. I have.

20 Q- And you have also studied the Exhibit which shows in isometric 
fashion the projected full development of these buildings, have you 
not? A. Yes, that is so.

Q. That is Exhibit '2. Would you tell His Honor which of those 
two plans, in your opinion, evidences a more efficient or satisfactory 
design ?

SIR GARFIELD: I suppose, Your Honor, will take this subject to 
the same objection 1?

HIS HONOR: Yes.

Mr WALLACE: Q. First of all, which, in your opinion, represents 
30 the more efficient and satisfactory design? A. Well, in general and 

in particular what I referred to as Scheme B. Is that how it is referred 
to in this Court!

Q. The 1956 scheme is exhibit L2 and the 1954 scheme is Exhibit 
H? A. L2 has considerable advantages over H. In the case of L2 
it has better light, to start with, in that 39 bedrooms in Scheme H are 
in light areas out of a total of 64. The light areas are as small as 
22 ft. 6 in. across in one case. There are three light areas in scheme 
H, the central light area being only 22 ft. 6 in. across. That will mean 
that the light is not as good in Scheme H as in Scheme L2. The ventila- 

40 tlon will not be as good and the outlook will not be as good, and the 
privacy in the case of Scheme H will also be poor in that one series of 
bedrooms looks across only 22 ft. 6 in. away from another series of 
bedrooms.
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in the Q. I presume you are speaking of the windows of the bedrooms'? 
^ew A. Yes; the windows of the bedrooms will be only 22 ft. 6 in. away from

South Wales the windows of other bedrooms. In the case of outlook, Scheme L2 
Eguilabk nas 39 bedrooms looking down on to a roof garden. In the scheme

jurisdiction. Of Scheme H there are 10 bedrooms looking over Wynyard Park, 15
Defendant's overlooking George Street and the remainder looking into light wells,
Evidence. so that there is a large proportion of the bedrooms in Scheme H which

NO. 7. have a poor outlook, poor ventilation and poor light. In the case of sun,
Buainin ^ bedrooms in Scheme H are without sun at all because they face
   south. In the case of Scheme L2 two bedrooms are without sun, and 10

Examination. ^ js Of considerable advantage to have sun in all bedrooms in order 
to make them healthy and so on. In regard to efficiency, Scheme H 
is capable of being developed to an area of 205,800 square feet under 
the by-laws of the City Council, whereas Scheme L2 is capable of 
being developed to an area of 234,800 square feet, an advantage of 
30,000 square feet more in the case of L2 over H. In regard to the 
physical efficiency of the building the antiquated plan of Scheme H in 
which guests are required to circulate around light areas, finding their 
way as they go, is outdated because the new slab type building, with 
a long central corridor has this advantage that one can go along it and 20 
find one's way to one's bedroom more easily. In terms of actual length 
it is 243-feet from the lift in the case of Scheme H to the furtherest 
bedroom. In the case of Scheme L2 it is only 184-feet, a difference of 
about 60 feet of walking from the lift to the furtherest bedroom. From 
the management point of view it is very difficult to know where the 
staff are in this light area scheme because they are around all sorts 
of corners, whereas in the case of the slab type building, with a single 
corridor, supervision may be much more easily maintained, and as for 
guests I think that applies also. In the case of costs, a hotel is 
naturally high in costs because of the plumbing which is required. 30 
The modern standard of having one bathroom to every bedroom means 
that the plumbing costs are very very high. If one can concentrate the 
bedrooms so that they are one on top of the other, and the bathrooms 
one on top of the other, naturally the plumbing lines, which drop 
vertically can be concentrated and reduced in cost, and the same 
applies to the construction of a vertical building as opposed to a hori­ 
zontal type one, where the structure is reduced by economic bay spac­ 
ing in order to give a more efficient arrangement. Another item is the 
flat roof construction, which is also very costly. In the case of Scheme 
H the flat roof covers an area of the whole of the ground floor, less 40 
the light areas. In the case of Scheme L2, the bedrooms, being concen­ 
trated on to three floors, the area of the roof is reduced by approxi­ 
mately one-third of the size of Scheme H. In order to emphasise the 
reduction in cost, I might mention that when a quantity surveyor is 
estimating the cost of a building and the quantity surveyor is the 
specialist who is called in by architects to give estimates he usually



183

uses a rate per cubic foot of the volume of the building. In an office in the 
building he can estimate the current cost for a particular type, but 
when it comes to the top floor, which involves the roof, he inevitably South Wales 
takes two feet above the level of the roof in order to cover the excess Equi^bie 
cost of the roof area. In Scheme H he would take the volume of the Jurisdiction. 
building, plus an additional two feet above the level of the flat roof
and keep it at that cubic foot cost whatever the rate is that he decides Evidence.
upon. Therefore, in making the comparison between scheme H and No _ 7_
Scheme L2 if the roof area is reduced by one-third, that additional cost w. R.

10 equal to two feet above the level of the roof is reduced by one-third unnmg'
also. Examination.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Before the luncheon adjournment you were ex­ 
plaining to His Honor that one of the effects or the advantages of 
what are called thin slab buildings was in relation to the cost of the 
roof, and you were giving details of the two feet extra in relation to 
the cubic reckoning of costs by quantity surveyors'? A. Yes.

Q. Will you proceed from there please? A. The next item of 
copst which would be reduced by concentration of the building   that is 
putting one floor on top of another instead of spreading it out over a

20 much larger area, is that the plumbing is reduced because it runs 
vertically. The pipes already have to run vertically and the horizontal 
ones in the plumbing are omitted. It is the usual practice to build one 
bathroom on top of another. You plan it in that way as scheme L2 
has been planned. So that from those two points of view the cost 
would be reduced. That is in regard to cost in this particular building. 
There are other items, though, which I would like to mention, which 
are of particular moment from a town planning point of view. The 
first of these is the access. Under town planning considerations, the 
entry to the building is one of greatest consequence. In the case of

30 Scheme H the main entrance is from George Street, and guests would 
be required to take taxis or public transport   tram or bus   to the 
entrance to Wynyard Concourse, and then to carry their bags down 
to the lift, which would be on the left hand side of the left hand con­ 
course entering from George Street. At peak hours I foresee that 
this would be a tremendously difficult thing because the traffic flow from 
the city of Sydney going into either Wynyard Concourse is consider­ 
able and it would be a battle to take any big suitcases and so on down 
against the flow of traffic, quite apart from the difficulty of getting 
taxis to stop anywhere near that major vortex of the whole of Sydney.

40 Against that, the scheme L2 has its lift access from Carrington Street, 
which, although it is a bus terminal the eastern side of the one-way 
street is free from major traffic.

HIS HONOR: Q. At the moment? A. Yes.

Mr WALLACE : Q. At the moment George Street is a tow away area! 
A. Yes, but it could be arranged, as with all hotels, that certain areas
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in the could be kept free for the hotel access, and it would be relatively freer 
than the Wynyard Street entrance   

Q- The George Street entrance! A. Yes, I am sorry, the George 
Equitable Street entrance. It would be comparatively easier to get luggage in 

Jurisdiction. from ^6 Carrington Street entrance to the lifts than to take luggage 
Defendant's down that concourse of Wynyard. That is a major town planning 
Evidence. feature in favour of Scheme L2 as against Scheme H. Now, there is 

No. 7. another aspect in relation to traffic access and flow. In Scheme H 
Sunning, pedestrians are able to go from the eastern end of Wynyard concourse

to Carrington Street by means of a staircase which emerges from the 10 
. concourse behind the milk bar at the eastern end of the concourse. It 
is a ten feet wide flight of steps. It arrives at AVynyard Lane and I 
think it is 25-feet in width at that point. There the course is under 
cover and up another flight of stairs 10-f eet wide, eventually arriving 
at Carrington Street. That enables people to get from the concourse 
to Carrington Street without going right round George Street via 
Margaret Street or Wynyard Street   all that distance. But, in the 
case of Scheme L2 that has been improved. The same flow is main­ 
tained, but it is improved by the fact that Wynyard Lane is widened. 
I have not got the plans in front of me, but from memory it is a good 20 
deal wider and this would make it a great deal more attractive for 
shops and moreover, it is covered over so that pedestrians would be 
able to go, under cover, from the concourse at Wynyard to Carrington 
street, emerging at or passing through a very nice shopping court on 
the way which gives a much more attractive arrangement from the 
point of view of the retailers, by being wider, by being covered over 
and by having a bigger variety of shops   fourteen as against six. 
Therefore, that town planning aspect is important in the case of pedes­ 
trian access from George Street to Carrington Street.

Q. That is a thing that appeals to you ? A. Yes ; it appeals to 30 
me tremendously. When we come to the matter of the bedrooms, it 
appears to me that quite a lot of the bedrooms do not have a good 
outlook, good access or good ventilation in the case of Scheme H. Some 
of the bedrooms in Scheme H have no bathrooms attached   I think 
it is 20. It is true that some suites are arranged so that one bathroom 
to two bedrooms is all that is required, but I would suggest that 20 
bedrooms without bathrooms is too much in a scheme of 64 bedrooms.

Q. In the case of L2, of course we know that every room has a 
bath or shower? A. Yes.

Q. What about the shape of the bedrooms? Do you have any4Q 
comments to offer on the general layout and design of the bedrooms 
in the two schemes! A. In the case of Scheme H the bedrooms 
fronting George Street and the bedrooms fronting Carrington Street 
have their bathrooms internally arranged; that is, the bathrooms are 
not on the outside walls, they are on the inside corridor walls, and
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one passes through a narrow entrance, past the Imthroom into the 
bodrooin itself. In the case of the inner hedrooms, this is not the 
case; the bathrooms have been planned on external walls. In the case South Wales 
of those on external walls, it is inefficient. Bathrooms need not occupy EquiuAk 
external walls; mechanical ventilation is all that is required under Jurisdiction. 
modern standards, and in fact all the hotels 1 saw in America and in Defendant 
Honolulu had the bathrooms on the internal corridors, the big advantage Evidence, 
being that the external wall is fully used for the bedrooms. Also, NO. 7. 
the shape of the room is better. In the case of the type of room where W-R. 

10 the bathroom is parallel with the bedroom, doors are necessary to "_!"g ' 
get from the bedroom to the bathroom, and these destroy the long Examination 
walls of the bedrooms, which, under modern conditions, have settees 
and are arranged like bed-sitting rooms. So that, in that case L2 scores 
over H.

Q. Is there any advantage, in your opinion, in having uniformity 
in size and design of bedroom? A. Yes, from the point of view 
of ....

(,). "We have been told here that some of the bedrooms in the 
Scheme H design are as narrow as six or eight feet, 7' 11" x 6' 6" ? A. 

20 Yes; I would say that it would not give the same freedom of arrange­ 
ment of furniture. It makes the room look rather long, and, to use a 
coloquialism, it is "narrow-gutted". It is a long narrow bedroom 
which never has the same sense of space that a broader room has. 
One lias to achieve a sense of space and homeliness which one cannot 
achieve in a long narrow bedroom.

Q. Can yon say whether, on the whole, the bedrooms in one scheme 
are larger than those of the other? A. Well, have seen an analysis 
which leads me to believe that they are larger in the case of L2 as 
against H.

30 Q. Have a look at Exhibit ~) (Handed to witness) Have yon seen 
a copy of that before? A. Yes.

(^. And have been been through it carefully:' A. Yes.

Q. Do you agree with such of it as is comment? A. Yes. In 
general terms, I have not seen anything in detail or principle that I 
would criticise.

( t). Well, do you agree with it? A. Yes.

Q. In regard to the future development of the two schemes the 
possibilities of future development, in your opinion does one lend itself 
better to future development than the other? In other words, is one 

40 move rigid and is the other more flexible so far as future development 
is concerned? A. Yes. In regard to that [ would say that if one 
adopts this light area plan, as I will call it Scheme II one immediately 
sets the pattern which would necessarily have to be followed in general
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in the terms for the upper floors and this would be unfortunate in view of 
Supreme tne trend away from that stvle of design. This is not the case in
Urt OJ A* ? U* *" * *•

Wnir* regard to L.!.
(,). You have read of the bill that is going through Parliament 

a j ||Ul |)resent time for increasing tlie height of buildings? A. Yes.
^' ^ ccor(^nS' to the report in The Sydney Morning .Herald 

provision is made in the bill for this, that where a building exceeds 
W°'R' 150 feet it shall not accommodate more people than a similar building 

Banning, of 150 feet? A. Yes, that is so.
Examination. ^>. Is it, as you understand it, in conformity with the principle of 10 

the thin slab type of building not occupying the whole site ? A. Yes; 
L have read that report, and the Minister goes on to point out the 
advantages of having a tower type of building, better ventilation, 
better light and lower cost.

Q. And the provision of better parking facilities? A. Yes.
Q. And he spoke of the departure from the box type of construction 

as obviously making for better light and air? A. Yes.
(L). And making provision for better off-street parking? A. Yes.
Q. Do you say that this bill exemplified the principles you have 

been advocating? A. Yes. That is the result of the Building Com- 20 
mittee's recommendations to the Minister, and that Committee contains 
Architects whose views are as I have stated.

(,). Does the question of the availability of space around the build­ 
ings contemplated in L2 have any effect on the facilities of effecting 
repairs and maintenance, and of implementing development does the 
question of space affect that? A. Yes; it would certainly make it 
easier, if one was able to use the rest of the site, for any development 
which may be considered necessary.

Q. Can you envisage useful parking facilities being readily made 
available in connection with the L2 scheme, in future development.' 30 
A. J have not considered the matter in detail, but I would say that if 
the flat roof above the George Street frontage of the existing building 
could be made into a parking area with access from Wynyard Lane, 
where the levels enable it to be, I should think, readily done, it would be 
of advantage from the point of view of providing very good space in a 
very critical part of the city.

Q. I am directing your mind, if I may, to the area between "Wyn­ 
yard Lane and eastwards to the western edge of the building proposed 
facing George Street, do you follow? A. Yes.

Q. And you say that that lends itself readily to development as a 40 
parking area ? A. Of constructional detail I would not have know­ 
ledge, but it is a principle that is being followed in modern buildings, 
and particularly in American hotels, where they go to quite a lot of 
expense in order to provide parking facilities for their patrons. Con-



structionally it is possil)le my own firm is carrying1 out a million in the 
pound building project in Parramatta for Grace Bros, and the \vhole Co^/"0fmyew 
of tlie building has car parking facilities on top, which are reached by South Wales 
a ramp from below. s^MUe

, •. T ,: I 1 . ,: • , • , . : , • , • , -, . , -, J Ufi SdlCtl OH.(.{. It yon have car parking facilities in this building, yon \vould __ 
get access from Wynyard Lane the eastern side of Wynyard Lane Defendant's 
for a building to go up on the George Street frontage? A. Yes.

IILS HONOR: But if there is onlv one-wav traffic, how are YOU going to. .   ' ^ Sunning.get out again * __
Examination.

10 -Mi' WALLACE: Q. It is only a question of arranging the entrances 
and exits of the parking area? A. It is usual to have the entrance 
and the exit parallel.

Q. You would enter on the northern side and yon would come out 
the southern side, 1 think that is the way it goes? A. Yes.

Q. During your inspections in America, I suppose no doubt you 
observed something of the Hilton group of hotels? A. Yes.

( L). What do you say about the tendency exemplified in the Hilton 
group and other hotels, where there is a two-street frontage one with 
heavy traffic of providing a commercial building on one, and a hotel 

20 on the other ? Is there some modern trend in that regard? A. That 
is followed consistently by both the Hilton and the Stattler chains. In 
each case they grant commercial concessions on their ground floors, 
where they will have shops, and a coffee lounge which will be let usually 
to another enterprise to run, but associated with the hotel is a commer­ 
cial development of another character particularly professional rooms 
and things of that nature.

Q. Are there any advantages in having dining and restaurant 
facilities serving a hotel physically detached from the hotel itself? 
A. Yes. In the case of the Stattler Hotel at Los Angeles, one has to 

30 go out the front door in order to go into the restaurant below. In some 
cases that seems to be the position; in other cases, it is run as an 
ordinary hotel restaurant by the establishment itself.

Q. Can yon think of any illustrations where the Hilton group have 
built slab types of buildings in America? Have you been to the Istan- 
boa! ? A. Xo, but 1 have seen illustrations which follow the usual 
single corridor type running the full length of the building, with bed­ 
rooms on each side, and the Istanboul design is the same as the Beverley 
Hills design, which is the same pattern; it only occupies a small portion 
of the hotel site.

40 Q. The modern hotels in Honolulu, you have told us, are of the 
slab type 1? A. Yes; the Matson Line have them. The Princess 
Kailaui is one,
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in the (,). Those are the hotels which are at the back of the beach? A 
	 Ye8 - Moana and The Surf Eider are all slab types, with bedrooms off 

Sonth Walts long corridors.
Equitable Q- This L2 thin slab type of building   the fact that it runs north

Jurisdiction, and south, has that any special advantage '? A. It is very advan-
Defendant's tageous, from a hotel point of view, in that as the length of the building
Evidence. is north and south, the bedrooms all face east and west, so that both

No. 7. sides are able to get the sun at some part of the day.
vmnin Q - '^° you f-avour the m^iii bedroom part of the hotel facing on to

the C'arrington Street frontage or the George Street frontage? A. 10
Examination. Wellj j thj nk> jn view of tne fact tjlat j do not consicicr the George Street 

frontage satisfactory for bedrooms in view of the noise and also 
because it is not a particularly delightful outlook, that it would not be 
good practice; whereas it is a very convenient spot for commercial 
houses.

Q. If you were advising in this particular case, which particular 
design would you advise"? A. I would unquestionably advise in 
favour of L2.

Q. And would L2 be the one you would favour if you had the 
original design of it! A, I would say, "Yes", bivt exploration would 20 
be necessary before I could say that it is the only possible 'solution, 
but there is no question in my mind that of the two I would favour 
that.

Q. Are you able to speak of any trend towards commercial tenants 
wanting good natural light? A. Yes; it seems to be the case that 
any offieo building which provides other than first class lighting condi­ 
tions will not command the same rentals as one which provides 100 
per cent efficient light, and in Denver, Colorado, I saw the latest build­ 
ing which is being done for a commercial enterprise   : \Yebb & Napp 
was the firm which built this building, and it has become a sort of 30 
pace-setter for office buildings in America and overseas. The general 
principle of this building is that it is planned over only 26 per cent 
of 'the whole of the site area. It is on a corner of two main street's, 
and it is approximately 150-feot by 12f>-feet in dimensions, and there­ 
fore the whole of the exterior walls get 100 per cent good lighting 
conditions. It is reckoned that the value of the space will be equal 
on all sides, and this has been proved by the fact that it is command­ 
ing rentals double the other commercial rentable buildings in that area. 
It is commanding six dollars a 'square foot as against three dollars 
a square foot for the other commercial buildings. The reason for 40 
this is the excellent light and ventilation and. so on, and the owners 
were willing to omit building over the whole of the ground floor in 
order to provide these conditions.

Mr WALLACE : I would like Your Honor to witness a few coloured 
slides at this stage to illustrate what is happening abroad with regard 
to theB e thin slab buildings.
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HIS HONOE: That has an ephemeral result to my mind. Surely you in the 
liave these little viewers that we could use? ' "" Co

Mr WALLACE: Q. Do you have those slides there? A. Yes. ' "
Q. Have you a little viewer as well? A. Yes. (Slides and viewer jurisdiction.

produced). t ,Defendant s
HIS HONOE: Sir (larfield Barwick will have to have a look at them Evidence-
before cross-examining and before thev are tendered. No. 7.w. K.
Mr \\'ALLACE : Q. Perhaps you might come forward to the bar table Bunni"g- 
and identify a few of the more arresting illustrations that you have in Examination. 

10 mind. His Honor will allow you to leave the witness box.

HIS HONOE: Yes.

S1E (j A If FIELD: Pei-lmps he could look at them in the witness box.

Air WALLACE: Q. I suppose they have descriptions on them? A. 
L'nfortunately no.

SIR GARF1ELD: Let him write on them what they are.

Mr WALLACE: Can you write on them? A. I can write the title 
of the building'. The explanatory remarks could hardly be written, 
i am afraid.

SIR (1ARFIELD: \Vell, the transcript may be used then.

20 Mr WALLACE: Could you write on the cardboard surrounding the 
slide what it is, and then give a short explanation of it j?
SIE (rAEIHELD: He could reduce his explanation to writing and we 
could look at it afterwards.

.M r WALLACE : After the witness leaves the box this afternoon [ 
will aslc him to be good enough to do that.

HIS HONOE: No; you will ask him now.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Will you be good enough to mark on the slides 
you have in mind some identifying material . . . .'? A. Yes.

( L>. And then have typed out your comments, respectively, on those 
30 slides   each one of them   and then perhaps on Monday afternoon you 

can come back and tender them ? A. Yes.

HIS HONOR: The witness can put the slides away for the moment.

CKOSS-EXAMINJED
Cross-

SIE GAEFIELD : Q. I suppose you would agree that what you can examination - 
do with a given piece of land depends very much first of all on where 
it is? A. Yes; that is true.

Q. What city it is in ? A. Yes.
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inthr Q. The nature of the city? A. Yes; that is also true. 

Court of New Q. I suppose you will agree that what you can do in Denver would
be quite inappropriate in Sydney, in many respects? A. Well, in 

Equitable general principle, no, because the general development of plans always 
follows certain lines.

Q. But you know Sydney's peculiarities ? Sydney is what you 
might call a narrow-lane a very narrow area of land? A. I can 

^°-£- assure you that Denver is even queerer so far as street lay-out is 
Bunning. concerned.

Cross- Q. That may be, but Sydney is very narrow? A. No; I should 10 
examination. hRy ^hat it has characteristics which differ from London.

Q. And from Denver ? A. Yes.

Q. And from Los Angeles ? A. Yes.

Q. And also what you can do with a piece of land depends on the 
particular wish of the owner as to what he ultimately wishes to 
achieve ? A. Yes.

Q. And a great deal of the development has been from the town- 
planners point of view ? A. And from an architectural point of view.

Q. An architectural desideratum point of view what the Architect 
would like to do if he were free to do it ? A. Yes. 20

Q. And I suppose your painful experience has been that first of all 
your town planning desires have frequently to give way to commercial 
expediency? A. Yes. Well, it is true that the town planning ones 
arc statutory and the other ones ....

Q. I am not thinking of the statutory ones. I am speaking, not of 
these idealistic things, but things that the town planner wants to do 
- they tend to meet with commercial expediency when he discusses the 
matter with his client ? A. It is a matter sometimes of compromise.

Q. And they have to yield to commercial practicability? A. 
That is true. 30

Q. And so far as this site is concerned, you have been comparing 
L2 and H ? A. Yes.

Q. I am right, I suppose, in saying that your comparison is as 
between those two precise plan schemes? A. Yes, because those arc 
the two schemes before the Court.

Q. And your criticism of one, and your praise of the other it is 
fairly uniform, is it not?

HIS HONOR : It is all one way.

SIR GARFIELD: I think it is fair enough to say that your condemna­ 
tion of one and your praise of the other have largely stemmed from 40 
your comparison of the two proposals as immediate and present hotel
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proposals? A. "Well, i went furtlier in the ease of tolal space, if you In the 
will recall. I mentioned the total amount of space given by Scheme L2 cJ^^ ve«> 
as developed and Scheme H as developed to the full extent. south Wales

Q. I will come to that. Apart from that, what I put to you would Equitable
be right, that they were comparisons of them as hotel schemes for Jurisdicllon -
present and immediate use ? A. Yes, except that cost came into the Defendant's
question of future extensions the cost of future extensions, one as Evldence-
against the other. Xo. 7.

. w. R. 
Q. 1 will come to that too, in a moment. When you speak about Bunning.

10 buildings abroad, not using the full limit of the available land, I sup- (^^ 
pose you will agree that building regulations abroad have had a distinct examination, 
bearing on that tendency? A. "Well, I would think that building 
regulations must have, yes, but, on the other band the conditions to be 
satisfied in every country are very similar.

Q. But under the building regulations abroad, it has been found 
economically more profitable to build on less and go higher? A. In 
the case of the buildings mentioned, yes.

Q. So that this stepping back and not using the area to the full 
extent is a commercial tendency abroad, rather than a mere architec- 

20 tural tendency? A. I would say that they go hand in hand. The 
Architect approves of the form of the building.

Q. But the building owner only agrees in the main because it is 
demonstrated that he can get a better return in that way ? A. Yes.

Q. So that when you come to the development of this site that we 
are speaking of whether it be built over wholly or in part, in the long 
run it would depend upon the commercial view of the owner? A. 
Yes, that would be so.

Q. 1 may take it that you have not approached, at any stage, either 
scheme L'J or Scheme H, from the point of view of the owner who has 

30 nothing on the land ? A. Xo. 1 have considered it as being what 
exists now.

Q. Nor have you really considered it as from the point of view 
of an owner who is not committed to anything above one floor above 
George Street ? A. No, if I was approached to design a building of 
another type, then I would take another view altogether.

Q. You were telling us, in praise of this Carrington Street project, 
that sunshine is a great advantage? A. Yes.

Q. Do you really say that about buildings which face to the west in
this city? A. "Well, I would say that it would be an advantage to

40 have some facing west than to have some facing south, with no sun.

(t). If I were to take you around the city at the moment and show 
you the western facing windows, you would see the blinds all down, 
would you not ? A. Well, I would say that in winter time it would
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In the be very unlikely that you would find that, and in the case of Lever 
^ew House they have taken the trouble to face that building with glass walls 

South Wales to the west.
Equitable Q. The complete glass wall is dictated, to some extent, by this thin

Jurisdiction. s ja ], construction? A. Yos, and in recommending it to the clients,
Defendant's they must have given them the sort of answer that they were looking
Evidence. fov

^•£ Q. .1 suppose you might consider that in five years time the 
Bunning. curses of the people in that building would be on the persons who 
(]^_ designed it you would not deny that, would you? A. Xo, but I 10 

examination, would not imagine people of such standing recommending that to be 
done if they thought there was any possibility of those rooms being 
most uncomfortable.

<,). But at the moment there is a fashion for a thin slab construc- 
tion ? A. Yes.

Q. And I suppose you claim to be the pioneer of it with your 
Anzac House buildingf A. It is true that that is a building of that 
type of design.

(,). That is the first one? A. It was the first one for which con­ 
struction was started, yes. 20

Q. And the form of this type of construction steins very largely 
from economic factors, does it not ? A. Well, it is a matter of gam­ 
ing light and air, etc., and first class conditions, as against the other 
form, and also a matter of reducing the cost.

Q. But you, as an Architect, claim that it is cheaper to build thin 
slab and to maintain thin slab? A. That is true, but that is one of 
the considerations and perhaps one to be considered against a number 
of others.

Q. And this thin slab construction inevitably involves one of these 
rectangular shape buildings? A. In general terms, yes. 39

(,). And, of course, if you have a piece of land that is either 
irregular in its shape or is a little too wide to be covered neatly with 
one of these slab type buildings, then the inevitable thing is that you 
forfeit a bit of the ground space and build the slab type building, 
don't you? A. I do not quite understand that question.

Q. Let us suppose that 1 have a piece of land of such a width as 
to enable me to build one of these thin slab type buildings, and that 
the width of the building that it is economical to build, does not go 
to the full Avidth of the land? A. Yes.

(^. Inevitably L would forfeit a strip of land? A. Yes. 40
( t). And afterwards, by prettying it up, the Architect puts some 

development on the land to make the best of the fact that the land 
was not needed for his building? A. Yes. II is true that they 
develop them as public areas to altracl people make them attractive.
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Q. But the basic cause of it was the decision to use or to build In the 
a thin slab type of building of the width to which that slab type could cowTo 
be taken on the particular site? A. The basic thing was to give South Waka 
the light and ventilation up to 100 per cent in the design. Editable

Q. But when a person who has a piece of land which is in a mono- "m lctlon - 
poly position in the city sets to work, he is not merely interested in Defendant's 
providing light and air, is he? A. Yes; I think he is very definitely Evi ence ' 
concerned. In the case of I.C.I., for instance, in Melbourne, they have N°-?  
taken a case to the Committee for a building over 150-feet, not to let but Braining. 

10 to use it themselves.   
Crosa-

Q. But again there are other factors; for instance, where you get examination. 
a big bank or corporation or the I.C.I., there is always a certain 
matter of prestige or an advertising factor in the designing of their 
buildings? A. Yes; I would say so.

Q. And we have seen it lead to many divergent forms of buildings? 
A. Yes.

Q. And when you come to these buildings that you have mentioned 
in Sydney Caltex for instance what part of Caltex building is not 
covering the sub-jacent area"? A. I understand that there is a small 

20 portion it is not large ....

Q. You made the statement. Have you been over the site your­ 
self? A. No.

Q. I thought you had from what you said ? 

EIS HONOE: The witness did mention Caltex.

WITNESS: I did mention Cult ox and M.L.C. as not being built over 
the whole of the site.

SIR GAEFIELD: Q. We had Caltex, I.C.I., and M.L.C. First of all, 
Caltex: you say that you have not been over the site! A. No only 
past it.

30 Q. Can you say what the area is that has not been built over'? 
A. I could not tell you the square footage.

Q. I suppose you know sufficient of the project to agree with me 
that the reason why it is not completely built over was on the basis that 
the flat slab just came to a certain point? A. Yes; I would think 
that that is the case.

Q. And on that site they are not troubled by shadows from other 
buildings and that sort of thing (Objected to; question withdrawn).

Q. Now take I.C.I. ... ? A. I know that. And in the case of 
Caltex the Architects had recommended that that site be purchased in 

40 order to enable them to have the type of slab construction which would 
give them this 100 per cent efficiency in regard to light and air.
  38632 7
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Q. Yes, but if the Architect could, by any chance, have bought the 
piece of land without the land not used, he would have bought the 
residue would he not? A. Well, it is rather hypothetical.

Q. In the case of Caltex you cannot tell me what percentage of 
the site is occupied? A. No.

Q. Would you agree that it is well over 90 per cent? A. Yes. 
Q. And what about I.C.I.? A. I think it is 100 per cent. 
Q. Lever House? A. I think 100 per cent. 
Q. The M.L.C. at North Sydney do you know the site? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know whether there are any factors connected with the 10 

future widening or altering of the street which have contributed to 
the decision as to the actual position in regard to that building? A. 
Well, from observation only. I have no actual knowledge.

Q. Did you gather from looking at it- A. Yes.
Q. That future street widening has something to do with it? A. 

Yes, but I do not refer to that. I refer to the fact that the building 
is an H shape in plan, and it does not occupy the whole volume of the 
site with light areas. There are no light areas in the accepted sense 
of the words.

Q. It has two light areas within the two spaces of the H? A. It 20 
has two external light areas, which are not completely enclosed.

Q. Now take an H shaped building built on the site at Wynyard  
what do you say about that? A. I would say that an H shaped 
building may give some advantages over Scheme H, but I cannot say 
that it would give the same advantages over Scheme L'2, in the sense 
that in the H shape building there are certain spaces with internal 
angles which are not useable at all; they are completely cut off from 
light and air.

Q. You would have no objection, from any of your town planning 
thoughts or your architectural desiderata no objection to an H shape 3Q 
of building on that land, of a dimension that had its centre line of the 
H of the order of 45-feet or 48-feet wide and a total length of 172-feet  
nearly 173 feet on the Carrington Street frontage. The George Street 
frontage is a little less. 173-feet along the western face ? A. Yes.

Q. And the space between some 80-feet? A. I really would not 
be able to comment unless I saw a plan.

Q. You cannot envisage just that simplicity that I put to you  
the H is made up of two sides, one is 173-feet by, say, 60-feet, roughly, 
and the other is about 150-feet by 60-f eet? A. Yes.

Yes.
Q. The intervening space between them is some 80-feet ? A. 40

Q. Running east and west? A. Yes.



195

Q. And I suppose the centre member of the H would be a building in the 
going up to the same height as the rest of it, of some 4;Vfeet to 48-feet c<0frt? 
in width north and south. Can you envisage that? A. I can South Wales 
envisage the plan, but 1 would not be able to say what advantages it Equitable
WOuld have. Jurisdiction.

Q. But Avould it meet with your wholehearted approval ? It is like Defendant's 
the M.L.C. building. 80-feet by 50-fcct or 60-feet would not constitute ' J>nce- 
light areas in your sense ? A. No; I grant that those are better than No- 7 - 
internal light areas, but as for the economic use of the space, I would sunning. 

10 not be able to pass an opinion.  
Cross-

Q. But we have been talking from town planning desiderata, examination, 
mainly. Would not that accord with all the criteria that you suggest.' 
A. No, because the IF link between the Carrington Street front and 
the George Street front would have a large number of bedrooms facing 
south. The whole of the bedrooms on the southern side would have 
no sun at all, which I think is bad, and furthermore the link in itself 
would cut off the light.

Q. Let me test it for you with commerce. If a person had that
available piece of land and he put up a 45-feet deep building running

20 up to 150-feet, or thereabouts, because one side of the building was
facing to the south, you think it would be a bad proposition f A.
Yes ...

Q. It would be better not to build it at all if you had to have some 
of the bedrooms facing to the south? A. Well, you might be able 
to build some building with a better return, avoiding the south facing 
bedrooms.

Q. In that suggestion I gave you of occupying Carrington Street 
by one block 173-feet by 60-feet and in George Street, 147-feet by 
60-feet, you would suggest that it would be better not to have a con- 

30 necting building, than to have one 45-feet thick and 150-feet high 
because it would have some southerly facing bedrooms? Is that what 
you say?

HIS HONOR: And some in the joins.

SIR GARFIELD: Yes, in the joins.
Q. Do you say that, or don't you? A. Well, I am afraid that I 

have lost the track of that question.
Q. I think it is a very simple question. Supposing a block of 

building is 170-feet by 60-feet . . .

Mr WALLACE: Have you some plan of this ?

4Q SIR GARFIELD: Q. You have a block in Carrington Street 170-feet 
by 60-feet thick. The other, the George Street frontage is 150-feet by 
60-feet thick? A. Yes.
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Q. The question is if we joined them by a building 45-f eet to 48-f eet
Supreme, running up to 150-feet, which would have some rooms to the south, and

c™rt °f N, ew which would make shade on some rooms in the corners, would it be
°\iite° e* better not to build that block because it would have some southerly
Equitable facing- bedrooms ? A. I would say that those additional bedrooms
untjctm. wou^(j noj. j,^ wortn it economically because assuming that you have

Defendant's bedrooms in the east facing wall of the western block and the west
v__ce' facing walls of the eastern block, the number of bedrooms gained in
IJP-JJ- that way may be lost by the southward facing wall of the building.
\V • •"•

Sunning. Q. But you say that it would be quite possible? A. Yes. JQ
Cross- ______________ 

examination.
N~o7i. N°- 8

T , H £• Further evidence of H. A. Llewellyn
Llewellyn.

Examination. Mr WALLACE: Q. Can you envisage any structural difficulties if one 
wanted to put up some parking facilities on the site to be occupied 
under the L2 scheme, the 1956 scheme, east of Wynyard lane between 
there and the west side of the George Street building to be so erected? 
A. No; no structural difficulties.

Q. In connection with the 1954 plan, if you want to take a straight 
line through from the Carrington Street end to the George Street end, 
have you checked up to see whether that involves a false floor on the 20 
George Street side of the H plan? A. Yes; the existing roof over 
the bedrooms would want a false timber floor to bring it to the similar 
level to Carrington Street.

Q. About how much? A. About 1-foot 6-inches above the exist­ 
ing concrete.

Q. Have you. checked up again to see whether the so-called coffee 
lounge in the 1956 plan, if desired, could be extended out over the 
concrete slab? A. Yes; the slab could be capable of supporting the 
coffee lounge.

Q. You were asked by Sir Garfield something about the George   
Street side of the 1956 plan, and as to whether any demolition would 
be rendered necessary if you went in for the beams there on the 
Carrington Street side do you remember? A. Yes.

Q. What do you say as to that? A. Some demolition would be 
necessary, but it could be avoided. The engineering .solution would be 
to put those beams on the next level above.

Q. Thus avoiding any demolition? A. Yes.
Q. And is that quite a feasible and workable plan? A. Yes.
Q. You say that the George Street component of the 1956 plans is 

capable of extension to 150-feet ? A. Yes. I might say that we are An 
morally certain of that. We have not investigated it, but from our 
investigation of the existing columns, there does not seem to be any 
reasonable doubt.
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Q. No reasonable doubt in your mind? A. That is so. in the 
Q. Then you were asked a question in connection with the Carring- 

ton Street component of the 1956 plans, and the question in regard to Soitt.k 
that was about the installation of trusses 1 A. Yes. Equitable. 

Q. At the fourth floor level? A. Yes.
Q. And may be, should it be so desired, to employ trusses in the 

centre at any time? A. Yes.   
Q. Is that subject matter recalled to your mind? A. Yes. H. A.
Q. I ask you whether, in planning for the development of the °we y"' 

10 Carrington Street component of the 1956 plans developing above three Examination 
stories, would it be easy or otherwise to legislate for those trusses in 
some obvious manner ?

SIE GARFIELD: What do you mean by "legislate"! 

Mr WALLACE: Plan for it. 

WITNESS: Above three stories?

Mr WALLACE: Q. Developing the Carrington Street frontage above 
the third floor? A. Detailing would be necessary to pick up the 
trusses for further development.

Q. What detailing would be necessary? A. Possibly a set-back 
20 or a bracket.

Q. A ledge or a bracket ? A. Technically, a bracket.
Q. Just a bracket on the extended part of the column to hold the 

truss? A. It would be quite an extended bracket, but a bracket. It 
is a question of designing a bracket to carry a load; so that it is a 
bracket on the column.

( L). Is there any engineering difficulty about that? A. No; it is 
only a matter of magnitude.

Q. I think you have had a look at the structural drawings that went 
with, or followed the architectural plans of Mr Ham in connection with 

30 the 1954 scheme? A. Yes.

Mr WALLACE: I call for the plan that went to the Railway Com­ 
missioner from us by our letter of the 21st April, 1954. (Document 
produced).

(Plans sent to Railway Commissioner by Defendants' Solicitor 
Messrs Sly & Russell, under cover of letter of 21st April, 
1954, tendered and marked Exhibit 12.)

Mr WALLACE: I also call for an amendment thereto, submitted by 
letter of the 7th May, 1954. (Documents not produced).

Q. Have you seen the structural drawings prepared in connection 
40 with the 1954 plans ? A. Yes.

Q. Where have you seen them recently? A, In our office.
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Q. Did they show any more detail, or go to any further stage, than 
the structural drawings which you drew for the 1956 plans? A. The 
structural steel is detailed slightly more, but there was no structural 
steel in the 1956 plans, or very little. The concrete work is about the 
same amount.

Q. Would you look at Exhibit 12, which has just been tendered, 
and tell me, comparing it with Exhibit L2, whether there is any more 
detail in the set of plans which constitute Exhibit 12 than in the set of 
plans, Exhibit L2, Mr Nicholls' plans? A. The amount of sheets is 
obviously more. (Witness peruses documents). No. 10

Q. Can columns be designed either in steel or in concrete? 
A. Yes.

Q. And it is a question which depends on the nature of the build­ 
ing? A. Usually.

Q. Is it possible to generalise as to which is better than the other 
or vice versa? A. No.

Q. And in the present instance, was it better or not to use rein­ 
forced concrete? A. As the main part of the building had a mush­ 
room floor slab, it would be more natural to use reinforced concrete  
that is the 1954 scheme. The early part of the 1954 plan the existing 20 
work there is mainly reinforced concrete. The heavy columns were to 
be in structural steel, but all the minor columns, and there are many 
more of them, were to be in reinforced concrete, mainly because of the 
mushroom floor.

Q. Is there any provision in the 1954 scheme Mr Ham's plan  
for the truss that we have heard about as to where it would have to 
go in future development? A. No.

Q. None whatever? A. No provision at all.
Q. Some questions were asked of you yesterday by Sir Grarfield, 

based on an assumption of trussing from the first floor. Do you 39
remember that series of questions? A. Yes.

Q. Can you detect any discernable engineering object in trussing 
from the first floor? A. No, not now that the existing structure 
lends itself to trussing at the fourth floor.

HIS HONOR: Q. The higher the truss goes, the less heavy it need be? 
A. That is so.

Mr WALLACE: Q. Assuming that any set-back was desired in George 
Street, would it be more difficult to set back on that street than on 
Carrington Street? A. No.
SIR UARFIELD: Q. Which setting-back are you talking about. There 40 
are two setting-backs in Carrington Street? A. I think Mr Wallace 
was referring to the setting-back that occurs in Carrington Street at 
the eighth floor.
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Mr "WALLACE : Q. There has been a progressive increase in the per- in the 
missible weight on columns of a given diameter in recent years, has ccurf 
there not! A. Yes. South Wales

in its
Q. Can you give us any approximate idea of the extent of that Equitable 

increase? A. Yes. In concrete it has gone from .225 to .35. Jurisdiction.
SIE GAEFIELD: Q. What? A. That is the percentage of the ulti- Evidence.'8 
mate strength of the concrete. It has increased quite considerably. It ^~~r 
is in the process of being increased again. As to the carrying capacity H. A. 
of the columns, there is another important factor, and that is the live Llewe%n- 

10 load that each type of tenancy is called upon to carry. That has been Examination, 
modified, and in addition what we know as the live load reduction has 
been increased. As a tenancy goes further up, you can reduce the total 
live load on the columns. The building is never completely occupied at 
one stage, so you get an ultimate lesser load from the same tenancy 
under modern regulations.

CROSS-EXAMINED Cross-
SIE GABFIELD: Q. You said that there is as much structural examma lon -
information on the 1956 plan as there is on the 1954 plan? A. Yes.

Q. With the 1954 plan there was a structural steel plan? A. Yes; 
20 a structural steel and reinforced concrete plan.

Q. You know that your Exhibit 10 was not sent with the 1956 plan, 
do you not, or do you think it was? A. No, I did not know.

Q. If I tell you that your structural steel preliminary drawings 
did not accompany the 1956 plans, but structural steel preliminary 
drawings and steel column details did accompany the 1954 plans 1
Mr. WALLACE: I called for them and you did not produce them. I 
called for all plans that were sent in our letter, and that is what I 
asked you to produce.

HIS HONOUE: You did in principal and not in fact. You called for 
30 one set of plans. Eeally what you wanted was all the sets of plans.

SIE GAEFIELD: They were sent to us shortly afterwards, but you 
were asked for what was sent with the letter.

Q. In 1954 you and departmental officers were in constant collabora­ 
tion at the time that these 1954 plans were being evolved? A. We 
were in collaboration, yes.

Q. And before the 1954 architectural plans were finished, you had 
discussions with Eailway officers ? A. It would be Mr. Stanley.

Q. And you were coming into the picture more frequently, at that 
time, were you not? A. Not until after his death.

40 Mr. WALLACE: Q. When did he die? A. In June, 1955. 

Mr. WALLACE: I object to this.
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in the HIS HONOUR: Ask the witness was lie present.
Supreme

Court of New gjR GAEFIELD: 0. Were you present at any discussions with Rail-South Wales «. «.in its way officers?
Equitable

Jurisdiction. Mr. WALLACE: Before the 21st May, 1954? 
Defendant's WITNESS: No, not before 1954.
Evidence. '

No_ 8 SIE GARFIELD: Q. Do you know that Mr. Stanley was in discussion 
H. A. with Railway officers? A. Yes.

Llewellyn.
-  Q. Do you know that he was in discussion with Railway officers 

examination w^n resPcct to the steelwork and the columnwork connected with the
1954 project? (Objected to; rejected). 10

Q. Of course you know Mr. Hutchinson? A. Yes.
Q. And you know other Railway officers connected witli the struc­ 

tural branch? A. Yes.
Q. And you had seen them in the partnership offices before these 

structural drawings were sent on to the Commissioner? A. They 
were very seldom in our offices. The only definite interview I remember 
in our office was with one man, and I do not recall his name.

Q. But you saw officers in your office? A. Once. Mr. Stanley 
met them on the site.

Q. Were your structural drawings, and in particular the steel 20 
drawing details, in preparation by Mr. Stanley before April, 1954, or 
whatever the date was? A. I do not think so. I think that the 
structural details of the 1954 scheme were prepared mainly after Mr. 
Stanley's death. I would not be sure of that.

Q. But there would be many discussions before they were pre­ 
pared finally settled? A. Yes.

Q. The 1954 structural drawings were very difficult ? A. Yes.
Q. And they took a long time? A. We are only talking about 

the steel stanchion details.
Q. And the concrete work. You told us earlier that they took a 30 

long time to prepare? A. I can tell you that the Railway Depart­ 
ment did not have any knowledge at all of concrete column sizes.

Q. If you look at the 1954 scheme you will see that it did contem­ 
plate utilising what you call that weak line of columns up to the second 
floor above George Street ? A. The second floor above Carrington 
Street?

Q. Or George Street? A. Carrington Street.
Q. And that was all that was to be asked in respect of those 

columns? A. Yes.
Q. From the point of view of mere load, that was all that was to 40 

be asked of them? A. Yes.
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Q. And columns that were to carry the trusses were being carried in the 
out in structural steel? A. Yes. '

Q. And the detail of that structural steel was known at the date
//

that these drawings were finished? A. Xo, I do not think so. It Equitable 
was only agreed that whatever went on those structural steel columns Junsdl'ctton- 
would be carried up exactly as then existing. Defendant's

Evidence.
Q. And the concrete columns that you are talking about are the   

extensions of the weak ones? A. No, not only those, but dozens of H?'A.'
those on the George Street frontage and the Cairrington Street Llewellyn.

10 frontage. There were at least 30 other columns. c^.
T . examination.

t)j. And 1 suppose tlierc was some agreement in principle as to 
those, too ? A. Xo. As I saw, the Railway Department had no idea 
of the sizes of the columns. The only thing we knew about them was 
a typewritten schedule.

Q. And that is why you say that the Railway Department did not 
know it ? A. That is so.

Q. It is not true to say that there was as much information avail­ 
able in 1956 as there was available at the date in 1954 when the 
architectural plans were prepared? A. As to a detailed discussion 

20 between jlr. Stanley and the Railway Department I could say that it 
is true, and the information given to the Railway Department gave them 
less in the 1954 scheme than it gave them in the 1956 scheme.

Q. They did not get any information in the 1956 scheme? A. I 
am sorry. In the 1954 scheme they had concrete sizes with no rein­ 
forcement details; they had this agreement that the steel stanchions 
would be carried up but they had no detail at all as to the concrete 
columns.

Q. But the important thing to know, from the point of view of the 
1954 drawings, was the detail of the steel columns that were to be 

30 extended ? A. It was critical. The size of the concrete columns 
would be equally critical.

Q. You do not suggest that Mr. Stanley was other than a very 
competent engineer, do you ? A. No.

Q. You told me yesterday that you thought that columns 51 and 
57 carried up in concrete in the way you provided in Exhibit 10 would 
be good enough to carry a truss between the fifth and sixth floors"? 
A. Yes.

Q. And you say that why you said that was because in the Caltex 
building you had greater weight on the 'same or lesser columns? A. 

40 I did not say greater weight. You asked me to give an answer, and I 
did a quick analysis between the two buildings.

Q. I suppose you compared them"?



Q. And I suppose one of the basic considerations when you are 
considering the bearing qualities of a reinforced concrete column is 

South Wales the class of concrete that is in it ? A. That is true.
in its

Equitable Q. In your thoughts yesterday were you thinking that the Caltex 
Jurisdiction. concrete was of the same class as the concrete in the 1956 scheme ? 
Defendant's A. Yes; I did think that. I realise that it is not the same as in this
Evidence. building

H°A. Q' ^n fac^ there is a very big difference? The Caltex concrete is 
Llewellyn. 5000 pounds per square inch compression at 28 days! A. Yes.

Cross- Q. And in the 1956 scheme it is 3000 pounds per square inch com- 10
examination. pression at 2g days? A. Yes.

Q. That must affect your answer? A. Yes. My answer yester­ 
day was on the assumption that we would have 5000 pounds concrete.

Q. If I ask you now, on the assumption that columns 51 and 57 were 
extended to your satisfaction with concrete of 3000 pounds per square 
inch compression and not 5000 pounds per 'square inch, would you say 
it would bear that truss ? A. I would say that I would want to check 
it.

Q. You would not like to repeat yesterday's answer? A. No.
Q. When you were comparing the position yesterday with the 20 

Caltex situation, did you have in mind that the load on the Caltex 
column is practically a vertical load? A. Yes, but that is not quite 
correct. There is some bending moment present.

Q. But in the case ,of a truss coming in at right angles the load 
would be at right angles, would it not? A. No.

Q. When I asked you the question yesterday, did you have in mind 
that the truss to be inserted into or against the Carrington Street 
project was coming in at right-angles and was not a vertical load with 
some bending moment? A. But when it comes in it must be a vertical 
load on the columns. 30

Q. You do not want to vary even your tentative answer this after­ 
noon when I remind you that the load would be coming in at right- 
angles? A. The load is not coming in at right-angles. The truss is 
at right-angles, and the load on the column is a vertical load, because 
gravity acts vertically; the weight of the building coming on to that 
column is a vertical load.

Q. But does it alter in any way, the fact that the truss comes in 
at right-angles, the answer that you want to give ? A. No; it is still 
a vertical load . . .

Q. I asked you yesterday, and you were prepared to pledge your 40 
reputation on your answer yesterday? A. Yes.

Q. I have reminded you of a factor and to-day you state that you 
would like to check it up? (Objected to) A. It is a different class 
of concrete.
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HIS HONOR: The witness was speaking, I thought, of sizes, with the in the 
concrete 'suitably based to take weights of that size. twT

South Wales
WITNESS: Yes. into

Equitable

SIR GARFIELD: Q. To-day you told me that your specification is for Jurî on -
concrete of only 3000 Ibs per square inch, and you told me that you want Defendant's
to check it? A. Yes; I would not be so sure without checking it. Evidence'

Q. In your checking is it not the fact that the truss to be built is ^°'^; 
at right-angles to the columns is that a factor ? That is all I ask you. Llewellyn. 
A. No, it is not a factor. t^. 

10 Q. You are still going on with these engineering details? A. exammatlon 
Not now. We have lost our calculations.

Q. AVell, up to the time you gave me the calculations? A. Yes.

Q. Do the calculations extend to the thicknesses of the floors'! 
A. Yes.

Q. Are you able to tell me the thickness of the floors at Caltex 
House? A. They vary. The garage parking floors, from memory, 
are 7-1/2 inches I think, the ground floor is 12 inches, and the upper 
floors at 9-1/2 inches.

Q. And the base at Caltex would be smaller than the base in this 
20 building'? A. Yes.

Q. And that, of course, affects the load too, does it not? A. 
Yes.

HIS HONOR: Q. Of course we are all making the assumption that 
Caltex House will remain standing! A. Yes.

Q. It may he that somebody has made a mistake there ? A. Yes, 
my reputation would be at stake.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. You told my friend that you could not find any 
purpose in putting a truss in the first floor'? A. To-day you mean?

Q. Yes ? A. The obvious structural solution is to put it as high 
in as you can.

Q. Of course, you do appreciate that if you put it low you ca:i 
obviate that idea of a light area? A. It is up to the Architect to 
say where he wants it, from my point of view.

Q. But you were confining yourself to structure? A. Yes.

SIR GARFIELD: That is all I can ask this witness until I have 
had access to those calculations.

HIS HONOR: There is one thing you should check up. That is the 
call which was made for certain documents in a letter. I think you 
should check it up.

40 SIR GARFIELD: Yes; I will check that up.



In the RE-EXAMINED. 
8upTGm&

Court of New Mr WALLACE: Q. Do these, (indicating) appear to be a roll of 
Sowfn Yt?hs structural drawings in the Ham Scheme ? A. Yes. 

Equitable Q Thev were prepared, apparently, by Stanley and Llewellyn:'
Jurisdiction. , ,-r '     J 
   A. les.

Q-
dates on that typewritten paper ? A. I am.

Evidence. Q- And the typewritten paper on it, who was responsible for the

.No. 8.
H. A. Q. Did you get those from your office records f A. That is so.

Llewellyn.
   Q. Would that indicate that the structural drawings . . . ?

elation. (Objected to.) 10

Q. When do you say that llie first structural drawings for the Ham 
plan were sent by Stanley and LleAvellyn to the Railways? (Ob­ 
jected; pressed; rejected.)

Q. Are you able to say that structural drawings were sent by 
Stanley and Llewellyn to the Railways f (Objected to.)

Q. Are you able to say? A. Yes; I checked to see .

SIR GARFIELD : Q. Not from what you looked up, but from what you 
knew at the time ? A. Well, I did not see anybody actually post 
them, or take them to the Railways.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Well, you have records in your office ? A. Yes. 20

Mr WALLACE : Would my friend be good enough to produce any 
letter from Sly & Russell or any expert working for the defendant 
company   any letter forwarding engineering drawings?

SIR GABFIELD: I do not accept that call. That is not a call that my 
friend can make on me.

HIS HONOR: To save time the records will be looked up to see 
whether they were sent.

No. 9. No. 9
E M

Nichoik Further Evidence of E. M. Nicholls
Examination. Mr WALLACE: Q. Since you were last in the witness box you have 3Q 

liad a further examination of the 1954 plans, have you not ? A. Yes.

< c>. And, as a result of your further examination of them have you 
collected a number of matters which are, in your opinion, either errors 
or discrepancies? A. Yes.

Q. Some of more moment than others? A. Yes.

(,). And is what you have done of an exhaustive nature, or only 
;i part examination? A. Part only.
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< L>. And have you sot forth the result of your examination, so far in the 
as it has gone, on a document ? A. Yes.

Q. And do vou have it there? A. Not here no]fc •

Q. Where is it with me? A. You have all the. copies. Equitable
c ! L Jurisdiction.

0. I have two carbon copies that is all 1 know. Where is the   
• • ii i i .LI • i ji ..... .... Defendant 8original? A. 1 think the original is in my otnce. Evidence.

Q. Have a look at that document (handed to witness), is that a x^.lj.
copv of the document which vou prepared? A. Yes. E.M.

1 ' ' . Nicholls.
(Document tendered; objected to; pressed.)   

Examination.
10 HIS HONOR: Having regard to the way in which I have allowed the 

case to be conducted, I am going to admit this evidence without in any 
way commenting on its relevance, but you should not have it in this way 
without showing it to the other side. You might take the witness out 
of the box and recall at some convenient time. 

(Document m.f.i. "22".)

MR WALLACE: There is just another question that I would like to 
ask the other witness, with Your Honor's permission.

HIS HONOR: Yes.

Mr WALLACE: Q. Have you considered whether a car park can be 
20 sited on the space in the 1956 plans between Wyuyard Lane and the 

projected completion of the George Street area? A. Yes, T have 
considered it.

Q. Is it possible or impossible? A. It is possible. 

Mr WALLACE: That is all I wish to ask the witness. 

SIR GARFIELD: Could I ask one question?

HIS HONOR: Yes.
CROSS-EXAMINED Ooss-

SIR GARFIELD: Q. Do you remember that you made some calcula- examination - 
tions of comparative floor areas of the two completed schemes, the 1956 

30 scheme and the 1954 scheme, which were diagrammaticnlly represented 
both in section and in isometric dnnving ? A. Yes.

Q. When you were making those calculations, to what depth did 
you suppose the G-eorge Street building to go back from the George 
Street frontage? Would yon like the plans to tell me? A. Yes; T 
can show you on the plans.

Q. Exhibits 2, 3 and 4 are the plans. (Exhibit 4 handed to witness.)
A. This shows it, to the depth as shown on this plan, (indicating 

Exhibit 4).
Q. Have a look at Exhibit H (handed to witness). When you said 

40 "To the depth shown there on Exhibit 4", you meant that I could scale 
it off to ascertain the depth, could I? A. I would not be sure, quite, 
of that.
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In the.
Supreme

Court of New
South Wales

in its
Equitable

Jurisdiction.

Defendant's 
Evidence.

No. 9.
E.M.

Nicholls.

Cross- 
examination.

Examination.

Q. Well, that is what I want to know the depth that yon made 
the calculations on? A. "Well, 1 cannot tell you that because I have 
not those calculations there.

Q. Can you not tell me on Exhibits 4 or 3 (indicating) ? A. Xo; 
these are in the nature of diagrams (indicating), and not necessarily 
exactly to scale.

Q. Have you no material with you on which you can answer my 
question as to the depth from George Street f A. Xo; I have not 
any material at all. I did not know I would be asked that when I was 
coming to Court.

Q. Have you any calculations in respect to these floor areas? A. 
Yes.

Q. Well, when you come back you can bring them? A. Yes. 
HIS HONOR: Q. Have you made a note of what you have been asked 
to get! A. Yes.

Q. The next time you are to come back, you will be told, and you 
can bring the information with you? A. Yes.

10

No. 10
Further Evidence of H. A. Llewellyn

^j]> WALLACE: Q. Do you remember being asked some questions 20 
about Column 51 and the specifications for the concrete in connection 
with the matter, in which you said that you would stake your reputa­ 
tion? A. Yes; 3,000 and 4,000 concrete in Column 51.

Q. You said that in order to be positive on a 3,000 basis you would 
need to examine the matter further, did you not ? A. Yes.

Q. Does that, however, entail that you should want to know the 
type of building to go above it? A. That is so.

Q. You, I think, inserted the 3,000 specification, did you? A. Yes.
Q. Would there be the slightest difficulty if yon wished to change 

the 3,000 to 5,000? (Objected to; pressed; admitted.) 30
Q. You could change it from 3,000 to 5,000 ? A. Yes ; it would 

involve a cost of about £50 to increase the strength.
Q. From 3,000 to 5,000 ? A. Yes.
Q. You have searched your office records and you have looked at 

Mr Stanley's diary, have you? A. Yes.
Q. I won't press this unless my friend makes that admission that 

I asked him for. You have looked at Mr Stanley's records as to what 
was the date that the first structural drawing was submitted to the 
Railways? (Objected to; pressed.)

Q. Have you the diary here ? A. Yes (indicating). 40
Q. Can you show Sir Garfield the page of the diary   (objected to; 

pressed; admitted). A. This diary won't show the dates that the 
drawings were sent to the Railways. The sheets in our job-book would 
indicate exactly.
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Q. And you have those hero, have you? A. Yes. in the 
Q. AVhat does the diary show you? A. The diary indicates the Court of New 

knowledge that Mr Stanley had at certain dates. ' *'"££'*'
Equitable

HIS HOXOE: Q. Will you pick up the entries that you looked at and Jurisdiction. 
show them to Sir Garfield, and also the worksheets that you looked at? Defendant's 
Mr Wallace will give you the worksheets, I am sure. A. I have Evidence. 
marked the pages in the diary. NoTTo.

Q. You do not mind leaving that book in Mr Wallace's custody, Llewellyn, 
and he can show it ? A. Xo. —r-

10 Q. Is it necessary to look at the worksheets in addition to that? 
A. Yes; that is our office record of prints that were delivered to 
everybody.

Mr WALLACE: Q. Can you tell, from looking at the working sheets 
or the job sheets and the diary, what was the date when the structural 
alterations went to the Commissioner for Railways? (Objected to.)

Q. Can you say whether you can tell us? (Objected to; rejected.)
Q. Can you fix the date from your office records and diary? (Ob­ 

jected to; pressed.)
Q. What are these documents (handed to witness) ? A. These 

20 are list sheets taken from our job record book.
Q. How were they prepared ? (Objected to; pressed.)

HTS PTONOE: Q. Did you do it yourself? A. No; they were pre­ 
pared by the staff.

Mr "WALLACE: Q. Were they prepared under your supervision ? 
A. General supervision, yes.

(Question pressed; further objected to; argument ensued; 
rejected.)

Q. What is the practice in your office? A. These followed the 
usual practice (indicating). When the job first starts the sheet is filled 

30 in with the title of the job, its address, the architect, and it is given a 
number called a general number. That master number is entered on 
the left of each drawing as it is prepared. This (indicating) is de­ 
scribed as reinforced concrete details, and in an abbreviated way it 
says "Three prints, A." The A is in brackets, meaning "architect", 
and then the date, and then the next one is "three blueprints", again 
to the architect, and then the date they were sent.

Q. And each of those documents had that information on them? 
(Objected to.)

Q. Is there anything else that you need to know! A. No; that is 
4Q the complete record, There is information on the back relating to 

accounts.
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in the HIS HONOE : Q. The information on the front can now be understood 
witl1 tlle explanation you have given us ? A. Yes. 

(Document m.f.i. "23".)
HIS HONOE : I would suggest that you show Sir Garfield the docu-

   ments during the short adjournment, as part of the material on whichDefendant's , . , , ,-• -,Evidence, he is to make the admissions.
NoTTo. (^ this stage the diary in the possession of the witness was 
H. A. handed to Mr Wallace. )

Llewellyn
  t.on Mr WALLACE : Q. What are these plans (indicating) t A. They

' are copies of prints that were sent to the Commissioner of Railways. 10
Q. Do not answer this question until my friend has had an oppor­ 

tunity of objecting. Are you able to say whether the dates shown on 
these copies of the prints are the dates when the structural drawings, 
of which they are copies, were sent or were drawn? (Objected to; 
rejected. )

HIS HONOR: The witness has already given evidence that the date 
put on was the date that the plan was prepared.

WITNESS: The date on the drawing is the date that is entered on 
the job sheet   the first date   but subsequently prints may be sent 
on subsequent dates, and those dates are on the right-hand side of the 20 
sheet. On the job sheet there is a date on the left-hand side when the 
drawing is first completed, but that drawing may not be printed until 
some time afterwards, but when it is printed and all the subsequent 
printings are indicated on the right-hand side. That print (indicating) 
is made from a tracing, and the tracing has the original date.

HIS HONOUR: Q. There is a time delay between the date of the 
tracing and the date of the actual printing? A. Yes, and then the 
tracing is put away on the file, and then somebody might call for a print 
later on, and the right-hand 'side would indicate the date of that.

Q. The right-hand side date is the date that prints were made of 30 
the original drawings? A. Yes.

Q. What about amendments ? A. The amendments are indicated 
by the same numbers, 1, 2 and 3, and having a letter after them.

MR WALLACE : I call upon my learned friend to produce structural 
drawings sent to the plaintiff by Stanley & Llewellyn and described as 
PI, P2, P3, 1452-4B, 1452-8A, 1-452-9, 1452-10.

SIE GrARFIELD : I will look for those over the short adjournment.

Mr WALLACE : Q. They would be the drawings of which these are 
prints, are they not? (Objected to).

(Structural plan of 1954 m.f.i. "24".) 40
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CROSS-EXAMINED in the 
SIR GrARFIELD : Q. You could identify for me, could you not, which
of the columns in the "substructure plans are steel and which are rein- Sowt̂
forced concrete? A. The substructure? At the level of Wynyard Equitable
Lane I could. I might follow that down further. I am fairly certain, ^rMiction-
but I could not be completely definite. Defendant's

1 " Evidence.
Q. You, of course, yourself have looked at Mi'. Stanley's calcula-  

tions of the loads permissible' on these columns in the substructure? H! A.
A. The table of permissible loads, yes, unfortunately, there were no Llewellyn. 

10 calculations.
Q. But you have seen the final figure's? A. Yes; they are in 

Court.
Q. And you have not seen his calculations, yon have not been 

through them? A. No.
Q. May I ask you have yon accepted them for the purpose of your 

own computations? A. Yes ; it was agreed with the Railway Depart­ 
ment that they were the loadings.

Q. So that you had in your mind certain permissible loadings of 
those columns on which you were prepared to act? A. Yes.

20 Q- Will you just open up Exhibit H, and you will see all the 
columns (Ex. H handed to witness). A. This is the one (indicating).

Q. Are they numbered on that one ? A. Yes, but this is only 
a part plan.

Q. I show you document m.f.i. "13" (handed to witness). You 
will see that that shows on the sheet 10. Cl. 72, the column in the sub­ 
structure with mrmbers on them ? A. Yes, that is right.

Q. Can you tell me which of those columns are structural steel'? 
A. The ones that I know definitely to be structural steel?

Q. Yes? A. 26, 28, 30, 32, 57, 81, 101, 119, 140, 138, 136, 134, 
30 11 2, 96, 76 and 51.

Q. Are those all of equal load-bearing capacity?   A. No.
Q. Which group of them would bear the greatest load? A. 51 

to 112.
Q. The line 51 to 112 ? A. Yes ; and 57 to 119.
Q. You looked at the schedule on loadings for all the columns, I 

take it? A. Yes.
Q. And you have in mind figures in the load limits of columns you 

have just named, 51 to 112 and 57 to 119, on which you are prepared to 
act? A. Yes.

4Q Q. Would I be right to say that the lines of column's 51 to 112 and 
57 to 119, are so constructed to carry approximately 7,000,000 Ibs. ? 
A. 51 is the heaviest, and it is 6,500,000. I can remember that one. I 
cannot remember the others.
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Q. Would a figure of 3,000 tons be the order of the load-bearing 
capacity? A. Yes.

Q. About 3,000 tons f A. Yes.
Q- Is that on 51 or the whole line of them - A - 51 is the only

one that I remember from that list.
Defendant's /-> -VT
Evidence. Q. You have not got the hst to refresh your memory! A. It is
N^To. in Court ' 

riH'£' Q- *' an you remember what it is on? A. It was on two sheets
Uewellyn. ,, , . ,. . . ,
   or that size (indicating).

examination. Q- A series of blueprints, I think? A. Yes. 2,850 tons on that. 10 

Q. Of the order of 2,850 tons"? A. Yes.

Q. Would you agree with me that there Ls no column in the City 
of Sydney, to your knowledge, even approximating that bearing capa­ 
city ? A. That is right.

Q. Would you agree with me that the largest column, to your 
knowledge, in the City of Sydney would have a bearing capacity of 
1,250 tons? A. Caltex is heavier than that.

Q. Heavier than 1,250? Do you know of a steel column? A. 
Speaking from memory, no.

Q. Speaking from memory? A. Yes. 20

Q'. You have given 51. Take 76 and 112 ? A. I am sorry. The 
figures I have given you are not at the foundation level. These start 
up at the Wynyard Lane level.

Q. Take the third floor level? A. What we have here is the 
second floor level that is the Carrington Street level. That (indicat­ 
ing) is the third floor level, and that is the level at which 51 would 
bear 6,484,000.

Q. It is of greater capacity as you go down ? A. Yes.

Q. Now take the other columns at the third floor level? A. 76  
5,157,000. 30

Q. And can you make the conversions to tons as we go? A. 
There may be errors.

Q. Yes. Take those two groups of columns and give me their 
bearing loads at the third floor level in pounds and in tons could you 
do that? A. Yes.

Q. You would have made calculations of the loads that you con­ 
templated could be placed on such of the columns as the 1956 scheme 
used if carried to completion? A. Yes.

Q. Have you those with you, by any chance? A. They are in 
those calculations that we submitted. 40
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(,). Before we go to the detail of that   you have told us that there in the 
is a beam between 55 and the column behind it, which is in the 20 's   
between 53 and 28 and between 55 and 30 ? A. Yes. South Wales

(j. At which level is the beam ? A. At the Wynyard Lane level. Equitable 
Q. And then 53A and 55.\ go up above on the beam ? A. Yes, uris_^on -

that is right. Defendant's
Evidence.

Q. And you have told us that by the time the contemplated develop- T   
ment according to the 1956 plans had reached the eighth floor, the 'H.'A.' 
building would need to be set back because, in your calculations, the Llewellyn. 

[0 load on 53 had then reached a point where it was necessary to set the
building back? A. That is right. examination.

Q. So that your contemplated scheme with the set-back would 
fully load 53 and 55? A. That is so.

(Short adjournment).

SIR GARFIELD: Q. Have you worked out those loads? A. Yes.

Q. Just read the numbers off and the loads? A. Column 51   
2,870 tons ; column 57   2,160 tons ; column 76   2,300 tons ; column 81   
 2,380 tons; column 96   2,440 tons; column 101   2,410 tons and column 
112 2,600 tons.

20 Q- Could you tell me, from the calculation books which you had 
here and which you produced the last time, what was the load you 
anticipated putting on column 51 for a start in this 1956 scheme if 
you carried it to the height of 150 ft. ? A. I could not tell you 
offhand.

Q. But could you tell me from the book? A. Yes. I am sorry, 
no. What we did was that we worked out the weight per floor which 
was to be on column 51 by the new scheme, and then used this scheme 
to calculate how many floors Ave could put on that column to see if we 
could get to the 150 ft. level. It was the reverse way of doing it. 

30 Q. So that you did not calculate the load you were putting on it? 
A. No. It would be easy to calculate the number of floors to 150 ft., 
and then multiply by the load per floor.

Q. It was just to see whether you had a safety margin on those 
columns? A. Yes.

Q. What was the position in regard to column 51 ? A. Column 
.")! was well on the safe side; there was no question about it.

Q. Would you have put 2,000,000 Ibs. on it altogether on your 
scheme ? A. I cannot remember offhand   I am sorry.

Q. Would this book of calculations help you, that you produced 
40 'he last time? A. Yes.

Q. While the book is being obtained, column 76 and its counterpart 
column, what is that? The counterpart column is 81 is it? A. No; 
78 and 81.



in the ( t). /8 and 81 f A. In a north-south direction.
Court of New Q. Yes ; I was thinking of north-south. 76 and 81 are the counter- 
South Wales parfs avo th Gv notf A. Yes ; I am sorrv.in its L

Equitable Q. T^^ are fofa structural steel columns ? A. Yes.
—— Q. 78 and 75 are the reinforced concrete columns? A. Yes.

Defendant's
Evidence. Q. You have given me the loads that these were designed to bear 

NoTTo. a ^ the third floor level? A. Yes.
Llewellyn Q - ^nc^ ^ne^r would be greater below. All that those columns arc 
   to bear in this 1956 scheme is the floor slab at the Carrington Street 

examination ^eve^ and the slab Mrhich roofs it? A. Yes, that is right, and the part 10 
over Wynyard Lane.

Q. And the bit over Wynyard Lane? A. Yes.
Q. Which is an almost negligible fraction of the 6,000,000 or 

7,000,000 Ib. load? A. Yes, of the total load.
Q. Have a look at this calculation book (handed to witness). \Yhat 

was the load that you calculated would be put on 51 if the 1956 scheme 
went to the full building height   the total load ? Have you the loads 
column by column ? A. Yes. It is 130,100 Ibs. per floor. (Indicating). 
That is the load per floor. The engineer in his office has taken an 
estimate and made it conservative knowing that that was well within. 20

Q. Being 27 is this beam which was inserted between 53 and 28, and 
55 the counterpart one behind it   is that right? A. I would not 
know that.

(,). AVoll, check that? A. I would need scheme 56.
Q. That is Exhibit 10 (handed to witness). A. These numbers 

would refer back to the sketch plans which would be transferred by the 
draughtsman on to these working drawings (indicating).

Q. Whatever it be, you finally got a per floor loading in a beam 
structure as distinct, from a flat structure? A. Yes.

Q. You were going to have 130,100 Ibs. per floor? A. I think 30 
that is the flat-plate structure. I think at that stage it was a flat-plate 
structure. 23.10.56   that is the flat-plate structure.

Q. Had you no comparable calculations at a time when you were 
going to build it according to the initial structural steel drawings, 
Exhibit 10? A. Yes, but 51 was not affected then, because the 
original 1956 scheme did not include that short projection. The original 
1956 scheme came across that, and it was on our suggestion to Mr. 
Nicholls that he enlarged it to take in 51. That column (indicating) 
was not capable of carrying to 150 ft., and we went out to that heavier 
column. We suggested coming across here and he suggested coming 4Q 
across there (indicating).

Q. What were the calculations as to the load to be placed on 51 
if it was to be built to the structural design of 1956? A. There 
were not anv because  
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Q. There are none   that is the answer? A. Yes.
Q. On the assumption that you convert this to a thin plate building, 

am I right to say that there would be 130,100 Ibs. per floor on 51  A. 
That is on this 1956 scheme.

( t). Turned into a flat-plate structure' A. Yes.
, . . , , . -, , , i TT( t>. A thin plate.' A. les.
( L). And what floor does that 130,100 refer to? A. That is a 

typical l)edroom floor.
Q. Would there be any larger load than the load on the bedroom 

10 floors? A. The 1951 column is already taking the cold room roof.
g. Is that any different to the 130,100 Ibs. per bedroom floor? 

A. Practically the same.
Q. Which is your third floor, Wynyard level, in relation to the 

1956 plans? A. That is one floor above Carrington Street.
(,). I should have said ''third floor, George Street"? A. Yes.
Q. And that corresponds to the second floor, Carrington Street? 

A. Yes. No; 1 am sorry, Carrington Street is the second floor   it 
would be one floor above Carrington Street.

( c). That would be your first floor of bedrooms? A. Yes.

20 Q- How many floors of bedrooms were you going to have in this 
1")0 ft. scheme? A. 1 could not tell you offhand.

Cj. Could you tell me from Exhibit 4 (handed to witness) ? A. 
Yes. It would be of the order of 1- or 13. Thirteen floors and a roof.

<J. At 130,100 Ibs. a floor, and allowing for this step back, which 
1 suppose reduces the load? A. Xo, T do not think so   not on 51.

( t). Well, assume that it does not, for the moment. 1 think that 
the step-back is within 5] ? A. It would affect 51, but not that much.

Q. The step-back docs make a difference to the load on 51 ? A.
Yes.

30 Q. Have you any figures in this calculation which would show 
what would be the per floor load OH 51 from the step-back to the limit f 
A. Xo. 51 was never worried about because it was so big.

< L>. The actual load I am after? A. Xo.

(,). Assuming that there was no step-hack, you would have 13 floors 
at 130,000 Ibs.?

Mr WALLACE: 1,690,000.

S1H GARFIELI): ( L). As I put it to you, within 2,000,000 Ibs.? A. 
Yes.

Q. And assuming the step-back, it is even less lhan that when 
40 working it out? A. Yes.

in the
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In the HIS HONOR : The calculations and the plans that came out of the safe 
CourfoTNew na<^ better go back into the safe unless the witness wants them. 
South Wales (Documents returned to Associate).

in its
SIR GA:BFIELD : Q- It follows, does it not, from what you have told 
us, that the contemplated development of Carrington Street, on which 

Defendant's the calculations were based, was a thin slab development   is that right'?
Evidence. , , T ' *
_ A. les.

*£; £• Q. A thin slab structure ? A. Yes. 
Llewellyn. Q v^i, a set-back as indicated on that diagramatic representation,

Exhibit 4? A. Yes.   10
Q. The structure for use as a hotel '! A. Yes.
Q. Have you, in that set of calculations, the calculation of the bear­ 

ing capacity of the two beams that were inserted between 5;! and 28, 
and 55 and the corresponding column to the west ? A. I could not 
say that offhand.

Q. Would you just look to see if it is there ? A. There again the 
beams were made floor to floor.

Q. Look at the calculation book (handed to witness). (Witness 
produces sketch plans). Are they marked for identification No. 21? 
A. Yes, I do not think that they would have been worked out because 20 
the original had not got to that stage. That would be the last thing 
coming down. I assume that they would not be in those calculations.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Coming down it would be the last thing to do ? 
A. Yes.
SIE GARFIELD : Q. Up to this point of time now there has been no 
calculation of the load-bearing capacity of those two beams ? A. I 
am sorry   we were referring to the final calculations on what we call 
working joins or probably the preliminary calculations of those beams. 

Q. Have a look (witness refers to documents) ? A. Yes; there 
were calculations for it. 30

(.,). I suppose they are just preliminary, are they? A. Yes.
Q. What is the load that it would have to bear '! A. The column 

that was set on those beams was to carry 1,105,000 Ibs.
Q. And that means that the beam must be able to carry that load 

or greater? A. Yes.
Q. Well, what load was it able to carry ? A. It was not a straight 

load. There was that central column load, there was its own dead­ 
weight from the floor level to Carrington Street, and there was the 
need to carry the roof over Carrington Street. It was not a straight- 
out load. 40

Q. And you have not calculated, even now, the precise dimensions 
have you? A. Yes, it is noted here   326" x 27" with an area of 
reinforcing steel.
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Q. That was to be worked out? A. Yes. These calculations fa the 
were to determine the size of the concrete and the weight of reinforce-
ment necessary in the beam. Soutk Wale*

in its
Q. And the actual design of the beam would be done later on? Equitable A. Yes ; at a later stage. Jurisdiction.

Q. Just give me the weight of steel and the concrete dimension? 
A. The concrete dimension is 1-6" x 27", and the reinforcing steel 3 cwt. 
per foot. £-

Q. And the concrete 3,000 Ibs. as specified ? A. Yes. Llewellyn. 
10 Q- Was there anything peculiar about the manner of construction Cross- 

of it? A. It had not been gone into then, but I doubt if there would 
be.

Q. And was the manner of its being attached to the columns   had 
that been gone into ? A. No. It is the last thing to do.

Q. There were quite a lot of problems attached to that ? A. Not 
problems   detail.

Q. Have you in mind the manner in which it would be attached to 
the columns? A. It would be poured straight over the top of the 
existing columns.

20 Q- WBS anything to be clone to the existing columns before you 
poured them? A. They had been there for some time. They would 
have to be cleaned down.

Q. But apart from that ? A. No.
Q. Do you remember my asking you about the insertion of a truss 

into this building if you wished to develop the centre of the site . . . 
A. Yes.

Q. Eastwards towards George Stre'et? A. Yes.
Q. I think you told me or my friend that it would be most incon­ 

venient to put it in between the 5th and 6th floors? A. It was 
30 originally designed to go between the 5th and 6th floors, yes.

Q. And assuming that you developed this 1956 project in Carring- 
ton Street and desired to either, at the time of further developing 
Carrington Street or later, develop eastwards over the centre of the 
site   we have agreed that you would need to have a truss to do it if 
you were going up to the permissible height? A. Yes.

Q. And in that event do you agree that it would be at least con­ 
venient to put it in between the 5th and 6th floors? A. Yes.

Q. And indeed, once you had built what was proposed in the 1956 
plans of Mr Nicholls, it would have to be put in between the 5th and 

40 6th floors ? A. Yes. I am sorry   may I correct that ? That is not 
correct, is it? It could be put in at any level above the roof over 
Wynyard Lane   it could be put in at any level above Carrington 
Street.
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*»»* Q. Is that right? A. Yes.Supreme 
Court of New Q. Have you gone into the question of the dimensions of the two

chords of this truss? A. No.
y°u did that -vou woukl uot 1)e abk> to toil » would y°u »

Avhether you would fit it so that yon would have an opening for com- 
muiiication, bearing in mind the possible depth of the chords and their 

   relation to floor levels? A. That would be part of the design.
H. A. < t). From what you know of what the truss had to do, Avould you 

Llewellyn. agrcc -\vith me that the upper and lower el lords may well have to be
Cross- of such a dimension to span this SO ft. odd that it would not be until \Q 

examination. yOU g.Qf. ^o j.jle .-j^ floor f]ia { yOU eou ic| suitably match them to the floor
levels so as to provide entrances through the truss to Carrington 
Street? A. 1 cannot see why not. If there was no reason for not 
putting it at a lower level I think that that could quite easily be done. 
For instance, there was no reason why it should not be put between 
the 3rd and 4th floor levels. Il was originally designed to go between 
the 4th and 5th, but there was some external requirement . . .

Q. Have you in mind at all the possible dimensions of this truss ? 
A. Only that it would be approximately 10 ft. deep.

(,). I mean its top and bottom chords? A. Xo. 20
Q. So that we will be able to follow it, perhaps I should give you 

a sheet of paper. (Handed to witness). This truss would not neces­ 
sarily have a top and bottom chord, would it? I will draw it. (Sir 
(larfield writes on paper). You have a number of columns, do you 
not? A. Yes.

(,). And then you have what we call in timber work, "braces"? 
A. Ves.

( L). And they woukl go like'that (indicating) ? A. Yes.
Q. Or that way (indicating), if yon prefer it? A. Yes; that is 

one way of doing it, but that is not necessarily the only way of doing 30 
it. The truss, because it is in the building, would be designed by t ! ie 
architect.

Q. But the engineer still has to have his dimension .' A. Ves.
Q. And doorways, have to be fitted in between the column and one 

of these diagonals (indicating) ? A. Yes.
Q. You have to fit your doorways in there (indicating) ? A. 

Yes; it might come to the stage where we could not have diagonals.
Q. These chords would probably be of the order of 4 ft. deep? 

A. Xo.
Q. Well, what are you thinking of? A. 1' ft. Tl is the area of 40 

steel, not depth in the chord, that matters.
Q. Y/ou were thinking of putting in a greater dimension the other 

way ? A. Not necessarily. It is not a question of depth but of getting
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the greater amount of steel into it. I think it could be got into 2 ft. 
deep. It does not mean anything by making the dimension of it greater.

Q. Even if it was 2ft., the top chord would be the same? A. 
Approximately. Equitable

Q. So that if you have to put in a door to communicate with the *
floor, then you must find a place in the building where the floor level

'., J , . f A -IT- ^ i • • i L Evidence.permits you to come in    ; A. Yes, that is rignt. __
Q. And where you can fit it in in some way to the ceiling level H! A. 

above ? A. Yes ; that would be floor level, and that would be floor Llewellyn. 
10 level (indicating). cl^-

Q. And you cannot have it deeper than the door head? A. That examination- 
is so.

Q. Have you gone into the question of whether, bearing in mind 
Mr Nicholls' design and the dimensional requirements of this truss, it 
could, without very great ingenuity, be placed anywhere between 
the 5th and the 6th! A. I have not gone into it, but I see no reason 
why it could not go between the 3rd and the 4th.

Q. Supposing it is inserted between the 5th and the 6th I A. 
Yes.

20 Q- That is the position you were willing to accept before? A. 
Yes.

Q. The building above the truss of course is carried on the truss! 
A. It is carried on columns in turn supported on the truss.

Q. The building below the truss has got to be borne, most econo­ 
mically, of course, on the columns which lie beneath the position of the 
truss? A. Largely, but not altogether, because remember at this 
stage we have used up columns 5.'! and 55.

Q. I will come to that again in a moment. If you were extending 
the Carrington Street building eastwards over the centre of the site, 

30 whilst the building above the truss would be carried on columns them­ 
selves carried on the truss, the building from the Wynyard Street level 
up to the underside of the truss would have to be carried on the columns 
which lie beneath the area spanned by the truss! A. Well, if those 
columns were available below.

Q. Yes? A. Well, some of those might not be available.
Q. We will come to that in a moment. It would be necessary, if

you inserted the truss between the 5th and 6th floors for the purpose
of going eastwards over the centre area, to build on to, inter alia, column
55 and column 53 to carry the floors which would be below the truss?

Ar. A. No ; you would not be able to use those columns.
Q. That means that you could not build it? A. You could not 

use the column's. You have 51 and 57 which are quite strong.

Q. 51 and 57? A. Yes.
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inthe. Q. Have a look at L2 (handed to witness). The line of the eastern 
New face of the Carrington Street building runs along 53A and 55A! A. 

South Wales Yes. That may well be one of the reasons for putting this truss 
Equilabu to at a lower level. 

Jurisdiction. Q j am fafcfag fl^ 5^ and Qfa floors! A. Yes.

Evidence'8 ^' ^^s would he true, that the higher up you insert the truss, the 
   tighter the truss can be, and therefore the cheaper! A. Yes.
H.A. Q- It carries less above! A. Yes.
ewe yn' Q. I want you to assume that you put it in at 5 to 61 A. Yes.

examination Q- And assume that this building is carried out solid below it and 10 
solid eastwards'? A. Yes.

Q. And the building below the line of trusses has got to be borne 
on these existing columns! A. Yes.

Q. You have already, for the purposes of your building, taken 
part of the bearing load of 53 and 55! A. Yes.

Q. Because you have spanned those with that beam, and the build­ 
ing is brought on to them with the line of columns that come down to 
55A and 53A! A. Yes.

Q. And you felt that you had to step back the building! A. Yes.

Q. Because the load carried at that level would put a greater load 20 
on 53 and 55! A. Yes.

Q. Is it right to say that in those circumstances you could not carry 
your building up underneath the trusses on 53 and 55 1 A. No.

Q. You do not agree with that! A. No.

Q. Have you ever worked it out at all? A. No, but you pose 
the problem then. Assume that the 1956 scheme is complete. Then it 
is put to the engineer, "I want to fill in that area" the centre area.

HIS HONOR: Q. And put a truss between the 5th and 6th floor ? A. 
Yes, that is the assumption. Assuming that for some other reason the 
truss had to go between the 5th and 6th floor, the engineer could ignore 30 
those column calculations which were taken out several years ago and 
which were very, very conservative. He would check to see whether he 
could get one or two more floors on 53 and 55, and he has only got to 
get two more and he is put to this (indicating). Obviously the cheapest 
way out would be to press by going back through the whole building 
that 53 and 55 were capable of carrying more load in fact than those 
schedules show.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. I will come to that in a moment, but let us take 
all the data you have got! A. Yes.

Q. On the data you have got, what is the position! A. Failing 40 
that, he would then look round for other columns and see what he
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could do with those, and he has placed that cantilever with these columns 
(indicating). 78 and 79 would be available, and he might have some 
reserve strength to get across from those.

Q. Let me go back over that. If we take the existing computed 
strength of these beams and your computation of the load you are 
taking on them in the 1956 scheme, would you agree that there would 
be no margin sufficient to carry the building up under the truss I A. 
That is so.

Q. So that the only way of doing it would be to find that the 
10 calculations were unduly conservative? A. Yes.

Q. Although you yourself have not so far thought that, insofar 
as you have stepped the building back yourself at the 8th floor? A. 
Well ....

SIR GARFIELD: Q. So that you have yourself not thought that the 
present calculations of bearing capacity for 53 and 55 are so conserva­ 
tive that you could take the building up for its full height along the 
eastern wall, at the same plane as the eastern wall just below part of 
C.53A and C.55A? A. We were only going to the third floor but we 
were asked in a short time what could be done and the obvious thing 

20 was to accept those and say "If you must do this then it probably will 
be necessary to set back".

Q. So that the only other alternatives of these at the moment, and 
these are speculative that you made on recollection, sufficient reserve 
bearing capacity for 53 and 55 ? A. They are not speculative in the 
sense that we know that the allowable loads of the columns have been 
increased and have been modified.

Q. But you still have to compute it? A. Yes.

Q. And the other alternative as you have given is a complicated 
engineering device which has not been done so far, you say? A. Yes.

30 Mr WALLACE: Or the third one  the cantilever. 

SIR GARFIELD: That is what we are talking about.

Q. You might tell us when the change took place in the load to be 
placed on this concrete? A. Somewhere in the 40's, I couldn't 
answer that accurately, I am not certain of that by any means.

Q. You see, these schedules of loads bear a notation of an agree­ 
ment with the Railway officers and is that not applicable to 54 (No
answer).

Q. Mr Stanley has gone through those in connection with the 1954 
scheme at some stage? A. That is so.

40 Q- And the loads that were agreed upon were in 54? A. Yes, 
but they differ altogether from that, I think. I can't answer that 
exactly. I remember one of the officers of the Railway Dept. coming in
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in the and suggesting to Mr Stanley that he was in difficulties and that he 
mav ta^e advantage of that fact and revise those loadings.

Q. Those loadings seem to have been revised? A. I don't think 
Equitable so. One of those notations I think was 1938.
  ' Q. At some stage you were going to bring up Mr Stanley's records 

un(^ei' subpoena, I will call for them later on unless we can get rid 
of it some other way. 

H. A. Q. I put those series of questions to you on the assumption that the
Llewellyn, truss was inserted between the 5th and the 6th, the place which I think

Cross- you said before would be the original place ? A. That was the JQ
examination. original intention.

Q. In the 1956 plan no provision is made for inserting the truss at 
any earlier floor? A. No.

Q. Have your plans, the structural plans, got to the stage of your 
being able to tell me the manner in which you were going to connect 
your concrete, reinforced concrete extensions to the structural steel 
column example 51? A. I think there is a small indication of it 
on one of those sheets but it has not been finally detailed, that was 
put on to indicate to the builder that something a little other than the 
normal would be required. 20

Q. Exhibit 10 you mean? A. Yes. That is the existing 
stanchion. It was indicated he had to allow for welding those rods on, 
welded across the top of the existing.

Q. That was preliminary, you say done in haste, would that have 
been your final design? A. Not necessarily.

Q. Have you yet determined what the final form of that bonding 
would be? A. No, that is the last part of our column.

Q. The beam that goes from 53 to 28 and 55 to 30, these 55 and 
53 are reinforced concrete beams and the structural steel beams are 
reinforced concrete. All of them? A. Yes. 30

Q. You said you would pour that beam over the existing columns, 
just draw that for me, just show us? A. These columns exist in 
the form of splice rods projecting above the concrete and there is a 
steel column over here (indicating). This would be quite simple. The 
concrete is just poured over the top of it. This would be the difficult 
connection on that side (indicating).

Q. 28 is the steel one? A. Yes.
Q. I asked you what was the method of attachment? A. I am 

sorry. I thought you meant concrete columns.
Q. I want to know what is the method of attachment! A. 149 

haven't gone into that. It would be necessary to shelve angles welded 
to get the shear of that beam on to the steel column.

Q. That is a fairly complicated matter? A. Well detailed 
Nothing difficult about design.
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Q. Could that be marked (witness complies). in the
Supreme

Q. Where have you written (witness indicates). Court of New
HIS HONOR: Q. You are standing at Wynyard Lane looking .in! Smfn ^alea
A. I am sorry Wynyard Lane . . . Equitable

Jurisdiction.
SIR GARFIELD: Q. It is a way back? A. Yes, looking towards the    - ,

,, J ' Defendant s 
north. Evidence.

Mr WALLACE : What is this diagram. No. 10.
H. A.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. It is his explanation of putting the beam between Llewellyn, 
column 53 and 28 or 55 and 30? A. You are standing here (indicat- cross- 

10 ing)- There is another column goes back there. A small column goes examination, 
back there.

Mr. WALLACE: Would it be permissible to put "53" there and "28" 
there.

WITNESS: I have it there.
(Sketch tendered and marked Exhibit T).

SIR GARFIELD: Q. I just want to ask you to assume that you had 
the 1956 building in Carrington Street completed? A. Yes.

Q. And you then desired to put the truss in at a floor level lower 
than the fifth? A. Yes.

20 Q- Would that not raise a difficult procedure 1? A. No, there 
would be no difficulty between the third and the fourth because that 
would be free.

Q. What do you mean by "free"? A. There is nothing in the 
way, no concrete between the third and fourth, of course the 1956 plan 
doesn't get to the fourth.

Q. Assume you had finished it ? A. That is so, but then com­ 
ing to putting this truss in there will be nothing in the way between the 
third and fourth level so the truss could go in between the second and 
the third, either you would have to restrict the access on the third 

30 floor, which is the roof, in other words they wouldn't have free access 
through the truss, or else you would have to connect that concrete slab 
so that the bottom chord went below slab level.

Q. In addition by that time you would have to open up some of the 
columns to get your truss in? A. Yes, it is quite a simple matter to 
take the concrete casing off the steel column.

Q. I think you told me before you would have to make some form 
of bracket ? A. Yes, it cleats on to it.

Q. Would you not have to do some tonimmg up? A. There 
are no floors existing we are talking about the truss ?

40 Q- It could be put either second, third or third floor? A. Second 
to third you would have to hold the roof up, I am a bit lost with my
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n the floor levels, yes. Second to third would necessitate holding up the floor 
there would be no tomming up between the third and the fourth.

° S Mr WALLACE: Q. What is "tomming up'"? A. Temporary ver- 
inembers usually in timber.

Defendant's SIB GARFIELD : Q. Do you disagree with me that the truss would
Evidence, need to be from 2 to 4 feet, each chord of the truss from 2 to 4 feet

No. 10. high and from 2 to 4 feet 6 inches wide ? A. I would need to check up
H. A. DUt I would disagree I think, it may be done within 2 feet.

Llewellyn. ° ' J
c~ HIS HONOE: Q. 2 x 2? A. No, I am sorry, 2 ft. deep and the 

examination, original, I think we estimated at 3 ft. wide. 10

SIE GARFIELD : Q. Do you think it could be in 2 x 3? A. Yes.

Q. But you would need to check that? A. I don't think so. 
That is 6 square feet of solid steel.

Q. 80 odd feet! A. Yes.
Q. To bear up about 8 floors? A. I could do a quick calcula­ 

tion which could tell you.
Q. Do it in the lunch hour. If you would like to do it now, do so, 

because you may be finished before lunch   

HIS HONOR : Q. I think some one said, I think you yourself said that 
the weight of the truss would be about 800 tons; you were a bit light? 20 
A. Yes.

Q. I am just reminding you to be careful in your drawing? A. 
20 x 10 square inches of steel on the bottom chord, the top chord may 
have to be bigger, either would need checking. 200 square inches.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. 20 x 10! A. It probably wouldn't be in that 
form.

Q. It is that amount of solid steel? A. Yes, 200 square inches 
of steel.

Q. In practice that would be encased in concrete? A. Yes.

Q. And you may disperse it so that you could have a much greater 30 
dimension around the concrete casing? A. Yes.

Q. I was thinking myself more of the final amount of space that 
these things would take up? A. That would depend on the archi­ 
tectural requirements.

Q. That is why I gave you the original limiting figures, I sug­ 
gested to you that it may be 2 x 4' 6", 2 to 4 ft. high and 2 to 4' 6" wide! 
A. I don't think it would get that big. The idea would be to use as solid 
a section as you could get within reasonable economy and that encased 
in concrete.

Q. The minimum? A. About 3x2 feet. 3 ft. wide and 2 ft. 40 
deep depending upon the critical.
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Q. I just want to ask you whether there would be any structural in the 
difficulties in the way of doing these things so far as you can tell me 
now. You have in mind the picture of the 1954 plan have you? A. South Wales
•y in Us
* GS - Equitable

Q. Is the 1954 plan susceptible of development, amongst other J*™***™. 
things, having a central building, a central connecting block about 46 Defendant's 
feet wide by 80 ft. long and 150 high above George Street ? A. The Evidence- 
54 plan had two connecting links. NO. 10.

Q. Was it not susceptible"? A. Filling in the central light area? Llewellyn.
10 Q- Yes? A. Trussing up the fourth floor. Cross-

Q. 46 x 80 x 150 feet high? A. I think it could be. examination.

Q. These are alternatives'? A. Yes.
Q. Development by two central blocks, connecting blocks, I don't 

mean connecting each other but connecting east west, '22 ft. 6 inches 
apart each block being about 34 x 80? A. That is how it was.

Q. And you run that to about 67 feet ! A. Yes.
Q. Is there a further alternative, can you see any other structural 

impediment to this development of having two central blocks 22 ft. 
apart each block about 34 feet by 80 to a total height of 150 feet above 

20 George Street? A. Scheme "B" ran to 150 feet.
Q. Yes, except the light area is 6 inches narrower? A. No 

structural reason.
Q. Could you do this ; take the two central blocks   any structural 

difficulty in the way of this   taking two central blocks, carry them up 
to 150 feet. I think I expressed that for you badly, to have a develop­ 
ment which would have two central blocks separated by a light area 
which would run from 67 feet above George Street to 150 and below it 
to be a solid construction all over that   no light area  

HIS HONOE: Wouldn't it be better to start from the bottom?

30 SIR GARFIELD: Q. What I was putting to you as another possible 
alternative development in the centre which had two blocks each 34 x 80 
(approaching witness) the light area coming down 67 ft. from the top, 
being then stopped and below that area being solid? Do you follow 
that? A. Quite. No structural difficulties.

Mr WALLACE: It would be 90 feet in width from the 7th or 8th 
floor downwards.

SIR GARFIELD: He didn't calculate that.

HIS HONOR : The two buildings plus the light well at the back.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. Do you see any structural difficulty or impediment 
40 to constructing a building, a connecting building which was one large 

central block up to the truss level, that is to say the width my friend
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in the. gives you twice 34 plus 22, then above the truss carried up to 150 feet 
TNSW level over the whole width with no light area? A. Does this question 

"south'Wales presuppose the 34 scheme as built and modified!
in its .-. -y- 

Equitable ^l- J- 6S—— 
Jurisdiction.
  Mr WALLACE: The 54 scheme has been fully built and these are all 

Evidence.'8 alternative extensions of it.

NO. 10. WITNESS: There would be difficulties but not impossibilities. 
H. A. 

Llewellyn. Mr WALLACE: Could I express it another way one large central
Cr088. block, 90 feet wide, 80 feet long and 150 feet high.

examination, ,-^y-p, 
bl-K

Q. Of course none of those developments would be possible unless 
column 51 was carried up to the point where you were going to put 
the truss? A. That would apply to all those columns.

Q. And that would necessitate of course using 3,000 sq. inch con­ 
crete! A. Let us go back to the presupposing of these developments, 
they would all have to be allowed for in the original building, you just 
couldn't start filling in pieces unless the columns had been designed to 
carry the load.

Q. Do you recall the position of the cluster of columns which was 
provided for a lift well in the original sub-structure design ? A. 20 
There were two lift wells, the major one in which three lifts were con­ 
templated.

Q. Do you remember where that was? A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember whether there AVUS provision for a .single lift 
towards George St.? A. Yes, that is correct.

Q. And no provision of a cluster of columns for a group of lifts 
in the George Street front? A. That is right, I don't remember the 
front.

Q. You don't remember they were not there? A. I would have 
to check on the plan. 30

Q. What would you like to look at to tell me ? A. The 54 plans. 

Q. I show you exhibit H? A. No, no such columns.

Q. Are you able to answer this question; from your engineering 
knowledge can you tell us, looking at the original sub-structure plan 
and noting those features I have just called your attention to, the 
original sub-structure was designed for some building in which the 
lifting of persons would be done on the Carrington Street side and 
their access to the George St. side be by some communicating building? 
A. I am afraid that is an architectural question, all I can say struc­ 
turally is there is no lift wells been provided for on the George St. 40 
side other than the small one.
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Q. One other matter : Could you give me with some precision the in the 
size of 53 and 55 to scale on L>.'2 and 53A and 5.")A as they would appear court'of'xew 
in the lounge! I show you L.2 Could you scale exactly on to this South Wales 
which is part ofl H, sheet 2 of H the size and position of 55 and 53 and Equitable 
55A and 53A? A. To start with you can't scale exactly, it is only my Jurisdiction. 
eyesight reading of the scale. 55 and 53 weren't shown on those plans; Defendant's
I put those On. Evidence.

Q. Could you do it for me now exactly or in the luncheon break. H. A. 
Perhaps you had better do it now because it is the last question I Llewel'yn- 

10 want to ask you. I should have said sheet 2 of L.l2 ? A. 52 and 53 cross- 
were put on those sheets freehand and I couldn't scale it freehand. examination.

Q. Have you any other plans here to give me the precise position 
and scale the dimensions of those four columns in that lounge to the 
scale of that architectural drawing ? A. I sketched 53 and 55 off this 
drawing (indicating).

Q. I don't want you to tell me how big they are, I want you to tell 
me how big your structural plans would require them to be? A. 
Those sizes are given on our structural drawing.

Q. I was trying to get you to draw them for us, so we can see 
20 exactly; look them up; or to scale. Put them on to there to scale and 

the position   

Q. Would you take column 30 and 28 and position them exactly and 
with their dimensions on the bedroom floor above 40? A. I don't 
think I can position them exactly ; I can give you the size off the drawing.

Q. Assume where they are shown    A. I can't accurately 
locate them.

Q. I realise that. Just get them up to size assuming the architect 
has them in the right position. 30 and 28 on the bedroom floor. Per­ 
haps you could do that during the luncheon adjournment.

30 SIB GABFIELD : We are trying to get some of these facts straight. 

( L>. Did you mark those on the plan for me '? A . Ves.

Q. (Approaching witness) Could I just see what you have done. 
A. (Indicating). That is the bedroom.

Q. Sheet No. 31 A. Sheet 4 of L.2, they go right through to 
the bedrooms, those are those two columns, (indicating).

Q. The pencil? A. Yes.

Q. These are the other two that weren't shown? A. Yes, put 
in freehand on sheet 2.

* 38632  8
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in the Q. Are you familiar with what exists at Wynyard today! A. 
familiar.

Q- Can you tell me from the basement there, I'll just show you a 
document which I will have marked for identification   

Jurisdiction.
—— (Abovementioned document m.f.i. 25.)

Defendant's
Evidence. Q. I show you a sheet which is marked "page 2". Can you just

NoTTo. quickly tell me whether that is what accords with what is in the base­
st. A. ment 1 A. No, I just couldn 't in tho'se lower floors.

Llewellyn.
    Q. What about the Hunter St. level on page 3 ! A. No.

Cross- ^ ^ ° 
examination. Q The mezzanine) js that as is? A. No. 10

Q. It is not like that? A. No saloon bar.

Q. Is there a saloon bar there? A. No, that is the dining room 
I think.

Q. That is page 4? A. Yes.

Q. I show you page 5? A. Yes, that is substantially the same   
two ramps and shops either side.

Q. The bar? A. Yes.

Q. So five is substantially as is? A. Yes.

Q. I show you 6, George St. level? A. No, it is not like that.

Q. With Wynyard Lane like that? A. No. 2Q

Q. Is there any development at that point? A. Minor. The 
cold room is built on the southern side.

Q. Where it is shown "cool rooms" they were built much larger? 
A. Much larger. This is one floor above George St., that is the existing 
bedrooms facing George Street.

Q. I pass by sheet 7 and sheet 8 and sheet 9 and I show you sheet 
10, are you familiar with the 1954 bedroom plan? A. Yes.

Q. Does that bear any resemblance to that representation there? 
A. Yes, it largely resembles that, I don't think that was built up so 
much. OQ

Q. What is "that"? A. The north eastern corner. The rest I 
think is substantially the same.

Mr. WALLACE: Q. A different number of bedrooms? A. That is 
the subdivision, I was only referring to the overall plan. The internal 
subdivision would be quite different I imagine.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. That is a matter of internal walls? A. Yes.

Q. 10A is an alternate way of looking at the same, you agree with 
me about that? A. The perimeter shop?
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Q. Yes? A. Yes. in/he
Supreme

Q. I am asked to ask you one technical matter; you were telling Court of New 
me with respect to the beams and how they would be fixed, put in ' °"-^ itsa e? 
between the steel columns and the reinforced concrete column? A. Equitable
-y Jurisdiction.

Q. The end connection to the steel, is it a fixed end connection to the Evidence,
steel or a free end collection to the steel column? A. That would   ~
want to be determined in the design. H. A.

Llewellyn.
Q. That hadn't been determined? A. No, it could have a free    

10 end form or hinge, it would need a lot of thought to say which would examination, 
be the better way to do it.

Q. That hadn 't been determined ? A. No.

HIS HONOR: Q. Have you completed all the calculations you need 
to do now? A. Yes.

Q. You have done everything you were asked to do? A. Yes.

SIR GARFIELD: I have discussed the question of an admission with 
my friend, Your Honor; I have suggested to him I would not be able 
to give an unqualified admission and I have suggested some sort of a 
qualification which might be accepted but we will need to talk about it.

20 HIS HONOR: Very well.

RE-EXAMINED. Re-
examination .

Mr. WALLACE: Q. You said you only have the "budget", so to speak, 
for one more floor for the 1956 plans? A. Yes.

Q. The central pillars you have there are used in the 1956 plan? 
A. That is so.

Q. Just explain that; elaborate on that please? A. These so- 
called weak columns in the 1956 scheme were taken up to the roof over 
Carrington St., that is the third floor, so that they only need to go to 
the 4th floor in any future development, the 5th floor being carried 

30 on the bottom chord of the truss between the 5th and 6th floor.

Q. Are you expressing a firm opinion as to whether there would 
be competence to go to the 4th floor? A. On previous experience 
with such places in this State and the difference between the then 
regulations and the present regulations I have no doubt we would get 
another floor on the column.

Q. I just want you to elaborate for a moment what you meant by 
saying that you envisaged trusses being 3 ft. x 2 ft. and at the same 
time you said, after working out something in the witness box, that 
you would require 200 square inches of steel? A. Yes.
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in the Q. Just draw a little diagram on this piece of paper showing the 
outside of the concrete and the steel pieces inside all being the truss  

South Wales (witness complies).
in its

juriSon. HIS HONOR: Q. With transparent concrete? A. Yes, it is always 
   drawn that way. There are two possible ways.

Defendant's

vL6_°e' Mr. WALLACE: Q. (Approaching witness) Yes 1? A. It is neces- 
®°- w. sary to have 200 square inches of steel.

LieweUyn. Q In ^ bottom one you have "3 R.S.J."? A. Rolled steel 
Re- joists, which are the cheapest way of buying any section of steel. The 

examination. ^ Qne in(jicates two rolled steel channels joined together by welded 10
or bolted plates with the idea of keeping the 200 section of cross-
sectional area of steel.

Q. The outside is ... A. Merely concrete casing for fire- 
proofing.

(Sketch tendered and marked Exhibit 13).

HIS HONOR: Q. We have heard here of the dimensions of these 
trusses of 10 feet ? A. That is the overall depth. That sketch has 
indicated only the bottom chord, of the truss.

Q. I realise that that would be the bottom chord and there would be 
a top chord? A. Yes, and various members in between. 20

Q. And overall it would be 10 ft.? A. 10 ft.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Would it have two of those joined by a steel 
bracket? A. That is right.

Q. You were asked, as I understand it, about five -suggested 
methods of filling in the 1954 plans in the centre part of the site, do 
you remember? A. Yes.

Q. One being, for example, to go right up 150 feet in a slab block? 
A. Yes.

Q. I only want to ask you when you said they were structurally 
possible did you have any views as to whether they would be easy or 30 
difficult. I want you to imagine   I am not sure you understood Sir 
Grarfield's assumption about the 1954 building being erected and com­ 
pleted according to those 1954 plans, do you follow? A. Yes.

Q. Remembering those five ways of dealing with the extension of 
the central area which Sir Garfield gave you would you have any views 
as to whether any of them involved structural difficulties although you 
said they were structurally possible ? A. I mentioned that with the 54 
scheme in existence that they would be structurally possible though 
difficult.
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Q. I think you have indicated already that almost anything is in the 
structurally possible if you have enough money ? A. On this site, 
within the capacities, the ultimately determined carrying capacities of South Wales 
the columns. i/"-fl;Equitable

Q. Sir Garfield asked you this morning didn't the big column under KWn" 
the 1956 plan merely bear the concrete slabs of one other floor, I think? 
A. Yes, those columns would support the roof garden on the third floor 
as well. N°- -

Q. I want to ask it clearly; are they in your opinion fully capable ewe yn' 
10 of being extended to carry a 150 ft. building ? A. Within the provisos Re-

that Were disCUSSed, yes. erammatam.

Q. That is to say by pre-planning! A. Yes.

Q. And having ledges or whatever they call them for the various 
floors? A. That is right.

Q. Do you remember that you have seen during this case some 
plans of the Kerr building back in 1934? A. Yes.

Q. Is there any detailed work of any sort beyond the third floor in 
any of those plans you have seen? A. Not to my knowledge, all 
are complete reinforced beams finished on what was called then the 

20 third floor level.

Q. And the roof was shown as serving a utilitarian purpose on the 
3rd floor! A. That is right. Our structural drawings just show a 
roof, many of the architectural drawings I have seen show a building 
detailed to that level.

Q. But no higher? A. No higher. There are sketches in exist­ 
ence of some future buildings but not detailed.

FURTHER CEOSS-EXAMINBD Cross- 
examination.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. Did you tell my friend that there was no difficulty 
about it, that you were only putting one further floor on these so-called 

30 weak columns 1 A. Yes.

Q. I just ask you, if you suppose the 1956 development complete 
and then you were proceeding to put a building from east to west across 
the centre of the land part of it was to be carried on trusses you would 
be putting, would you not, not merely one floor more on top of 53 and 
55 but you would be putting part of the load of the building, that two 
or three floors that were also borne on 78 and 79? A. Oh yes, that 
is right.

Q. It is not really a question of one floor, it is one floor vertically? 
A. Remember earlier you asked me or somebody asked me was it 

40 possible to fill in that section?
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in the Q. Yes? A. It would be possible to carry those two up and 
cantilever towards the George St. front towards the back.

Q. Suppose you were going to bear these additional floors under 
Equitable, ^g truss of the beams of the so-called weak columns some part of that 

' load would go on to 53 and 55! A. If it was so designed but the 
wou^d be to design it without putting the load on.

NoTTo. Q- My question was would they carry those loads and your answer
H- A- is you would avoid that by cantilevering 78 and 79? A. Yes.Llewellyn. '

Cross- SIK GAKFIELD: Of course the witness still has this subpoena.examination.

No. 11. No. 11 10W R.
B~s- Further evidence of W. R. Banning

Examination, jjjg HONOR . TMg witness wag ^^ fo get a geries of photographs,
fo number them and make a list describing them so that you could look 
at the list and the photographs and see which is which.

WITNESS: I have those.

Mr WALLACE: Q. Just tell me what you have done? A. These 
slides have been numbered and they represent a number of different 
buildings, five in all and then against them, against each number you 
will find a comment.

Q. I go to slide No. 13 and I see that it illustrates something that 20 
you have described in the ledger book? A. Yes. 
(Slides in company with two pages of typescript, together with a tele­ 
view tendered and marked Exhibit 14.)

CrOS3. CROSS-EXAMINED.
examination.

SIR GAEFIELD: Q. I asked you whether the development of this 
site by what you and I call an "H" shape building would accord with 
your various previous ideas which you had been expressing earlier 
in your evidence? A. Yes, that is correct.

Q. What is the answer? A. It depends on the width of the 
section of the H that joins the two things together. 30

Q. I gather that. 45 to 48? A. There is one matter which is 
concerned in this sort of thing and that is that the light areas on each 
side may only be one third of the narrowest width, I doubt, I would 
have to check, but I would doubt whether the central portion could go 
the full height. If for example one took plan "H". (Interrupted.)
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Q. I was not asking about "H" I was asking about my own build- in the 
ing I put to you, namely a building 45 to 48 feet wide and the bar of 
the "H"? A. Could I see plan 2 to see illustrated what Sir Garfield South Wales 
has in mind!

Q. No. Could I have a sheet of paper that hasn't got lines on it. 
(Foolscap sheet of plain paper handed to Sir Garfield.) A. There Defendant's 
are two points which don't become obvious. Evidence.

Q. Don't trouble about that; just let me see if I can draw this ^'^' 
well enough for you. I suggest to you a building 150 60 172 this Bunning. 

10  ay be proportionally wrong, 60 the piece across the middle, 45 x 80, ~  
there it is? A. Actually my impression is that you would destroy examination, 
four bedrooms on each side.

Q. Don't worry about anything else but what I asked you about, 
would that design accord with what you have been talking about. With 
the building over part of the site and having light and air. That is 
all I asked. You can tell me about the bedrooms and forfeiting the 
ones on the south that aren't worth letting later; does that accord 
with your views about light and air! A. It would allow a central 
lift to go up the full height, it would make, I should imagine, a reason- 

20 able economic proposition but I wouldn't favour it on the grounds that 
these interior angles are useless.

Q. Answer my question, does it accord with your expressed ideas 
of utilising portion of the site and getting light and air? A. It does 
allow air to a certain amount of the face of the building but I wouldn't 
favour it as a plan.

Q. Do I understand that because of the angle rooms, there being 
perhaps less light than the others, for that reason alone you would 
prefer the building to have nothing in the middle ? A. Well as I 
see it that he is gaining very litttle (interrupted).

30 Q. I don't want your reasons for it, I just want you to tell His 
Honor do you say that you advise a building never to have anything 
in the middle for the reason you gave 

HIS HONOR: That is a new question.

WITNESS: I would have to go into it, it is the sort of thing one 
can't answer straight off.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. You told us something here the other clay about 
flate plate constructions, I suppose you will agree that it would be 
possible to fill a general idea of the 1954 plan which is Exhibit H in flat 
plate if you so desired making adjustments that had to be done? A. 

40 Flat plate meaning the engineering construction?
Q. Yes? A. No, I didn't mention that, that must have been 

some other witness, I was talking of flat slab meaning the fact of the 
building going vertically.
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in the Q. You wouldn't know about this idea of structure without beams?
Supreme « -»T 

Court of New A- iNI0 - 
South Wales

in its Q. At any rate do you know of any reason why you couldn't if 
Jurisdiction. ^'ou made a suitable modification go on with the 19a4 development in 

this slab or whatever you call it form of construction rather than a 
beam and column with it? A. It is an engineering question and I

   would rely on my engineer's advice.
No. 11.

Sunning. Q- -"- want to ask you this; something has been said here about
   the distance that people would walk from a lift in a building which 

examination. was constructed, for example, "H"-wise or something of that sort if 10 
the main lifts were in the Carrington Place as now situated in the 
structure? A. Yes.

Q. You will agree will you not that the impression one gets in even 
the most modern American hotel is the distance you have to walk from 
the lift to the bedrooms, the length of the corridors and that sort of 
thing I A. No, I was impressed with the short distance.

Q. What hotel impressed you as having a short distance from the 
lift? A. The Carlyne (?).

Q. That of course is an extremely narrow building built for seaside 
purposes to try and give the bedrooms a view over the beach! A. 20 
The same thing applies to the Beverly Hilton, it is not seaside, it is the 
same principle.

Q. Do you say that the Beverly Hilton hotel impressed you with 
the short distance? A. It is not as short as the other one but that 
just happened to be one that occurred to mo.

Q. Tell me about New York, not a holiday resort hotel where you 
are impressed by the brevity of the walk? A. Frankly I didn't see 
any modern New York hotels, I think they were all pre-War.

Q. What about Californian hotels? A. In California?

Q. Yes? A. The Statler Hotel in Los Angeles for example. 30

Q. There is a walk to the lift in that? A. I wouldn't have 
thought so, I didn't have a very long walk to mine, I didn't particularly 
trek round but I didn't notice it particularly.

Q. You will agree that in most of the City hotels of America, leave 
out the others, there is usually a great deal of corridor length to get 
to some of the bedrooms? A. In the pre-War hotels!

Q. Yes? A. Yes.

Q. As you say most of them are pre-War? A, The great num­ 
ber of them are, yes.



Q. How many of these Statler Hotels have you been to, I put it in the 
to you that in all the Statler system of hotels the length of corridor
from lift lobby to the bedrooms would be as great if not greater than Sontk Wales
the one from the lift in the Carrington St. building through to the bed- Equitable
rooms in George Street? A. I would not be able to answer that, I Jurisdiction.
l.avo the plans, I can check them. Defendant's

Q. You wouldn't be able to answer it? A. Xo I can check on V1_^e -
that No- u - tnat. w ^

Q. Were you advocating a parking area to be put over the top of Bimnin8' 
10 the existing George St. building? A. I was suggesting it would be 

possible to get cars up there and get them out from the one-way street, 
but whether it is an engineering possibility I mean Avoulcl need further 
consideration. I think it Avould be.

Q- '^y "possibility" have you considered what kind of space the 
authorities would require (No answer).

Q. For allowing you to get ramping and that sort of thing? A. 
No, [ have not been into that side at all. Purely consideration in 
principle.

Q. On the idea that it would have been a jolly good idea if it 
20 could be done.' A. That part of the site Avould not be impossible I 

shouldn't think.

Q. When you were talking about getting part of the site were you 
advocating that it was a good tiling simply to develop the ( arrington 
St. frontage of this site and to do nothing else? A. No, my pro­ 
position was that the Carrington St. front was best suited to a hotel 
and the George St. to some other commercial purpose.

SIK (1AHFIELD: (,). So 1 suppose you would agree with this, that if 
you attempted to put hotel facilities on the George Street frontage, 
and hotel facilities on the Carrington Street frontage, with no connect- 

30 ing building above ground, you would have a fairly difficult, if not 
impossible administrative problem ? A. With no connecting link.

Q. Yes? A. 1 think that it would be better to have a connect­ 
ing link.

(,). And would you favour a series of "cat-walks" or covered ways 
between the two buildings to make that connection? A. I personally 
would, yes.

Q. A series of "cat-walks"? A. i would not refer to them as 
"cat-walks". It sounds rather derogatory. I would refer to them as a 
scries of glass-walled bridges.

40 Q- Well, it shows what a name can do. How wide would these 
glass-walled bridges be ? A. They could be up to 12 feet.

Q. On every floor? A. Xo; I think at every third floor.
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in the Q. And you think that that would be a good idea! A. I think 
^ia^ they would be quite a workable idea. I personally would not favour 

South Wales having the hotel on the George Street front myself, but if it was re- 
Equitable quired to be there, that would be workable idea.

Jurisdiction. Q A workable idea t A. yeg.

Q. But not a good idea? A. Well, 1 would not favour having 
the other building as a hotel. I would prefer to have it as an office 

*°; »  building. 
Sunning. Q j wjj] take your expression, "glass-walled bridges". Is it per-

Crosa- missible to have glass-walled bridges between two buildings? A. I 10 
examination, ^ouid say so frOm the point of view of light and air.

Q. And if you had glass all round, you would have plenty of light 
on the "cat-walk" you don't think that it would interfere with the 
light in the bedrooms? A. A great deal less.

Q. You said before that you agreed with a sheet of comments and 
calculations that was put in by Mr Nicholls as part of his evidence. 
Have a look at these documents (Exhs. 2, .'!, 4 and 5 handed to witness). 
They contain some computations of floor areas and some comparative 
floor areas, and you told us that you agreed with them? A. Yes.

Q. Did you work any of them out? A. I checked the number of 20 
bedrooms and the number of bedrooms with baths, etc.

Q. Take the floor areas that is what I am asking about? A. 
Individual floor areas?

Q. Xo; the total? A. Yes, I did; I checked those. 

Q. You calculated those, did you ?   A. Yes.

Q. What was the width of the building on the George Street front­ 
age that you took ? A. I just measured it off the plan.

Q. Show me the plan you measured it off f (Witness indicated.) 
You have Exhibit 4 there, have you? A. It is marked on the back  
"exhibit "4"." 30

Q. What measurement did you get on that plan for the depth of 
George Street? A. I would have to scale it off now. I do not have 
tie figures with me.

Q. Yes, do that. (Witness scales plan.) A. 64 ft. 
Q. You got 64 ft., did you ? A. Yes.

Q. Is that plan to scale"? Has it any stated scale? A. I was 
checking against the heights. There are some figure dimensions which 
^ ive the scale.

Q. It has no scale on it? A. It has no stated scale, no.
Q. You worked out a scale by working from the height and getting 40 

vonr unit? A. Yes.
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Q. And you get 64 ft. 'I A. Yes. in the
SupY&tn€.

Q. Not 63 ft. ? A. Well, it could be the 32nd scale is very Court of New 
small. Yes; it could be 63. The width of a line would make a difference. Sowt̂

Q. What figure did you take ? A. I do not know. I do not even 
know that I kept the paper on which I did my calculations.

Q. The Carrington Street areas are nominated there, are they not, Evidence. 8
somewhere ''. A. Not on this plan, I do not think. No ; they are only ; 
planned on the same scale. There is no figure dimension except heights. \v. R.

Q. Can you tell me how much of the total area shown on Exhibit unn"lg '
10 4 is assigned to the George Street building? A. Of this position? Cross- 

examination.
Q. Yes ?   A. No; I could not answer that.

Q. Why could you not answer that? Yon have said that you were 
able to scale off the depth of the building. We know the frontage 
assigned. Why cannot you tell me how much of the total area was 
assigned to George Street ? A. This just gives a total figure.

Q. But that includes C'arrington Street and George Street? A. 
Yes.

Q. How much of that total is assigned to George Street ? A. I 
have not the figures here to do it Avith.

20 Q. Cannot yon work out Avhat George Street represents, according 
to that exhibit '! A. Yes, I see.

Q. Just quickly. (Objected to.)
Q. Well, do not do it quickly just do it as you will (witness writes 

on paper). A. Might I ask what the frontage to George Street is?
Q. Is it not shown on that plan ? A. It is to scale.
Q. It is 149 ft. or almost 150 ft. 147 ft.? A. I make it 111,132 

sq. feet.
Q. And the balance would have to be assigned to Carrington 

St. ? A. Yes, that is right.
30 Q. How many floors in George Street did yon take ? A. Twelve.

Q. Twelve floors? A. Yes; I was taking it from the present 
building up.

Q. You were taking it from the present building up ? A. Yes.
Q. That depth of 63 ft. it is not your ideal hotel depth, is it? I 

tLink you said 44 ft. 6 in.? A. Yes.
Q. It is 63 ft. Would you be able to build this with this flat plate 

building construction? A. From an engineering point of view  
vertical slabs ?

Q. Yes ? A. 1 would not be able to say that, but from an office 
40 building point of view it would be quite reasonable because you could 

have clerical space on the George Street frontage and private offices 
on the other.
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in the Q. So that there is not much disability in a commercial building
	in having it thicker through than 44 ft. 6 in.? A. Xo ; that is true. 

South, Wales Q How many feet, then, of space does that leave on the Cavrington 
Equitable. Street frontage according to your computation   the Carrington Street 

jurisdiction, development of this 1956 suggestion? (Witness writes on paper.) 
Defendant's A. T make it 123,068. 
Evidence. y(m ^ ̂  subtraction.' A. Yes; 1 have taken that

Xo. u. f roul the overall 234,200. 
Dunning. Q. Would you just work out for me, above the existing levels, what-
tto^, ever they are in Carrington Street, what space, by computation, you get 10 

examination. for Carrington Street? A. In the type L2   for this new one.
Q. Yes? (witness write on paper). A. My calculation is 117,168 

in the Carrington Street front.
Q. And by subtraction you got how much :' A. Well, there is a 

difference to the figure by subtraction and the figure by calculation 
of about 6,000, which I now assume has been made up by including this 
floor   the one that is already built. It is quite clear now that he lias 
included it.

( c). Where did you calculate in respect of Carrington Street :' A. 
From here up (indicating). 20

Q. Does "here up" include the first floor? A. Yes. I took 
.13 floors over the whole of this area (indicating). I would- emphasise 
that these figures need checking.

(Calculations of floor area m.f.i. "26").

Q. AYould you agree with this, that in the building of city buildings 
that design is usually chosen which is likely to give, in all, the greatest 
return to the owner of the land? A. Where the building is commer­ 
cial, that would be the case, yes.

Q. And in the case of a hotel building llic same is true, is it not? 
A. Yes, that would be so. 30

Q. And where you find, here or abroad, any particular use of the 
land, whether it be by using only part or the whole whatever it may be, 
that is the dominant factor:' A. That would be true, but of course 
in calculating that, the quality of the accommodation would naturally 
be reflected in the rental return whether it is offices or a hotel.

Q. There is no rule about how much of the land you use? A. 
Xo.

Q. You must take the individual site   do you agree ? A. Yes. 

(,). 1 ncluding it s situation ? A. Yes.

Q. And endeavour to decide what is the greatest return you can get 40 
Tor the development that you plan   is that right:' A. Yes.

Q. And plan accordingly ? A. Yes.
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Q. And when it all comes down to tin-tacks, what somebody else inthe 
does with his site in his particular circumstances will not control what court'oT'jVew 
you do with yours in your particular circumstance's ? A. I would not South Wales 
agree with that because after all someone sets a standard which you ^i^bic 
have to follow very often. If someone builds a hotel of the flat type Jurisdiction. 
and gives 100 per cent, good accommodation, then the next person who Defendant's 
is building a hotel is not going to do something that will give him less Evidence, 
than that high standard. XuTa.

Q. Do you think that that is true of Australian hotels at any stage Bun'n^g. 
10 of their development? A. I cannot say that for the past. T would    

hope that in the future that would be the case. examination.
Q. Well, it does come down to that, that there is to be some 

regeneration in the community? A. Yes.

RK-F.XAM men Ke -
exammation.

Mr WALLACE: Q. I take it that you indicate to His Honour that in 
computing so that you get the greatest return for a builder, the factors 
 ire such that they do not result in using the whole area'? A. No.

Q. Of necessity, at all events'? A. Quite so, I would like to 
tender, if I may, these plans of Au/ac House, which is primarily an 

20 office building and only 50 per cent, of the site area is occupied. (Docu­ 
ments produced).

Q. You say that it is primarily an office building? A. Yes. 
Q. Who designed it ? A. My own firm.
Q. Do you recollect approximately the area or the size of the site? 

A. Yes, I have those figures. (Documents produced). (Objected to: 
pressed.)

HIS HONOR: Yes, Mr. Wallace, you are getting too far afield alto­ 
gether. I reject it.

Q. You said that 50 per cent, of the site was used? A. Yes; 50 
30 per cent, of the site was occupied.

Mr WALLACE: Q. Would you be good enough to direct your mind to 
the 1954 plans Exhibit H. (handed to witness). A. Yes.

Q. This morning Sir G-arfield was a'sking a witness about the possi­ 
bilities of developing the actual area of the subject site in relation to 
the development from the 1954 plans ? A. Yes.

TTTS HONOR: Mi-. Bunning wn* in Court, T think, listening.

WITNESS: No. I did not hear that.

HIS HONOR: Well, it must have been when he had gone.

Mr WALLACE: Q. So that you construct a solid building in the
40 centre at the site which would be 150 ft. in height and twice times 38

plus 22 ft. 6 in. in width  that is 90 ft. and in the result the building
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in the joining the George Street component and the C'arrington Street com- 
New Porient would be a solid or massive building 40 ft. long, 90 ft. in width, 

South Wales and 150 ft. in height do you follow that? A. Yes. I can see the
Equitable '^ea -

Jurisdiction. Q From an architectural point of view do you consider that that 
Defendant's would be a wise thing to do on that site? (Objected to; admitted).
Evidence. A WG^ iQ gtart ^^ ^ WQuld no(. comply with tne (< ity Qf Sydney

No. 11. By-Laws because the light areas on each side are only 28 ft. 6 in.,
Bunntag. aud they would limit the height to three times that width. Under the
   By-Laws, you can go up three times the width of the narrowest light 10

examination. &lCa.

SIR UARFIELD: Q. A hotelf A. Yes; the restrictions on other 
buildings are less rigid.

Mr WALLACE: Q. You are only talking about hotels? A. Yes. 
Prom the point of view of actual planning it means that the building 
would be 48 ft. plus . . .

Q. 90 ft.! A. 90 ft. wide, which again is not very good from 
the point of view of subdivision if it were offices, and from the point 
of view of a hotel I think that it would be impossible.

Q. The next plan was to have a solid building 90 ft. in width, 80 ft. 20 
in length up to the 7th or 8th floor, and then, beyond that, there would 
be the two wings so to speak going each up to 150 ft. in height with that 
light area 22ft. 6 ins. in width between the centre of those two wings  
what do you say as to that, architecturally speaking? A. Well, 
again I say, subject to the same planning difficulties on the lower floors 
 they are not easy to subdivide because of the extreme depth.

Q. How does it appeal to you from a light and air point of view? 
A. Well, from a light and air point of view I doubt if it would comply 
with the City of Sydney's By-Laws, even from an office building point 
of view, I would have to check on that, I did not check on this particular 30 
proposition.

No. 12. No. 12 
W. B. Laune.

Evidence of W. R. Laurie
Mr WALLACE: Q. Are you a registered architect 1? A. Yes.

Q. Will you just tell us your qualifications ? You are a Fellow of 
the Royal Australian Institute? A. Yes.

Q. And what about the British Institute? A. I am a Fellow 
of the Royal Institute.

Q. What other qualifications have you? A. I have a University 
Degree in Architecture with Honours, and a University Medal. I am 40 
a Member of the Country and Town Planning Association and I hold 
a number of official professional appointments of various kinds.
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Q. And you have been practising your profession for many years '! /« the
A YP<* ' " * " ' Supreme 
A' -1- eb- Court of New

Q. Are you a member of a professional firm ? A. Yes; I am a 8oufn ŝales 
member at Laurie & Heath, practising in Barrack Street. Equitable

Q. Will you give His Honor three or four references to the build- __ 
ings you have designed and planned? A. Well, very varied a large 
number of banks, a considerable amount of industrial work, very large 
laboratories, very large administrative buildings, and hotels. B°'L 2  

Q. You have seen these plans, have you not, of the years 1954 and    . 
10 1956 respectively, in connection with the Plaza Hotel '! A. The 1954 xamma lon- 

plans being those prepared by Mr. Ham ?
Q. Yes; and the others by Mr. Xicholls ? A. Yes.
Q. Which, in your opinion, represents the more efficient and satis­ 

factory design? A. In my opinion there is no doubt about it that 
the 1956 plans are infinitely superior.

Q. Would you be good enough to elaborate why you say that"? 
A. Well, in general, from the customer's point of view the person who 
is getting the building the efficiency of the bedroom accommodation 
is very much higher because the bedrooms are standard, the amount 

20 of corridor that has to be looked after and traversed for each bedroom 
is less, and one would think that the letability of the bedrooms would 
be very much better because they are all open with reasonably good 
aspect and prospect in comparison with the other plan, of course. The 
details of the remainder of the schemes I think are in favour of Mr. 
Xicholls' plan as regards not only the quality of the accommodation 
being slightly better, but it has also a slight advantage in quantum 
for a given area.

Q. We know that from earlier evidence in this suit, in the 1956 
plans each bedroom has its own bathroom or shower room? A. I 

30 understand so.
Q. Whereas in the 1954 plans I think 23 of the bedrooms do not 

have a bathroom. Do you regard that as a feature ? A. I should say 
that as a member of the travelling public it would be desirable for every 
bedroom to have its bathroom. That is largely one of economies.

Q. Have a look at Exhibit H and Exhibit L'2. (handed to witness).

HIS HOXOR: Exhibit H is the 1954 one and Exhibit L2 is the 
1956 one.

Q. The first one you are being shown now is the 1954 plan ? A 
Yes; this is the 1954 plan.

40 Mr WALLACE: Q. In the 1954 plans there is a lightwell 22 ft 6 in. 
across between the two connecting buildings running east and west con­ 
necting the George Street component with the Carrington Street com­ 
ponent do you follow! A. Yes,
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Q. Do you make any comment on the presence of a lightwell of 
that width in a modern hotel design? Is it good or bad? A. Well, 

South Wales it is not by any means the best modern practice. T should think that 
Equitable modern practice would endeavour, as far as possible, to avoid internal 

courts of that nature.

Defendant's (^ j u ^jia^ pian> Of course, if guests wish to traverse from one
   ' side of the building to the other they would have to go round the

W B°L\? ie ligbtwell, and there are considerable corridors to be encountered, are
- — there not .' A. Yes.

Examination. . _
Q. Would you say that the rooms looking into the lightwell on iU 

each side of it would have good air and light, or do you know, or how 
would you contrast it with, say, the Carrington Street component of 
^Ir Xicholls' plan '! A. \Vell, they would not be nearly so good. They 
do of course comply with the requirements of the Act as regards area, 
but the intangibles of freedom and lack of noise from one room to 
the other, and privacy, are just not there.

Q. A\7ould you regard the George Street frontage a.s suitable 01 
the ( 'arrington Street frontage from a residential hotel point of view ? 
A. No. The Carrington Street frontage has less noise and, for what 
it is worth, some reasonable access when you look down this the park 20 
from the buildings on the other side. The main difficulty I would say, 
about this, is that T have always wondered how the actual traffic would 
be handled into this hotel from George Street in connection with the 
1954- scheme.

Q. You picture that as a serious difficulty, do you ? A. Well, it 
is obviously a very difficult place for cross traffic at the Wynyard ramp

Q. Do you know what 1 mean when I refer to the thin slab type 
of building? A. Well, it is a multi-storey building with no great 
thickness of structure ?

Q. Yes? A. Yes. 30

((}. That is to say, with bedrooms on each side of a corridor. 
(Objected to).

Q. Would you regard that as a good method   a well designed 
method   for a modern hotel building? A. Well, it has become more 
and more generally accepted, and there are some very good reasons 
for it too. With the increasing ease with which tall buildings can 
be built is some of the more modern forms of construction, together with 
the improvement in vertical transportation and the demand for air 
conditioning and other services, that type of building is becoming almost 
standardised. They would have done it 30 or 40 years ago if they had 40 
been able to build tall as relatively cheaply as they can today. You 
can see the germs of that sort of idea in these first class American
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hotels that were emerging in the middle lO-Oa except that the}' did not in
have the technical advantages to put them along the whole road the
way we can do now. South Wales

m its
Q. I suppose, compared with 20 years ago, it is much cheaper to 

build tall thin buildings ... A. It is not much cheaper. It is 
relatively cheaper. Defendant's

Evidence.
Q. Costs have all gone up? A. Yes.

No. 12.
Q. lu connection with the thin slab type of building, does it follow w. R. 

in your opinion that you do not use the whole site for the construction Examination. 
10 of such a building?

HIS HONOR: It all depends on the width of the site, I should imagine.

Mr WALLACE: Q. I am speaking of an ordinary city site ? A. I 
should think that to get a given accommodation you can use less of the 
site and thereby obtain the natural advantages of light and air, and 
to a certain extent sound insulation, whereas if you wanted to provide 
that on the thick low building you could not <lo it. There has been a 
certain elaboration of plan because of this thin high construction.

(^. You saw the building Bill going through Parliament, I suppose ? 
A. On the height of buildings?

20 Q. Yes? A. X": I am sorry, I did not.

< t>. Will you give me one or two reasons why it is comparatively 
simpler to build the thin slab type of building than to go over the 
whole site and try and get the same accommodation with lightwells, 
and so on ? A. Well, in hotels one of the biggest reasons, of course, 
is that you are concentrating your planning in tiers where you are 
having so many bathroom stacks. You are also able to keep your venti­ 
lation in stacks as well. And you will get much better value out of your 
lifts.

<,). If you go through the ID/if! plans you can sec- in those the 
30 gesture of the means whereby the public can \valk from George Street 

to Carrington Street. Do you remember that aspect, where there is 
a concourse, and the crossing over of Wynyard Lane?

HIS HONOR: All up and down stairs.

WITNESS: Yes passing through this shopping section.

Mr. WALLACE: Q. In both plans, of course, the public can pass from 
George into Carrington Street is that so? A. Yes.

Q. But iu the 1956 plans, however, do you find that Wynyard Lane
is widened on both sides widened by a semi-circle of shops on each
side, and it is covered over in the position where members of the public

40 passing through to Carrington Street from George Street would be



242

in the crossing over Wynyard Lane! A. Yes; I recollect that. The germ
Court'oTifew °f ^e idea i§ *° £e* some sor't of "crush hall" and shelter as they cross
South Wales the street.

Equitable Q. Would you regard that as an advantage in the 1956 plans to 
Jurisdiction. nave these wide areas and shops circled around them with pro- 
Defendant's tective covering over them! A. Yes. There is an extremely narrow 
Evidence, footpath there, and it would certainly tidy up any crossing of the lane

No. 12. at that point.
W. B. Laurie.

   Q. Ill the 1954 plans there is no covering over the lane? A. 
Examination. Wej^ t]aat covef.age an(j the giving of that "crush space" would be a 10 

better idea, and there would be the advantage of these shops.
Q. Going back to these bedrooms, do you find, in the actual design 

of the 1956 bedrooms, any advantage over the 1954 design f A. Well, 
there was a high degree of standardisation.

Q. I think it was said that the bedrooms are irregular in various 
ways in the 1954 plans some of them were irregular in size and shape ? 
A. 'Yes.

Q. Do you regard regularity of the bedrooms in the 1956 plans 
an architectural advantage? A. I do not know whether it would 
be an architectural advantage, but it would certainly be a managerial 20 
advantage. These bedrooms are very close to good class commercial 
hotel planning in Europe- rather than in America. It is quite the 
accepted type of plan for a bedroom.

Q. In regard to future possible development of the two plans, can 
you say whether or not, in your opinion, one set of plans lends itself 
j -otter to future development than the other in your opinion ? A. 
Well, I have no knowledge of the structural problems involved, but 
assuming that it were possible and I understand that it has been 
analysed to take up this bedroom accommodation which as at present 
proposed in the present scheme. 39

HIS HONOR: Q. That is the 1956 scheme? A. Yes, the 1956 
scheme it should be possible to increase the bedroom accommodation 
from the owner's point of view very, very much more cheaply and 
efficiently than the 1954 scheme could possibly do it.

Mr. WALLACE: Q. Would you say that a person who owned the 
building and wanted to develop it later, or if it were developed; by 
anybody, that the owner would have a better building when fully 
developed under the 1956 plans than under the 1954 plans? A. 
Well . . .

HIS HONOR: It all depends on what you mean by a better building. 40

Mr. WALLACE: Q. You have just told His Honor that the 1956 plan 
con be developed more efficiently and more cheaply . . . (objected 
to).
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HIS HONOR: More cheaply, and you would keep on getting more and in a* 
more better bedrooms at less cost than you would get bedrooms under Co^"tpgt"yew 
the other scheme. That is what I understood the witness to say. South Wales

in its
Mi: WALLACE: Q. Assuming that the two plans were developed to 
the maximum degree of development, can you express an opinion as to 
whether the result of one development would be better than the other? 
(Objected to; admitted). A. Am I allowed to refer to the diagrams -  
that Mr. Nicholls developed ? w K?Lanrie. 

Q. The isometric diagrams? A. Yes; showing the development Examination. 
]0 on the George Street and Oarrington Street frontages.

Q. That would be Exhibit - (handed to witness). Is that what yon 
had in mind? A. Yes.

Q. Assuming that development respectively along those lines took 
place which, in your opinion, would yield a better building from the 
owner's point of view ? A. Well, I understand, from analysing these, 
that the actual area which can be developed under the various Acts is 
slightly greater in the 1956 scheme.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. Is this from something you have been told? 
A. Xo. The two schemes in the diagrams were provided to me for some 

20 little time in my office some months ago, and I analysed them at the 
time to check a report that was made by Air. Xicholls, and I checked 
it at that time to see whether or not the facts and figures were correct.

Mr. WALLACE : Q. Is that the report in Exhibit 5 ? Just have a look 
at Exhibit 5 (handed to witness) ? A. Yes, that is the one. I checked 
the total areas at the bottom of that report and found them to lie sub­ 
stantially as indicated.

Q. I think that what I was endeavouring to elicit from you was 
that assuming you had a building assuming that somebody developed 
along those, two lines on this site, a building fronting ("arrington

30 Street, going to the maximum height, and on George Street going 
to the maximum height, and I want you to assume that the one on 
George Street is a building for commercial purposes, as compared 
with the development of the 1954 plans along those lines, are you 
prepared to express a view as to which would be the better building 
for an OAvner? A. Well, assuming that there is no extra expense 
in putting those structures over the top assuming that expense to 
be common I would say that the economics of the thing would 
undoubtedly favour the 1956 one, so that if there is any question 
as to whether one half is going to be a hotel and the other half

4Q is going to be commercial, then the separation of the two blocks 
seems to me to he eminently desirable, but according to the analysis 
here the actual areas available are very similar, but rather the 
1956 scheme.
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Ac. ( t). There is one other subject 1 want to ask you about at this 
stage. Would you please imagine that in respect of the development 

South Wales shown in Exhibit 2 of the 1954 plans, the following wero to be envisaged, 
namely, that these two separate wings were to become one solid build- 
ing and to be continued up to the maximum height, thus producing a 

Defendant's building the dimensions of which would lie I am speaking only of the 
Evidence, central portion 80 ft. in length, 150 ft. in height and twice that area 
NoTTs. plus the lightwell in width, which comes to 90 ft. a solid building com- 

W. B. Laurie. ing up to the maximum 150 ft. do you think that that would be good 
Examination, architectural planning? A. 1 am sorry: 1 did not quite follow that. 10

HIS HONOB: You put the position that you continued with the 1954 
plans.

MK WALLACE: Yes.

HIS HONOR: But in one sense tha't is not solid because it has a hole 
in the middle.

MR WALLACE: I am only putting something that was in fact put 
by Sir (larrield. 1 think that was the way Sir (larfield put it.

HIS HONOR: Very well.

Mr WALLACE: Q. I want you to envisage that the 1954 plans were 
implemented just as far as Mr. Ham had them, and then somebody in 20 
the future, for good or indifferent reasons, saw fit to do the following, 
to develop the outside buildings in Grcorgc Street and Carrington Street 
as in Exhibit '2, but in the centre, instead of developing as shown in 
Exhibit 2 with the lightwell 22 ft. 6 ins. in width as shown there, he 
came right up to the 150 ft. level with the central building and it had 
no lightwell at all; so that the solid centre piece came up to 150 ft. 
with the dimensions of 150 ft. in height, 80 ft. in length, and 90 ft. in 
width? I arrive at the 90 ft. by this 38 ft. and this 38 ft. twice 38 ft. is 
76 ft.

HIS HONOR:: It is four o'clock and I will be adjourning now. You 30 
will get a better answer if you explain precisely to the witness before 
he gets into the box exactly what yon want to ask him.

MR WALLACE: The witness came straight from the University. 

WITNESS: I am supposed to be arbitrating tomorrow, Your Honor.

HIS HONOR: Well, you are faced with the lessor of two evils, we do 
our best to help people, but the way this case is going makes it difficult 
to fit you in at any other time. I think that you had better communicate 
with your people and put the arbitration matter off until 11 o'clock.

WITNESS: Yes; T will do that.
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Air WALLACE: Q. Comparing the 1956 plans with the 1954 plans,
and having in mind tlie factors to which you have alluded, such as the
design of the bedrooms, light and air and so on, would there be, in yonr
opinion, any economic advantage in the future that one would have
over the other? A. Well, T think that at the present stage and in
the last 15 years hotelkeepcrs have been able to let practically every
room that they have had, but if you go back to the depression I am sure Evidence.
you would find that bedrooms that did not have good light and air and xo. 12.
good prospect, would be very much more difucult to let than those that W B. Lwtie.
had. Examination.
HIS HONOR: That was the obvious answer to me yesterday, that 
where the demand is greater than the supply you just have to take it, 
but where it is the other way round, there is more competition.
SIB OARF1ELH: Rut there is no depression here.
Air WALLACE: (*). Over a period of say, 40 years, would you regard 
that as a factor of any importance ? A. T would say "considerable". 
Sir Garfield says "no depression", but when it becomes evenly balanced 
I would say that the well designed bedroom would have an advantage 
over the bad one.

) Cltoss-KXAMIXKU Croee-
. examination.SIB (IABF1ELD: (J. A s with housing so with hotelkeepiug when you 

get well in arrears it takes a long time to get up to balance ? A. Yes.
(,). And this city is so far in arrears with hotel accommodation 

(liat it will take a long time to get anywhere near balance allowing 
for growth? A. One would have to theorise about that, but I would 
not agree that that is the present position so far as office accommodation 
is concerned.

(J. But we are talking about hotels ? A. Yes.
(,). So far as hotels are concerned, allowing for growth, it is so 

far behind that yon cannot give any foreseeable date when they will 
be in balance? A. Xo, but that does not say that it is difficult.

Q. And so far as hotel sites are concerned, in this City there 
are very few places in which yon could put hotels particularly in the 
centre ? A. T do not know.

(,). You spoke about (jeor%e Street being a difh'cult street to front 
a hotel to? A. Yes.

(J. Is not the most modern hotel in Melbourne in the middle of a 
block in Swanson Street? A. The Plaxa?

Q. No; the Graham? A. Xo; 1 do not know it.
(,). From the point of view of noise, (leorgc Street is almost a 

silent tomb compared with Swanson Street, is it not? (Objected to.)
Q. Well, that is an exaggeration. Swanson Street is much noisier 

than Ucorge Street, is it not? A. Swanson Street is a nice wide 
streel and thai makes it quieter.
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In the Q. Do you say that Swanson Street is quieter than George Street?
Supreme \ y j A   i  .*   Court of New A> 1 GS > -1 lnlllK ll ls -

Q- Have >TOU ever stayed there   in that street? A. No, but my 
Equitable impression is that George Street would be noisier than Swanson Street.

Jurisdiction. .
Q. And in Sydney so far with our hotels we have the Australia 
rsliers in Castlereagh Street? A. Yes.

NoTi2. ^- And the Metropole on a corner surrounded by trains, I suppose 
w. B. Laurie. you could say ? A. Yes.

Cross- (u). And I suppose the Wentworth is in one of the quietest spots
examination. iu Sydnoy ? A YeS . 10

Q. And Petty 's, if it were still a hotel'? A. Yes.
Q. And Petty 's went out of business, did it not, in the quietest 

spot in Sydney? It is now a red cross centre? A. Yes.

HIS HONOR : The witness may have agreed that that is the quietest 
spot in Sydney, but, passing by every day I would disagree with that.

SIK GARFIELD : Q. And the Wentworth until Qaiitas took it over was 
not exactly a developing business, was it, as far as you knowf A. It 
was a very good hotel, and I think that it paid handsome dividends.

Q. There has been no actual development of that area for many 
years, by way of accommodation, has there! A. Yes, there has. 20 
Qantas spent quite a lot when they took it over.

Q. What   in the last 15 years? A. I would say just lief ore the 
war, and of course the licensing authorities stopped any development 
then.

Q. Vou were talking about a comparison between the Carrington 
Street and George Street frontages of the subject land? A. Yes.

Q. Of course Carrington Street has the bus centre ? A. Yes.
Q. I suppose the noise comes up much easier when it is across the 

road, does it not ? A. No ; it is a question of reflection off the narrow 
road. 30

Q. And I suppose trams will decline but buses will increase   that is 
the tendency, is it not? A. Yes.

Q. And the tendency of buses is to go in for more powerful diesel 
engines ? A. Yes, apparently.

Q. So that noise and fumes   particularly fumes   are likely to 
increase on the Carrington Street frontage and the tram noise to decline 
on the George Street frontage? A. Assuming always that they do 
not run any buses in George Street   

Q. But it would be hardly likely that George Street will ever become 
a bus terminal the same as Carrington Street? A. I suppose more 40 
buses would pass.
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Q. But buses would make much more noise and fumes in starting in the 
up and moving away two or three in quick order, than they do in court 
running by a spot between stops ? A. Yes, but if they are in an Soutk Wales 
open space like Wynyard, there is not so much noise as in a confined Equitable
Spot. Jurisdiction.

Q. But allowing for all that, there are added effects of stopping Defendant's
and starting and turning around the Park, and that is likely to create __
more noise in the long run and fumes than the noise of the trains in g0'^ ie
George Street and the buses passing by ? A. I really would not think ' - 

10 so. I really would not. Cr?s8;.J examination.
Q. What do you mean ? Have you no opinion about it 1 A. It 

is purely hypothetical as to what is going to happen in the future, but 
I would always think that you could very very considerably increase the 
bus traffic in Carrington Street assuming that you have a reasonable 
replacement of trams by buses in George Street, and assuming some 
growth in the ordinary traffic in George Street, and at the end of that, 
because of the advantage of the open space in Carrington Street I would 
still say that the Carrington Street frontage would be likely to be the 
far more desirable frontage.

20 Q. You would prefer to be discharging your hotel customers out 
on to a bus terminal point because it is a bus terminal point ? A. On 
the other side of the road.

Q. Yes, but Carrington Street is not a very wide Street? A. It 
seems to me that one of the troubles in using the George Street frontage 
as a hotel entrance is that you are crossing the most intensive pedestrian 
traffic in Sydney. At present I think it is a no-parking area under 
any circumstances from at least Peapes back to the other side of the 
bus stop. I think that it is almost impossible to reckon that you can 
get a car in to discharge there. I cannot see that happening in Carring- 

30 ton Street, because as long as Wynyard Park is used as a loop the 
buses are on the other side of the road.

Q. But you have been in Carrington Street when more than two 
buses begin to leave at a time ''. A. Yes.

Q. Then they run parallel with each other in the one-way street? 
A. Yes, but  

Q. And then they come right over practically to the kerb on what 
would be the hotel site ? A. I have never seen that.

Q. But you have seen the buses pulling out, and several have depar­ 
ture times practically the same ? A. Yes; lots of them.

40 Q. Do I gather that you have confined your attention entirely to 
comparing the 1956 architectural plans with the 1954 architectural plans 
from the point of view of design layout and design? A. That is a 
fair statement, I think, yes.
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Cross- 
examination.

Q. And then, so far as any projected development is concerned, I 
take it that you have considered that principally from the point of view 
of resultant total area ? A. Yes.

Q. You have not come to this problem with a view to considering 
various possible developments of the total area at AVynyard ? A. 
No; I have been purely comparing the two schemes.

Q. There is one thing that I want to ask you about the 1.956 scheme. 
You observed that the ceiling of the first floor of bedrooms was 9 ft. 
6 ins. ? A.I do not remember.

Q. Have a look at Exhibit L"2 (handed to witness). The first floor 10 
of bedrooms has ceilings 9 ft. 6 ins? (indicating). A. Yes; 9 ft.
5 ins., to be exact.

Q. Yes. When you were comparing the total floor areas of these 
two buildings and you say that you looked at Mr XicholFs disser­ 
tation   f A. Yes.

Q. Did you count that iirst floor in as bedrooms in the full develop­ 
ment ? A.I do not recollect.

<,). Of course if you were to run this block in the 1956 plans up to 
300 bedrooms to the permissible 150 ft. limit those public rooms 
would be wholly inadequate, would they not? A. Some adjustment 20 
would have to be made.

Q. And upstairs there is a writing room of about 17 ft. by 19 ft.  
they are the only public rooms that are in this hotel now ? A. Ves.

Q. Bearing in mind that it is a terminal hotel with enormous pedes­ 
trian traffic adjacent to it   ? A. Yes.

Q. You would have to readjust those public rooms? A. Yes; I 
suppose the public rooms would need some readjustment.

Q. And the only place you could put them in this 1956 develop­ 
ment would be to take them up a floor? A. Yes; unless you would 
be prepared to sacrifice the bar, apparently. 3Q

Q. That is a very "touchy" point to my friend. A. The bar 
could be sacrificed, the shops could be cut down; presumably the logical 
place would be to go on the first floor,

Q. And would you agree with me that you could not put public- 
rooms in with a 9 ft. 6 in. ceiling? A. 1 do not think that there is 
anything in the Act to stop you.

Q. But could put public rooms in with a 9 ft. 6 in. ceiling? A. I 
do not know. I can think of no impediment.

( c>. But would you do it ? A. It depends on the size of the rooms.
(.,). A hotel with 300 bedrooms on the Carrington Street site ? 49 

A. If the ceiling were low you could subdivide them and you could 
have smaller rooms similar to the Hotel Australia. Those are above 
9 ft. 6 ins. of course.
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Q. Do you mean those little rooms where yon go into for a cocktail Jn the 
party? A. The ones at the front. CoJT

Q. But I am thinking of dining rooms and sitting rooms and writ- in its 
ing rooms ? A. I was assuming that the dining1 room was irrelevant EquitMe,, . ..-,... ° *"" Jurisdiction.
on this one (indicating).   

Defendant's
Q. I thought you had been informed of this  (Objected to). Evidence.

Q. This is a dining room for 100 people. It is branded '' Coffee No. 12. 
Lounge" to be American, but it is actually a dining room for 100 ' ' 
people. A. I understood, from the discussions on that, that the Crpss- 

10 dining room downstairs was for heavy meals and that this coffee examma lon- 
lounge would be for the purpose of serving light meals for the people 
in the bedrooms and breakfasts, and would also be the backbone of 
the room service. When I was told that I agreed that that was very 
like the general tendency in the modern terminal hotels in Sweden 
where there was a tendency to take the catering right away from the 
actual bedroom management, and that the general association of the 
bedroom accommodation was becoming more and more confined to 
the room service and the light snack meal.

Q. But in Sweden do you have to go through alleyways of the 
20 terminal station to get to the hotel? A. There is one in Sweden 

where you do just that the Hotel Malmo.

Q. Is it the modern tendency  ? A. I would say that that is 
one of the most modern commercial hotels that I have ever stayed at.

Q. But is it the modern tendency to divorce the catering from the 
actual bedroom management? A. No; that is fairly abnormal.

Q. Now supposing there were .'500 bedrooms put here ? A. Yes.

Q. Have you seen the Wynyard dining room downstairs ? A. 
Yes.

Q. Would you think that the dining room downstairs at Wynyard
3Q would be adequate for the heavy meals for 300 bedrooms on this site,

bearing in mind its other public demands? A. I have not worked
it out, but assuming that the other public demands were limited, my
impression would be that it was an adequate room.

Q. For 300 people? A. For 300 people. They do not all eat 
at once.

Q. But you cannot prevent them eating at once unless you under- 
provide, can you? A. I should say that there are very few hotels 
that provide dining accommodation on the expectation that all the 
inhabitants of the rooms are going to be in at any one time.

4^ Q. Have you any formula in your mind as to what percentage you 
should provide for? A. No.

Q. You must provide for the guests as well as others? A. Yes.
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in the Q. And at Wynyard there is the prevalent public to be thought of?
Supreme \ y Court of New At * es>

SoufnUsaks Q- Bearing all that in mind, do you think that the public dining-
Equitabie room at Wynyard would be adequate for the heavy meals of the public

Jurisdiction. flnd the 3QO bedroom hotel and the g.uests of the people who are in it?
Defendant's A. Well, I have not worked it out. I can do no more than say that I 

vijsnce. think that my impression is that it would be.
w. R?'il2urie. Q- Do you know how many it seats ? A. No.

Cross. Q. What seating accommodation do you think you would need to
examination, adequately cater for the travelling public at Wynyard and 300 bed- 10 

rooms, their occupants, and of course their guests? A. I have no 
idea, because the travelling public at Wynyard one just could not 
calculate that. I have no figure.

Q. Well, you have no idea? A. No.
Q. So far as that coffee lounge is concerned, even for light meals 

do you think that it would do a 300 bedroom hotel? A. No.
Q. There could be no question that you would have to find some 

other space? A. Yes.
Q. And you say that you think that you could (a) be allowed, 

and (b) that you would use a 9 ft. 6 m. ceiling for public space in a 20 
hotel such as this, including dining space? It is up to you. (Objected 
to.) A. I would say that if one were faced with the problem that the 
only space for development as public space was a room with a 9ft. 6 in. 
ceiling, one would just have to do the best one one could, and I can say  
I have not really thought about this particular problem before that I 
do not think that it would be at all impossible to get coffee lounges 
put up on the top of the building. The big formal dining-room with 
that ceiling height would be somewhat unusual, but you have a very 
interesting parallel in a ship's dining saloon where you actually see 
very large numbers of people accommodated with a head room of 30 
9ft. 9 in.

Q. But there is no comparison there with the case of a man develop­ 
ing a piece of land, is there? A. I suppose not, but a head room in 
a ship of 9ft. 9 in. is not unpleasant.

Q. Very much depends on how good the air conditioning is through 
it? A. Yes.

Q. Will you just look at that section (indicating) and see where 
beams come through that 9ft. 6 in. ceiling? A. Yes.

Q. So that that 9ft. 5 in. is to the underside of a slab through which 
beams protrude? A. Yes. 40

Q. The beams protrude as much as 18 in. on that scale, do they
not? A. It looks like it.

Q. Yes, about 18 in.'? A. Yes.
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Q. That would further reduce vour ceiling? A. Yes, at certain in the
. ' Supreme 

points. Court of New

Q. Would you advise an owner, who did not have to, to put himself 8oufn 
in a situation where he only had 9 ft. 6 in. headroom in which to put Equitable 
his public rooms? A. I would point it out to him, quite certainly, Junsdlchon- 
that his public rooms would be 9 ft. 6 in. in height and that there would Defendant's 
be these disabilities that you have been foreshadowing. On the other Evidence- 
hand, all plans are the result of the operation of various factors. NO. 12.

' ^ W. B. Laurie.
Q. Would you advise an owner who did not have to to put himself    

JQ in a situation where he only had 9 ft. 6 in. ceilings for his public rooms'? exâ ?nation. 
A. No; I think one would try to avoid it.

Q. You told us that one of the advantages of this plan is that the 
plumbing would be concentrated? A. Yes.

Q. That, of course, is not a feature that is only going to be obtained 
in this thin slab construction or even slab sided building construction, 
is it? You can achieve that in planning in other forms of structure? 
A. Yes ; one always tries to concentrate the plumbing, but I think that 
it is a fair thing to say that if you do have that number of bathrooms 
on any one floor and you have to multiply it by 20 by going right up 

2Q in the air, the total amount of drainage and other installations in that 
layout would be cheaper than if they were spread out over two or three 
blocks.

Q. There is no argument about that. My only point is that you 
can achieve this sort of plumbing, one above the other, in other forms 
of structure, in either thin slab or slab sided buildings .' A. Yes.

Q. You said that internal light courts were undesirable? A. 
Yes.

Q. But not infrequently, in order to obtain maximum commercial 
development   that is the economic development of a site   you do 
revert to them? A. Yes.

Q. It all depends on what balance of factors there are in the 
development of the site? A. Yes.

RE-EXAMINED Re-
Air WALLACE : Q. If, in connection with the 1956 plans, you desired exammatlon' 
an alternative when you came to extend these plans up to the maximum 
height limit so as to obtain 300 bedrooms   if you desired an alternative 
from the dining-room on the ground floor    !
HIS HONOR: The George Street basement? 
Mr. WALLACE : No.

Q. The alternative to the specification that Sir Gariield has been 
40 putting to you of a dining-room, as I understood him to put it, on the 

ground floor or the first floor of Carrington (Street? 
HIS HONOR: Yes; the coffee lounge situation. 
Mr WALLACE : Yes.
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in the Q. Do you follow? A. Yes.
New Q. Could an owner place a dining-room, when he was extending to 

South Wales ^ie 3QQ bedrooms, on some floor other than the ground floor so as to get 
Equitable sufficient headroom? A. There are some places where they are 

jurisdiction. actually on the top of the building. 
Defendant's Q. The dining-room? A, Yes.
   " Q. Is there any architectural reason, in your opinion, if they 

w 'R0'La!urie intended to extend to 300 bedrooms, why they should not go on to the 
'-  second, third, fourth or fifth floor for the dining-room? A. No archi- 

^e",. tectural reason. Economics always comes in to it, of course. 10examination. J ' AU
Q. You say that in some cases the dining-room is on the top floor? 

A. Yes.
Q. Would that be a big hotel? A. I would not like to say a 

moderate sized hotel of 200 or 300 bedrooms.
Q. At all events, do you know that there are dining-rooms on both 

the first and second floors of the Hotel Australia? A. Yes.
Q. And do you say, therefore, that there is no architectural reason 

known to you why, in extending the 1956 plans, the dining-room should 
not be placed higher up? A. No.

Q. And given such headroom as required? A. Yes. 20
Q. If you would turn now to the 1954 plans (handed to witness)  

you are acquainted with those, of course ? A. Yes.
Q. Just be good enough to remind yourself of a few of the sheets, 

will you? (Witness peruses documents). I want to ask you whether 
there is any provision for a dining-room in those plans should the owner 
wish, at some future date, to extend them to the maximum height? A. 
No; there is no provision in the upper part of the structure at all.

Q. Can you envisage any greater difficulty in providing a dining- 
room in any extension of the 1956 plans to the maximum height than 
in the 1954 plans ? A. No; there is no difference in the problem at 30 
all, as a matter of fact.

Q. Can you answer this question? It is apropos of some question 
that Sir Garfield asked you earlier this morning in regard to hotel 
buildings in the city and sites for hotels, do you remember? A. 
Yes.

Q. Have you observed any, and if so what, trend in regard to the 
construction of hotels in areas outside the city area but serving travel­ 
ling and city populaces in this city.
HIS HONOE: There is one on the station at Werris Creek that I can 
remember. 40 
WITNESS: Well, the general tendency is noticeable, although I am not 
an authority on this there is a tendency for more accommodation to 
be provided in the suburbs than heretofore, which is actually used by
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the travelling public. There are a number of them which are largely in the 
used by interstate people who stay in the suburbs, whereas years ago Cojf, 
they did not use them at all. South
HIS HONOR: You are released from attendance but if by chance you 
are wanted again you will receive a message.

Defendant's 
Evidence.

No. 12. 
W. R. Laurie.

Re- 
examination.

No. 13 No. 13.
J. R.

Evidence of J. R. Harrowell HarrowelL 

Mr WALLACE: Q. You are a chartered accountant? A. Yes. Examination.
Q. And you are a member of the firm of Broinowski Storey & Co. '? 

10 A. Yes.
Q. And have you been in the accountancy profession since 1934, and 

have you been a chartered accountant since 1937? A. Yes.
Q. You are a Fellow of the Australian Society of Accountants? 

A. Yes.
Q. And an associate of the Secretaries Chartered Institute? A. 

Yes.
Q. Since joining your firm in 1947 you have been attending 

personally to the audit of Avrom Investments Pty. Ltd., the defendant 
company"? A. The New South Wales branch of that company.

20 Q. It is a Melbourne company 1? A. Yes.
Q. And its New South Wales accounts are kept separately as 

though they were a separate entity in most respects, and then they 
are "married" into the Melbourne accounts! A. Yes.

Q. I think you have spent more time on this particular company 
than would be the case ordinarily with the usual audit"? A. Yes.

Q. For example, in connection with the drawing of cheques against 
the company, is it necessary that they should be countersigned by your­ 
self or one of your clients ? A. Yes.

Q. And when they are presented for signature, must they be 
30 accompanied by vouchers or invoices ? A. Yes; when the cheques 

are produced to our office for signature, they must be accompanied by 
vouchers.
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Q. And there is an exception in regard to that namely, the 
manager's small expense account? A. Yes.

in its Q. Balance sheets have been drawn up annually, of course, in 
Equitable respect of the Sydney component of this company's affairs! A. Yes.

Jurisdiction.
_ ,~r ., Q. And are you conversant with the accounts of this Sydney
Defendant s ^ J J J
Evidence, components A. Yes. 

No. 13. Q. And are they constantly under your supervision? A. They
J. B. av-p 

Harrowell. dle '

Examination. Q- ^he secretary of the company is a Melbourne man? A. Yes.

Q. And you signing cheques in that sort of way, and having the 10 
constant supervision to which you have referred, as well as the auditing 
which you carry on, those factors result in your being able to speak 
to His Honor about the figures of expenditure and income of this 
Sydney component ? A. Yes.

Q. Have you yourself drawn up a document, with some schedules 
attached thereto, which present, in tabular form, the evidence which, 
at my request, you prepared yourself to give'? A. Yes.

Q. Is that the document (handed to witness)? I have handed a 
copy to my learned friend? A. Yes, with the exception, in this case, 
of the furnishing schedule which was not prepared by me. Up to 20 
schedule "E" was what I prepared. I have a spare furnishing schedule 
here (produced).

(Document tendered; objected to on the ground of relevance and 
competency; pressed, argument ensued).

HIS HONOE: I will admit it at this stage, but with regard to the 
matter of competency, I will hear further evidence on qualifications 
and give my decision later. I think first of all that you had better get 
this witness' qualifications for making these estimates.

Mr WALLACE: Q. As a result of your experience as auditor of the 
Plaza Hotel businesses in the Wynyard area over the years, have you 30 
acquired a knowledge to some extent of the hotel business and the type 
of income and expenditure items that they have. (Objected to as to 
form; pressed; argument ensued).

Q. May I preface that question by asking you another one? Before 
joining your present firm, had you had any experience in other hotel 
auditing? A. Yes.

Q. Which hotels ? A. I carried out the audit of the Hotel Can­ 
berra, the Hotel Kingston and the Hotel Civic, all at Canberra.

Q. And in connection with the Plaza, do your duties entail, first 
of all, a knowledge and the supervision of the various headings of 49 
expenditure! A. Yes.
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Q. First of all, what types of business are carried on in what are 
from now on referred to as the subject lands that is fronting George 
Street and going back to Wynyard Lane ? A. The Hotel Plaza and South Wales 
the Wynyard shop section of the business. Equitable

Q. We know that there is a dining-room there? A. Yes. Jurisdiction.
Q. And of course the sale of tobacco would be a small section of Evidence,

the source of income ? A. Yes. xT~n
Q. Do the accounts sectionalise the income and expenditure from J- R- .

j_i-ij.j_n\mii Harrowell.
those departments; A. 1 hey do. __

10 Q. So that under your direct supervision the items of income and xamma lon- 
expenditure in respect of each section of the business carried on on 
that subject land are set forth ? A. Yes.

Q. And the expenditure items, I presume, would include the usual 
items appearing in the trading account of this type of business ? A. 
Yes.

Q. Such as wages and materials and all the dozen and one other 
things ?

HIS HONOB: Breakages. 
WITNESS: Yes.

20 Mr WALLACE: Q. With regard to the balance sheets, do you have 
the balance sheets here? A. Yes, I do. I have all the New South 
Wales balance sheets here. (Documents produced).

Q. And do you have here with you in Court the balance sheets for 
the years 1946 to 1956, both inclusive 1? A. Yes.

Q. Your financial period ends with the 30th June, of course ? A. 
Yes.

HIS HONOR: Do they include profit and loss accounts ?
Mr WALLACE: Q. And they include trading and profit and loss 
accounts for each year ? A. Yes.

30 Q. And do these accounts show in the balance sheets and the trad­ 
ing and profit and loss accounts to which you have referred, also show 
by departments, the profit and loss accounts for each year ? A. Yes.

Q. And do they also show, by departments, the trading accounts 
for each year! A. Yes.

Q. Then there is a consolidated profit and loss account for each 
year? A. Yes.

Q. These annual accounts, with the exception of the first year 
that is to say the year ending 30th June, 1946 have all been prepared
by you in your firm 1? A. Except for the year ended 30th June, 1947.

40 I joined my firm in July, 1947, and portion of that year would be carried
out by another member of the firm.
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in the

Soufn its' *
Equitable

Jurisdiction,
Defendant's
Evidence.

J°'R? 
Harroweii.

Q. And do they accurately represent the financial position? A. 
^° ^e best of our knowledge as auditors.

Q- Then, for the sake of convenience, has there been a summary of 
those years extracted showing annually the net profits and losses of 
^g various departments of the business at that site and the aggregate 
net profit in each case? A. Yes ; that has been prepared.

Q. And do you say that those accounts accurately show the net 
profits and losses of the business for that period ? A. I have not 
checked that with Mr. Connolly who prepared it. I have tested it, but 

, not checked it. 10
Q. That is only a question of summarising from these balance 

sheets? A. Yes.
(Profit and loss accounts and summary tendered; objected to; 

pressed).

SIR GhABFIELD : If my friend will defer the tender and give me the 
lot of the documents and the summary, I could check the summary, and 
subject to the general objection the summary could go in.

HIS HONOR : That would get over the difficulty as to the balance sheets 
and the summary   they would be in subject to their relevance. This 
document then goes further. 20

Mr WALLACE : I withdraw the tender for the moment of the summary 
and the balance sheets, although it would be convenient for the purpose 
of this evidence, to have the summary before Your Honor at this stage.

SIE GARFIELD : I have no objection to His Honor seeing the sum­ 
mary, but I do not wish to be tendered at this stage.

Mr WALLACE : Q. You have a copy of it with you I A. Yes.
Q. The figures on the left that you are looking at are my own 

figures being the result of adding together the two right hand columns. 
In connection with your estimate, about which I am going to ask you 
in a moment you have taken as a basis the 1956 figures, have you not? 30 
A. Yes.

Mr WALLACE : I will read the figures out. 1956, the first column, 
"liquor", in red, is £39,529. The next column, "Restaurant", still in 
red, £10,780. "Accommodation", still in red, £3,263. "Tobacco", in 
black, £4,829. "Sundries", in black, £2,035. The total in black is 
£32,350. The next one "Administrative expenses," is £14,270 and the 
next one is £18,080, and the final one on the right in red is £3,334. Over 
on the left I have put down the result of "marrying" the second last 
and the last columns together.

SIR GARFIELD : I make them £14,746.

Mr WALLACE : Yes ; we are ad idem on that.
4Q
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Q. It is to be observed, that the profits have receded very largely in th 
indeed in recent years? A. Yes. ' r±

Q. Can you give us the reason or the reasons for that had it any- Soufn 
thing to do with wages or materials or that sort of thing? A. Well, Equitable 
I can give you the main reason. Take the restaurant first. Sales Jwnsdiciwn- 
had fallen off considerably since that particular section was opened, Defendant's 
from 1946 to 56, and the wages had gone up approximately 100 per Y1 ence ' 
cent for relatively the same number of people employed. NO. 13.

J. R.
Q. Do you mean that the number of meals had fallen off! A. Harroweii.

1U X 68. Examination.

Q. You have the figures ? A. Yes, but 1 have not got them here. 
I am only referring to the revenue for the restaurant. The hotel has 
got figures for meals served, and they indicate a falling off, but I 
haven't got the figures here.

Q. And accommodation that has shown a loss throughout? 
A. Yes.

Q. And what is this item of "sundries" which has gone up? 
A. I would like to have a look at the accounts before I say anything 
about that. I would like to have a look at the 1956 accounts.

20 HIS HONOR: He might have a look at the 1952 ones as well.

ME WALLACE: Q. There are the figures for those 2 years. 
(Handed to witness). A. In regard to 1952 there was an amount in 
the general profit and loss account for revaluation of liquor stocks 
£8,374. That is arrived at as follows. During that particular year 
there was an increase in liquor prices that came out, and the prices 
were increased throughout the liquor trade. To enable the fig-ures 
in the trading account to be kept in line with the known return, those 
stocks which the hotel had in the beginning at the lower prices, details 
of those were kept and the extra profit resulting from those was put 

30 into that account. That could have been left in the trading account, 
and instead of getting the normal 40 per cent odd for that trade it 
would have gone up corresponding with that figure. When the prices 
went up the hotel adopted the practice of immediately increasing its 
liquor prices as soon as the prices were increased. If the liquor prices 
go down they cannot sell at the original cost prices; they have to sell 
it at the reduced prices.

HIS HONOR: The other one is the 1956 one.

MR WALLACE: Q. The same reason there, I suppose? A. Yes, 
the amount there was £1,961. The balance of that sundry income 

*(\ is a small revenue of £100 approximately from weighing machine 
service.

Q. Looking at 1956 what were the total wages paid by the enter­ 
prise in that year? A. The wages had been split up in these

•38632—9
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In the accounts. Cleaning wages were nine and a half thousand pounds, 
mNew general maintenance £4,000, general salaries and wages £72,000 and 

South Wales bonus £866.
in its

Equitable Q. You have just told us the wages paid in 1956. Could you tell 
unsjcwn. ^ ̂ e wages paid in 1952 just for the sake of illustration! A. 

Defendant's Wages, cleaning, £7,700; general maintenance wages, £4,000; general 
vi_ence. wages and salaries, £55,400, and bonus £737.

J.R.' Q. So that the general wages went, in those years, from £55,000
Harrowell. fo £72,000? A. YeS. 

Examination. Q jf yQU gQ t() ^ ^^ y(m find th&t 1Q yearg Qr SQ Rg() there JQ

was a small profit, whereas, reaching its peak in 1952, there have been 
substantial losses, is that so, last year's loss being £3,334'? A. Yes.

Q. Could you tell me, please, what factors converted the small profit 
into substantial losses'? A. The rent paid under the lease, I think 
it is clause 6 of the lease is rent in a sliding scale. For the first 3 
years it starts off at a certain figure and then it increases after that, 
and in 1948, 1949, it went from £15,000 per year to something like 
£19,000. The increase was £4,000 in one year. The hotel accounts 
have applied a large portion of the rent against the shops.

Q. What about rates'? A. Bates are also applied there, in 20 
proportion, between the hotel and the shops.

Q. Could you just show from there roughly in what way the rates 
have increased 1? A. The rates have increased as rates have increased 
generally. I cannot tell you the amounts except by referring to the 
accounts.

Q. I will give you an earlier one I will give you 1948 (Handed 
to witness). Compare 1948 with 1956, if you would! A. The rent 
as charged in the revenue account for 1948 was £10,200. In 1956 it 
was £12,900.

SIE GAEFIELD: Q. That is the debit ? A. Yes; the debit against 30 
rent.

Q. That is an arbitrary figure? A. Yes.

Mr WALLACE: Q. What about the rates? A. The rates in 1948 
were £5,000 and in 1956, £11,000.

SIE GrAEFIELD: Q. Is that the whole rate you cannot charge against 
the shops? A. No; that is only against the shops. I can give the 
total rate charged for the hotel the total rate for that year on the same 
basis. It is an arbitrary apportionment.

Mr WALLACE: Q. Could you give me the total rates payable in 1948 
and 1956 could you do that now? A. Yes. The 1948 rates for the 40 
shops were £4,937 and for the hotel section the rates were £2,469. That



259

would total £7,400. They arc the total rales irrespective of how they In the 
arc apportioned. For 1%6 the rates were £11,000 against the shops c 
and £5,500 against the hotel £16,500 for 1956; £7,400 for 48. Sout

in its
Q. In connection with this document Avlrich I adverted to earlier, Equitable 

containing statements and schedules of estimates, the scheme of the Jvnsdlchon- 
first page has been, has it not, to compare, under the respective head- Defendant's 
ings, "1954 plans" and "1956 plans", estimated income and expendi- Evidence- 
ture as at 30th June, 1960. Would you tell His Honor why you selected NO. is 
that point of time? A. "Well, I considered that was the first year, Harroweii. 

10 if the building took place, they would be in one complete year of   
operation and all the facilities would be used. If the building was Examinati<m - 
completed in 1958, it would then form part of the year 1959, and that 
would only be about 10 months or so: so that I took it in arbitrary 
fashion as 1960.

Q. The first unbroken year that you could envisage with certainty? 
A. Yes.

Q. And then you have, with the aid of schedules, set forth the 
estimated income, firstly on the gross profits based on the 1956 
figures  ? (Objected to).

20 Q- "Would you stop there and tell His Honor why you took the 
1956 figures for gross profit comparisons which, of course, would be 
a common factor for both years, 1954 and 1956 ! A. Yes; I selected 
the 1956 figures because they were the latest figures available and I 
was endeavouring to get some idea of what would happen in 1960. They 
are not only based on the 1956 figures, they are the 1956 figures because 
I did not have any way of estimating what would be the position 
in 1960; so I selected the 1956 figures.

Q. The figure you selected for 1956 is common to both sets of 
figures that you have been given! A. Yes.

30 Q. And it is a jumping off point in order to reckon with regard 
to the remaining subject matter:' A. Yes.

Q. And you have given the gross profits which are factual figures 
from this year's profit and loss account for liquor, restaurant and 
tobacco? A. Yes, for 1956.

Q. And for Wynyard shops? A. Yes.
Q. And then there is an adjustment for revaluation of liquor stocks 

and an amount for discounts ? A. Yes.
Q. They would be trade discounts in the trade? A. Yes; and 

revaluation of liquor stocks is a sales figure.
40 Q. And the next item of estimated income is, in fact, the real 

variable that we are concerned with?

HIS HONOR: No. And the shops the next two. 

Air WALLACE: Yes.
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in the Q. They are the variables both as regards income and expenditure, 
they not? A - Yes -

M- So that if I go to those schedules, the first one being schedule 
Equitable A, in that you have set forth certain estimated accommodation revenue ?

Jurisdictwn. . -r^
_ A. les.

Evidence. Q. Could you tell His Honor how you went about the task of
N   ~ setting down the figures for the rooms and the different types of rooms
J.B. which are shown there ? A. Firstly, with regard to the classification

Harroweii. of yie roomgj j relied on the advice of the architect ; that is when he
Examination, described first class, second class and third class accommodation. 10

SIR GARF1ELD: Q. You mean .Mr. Nicholls? A. Yes.

Mr WALLACE : Q. You got that from Mr. Nicholls, and what did you 
do then? A. Well, some rooms have bathrooms and some have wash 
basins only.

Q. Some are double and some are single ? A. Yes. In regard 
to the rates chosen, I had before rne a pamphlet prepared by the 
N.R.M.A. and I was advised also by the hotel staff management on 
what rate to choose, but whatever rate I chose I applied it to both 
plans where it was comparable accommodation.

Q. Did you make other enquiries ? A. I made enquiries only 20 
through the hotel management.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. You mean the Plaza Management? A. Yes, 
but whatever value I chose I applied to both.

Mr WALLACE : Q. What is the N.R.M.A. pamphlet you referred to ? 
A. That is a pamphlet which shows hotels in Sydney and sets out single 
rooms bed and breakfast tariff.

Q. Under different gradings of hotels ? A. Yes, with various 
facilities provided in the bedroom   bathroom or wash basin.

Q. What estimate did you give for a single room with a bathroom 
for bed and breakfast A. The Hotel Wentworth is £3 per day with 30 
meals a la carte, single room.

Q. Does that include breakfast a la carte ? A. With meals a la 
carte. Ushers 55/- a day, meals a la carte. St. James, 36'- a day; 
Carlton, 43/- a day, meals a la carte ; Hotel Australia, from 45 - a day, 
meals a la. carte.

Q. The highest you read out I think was 60/- A. Yes, 60/   that 
is for a single room.

Q. When you say with meals a la carte, what is the position ? A. 
That would be bed and breakfast.

Q. What figure did you give in the estimate ? A. I gave in the 40 
estimate 55/- for a single room with a bathroom   in both.



261

Q. When it came to double rooms with bathrooms, what informa- in the 
tion did you have from the N.B.M.A. source? A. I had no informa- court 
tion from that source at all. They did not provide me with a double South. Wai** 
room tariff. Equitable

Q. You yourself did give an estimate for the purpose of schedule uns tchon'
"A"? A. Yes. Defendant's

Evidence.
Q. Where did you get that information from to arrive at that  - 

estimate? A. There again I made enquiries for that from the Plaza J.'-R.'
Hotel executives. HarroweU.

10 Q. Did you have any knowledge yourself, from your own experience Examination, 
in hotels, to fortify you ? A. Yes, I did, and I applied that knowledge 
to the values, but I do not claim to have special knowledge of accom­ 
modation.

Q. Then you have drawn a distinction between rooms that have 
wash basins and rooms that have bathrooms? A. Yes. (Objected 
to; pressed).

Q. You have given an estimate in this sort of way in respect of 
categories falling under the first, second and third classes of bedrooms, 
have you not? A. Yes.

20 Q- I think you have already indicated that it was inspired, in the 
first instance, from what Mr. Nicholls had advised you? A. Yes.

Q. Is that so? A. Yes.

Q. And, armed with that advice, in what way did you apply it for 
grading the estimates that you then set forth in the schedule? A. 
Well, it was largely estimation. The enquiries made, for instance, at 
the Hotel Australia, showed that their tariff there was from 45/-. I 
did not personally make the enquiries, but sufficient was given to indi­ 
cate to me that there was sufficient in the various classes, and the hotel 
management again assisted me in grading down the rooms. I did make 

30 an estimate, though, as if I had not graded down the rooms, but that is 
not here. I was assisted by the hotel staff.

Q. Which of the hotel staff assisted you? A. Miss Eandall. 
Q. The lowest estimate that you arrived at would be in respect of 

a single room falling under the third class  ? A. Yes, 
Q. Without a bathroom 1? A. Yes.
Q. Did you have any assistance from the N.B.M.A. information 

when coming to that estimate, or was that based on what Miss Bandall 
told you? A. That was based on discussions with Miss Randall and 
Mr Counolly of the company. 

40 Q. Mr Connolly is the secretary of the company ? A. Yes.

SIB GABFIELD: I object to the whole of the estimate, based on 
what he has told us. (Pressed).
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in the Mr WALLACE : Q. The next schedule deals with amortisation of esti- 
HPof"New mated capital expenditure. The first item on that schedule   does that 

South. Wales represent an actual existing account in the books of the company as at
30th June, 1956? A- Yes-
Q ^n(j woui(j that be, if I may loosely put it, representing the 

Defendant's aggregate of the amortised property, amortised items. (Objected to
Evidence. fQTm ).

J°'B. SIR GARFIELD: I ask my friend to give more details of that so
HarroweU. fa^ j might make some admissions. 

Examination. HIg HONOR: You might ask the witness how he arrived at the figure! 10

Mr WALLACE: Q. How did you arrive at the £191,000 odd? A. 
Well, under the system of bookkeeping, the New South Wales company 
is a branch, and following on the usual practice some of the capital 
expenditure, in this case the leasehold, is contained in the books. We 
say that no part of the cost of the leasehold appears in the balance 
sheet ; that is the balance sheet of the New South Wales company   

Q. Of the New South Wales Company? A. Of the New South 
Wales branch. So I received a certificate from the auditor of Avrom 
Investments, to the effect that £191,030 is in the financial books of 
Avrom Investments Pty. Ltd. 20

Q. And you have that certificate? A. I have that certificate 
here.

Q. Who are the auditors? A. Hughes, Fincham and Eodda, 
chartered accountants of Melbourne.

Q. And you received their certificate to the effect that that figure 
shown in schedule "B" in the first line was the Wynyard leasehold 
property improvement accounts as at the 30th June, 1956, in the books 
of account of the company at its Melbourne headquarters? A. Yes.

Q. Then, other items on schedule "B" consist of certain building 
contracts, the first being one we have heard of in earlier evidence   30 
the No. 2 contract let out to Mr. Whittle, is that so! A. Yes.

Q. And the figure shown is apparently the amount of progress 
payment made since the 30th June, 1956? A. Yes ; that is the amount 
actually paid   £7,585.

Q. Paid to your knowledge? A. Yes.
Q. Then you have set forth, what you have been told no doubt, 

the lowest tender under the 1954 plans and the 1956 plans, respectively 
 is that so? A. Yes.

HIS HONOR : Are those tenders both in evidence ?

Mr WALLACE : All I can say is that the figures have been given in 40 
evidence, although I must confess that my recollection is that it was 
£420,000 that has been spoken of and not £433,000.
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HIS HONOR -. The figure is £433,800 clause 5 of exhibit Q. i» the
Supreme

Mr WALLA( 1E: Q. In regard to 1!)54, the figure that you have put ^ 
there was given to you as the lowest tender ? A. It was given to me in its 
as the lowest tender and it is a figure that has been mentioned in the jurisdiction. 
Licensing Court.  

Defendant's

HIS HONOE: Has your side, Sir Garfield, seen that at any time? Evidence'
No. 13.

SIR GARFIELD: I do not remember that we have, but it has been J-R- 
mentioned in correspondence. HarroweU'

Examination
HIS HONOR: What about the architect's fees?

10 Mr WALLACE: Q. Where did you get the architect's figures from 
shown in exhibit B? A. That is just a percentage of the contract 
price.

Q. What percentage? A. It was 7 per cent in regard to the 
1956 plans and something else 6f per cent, I think, in regard to the 
1954 plans, the reason being that in the 1956 plans the architect has 
undertaken to pay all experts' fees, that is, civil and constructional 
engineers. In the 1954 plans they were architect's fees only and the 
engineer's fees, £3,400, have been paid and the ventilation engineer's 
fees have been paid.

20 Q- When you say "have been paid", do you mean to your own 
knowledge? A. Yes.

Q. By the signing of cheques and thai sort of thing ? A. Not 
in connection with portion of the architect's fees, and I am not sure 
in connection with the engineer's fees. Some of the building costs have 
been signed down in Melbourne. The managers can sign their com­ 
pany's cheques, and in relation to the building only not in connection 
with the general running of the hotel some of the cheques have been 
signed in Melbourne because they are payable to Melbourne people.

Q. I think you said that the cheques for £3,400 had been signed 
30 io your knowledge? A. I saw it going through the books, but I did 

not necessarily sign the cheques.

HIS HONOR: Q. They would be shown in those accounts? A. A 
portion might be, but some would be after 1956.

Mr WALLACE: Q. There is a small item of extra breakfast costs 
resulting from additional accommodation. You have used 3/- in regard 
to the 1954 and 1956 plans, and what you have done is to take more 
breakfasts for the 1956 plans, because you have more bedrooms ? A. 
Yes, I have done that.

HIS HONOR: Q. The £3,641 and £4,561 are discounted figures, the 
40 discount representing 30 per cent ? A. Yes.
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in the Mr WALLACE : Q. Do you apply the 30 per cent vacancy factor to 
both the 1954 and 1956 plans  that is in schedule "A"? 'A. Yes.

wales Q_ Where did you get the 30 per cent from? A. I enquired of 
Equitable hotolbrokers. They are specialists in putting values on hotels, and the 
uns KW ' figure that was given to me was that they take 8 months at the present 

Defendant's time as a general vacancy factor   that is 66 and two thirds.
Evidence.
  - Q. In the buying and selling of hotels? A. Yes; I brought this 
J°'R. up to 70 per cent instead of 66 and two thirds, but I applied it to both

Harrowell.

xanuna ion. -Q-^ HONOR : Q. Has your experience shown that it is always a 10 
vacancy factor? A. Not with some hotels.

Q. What about the Plaza ? A. In the case of the Plaza there are 
only 9 lettable rooms, and I did not consider" that a basis for these 
figures.

HIS HONOR: Of course you could not.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Now we come to schedule D   estimates regard­ 
ing wages. There you have set down in the lefthand column for trades 
or occupations, certain numbers of employees f A. Yes.

Q. Would you tell His Honor first of all how you would arrive    ?

SIR GARFIELD : You need not trouble about this, because he has 20 
added one maid, that is all. The rest is all the same.

Mr WALLACE : The only difference is between £21,800 and £22,400. 

SIR GARFIELD : One maid.

HIS HONOR: It is one maid   he has said that it would take one maid 
to do the extra rooms, whatever they are.

Mr WALLACE : The extra 12 rooms.
Q. You can tell His Honor, if required, how you came to the wages 

estimate and picked on the numbers set forth! A. Yes.
Q. You could give your reasons if asked, could you? A. Well, I 

can give my reasons for the start there. 30
Q. Would you turn to schedule " E ". Now we come to estimated 

capital invested.

HIS HONOR: Q. This is simply the same sort of figure as before, 
except that the overdraft is subtracted? A. Yes.

Q. All the figures are the same except this one ? A. Yes.

HIS HONOR : In order to find out what amount of money the company 
would be putting in, apart from the overdraft   the company's own 
money   the only two figures additional are the £78,181 and the fur­ 
nishings?
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Mr WALLACE: Yes. /» the
Supreme

HIS HONOR: So that you might ask the witness what is this £79,374. t'ourt of New 
Is that a credit balance or a debit balance? ""into" 8"

Mr WALLACE: Q. What is that £79,374 for? A. That represents 
the assets of the company? I am sorry, the assets of the New South 
Wales branch as at 30th June, 1956, less liabilities at that date. In Evidence, 
other words, it throws out the balance then which coincides with the j^~f3 
Head Office accounts and which represents the capital invested at that J. B. 
time, and as the agency part of the business is conducted in a separate Ha-rroweli - 

10 part of Sydney I have taken off the assets relating to the agency. Examination. 

Q. That is just an adjustment sheet in that regard ' A. Yes.

Q. When you come back to the first sheet you find a compari­ 
son  1

HIS HONOR? These are the capital expenditures.

SIR GARFIELD: They are no,t shown on the front sheet at all.

HIS HONOR: The front sheet is only income.

Mr WALLACE: Income and expenditure. The way that capital comes 
into this particular document is in connection with the amortisation 
and depreciation and  

20 HIS HONOR: The witness has no bearing on the first sheet.

SIR GARFIELD: No bearing except in connection with the overdraft.

WITNESS: "Return on capital" was the item.

Mr WALLACE: Q. At all events you finally arrived, on the front
page  ?

HIS HONOR: You still have one to go and that is how he arrived at 
this furnishing figure.

Mr WALLACE: Q. Yes, what about the furnishing? A. Those 
figures are prepared by the hotel, and they prepared the schedule on 
the present day prices.

30 Q- I think that there was a special schedule prepared for furnish­ 
ings? A. Yes.

Q. You have that, have you? A. I have a copy I have two. 
(Documents produced).

Q. There is a furnishing schedule in existence not prepared by 
you, is that so? A. Yes.

Q. And the results of that furnishing schedule are taken in on 
that page that last schedule "E" ? A. Yes.

Q. And this schedule of furnishings was given to you by whom?  
Miss Randall? A. Yes, by Miss Randall.

•38632—9A



266

In the
Supreme

Court of New
South Wales

in its
Equitable

Jurisdiction.

Defendant's 
Evidence.

No. 13.
J. R.

Harrowell.

Examination.

Mr WALLACE: If anything turns on that I will undertake to call 
Miss Eandall, but I do not know whether that will be considered 
necessary.

Q. Go back to the front page once more.

HIS HONOR: Before you do that, you have not said yet where the 
£750 was taken from for the shops? The witness has taken the shops 
at £750 each.

Mr WALLACE: Q. Yes; the shop revenue where have you shown the 
shop revenue? A. On the front page.

HIS HONOR: He has not said where he got the £750. 10

Mr WALLACE: Q. You have nine shops in the 1954 plans and 15 in 
the 1956 plans, and you have assigned the same rental for each shop 
and for each plan? A. Yes.

Q. How did you get £750? A. That has been based on the 
experience that I and the management have had in regard to the shops 
at present on the site, and £750 is a reasonable figure to expect.

Q. And you say that from your experience with the existing shops? 
A. Yes.

Q. In the result you have shown the estimated difference between 
income and expenditure under the 1954 and 1956 plans for the year 20 
ending 30th June, 1960? A. Subject  

Q. Subject to the two notes "general administrative expenses 
relating to new building, such as electricity, telephone, office expenses, 
postages, etc." not stated. Then, "Income relating to bars, plan in 
new building (1954 and 1956 plans) and sundry other evidence of 
income, for example, coffee lounge in 1956 plans" not set forth? 
A. Yes.

HIS HONOR: He has taken the same figures in regard to the bar and 
saloon. I think that those figures speak for themselves.

Mr WALLACE: Q. In the light of the way I have taken the witness 30 
through the document, I would respectfully submit that the witness 
is competent to compile that document and that it is admissible in 
evidence. (Objected to; argument ensued).

Q. Did you compile the figures that have been typed out on the 
document which I show you! A. With Mr Connolly the secretary 
of the company.

Q. When you say "with the secretary of the company", does 
that mean with figures coming partly from Melbourne and partly from 
Sydney? A. Yes.

Q. And of course Mr Connolly is the secretary and he works at 40 
the company's headquarters in Melbourne? A. Yes.
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Q. So far as the Sydney figures are concerned, which are In the 
incorporated into these details of expenditure can you vouch for them caurtP 
from your own knowledge? A. They are included in those figures, South Wales 
and a great deal of them were taken from cheques which I signed and Equitable 
sighted the vouchers. Jurisdiction.

Q. And do these details include plant expenditure on plant? Defendant's
A. Yes. Evidence.

Q. And is the amount of that shown in a footnote ? A. Yes. ^'J3 'J. K. 
Harrowell.

Examination.

No. 14 

10 Further Evidence of H. A. Llewellyn H. A.
Llewellyn.

Mr WALLACE : Will you allow me to examine this witness on his office    
copy of them, which he has in his possession? Examination.

SIR GARFIELD: I cannot say whether they are a copy or whether 
they are not.

Mr WALLACE : Q. What are these documents that you just handed to 
me? A. As far as I know the original calculations for the Plaza 
Hotel as constructed.

Q. They are in Mr. Stanley's writing, are they ? A. No, I do not 
think so. His original calculations were so many that these are 

20 abstracts which were made to submit to the Railways Department so 
that they could be interpreted.

Q. The most you can say, I presume, at the moment is you believe 
them to be a copy of what was sent to the Commissioner? A. That 
is right.

Q. Back in the 1930 's? A. That is right.

Q. Could you by examining them show me the computations up to 
and including the third floor of the Kerr-Grardiner plan? A. Yes. 
Each of the calculations between the horizontal lines indicates the load 
of a particular floor level, indicated in the left hand column. The right 

30 hand vertical column shows the total load on the column at that floor, 
and the right hand horizontal space shows the size of the column, the 
mix of the concrete and the amount and spacing of the reinforcing steel.

Q. How far do the plans go; to what floor do the computations go ? 
A. Up to and including the third floor. The third floor is the top line 
on the sheet.

Q. Does it show on the third floor workings the legend "Future 
load", coming down on to the third floor? A. Yes, an arrow indi­ 
cating that a further load not shown  

Q. "Further load", is it? A. A future load, not calculated on 
40 the sheets, was allowed for in the design of the concrete.
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in the Q. Those calculations show in detail the loadings and sizes and 
mNew details of reinforcing and mix in respect of all columns'? A. This 

South Wales particular sheet does not cover all columns, but there are similar 
Equitable columns for all columns.

Jurisdiction. Q Do you mean they are in tllat ^die? A. No, this is one 
Defendant's quarter. There are four such bundles.
Evidence.
   SIR GAEFIELD : I object to that, because I am going to ask for the 

li.' I* documents to be handed over, if he has them.

WALLACE : Q. At all events, you have produced in Court here two 
Examination. Secti0ns of such computations? A. They are the sections for some 10 

of the columns, and they are the calculations for the slabs   all the 
slabs   at the third floor.

Q. At the third floor level? A. Yes.
Q. So there are two separate sets of computations that you have 

before you at the moment 1 A. Yes.
Q. So far as you know, are there any computations above the third 

floor? A. No. There must be calculations assessing the loads to 
go on the columns, but we have never been able to find any detailed 
calculations giving the size of the columns, the mix or the amount of 
reinforcing steel. 20

Q. Such as do exist in respect of the third and the lower floors? 
A. That is right.

Q. Do the Kerr plans disclose a roof over the third floor (m.f.i.'s 
3, 4, 5 and 20 shown) ?   

Mr WALLACE : Whilst the witness is looking at those, I call for plans 
or copy plans in the possession of the Commissioner which he sent out 
to us with his letter of the 5th October, 1954. That letter is part of 
Exh. E. and refers to "plans herewith", in respect of the 1954 plans, 
giving a requisition so to speak of what was required. They were 
referred to as "plans herewith", but whether Mr. Stanley lost them 30 
when he was killed suddenly or what has happened with them, the fact 
is we cannot find them, and we should like to have those plans.

SIE GAEFIELD : I shall look for them. I have not got them here.

Mr WALLACE : Your Honor realises that when I speak of the 
third floor I mean the historical third floor that is mentioned in the 
Kerr plan measured from George Street.

Q. Do the plans you have in front of you indicate a roof or tem­ 
porary roof at the third floor ceiling? A. No ...... (upon the
rest of the answer being given and upon Siv Garfield objecting thereto, 
by direction of His Honor this was struck out.). 40

WITNESS : The engineering details here as part of this set do not 
show any details at all above the third floor, except the necessary
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information to give the splice of the columns, projecting a few feet 
ahove the third floor. There are no engineering details above the third
floor. South Wales

(At this stage, during the course of discussion, Mr. Wallace Equitable 
called for all plans and all drawings submitted to the Com- Ju™diction- 
missioner at any time relating to the Kerr-Gardiner scheme. Defendant's 
Sir Garfield stated that these would be obtained.) Evidence.

HIS HONOR: The witness has stated during the argument that he H.'A.'
has Copies. Llewellyn.

10 Q. Where did the copies come from? A. Out of our files. Examination.
Q. Have they got dates on them? A. This one is drawn April 

1934 and checked May, 1934.
Q. All you know is that that document shows that? A. Yes.

HIS HONOR: All the witness knows that in the files of Mr. Stanley 
those plans were in existence. He does not know, for example, how 
they came into existence, for what purpose, or what happened.

Mr WALLACE: I particularly call for these plans  
Q. What do you call these here (shown)? A. Hotel Plaza, 

George Street, Sydney, Section On Line FF, Section on Line GG, 
20 Shown on Working Drawing No. 9; Dated April and May, 1934.

Q. What is this one ? A. Third Floor Plan, Roof Level, Work­ 
ing Drawing No. 7, of the same date.

Q. And this one? A. I think that is a preliminary print of 
drawings of the same set. It is No. 8, but it is undated. These are 
photostats of what I believe to be other copies of the same set. They 
have been reproduced, by printing process, on a smaller sized sheet.

SIR GARFIELD: I have asked this witness, on a subpoena which has 
not yet been enforced, to bring all that he has got. I would have to 
enforce the subpoena against him to get them all.

30 Mr WALLACE: Q. My call relates in particular to these (showing)? 
A. Sheets 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8.

Q. Of what? A. Of Marked working drawings. No. 1, Base­ 
ment Floor Plan. No. 3, Mezzanine Floor Plan. No. 4, Ground Floor 
Plan, George Street level. No. 5, First Floor Plan, Wynyard Lane 
level. No. 6, Second Floor Plan, Carrington Street level. No. 7, Third 
Floor Plan, Roof level, and No. 8, Section on Line AA, Section on Line 
DD; all dated 1934.

Mr WALLACE: The matter could be filled up so to speak at this stage 
by my asking my friend to produce all or any working drawings or 

40 details at any time supplied to him of the Kerr-Gardiner plans above 
the third floor.
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in the (At this stage further discussion ensued, during which Sir 
Garfield called for copies of all files of the Railways Depart-

South Wales ment in the possession of the defendant. )
in its

HONOR : So far as this witness is concerned he has gone as farJurisdiction. .,..-,
as he can go. The position is this : He has plans in his possession and
documents which he got from Mr Stanley. 

N   4 Q. Is that right? A. Yes.
"fl. A. HIS HONOR : Amongst those files are the copy plans dated 1934, going 
ewej . £ Q ^e third floor. It is a matter of finding out what the facts are relat-

Examination. jng to those plans. 10

(Discussion ensued regarding admissions.)

HIS HONOR : Q. Is that the whole of the bundle of plans you produce? 
A. Yes.

(Bundle of plans as produced by Mr Llewellyn m.f.i.27.)

Mr WALLACE : Q. I would like you to draw diagramatically columns 
53 and 28, showing how the floor level at the Carrington St. level   
that is, on which the lounge is built in the 1956 plans   is supported, and 
then showing how column 53A goes up from the beam or truss that 
you have, and then from that I want you to show or tell the Court the 
result of your computations or your researches and inquiries about 20 
the extent to which column 53 can be carried under the 1956 plans, 
and whether it can carry a future fourth floor, filling in the central 
area should it be so desired? A. (Witness draws sketch).

Q. You have indicated where what we have called the large truss 
goes! A. Yes.

Q. Do you say that under the 1956 plans the column 53 is capable 
of being used so that full development can take place by anyone who 
is so minded, above it, and by using a truss between the 5th and 6th 
floors, as we have heard about previously? A. Yes.

Q. What is this place here? A. That is the Wynyard Lane level, 30 
and that is the new beam proposed between columns 53 and 58.

Q. Would you indicate that by means of a cross? A. Yes.
Q. That is looking from the point to the south ? A. South of the 

beam, looking in a northerly direction.
Q. You would be standing on the level which would be one floor 

below Carrington Street level? A. That is right; Wynyard Lane 
level.

Q. You would be on the Wynyard Lane level. All that you do 
under such a plan is to project column 53 one floor? A. That is so, 
between the 3rd and 4th floors. 40

Q. Then, thereafter, at the 5th floor, the big truss takes over? 
A. That is right, the big truss would support the 5th floor.
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Q. There all you have to do is to ask, so to speak, 53 and 55 to in the 
carry one more floor than the original calculation? A. That is so. 

Q. Are you satisfied beyond any doubt that they can do so? A.
YeS. Equitable

Q. Have you gone into the matter quite fully? A. Fully enough  
tr> ho nKlo +n sav "Vp« " Defendant'sto De awe to say les. Evidence.

Q. Is there also what is known as a live load reduction? A. Yes. N"7Y*
It is contained in the interim loading code which we use to design loads H. A.
Of buildings. Llewellyn.

10 Q. How does that operate ? A. It allows you, in designing mem- Examination, 
bers carrying more than 150 sq. feet in area to reduce the live loading 
by a percentage, depending on the area involved and the relationship 
of the live to the dead loading.

Q. Is there a scale laid down in the Australian code? A. For­ 
mulas are laid down for determining the percentage of live load 
reduction.

Q. Does that element come into your answer when you say you are 
satisfied beyond doubt that 53 and 55 can carry a floor more than the 
original computations? A. Yes.

20 (Rough sketch of witness tendered and marked Exh. 15.)

Mr WALLACE : The diagram actually shows 53 and 58, but the purpose 
of the diagram is to indicate the extension of 53, and, of course, 55 would 
be the same?
WITNESS: Exactly.
Mr WALLACE : 55 is not shown in that diagram; the extension of 53 in 
any projected future development of the central area under the 1956 
plans.
HIS HONOR: To take one extra floor? 

Mr WALLACE: Yes.
30 Q- Would you indicate just how you came to the conclusion you 

have just given? A. By taking the area of floors supported by 
columns 53 and 55 and applying the live load reduction formula, see 
what live load could be taken off a column which was allowed for in 
the original scheme, then comparing that total figure with the possible 
loading that the 4th floor would put on the column.

Q. You have also explained to the Court that the end of a heavy 
truss that we have spoken about could be attached to the projection 
of column 51. That is one of the heavy columns? A. Yes.

Q. Which said column is used in the 1956 plans ? A. Yes.
40 Q. That is to say, you told the Court that the central area could be 

fully developed as originally planned, using the 1956 plans, they, as they 
do, using columns 51 and so on? A. That is right.
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the Q. Would you show on a diagram how you would do that, how you 
would insert the truss into the projection of column 51? A. (Witness

South Wales draws sketch).
in its

Equitable Q. You show there a diagram of either column 51 or 57 as used in 
Jurisdiction. the 1956 ^Ian8 but degigned go ag to allow for tne bearing of one of
Defendant's the big trusses in order to permit full development of the central area
Evidence. as may have been originally planned? A. That is so.

H. A. Q- Some suggestion was made by Sir Garfield that by placing the 
Llewellyn, truss load or the end of the truss on to an extension there would be   

Examination, if I understood him correctly   some sort of turning or bending moment JQ 
or some sort of prejudice to the load carrying capacity of columns 51 
or 57 "? A. Yes, that would be offset by so arranging the centre of the 
reaction of the truss and the centre of gravity of the upper column in 
relation to the centre of gravity of the lower column so that the moments 
balance.

Q. On this diagram, you show as it were a right angled niche cut 
into column 51 and the truss resting on the ledge so created? A. 
That is so.

Q. By so designing the size of the ledge, you overcome any possi­ 
bility of the weight of the truss prejudicing the load carrying capacity 20 
of column 51? A. That is so.

Q. From where the truss rests on 51 upwards, that column 51 
is just bearing the lighter loads that any other column would bear? 
A. That is so.

(Above mentioned diagram of witness tendered and marked 
Exh. 16).

Q. Bxh. 16 indicates what you would do. Would it be simple pre­ 
planning if you were told you had to arrange for the construction of 
the truss in the development of a central area, before you actually 
commenced the work on the Carrington St. building? A. That is so. 30

Q. If you did not do that beforehand and did not pre-plan, I under­ 
stood you to indicate you could still do it, but it would be more dim- 
cult? A. That is so. It would mean cutting into the then existing 
column.

CROSS-EXAMINED
examination.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. When did you make the calculations which led 
you to these conclusions? A. Yesterday.

Q. Did you reduce the calculations to writing? A. Yes. I do 
not know whether they are in a legible form, but they are in writing. 
I could easily reproduce them if necessary. 4Q

Q. You have the actual ones you made? A. Yes.
Q. For clarity, you would be prepared to put in a copy? A. 

Yes. I may have taken short cuts.
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Q. Would you get those and give them to my friend for produc- in the 
tiontomet A. Yes.

Q. In relation to columns 51 and 53 and 55 and 57, what basic 
figure did you work on as an accepted load bearing figure for each of Equitable 
those columns? A. The live load. Jurisdiction.

Q. What figure did you use that you could put on the existing Defendant's 
columns before you begin to extend them? A. The accepted load- Evidence' 
ings in those schedules that we had previously. No. u. 

Q. So you have assumed that those columns were constructed Llewellyn. 
10 according to the detail on the blueprint which I think is m.f.i.20? ^^

A. YeS. examination.

Q. You accepted the schedule of loadings that is on those blue­ 
prints? A. I am sorry, I do not think the schedule of loadings is 
on those. The schedule of loadings is on those smaller sheets.

Q. We will take it in stages. You assumed that the columns were 
built according to the blueprints m.f.i.20? A. No, there was no 
necessity for checking columns. It was a question of checking loadings 
against loadings.

Q. But the column, as a physical thing, is there ? A. That is so.
20 Q- It must have been built according to something? A. I have 

accepted the fact that the columns were built to carry the accepted 
loadings.

Q. Those accepted loadings are derived from m.f.i.20? A. I 
am accepting that fact, that they were.

Q. I put it to you that you are accepting the fact that they were 
built according to m.f.i.20, and therefore, they had the loading accord­ 
ing to the schedule of loadings ? A. No, I took the loadings from the 
schedule of loadings, irrespective of what column at the Plaza Hotel. 
It is an agreed schedule of loadings, irrespective of the particular inter- 

3Q pretation of those loadings, into a column size and reinforcement.
Q. In other words, you took a theoretic agreed loading for some 

columns? A. Had I checked those particular columns, had I taken 
the size of the column and the reinforcement of that column from 
m.f.i.20 and used the modern regulations, controlling that design, I 
would have got a greater live load than is shown on the schedule of 
accepted loadings.

Q. On the schedule of accepted loadings, is a conversion of what 
is specified in m.f.i.20 according to the then permissible loadings? 
A. I assume that. 

40 Q. You did not check that? A. No.
Q. That is what I asked you, to begin with. You made that 

assumption? A. Yes.
Q. So the basic figure which is used is in the schedule of loadings? 

A. That is right.
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in the Q. Then, what did you do? Did you vary that schedule by any 
factors? A. No. The live loads then designed for these particular 

South Wales existing floors were allowed for in the original calculations. I did 
Editable. no^ check to see whether those live loads are in fact being used I. 

Jurisdiction, suspect that much lighter live loads are being used but in using that 
Defendant's advantage, I took the loadings as specified in the original calculations 
Evidence, and then applied the modern live load reduction formula to these 

No 14 loading rates.
Q- What, a reduction formula to a hotel or a commercial building? 

A. It is the same; no difference. The live load is different but the 10 
, percentage reduction does not vary.

Q. I take it you were asked to make these calculations after you 
were cross-examined yesterday? A. I was not asked. I did it out 
of interest after making a statement that I thought it could be done. 
I checked it.

Q. You yourself went into it of your own desire! A. Yes.
Q. (Exh. 15 shown) This new reinforced concrete beam is the one 

proposed in the plans, is it? A. In the 1956 plans.
Q. This here is column 53, is it ? A. 53, yes.
Q. You carry it up two floors? A. No, one floor. That is all 20 

ready in the 1956 scheme, and it supports the 3rd floor. It has to be 
extended one floor to support the future 4th floor.

Q. And nothing to support the roof of the 5th. You say that is 
supported by the underneath of the truss? A. That is so.

Q. These calculations you have produced to me will allow for these 
floors to be put at the right hand side of the drawing? A. They are 
all ready allowed for in the 1956 calculations.

Q. The one on the 4th floor is not? A. No.
Q. And will allow for the load of this? A. Yes.
Q. Is it assumed that the building has gone to a height of 150 ft. ? 30 

A. The set-back as originally, yes.
Q. Have you got your calculations to show what would be the 

load of the building when up to the 150 ft. limit, and its set-back on 
column 53? A. I cannot answer whether these final calculations 
have been done. You will remember we were discussing whether those 
loadings on those columns would be the last ones taken out. I cannot 
answer that.

Q. But didn't you have to start with this computation by knowing 
what the total load already on it is, before you put on the 4th floor? 
A. I am sorry. The original calculations for the 1956 scheme do show 40 
that; to the set-back of the 8th floor.

Q. But there is still some set-back coming on to the column 53? 
A. Not after.
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Q. Where are the calculations for that ? Could you give them to 
my friend! A. I can. I think they are in Court.

Q. Would you turn them up so that we will be able to identify °U{n
them ? Equitable

Jurisdiction.

HIS HONOR: Q. Are they the ones Mr McMillan was looking at the Defendant's 
other day? A. That is right. Evidence.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. Is 51, in those extensions you contemplate there, H'A.' 
in concrete or steel? A. 51 was contemplated in concrete. Llewellyn.

Q. And 57 in concrete? A. Yes. CT?SB-.
examination.

10 Q. What, as specified, 3,000 Ibs to the square inch, cement? A. 
It was contemplated then. It had not been finally checked for its 
loading.

Q. What did you contemplate when you made these calculations? 
A. These calculations did not involve 51 and 57. They only involved 
the low load bearing columns, 53 and 55.

HIS HONOR: It would not make any difference apparently. 

WITNESS: It would not make any difference.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. But you are assuming the trusses go up, in what 
you are saying there ? A. Yes, but these later calculations do not 

20 affect the loading that was always on the truss.

Q. Just tell me where that calculation is, the calculation of the 
original load of 1956 on column 53? A. There it is (showing).

Q. Can you tell me then what was the load you assumed would be 
on 53 before these extensions were made, so that yon carry floors up 
to underneath the truss! A. It was done in a different way. The 
load of the 3rd floor was taken, and that figure was divided into the 
available load on column 53, and the notation at the bottom says the 
number of floors that can be built.

Q. But you must have started in these calculations of yesterday 
30 onwards with some basic figure? A. Yes.

Q. You say you took the schedule of loadings? A. Yes.
Q. Then you have to find out what actual load is on it? A. I 

am sorry, it is not done that way. We start with an available loading 
of 710,000 Ibs as a matter of fact. That is available on 53 and 55. 
Then we have a load coming down on the 1956 plan, and we find that 
we can go up 8 floors of bedrooms and still not exceed 710,000 Ibs. They 
were the original calculations in the 1956 scheme.

Q. I do not follow how you can do it if you do not have some
basic figure to begin with. A. Having determined that 8 floors can

40 be put on that 710,000 Ibs., then it is a question of how much was there
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in the. to spare in the 710,000 that is listed on that schedule to spare, in the 
.Ftfe«> li£ht of modern live load reductions. The amount that is to spare 

South Wales exceeds the load that one floor puts on the column.

Equitable Q. That is the way you did it? A. Yes.
Jurisdiction.

f~T~ Q. If you did not utilise this so-called modern live load reduction, 
Evidence. 8 you could not  1 A. You could not build the Plaza to 150 ft.

NO. H. Q. You could not build which Plaza? A. The Carrington St. to 
Liwe%n. 150 ft. It was never designed for that. It was only designed for 120 ft. 
   We have to use the same devices we are using right throughout the 

examination, columns to get the height. 10

Q. The reason why you say that is that the columns, which would 
bear a building on the Carrington St. frontage, were built originally 
only to carry a building 120 ft. high? A. Yes.

Q. So, because what has been called the Joe Gardiner plan the 
building proposed was not stepped as from George St. to Carrington 
St., the roof was a level roof? A. Yes. I have not actually cheeked 
this particular column to see that the design at that stage was correct, 
that there were not any mistakes in it; in other words, from the details 
from which the design was prepared, to show the building level at 
150 ft. above George St. 20

Q. There was nothing to prevent you in 1930-odd, when ever it 
was, from going up to 150 ft. on the Carrington St. frontage? A. 
Well, from my engineering reading of building ordinances there was.

Q. You thought there was? A. Yes.

HIS HONOR: Q. There was some curious feature about the Caltex 
building that enabled that to be got around, wasn't there? A. Yes.

Q. That was only a fluke, was it? A. The back of the Caltex 
building does not front a public road. It fronts a leased area.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. At any rate, you say these columns were only 
designed to carry 120 ft. on the Carrington St. frontage? A. Well, 30 
to a height indicated on the drawings.

Q. To a height indicated on the drawings in the group of documents 
m.f.i's 3, 4, 5 and 20? A. Yes.

Q. You told me that structural details sort of phased progressively 
 as you go along with the building? A. In most jobs.

Q. If there is any likelihood of there being repetitive floors, even 
architectural drawings very often are content simply to go to the first 
floor which is likely to be repeated? A. Yes.

Q. And then, later, you get structural drawings and details follow­ 
ing the builder up, as he goes through? A. That is right. 49
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RE-EXAMINED ln *e
Supreme

Mr WALLACE : Q. In particular, the line of columns numbered 51, 76, Court of New 
96 and 112  you know those, of course T A. Yes. Sou% %aks

Q. And the line of columns 57, 87, 101 and 119 ? A. Yes.

Q. They were constructed of a size and strength sufficient to permit Defendant's 
the development above the 4th floor from the George St. level of the Evidence- 
demised area lying between the lines of columns 51, 53, 55 and 57 ? A. NO u.
Vpa " H. A.*- ti °- Llewellyn.

Q. And the line of columns 112, 114, 117 and 119 ? A. Yes. ^ 

10 Q. Do you follow that? A. Yes, it is quite clear. xa maion-

Q. "at least to the full city building limits, but as qualified by the 
ordinances relating to light and air." I suppose if the words "com­ 
puted from George St." were inserted you would agree with that? 
A. Yes.

Q. "As a result of such design and of the plaintiff building inter 
alia columns numbered 53, 55, 78, 79, 98, 99, 114 and 117"  you are 
well acquainted with those? A. Yes.

Q. "according to such design, such columns are unable to carry
any greater load than they were designed to carry in the said design,

20 except to the extent that greater loads are now permissible under
altered and liberalised building ordinances and regulations". A.
Yes.

Q. And these are words I particularly invite your attention to : 
"but are in any event insufficient to carry a building beyond four or five 
floors from the George St. level". A. I could not agree with that. 
Up to that last statement, yes.

Q. Up to the last two lines, beginning "but are in any event insuffi­ 
cient", you agree? A. Yes.

Q. You do not agree with the words "but are in any event insuffi- 
30 cient to carry a building beyond four or five floors from the George St. 

level." A. No. I am of opinion that a thorough investigation of 
those columns under present day regulations would permit of more than 
one storey   maybe three storeys   additional load being placed on the 
columns.

Q. (Exh. 15 shown). DO you say not only could the column carry 
that fourth floor   is that what you are saying? A. That is right.

Q. But in your opinion you could also get two or three more floors 
on it ? A. Yes. That is subject to checking, of course. I am satisfied 
from what I have seen of the design that we could put a lot more load 

4Q on that column.
Q. That is, additional to the 4th floor? A. Yes.
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In the SIR GARFIELD: (By permission) Q. You have made no actual 
mulation yourself as to whether what you say might be possible is 

South Wales possible. You have made no calculation? A. I have checked exist- 
EguMie inS calculations.

Jurisdiction. Q But you haye ma(je n() other calculations ? A. No.

Q- At an7 rate> this is riSht : They would not bear a building 
up to the permissible building limits? A. I should not think so.

No. 14.
H. A. Q. Nor anything like it? A. Well, I would have to be more

Llewellyn. precjse about that. We are up to the 4th floor, and it may be that
Re- we could put, say, another three floors ; that is, 5th, 6th and 7th. That 10

examination.

Q. That is the highest you think it might possibly go ? A. With­ 
out really accurate checking.

Q. Well, without some checking, which you have not made at all? 
A. Yes, I have checked the loadings which have been allocated to the 
columns at low level.

Q. That is to say, you have taken the schedule of loadings? 
A. Yes.

Q. What sort of floors do you suppose you could put on these? 
A. Office or hotel loadings. 20

Q. What about public rooms of a hotel? A. No, public rooms 
would be heavier, but it is not usual to have public rooms . . .

Q. I did not ask you that ... A. It is a question of total load. 
The columns in my opinion will carry an additional load equal to 
approximately three floors of hotel-bedroom, or office loading.

Q. That is an opinion of yours without any calculated check? 
A. Without any accurate check.

Q. And if there was any proposal to put public loads as distinct 
from mere bedroom loads there, your statement would have to be 
modified? A. May have to be modified, yes. 30

Mr WALLACE: Q. The columns in question are 53, 55 etc. A. Yes.

Q. We need only deal with 53 and 55 for the purpose of illustra­ 
tion. If you go to the Kerr plans, how far does it appear from them 
that they intended to go? A. They stop at the underside of the 4th 
floor.

Q. Do I take it from what you are now saying that in your opinion 
they could under modern ordinances and regulations be carried up to, 
say, the 7th floor? A. Yes.

Q. Would you check that between now and Monday? A. Yes.

HIS HONOR : Q. You know precisely what you have promised to do ? 40 
A. Yes. There is the calculation about the reduction of the live load.
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SIR GARFIELD : And the calculation that permitted you to say what in the 
you said as to Exh. 15 ; and your original calculations if you have not
given US those. South Wales

in its
WITNESS : Yes, they are in those documents. EquitableJurisdiction,.
SIB GARFIELD : I take it he is still putting himself into a position Defendant's 
of being able to answer the subpoena. Evidence.

———————————————— No. 14.
H. A. 

No. 15 Llewellyn.

Further Evidence of J. R. Harrowell Re .examination.
Mr WALLACE: Q. Over the adjournment, I think with regard to No 15 

10 the document you had in front of you, that is to say the Schedule A J. R- 
to that document, the schedule of estimated accommodation revenue, arrowe 
have you prepared an alternate estimate of accommodation revenue for Examination, 
the year ending 30th June, 1960, on the basis that you abandon the 
three classes of bedrooms and in lieu thereof, you give the same rates 
under both schemes to double beds with bathrooms, single beds with 
and without bathrooms, and so on?——
HIS HONOR: There is one difference that you will not get common. 
In the 1954 scheme there are some bedrooms without any bathroom; 
you have to walk to the bathroom.

20 Mr WALLACE: Q. In the case of a bedroom without a bathroom, the 
only difference you have made is to lower the rate by 5/- per week? 
A. 5/- bed and breakfast rate.

Q. Is this a copy of such document? A. Yes, that is the 
document.
Mr WALLACE : Q. On the assumption that you substitute for Schedule 
A the estimates which you prepared overnight and to which you 
referred before lunch, what would be the net result to the main page, 
at the foot thereof, under the title "Deficit or Surplus"? A. It 
would convert the deficit of £3,600 to a surplus—an estimated surplus— 

30 of £2,008, subject again to those provisos mentioned on that first 
statement.

Q. What about the 1956 plans? A. The 1956 plans would be 
unaltered, because the same values were taken as the comparable 
bedrooms of the 1954 plan.
HIS HONOR: I see what the witness means. It is quite clear to me. 
He only had two categories in the 1956 plan, and those categories have 
been continued. All that he has done is to convert the 1954 plans into 
two categories as well.

Q. Isn't that right? A. That is correct. 
40 (All calculations made by Harrowell m.f.i. 28).
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in the Mr WALLACE: Q. There would be a change also, would not there, 
New on the item £258,316; in other words, you would have to add £5,608 

South Wales on to £258,316, wouldn't you"? A. Yes. I have just treated it as a 
££±fc net figure.

Jurisdiction. Q YOU see where I mean, here (indicating). I assume obviously 
Defendant's that that will have to be increased by £5,608. Would you make the 
Evidence. neceBSary alteration there? A. Yes.

No. 15.
j. R. RE-EXAMINED
— ' SIR GA.RFIELD: Q. Do you remember the first schedule which showed 

Examination, the extract of the balance sheets? A. Yes. 10

exaltation. HIS HONOR: That is not part of this "marked for identification". 
(Summary of Balance Sheets m.f.i. 29).

SIR GARFIELD: Q. I want to ask you about these shops, first of all. 
The shops that you speak of are shops which are let by your Company? 
A. Yes.

Q. They are not run by your Company, but let ? A. They are let 
by our Company, yes.

Q. Tell me how they come to be "in the red" all the time. You 
have told us you assigned a certain portion of rates, and I understand 
that; why "in the red"! A. Well, the accounts for each year set20 
those out. The main item is the item for rent and rates, apportioned 
against the shop revenue.

Q. Do you mean just on a balance of rent and rates you make these 
losses? A. Yes—and there are other expenses relating to the 
management set out in the accounts.

Q. Relating to the management of the shops? A. Relating to 
the management of the shops, and expenses directly incurred in relation 
to the shops.

Q. You will find these in the balance sheet? A. Those are set 
out in the audited accounts. 30

Q. On these shops at Wynyard, by the mere letting of them and 
assigning some portion of the total rates to the shops, and management, 
and portion of rent as well, you show a loss on letting these shops at 
the figures in the red? A. Yes, it comes to a loss.

Q. In respect of your restaurant, what is the basic figure you 
accept for the purpose of your audit—when you come to audit your 
restaurant figures? A. You mean the gross profit percentage?

Q. What are the documents you audit—the basic documents you 
accept for the purpose of the audit ? A. Well, on the revenue side, 
we would accept the cash register readings, and examine dockets— 49 
waitresses dockets—test check them. In regard to the stock, we would 
check and see that stock sheets are prepared under the supervision of
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the Company; and the materials used, or the stock—the food—we in the 
would compare that with the takings, and the percentage should be 
between 50 and 60 per cent. It varies, and it varies with restaurants South Wales 
and food. We only have an overall gross profit percentage control of Equilabu 
the takings. That is our method of checking. jurisdiction.

Q. With respect to the liquor, what do you accept there; your cash Defendant's 
register? A. With the liquor it is a more detailed control. The " ence' 
hotel has a staff in the cellar whose sole job is recording the movement 
of liquor stocks to the bars, and apart from the checking of the cash 

10 register rolls, we are also able to prepare from the cellar—indepen- —— 
dently of the bars—a list of stock sold, and that is priced out at selling examination, 
price; and that total price is compared with the takings.

Q. Is this something your firm does? A. No, it is part of the 
internal control, I would call it, of the hotel, but we would look at that 
and see that that is carried on.

Q. Between 1946 and 1956, were the number of bars at Wynyard 
increased? A. Yes.

Q. Can you remember what bars were added at Wynyard between
1946 and 1956? A. No, I could only generalise. There was a con-

20 siderable amount of work done on what they call the northern bars and
the southern bars. They were the bars running each side of the roads.
Some bars were extended.

Q. And do you tell us the percentage of the gross sales remains 
fairly constant between 1946 and 1956 ? A. This is the liquor ?

Q. Yes? A. From memory it would remain within four or five 
per cent.

Q. Your figures for liquor here, between 1946 and 1956 show a drop 
from £60,000 to £39,000 in the ten years'? A. Yes.

Q. Are you telling us that the sales of liquor at Wynyard dropped
30 ratably, to that difference? A. No, rather would I say that the

expenses rose. Wages in that time, for instance, rose approximately
100%. The basic wage rose in those two years, 1946 and 1956, from
memory, by 100%.

Q. In the balance sheet you are carrying forward your gross sales 
of liquor? A. We carry forward gross profit, which is the one I was 
referring to with the percentage remaining reasonably constant. We 
carry that forward to a departmental trading account.

Q. Can I find in what is produced the total sales in the bars ? A. 
You can, from these accounts.

4Q Q. I mean in what is produced? A. They are based on the 1956 
accounts, and they are taken out and placed on that sheet. But if you 
had the 1956 audit against them, then you can, with these statements, 
find the figures.
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in the Q. The 1956 figures? A. That is right.
Supreme

Court of New Q. Are they the balance sheets that were to be furnished I A.
Soufn toafe They do not go right back. 1943 and 1944 are to come. That is what

Equitable the secretary of the company will bring back from Melbourne. I have
Jurisdiction.

Defendant's _ , - . „ „ „ . T7.
Evidence. Q. They are the documents m rront of you? A. Yes.

NO. 15. Q. From those can I ascertain as to any year what was the gross
Harroweii. amount of sales of liquor at Wynyard? A. You can.

~j^7 Q. Year by year? A. Yes.
examination.

SIR GAEFIELD: I am not troubling about accommodation, because 10 
I take it Your Honor is not accepting it as evidence of the amount of 
accommodation.

HIS HONOR : No. You can carry out the same mathematics by taking 
any figures. Having regard to the basic figures, the result must 
approximate that one.

" No - 16
Evidence of E. D. Randall

Mr WALLACE : Q. Are you the accountant of the defendant company 
in respect of the Plaza hotel businesses ? A. No, I am the acting New 
South Wales manager for the company. 20

Q. I think in the past you have been the accountant, have you? 
A. That is so.

Q. How long have you been in those positions? A. I have been 
with the company sixteen and a half years, and acting N.S.W. Manager 
for 15 months.

Q. Are you familiar with the business activities in relation to the 
Plaza businesses ? A. I am.

Q. There are at present quite a few shops there, aren't there, which 
your company leases or lets out to shopkeepers? A. Yes.

Q. What sort of rentals do you get presently? A. The rentals, 30 
of course, vary in accordance with the position of the shop.

Q. Give His Honor the bracket. What is the lowest and what 
would be the highest? A. The lowest rental would be £185 per year, 
up to £2,250.

Q. How many shops are there that you let out? A. I could not 
give the exact figure without looking at the records, but I can count it 
up pretty well from memory. There would be approximately 27 separate 
tenancies.



283

Q. What would be the average sort of rental you get down there? in (he 
A. The average for the lot would be in the vicinity of, I should say,
£14 to £15 a week. South Wales

in its
Q. I think you carried out a sort of test of the trend of traffic in Equitable 

the side ways some little time ago, didn't you? A. In 1948 I carried " 
out a survey.

Q. Without going into details, is there one ramp more frequented N~f6 
than the others? A. There is; the southern ramp. E. D.

Randall.
Q. Then, if you had shops around Wynyard Lane, with people —— 

10 going through to Carrington St., I suppose yon would expect some Examinatlon- 
different set of circumstances to the ramp position today, going down 
to the railway? A. Yes, there would be, but it would not affect to a 
great degree the amount of people going down to the ticket barriers, 
because they are railway travellers in any case, and that serves the 
northern and the western suburbs, but the people who at the present 
time take the buses, for example, in Carrington St., and who are forced 
to go in a sort of fork either up Wynyard Street or Margaret Street 
and then come around the corners into Carrington Street, they would 
no doubt make their approach directly through the projected shop 

20 area and come out into Carrington Street, and that would tend to add 
to the foot traffic in the upper part of the ramp but not in the lower.

Q. Because it is the upper part which leads across Wynyard Lane ? 
A. Yes. The people going to Carrington Street go up Wynyard 
Street or Margaret Street at the present time. It would be reasonable 
to suppose that those people would take a covered way and would now 
enter the station at the George Street entrance, walk down approxi­ 
mately 25 yards, and then turn up opposite the present milk bar and 
use the projected arcade, straight through into Carrington Street.

Q. You are quite conversant with rentals that you have been
3Q getting and that you are able to get, I mean subject to restrictions?

A. Yes. Our present rentals, of course, are subject to the basic rents
as affected by the Landlord & Tenant Act, and apart from that I am
conversant with the rents that are payable.

Q. The figures that have lieen given in a document prepared by 
Mr Harrowell and which is m.f.i.28 show the rentals that are expected 
to be obtained from shops at around about £750 ],cr annum on an 
average. Would that be constant with your views? A. Yes.

Q. Another matter is in preparing this document to which 1 have 
referred, m.f.i.2H, Mr Harrowell sought some information j'rom yon 

, M L understand, regarding estimated charges for accommodation? 
4U A. Pie did.

Q. The figures that appear on schedule A of that document we 
understand are taken from information received by him from you? 
A. That is so.
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Q. Would you tell His Honor what experience you have had and 
wna-t inquiries you made in order to assist Mr Harrowell? A. 1 

South Wales first of all, of course, obtained the hotel directory at the N.R.M.A. for 
Equitable this year which gives accurate information on Sydney hotels, and then 

Jurisdiction. T inquired personally from three hotels in the city, the Hyde Park, 
Defendant's the St. James and the Hotel Australia, from whom I obtained informa- 
Evidenoe. tion concerning their present rates, and I also supplemented that by 

NoTTe. my own personal knowledge of hotel rates in hotels that I stay at 
E. D. frequently throughout the country areas of N.S.W., and knowing what 
a^ ' I have paid, what I have paid for and what I have been given, on that 10 

Examination, and bearing in mind that we arc not proposing to erect a luxury hotel 
I came to the conclusion that the first class hotel rates for our projected 
hotel would reasonably and somewhat conservatively be the figures I 
gave Mr Harrowell.

Q. You, of course, drew a distinction between what is shown on 
Schedule A as to the first, second and third class accommodation? 
A. Yes.

Q. Do you have a copy of that schedule A with you? A. Yes. 
Q. The highest rate you have assigned is in respect of double 

rooms with bathroom, and the lowest rate is in respect of single rooms 20 
under the category "third class, without a bathroom"? A. Yes.

Q. That is to say you range from 80/- to 35/- per day for bed and 
breakfast? A. That is so.

Q. When it came to second and third class accommodation, what 
sort of factors and what sort of information did you take into con­ 
sideration? A. I obtained a classification and measurements from 
the architect, Mr Nicholls, and expressed my opinion that the first 
class consisted of rooms with their own hath, toilets, and good natural 
light and air. Second class rooms, I would say T expressed the opinion 
that they are rooms which either require artificial light or lacked 30 
privacy by reason, for instance, of looking into a light well, or perhaps 
also had only a shower or hot and cold water. A third class room 
would require artificial light most of the day and would only have in 
it a hand wash basin and no other form of bathroom facility.

Q. If you turn to the heading "Third Class" towards the foot of 
Schedule A, you do find double rooms with bathroom under that 
category? A. That is true.

Q. Would they be double rooms with artificial lighting or no 
privacy! A. The classification and the actual counting is not done 
by me. 40

Q. You did that in association with information received from Mr 
Nicholls ? A. That is so.

Q. Has it been your experience yourself that rooms looking into 
narrow light wells or with artificial light are charged less for or are 
less sought after—either or both of those things—in connection with
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hotel accommodation 1 A. i should say both. It is my own personal /» the 
experience that I do not seek such rooms, and I tind it with others (; 
as well, those with whom I go away for golf tournaments, and if I may South 
refer to my notes I can give you some. You see, at the Hyde Park Equitable. 
Hotel, for example, bed and breakfast with shower is 33/G, but without Jurisdiction. 
shower it is 30s. At the St. James Hotel, on today's quotations—that Defendant's 
is built in a sort of internal lightwell area, you see—inside rooms are Evidence. 
40/- bed and breakfast, and outside rooms are 42 - bed and breakfast. x^Te. 
The same applies to, and I am quoting in this ease, hotels at which I 

10 have stayed quite a lot, such as the Royal at Groulburn. I go there a
great deal for golf tournaments, and I find it is an old hotel, and not all Examination, 
of the hotels have hot and cold water or running water of any sort. 
For those that have nothing, not even a hand wash basin, you pay 23/6 
bed and breakfast, and for those that do have running water hot and 
cold, you pay an extra 5/-, 28/6. Those factors undoubtedly count, 
unless one claims that the basis on which they are to be judged is that 
they do not matter, but they are charged for; and there are many other 
hotels I could quote whore the same thing has applied.

Q. What about the Mt. Victoria? A. That is an example. "We 
20 go there to play, as well. The rooms which face south overlook the 

Great Western Highway and naturally get no sunlight, particularly in 
winter when our sun is so far north, and that is when you need it. The 
only sun you can get is in the rooms which face the north, and they are 
more sought after. If I cannot get one, I fight the desk for a transfer 
to the northern side as soon as possible. I am very often and have 
been many times told there are others waiting, but you find that the 
price charged there is—the la*t I paid there at all events was—357- 
looking south and 37/6 looking north.

Q. Without further detail, was much the same thing your cxperi-
30 ence at the Civic Hotel at Canberra ? A. I find the same at Canberra

—particularly the Hotel Canberra; the Civic; the Knickerbocker,
Bathurst; Tattersall's at Armidale; Conobolns and Duntry League at
Orange; Commercial at Moss Vale, and a few others I have not quoted.

Q. These are all hotels at which you have stayed and of which you 
have had personal experience on this aspect? A. Yes.

Q. With regard to the furnishing estimate which is attached to this 
document, a comparison between the 1954 and 1956 plans, did you have 
anything to do with the preparation of that? A. I did prepare it 
myself.

../> Q. Have you had experience in the requirements of furnishings for 
a hotel? A. No, not before this.

Q. Did you make certain inquiries as to prices and that sort of 
thing? A. I did.

Q. And as to what was required? A. I did.
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In the Q. Anyhow, this comes from your assertions and inquiries youA- Yes-
Q- I suppose the furniture is all one fairly gets for use in a hotel 1 

Eqmtabu A. The furniture, of course, is after my travels, with a few touches of 
jurisdiction. - thought were overlooked in most hotels.
Defendant's 
Evidence. CROSS-EXAMINED

E. D. SIR GARFIELD: Q. You are apparently an experienced and know- 
Randaii. ledgeable traveller? A. Well, I am an experienced hut not a very 

Examination, knowledgeable traveller.
Cross- Q. A knowledgeable traveller, apparently! A. Yes. 10

examination.
Q. And rather not a fastidious one but you like what you want 

when you go away ? A.I like comfort.
Q. This hotel at Wynyard, you say is not to be a luxury hotel. 

It is a terminal hotel, broadly over a railway station 1? A. No, I do 
not envisage it that way.

Q. However, you do expect, of course, that it will get a lot of over­ 
night stoppers; people in and out for the night? A. I think so.

Q. Have you had experience of catering for those in a hotel before? 
A. No, not at all.

Q. Whereabouts on this 1954 plan do I find a room which will have 20 
to have an electric light on for most of the day? A. I think you will 
find them, in winter, I should say, on the south—those rooms that face 
south. I should say the southern rooms of the southern cross-arm. It 
is in the shape of a sort of "H"; the rooms facing south, on the southern 
side.

Q. You think they will need the electric light on in winter? A. I 
should think so.

Q. That is the sort of basis on which you assigned these rental 
figures? A. I do not think that I actually tied them up into first, 
second and third. I assigned the third class figures, yes. 30

Q. You have described what you thought were the manifestations 
of first, second and third class? A. That is right.

Q. Did you assign those features, or were you told those features 1 
A. No, I assigned those features.

Q. You have been with this company since 1941, have you? A. 
The 3rd May, 1941.

Q. You said that you had been with them for 16 and a half years, 
I thought, and that seems to me a little earlier? A. The 3rd May, 
1941. It is nearly 16 years.

Q. So you have been with the company during the whole time it 40 
has had any association with the Plaza Hotel? A. I have.
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Q. Prior to that, you had had some association with—you were In the 
employed in some capacity by—Mr. Gardiner ? A. No, never by Mr. court 
Gardiner; only by his executors. Sout:h

Q. For how long had you been employed by his executors ? A. 
Since the 3rd May, 1941, I was employed by them.

Defendant's
Q. Were you employed by Mr. Roberts! A. No, I was not Evidence, 

employed by him at all. NoTTe.
•pi Tl

Q. Did you have any association with the Plaza Hotel before you Randaii. 
were employed by the executors of Mr. Gardiner? A. No. -—Cross- 

10 Q. You came—so far as the Plaza Hotel is concerned—from right examination- 
outside in 1941 ? A. That is so.

Q. You never had anything to do with it before that time? A. I 
was not in Sydney before then.

Q. So you never had anything to do with it ? A. No.
Q. Have you seen in the possession of the defendant company 

plans of what we call the Joe Gardiner Hotel? A. No, I cannot 
recollect ever having seen them.

Q. Never seen them, yourself? A. Not that I can recollect, no.
Q. Have you seen in the possession of the defendant company 

20 the design of the Gardiner Hotel? A. Well, just what is the Gardiner 
Hotel ? Do you mean the 1954 plans ?

Q. The large hotel, the big facade? A. No, I have never seen 
any plans referring to that.

Q. Or a design of it? A. Do you mean a model?
Q. No, a design—a paper design ? A. I have seen something 

printed on a letterhead.
Q. I will come to that in a minute. So that we can understand 

what you are referring to, the defendant company had on its letterhead 
a representation of this hotel? (Objected to) A. No; it was not.

30 Q- Or this one (showing)—(Objected to) A. No, there was no 
such representation on my company's letterhead. My company's letter­ 
head has always been, since I have been with it, Avrom Investments Pty. 
Ltd. This was never on our letterhead.

Q. At no time Avrom Investments ever had on its letterhead a 
representation of a hotel, with a large elevation, with the caption 
underneath it "Plaza Hotel, in the course of construction" ? A. No, 
not Avrom Investments.

Q. You have seen a letterhead like that before, but not of the 
defendant's? (Objected to).

40 Q. Have you seen a letterhead like that'? A. I have seen a 
letterhead with that on.
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in the Q. You have seen these plans being used in Court. Have you 
CouTofmNew !°oked at them at all ? A. No, I have not looked at them.

""Liita * Q- D° y°u say y°u uave n°t seen plans of that kind in the posses- 
Equitabie sion of the defendant company (showing)? A, I can only say this: 

Jurisdiction. rpj^s Qne ^ g a genera} detail. I could not say whether I have seen this 
Defendant's before or not, because I have seen blueprints that have a lot of things 

V1 ence' on them like this, but whether it is this I could not say. This one 
NO. 16. (indicating) I can positively say I have never seen before, because it 
Randaii. nas a shape on it almost like a pentagon, 
c^. Q. What was the number of the first sheet at which you looked? 10

examination. A. C660/9.

Q. And the sheet you secondly spoke of? A. I do not think 
it has a number on it at all. I am sorry, Yes, it has, No. C660/10.

Q. Now, just turn them over and tell me whether you have seen 
any like any of them. Never mind the ones you have not seen ? A. 
(Witness peruses plans).

Q. You have never seen any of those before, except the first sheet ? 
A. I have never seen those at all before. I can say that positively.
Mr WALLACE: Are they marked at all?
SIE GARFIELD: It is part of m.f.1.20. 20

Q. Now, will you take those, m.f.i.4. I do not mean necessarily 
that you would have seen a blue one, you may have seen a transparent 
one or something 1? A. No, I have never seen those before to the 
best of my knowledge.

Q. Yon are used to looking at plans, aren't you? A. Yes.
Q. And you can understand them as well as laymen do? A. As 

well as lay people do, yes.
(New bundle of plans m.f.i.30).

Q. Have you seen a copy of this bundle of plans ? A. No, I have 
never seen them before. 30

Q. Never seen that bundle in your life ? A. No.
Q. Do you remember on an occasion writing to the Commissioner, 

yourself, for the company and asking that he send you certain plans or 
copies of them? A. No, I have no recollection of that.

Q. Would you deny that you wrote and asked for a copy of the 
plans and the details, inter alia, of the sub-structure of Wynyard, of 
which m.f.i.20 is part? A. I could not deny it, in the sense that I 
cannot remember everything that has happened in the last 16 years. 
I am sure I have not recently.

Q. I did not ask you about recently. You are sure you have not 4Q 
seen in the possession of the company any of the plans to which I drew
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your attention in the marked for identification documents? A. No, I in the 
have not seen those plans ; I am sure.
SIR GAEFIELD: That is as far as I can go at the moment. I have

_ ^ v *osent away tor something, and I may need the witness to come back. Equitable" Jurisdiction.

Defendant's 
No. 1 7 Evidence.

Further Evidence of H. A. Llewellyn No- 16 -
E. D.

Mr. WALLACE : Q. You are on your former oath. At p. 360* of the 
transcript Sir Garfield is reported as saying "I have here some of the 
plans my friend asked me to produce, and so that my friend can under- examination. 

10 stand the position I do produce the structural drawing of the Joe No 17 
Gardiner plan, right to the roof. ' ' You have those in your possession, H- A- 
and you have looked at them? A. I have looked at them. I have not ewe yn' 
them here. I think Mr. Wailes has them. Examination.

Q. I hand you m.f.i. "30". Have you endeavoured to reconcile the 
sheets in m.f.i. "30" with the Kerr plans ? A. Yes.

Q. With the columns shown on various exhibits, L2 and H ? A. 
That is so.

Q. First of all what do you say about m.f.i. "30" in regard to the 
columns shown? A. Well, there are two separate layouts of columns 

20 here, two different schemes. There is only one sheet of one scheme 
and a number of sheets of the other scheme. The scheme of which 
there are a number of sheets are all upper bedroom floors and have 
different columns — a different number of columns, and different column 
numbers — from the column numbers on all the other exhibits I have 
seen relating to the Plaza Hotel.

Q. More columns or less? A. More columns.
Q. And the columns are differently numbered! A. That is so.
Q. Do you offer any comment about a lightwell shown on one or 

more of the sheets of m.f.i. "30"? A. Yes. The sheet marked
30 "layout of lower bedroom floor" indicates a lightwell in the centre, 

approximately on the centre line of the building. Now the Kerr plan 
of the upper bedrooms — the proposed upper bedrooms — shows two 
lightwells not centrally placed on the building. There is a plan marked 
by Mr. Stanley as being the plan on which the column loadings were 
taken out, which shows those two lightwells as distinct from the central 
lightwell.

Q. In your opinion, what do the sheets in m.f.i. "30" represent? 
A. I think they represent a preliminary scheme for upper bedrooms, 
which was not proceeded with. The outside roll of the drawings was

40 marked "preliminary engineering drawings from ballroom, up", and 
I think that is just what they are. Somebody has got them together, 
those preliminary schemes which were being discussed at the time the

*38632 _ 10 * ^"°t included herein.
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in the main project was being developed, and the outline profile of the bed- 
rooms is not the same as on what we believe to be the final Kerr

South Wales bedroom plan.
in its

Equitable Q. Also over the weekend have you gone through a number of plans
Jurisdiction. -. . . n . ,, c. a A mi A • • i 4.__ which are in the possession of your firm? A. That is right. 

Evidence. Q. Belating to the Plaza? A. Yes.
NO. 17. Q. Do not answer this for the moment, because it may be inadmis- 

sible, subject to my friend's attitude. Did you find plans relating to
lightwells through the ballroom? (objected to).

Examination.
Q. Have you got the plans? A. Yes. 10
Q. What have you got in front of you. Without giving any details, 

just identify it? A. It is a structural drawing of the Hotel Plaza 
taken from our files.

Q. Is there any date on it? (objected to) A. Yes, it is dated 
April 1939.

Q. Is this P4/2 the plan from which you gave me a statement this 
morning — all these plans (indicating) ? A. Yes. There are only 
two.
Mr WALLACE : I would ask my friend to produce to the Court plans 
numbered P4/2 and P4/1, dated April, 1939, and 8th August, 1938, 20 
respectively, drawn by Malcolm S. Stanley.
SIE GAEFIELD : I shall have to look for them.
Mr WALLACE : I also call for drawing No. C638-71A, which is dated 
15th August, 1933. It has future column loads on it and is entitled 
"Hotel Plaza, Sydney, present roof level." I also call for drawing 
PX.3, entitled "Hotel Plaza, Sydney, 3rd floor level", and drawing 
No. PX.2, entitled "Hotel Plaza, Sydney, 2nd floor level", those three 
showing future column loads. I also call for "Foundation Plan" which 
is undated, and drawing No. PX.4, "Future Column Load, undated, 4th 
floor level." 30

Q. Over the weekend have you made calculations that Sir Garfield 
asked you to do in relation to how the live load reduction factor was 
used by you? A. Yes, on columns 53 and 55.

Q. Have you also gone further into your statement that those weak 
columns can go at least one floor more 1 A. Yes.

Q. And secondly that they can go two or three more floors above 
the 4th floor as designed? A. Yes.

Q. Taking the first matter first, the calculations Sir Garfield asked 
you to do, the check on columns 55 and 53 to see if the live load reduc­ 
tions would allow for more, what did you do ? A. Measured the areas 40 
at each floor level — Hunter St., George St., 1st floor, 2nd floor, 3rd floor,
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future 4th floor—those areas to which the live load reduction would be in the 
applicable, found a total area. All the areas per floor are noted, and foarTo/ 
there is a total area of 3717 sq. ft.—— Sout.h ^-1 in its

Q. Where did you get the respective areas per floor from? A. Equitable 
Off the relevant plans of the building.

Q. That is 3717 sq. ft.? A. That is right. The allowable live 
load reduction, applying the formula in the appropriate code, is 60-lbs. —— 
per sq. ft., and that gives a total live load reduction of 223,020. A ^.'A!' 
possible future floor load would be 152,000, which indicates it could Llewellyn. 

10 easily carry another floor. The live load to be taken from the column Examination, 
is more than the dead and live load which another floor would put on 
the column.

Q. Does that apply both to 55 and 53? A. Yes.
Q. Did you make a further check in regard to how many floors 

could be put on? A. Yes. The existing column calculations show an 
allowance for future floors. Now that allowance is much in excess of 
what would be necessary for one future floor. The calculations show 
the loadings up to and including the third floor. The future floor 
envisaged, as indicated by the drawings, was the 4th floor only, a ball- 

20 room floor. The allowance on the calculation is much in excess of what 
the present loading of a ballroom floor would put on the columns. 
Taking that factor, it would allow for an additional two floors. There 
was sufficient in the future loading allowed to allow for a future two 
floors, either of office and partition loading or of public spaces, so that 
combining that with this live load reduction, it is definitely possible, 
without checking the column itself, to carry three additional floors.

Q. Have you set down in writing your computations and the steps 
by which you have come to that conclusion? A. Yes.

Q. Are they in front of you ? A. I have the original of it here, 
30 and I think it would be clear enough, (produced).

(Sheet showing result of calculations relating to columns 53 and 
55 tendered and marked Exhibit "18".)

SIR GARFIELD: No questions. I have sufficiently put our point of 
view to the witness so that my friend cannot claim later that he is 
surprised.

No- 18
T? o

Evidence of R. S. Connolly ConnoUy.
Mr WALLACE: Q. You are the Secretary of the defendant Company? Examination. 
A. I am. 

40 Q. And have been for some period? A. Since 1934.
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in an. Q. We had before us last week the balance sheets from 1946 to 
f"jVeu>-^6. -"- think over the weekend you have been to Melbourne and have 

South Wales brought back the balance sheets for 1943, 1944 and 1945, have you?
£** A. I have.

jurisdiction. Q Now, you have all the balance sheets with you? A. Yes. 
Defendant's Q. I think the position is it was not until 1946 that the Plaza
Evidence. Enterprise was kept in a separate balance sheet? A. That is true.
y°- 18 - Q. Have you had a summary made out now which incorporates all

Connoiiy. the nett profits by years from 1943 to 1956, both inclusive? A. Yes, 
_ ~- I have. in
Exanunation. lv/

Q. Just take the earlier balance sheets that have been incorporated 
into this document you have handed me. If you take the first one, for 
instance, the year 1943, it shows there the profit from Eestaurant, 
Accommodation, Tobacco and Liquor—those four in that year were 
included in one figure? A. Yes.

Q. And then from the shops the profit is shown separately. Is 
that so? A. That is so.

Q. And then you give the nett figure f A. Yes.
Q. Those figures appear from the balance sheet of Avrom Invest­ 

ments Pty. Ltd., which you have in front of you? A. That is so. 20
Q. Then, the 1944 year is the first year that the Liquor, Eestaur­ 

ant, Accommodation and Tobacco are separately shown? A. Yes.
Q. From then onwards they are always shown separately? 

A. That is so.
Q. The final column headed "Nett result" represents the nett 

profits which Avrom Investments have made from the Plaza business, 
doesn't it? A. Yes, the "Wynyard site.

Q. From 1943 to 1956 inclusive? A. Yes.
(Summary of nett profits of the defendant Company in respect 

of the Wynyard site, 1943-1956 inclusive, tendered, admitted 39 
subject to relevance and checking, marked Exhibit "19").

Q. Over the weekend also—you were in Melbourne? A. Yes.
Q. Did you have extracted under your supervision details of how 

the £191,000 odd sum of money is made up, which appears, I think, on 
the last sheet of the documents tendered by Mr Harrowell, being 
schedule "E" of Exhibit "17"; that figure of £191,030, representing 
monies spent on the leasehold properties and improvements? A. Yes.

Q. Do these documents which I now show you represent the details 
to which I have alluded? A. Yes.

Q. There are a number of sheets in this document that I am ^ 
showing you? A. Yes.

Q. On the front sheet there is a summary showing two items, 
one . . . (objected to; documents referred to Sir Garfield).
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CROSS-EXAMINED
Supreme

SIR G-AEFIBLD: Q. You have been Secretary of the company, yon ^A,*1
-t MA® A rm .L • • i -L ' " South, Walessay, since 1934? A. That is right. into

Q. The Company first of all had dealings with Mr. Gardiner jurisdiction. 
during the period, say, from 1934 up to 1941? A. I think there was „ ,—— ,f i •/ i i. Defendant sone, irom memory. Evidence.

Q. One dealing? A. Yes. NoTTs.
Q. Was there a Mr Abrahams who held a controlling interest in connoiiy.

your company? (objected to) A. No, he did not. ——
10 Q. Was there a Mr Abrahams who had an interest in it? (objected examination, 

to; allowed).
Q. Was there a Mr Abrahams connected with your company. 

A. Yes.
Q. Were Blake & Eing the solicitors for your company in 1934? 

(Objected to; allowed) A. I could not answer that.
Q. Were Blake & Ring the solicitors for your company at any 

time? A. They are now, yes.
Q. Say in 1939? A. Yes, I think they would have been then.
Q. And would Mr Birch be the officer or the solicitor in Blake & 

20 Ring handling your company's affairs in 1939? A. Probably so.
Q. Did you receive a subpoena to produce the document of pur­ 

chase of this lease from the Gardiner Estate? A. I have not had it.
(Sir Garfield stated that there was a subpoena out for the pro­ 

duction of the document. Mr. Wallace stated that he had the 
document and if it was not in Court it would be in his 
Chambers.)

Q. Would you recognise that as a copy of the company's balance 
&heet as at the 30th June, 1941? A. I would have to compare it.

Q. Just look at it for the moment? (objected to; allowed). 
30 A. Yes. Subject to checking that appears to be a copy of it.

Q. You see there is an entry there against a name? A. Yes. 
Q. And a sum? A. Yes.
Q. Was that in connection with the Wynyard matter at all? 

A. No.
Q. It was not? A. No.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. You are familiar, are you, with these two 
accounts. Apparently they are out of the private ledger, are they 
(showing)? A. They are.

Q. Are you yourself familiar with them? A. I am.
40 Q. In the Leasehold Account there is a reference to "Parl.Marron 

cont."? A. John Marron contract.
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in the Q. It has "Parl.J. Marron cont." What was that work? A. 
That was the work on the northern bars.

Woks Q That wag work on the barg) wag it| A Barg and
Equitable yes.

' Q. The rest of the items in that leasehold account explain them- 
se^ves > I think. In your leasehold improvement account, apparently 
the greater part of it refers to fees paid to professional men? A. 
That is true.

ConnoUy. Q ^re you able to identify which of the fees were payable in
Cross- respect of work actually carried out, and what fees were paid in respect 10

examination. Of wor]j which was not carried out? A. I think so.
Q. Just look at the account for the moment and see if you can 

distinguish those two classes of payments (showing)? A. No, I 
cannot from this statement.

Q. Have you some material with you by which you could do that? 
A. I could find it out for you.

Q. So that we could identify what fees were paid in respect of 
work actually performed and what fees were paid in respect of work 
unperformed? A. Yes.

Q. Billon's, of course, are the tile people? A. Yes. 20
Q. And Australian Tesselated Tiles; they are in respect of work 

actually done? A. Yes.
SIR GARFIELD: Perhaps Mr. Connolly can ascertain that informa­ 
tion and let us know. If he sends a message through my friend, 
perhaps that may satisfy me, but I have no objection to the document 
being used.

PLAINTIFFS EVIDENCE
No. 19. No. 19

T. M. Soott.
Evidence of T. M. Scott

SIR GARFIELD: Q. You are a registered and practising architect and _n 
have been practising since 1923? A. Yes. •*"

Q. You are a member of the firm of E. A. & T. M. Scott, you are a 
fellow of the Royal Australian Institute of Architects; and Consulting- 
Architect and Supervising Architect in Australia for the United 
Kingdom Government and the Ministry of Works since 1951? A. 
Yes.

Q. You have been Senior Vice-President of the Institute, and 
Acting President of it? A. Yes.

Q. You have been a member of the Advisory Building Committee 
in Local Government for the drawing up of Building Regulations in 
1948? A. Yes. 40
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Q. A member of the Committee called by the Local Government in the 
Department to redraft the building regulations covering licensed hotels, cimt 
in 1948 and 1949? A. Yes. South Wales

Q. You were called upon by the Under Secretary of Local Govern- Equitable 
ment to make an advisory report on the size of land for hotels and Jurisdiction- 
car parking in 1955? A. Yes. Plaintiff's

Q. Your architectural practice has consisted of the planning and ŷ _ce' 
supervision of multi-storey buildings, city office buildings? A. Yes. „,?,?• <J 9> ..

-L. JM.. foCOtt.

Q. Banks, Insurance Companies and Newspaper buildings? A. ——
is* -y" Examination.

Q. Multi-storey flat buildings? A. Yes.
Q. Industrial, Brewery and factory buildings ? A. Yes.
Q. School buildings and hotel buildings? A. Yes.
Q. I think you have planned and supervised 10 new hotels that 

have been built and three that are being built now? A. Yes.
Q. And you have planned and supervised the large renovations and 

reconstructions of some eleven hotels ? A. Yes.
Q. You are retained by Toohey's Ltd. for all main architectural 

work and have been over the past 20 years? A. The last ten to 
20 fifteen, I think.

Q. You have seen the 1954 plans that we speak of here, (Exhibit 
H), for certain work to be done at Wynyard in 1954? A. Yes.

Q. These we know here as Exhibit H (showing) ? A. May I 
refer to my notes ?

Q. Yes, when the time comes, His Honor will let you. Do you 
recognise these as the 1954 plans. A. Yes.

Q. Have you also seen the 1956 plans (Exhibit L2 shown)? A. 
Yes.

Q. You are familiar with Exhibit L2, the 1956 plans ? A. Yes.
30 Q- Have you been in conferences, since you were retained in this 

matter, with a structural engineer retained by the plaintiff f A. Yes.
Q. Was that Mr McMillan? A. Yes.
Q. Have you had any conferences with Mr Britten at all? A. 

Yes.
Q. You have had conferences with Mr Britten? A. I have had 

one.
Q. Is that recent? A. Recently; after Mr McMillan became ill.
Q. Are you familiar with this site? A. Yes.
Q. You know the site at Wynyard? A. Yes.

40 Q. Have you been at all levels and looked at what is there? A. 
Not right down to the very bottom level.
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In (he.
Supreme

Court of New
South Wales

in its
Equitable

Jurisdiction.

Plaintiff's 
Evidence.

No. 19. 
T. M. Scott.

Examination.

Q. How far down? A. I have been down about two floors below 
George Street.

Q. You have in mind the dimensions of the site of the demised area 
the subject of this lease? A. Yes. I could not tell you the exact 
area straight off.

Q. But you have at some stage seen the area, and you know the 
area physically, by observation? A. Yes.

Q. In your visits, you have seen what sub-structural foundations 
bavc already been placed there! A. Yes.

Q. From the point of view of owner of this site, in considering its 10 
development—its economic development—have you given consideration 
to the development of which this site is capable? A. Yes, I have.

Q. Architecturally, that is? A. Yes.
Q. In connection with any possible developments that you wish to 

speak of here, have you conferred with the Engineers to ascertain 
whether those developments are structurally possible? A. Yes, I 
have.

Q. You have received certain advices, with which we can deal with 
separately? A. Yes.

Q. Could you tell us what in your opinion are the possible develop- 20 
ments of this site? (Objected to; pressed; allowed).

Q. To what development is the site in your opinion susceptible, even 
assuming that the 1954 plan, Exhibit H, was constructed; that you 
started with the 1954 idea ? A. It has tremendous possibilities. I do 
not know whether another site——
Mr WALLACE: I do urge that Your Honor must take into considera­ 
tion when dealing with reasonableness, the terms of the covenant which, 
for relevant purposes, contains a covenant to build a building not less 
than £150,000, and my submission is that the plaintiff could not compel 
us to build a building which cost £151,000. Now the witness is appar- 30 
ently embarking, at Sir G-arfield's invitation, upon something which I 
would respectfully submit must be a grossly irrelevant consideration, 
as to what was the best thing to be done on the site if there were untold 
money with which to do it.
HIS HONOR: You are proffering to them to spend £400,000, which 
would take it up to a certain stage only. You had to get their consent 
to that on any basis, as I see it, because assuming it is not the original 
building—which it obviously is not—and assuming there is no binding 
agreement between the parties, and assuming it is just a building which, 
in order to save the license, you wish to have built, you still have to get 40 
their consent under the other clause.

(After further discussion, His Honor allowed the question).
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SIB GARFIELD: Q. You were saying it is a site with great possibili- in the 
ties. Are there other possible developments for buildings which will
not be exclusively for hotel buildings"? A. That is so. South Walea

J ° in its
Q. Have you given thought to the question of what buildings could Equitable 

be developed on the site consistently with the 1954, Exhibit H, plans ! Jurisdiction-
A. Yes. Plaintiff's

Evidence.
Q. Before you describe them, have you reduced those to some —— 

diagrammatic or isometric form ? A. That is so. I have them here. T M° Sc°ott.
Q. In addition, have you reduced into isometric form the proposal Examination 

10 of which you have heard, that the Carrington Street frontage should be 
occupied by a building according to the L'2 plans, but carried up to the 
limit and stepped back at a certain point, and then a block of buildings 
on George Street? A. Yes, I have studied those and based the "H" 
against the "L2" regarding maximum development.

Q. You can describe from the sheet perhaps what these develop­ 
ments are. You have in front of you a series of isometric drawings 
that number from " A " to " F " 1 A. Yes.

Q. I want to take you first of all to "F" on this sheet. It is the 
1956 scheme showing the setbacks in the Carrington Street block as 

20 proposed in the maximum development. It shows what this Carrington 
St. proposal would look like if you were looking into it towards the 
west? A. Yes, looking into it from George St., over the top — an 
isometric drawing.

Q. This shows that setback at about the 8th floor? A. That 
is so.

Q. It leaves a hollow sort of building there ? A. Yes, that is so.
Q. I want you to turn to your "A". What does "A" represent 

as a possible development on the area? A. "A" represents an 
isometric drawing looking from Geoi'ge St., showing one of the pos- 

30 sible maximum developments of the site. In that building, I have 
suggested to Carrington St. an hotel building, and coming right through 
to George St. on the upper floor in the centre block. It is making 
maximum use of that centre block on the whole site, and on the lower 
floors I go out to the maximum width possible, and use those lower 
floors for a departmental store, also with the whole of the George 
St. block. I marry into it this hotel with the upper floors, in the centre 
block of the Carrington St. block.
HIS HONOB: Q. So, really, it boils down to this: In Carrington St. 
you have an hotel, with a wedded portion on the top part of the middle, 

40 and then the bottom of the middle, and the George St. departmental 
store. Is that it? A. Yes, and also the first floor from Carrington 
St. running partway through, towards the George St. block. Portion 
would be retail, and portion of it would be reception rooms of the 
hotel. That is in the 94 ft. approximately width block.

•38632—10 A
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In the SIR GARFIELD : Q. The hotel and the rest isolated, of course, from
Supreme ^ ofhpr? ACourt of New eaca oiner i n

Q- Have you made any computation as to the bedroom space in 
Equitable the hotel ? A. Yes, there would be over 300 bedrooms.

Jurisdiction.
Q. I think Mr Britten has computed precise areas! A. Are 
referring to the areas!
Q- No, I was not at the moment, but you said over 300 bed-

T. M. Scott, rooms
Examination. Mr WALLACE: Q. What is meant by "departmental store"? A.

That would be a store similar to Grace Bros, or Nock & Kirbys. You 10 
could also have other sub-lettings. You could have escalators running 
up from George St., up to the first floor, the second and third floor, 
or lifts. People would be able to shop there without ever coming 
outside the railway station, this being the hub or a centre for a great 
travelling public, going to the railway or leaving by railway. I know 
of no other site which offers such advantages that are available.
SIR GABFIELD : Q. You have discussed with the structural engineer 
certain questions and I shall leave it to him to speak about them. 
Would you turn to "B" and describe what "B" represents? A. 
"B" is another way of making maximum use of the site, to a lesser 20 
degree. It proposes an hotel to the whole of Carrington St., taking 
it up to its maximum height. It also has the upper floors of the George 
St. block, taking the maximum height, any number of floors used for 
bedrooms. The lower floor is used for a retail or departmental store, 
or shops. The centre block is taken through as hotel bedrooms. The 
lower portion of the centre block is expanded out, and that would be 
used for a reception room on the first and second floor, according to 
the number of bedrooms you build and the main hotel Carrington 
St.

Q. That is the little bit we see that is wider at the bottom? A. 30 
Yes.

Q. Would "A" give a greater floor letting area than "F"? A. 
Well, having examined the maximum 1956 L2 plan, the diagram I have 
seen of maximum development there, I have not bothered to compare 
it. If you look at "A", you can see by comparison that my scheme 
"A" covers a far greater floor area than scheme "F".

Q. Could you turn now to " C ". The third one is ' ' C " and " D ", 
and that covers two alternative methods of development. Would you 
describe each in turn? A. "C" is an hotel block to Carrington St., 
taking up to the maximum possible development, and it is connected 40 
by two blocks to George St., with a 22 ft. wide light area in between, 
and George St. is also brought up to its maximum. The upper floors 
of that, because of the regulations, could be used for offices. Certain 
lower floors could still be used there. It is the same as "A".
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Q. You see, in "C" you have a light area? A. Yes. inthe
Supreme

Q. You say it is 22 ft. wide ? A. Yes. court of New
South Wales

Q. In plan "C", does it go the whole way up 1? A. It goes the in its 
whole way up.

Q. In that event, to what use would you put the rooms ? A. You plaintiff, g 
could still use the lower floors in connection with the front. If you Evidence. 
have that for a departmental store and that type of thing, you could N^TTg. 
still run back a certain distance in the centre block, and the upper floors T. M. Scott. 
could be used for offices ; and similarly, to the top of George St. E

10 Q. "D" differs from "C" in that with "D" you would step the 
light area? A. I think it is 67 ft. down — on my notes — from the top, 
and we would expand out the bottom portion, giving us approximately 
90 ft. width in the central area. That could be used for a departmental 
store, offices.

Q. Then, with the top part, could that be used for bedrooms if you 
stepped the light area down 67 ft. ? A. It could be used for bedrooms.

Q. Or for offices? A. Subject to agreeing with the City 
Council Eegulations.

Q. What does "E" represent? A. "E" covers a far greater 
20 area than "A", because the block is taken 90 ft. wide in the centre. 

You go the maximum height in Carrington St. for hotel purposes. 
You go the maximum height in George St. for an office block, and the 
upper floors, if necessary, for an office block, the lower blocks of George 
St. for a large departmental store, and the whole of the centre is 
brought out the full width of about 90 ft. There is a point there I have 
not been able to check yet or to obtain from the engineers, the floor 
loading taking that centre block up to the maximum height, because 
they would be on 100-lbs. approximately as against the lower loadings 
for hotels, and on different ones for offices.

30 Q- What do the broken lines indicate ? A. That could go to the 
maximum.

Q. That represents a doubt as to the carrying capacity of the 
columns? A. Yes. That I would have to leave to two or three floors 
as I have not got the exact information on them.

Q. As far as you are concerned are any of those uses, "A", "B", 
"C", "D" and "E" inappropriate to this site or are they appropriate 
to it? A. All "A", "B", "C", "D" and "E", if it would carry it, 
all could be carried on top of the existing substructure "H". I am 
told by my structural engineer . . .

40 Q. You have looked at the 1956 plan and the 1954 plan and made 
some comparisons of them and some criticisms of them? A. Yes.

Q. You might take them one at a time. Take the 1956 plan (L2). 
.Do you recall that? A. Yes. I have some notes about it.
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in the Q. His Honor will let you refer to the notes. What criticism have 
-"ou to make of the 1956 plan bearing in mind your appreciation of the 

South Wales site and its possible development! A. Well, I am told by my 
Equitable engineers that it precludes the use of the centre site.

— ' Q. We can leave that to the engineers! A. I will not speak on 
that. One of the difficulties as I see it with the L2 plan is that when 
the maximum development comes of that site, the L2 plan, by going 
straight up to Carrington St.—because it appears to be that is where 
the hotel is to be built—there are not sufficient, in the full development 

Examination, there, reception rooms. I feel that when they go the limit with that 10 
block to Carrington St., your dining rooms and all your reception 
rooms, banqueting and restaurant and hotel bars and kitchens and 
that sort of thing must be on the first floor. For the present scheme 
there is only a coffee room. It is not, in my opinion, suitable, in my 
experience of hotel architecture, for a dining room; and the other point 
is that what is termed as the dining room is way down in the basement 
in George St., and to get to it you have to pass at one point across the 
Concourse, past all the incoming traffic.

Q. Suppose you were to go to the full limit, are there any other 
floors as planned in L2 on which you could put public rooms, dining- 20 
rooms, kitchens 1 A. You could move them up on to the 1st floor by 
scrubbing the bedrooms there.

Q. Have you anything to say as to the ceiling height on that? 
A. Yes, the ceiling height is about 9' 5" on the first floor, and when you 
are going to cater for a great number of people in the bedrooms, and 
with expansion in the future, that is far too low. If you have to seat 
200 or 300 people in a dining room, you must have at least 10' 6" to
11 ft. clear ceiling height. I also notice that some of the beams on the 
plans that I had were shown in a section coming down to within about 
7' 6" odd from the floor. They are far too low for that type of reception 3Q 
room and dining room. You would not find it in a 1st class hotel.

Q. You would not find a 9' 5" ceiling or these beams? A. No, 
not in a modern hotel.

Q. You made a remark about the coffee lounge. Do you think that 
is adequate as a dining room at the present moment, as designed? 
A. No. I think it is too small. We generally always work to about
12 sq. ft. per person for a good class of hotel. With 1st class we go 
to a higher height than that.

Q. A greater space per person! A. Yes; the coffee rooms— 
you can come down from those figures. 40

Q. What would you get a coffee room down to in a good class 
hotel, not a 1st class hotel? A. Coffee rooms—down to seating 
8 ft. square.



301

Q. 8 sq. ft. per person? A. 8 sq. ft. per person. in the
Supreme

Q. Did you look at the kitchen. We are told that this kitchen 
would be adequate to supply meals of the Cahill variety or the Eepin 
variety, with 100 persons in that coffee lounge. What do you say as 
to that? A. Well, I think, if it is the sort of coffee room type meals 
you would just about get away with it, but for a proper dining room, 
no. —

(Isometric diagrams prepared by Mr Scott tendered and marked T M Scott.
Exhibit "IT")- „Examination .

10 Mr WALLACE : I have already taken my objection on this type of 
evidence.

HIS HONOR: Yes. It can be noted that Mr. Wallace objects to the 
whole of this type of evidence.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. I want you to look at Sheet 2. of L2, which pro­ 
vides amongst other things the lounge in this projected 1956 hotel. 
I want to call your attention to some pencilled rectangles in the lounge, 
which have been placed there as representing in dimension four 
columns. By "dimension" I mean an untreated dimension. Have you 
anything to say as to the acceptability in an hotel entrance of that sort 

20 of structure? A. Well, in the lounge they are not shown — I do not 
think they were shown in the plan, these columns — but they are going to 
be very awkward in that position. They are rather jammed up against 
what is shown as a service counter. I think it is of some description 
there. You only have about 6 ft. on one side to pass through.

Q. How much further back against that green one would the pen­ 
cilled one be ? A. It is only 2 ft. from the wall of the coffee lounge.

Q. Would you regard those as satisfactory, the presence of those? 
A. I should like to see the large ones out of the way. I do not think it 
is possible to permit it. Something might be done by getting rid of this 

30 service counter, to help it.
Q. At any rate, as planned do you find them acceptable or satisfac­ 

tory! A. What makes it difficult is that staircase butting right into 
that lounge.

Q. Making the distance over the columns narrow? A. Very 
narrow.

Q. Do not answer this question for the moment. Assume you were 
asked as a consulting architect to the Railway Commissioner, with your 
knowledge of the site and your views as to its possible use, and the 
information you have from the structural engineers, assuming you were 

40 asked whether he should accept such a building on the site, what would 
you advise him? (objected to; rejected).
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in the CBOSS-EXAMINED
Mr WALLACE: Q. Did you consider the 3954 layout of bedrooms?

South Waks 
in its

Q. When were you first retained by the Railway Commissioner to 
have anything whatever to do with the Plaza Hotel site ? A. About 
the end of October. 

No M Q. October, 1956? A. Yes.
Q. When did you first see the 1954 plans, Exhibit "H"? A. 

About at the same time as I had my first appointment with them. If it
examination. was not that day it would be the following day. No, I think it was within 10 

2 days of that. That is the 1954 plan f
SIRGARFIELD:Yes.
Mr WALLACE: Q. Were you conversant with the fact that the imme­ 
diate problem of the site was the erection of bedrooms to satisfy the 
Licensing Court? A. I understood at the time that there had been 
difficulty with the Licensing Court.

Q. Let me put the question again. When you came into the picture 
in October, 1956, were you then or at some time a little later aware of 
the fact that bedrooms had to be built somewhere on the site area in 
order to satisfy the requirements of the Licensing Court? A. Oh, I 20 
would take that—I understood that.

Q. So apart from developmental possibilities, you knew that the 
immediate future was very much in question? A. I do not follow 
that.

Q. You knew that bedrooms had to be built within a fairly short 
time in order to satisfy the Licensing Court? A. That is my experi­ 
ence on all hotel matters.

Q. The isometric diagrams in Exhibit "U" represent your ideas 
of how the whole site could ultimately be developed? A. Yes, 
developed over the existing substructure. iQ

Q. Put that to one side if you would just for the moment. It repre­ 
sents your views of how the whole site could be developed?——

HIS HONOR: You cannot put the basis on which it was done out of 
account. I think you had best clarify it.
Mr WALLACE: Q. Have you considered how you would develop the 
site if it was vacant land and you were untroubled by either "H" or 
"L2"? A. There was no substructure?

Q. Yes? A. There is no substructure existing?
Q. What do you mean by "substructure"? A. The existing sub­ 

structure, carrying the present building that is there. 40
Q. But what do you mean by " substructure "? A. The concrete 

columns, the beams and the steelwork that is existing on the site.
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Q. As it is today. Is that what you mean? A. As it is today. imu 
Q. Look at your diagram "B" in Exhibit "U"? A. Yes. Court of New
Q. Supposing the work envisaged by Exhibit "H" had all been ^iniu * 

completed, do you say that diagram "B" in Exhibit "U" could be E^^u
\ , , ' . •'_ * -5 K i- Jurisdiction.

erected / A. Uver the main frame ot sucti substructure, ot such —— 
structure that is there—— Plaintiff's

Evidence.
Q. Do you mean by " substructure " in that context the pillars that ~9 

exist, what we call the columns ? A. The columns and the beams. T. M.'scott.
Q. I want you to imagine that the exhibit "H" building has been c^wa- 

10 fully erected according to the designs and plans of Exhibit "H"? examination. 
A. Yes.

Q. Do you say that the diagram "B" on Exhibit "U" could be 
erected over such a building? A. Yes.

Q. The two wings, with the lightwell separating them, 22 ft. in 
width in exhibit "H", have disappeared in plan "B", haven't they? 
A. Yes.

Q. What is the width of the centre wing in plan "B" where it 
is nearest the George St. building, where it is narrowest or appears to 
be narrowest? A. Across the main centre, about 80 ft. long. Is 

20 that it?
Q. What is the width in plan "B" of the connecting building 

measured north and south, where it appears to be narrow; namely 
close to the George St. building or close to the Carrington St. building? 
A. At the top floor?

Q. Yes? A. May I refer to something?
Q. Yes? A. Somewhere about 28 ft. or 29 ft. approximately.
Q. That would be the same width as at the bottom of that wing, 

wouldn't it? A. At the bottom of that wing, but there is another 
floor below it, going right through.

30 Q. Another floor below it, going right through? A. Yes.
Q. And that other floor below ... A. That would be about 

90 ft. high.
Q. Is that other floor below as high as Exhibit "H" in that spot? 

A. It would be higher probably; within a couple of feet higher.

FURTHER EXAMINED
SIR GAEFIELD -. Q. Is there in your profession a recognised division 
of space in hotels into first, second and third-class spaces ? A. With 
my experience in hotels I have never met it. Of the hotels I know, 
there is a first-class hotel—the Hotel Canberra—and we have done a 

40 lot to that by way of reconstruction. There is the Canobolas at Orange. 
That was another one that was built. It is looked upon as another 
high-class hotel.
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inthe Q. But within it, has it grades of accommodation? A. No. The
Court"ofmNew on^ grade you get in those first-class hotels would be whether you have
South Wales a bathroom or whether you have a shower and toilet. I have never

Equitable experienced it, and I do not know. There are others of which I know.
Jurisdiction. In Wollongoiig there is The Grand Hotel. That has been reconstructed

Plaintiff's an(l ^ is of a very modern, high standard. The only difference there is
Evidence, if you get into the old wing which has no bathrooms, but if you get

No 19 into the new wing . . .
T. M. Scott. Q ^ye un(jerstand the difference between a bath and no bath, but

Cross- the suggestion is there is a well known division in your profession of 10 
examination. gpace j^o flrst ) second and third-class according to the location in 

the building in relation to, say, the eastern, northern or southern 
aspects and the like ? A. Do you mean from a paying point of view?

Q. No, from an architectural point of view, an expression known 
in your profession which refers to this first, second and third-class 
space according to location! A. I would not know that. You get 
rooms loud and noisy on the street front, or you may get a room next 
to a boiler stack which becomes hot, and you may get a room next 
to lavatories, which people try and dodge because of the noise at night 
owing to people using them. So far as charging for them is concerned, 20 
my experience, from the number of hotels I have handled, a number 
of which are first-class, is there is no difference in the charge.

CROSS-EXAMINED
Mr WALLACE: Q. What is the latest hotel you designed? A. 
Which, reconstructed, or entirely?

Q. What is the latest hotel you designed? A. The last one big- 
reconstruction was The Grand at Wollongong.

Q. What was the last new hotel building you designed! A. Oh, 
there would be three or four finishing at about the same time—or two 
or three of them, around about the same period. There would be the 30 
Toongabbie, the Kotara, Jesmond . . .

Q. What were those last two? A. Kotara.
Q. Where is that? A. Near Newcastle—at Newcastle, really, in 

the suburbs; and there is Toongabbie.
Q. They would be two-storeyed suburban hotels ? A. Yes.
Q. Did you do any designing at all for hotels during 1939 and 

1950? A. Well, it was near the war period, wasn't it? 
Q. 1939 to 1950? A. No.
Q. In fact, there were no hotels, were there? A. There were 

building permits on. 40
Q. There were no hotels built at any time between 1939 and 1950, 

were there ? A. No.
Q. None was allowed to be built? A. Building permits were on.
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Q. None was allowed to be built? A. No. in the
Supreme

Q. If you were designing a hotel that Sir Garfield asked you to Court of New, " lf, . , , °, . . i -i T j? j.i " • i South Walesplace yourself in yesterday, advising a building owner from the point ,-„ itg
of view of considering its economic development and so on, would you Equitable
think that bedrooms facing each other across an interior lightwell 22 __
feet across would be the sort of accommodation that you, as an architect, Plaintiff's
if you could avoid it, would advise an owner to construct ? A. Would v|_^ce-
this be a city hotel or one like the Hotel Canberra? ?»°'o19 '1. JVL. Scott.

Q. A city hotel? A. It all depends on the size of the land and ^^ 
10 the economic development of the building. examination.

Q. Take the question divorced from economics. If you wore advis­ 
ing such an owner, as an architect, and if you thought by a different 
design which was practicable you could avoid it, would you advise the 
building owner to build bedrooms facing each other across an interior 
lightwell 22 ft. 6 inches across ? A. The same question applies, if he 
comes for my advice from the commercial and development point of 
view, studying the economy and reconstruction. Most of our instruc­ 
tions, on the economic side, are all based on that.

Q. I will try and put the question more simply. If you could avoid 
20 doing so, would you advise an owner to build bedrooms facing an 

interior lightwell 22 ft. in width? A. If I had sufficient land I 
probably would not do it.

Q. It is not a good feature, is it? A. It all depends what the 
hotel is, where it is, and the economic side of the question.

Q. But how can it depend on where the hotel is when you are con­ 
sidering the possibility of having bedrooms facing each other across 
a 22 ft. wide interior lightwell in the city. How can the situation affect 
it? A. If the land is a small very valuable central site, it may be 
necessary to make the development that way.

30 Q- But supposing it is not necessary to do it, you would not do it, 
would you! A. Well, it is more or less a dream, a town planning; 
the Cumberland County Council Scheme.

Q. You agree, however, it is not a desirable feature to have bed­ 
rooms facing each other across a 22 ft. interior lightwell? A. If it 
were a. form of monument to the park and that sort of thing, where you 
have not got to worry about the economic structure of these buildings— 
you are controlled in the sizes by the City of Sydney Building Regula­ 
tions.
HIS HONOR: Q. What Mr. Wallace is really saying is this: assuming 

40 you had a site and you can get just as many bedrooms facing away 
from a lightwell as you can facing a lightwell for the same price in the 
same area, which would you choose? A. I would face them to the 
street.
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in the Mr WALLACE : Q. Supposing you were advising a building owner and 
New you k&(* the choi06 between building 75 bedrooms all with bathrooms, 

South Wales all with exterior lighting, for £400,000 odd on the one hand, and 62 
Equitable, bedrooms, 23 without bathrooms and quite a number of them facing 

jurisdiction, each other across a 22 ft. interior lightwell, which would you advise him 
Plaintiff's to build — the second lot being for over £500,000? A. No other condi-
Evidence.

No. 19. Q. Assuming no other conditions? A. I would go for the greater 
T. M. Scott. nuni]-)er Of bedrooms with bathrooms, in certain classes of hotels.

Cr?88;. Q. In certain classes of hotels? A. Yes. if)examination. ^ 1 u
Q. But don't you agree it is a desirable thing in modern hotel life 

for every bedroom to have a bathroom? A. It is.
Q. Don't you agree that in modern hotel life, if you can do it, it 

is desirable that all bedrooms face to the exterior light? A. Yes, 
generally.

Q. If you can do it? A. Yes, if you can do it.
Q. Will you agree that the type of design which provides for repeti­ 

tive type of floors is cheaper to construct than the type which has 
irregular shaped bedrooms, irregular in size, and with lightwells? 
A. Do you mean a rising block? 20

Q. Yes? A. Yes, that probably would be cheaper.
Q. Have you studied modern trends abroad and in Australia today? 

Yes. I have not been overseas for some years.
Q. You have not been overseas? A. No, not for some years. 

Members of my staff have.
Q. From your information and belief would you agree that the 

modern trend is to build thin slab-type of buildings which give high- 
class light and air conditions in preference to the older type of what 
may be called the box type of buildings, with interior lightwells, occupy- 
in the whole site? A. You are referring to cities? 30

Q. Yes? A. Yes, there is a tendency to go high, but there are 
also buildings overseas that are high but which have light areas.

Q. I am just asking you a question about the modern trend. Would 
you consider it important in connection with the design of a hotel that 
the rooms having bathrooms should be designed along modern lines 
instead of obsolete lines? A. Yes.

Q. Have you studied the design of bedrooms in the 1956 plans? 
A. Yes.

Q. Do you agree that they conform with modern planning and 
modern requirements? A. Yes. 40

Q. Do you agree that by way of comparison the design of the bed­ 
rooms in the 1954 plans are of an obsolete and inferior type ? A. I 
would not say they are all obsolete.
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Q. Of an inferior type, compared with 19561 A. I would not say in the 
they are of an inferior type. There may be a point there, 1 will give Cofr7' 
that, that the planning of the bedrooms in the 1956 plans—they are South Wales 
quite good and generally they may be a little better than the 1954 plan Equitable 
on the whole, but I have not approached it by comparing the 1954 plan Jurisdiction. 
and the 1956 plan. I have looked at it in another way, the best develop- Plaintiff>s 
nient of the site. Evidence.

Q. I know you have, but you also have of necessity looked at both ^'a 9' 
plans, haven't you? A. I have looked at both plans. ' _1_!°

JQ Q. You now say that the 1956 design of bedrooms may be better examination, 
than the 1954 design? A. They may be a bit better than the 1954 
bedrooms.

Q. Would you not admit that they are indubitably superior in 
design? A. Oh, I would not say that.

Q. Did you notice that in respect of the 1954 bedrooms some were 
down to 6 ft. 6 inches in width? A. No, I did not notice that. I did 
not go into the 1956 full width of some of them.

Q. Did you notice that in the 1954 plan nearly every bedroom was 
in a different shape? A. You mean every one will be different?

20 Q- I put it to you that nearly every bedroom is of a different shape ? 
A. If I had a look at the plan again to refresh my memory I could give 
you an answer on that.

Q. (Exhibit "H" shown). A. There are a great number the 
same width, and a fair number repeat themselves in different places.

Q. I will delete the word "nearly". Would it be true to say that 
there is a great variety of shapes and sizes in the 1954 plan. At what 
floor are you looking? A. There is only the one floor of bedrooms 
I understand. No, as hotels go, they seem to be. . . .

Q. I am not asking you "as hotels go". I am asking you an 
•JQ objective fact? A. Well, you have your double rooms and you have 

your singles. Some have shower rooms off them and toilets.
Q. The question I am putting to you is simply, will you admit there 

is considerable variety in shape and size? A. No, not "consider­ 
able".

Q. Would you agree most of the bedrooms in the 1954 design are 
old-fashioned in that when you walk into the bedroom, somewhere in 
the bedroom protruding from the wall is a wardrobe ? A. Yes, they 
have wardrobes protruding into the room.

Q. And if you go to the 1956 plans (Exhibit "L2" shown) you find, 
40 first of all, that the bathrooms are internally arranged? A. Yes.

Q. That is not so in the case of the 1954 plans, is it? A. No, 
they are on to the courts.
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in (he. Q. The bathrooms in the 1956 plans are on the inside corridor 
wa^s; and you pass through a narrow entrance, past the bathroom into 

Wales the bedroom itself! A. Yes.
Equitable Q. Is this the position, that the external wall is fully used for the

Jurisdiction. bedroomg in the 1956 plans f A YeS

Q- Wil1 y°u agree th&t with those factors ... A. I do not 
think the bedrooms — there is a greater width of external wall to the 
1954: plan in a lot of cases; about the same, when you take the front 

— street.
Cross-

examination. Q. I am putting it to you that the 1956 plans in a broad way are 10 
more modern in design and more acceptable to people who live in 
hotels than the design of the 1954 bedrooms? A. We are referring 
to bedrooms only I take it?

Q. Yes, bedrooms with baths? A. Yes, it is quite a good plan, 
as I said before.

Q. That is not the question. Would you agree that the 1956 design 
of bedroom and bathroom is more modern than the design of the 1954 
bedroom? A. Where there are bathrooms you are referring to?

Q. Yes? A. I see in the 1954 plan the bathroom off the bed­ 
room, at the side, with natural air. 20

Q. I only want your answer "Yes" or "No" to my question. I 
am putting it to you quite bluntly that the 1956 designs are more 
modern and better designs than the 1954 designs. To that I only want 
you to say "Yes" or "No"? A. Yes — subject to mechanical 
ventilation.

Q. You say you have not been to America. I suppose you have not 
been to Honolulu recently? A. No.

Q. But from your information will you agree that in America 
and in Honolulu it is accepted modern practice to have the bathrooms 
on the internal corridors, with mechanical ventilation? A. Yes. 30

Q. Will you agree that the 1956 plans have smaller corridors for 
guests to negotiate than the 1954 plans? A. Do you mean in length?

Q. I am taking the case of a person who is furthest removed, we 
will say in the 1954 plans, from the lift, who has to go around two 
corridors at right angles; and I suggest it is about 240 feet from the 
furthest bedroom to the lift? A. That is in the 1954 plan, is it?

Q. Yes? A. Yes, the corridors in the 1954 plans are 5 ft. 6 
wide. They are 5ft. wide in the 1956 plans, and the corridors in the 
1956 plans are shorter than the 1954 plans.

Q. Would you agree that if you have a repetitive type of building, 40 
the bathrooms over one another and the bedrooms regular in design, 
it makes the costs of plumbing lower? A. Yes — that is if you spread 
out.
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Q. The costs are lower than if you have irregularity of design? 
A. Well, I would not call 1954 regularity. It repeats itself in two 
blocks . . .

Q. I was only asking you a general question firstly. That is true, 
isn't it? A. Yes.

Q. If you compare in that regard the 1956 and the 1954 plans, do 
you not find a much better and cheaper layout for plumbing construc­ 
tion in the 1956 than in the 1954? A. It would be more economical 
to install.

10 Q. Would you agree that hotels charge more for rooms which have 
a good exterior aspect and lighting than they do for rooms which 
face interior lightwells and which require artificial lighting. Is that 
not your experience? A. In a first-class hotel building?

Q. We are speaking of city hotels, Yes. A. I think one of the 
main things in a hotel is your service, apart from all your bedrooms 
and layouts.

Q. But what about this point; is there nothing in it. Can you
speak on the matter at all? A. Yes. I think you will find—from my
experience with hotels, certain ones I have spoken of in Wollongong,

20 Canberra and Orange, which are all high-class residential hotels—I
do not think there is any difference.

Q. Can you speak as to whether the city hotels in Sydney, such 
as the Australia, charge less for back rooms with artificial lighting 
than they do for front rooms overlooking the street? A. Well, I 
know ...

Q. Are you aware; that is all I am asking you? 
it would be one rate for particular rooms.

In the
Supreme

Court of New
South Wales

in its
Equitable

Jurisdiction.

Plaintiff's 
Evidence.

No. 19. 
T. M. Scott.

Cross- 
examination.

A. I would say

Q. Are you going on your experience, or are you just giving your 
guess or estimate in the matter ? A. No, I am going- on the fact that 

30 when you write to the Hotel Australia and you book a room you will 
receive a note back saying '' We have booked your room, and the charge 
for a single room will be so much. We reserve the right, if there are 
no single rooms available, to put you in a double room and the charge 
will be so much. If we have a single bedroom with bathroom the rate 
will be so much"—and the same for suites and double rooms.

Q. Then it is not your experience that hotels charge less for 
interiorly situated rooms with poor natural light than they do for 
rooms with a better aspect? A. I have not experienced it.

HIS HONOR: What the witness does say is that guests avoid those 
40 rooms if they can.

Q. Is that right? A. Yes.
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In the Mr WALLACE: Q. Would you agree that in commercial buildings 
New higher rates are charged for rooms with good natural light and air 

South Wales than for rooms which are dark and which require constant artificial
Equable %ht? A. Do you refer to offices?

Jurisdiction. Q Yes ? A. I think you would, for office use, get better rents on 
Plaintiff's the higher floors back and off the traffic. They can be into a light court. 
Evidence. Probably you would get more there than what you would in a front 

NO. 19. office to the street.
. • "o. Q rpjj^ mav j^ ku|. j am ajgo asking yOU) Would you not agree that

Cross- in regard to office space it is usual for offices which require artificial 10 
examination, ^g^ an(j ^jg^ are gloomy without it, to be charged a lower rate than 

offices which have good natural light and air? A. Well, on the 
present position you cannot get any office at all. It is very hard to 
judge that.

Q. But go back to when it was not hard. Would you agree with 
that then? A. Well, generally always as it turns out, it is on the 
ground and first floors where you get the worst light, and that is 
generally always recovered, because people like stockbrokers and in 
that type of business generally want the ground and first floors, and 
they pay higher rents to be down there, where it is of easier access to 20 
the street; and that used to occur before there was this difficulty in 
obtaining offices.

Q. What about a back room which faces a narrow light well. Do 
you say they do not charge less for those today in the City of Sydney 
than for rooms which have good aspect in regard to light and air? 
A. If I can ——

Q. That is a simple question, isn't it? A. My experience is that 
in Pitt Street, with office buildings of that type on the ground floor with 
poor light, you would pay more rent there than for better light on the 
upper floors. 30

Q. What about a back room on an upper floor facing a gloomy 
lightwell? A. Well, on the higher floors you do not as a rule get 
gloomy rooms.

Q. Are you saying that poor light and poor air do not affect rates 
that owners get for office space? A. Not at present.

Q. You would expect those things to affect the rates, however, if 
and when the office position eases? A. To a certain extent.

Q. To some extent? A. Well, our building regulations govern 
the control — they are very severe on the provision of light areas, and 
you do not get these dark offices in buildings today. You may have it 40 
in some.

Q. I want you to assume that you have this contrast: one owner 
has a building — and I am asking you, of course, in regard to the position 
when office space has eased. That is my overriding assumption, do you 
follow? A. Yes.
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Q. There is no difficulty about that so far, is there ? A. No. in the
Supreme

Q. Will you not agree that in such circumstances tlie owner of a Court of New
building which has gloomy rooms would not be able to lot them so
easily as the owner of a building which has good light and air in the Equitable
rooms? A. Is the building to be built or is it built? Jurisdiction.

Q. Just suppose there are two buildings, either new or old. The 
only assumption is that the pressure for office space 1ms eased. I do 
not care whether we compare new or old buildings ? A. Tn new build- T 
ings erected you will always have good light. ——

10 Q. Will you please listen to the question. The only assumption is examination. 
that the pressure for office space has eased. Is that clear ? A. Yes.

Q. Then, I am comparing two buildings, I do not care whether they 
are new or old. One has good light and air for its offices, and the other 
has gloomy light and air. Which owner would more easily let his space 
in your opinion ? A. Oh, if it were a gloomy building you would get 
less for the gloomy.

Q. On that, would you not agree that the reason why there is a 
modern trend to build repetitive types of narrow buildings, going up­ 
wards as high as possible, in preference to the old box type of buildings 

20 with lightwells, is not only cheaper in construction, but also because 
they can expect greater facilities for renting them and greater rents 
when they do rent them? A. That to a great extent would depend 
on the development of a site, wouldn't it? These courts, they are outer 
courts, and you can get excellent light from outer courts. In this 
particular case . . .

Q. I am not dealing with this particular case. I only want the
generality first. Wouldn't it be a question of good economics that is
partly, at least, behind the modern trend to build tall narrow buildings
not occupying the whole site in preference to the old box type, with

30 interior lightwells or with space? ——

SIR GARFIELD : I do not understand the question. 
(Abovementioned question read)

HIS HONOR : I think you had best reframe the question, Mr Wallace. 

Mr WALLACE : That is the question I want.

HIS HONOR : Q. Do you understand what the question means ? A. 
It is a bit difficult. It would be a question of calculating out the area of 
the land and how high you are going with this box type, whether they 
are external courts or internal courts. It is quite a problem to answer 
that one.

40 MR WALLACE : Q. I am not asking you to debate the pros and cons 
of any particular case. I am only asking would the proposition of a 
tall narrow building, giving good light and air all round, with windows,
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in the. be a better economic proposition to the owner than a box type of build-
Ccmrt'oTNew *n& occupying the whole site? As a general proposition I am putting
Smith Wales it to you that it could be a better economic proposition? A. I could
Entile n0^ answer from an economic point of view, as you would have to

Jurisdiction, plan . . .

Plaintiff's Q. You will admit that there is, so far as your information and
f 'A71 ence " belief goes, a modern trend to build tall narrow buildings not occupy- 

No. 19. ing a whole site'? A. There have been some set back a little. I know
T. M. Scott. one particular building that thoy have set back. Sometimes you have 

Cross- to set back to get access, to get into the floor line—if you have any 10
examination. crOB8.floor fa your building—to get up the steps.

Q. Do I do you justice when I suggest you have not really studied 
this modern trend either abroad or in Sydney? A. I have not abroad, 
but I have followed it fairly closely here.

Q. Have you followed it in connection with Anzac House, for 
instance! A. Anzac House?

Q. Have you followed it in connection with Anzac House! A. 
Yes, I can remember Anzac House. That is the new one that has just 
gone up, you refer to, in College Street?

Q. Have you some doubt about it? A. I know that is Anzac 20 
House, if that is the one to which you refer.

Q. That happens to be the one to which I am referring. Did you 
know that that was a commercial building in its upper floors? A. 
Yes. Now there is a case . . .

Q. You just listen to me. Do you know that that occupies only 
about half the site ? A. I know it is set back, and why it is set back 
from the front, I take it, is to get into it.

Q. I suppose you can get into it from the street? A. No, you 
cannot.

Q. Have you considered any other buildings going up in Melbourne 30 
or Sydney'? A. I have had a look at the new I.C.I. Building. I was 
interested in a report in the early days on that.

Q. Have you seen the new I.C.I, building? A. That covers the 
whole of the site and it goes to a great height. It goes right through 
to Macquarie Street and to the street below.

Q. You say it covers the whole site ? A. Yes. As a matter of 
fact I made a report on the development of that building for the 
company.

Q. What about the I.C.I, in Melbourne? A. I cannot say any­ 
thing about that. 4Q

Q. Have you yourself ever designed a building which entailed 
trusses 80 feet long and 12 feet deep to be erected four floors up? 
A. No. I have used them on roofs.
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Q. No; to be used four floors up ? A. No, I have not. I have in the 
done much bigger spans in roof work and in buildings carrying the cou^
frame. South Wales

in its
Q. I was rather on the case I put to you, namely, a truss 80 feet Equitable 

wide requiring 10 feet or 12 feet depth, about four of them in a building, Ju™_^™- 
on a fifth floor holding up the fourth floor. A. No. If I was I would Plaintiff's 
be referring that to my structural engineer. Evidence.

Q. Do you know you have drawn here on Exhibit "U" some T.^VL s^ott. 
isometric designs of possible future development? A. Yes. ——Cross- 

10 Q. I understand you to say that in connection with designs A, 33 examination.
and C and maybe the others, you envisage departmental stores in the 
front, part overlooking George Street, and in some at least of the others 
on the connecting building between the two, George Street and Carring- 
ton Street main building? A. On the lower floors, Yes.

Q. If you take the design A, what part of design A do you envisage, 
apart from the main George Street building, having a departmental 
store? A. I could take portion or a couple of floors of a portion 
of that area covering the central block, provided I leave portion of the 
first floor to Carrington Street coming through for dining rooms for 

20 the main hotel at Carrington Street. That would be shut off from the 
hotel.

Q. What about plan B? A. With plan B we only take the dining- 
room to the first floor to Carrington Street, through, as dining rooms 
to the main hotel and the front portion of George Street—or you could 
have a portion of that showing only one floor high in the centre block 
of the greater width, so you could take all the George Street block 
if you wanted to.

Q. Do I understand you to say that in design B the whole of the 
big building facing George Street would be departmental store? A. 

30 That could be.
Q. And part of the central connecting unit or building? A. You 

could take a portion of that.
Q. Which portion? A. You could take the portion nearest to 

George Street.
Q. What floors? A. You could take the second, third, fourth 

—or portion of it.
Q. So you have a departmental store on what I will call the con­ 

necting building? A. You would not take the whole of it right 
through; the portion closest to George Street.

4Q Q. But some number of floors, which you say would be how many? 
A. Second, third, or fourth.

Q. Above that you would have bedrooms, would you? A. You 
could have bedrooms over that, if you wanted to.
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/»«*« Q. What is the width of that connecting building in diagram B 
across the centre and the widest part? A. 46 feet approximately. 

South Wales I will have to give approximate measurements, not to scale.
in its

Equitable Q. Do you say that that could be built superimposed on the 1954

Q- We have been told that the 1954 plans envisage two connecting
— units, separated by an interior lightwell, that each of the two interior 

T. M.'Scott, units is 34 feet in width and the interior lightwell separating them is
-— 22 ft. 6 inches, giving a total width of approximately 90 feet? 

examination A. Yes, about 90 feet. 10
Q. That, of course, would be down below. Is that what you 

indicate? A. Yes.
Q. Then you come up the centre with only a 40 foot width building; 

or how wide did you say, 46 feet? A. Widest part at the highest 
level is about 46 feet.

Q. If you did that, would you take it up to a maximum height of 
150 feet above George Street? A. Yes.

Q. You have not worked out what columns would be utilised for 
that central portion, have you? A. No, that has not been discussed.

Q. You have not submitted this to any structural engineer ? 20 
A. We have submitted this to a structural engineer.

SIB GAEFIELD: Mr Britten will speak about it.

Mr WALLACE: Q. Have you any idea what columns would be utilised 
in constructing that central portion in diagram B? A. No. I am 
assured by a structural engineer it can be carried out there.

Q. At all events, you do not envisage the utilisation of four trusses 
80 feet long and 12 feet deep across the centre? A. There will be 
trusses.

Q. 80 feet in length? A. Coming from the strong columns. 
There is a line of stronger columns I am advised. 30

Q. In order to make the central portion shown in diagram B? 
A. Yes.

Q. Those columns would be columns 51, 57 and so on? A. With­ 
out the plan I cannot remember them, but I know there is a line of 
stronger columns designed for these trusses originally.

Q. If you go to A, B and C, would you agree that those designs 
could just as well, if not better, be put up on the 1956 plans, if anyone 
had so desired? A. No, I was advised by the structural 
engineers . . .

Q. But from an architectural point of view—I will deal with the 49 
structural engineering point of view separately—from an architec­ 
tural point of view, at least you could concur with this proposition,
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couldn't you: that the 1956 plans are more flexible than the 1954 plans in the 
from the point of view of future development'? A. For this develop- coST
ment? South Wales

Q. Yes, take this development? A. I would say No. Eqmtohie.
Q. From the point of view of any development was the way I put —— 

it to you first? A. No. it would not be suitable to the sub-structure. Pkintiff's
J ' Evidence.

Q. Now we are on a constructional point, are we? A. We have —— 
to come back to that—what is existing. T. M. Scott.

Q. I understand architects offer a design and then submit it to Cross. 
10 constructional engineers to see whether it will work. Is that roughly examination 

how it goes! A. Yes, that is something like it.
Q. Supposing you were to make the assumption that I now ask 

you to make, that constructionally, from an engineering point of view, 
there is no reason why the 1956 plans should not be developed in the 
centre. I want you to make that assumption? A. Assume it can 
be done?

Q. Yes. On that assumption would you agree that the 1956 plans 
lend themselves to development at least as well as the 1954 plans? 
A. I do not think you would get the total floor area to the site as what 

20 you would on this suggestion.
Q. Have you ever worked it out? A. No, I do not have to. 

You only have to examine these isometric drawings and you will see 
what we suggest here gives a far greater area than the 1956 plans.

Q. But on the assumption I have asked you to make, you could 
put any one of those plans, A, B, C or E on to the 1956 plans—on my 
assumption? A. No, because the 1956 plans set back—these come 
much deeper on the Carrington Street frontage.

Q. The building is much deeper? A. As far as the columns are 
concerned.

30 Q- What is the width that you envisage from west to east of the 
Carrington Street component on plans A, B and C ? A.I would have 
to give you the figure on that off the drawing, because I have not got 
anything here to go by. I might be able to give it to you. They are 
about 59 feet to 60 feet—somewhere about that—from Carrington 
Street, in depth. With the 1956 plan I cannot tell you what they are.

Q. If you take a building 60 feet in width, facing Carrington
Street, and using it for hotel purposes—bedrooms—how would yon
design a typical floor ? You would have a corridor in the centre? A.
Corridor in the centre and bedrooms on each side of the corridor, with a

4Q central bathroom; similar to the 1956 plans more or less.
Q. Like the 1956 plans ? A. Yes.
Q. Excepting that it would be much wider than the 1956 plans? 

A. Yes, the 1956 plans, it is at one end I think they double. I think in 
the centre they are only one room wide, from memory.
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in the Q. But you have merely made it wider—I think roughly 15 feet or 
yew 20 feet wider—than the 1956 plans by virtue of a recommendation from 

South Wales your constructional engineer ? A. No, from planning and also from 
Eguitabh ^ne sub-structure that is there; partly consulting engineer. 

Jurisdiction. Q For instance; are you able to tell me on what coiumns the
Plaintiff's western wall of your A, B, C Carrington Street components would rest? 
Evidence, ^ j^ j }iave a commn pian j might be able to point them out to you.

T. M°'sc9ott. Q- Would you look at this plan (showing) ? A. Could I have the 
—— question again?Cross- 

examination. Q. What columns support the western wall of the Carrington St. 10
building in plans A, B and 0.? A. Is that on to the lane you refer 
to, Wynyard Lane ?

Q. I want you to tell me? A. I am not quite clear what you 
want there.

Q. You have a western wall shown on plans A, B and C to Carring­ 
ton Street? A. I take it that is Carrington Street (indicating) ?

Q. I am sorry, I meant the eastern wall. What columns would 
support the eastern wall of the Carrington Street component? A. 
Are you referring to the plan isometric "U"?

Q. I want to know what columns support the eastern side of the 20 
Carrington Street building? A. Do you mean along there (indicat­ 
ing) ?

Q. Yes? A. At that point it would be 51. There is another one 
on the boundary there . . .

Q. Kead them all out. They are numbered on the plan I handed 
to you? A. 170, 51, 53, 55, and then you come to a cluster around 
the lifts, 57, 59 and 60-something, 72 and 74. You go right through 
there. I cannot give you the exact line on that lot there.

Q. Then I understand you to say this, that under your isometric 
plans you have got a building going straight up, 150 feet above Carring- 30 
ton Street—not above George Street, but above Carrington Street? 
A. Carrington Street coming back three columns deep.

Q. And the eastern face of that building rests on the columns you 
have just enumerated? A. Yes, that is on the upper floors. That 
is all bedroom part.

Q. They all rest on those columns that you have just enumerated, 
down to there (showing)? A. Yes.

Q. If I write "X" on what you are showing me and "Y" up above, 
from "X" up to "Y" would be resting on the columns you have men­ 
tioned. I show you now Exhibit "U". Looking at plan A, on Exhibit 40 
"U", you have told me, haven't you, that the eastern wall of the Car­ 
rington Street building in A, B and C rests on the columns you have 
enumerated? A. Yes.
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Q. If I were to draw a dotted line continued down the Carrington in the
Street level I would come on to the 170, 51, 5,'J etc. line. Is that right' Co£j
A. Yes, that is it. south Wales

Q. The columns such as 53 and 55 in the centre, would they be Equitable
bearing their share ? A. No, they are the weak columns. 5o and 55 Jurisdiction.
are the weak ones which require the truss over them. That centreline plaintiff's
as I remember it from my structural engineers—these dark ones here Evidence,
are the weaker columns (indicating). No. 19.

Q. Do we get to this: in order to build plans A, B, C, D and E, ' ' 
10 you envisage the big trusses coming through and being supported by Cross- 

columns 51, 57 etc.? A. And 76, 96, 112. examination
Q. That is quite clear ? A. Yes.
Q. Those trusses would go in where, according to you, at what 

floor? A. In which scheme ?
Q. Take "B", to start with? A. One of the trusses would go in 

there, whenever you build that George Street. Whatever happens there 
you have to put another truss through that line, there, lower down, 
and another one there, and in the centre of this extension, through 
here; you could put them through there (indicating Scheme "A") in 

20 that centre block there. In this one (Scheme "B") you would bring 
them through on the lower floors here, on that floor above Wynyard 
Lane, to carry this superstructure, and also at the back of George 
Street they could cut through there, and those could go at the fifth 
floor, where they are originally designed for on the original buildings— 
about four or live floors above Carrington Street, in the original Kerr 
plan.

(,). Could I summarise what yon have been saying, and please check
me if I am wrong. I understand you to .say that in the case of ;plan
"B", for example, you do envisage the four big trusses being con-

30 structed, one or two of them at the first or second historical floor, and
the others higher up? A. And the first floor.

Q. The first floor ? A. Two centre ones, say. There are different 
levels there, and the other can go in where they are originally designed 
for.

Q. Between the fifth and sixth historical floors ? A. Fourth or 
fifth; somewhere around there.

Q. The reason why you put the two centre ones down on the first 
floor is, I suppose, purely aesthetic, is it? A. No, you have to get 
through, to these columns, but in this scheme (Scheme "E") they could 

40 come through at a higher level there, depending on the height.
Q. All of them on diagram "E" of Exhibit "U" could come 

through at a higher level. But returning to plan "B" where you 
envisage the four girders at different levels, the two centre ones which 
you say would be low down at first, would be put low down for whatj 
reason "! A. Because this section only extends to that far (indicating.)
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In the Q. And because the centre section is so narrow? A. There is
£«. a narrow width there -

""'*3 Q- So instead of having the heavy columns coining up with un- 
sightly trusses going across them, and the centre part resting on part 
onjy^ yOU woui<j p]ace them down below? A. Well, you could place

Plaintiff's them on the ground floor on that.
Evidence.
„—~ Q. Of the Carrington Street level, do you mean? A. Of the 

T.M.Scott. Carrington Street level, and the other ones—you could get them on,
^^_ I think that would be, the ground floor or the first floor there. I would 

examination, have to see the sections through there (indicating). 10
Q. You now say you envisage in connection with plan "B" that 

of the four heavy trusses, two might be at one level and the other two 
at different levels? A. Yes.

Q. I meant two at one level—and the higher ones—and the other 
two could be lower and at different levels themselves? A. Yes. In 
"A" they can be higher up anywhere.

Q. In "A" they can all be higher up? A. Yes, depending on 
the height of that floor.

Q. Depending on the height of the line "XY"? A. Yes. 

HIS HONOR: The lower full width central floor. 20 

WITNESS: In "C" they could be above the original old positions.

Mr WALLACE: Q. They could all be sited in the original positions 
as originally designed? A. Yes.

Q. You have not gone into any detail about these trusses, have 
you? A. No. I have discussed it with the structural engineers, that 
is all.

Q. What, over the last week? A. No, before Mr McMillan was 
ill. I have discussed it this last week also.

Q. With Mr Britten? A. Yes, I have been right through it 
with him. 30

Q. I suppose you would agree that the accepted loadings for a 
hotel building are 40 Ibs. to the square foot? A. Yes.

Q. Is it within your knowledge that in respect of the 1954 plans 
they were constructed to bear 40 Ibs. per square foot and approved 
by the Railway Commissioner on that footing? A. The 1954 plan? 
Is that the first floor that is built you are referring to?

Q. No, I am speaking of the plans for the erection of the 62 bed­ 
rooms? A. I understood that that was 100 Ibs.

Q. I want you to assume that the design was to carry 40 Ibs. and 
that that was approved by the Railway Commissioner. Would you 40 
assume that? A. Yes.
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Q. If that were so and if the building were constructed to that in the 
1954 plan, and later at some future period you wanted to develop the coun 
1954 building in accordance with anything like A, B or C in Exhibit South Wales 
"U", you would have to have, so far as the departmental store—the Equitable 
George Street side—is concerned, and the centre—you would have to Jurisdiction. 
have 100 Ibs. to the square foot? A. Yes, you would have to have pi^[ff'a
100 Ibs. Evidence.

Q. And on my assumption then, if ever you wanted to develop NO- 19 -
the 1954 plans along the lines you have envisaged in Exhibit "U", ' _1 cott'

10 it would entail the practical demolition of the 1954 building, wouldn't Cross-
•idiiiTc -A J • i examination.it™ A. It you assume it was designed . . .

Q. That is what I am asking you to assume; nothing more? 
A. What do you mean by the 1954 building! You would have to 
demolish the 1954 building—exactly what do you mean?

HIS HONOR: (To Witness). You are asked to assume that what is 
in Exhibit "H" was actually constructed according to those plans.

Mr WALLACE: Q. I want you to assume that the 1954 plans had 
been constructed ? A. Have we a section here ? It is very hard to 
answer without a section. There should be a section with the plan. 

20 These are incomplete; there is no section, and you cannot build build­ 
ings without sections.

Q. I thought you told me you had seen the 1954 plans and had 
examined them. Isn't that so? A. Yes, I have seen the 1954 plans.

HISHONOE: Q. Have you seen a section? A. I have seen sections.

Mr WALLACE: All I am asking you to assume is that the 1954 
building had been constructed in accordance with its terms? 
A. Completed like this ?

Q. Yes. And I want you to assume that it was designed construc- 
tionally as a hotel on a 40 Ibs. per square foot basis. Is that clear? 

30 A. On this proposed floor ?
Q. Yes? A. Yes.
Q. You have told me that a departmental store requires 100 Ibs. 

to the square foot? A. Yes.
Q. Now I am asking you, if at some future time, the 1954 building 

having been fully constructed according to its terms, you wanted to 
erect a departmental store 150 feet high fronting George Street, and 
some of these central portions also, it would entail the practical demoli­ 
tion of the 1954 building, wouldn't itl A. Are we assuming columns 
are designed for only . . .1

40 Q. I do not mean the columns. I mean the floors, the members, 
the supports—the building itself would have to be practically 
demolished.
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Inthe SIR GARFIELD: But what do you mean by the design with a 40 Ibs. 
Supreme loading. Do you mean the columns have been carried up to that or

Court of New •, ±. « 
South Wales What!

Equitable Mr WALLACE: Q. I am speaking of floor slabs, joists, beams and all 
jurisdiction. that goeg to make fl buiiding. jf it were 40 lbs per square foot

Plaintiff's upon which the floor is designed—is that so? A. Yes, I take it the 
Evidence, beams are 40 Ibs.

T ^t's<?dtt Q' ^ wan* y°u to assume the 1954 building is constructed according 
-— ' to those plans on the 40 Ibs. per square foot basis? A. Yes.

examination. Q- Then, if you wanted to build your A, B and C plans on Exhibit 10 
"U", a departmental store going up George Street and the centre por­ 
tions as shown, it would entail of practical necessity the practical 
demolition of the 1954 building? A. It would only relate to the 
actual floor slab.

Q. But all the 1954 building, apart from the columns, would have 
to be demolished and re-erecled? A. That section we were using 
for the retail store, you would have to do something to the floor slab.

Q. Would you do anything to it without demolishing it and re­ 
building to 100 Ibs.? A. But your columns, I understood, are 
capable ... 20

Q. I am not suggesting anything about columns. I am only sug­ 
gesting about floor slabs, the beams and the members that go to make 
up that 1954 building? A. In such section that you use for the 
retail store on the first floor, you would have to do something with the 
first floor slah of that section.

Q. You would have to demolish it ? A. Demolish it.
Q. Do you yourself have occasion to consider what I may call the 

live load reduction formula? A. No.
Q. That is an engineer's matter? A. Yes.
Q. With regard to the comment you made yesterday on the 1956 30 

plan, I suppose you would agree that there are some important hotels 
with dining rooms not only high up but also even on the roof? A. 
Yes, there are some of them. The Australia has different level dining 
rooms on a very large scale—but always in the building.

Q. You have known some particular hotel, such as the Mark 
Hopkins with the dining room up 800 or 900 feet above foothpath level? 
A. Yes, that would be so.

Q. Have you heard about the dining room in the Rockefeller 
Centre in New York? A. Yes.

Q. That is, I think, on the top floor ? A. Yes. 49
Q. The second or third highest building in America? A. Yes.
Q. I suppose you would know of other dining rooms that are placed 

high up in a hotel? A. Yes—but not in the basement of a hotel.
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Q. I am not talking about basements, I am talking about having in the 
them up 900 feet or 1200 feet above footpath level, so that there would c 
be nothing strange from an architectural point of view in having a South Wales 
dining room, if the hotel were ever extended to the maximum height on Equitable 
either the first, second, third, fourth or top level, would there ? A. Jurisdiction. 
No. There is a bit of a crowd with the type of lifts. Plaintiff's

Q. But that is only a matter of planning architecturally, isn't it? EvideDCe - 
A. Yes. NO. 19.

Q. There would be nothing wrong architecturally, or nothing un- ' -_ 
10 usual in having a dining room in this case, in connection with the 1956 Cross-_

i j_ j.i e • TVT -IT T ji -i- p examination.plans, out over the root covering Wynyard Lane, and the ceiling ot 
the lounge ? A. Well, it would be covered in. It would not be in the 
open, would it?

Q. You could cover it in, couldn't you? A. I think these ones in 
America on a higher level are chiefly restaurants rather than dining 
rooms.

Q. But what is the difference. You have dining rooms in the 
Hotel Australia at the third or fourth floor, haven't you! A. Yes. 
Well, there is not much difference.

20 HIS HONOR: Q. There is a trend too in modern hotels to provide bed 
and breakfast, and everybody then pays a la carte, whether they be 
guests or strangers? A. There is a trend that way at the Hotel 
Canberra. There is bed and breakfast plus a la carte.
Mr WALLACE: Q. But in a big city, especially a terminal city, it 
is very usual for guests to have their meals out? A. Yes, they can 
have them out.

Q. You said that some of the beams on the plans you had were 
shown in a section as coming down to within about 7 ft. 6 inches odd 
from the floor? A. Yes.

30 Q. They were only over the doors of the bathrooms, weren't they? 
A. Yes, they would be over that type of construction.

Q. Nothing to do with the lounge rooms, just beams coming over 
the doors? A. I was referring to if you extended the hotel and it 
would be necessary to have your dining rooms on the first floor, you 
could not put up with that in a coffee lounge.

Q. I was asking you to direct your mind to what you said yesterday. 
You did refer to 7 ft. 6 inches odd from the floor, and you indicated 
that that would be too low for that type of reception room? A. 
Reception room and dining room.

40 Q. But if any beam is coming down to 7 ft. 6 inches on the 1956 
plan, it only shows at present if at all in the case of a beam over a 
bathroom door or something like that? A. I was referring to the 
time when you eventually would have that as a dining room floor, as 
there was no provision for it.

•38632—11
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In the Q. You know the City of Sydney requirements are 9 ft., don't you, 
for a dining or reception room? A. Is that for a dining room or a 

South Wales reception room?
in its

Q. That is what I am putting to you ? A. I do not mix the dining
Jurisdiction. • j i j i i •__ room witn tne reception room.

Plaintiff's
Evidence. HIS HONOR: Q. Do you know one way or the other? A. No. In 

NO. xg. the Licensing Court ——
T. M. Scott.

—— Mr WALLACE : Never mind the Licensing Court; the City of Sydney 
examination, is what I was putting to you? A. We have never had any difficulty

with them because we have always kept above that. 10
Q. Do you know the Ordinance provides for 9 feet? A. No, I 

did not know it was 9 feet.
Q. It is quite usual, is it not, in connection with big buildings or 

substantial work for the minor alterations to be made in design by the 
architect to meet any minor deficiencies that may be portrayed in the 
first instance? A. I beg your pardon.

Q. It is quite a usual practice for architects to have to alter their 
original designs in minor manners ? A. That is, if you let a tender, 
then you have to alter your plan through ——

Q. I had in mind, for example, after consulting your constructional 20 
engineer? A. Is this before the contract is made or tenders are 
called?

Q. Yes, I will take it at that stage? A. I think you are in for a 
lot of trouble as an architect if you have to keep amending your plans 
once they go out to tender, through any — shall I say — error in the plan­ 
ning. We have a good deal of difficulty ——

Q. I was asking you for the position before tender. That is what 
I thought you yourself asked me. Before tender it is quite usual for 
an architect to adjust his plan? A. Yes, that occurs.

Q. So as to meet with the views of the constructional engineer ? 30 
A. We go into that with the structural engineer before we reach a well- 
advanced stage into the drawings.

Q. Do you not have to alter your original preliminary drawings? 
A. You mean sketches? There is the sketch preliminary drawings which 
you go into with the structural engineer and you start preparing your 
working drawings. We have had cases where we have had to make 
some amendment at the last minute from the structural engineer — he 
has come across something that has given difficulty.

Q. You can have different types of tenders, one with a fixed price 
and others with some adjustable price according to the requirements? 40 
A. Yes, you can obtain firm tenders.
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Q. Or you have a tender with a ceiling price? A. There is a in the. 
tender, we have had one ourselves, where it is guaranteed not to exceed cJurtP 
a certain amount, all savings to the proprietor. South Wales

Q. You get those variations don't you? A. Yes. Equitable
Jurisdiction.

HIS HONOR: Q. Where tenders have been called after a plan has been — , 
more or less settled and it is found necessary to amend the plan in some Evidence. 
manner, the difficulties arise because it is going to cost the building — 
owner more? A. Yes, we endeavour, once we go to tender, to see T. M.Scott. 
that there is no alteration to the contract plans and we get into serious -— 

10 trouble in our profession if we do, but we have contingency fund, some- examination, 
times in a job of £100,000, say, three or four thousand pounds if certain 
items cost more but the owners sometimes order after you have started 
a contract, will order an additional floor or alterations.

Q. What I mean is this, that the real difficulty is a financial one to 
the owner ? A. If he finds that when the tender is let there has to be 
some additional extra cost? The architect is in trouble there.

Q. It may be but the trouble is one of finance falling on the owner 
and/or the architect? A. Yes.

Q. There is no other real trouble. What other trouble would you 
20 anticipate ? A. One of the troubles, if you allow p.c. for steel and 

you allow £10,000 and the lowest price you get for the steel is £12,000, 
there is £2,000. You have to go to the Company and tell them that 
you were too low, or if you find that you have to do a lot of additional 
work that was not covered in the specifications you are in trouble there.

Q. But the trouble you are in is financial trouble? A. Yes. 
Q. No other trouble? A. No.
Q. The building goes up just the same according to varied plans 

except that the owner or architect has to put up money ? A. That 
is a possibility. 

30 Q. It is serious but a financial worry only? A. Yes.

RE-EXAMINED Re.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. You were asked about the practice of your pro- examination- 
fession. It is suggested to you in practising your profession, first of 
all, that plans when they are offered for tender are frequently varied 
not because of the building owner's intervention but because of mistakes 
on the part of the architect. The first question was, "at the time they 
are offered for tender, no matter what the basis of the building con­ 
tract". Is it the practice of your profession to regard them as so 
tentative that errors are going to be corrected thereafter? A. In 

40 my particular firm we go to quantities first and go to the quantity 
surveyor and before we go to the tender we want to try and get every­ 
thing correct. Some of the people I work for, if I have to turn around 
and say "We have to spend a lot of money——
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in the HIS HONOR: They get other architects.
Court of New SIR GARF1ELD: In the course of preparing a set of architectural
S°UiniLakS drawings do you consult your structural engineer at some point? A.

Equitable We go into it f roin the sketch plans and layout and we get the structural
jurisdiction. engjneer jn straight away. For a number of years I have had my own

Plaintiff's structural engineer in my own office.
_!_°' Q. Having conferred with your structural engineer you then set 

^°- 19- about your architectural plans? A. Yes.
-L. M. oCofrt.

—— Q. Is it the practice of your profession, the experience of your 
examination profession that after you have consulted with your structural engineer 10 

and settled the structural design that your architectural plans are 
amended from time to time after they have been drawn, not in the 
course of the drawings but after they have been drawn? A. No, as 
a rule we settle for tender and that is definite.

Q. But prior to tender there comes a time when you have drawn 
them before you submit them to tender. From the time you have drawn 
them is it your experience that they then have to be sort of constantly 
or frequently tidied up for mistakes ? A. How we go about the 
structural plans, they put them through Council and then they submit 
details from time to time of calculations. 20

Q. That is your structural engineers 1 A. Yes, but we endeavour 
that when we complete our plans and working drawings are complete 
ready for tender that the whole of the structural scheme, allowances 
for steel, is finished.

Q. And your architectural layout is finished I A. Yes, the whole 
thing is complete and then if there are any changes by the Company——-

Q. Don't worry about that. I am not thinking of client alterations. 
You remember Exhibit "U", the various schemes that are on it, on 
your own Exhibit "F" which is the 1956 proposal. I want to ask you 
whether any of the rooms in any of those schemes would be gloomy! •JA 
A. No. M

Q. Is there anything gloomy about the room fronting on the 22 
feet light area which allows for some 60 to 70 feet from the top! A. 
No, it would be almost like looking out on to a street because some 
of the streets are only 60 feet wide.

Q. 60 feet down and 22 feet across? A. The central court. I 
thought you meant the outer court.

Q. Would that be a gloomy room? A. No it would not be 
gloomy.

Q. You have in those schemes centres of light area ? A. C is a 49 
central light area.

Q. Others are external light areas f A. Yes, what they call outer 
courts. Underneath that they front on to Wynyard Lane or open on to 
it.
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Q. Can you giro us the broad dimensions of those light areas in in the. 
the different schemes, at a mean level? A. Yon mean the central c^
COUrt? South Wales

in its
Q. Yes? A. That would be the same as the—— Equitable

Jurisdiction.

Q. I do not mean the central light court. I mean the outer courts, pia^yg-'g 
A. I can take it from here approximately; 29 ft. by about 80 ft. Evidence.

Q. That would be practically the smallest dimension would it not? No- 19- 
A. Yes, and then there is that one approximately 30 x 80. ' '

Q. My friend asked you was there a tendency to build narrow examination. 
10 glass-sided buildings in modern building and commercial building. 

These modern glass-sided buildings, would they be suitable for an 
hotel? (Objected to) A. In the I.C.I., in my opinion, in Macquarie 
St. they would not be—it is all glass.

HIS HONOR: It was not the glass part that Mr Wallace was asking 
about because you can put anything in the walls.

SIE GARFIELD: Q. This 1956 plan, the windows planned are only 
just ordinary windows? A. Yes, the windows are approximately 
7ft. wide by 5ft. high.

Q. That is the total window area of the bedroom? A. Of the 
20 bedroom.

Q. In the case where these narrow buildings are built over here 
or abroad, is there any customary treatment of air in them? A. I 
think a number of them have air-conditioning. They go in more for 
air-conditioning than we do in this city. I have heard of a building 
that is being built. It is to be built near Padstow, which is a very 
large one—I understand at a cost of £700,000 or something—and it is 
an office building, and a factory building and it has no light at all except 
artificial light, and it has mechanical ventilation. It is 3 storeys high 
and from the description I have had of it, the factory is a fairly large 

-3Q one, with no windows whatsoever and no doors. The office, I think, 
is to be air conditioned and the factory is all mechanically ventilated.

Q. Amongst your literature, are there parts of a New York store 
that has no windows—that is completely solid. Have you particulars 
of it? A. I remember reading about one of these. I cannot 
remember the name of it—Roebuck Sears, one of those.

Q. Is the position, whether you develop over the whole site or 
whether you develop these buildings over part of the site, is basically 
a question of economics for the owner? A. Yes, in all our planning, 
where it is office buildings—I have never had it unless in the form of 

An a church or a memorial of some description where they are always 
at sea on the costs, costs for the economic development of it 
being returned and depreciation is always considered.
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in the Q. You were asked about a tendency in Sydney not to build over
New the wllole of tne area- T think y°u told m7 friend about the I.C.I. 

south Wales Building. You explained about Anzac House. Have you looked at this 
j££t* Caltex Building? A. Yes.

Jurisdiction. Q jg ^ buijding Qn part of the area Qr the whole | A. I have
Plaintiff's been allowed to go over that building by the architects and it is a very
Evidence. flne building

T. M! Scott. Q- Is it on the whole of the site or only part of the site? (Objected 
—— to——) From your own observation? A. It is set back at the back 

examination, and goes about two floors. There are garages on the lower floors and \Q 
it is set back in the front. I cannot remember the size but it would be 
about 20 feet or so.

Q. Do you know the reason for it at all? (Objected to) A. No. 
1 am not clear. I thought it was——

Q. The Lever Building, the new one, have you seen that yourself? 
A. I have only seen the outside of it and that seems to be covering 
the whole site. It is not built yet, only the structural frame.

Q. You were asked to assume a 40 Ibs. loading design for the floors 
of the 1954 building plan. You were asked whether it would be 
necessary, in order to effect the extensions of which you speak, to 20 
reconstruct the floor, demolish it and reconstruct it? A. Yes.

Q. You told my friend it would be necessary to demolish it? 
A. Yes.

Q. Would that be an unusual activity when you are extending a 
building of this kind ? A. To go the limit ? It would be fairly small 
compared with some of the reconstructions we have had to tender on.

Q. You were asked by my friend about having dining rooms at 
higher levels in hotels. Is there any relationship between the living 
capacity provided and the place where you can put the dining room? 
A. Yes, I think if you, put a dining room right on the top of this 30 
building you are going to have banks of lifts to get people up and 
down.

Q. Do you see what is provided in the 1956 building? Do those 
lifts adequately cater for a dining room high up, in a 300-bedroom 
hotel? A. Yes. I think you would be pressed with your lifts to 
handle it there.

You take the Hotel Australia. That is only on the first floor, 
the main dining room. You can get up the stairs but the lifts are 
limited in that building.

Q. These buildings my friend mentioned abroad, the Eainbow 49 
Boom in the Eockefeller Centre, how many lifts are there? Have you 
been there? A. No, there is a fair bank in them. Lifts are very 
costly methods today.
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HIS HONOR: Q. It is very hard to get people to walk upstairs? A. /» the 
Well, in the suburban hotels and some of the city hotels, even for drink- 
ing lounges, we find it rather difficult to get people to walk to the first South 
floor, from a trade point of view. Equitable

Jurisdiction.
SIR GARFIELD: Q. In these various developments on the assump- 
tion that the 1954 plan had been built, what did you do about that centre 
light area in any case? A. In connection with "U"? ——

Q. Any of those designs on "U"? A. On the lower floors'? We T. M.'soott.
would fill the light areas, go right across with concrete there up to ~^~

10 within a certain height. examination.

Mr WALLACE: Q. Just solid concrete? A. Form a slab across an 
opening, make it one floor right through on the lower levels, throw a 
floor across in concrete.
SIR GARFIELD: Q. When you were talking about reconstructing or 
demolishing these floors and bedroom floors, you would be at the same 
time constructing this floor over the light areas ? A. Yes, it would be 
possible. It is a matter of the levels. Instead of demolishing that 
floor—it is a structural problem of throwing another floor above it, set 
above it. You would lose certain space between the existing floor slab 

20 —come off the caps again on the beams and throw another floor.
Q. There are various devices for getting over it? A. Provided 

the columns will carry the load.
Mr WALLACE: Q. In your plan "C", on Exhibit "IT", how far down 
will that central light area go? A. Using it as offices, I think it is 
67 feet.

No. 20 
Evidence of A. T. Britten

TO SIR GARFIELD: My full name is Alexander Theodore Britten. I Examination- 
am a Bachelor of Science of Sydney, with First Class Honours, Bachelor 

3Q of Engineering, Sydney, with First Class Honours and University 
Medal. I was with the Department of Main Roads for some 25 years 
during which I was engaged in bridge design for ten years and for 15 
years on the engineering administration of road construction, engineer­ 
ing and administration. About four years ago I resigned from the 
Department to enter private practice as a consulting civil engineer. I 
went into partnership with Mr McMillan and the firm name is McMillan 
and Britten.

Q. We have heard that Mr McMillan recently took ill? A. Yes.
Q. He had been informing himself of the problems concerning this 

4Q case? A. Yes.
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in the Q. Being unable to do so, you have now informed yourself ! A.
Supreme y 

Court of New x eb '
S°Uln iLaleS Q' ^^ you discuss with Mr McMillan any of the problems whilst he 

Equitable was looking into the matter? A. Yes.
Jurisdiction. familiarity

Plaintiff's with the questions involved here before he was ill? A. Particularly
Evidence. difficult qTlestionS.

A T^Britten Q' ^ wan* Yovi t° ^e^ us what you have looked at to qualify yourself, 
—— what plans you have looked at? A. I have seen the architectural

Examination. p]ang of Innes_Kerr. 10

SIR GARFIELD : I will show them to the witness so that they may be 
identified.

Q. I will offer you these plans and you tell us whether you have 
looked at them for the purpose of qualifying yourself or whether you 
have not! A. I have seen prints of those plans.

Q. You have seen a print of m.f.i. "5"? A. Yes. I have seen 
this roll of plans but have not studied them in great detail — or similar 
prints.

Q. I am told these are marked for identification. You have not 
studied them particularly? A. No. 20

Q. Just look at these, m.f.i. "30"? A. I have not seen those par­ 
ticular plans. Those are the various floor plans.

Q. Just look at this bundle and tell me if you have seen those? 
A. I have seen plans similar to those and uncolored and not every 
floor plan in tins set myself. All the plans in this set are colored. 

(Above plans m.f.i. "32").
Q. I show you m.f.i. "20". Tell me whether you have seen those? 

A. I have seen prints resembling portion of this exhibit. I have seen 
particularly the footing, the first plans, the basic column floor and the 
load plans and the concrete column schedules. There are many floor 30 
details and store details and a steel column schedule which I have not 
seen previously.

Q. If Mr Wallace wants any more details you can give them to him 
and mark any particular ones ? A. Yes.

Q. That broadly describes which of those you have seen? A. 
Yes.

Q. Tell me if you have seen that bundle (handed to witness). 
A. Which series?

Q. The series which you have now? A. They seem to be very 
similar to many drawings in the last one. There is an important dis- 40 
tance in that the footing plan ——

Q. First look at them and then I will ask you the question. Have 
you seen those before ? A. Or prints resembling them ?
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Q. Yes ? A. I do not think so. There may be some plans the in the 
same as the other set but generally the ones I can identify are different. CofrltPof

Q. I want you to look at them in a little more detail in the break. Sout£ t̂ 
I want to ask you their relationship to some other plans in the case. Equitable

/TTI J.T i n £ ^ j- • «oon\ Jurisdiction.(Further bundle of plans m.f.i. "33"). __
Q. Did you see this bundle of calculations (handed to witness) ? Evidence8 

A. No. — '
No. 20.

Q. You had not seen that bundle ? A. No. A. T. Britten.
(Bundle of calculations m.f.i. "34"). Examination. 

10 Q. Have you seen these documents which I show you ? A. No.
(Above documents m.f.i. "35"). 

Q. Have you seen these (shown to witness)? A. No.
(Bundle of blue prints m.f.i. "36").

Q. Did you see any calculations of either columns or concrete 
columns or slabs or steel columns? A. I was given a number of 
calculations which I was informed were mere sketches, original calcula­ 
tions,

Q. Have you them with you ? A. No. 
HIS HONOE: They are the ones we have locked up in the safe.

20 WITNESS: It is a bundle like that. It is not the lot that are in the 
Associate's safe.
SIR GARFIELD: Q. Where did you see these—in your own office? 
A. I had them at home for some weeks. I gave them to Mr. Crawford 
last night.

Q. Would you again look at m.f.i. "34" ? A. I am sorry. There 
is one that I may have seen—Xo, that is not the one. No.

Q. Have you seen this bundle which I give you, either the whole 
or part of it?
HIS HONOR: Those are architectural plans, are they? 

30 SIR GARFIELD: Some of them are, yes.
WITNESS: I think I have seen all of those plans except two that are 
marked "BA4" and "BA2" in the title lot. They were not on the set 
that I had.

Q. The rest you have seen? A. I do not think I have had these 
particular prints.

Q. You may have had similar ones to those ? A. I do not know 
whether they are the same prints or not. I cannot say in every case 
that that is now the same print that was exhibited to me.

Q. What you have in front of you, have you physically had that 
40 bundle ? A. I have had this plan which has some of my figures on

•38632—11A



330

In the it—that is mine—those sheets are attached so I presume I would have 
^Ne.w nac* those particular copies. Drawings marked '' Set 13" I have had 

South Wales before; those particular prints. Those are architectural drawings. 
Editable Regarding structural drawings I cannot say whether I have had those 

jurisdiction, prints or other prints.
Plaintiff's Q. But other prints of the same drawings? A. Yes.
Evidence.

—— Q. You have seen those very prints or duplicates of them?—A. Yes.
A. T. Britten. (Further bundle of plans, including some architectural plans, 
T, ——, m.f.i. "37").-Examination. '

Q. You are familiar with the site at \Vynyard? A. Yes. JQ
Q. Familiar with it by physical observation, of the substructure ? 

A. I pass through it daily.
Q. Only in that way! A. I saw some of it being done many 

years ago. My memory of that is very vague. I could not rely on it.
Q. Did you know Mr Stanley? A. A personal friend of mine.
Q. Do you recall the time when Mr Stanley was calculating the 

loads that might be placed upon a substructure at Wynyard and cal­ 
culating the size of the substructure? Do you remember the time he 
was doing it? A. Not the actual calculations. He did discuss with 
me certain experiments he made of stress measurements of the struc- 20 
ture to be placed on the substructure.

Q. At that time, you knew something of the problems involved in 
the substructure? A. Yes.

Q. Have you seen sufficient material in the way of plans, blue prints 
and calculations to enable you to know the quality and the load-bearing 
capacity of the substructure which is at Wynyard? A. With reason­ 
able certainty. There is a small margin of error.

Q. Due to what? A. Well, can I say it this way: There are three 
sources of information that I had available for the actual individual 
columns. There were these calculations by Mr Stanley which were 30 
mostly unmarked. In some cases they were ticked as if checked. In 
other cases figures were struck out and other figures inserted in red. 
The differences were in no case large, a few per cent, only in the 
strength of the column. Those calculations gave the full concrete sizes 
and reinforcement. They also gave the total load on steel columns. 
I was also supplied with a column schedule of concrete columns pre­ 
pared by James Bell and certain structural details bearing- the name 
of the Department of Railways. I compared those two series of draw­ 
ings. Unfortunately I did not have at that time a steel column schedule 
prepared by James Bell. 40

Q. You did not see that at that time ? A. I did not see that. It is 
in one of those plans there. I compared those. In regard to the con­ 
crete columns, the schedule prepared by James Bell was generally in
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accord Avith the original calculations of Stanley unaltered in red, with- in the 
out the red alterations. There were a couple of departures from that, Co t̂p 
matters like column sizes not being stepped down in floors and column South Wales 
piers not being reduced but generally speaking they followed the Eguitabh 
designer's original intention. The concrete columns prepared by the Jurisdiction. 
Department of Railways, which appeared to be of later date, were in plaintiff,s 
accordance with the red amendment, not the original calculations in Evidence, 
general. The steel columns, unfortunately, I only had one steel column No 20 
drawing, column 51 Department of Railways; that steel column was A. T. Britten 

10 suitable for the loading shown in Mr Stanley's calculation. Examination.
Q. Having told us that, can you tell us how this substructure in 

those columns compare with what is ordinarily used in Sydney! A. 
This is a good deal heavier than are used in city buildings.

Q. Just a fraction heavier? A. Several times the normal.
Q. Having seen those various documents to which you refer, are 

you able to tell His Honor what that substructure was evidently 
designed to carry? (Objected to).

Q. I will reframe my question. Having regard to what you have 
seen, are you able to tell me what that substructure is capable of bear- 

20 ing? (Objected to).
SIR GARFIELD: Q. Since you were last in the box, I think you have 
looked at all the plans and the calculations that have been tendered ? 
A. Well, I have had a brief inspection of a number of plans. I hope 
I have looked at them all.

Q. And the calculations too? A. The calculations. I have made 
sample checks of all calculations to date in fact.

Q. The question I asked you last was this: Having regard to 
what you have seen in the plans and to such knowledge as you have of 
the physical considerations at Wynyard—you told us what preliminary 

30 knowledge you have—are you able to tell us what building that sub­ 
structure would be capable of bearing ? A. Yes. It might assist 
the Court if I had a plan.

Q. Which plan would you like? A. Any plan which shows the 
block plan of the site. I can answer it, but it would be very confusing 
to the Court if 1 just put it into words.

Q. Give us a verbal picture first? A. Well, on the Carrington 
St. frontage, for the first two bays of columns back from Carrington 
St., that is approximately 60 ft., the substructure has been designed to 
carry a building approximately 150 ft. above the Carrington St. level. 

4fl For the remainder of the site it has been designed to carry a building 
to 150 ft. above George St., except that allowance has been made for 
a light area on both the north and south sides of the site, the light 
area extending from 60 ft. from George St. to 60 ft. from Carrington 
St. approximately.
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in the Mr WALLACE: Q. How wide? A. Well, it could be any width up 
™™ to about 30 ft-> and the depth would vary with the width. If it were the 

South Wales full width the floor of the light area could be extended to approxi- 
Eguitabie mately 110 ft. above George St. If it were narrower it could not go so 

Jurisdiction, high. That is governed by the external columns on the north and 
Plan's south faces.
Evidence. gJR GARFIELD . Q Would yQU look ftt ^^ ^ ( showing ) ? A.

A T^Britten ^ou^ ^ assist the record if I marked in pencil on this?
Examination Q' ^es< What you say they would be designed to do! A.

(Witness indicates on plan.) The centre group of columns have been \Q 
drawn for a building here. These columns are weaker (marked in red 
by a ring). I am unable to check the columns in this area because there 
is great uncertainty of what the loading would be on various designs. 
I will put a red cross there, across the area I have not investigated.

Q. Would you now mark it on this larger plan (showing) ? A. In 
the areas facing Carrington St. back to column line 53-55, and approxi­ 
mately 60 ft. from Carrington St., the building is designed to go to 150 
ft. above Carrington St. Over the remainder of the site the columns 
are designed for the building to go 150 ft. above George St., except­ 
ing for light areas north and south, which would extend from columns 20 
170—this would be on the south side—approximately 60 ft. from 
Carrington St., to columns 164, approximately 60 ft. from George St., 
and may be up to 30 ft. wide, northwards.
ME WALLACE: Q. Taking you up to which column? A. Which 
would be to column 66. It could be up to that area (indicating).
SIE GAEFIELD: Q. That line of columns there f A. 76-96. It 
could be up to that width. It could be less, but the narrower the light 
well the deeper it would have to be.

Q. The narrower the light well the deeper it would have to be? 
A. The narrower the light well, the lower the floor has to be; and 30 
similarly here on the other side, commencing at column 171, 60 ft. from 
George St. and extending towards Carrington St.; but owing to the 
shortage of time and the complexity of the structure I have not investi­ 
gated the area bounded by columns 83, 69, 85, and that one there.

Q. The unnumbered one west of 74f A. Yes.
Mr WALLACE: Q. You do say that from 171 you go southwards a 
distance of 30 ft. I A. 30 ft. or less.

Q. Which would take you up to 119 as a maximum 1? A. 119-81. 
The height of those light areas is governed by the weaker columns 
which I have marked with red circles, 168, 172. 40
SIE GAEFIELD: Q. The assumption is they would certainly bear a 
solid building across the centre within the limits you have shown by the 
green lines? A. Yes.
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Q. Explain how the strength of 172 and 166 bear on it? A. in the. 
Well, as I explained to you, I had column calculations made by Mr court 
Stanley via the Eailway Department, and I had certain column South Wales 
schedules and column plans prepared by Bell and the Eailway Depart- Editable. 
ment, which agree to those calculations, with modifications which I Jurisdiction. 
need not explain. The set of calculations, either original or amended, pia^ff's 
commenced at the third floor level, George St., and gave a loading at Evidence, 
that floor. I worked out the approximate loading per floor per column No 2o. 
for different shapes of buildings, and how many floors over would be A - T- Britten 

10 equal to the load assumed at that level. Examination
Q. You mean these external columns 172, 172A, 168 and 169 would 

bear some load. You could make a building over them? A. Up to 
an intermediate level.

Q. That is the level you have not determined? A. If there was 
no wall back for 30 ft. it would be approximately 110 ft. from George 
St.

Q. Can you draw those sections for us? A. I will draw a section 
on columns 168-76.

(At this stage JAMES LESLIE FITZMAUEICE, The Clerk of 
20 The Metropolitan Licensing Court, produced documents on 

subpoena duces tecum.)

WITNESS: There is C.168, C.76, and that is the George St. level. It 
could either go to 150 ft., step down to 110 ft. at 76, like that, that 
being the light area, or the light area could be narrower, in which 
case the floor would have to be lower than 110 ft. Extending over 
there puts more load per floor on the column, (indicating).

(Plan relating to the evidence given by Mr Britten about the 
height of the building and the area it covers tendered and 
marked Exhibit "QQ".)

30 SIE GAEFIELD: Q. These lines that you have drawn, they indicate 
the maximum development that the columns could take in your opinion ? 
A. Yes. I should qualify that. That is the maximum development 
assuming construction similar to the four floors existing. It is possible 
to build in lighter construction or to build in heavier construction, 
which would obviously change the permissible number of floors.

Q. You have assumed the construction is as described? A. As 
now exists at the lower levels of the building; that is, a concrete floor 
and beams and brick partitions.

Mr WALLACE: Q. You could have glass partitions, of course? A. 
An If you cut out your brick partitions you could put in more floors 

probably.
Q. That applies to every building probably? A. Yes.
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in the SIR GARFIELD: Q. Is there one particular feature of that sub- 
mNew structure that you observed in the area in the centre of it? A. Yes. 

Wales Columns 53, 55, 78, 79, 98, 99, 114 and 117—those eight columns which 
Equitable form a closed group in the centre of the building—are designed only 

Jurisdiction, to go to about the fourth or fifth floor level. The eight columns flanking 
Plaintiff's them north and south are designed to carry much more load than 
Evidence, would come from the area they would support directly.

NO. 20. Q, "What feature of a building put on that substructure would those 
'._ ' circumstances permit! A. Well, it would be the evident intention 

Examination. t0 span over between the strong columns at some upper level or levels, 10 
so that you would obtain one or more areas free from columns, which 
would amount to approximately 82 by 145 ft.

Q. You could have a clear sort of unobstructed area as much as 
that on that substructure? A. Yes.

Q. You could choose a level for it. At what levels could you have 
it? A. You could have it at any or all levels above the existing 
structure, subject to certain restrictions. For instance, you must have 
one at about the fourth floor level, no higher, and if you put the trusses 
in much lower than the fifth floor, you must reduce the number of floors 
above. 20

Q. Because of the load? A. You might have to, because of the 
load on the external columns; but with such large spaces we generally 
have High ceiling heights and a reduced number of floors, and it is 
very unlikely you would be troubled by loads on the perimeter columns, 
and you could virtually say you could have it at any or all levels for 
all purposes.

Q. Tlie perimeter columns refer to the strong columns on the 
north and south sides of the weak columns? A. Yes.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. We had reached the point where you had told us 
the substructure permitted this unobstructed area? A. Yes. 30

Q. Do you remember telling me you had had some discussions with 
Mr Stanley when he was working on these designs! A. Yes.

Q. Was this question of how you would manage this large unob­ 
structed area discussed ? A. He discussed putting a roof over it with 
me.

Q. In 1930? A. I could not guarantee within a few years. It 
might even be a little bit later than 1930.

Q. That feature in this substructure—the design of the substruc­ 
ture—does that permit of any greater flexibility in future development 
of this site than a substructure which was designed with the same 40 
strength columns all over the same area? A. Oh, certainly, much 
greater flexibility in development, and it permits the development of 
dear areas.



335

Q. You had a look at the 1956 proposal, Exhibit "L2" (showing) ? in the 
A. Yes, I have studied a set of plans similar to these.

Q. Have you seen the specification that goes with them! A. No.
Q. Have you been told anything as to the strength of concrete to Equitable

, , . J .. .., „ , i , , 10 Jurisdiction.be used in connection with any oi the work, or have you seen any plan/ __ 
A. I have seen it somewhere. I am not sure if it is on these plans or 
on something else. It would be on the structural plans.

Q. That is what I am showing you. Have you seen Exhibit "10" A. T.°Britten. 
or a duplicate of it (showing) ? A, I have seen these two sheets. _, ——

I/-VTT . . , i • 11 i ; -VT r> .examination.11) 1 do not recognize this small sheet, No. 3.
Q. But you have seen the other two sheets '! A. Sheets 1 and 2, 

yes.
Q. I want you to tell us, what use does the 1956 proposal, "L2" and 

"10", make of the columns in the substructure! A. Well, as far as 
the height of the building goes, which is not the full permissible height 
of the building, it makes use of the first two lines of columns from 
Carrington St.; that is the line in the street, and the line about 30 ft. 
back; and the various subsidiaries columns in that area, and partial use 
of the next line of columns and uses the remaining columns to a very 

20 limited extent, and, of course, the George St. end ones are not utilised 
at all.

Q. As you say, up to the extent to which the architectural plans go, 
it only makes partial use of those columns only! A. Yes, and only 
uses the area on one side of them, on the western side, and they are 
strong enough to take floors on both the west and the eastern sides.

Q. Do the plans "L2" and Exhibit "10" introduce any features in 
the use of the columns or their extension which would hamper or inter­ 
fere with development across the whole area of the site, as you have 
indicated in your prior exhibit! A. Yes.

30 Q. Give us some particularity of that? A. Well, the first one is
column 51. That is shown as reinforced concrete, with 3,000 Ibs a
square inch on the column schedule sheet. It is shown——

Q. We have had this referred to, but my friend thinks you ought 
to give it! A. 51 is shown as a 44 x 4 inch column, sitting on top of 
all the existing structural steel column at Carrington St. level. It is 
shown bearing on a cap plate approximately the size of the existing 
structural steel column, with reinforcing bars welded on. The full data 
of the reinforcement is not given. Concrete is a much cheaper column 
material than steel per Ib. carried, and steel is only used when the size of 

Af\ concrete becomes excessive or when there is heavy moment, but for 
straight load carrying capacity concrete is the cheaper material, and 
I estimated the load on the column and the strength of the column, and 
in that I was assisted by another plan given to me, showing the develop­ 
ment of this scheme projected to 150 ft. above Carrington St.
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Q. Which one was that document (Exhibits "2", "3" and "4" 
snown ) • A. It is exhibit "4" which shows projected development of 

South Wales that building to 150 ft. I also had the advantage of having made avail- 
E^itabu akl° to me Mr Llewellyn's calculations for the building, which gave— 

jurisdiction, his were not complete, but—a good deal of load coming on to that 
Plaintiff's column, which tallied with the figures I had obtained independently 
Evidence, before I had inspected his calculations and studied the plan. Actually 
No~20 I §°t a little bit smaller load than he did, but not of any significance. 

A. T. Britten. He made it 130,000-lbs. per floor, I made it 124,000. That is for the 
Examination, lower floors; and, of course, it is less for the upper floors. On that 10 

basis I estimated the total loading on column 51, assuming completed 
in the form of Exhibit "4", was about 1,500,000-lbs. Mr Llewellyn's 
figure would have been a little bit more than that, around 1,600,000-lbs. 
—he did not have the exact figure worked out—but because of the differ­ 
ence in floor loading I would expect that figure. The column as 
designed as shown on these plans is a very economical and suitable 
column for that loading.

Mr WALLACE: Q. Designed in which plan? A. As shown in 
Exhibit "10".

TO SIR GARFIELD: It is a very economical and suitable column for 20 
that loading. The strength of the column could be increased to about 
2,000,000-lbs. by simply adding in maximum steel. It could be increased 
to about 2,200,000-lbs. by increasing the size of the bedplate on which it 
sits, which does not cover the form area of the column, by increasing 
the strength by about 5,000 Ibs. concrete——

Q. Those other figures which you gave were on the assumption of 
3,000-lbs. concrete strength? A. Yes. By increasing the concrete 
to 5,000, the strength of the column could be raised to about 3,000,000— 
of course, using maximum steel—witli the existing bedplate; and about 
3,200,000 or 3,300,000 with the bedplate enlarged to its possible maxi- 30 
mum size. May I refer to my notes I made for the figures'?

HIS HONOR: Yes.

WITNESS: Now if the area was developed to the maximum extent that 
the existing substructure would permit, the loading which came on 
that column 51 could be 4,500,000 to 5,000,000-lbs. at that level, depend­ 
ing on the occupancy. Now it could be developed, of course, to a more 
limited extent, and the loading would be less, but I am talking now in 
terms of maximum possible development, bearing in mind the existing 
substructure.

SIR GARFIELD: To sum that up, the capacity of 51 as designed at 40 
3000 Ibs. concrete and with the dimensions shown in Exhibit "10"—— 
A. Is less than half——
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Q. Less than half what would be required for full development? in the 
A. Yes, and in reinforced concrete it cannot be made to carry what
could be required. South

in its
Q. That is one feature which you say the 3956 design introduces, Equitable

which would hamper or impede future development. Is there any other ? uns_^on -
A. Yes, there is a much worse feature to my mind. Perhaps I should Plaintiff's
withdraw that. I do not think I should say that, should I? I should ™J^ce-
withdraw the words "much worse". That is really a personal opinion NO. 2p.
rather than a technical opinion. ' ritten'

10 Q. We will keep to the objective fact? A. Well, there is another Examination- 
feature.

Q. What is it! A. That is that two additional columns have 
been introduced, marked 53A and 55A. By the nature of the construction 
of the building and what was built before, they must extend from 
Carrington St. to I think it is the 8th floor, 7th floor ceiling, where it is 
stepped back a little. I will check on that number.

Q. Look at Exhibit "4" again? A. To the 8th floor, which is 
the 7th floor ceiling, from Carrington St. Now that column is in and 
cannot be removed when extension is made, and the load on that column 

20 cannot be increased.
Mr WALLACE: Q. Are you speaking of 53A? A. Once it is in, as 
shown on the plan.

Q. 53A? A. 53A and 55A; those two columns in future construc­ 
tion must go to the 8th floor, and if the building is constructed according 
to these plans they can never be removed for the benefit of extension 
easterly, and they will not carry any appreciable additional load.

TO SIR GARFIELD : Column 53, which is the original position of 53A, 
and column 55, which is the original position of 55A — about 13 ft. or so 
easterly of those two new columns — do you want the George St. or 

30 Carrington St. datum?
SIR GARFIELD: Q. You nominate it each time? A. For this 
building I will refer to the floors above Carrington St. throughout this 
section of my evidence.

Q. We are dealing with the projection of the 1956 scheme! A. 
The 1956 scheme only. The 8th floor that I mentioned before refers to 
that datum. As planned or as shown on that plan, the column schedule 
finishes above the first floor Carrington St. — 53 and 55 — and in future 
extension it can be extended one floor. That will be about the limit of 
its carrying capacity. Then, above that you have to truss and pick up 

40 that column again, but it must still go in to carry the floors above the 
truss. Above the truss it must be carried on to the truss, so actually 
53 and 55 must extend through the building except in the clear areas 
formed by trussing over on one or more floors as originally planned, but
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in the having passed that point, it must start again from the truss and con- 
New tinue as a column. That means, except in the areas made into clear 

South Wales floor areas by trussing, you will have all the original columns in the 
Equitable building, including 55 and 53, and two additional columns, 53A and 55A, 

jurisdiction, on every floor up to and including the 7th. They terminate on the 8th, 
Plaintiff's so ^nev ^° no^ aPPear above the 8th floor; that is, on those, nought, one 
Evidence. —up to seven—that is eight floors—you have two additional columns 

No 20. introduced over and above what were there already and none removed. 
A. T. Britten. That, of course, is an undesirable feature. Great expense is already 
Examination, being put to to maintain a wide column spacing. What is an even JQ 

worse feature is that those two columns obstruct and reduce the clear 
area that can be provided by trussing over. They are in the area 
designed to be prepared as open space, by trussing over, and they cannot 
be removed.

Q. It reduces the utility? A. It reduces the possibility of 
making a large open space in your building and thereby reduces the 
flexibility of construction and use.

Q. I want to ask you something1 about the open areas later on. 
However, those are features that are derived from the introduction of 
53A and 55A? A. They are not the sole objections. Another objec- 20 
tion to those columns is this: As I said, columns 53 and 55 can go up to 
about the second floor level, Carrington St. If you build in the middle 
the remaining floors—that is, the third to the seventh, and the ceiling 
of the seventh, which is the eighth floor . . .

Q. East of the line of columns 53A and 55A? A. That is about 
the centre of the site. If you intend to occupy that area and join on to 
the existing building, the 1956 building, from the third to the eighth 
floor inclusive, you cannot bear your building on 53A and 55A. It must 
be carried on cantilevers over columns carried off the trusses.

Mr WALLACE: Q. You said from the third to the eighth floor 30 
inclusive—and then what? A. You have to carry your extension 
on trusses spanning from column 51 to column 57 and cantilever from 
those trusses over to 53A and 55A.

SIB GABFIELD: Q. Over the line of them? A. Over the line of 
them, on each floor used, without letting the floor or any wall carried 
from that floor bear on the structure supported by 53A and 55A.

HIS HONOR: Q. In other words, wipe those columns above the second 
floor as any weight carried? A. That is so. The new structure is 
to be built quite free of them, and there must be no contact between 
the two structures in that area. 40

SIE GABFIELD: Q. Which might transmit load! A. Which 
might transmit load. That is a most objectionable and expensive con­ 
struction to have, to construct and maintain.
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Q. Not only to construct but also there is maintenance on it! A. in the 
Yes, maintenance.

Q. If required you could reduce that to schematic form, to dia- 
grammatic form! A. Yes, I could if desired. It would be better if Equitable 
1 had a draughtsman do it rather than myself, because as you might Jnnsdictlon- 
see I am not very good at drawing. Plaintiff's

Q. But if necessary that could be reduced to schematic represen- ——
•infirm 9 A Voa No. 20. tationf A. leS. A. T.Britten.

Q. Something has been said here about trusses, trusses of the ——. 
10 order necessary to span between the line of steel columns in that sub- xamma 10 

structure and to carry the building from the ti'usses to the permissible 
building height? A. Yes.

Q. The question of economics protrudes into this, regarding the 
cost of using these trusses. Would the cost of building with these 
trusses be of a consequential magnitude. Tell us what would be the 
cost of putting in these trusses 1 A. It would not be very important 
:n the cost of the building at all. Can I refer to my notes?

Q. Yes? A. Assuming the worst condition—that is, that you 
truss over at the lowest possible level immediately and carry the maxi- 

20 mum building height full area thereon at heavy loading . . .
Q. As heavy a form of structure as you like? A. Yes. Then 

the trusses would be about 84 ft. span, and the most economic con­ 
struction would be to make them about 3 floors deep, 30 ft. to 33 ft. 
deep.

Q. According to your floors? A. Yes.
Q. How thick, how wide 1? A. The section off them?
Q. Yes. A. Well, actually the section off them would be gov­ 

erned by the steel columns to which you are attaching. It would be a 
two-plane truss coming on to the web of the existing steel column. 

30 They would be about the width of the existing steel column. They need 
not necessarily be as wide over all, but there are two webs in that 
steel column that you have to connect. If I remember, it is of 18 
inches centre—it may be a bit more. The truss on the steel would 
be about 2 ft. to 2' 6" wide. I have worked out the total cost of that, 
compared with what was in the original building.

Mr WALLACE: Q. What do you mean by "what was in the original 
building"? A. Compared witli what the stereotype building would 
be; a building with no trusses going straight down.

HIS HONOR: As I understand it, at the moment he is giving the com- 
40 parable cost between these trusses and what he says would be the 

equivalent in normal structure with columns one above the other.

SIR GARFIELD: Yes.
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inthe WITNESS: I have amended these figures and I am having a little bit
^> of difficult7 in following them.

Wales &IR GAEFIELD . Q. Your pencilled figures? A. Yes; 46 _ tons 
Equitable extra steel in one truss, compared with the column construction— 

jurisdiction. wllich I estimated at 7, and I cannot read the second figure unfortu- 
Piaintiff'a nately, and then I allow for the concrete casing and the forming. I 
Evidence. can rea(j the gnaj ggm-Q for the truss construction of £8,900 for one 
No. 20. truss.

A. T. Britten.
-^- Q. Do you mean that is additional to the cost of the stereotype 

Examination, construction through the same number of floors concerned 1? A. Yes, JQ 
through the three floors concerned.

Q. £8,900 per truss? A. Which multiplied by the number of 
trusses and divided by the area supported and the number of floors 
supported—that is the extra cost of trussing per sq. ft. of floor over— 
which comes to approximately 6/-d. per sq. ft.

Q. On the floors concerned? A. On the floors concerned, as 
compared with the cost of the building, which would be about £6 to £10 
per sq. ft.

Q. Does that mean that if you put the trusses in, in respect of 
3 floors you would have an added cost of 6/- per sq. ft. ? A. In 29 
respect of all the floors carried, which would be about 8 or 10, but on 
the other hand if you reduce the number of floors carried——

Q. Firstly, this is on the maximum basis, the worst view. The 
worst view is that the floors above the trusses and through which the 
trusses pass—those three floors as well—— A. May I offer some­ 
thing? That is the maximum loading, but it is not the worst view.

Q. All right, the maximum loading. On the basis of the maximum 
loading, by the use of trusses at the low level—the lowest place you can 
put them—and using the biggest truss, you would increase your cost 
per sq. ft. over all the floors in the central area above the truss and 30 
the floors through which the truss passes—— A. The whole floors 
carried by the truss.

Q. You would increase your costs by 6/- per sq. ft.? A. Yes.
Q. The order of cost for the construction—the normal construc­ 

tion—being £6 to £10 per sq. ft. per floor space ? A. Yes.
Q. You said a while ago that the ability to have the open space was 

a desirable feature? A. Yes.
Q. When you are able to truss over and you have a no columned 

space? A. Yes.
Mr WALLACE: He says that is desirable? 40 
SIB GARFIELD: Yes, he does.

Q. At p. 122 of the transcript, Mr. Llewellyn was asked this—it is 
at p. 122:
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"Q. Generally, from a structural engineer's viewpoint what in the 
do you say of the 1956 plan, from a constructional viewpoint 1? Co^ 
By that I mean how would you comment on them from the point South Wales 
of view as to whether they are clean or clear, straightforward Equitable 
or difficult or offer structural difficulties?" Jurisdiction.

Mr Llewellyn's answer was: E^dem»8
"A. The whole problem of the Plaza Hotel was the central N~T0 

core of weak columns so any plan which avoided that central A. T. Britten, 
core must of necessity from the structural engineer's point of _ ~— .

T.id j -i • i -Examination.
10 view be a better one than the one over it, and therefore we think 

that any scheme which builds over the perimeter columns—and 
the 1956 one used that perimeter facing Carrington St.—as being 
a much cleaner, better scheme involving many less problems 
that any scheme that went over the centre core of the building.''

Do you agree with that statement ? A. I agree with that statement 
insofar as accommodation envisaged in the 1956 building was concerned, 
solely from the point of view of hotel bedrooms or similar small rooms 
—not for other possible uses.

Q. Is there any structural problem that is derived from the fact 
20 that this central area of columns is weaker than the other columns ? 

A. Not in my understanding of the word "problems". "Problem" 
means something to me that the answer is not obvious, it has to be 
thought out and it is difficult. Structurally it is clear what has to be 
done, and two days work would do it.

Q. The answer is if it is a problem—— A. It is not a problem if 
the answer is obvious. There may be hard work and there may be 
financial problems, but not a structural problem.

Q. Then, Mr Llewellyn goes on to say "The 1956 plan develops 
the perimeter columns." Is that right? A. Well, part of them.

30 Q. Not the whole of them? A. Not the whole. The extension 
develops two ends and half the perimeter.

Q. What he does is he steps in then, and you get these 53A and 
55A columns? A. Yes.

Q. Is there any structural difficulty about carrying the eastern wall 
of a building that faces Carrington St. on the line of columns that 53 
and 55 form part"? A. Carrying it on those columns instead of on 
55A and 53A?

Q. Yes 1? A. Oh, no. It would need some extra construction and 
finance; but not a structural problem.

40 Q- ^ °u have seen that exhibit on which there are certain floor 
areas—exhibits "3" and "4". Have you seen the series of isometric 
drawings produced by Mr Scott? A. Yes, I have seen those. I have 
seen Exhibit "4", but where is exhibit "3"?
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in the Q. I show you Exhibit "3"? A. No, I have not seen that one. 
Court of New Q. But you have seen Exhibit "U", the isometric drawings of 
8oUin Yte 1** ^r Scott ? A. I have seen isometric drawings by Mr. Scott. They 

Equitable are probably the same. Can I look at it to be certain? 
_1_L 10™' Q. (Exhibit "IT" shown). On exhibit "4" there are certain calcu- 

^ati°ns °f fl°or areas, do you remember? A. A summary of them, 
not calculations of them.

A. T. Britten. Q- A summary of them. Did you then look into the question of 
_ —— the accuracy of these summaries ... A. Can I have Exhibit "4"f
Examination.

Q. You went into the question of the accuracy of those summaries, JQ 
and did you also go into the question of the floor areas of the different 
types of development suggested? A. Yes.

Q. Did you have prepared a representation of these things, along 
with some figures as to the floor areas? A. Yes.

Q. I do not think it will be necessary to go into the details of this, 
because most of it speaks for itself, doesn't it? A. I have prepared 
it in this form because it was easier to do it and to present it in this 
way than to traverse it.

Q. Tell us about the sheet No. 1259-1. What does that represent? 
A. That is simply our office number. 1259 represents the job or work, 20 
and the sheets are prepared for the job in succession.

Q. What is sheet 1? A. Sheet 1 shows possible development off 
the floor from the 1954 plan.

Q. That is on the assumption that the 1954 plan was executed, 
then these things could be done in extension! A. Yes. We start off 
with drawing No. 1 in the top left hand corner, which indicates the 
maximum development of the site for non-residential purposes, for 
which natural ventilation and natural lighting are unnecessary.

Q. There are such purposes ... A. That shows how the 
individual floor areas can be laid out ... 30

Q. We come down to two ... A. with various amounts off 
lighting, for one, two and three; and four is simply the projection— 
the maximum projection—allowable on the Carrington St. end. We 
have the different level of George and Carrington Streets.
Mr WALLACE: Q. I do not follow that? A. 62 ft. to the Carring­ 
ton St. end can be built to a greater height on the existing sub-structure.
SIE GARFIELD: Q. Because of the difference in the level in the 
streets? A. Because of the difference in the level in the streets.
SIE GAEFIELD: Q. What is No. 5? A. 5 is a probable, not 
necessarily the most, but a probable development. 40

Q. Of these within structural limits? A. What I did in each 
case was to start off with the maximum the sub-structure would allow 
and consider reasonable alterations within that limit.
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the 1954 plan is extended, which is not impossible. The projecting A. T. Britten, 
wins; on 5 is the only plan of that area occupied by the 1954 plan. It ——

--i, ,-,,., r J L Examination.10 can be extended as shown in 2.
Q. That is to say, brought to the east? A. Yes, the east. In 

the same way, 5 and 6 differ in the north wing of the same area. It 
is narrower in 5 than in 6.

Q. What does 7 mean—intermediate floors with bedrooms? A. 
7 and 8 differ from 5 and 6 only in that they have a central lightwell 
inserted to permit of bedroom development on the lines of the 1954 
plan. No. 9 is the development that was shown by Mr Nicholls as 
the future development of the 1954 plan. That is, of course, incorrect 
in several respects. I will come to that in a moment. I put it in 

20 there for the purpose of comparison. 10 or 11 are what could happen 
to the extension of the 1954 plan above the levels of the centre block. 
10 and 11 are developments off the 1954 plan above the level to which 
the centre of the block was taken, that was projected. I am setting 
out the various alternatives; I do not necessarily recommend any par­ 
ticular one of them. 12 and 13 give two alternative versions, that 
is to say substituting four for three bedrooms floors.

Q. Those are the top floors in Carrington St.? A. Yes. That 
gives the possible floor lay-outs I have considered in Sheet 2.

Q. Would all of Mr Scott's proposals in Exh. U be capable of 
3Q being carried out on the sub-structure ? A. Yes, but they are not 

included here.
Q. Separately you have considered whether they could be carried 

b'y the sub-structure? A. Yes, I was asked that; I said they could 
be. They all fall within my block limit of the building. That shows 
how those various floors can be arranged in various types of develop­ 
ment of the site. This was done specifically to rebut certain evidence 
given by Mr Nicholls as to the limits of the 1954 plan. I have not 
considered in these any alternative to shallow floor development, which 
he was considering. Some of these things that I have shown here would 

4Q be silly in practice because there are better ways of using it with greater 
ceiling height, using the available area; but it is to put this comparison 
on the same footing as Mr Nicholl's evidence as to the floor areas and 
to rebut it—as shown on Exh. 4.

Q. He has 9 ft. 6 ceilings, or something of that sort? A. Yes.
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in the Q. You have just followed that plan, although you say in success- 
tfew fr^y planning you would use higher ceilings? A. Yes, I just combat 

South Wales one aspect of his evidence, in order to make an adequate comparison on
EquMbie *he same footing. On Sheet '2 I have shown elevations of buildings. 

jurisdiction. Q what part of Exh_ 4 ig fois directed towards refuting? A. 
Plaintiff's Floor areas.

_!- ' Q. You were going on to say that you got some sections here? A.
TM^'tt I have block elevations of the building. On each one I have numbered
-— ' the floors on the left from Carrington St. and stated just to the right

Examination. Of that to wjiat p|an on sheet 1 each floor relates. 10
Q. The internal numbers represent the floor plan on Sheet 1, that it 

would be appropriate to f A. Yes.
Q. That enabled you to convert this block elevation into the plans ? 

A. Yes, and work out, as I have done below, the various alternative 
areas, depending on which development is used.

Q. When you say type 5 and type 7, that is a reference to the 
numbers on Sheet 1? A. Yes.

Q. Mr Nicholls only had his figures on the floors shown on Exh. 4. 
The extension of the two wings is shown on 1954 plan. You have not 
merely set out to show that Mr Nicholls is wrong with his floor areas 20 
but you have also, at the same time, in these exercises shown what floor 
areas could be obtained by the various forms of development? A. 
Mr Nicholls——
Mr WALLACE: It seems to me that the only diagram on the first sheet 
which is referable to what Mr Nicholls has done would be No. 9.

Q. Your No. 9 on Sheet 1 represents the only plan that Mr Nicholls 
has dealt with in his floor areas! A. He says it is the only possible 
plan.

Q. It is the only one in fact which he has dealt with. I only want 
to see if I am following your evidence. If you look at your first sheet 30 
and look at plan No. 9, that is the only type of plan with which Mr 
Nicholls dealt on Exh. 4! A. Yes.

Q. That is so? A. Yes. I am saying the plan is incorrect. I 
am suggesting alternatives that should be considered.
SIE GARFIELD : Q. On what you have done on Sheet 2, having those 
block plans and those varying principles, you then compute and show 
the areas 1 A. They could be dealt with on the 1954 plan in varying 
ways.
Mr WALLACE: Q. Which could be done from a structural viewpoint? 
A. Yes. 4Q

Q. Not a technical viewpoint? You have dealt with it from a struc­ 
tural viewpoint or an architectural viewpoint—you are not an architect ? 
A. No.
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SIR GARFIELD : These figures will speak for themselves. in the
Supreme

HIS HONOR: But let the witness direct our attention to such of the 
figures here on Sheet 2 as prove that the floor areas taken by Mr 
Nicholls in his plan are wrong.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. If you take the third sheet, it is the easiest. On Plaintiff's
the front sheet you have the various alternatives and you have totals " ence'
under Al, A6, B, D. E, for 1956 ? A. Yes. ' No. 20.

' ' ' ' ' A. T. Britten.
0. You get ultimately two figures that disagree. Would you show _, ~ ~ .

, , c • .1 •,-! n i . Examination.us those, comparing them with Exh. 4.

10 Mr WALLACE : Q. Then if you go back to your second sheet, would I 
be correct in assuming that the plan and figures marked "E" constitute 
the only direct reference to Mr Nicholls' exhibit 4? A. No I would 
not agree with that. I do not think that.

HIS HONOR : Q. I think that must be so. Start off with Sheet 1 and 
look at No. 9. That one is the only one that you have shown as similar, 
as a diagram, to what Mr Nicholls took? A. Yes.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. Take Exh. 4. If you take that and then take Mr 
Nicholls' righthand side drawing, will you tell us on your Sheet 1 
which representation of yours is identical with that? A. None.

20 Q. The lefthand one on Exh. 4? A. The lefthand one is No. 1.
Q. Which one on Sheet 2 is Mr Nicholls' lefthand side one on 

Exh. 4? A. "E".
Q. It is the same ? A. Yes.

Mr WALLACE : Q. The only difference in the figures is two hundred 
and eleven thousand versus two hundred and five thousand ? A. No, 
you are misinterpreting the figures there, that is not the complete 
figure ; that is only the figure above XX.

HIS HONOR : Q. XX is the first floor on Carrington St. ? A. Yes.
Q. So above the first floor in Carrington St. you say the difference

30 between what Mr Nicholls says is the available floor area and what
— • you say it really is, contrary to Mr Nicholls, is the difference between

234,200 and 205,800. Is that right? A. No. I have no knowledge
of what level these figures are taken from, what floors they include,
whether they include Carrington St. or not 1

Mr WALLACE : Q. If you look at Exhibit 4 you will get your immedi­ 
ate answer. There is a note in the centre underneath the total area. 
"Note ground floor Carrington St. in both schemes". It is obvious 
it is excluded? A. It is not obvious if it is excluded or included. 
I do not know whether the 205 ——
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in the HIS HONOE : Q. Assuming that Mr Nicholls omitted what was below, 
CourfPof"New which figures do I look at on Sheet 2 to compare the Nicholls' figures 
South Wales with the true figures 1 A. For that, you can only look at the left

figure, 205,800.
WALLACE . Q Which on Sheet 22 j SUggest 211,660. That is 

A- That is
— - Q. The only difference between you and Nicholls is that you say 

A. T. Britten, he has left out a lift tower and available space and so on? A. Yes.

Examination. HIS HONOR : The rest is simply other schemes with other floor areas.

SIR GARFIELD : That is so. 10 

HIS HONOR: In that respect, it speaks for itself.

WITNESS : In 1259/3 on a strictly comparable basis I took out the 
extensions of the 1956 scheme on exactly the same basis as I took out 
the extensions to the 1954 scheme. The figure that compares on that 
with Mr Nicholls' 1956 scheme is, omitting his "below XX" — that is 
to say the total above XX, 199,811.
SIR GARFIELD: Q. What is Mr Nicholls' figure? A. 234,000.

Q. On your computations, Mr Nicholls' figure of 234,200 on Exh. 
4, on the same basis as he has taken, ought to be 199,8104 A. Yes. 
I might say I misread his figure. I assumed from his figures that he 20 
had taken the total area down to Carrington St. That is what that 
mark is to be compared with; but I am now informed that it is not 
those figures that should be compared. I marked on Sheet 3 the 
figures I thought should be compared with Mr Nicholls ' scheme. That 
asterisk and theta sign — in fact I am now informed I have misread 
Mr Nicholls' scheme in that it did not include work below Carrington 
Street, — in which case the difference is greater.

Q. It is against Mr Nicholls? A. The present position is this. 
The figures to be compared with Mr Nicholls' 205,800 are 211,660. The 
figures to be compared with 234,200 are 199,810. So as is obvious on 3Q 
inspection of the drawings, the 1954 scheme on this Sheet 4 has con­ 
siderably more floor area than the 1956 sheet. As is obvious on the 
drawings, there is considerably more area above the first floor, Carring­ 
ton Street. Perhaps, as I have misread Mr Nicholls' indication on 
4, this asterisk and theta sign should be deleted on the evidence because 
it might mislead somebody reading it.

Q. You could endorse on that what are the comparable figures to 
Mr Nicholls 7 work, or as my friend suggests ——
HIS HONOR: You had better put some note on, if you want to indi­ 
cate anything. ^Q
SIR GARFIELD: Q. If, contrary to your assumption, Mr Nicholls 7 
figure did not include anything below the first floor, Carrington St.,
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then the comparison as between Mr Nicholls*—— 1 A. The figures in the 
above "XX", first column, and under the second two columns—— Cm^of^New

Q. Then the comparison should be between Mr Nicholls' 234,200 S(mfJ«Us 
and what figure? Instead of 199,810, some lesser figure? A. Equitable 
Between 234,200 and 199,810.

Q. That is correct? A. That is correct, that is above "XX'
SIR GARFIELD: I tender the plan. N^20.

A. T. Britten.
HIS HONOR: The three sheets of the plan prepared by Mr Britton ^ —— 
to put his point of view in relation to the Plaza Hotel development, "——-'- 

10 being three sheets, will be Exhibit "RR".
SIR GARFIELD: Q. Is there any structural difficulty in putting one 
of these trusses on to a reinforced concrete column, making it bear 
on a reinforced concrete extension of the steel column? A. If the 
column is properly prepared in advance and the truss is not carrying 
the building towards maximum limit. It can be done—provided the 
total carrying capacity of the column is not exceeded.

Q. It would involve certain work being done to it, but it can be 
done? A. Yes.
HIS HONOR: Q. But you say the work has to be done in advance? 

20 A. Yes.
SIR GARFIELD: Q. You gave me a comparison of costs, using the 
truss and using orthodox column structure. On the assumption that 
the truss was put in below the floor and was carrying the maximum 
height of heavy construction, can you give us a general comparative 
figure of what reduction of costs you would get if you put it in at the 
fifth floor and had had no heavy structure from there up? A. In 
that case, if you put it in at the fifth floor—if you reduced the number 
of floors—the weight on the truss is removed almost in proportion to 
the number of floors carried and then cost reduces almost but not quite 

30 as much; so that the fewer floors you carry of the same weight, there 
are slightly higher costs per floor, per square foot per floor. On the 
other hand, if you had lighter occupancy the cost of the floor would 
be reduced to perhaps 5/- instead of 6/- per floor carried.

Q. You take your 6/- at maximum occupancy or maximum weight? 
A. Maximum weight, maximum height; it is about the average cost but 
it could be more or it could be less.

Q. If you take it up to the fifth floor, that 6/- would reduce ? 
A. It would increase slightly because you have certain fixed costs that 
you cannot overcome. The total cost would reduce but the cost per 

40 square foot would increase with a less number of floors carried.
Q. Its cost would be spread out over fewer floors but the total cost 

would be less? A. Yes; the cost per square foot would be slightly 
more.
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in the Q. We heard something here about flat plate construction. What 
rt^New f̂ ° vou understand by flat plate construction? A. I understand the 

South Wales construction of a flat concrete slab floor is brought onto columns with- 
Equitabie out capitals or beams; you just have columns and the plane flush soffit

Jurisdiction, of the floor.

Plaintiff's Q. Is that a novel form of construction? A. No.
—— ' Q. When did you first hear of that! A. In my course at the 

A T°Britten ^^^ University in 1926 or 1927.
——. Q. What was it called then? A. It was referred to in various

ways, the most common description was a flat slab without capitals JQ 
or drops. It is so referred to in the codes.

Q. Have you looked to see the earliest building code in which it 
has been referred to! A. The earliest I could find is Chicago in 
1918.

Q. You have a reprint of it here? A. I have it in a text-book.
Q. Structurally is there any difference in cost in putting in a flat 

slab compared to beams on mushroom capitals, as we have in this 
sub-structure? A. In general terms it is very hard to answer 
because certain conditions, loading span and so on affect cost. It is 
a question of which is most economical. They could all be used for any 20 
load on columns, in theory; but when you get very bad conditions for 
one it becomes financially impossible. In the sort of building you 
have at Wynyard, if you have many bays together in each direction, 
probably the most economical would be flat slab with capitals, consider­ 
ing only structural cost. In a single bay of similar span, beam and slab 
would probably be the most economical, as single bays favour this 
type of construction. On the other hand, where partitions, etc., have 
to be built there are savings in erected cost with flat plate. These, 
under present conditions, would outweigh the saving in structural 
cost as compared with flat slab. 30

Q. You say that is a method of construction you knew of years 
ago. Is there any reason why there should be a resurgence of it now? 
A. Yes.

Q. What has caused the resurgence? 
HIS HONOR: He did not say there was a resurgence.
SIE GAEFIELD: Q. What is it that favours use of the method? 
A. What favours the use of flat slab is scarcity of labor and high 
cost of labor for building construction—flat plate, I mean.

Q. To your knowledge was this flat plate used earlier, was it used 
as a method of building in other times ? A. I have seen reference 40 
to it in text-books; I cannot produce them though.

Q. When labour is plentiful and cheap, would there be a tendency 
to this type of structure? A. That would favour flat slab; saving 
materials at the expense of labour.
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Q. With respect to any of these developments that you have, 
either on your sheets or on Mr Scott's Exh. IT, could the advantages, 
if there be any, of flat plate construction be retained? Could you use South Wales 
flat plate construction in those developments? A. Which one do Equitable
yOU mean ? Jurisdiction.

Q. Any of them, or all of them I A. You could use flat plate in Plaintiff's 
all of them if you wanted to, and it paid to. Evidence.

Q. That would depend entirely upon the conditions when you were A ^"^ten 
building? A. Not entirely; for instance, there are parts of the —— 

10 structure where flat plate could not possibly be used, special cases Exammatlon- 
around liftwells and stairs and single bay construction.

Q. Subject to those special points which would in any event call 
for beam and slab construction, you could utilize this other technique 
if you wished to 1 A. Yes.

Q. With respect to the lift accommodation in these plans, did you 
look at the lift accommodation as provided for in the original draw­ 
ings ? A. I have done that.

Q. What did you observe ? A. There was a bank of lifts at 
Carrington Street, a small service lift went part of the way up, I 

20 believe, and a single lift on the York Street end.
Q. Was there provision for a bank of lifts anywhere in the column 

structure? A. At the Carrington St. end.
Q. There was provision amongst the group of columns ? A. Yes.
Q. In the 1954 scheme you noticed the lift accommodation ? A. 

There was no lift accommodation, only provision for future lifts.

HIS HONOR: Q. There was one on George St. ? A. There was one 
provided on the George St. side.
Mr WALLACE: Q. You had to walk 240 ft. from the furthest bedroom 
to it I A. Yes.

30 CROSS-EXAMINED Cross- 
Mr WALLACE : Q. You were with the Department and the Main Roads * ma ' n' 
Board for 25 years? A. Yes.

Q. For the first 10 years of that period you were doing bridge 
work! A. Yes.

Q. What sort of bridge work—making culverts and things like 
that in the country? A. No.

Q. What sort of bridge work did you deal with ? A. Steel, 
concrete and timber.

Q. What was your official position during those ten years? A. 
40 I started off as Assistant Engineer, graduated to the higher grade of 

engineers and when I left the Section I was second in charge of the 
Concrete Bridge Design Section.
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In the Q. In the latter 15 years you were on engineering administration 1
Supreme A y Court of New •a" x es -

Q. By administration, does that mean you were supervising staff 
Equitable and organising their activities at some headquarters or some office?

Jurisdiction, « -y

E^dence! Q- Mainly looking after—— A. Departmental files, yes.
No. 20. HIS HONOE: It was seeing that the machinery of the Department in 

A. T^Bntten. yOur sphere went smoothly? A. Yes.
examination. Mr WALLACE: Q. It is only during the last four years that you have

been engaged in practice on your own account? A. Yes. 10
Q. Mr McMillan is the gentleman who has had much more to do 

with these matters that you have spoken of, much more than yourself? 
A. Straightout building work you mean, city building? Yes, certainly.

Q. He has had much more experience than you in connection with 
structural work in city buildings? A. Certainly, yes.

Q. He also has had a good deal more time on these particular plans 
and figures upon which you have given evidence this afternoon? A. 
No.

Q. He has been engaged to look into these matters months before 
you were engaged? A. I do not know how much time he was able to 20 
give to it.

Q. He had been doing work on it for weeks longer than you have 
been doing it, for weeks longer than any degree of labour that you 
have been able to put into it? A. Do you mean weeks—in what sense 
do you mean weeks ?

Q. The first time you were asked to do anything about evidence 
in this case was little more than a week ago? A. No, the first time 
I was asked to give evidence, but I have been assisting Mr McMillan for 
quite a period before that.

Q. The first time you were asked to give evidence was a week ago? 30 
A. It was Saturday week.

Q. You say you had been assisting Mr McMillan on certain aspects 
for some time before that? A. At intervals, yes.

Q. Mr McMillan had been working on these plans and matters 
relating to the Plaza Hotel for some time before ever you were asked 
to give evidence? A. Yes.

Q. Mr McMillan has been back at work for some time? A. No.
Q. Is he still away from work? A. No, he paid his first visit to 

the office yesterday but had to go home after an hour or two; he was 
far from well. 40

Q. Would it be correct to say that Mr McMillan was Chairman of
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the Committee which fixed the code relating to live load reduction? in the 
A. He may have been; I think he was a member of it, I could not say. c^r^ 

Q. You cannot say whether he was Chairman ! A. I could not So"£
Say. Equitable

Q. You know he was a member of the Committee ? A. I do not
know, I think he would be but I cannot say if he was. I was not in 
partnership with Mr McMillan then.

Q. You have heard of such a thing, the live load reduction formula ? A. T. Britten. 
A. Yes. _ —Cross-

10 Q. Have you had enough experience with building constructional examination. 
engineering in relation to city buildings to know that over the last 20 or 
30 years there has been a very substantial liberalisation on the part of 
governmental authorities in connection with loads Avhich given sized 
columns are permitted to bear ? A. There has been considerable 
liberalisation in the last few years.

Q. In other words, if a column were designed to bear 1,000,000 Ibs. 
thirty years ago, it could be much smaller to bear 1,000,000 Ibs. today? 
A. Somewhat smaller, I would not say "much".

Q. Appreciably"? A. That is a bad word, how much is "appre- 
20ciably"?

Q. You do not know what "appreciable" means? A. Not in 
that sense, no.

Q. Have you any idea of the alterations which have been made? 
A. Yes, in the case of steel the basic stress has been raised from 18 to 
20.2 for columns.

Q. That is an increase of 10% ? A. Yes.
Q. Was there a prior liberalisation to that one, or is that the only

one you know of? A. For steel? The other liberalisation I think,
would be from 16 to 18, that would be before the days when these plans

30 were commenced, before any plan there. That is unfair on its own ——
Q. Do you or do you not know whether it was 16 some 25 years 

ago? A. For what purpose?
Q. For columns, steel carrying loads? A. In which code, for 

which purpose?
Q. The code you were talking about when you said it had gone 

from 16 to 20.2 ? A. I do not know what was in that code 25 years 
ago ; we were using other codes.

Q. But you do know it used to be 16? A. It used to be 16, I 
know, in the days before I went to the University; it is a long while 

40 ago.
Q. What was it when you were at the University? A. It was 

in the process of being changed to 18 in most codes.
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in the Q. Do you remember telling us this morning that the weaker ones 
were designed to carry somewhere about 1% million Ibs. Did you say 

South Wales that f A. The weaker ones ?
Equitable Q. You know there were weaker columns and stronger columns on

Jurisdiction. ^ YeS.

Plaintiff's Q Can you remember what figure you gave as to the loads they
Evidence. i • -i , » T i • * Ti i T j. j.__ were designed to carry.' 1 am speaking ot the weaker ones. Just to

A T°Britt identify them, take three columns which you encircled, 168, 166 and
'- — ' 172 ? A. I would have to refer to my notes, my calculations. I did

CrP88:. not say. inexamination. J lx-'

SIR GARFIELD: He did not give a figure.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Let me come to 53 and 55. Did you give us figures 
in regard to those? A. No, the only column about which I dis­ 
cussed figures and elevation was column 51.

Q. What did you give us with regard to 51? A. I pointed out 
that a reinforced concrete column could carry there 1,600,000 to 3,000,000 
Ibs. at second floor Carrington St. level and that loads coming on to 
it for future extension of the building would be about 5,000,000.

Q. Are you giving us figures that they were computed to originally, 
in respect of which they were designed originally 25 years ago? A. 20 
No, they were not designed originally.

Q. What were the first computations you saw and what date are 
they? A. They were about June 1956.

Q. When were they compiled, do you know? A. About 1956.
Q. By Mr Llewellyn? A. I did not actually check them very 

closely, I saw them to verify his total loading compared with mine. 
Q. You were talking about column 51? A. Yes.
Q. You gave a view about the effective load in the 1956 plans and 

whether they were capable of development up to the projected limits. 
Do you remember? A. Yes. 30

Q. One of your attacks on the 1956 plan? A. Yes.
Q. Do I understand you to base your attack on the fact that column 

51 is a steel structure down to Carrington St.? A. No, I base my 
attack on the fact that the 1956 extension was not in steel.

Q. Where do you say the 1956 extension commences from'? A. 
From the first floor Carrington St., the extension as envisaged in the 
1956 plans that were shown to me at the time I was answering that 
question.

Q. I would like you to be quite precise, if you can, and tell me 
where do you say column 51 goes in steel, under the 1956 plan? A. 40 
Do you mean the plan submitted by ——

Q. 1956? A. The 1956 plans for the extension?



Q. To \vlmt height do you say column 51 goes in steel under the ina«- 
1956 drawings '! A. Do you mean in the structure shown on the 1956 Co 
drawings:' Your question could have two meanings to me, I just want South Wales 
to make sure which question you really asked. Equitable

Q. Did you not say 51 is not steel on Carrington St.? A. To Jtlrî o 
the first floor above Carrington St. it is in steel. Plaintiff's

Q. You did not say it was steel only to the Carrington St. level? J —— 
A. No. I did not say either, as a matter of i'act, but it is in steel to the v 
first floor. '

JO Q- I suppose il' the steel goes up to the second floor above Car- examination, 
rington St., that would have an important bearing on your comment 
that you made on it for the development of 51 ? A. Yes.

Q. Future extension? A. It would reduce the loading on the 
overall development by something of the order of L'00,000.

Q. You said that it was reinforced concrete. Do you remember 
you began your first attack on the 1956 plans by directing your atten­ 
tion to column 51, and you said it was in reinforced concrete? A. 
From the first floor of Carrington St., upwards.

( L). You did not say it was from any floor upwards? A. Yes, 1 
20 referred to the schedule and I said "from this level". I should have 

referred to the second floor.
(.!>. You estimated the load on the column, did yon not? A. 1 

estimated the load on the column.
(,). For that purpose did you assume that the column \vas in steei 

up to only the first floor? A. I did not assume anything about the 
column to estimate the load on it.

< t>. But when you applied 1 he load, you assumed that the column
was in steel only up to the first floor? A. What I actually did, I
estimated the load on the column and 1 compared it with what a rcin-

30 forced concrete column of that section would carry. That is all I did.
< u>. But when all is said and done, what do you say is the weakness 

in the 1956 plan in regard to column 51 ? A. That it shows it in 
ieinforced concrete.

Q. You mentioned that it was only .'5,000 His. per square inch in 
the engineering specification ? A. Yes.

Q. Would you agree that oOOO Ibs. could be strengthened to 5000 
Ibs. at the direction of the engineer and would amount to practically 
no increase in cost? A. Certainly.

(.,). You agree with that? A. I stated that.
40 Q- The figure of about £50 has been mentioned here. Do you agree 

with that? If the engineer said to pour more concrete so as to make 
it 5000 Ibs. instead of 3000 Ibs. per square inch, there would be about 
£50 involved? A. Who gave you that figure?
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In the Q. Mr Llewellyn has said that ? A. I accept that. 
Court of New Q. Whilst I am dealing with 51, you said a few moments ago that 
S°Win 7ts Us Provided you pre-plan you could put the truss on to the reinforced 

Equitable, concrete extension of 51 A? A. Under certain conditions. 
unsj^on. ^ -j- ^ought yOU -j ug|. ga^cj ^ could be done. Did you mean by that 
Plaintiff's there would be the slightest difficulty in doing it ? As an engineer 

__ ' do you say there would be the slightest difficulty in resting one end of
TB truss on the extension of 51, if you knew you wanted to do it

- — beforehand and it was in reinforced concrete ? A. If the truss load
CrP88:. is not excessive, it could be done without difficulty. ]Oexamination. ' •* *"

Q. All you have to do, mechanically, is to put a step in it at the 
required level? A. Yes, obviously.

Q. So that when extending 51 all the planner has to do is to make 
sure that some simple little step is put in of the right dimensions, 
which would be mere routine for an engineer to work out? A. That 
is not all.

Q. What else is there ? A. He would have to verify what load 
was coming on that truss.

Q. Of course he would, but that is only routine for an engineer, 
verifying what loads come on to the truss ? A. It is only routine 20 
for the purpose of giving balance.

Q. I suppose he would want to know if he was doing any pre­ 
planning, what was envisaged by the total building going upwards? 
A. He would need to know that.

Q. Once the truss is rested on column 51, above the truss it need 
only be a comparatively weak column carrying the upper floors ? A. 
Xot comparatively.

Q. It is the lighter job? A. Yes, the load is about halved at that 
point.

Q. When you said it can be done, if you knew you wanted to do it 30 
I suggest the correct answer would be that it could easily be done? 
A. No.

Q. If you knew what sort of building you were planning for! 
A. No, because if you kneAv what sort of building you were planning for 
you might find you could not do it in reinforced concrete.

Q. But I understand the suggestion here is that the truss was to 
go on to the roof of the fourth floor ceiling, between the fifth and sixth 
floors? A. It may be. You have not told me what level yet.

Q. Do you tell me now that looking at all the plans you have seen 
you are unable to say at what floor it was originally intended to place 40 
the big truss ? A. No, I do not say that.

Q. What floor was it? A. I could tell you if I referred to the 
plans.
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Q. But you cannot tell me offhand ? A. No, I was not interested in the
flla f afao'p Suprememat stage. Court Oj New

Q. The lower the truss were placed, I suppose the more costly the SoVlfn 
building above it. Is that what yon indicate to His Honor ? If you Equitable 
put the truss down on the first floor, I understood you to say that it •Mtidiction- 
would be more costly to construct the upper floors? A. I do not Plaintiff's 
follow that question. " Evidence.

Q. Did you not indicate, according to your view, if anyone wanted A T°Britten 
to develop the centre of this site on the existing columns, they could —— 

10 Put the large span trusses at any floor level — first, second, third, fourth examination. 
or even higher ? A. Not at the first.

Q. At the second? A. At the second, they could; because the 
columns now go up to the first floor.

Q. They could put the truss at the second floor upwards; is that 
what you say ? A. Yes.

Q. E suppose you will agree they could put the trusses at different 
floors, one on the fifth floor, one on the third floor, if they wanted so to 
design the interior of the building? A. They could put them at 
different floors ?

20 Q- I tun suggesting something a certain gentleman said in the 
witness box yesterday, a gentleman called by Sir Garfield. There are 
lour trusses envisaged ? A. At least four, there may be eight.

Q. I do not care whether there arc eight or four, but there arc at 
least four ? A. Yes, you can truss over to your different levels if 
you decide ——

Q. Could you put Ihose four trusses on different floor levels, each 
one ? A. You could.
HIS HONOR: Q. If you have a wet of four, each one of the set could 
be at a different level? A. If you wanted to, yes.

30 Mr WALLACE : Q. Do you prefer to say that the lower you place the 
truss, the more costly it is to erect the building above it ? A. No.

Q. You were telling us something about lightwells that could be 
placed on this site. Do you remember drawing on an exhibit this 
morning the lightwells at the centre of the side ''. You said they could 
be 60 ft. back from Carrington St. and George St. ? A. Yes, on one 
cornei 1 I said I had not investigated.

Q. What made you say there Avere lightwells contemplated in 
relation to those areas? A. The column calculation.

Q. Did you do those yourself? (Xo answer). 
40 Q- Y°u took those from the data given to you ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you notice whether there were lightwells also envisaged 
anywhere else? A. Not by the column calculations, you could not 
tell.



350

in the. Q. Did you notice whether lightwells were envisaged in the original 
Supreme pia])S mado bv Kevv in I!'o4? A. You mean the architect's plans."Court of New L • *-

South Wales Q Some architect's plans and some prints of structural drawings
Equilabh in or about that year? A. 1 studied those plans very briefly this

Jurisdiction. moniing' for t)ie first time. I would like an opportunity to study them
Plaintiff's further.

vijenLe. g Have you seen anything that would indicate that originally
NO. 20. there were intended to be lightwells on the four corners of the building
'.— e"' on the site of Carrington St. and George St.—lightwells and squares at
Crp88-. each corner? A. I could not commit myself without studving the 1Q

examination. . ° lv/
architect 's plans.

Q. You cannot remember having seen anything to indicate that? 
A. I have a memory, in my quick look through this morning, of seeing 
ligbtwells in the plan somewhere, small lightwells, but I am not sure 
of the details.

(t). Have you studied the Regulations relating to light, Regulations 
governing lightwells and what natural light must be given in city build­ 
ings ? A. Yes.

< c>. Do you know the formula that is prescribed in that regard? 
A. 1 do not know it. 1 look it up every time. I know where to find it. 20 

Q. You do not know it offhand? A. T have if here in my bag.
Q. You do not know it out of your head? A. Xo, 1 think I do, but 

I might mislead the court.
Mr WALLACE: Q. Were you in charge of the laboratory for many 
years in the Main Roads Department? A. i beg your pardon?

Q. Were you a laboratory man in the Department? A. The 
laboratory was under my control but I was not in the laboratory.

(,). Have you had any personal experience in the construction of 
city buildings ? A. Yes.

Q. Which ones"? A. Xo large city buildings. We have had large 39 
buildings outside the city.

< t>. What, factoriesf A. And offices.
< L>. Factories going to two-storeys? A. Factories rarely go to 

two storeys these days, but of the office buildings the biggest one we 
had in hand would be six.

(.,). Did you personally have anything to do with that? A. Yes.
< t>. Would 1 be correct in suggesting that your firm has not had any 

constructional work relating to big city buildings in the last four years? 
A. That would be correct. Our work lias been outside the city, 
commercially. 40

Q. You are one, arc you not, who prides yourself on your academic 
qualities? A. Xo.



(,). Don't you put on your letterhead that you are a First-class in ate 
Honours and University Medallist? A. T suppose it is an advertise- Cof^™^lir 
ment. NoiitJi 'waiei

< L). Do yon or do you not? A. Put it on the letterhead, Yes. Equitable
<\ \T L i n i n A i i TT j i TT Jurisdiction.i^. ion put on your letterhead that yon are a hirst-class Honours __ 

and University Medallist? A. Yes. Plaintiff's
Evidence.

< L). You have criticised somewhat extensively the evidence given by —— 
Mr Llewellyn, haven't you? A. No. A. TJBritten.

Q. 1 understood you to criticise—— (1^ 
10 HIS HONOK: The phrase yon used, Mr Wallace, was "somewhat examination, 

extensively".
Mr WALLACE: Q. You have criticised Mr Llewellyn's evidence'? 
A. I criticised his use of the word "problem". That is all, to my 
knowledge.

Q. Do you remember, going to the question of flexibility (page 
334 of the transcript) which you allege is given by the large open area 
envisaged in the Inues-Kerr plan, fourth floor? A. Yes.

Q. Supposing you have that large open area H_ x 14.~>, as you said, 
suspended, so far as the ceiling is concerned, by the truss between 

20 the 5th and 6'th floors? A. Xot necessarily the 5th and 6th floors, 
but some upper level I said.

( L). Don't you agree that the innes-Kcrr plans envisaged a ballroom 
at the fourth floor? A. It could he, Yes. T was not thinking only of 
the Tnnes-Kerr plans.

Q. I am asking you to direct your mind to the Inues-Kerr plans ? 
A. I am sorry. Before that you were directing my mind to the adverse.

Q. On the limes Kerr plans there seems to be envisaged a ballroom 
at the fourth floor, doesn't there? A. "Which stratum, George or 
(•arrington Street '!

30 Q. George Street ? A. It probably would be the fourth floor. 
There are so many plans that, I am a bit lost. It could lie the 4th 
floor.

Q. It could be the 4th floor. That is what you are prepared to say ? 
A. It could be the 4th floor, George Street stratum.

( L). if you had first of all a truss only one floor deep, not 30 to 33 
ft. as you suggested on Thursday, but just one floor deep, based 
between the 5th and the 6th floors—— A. It would not match that 
plan, because that plan had a mezzanine to the ballroom, which would 
put it between the 6th and the 7th.

4Q Q. Is it your recollection that the Inues-Kerr plan envisages the 
truss between the 6th and the 7th? A. Xo. It envisages a truss 
two storeys above the ballroom floor. That is my recollection, but I 
mav be in error.
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in the Q. Who may be in evrorl A. I may be in error in my recollec-
Supreme |- Court of New UO11 '

South Wales Q j want you to assume it is between the 5th and 6th floors?
Equitable A. A truss between the 5th and 6th floor? All trussesf

jurisdiction. Q That ig right , A Qeorge gtvcet stratum ? Third and 4th,
Plaintiffs Carriiigton, Yes.

__ ' Q. When yon got np to the 5th floor in such a construction, you
A T^Br'tten wou^ĉ  'iave f°ur trusses about 30 feet apart going tlie whole height of

!— ' the storey in question between the 5th and 6th floors? A. Yes.
examination. Q- Occupying, in that sort of way, their positions on the 5th floor ? 1Q 

A. They would foul the 5th floor, Yes. They would have three members 
fouling the 5th floor in each wing.

Q. What do you mean by "each wing"? A. Each of the two 
wings you are envisaging.

Q. Quite frankly I am not envisaging any wing, i am envisaging the 
situation from the point of view of flexibility of the building itself; on 
(he floor above the open area. A. Yes.

Q. Would you agree that the position above the open area could 
diagrammatically be represented by what I have just drawn (showing) ? 
A. Well, that is in error, in two respects. First of all, the height scale 20 
is quite wrong. It is about half that height; and secondly, you have 
not shown the truss webb members. Would you like me to sketch 
for you what I think it should be ?

Q. No. It is purely diagrammatical and not by scale. Do you 
follow f A. Yes.

Q. Down below, I indicate the open area which I shall call a ball­ 
room for the sake of identification? A. Yes.

Q. Up above, there would be four trusses? A. I am sorry; it is 
the section?

Q. Of course it is a section? A. I thought you said it was a ->« 
truss with four columns sitting on it.

Q. Diagrammatically and roughly that indicates the position up 
above; the section"? A. I am sorry. In that case——

Q. It is fairly correct ? A. If it is fore-shortened vertically, it is. 
Q. But I am not on that—— A. It is rather important I think. 
Q. How is that; would that suit you now 1? (indicating) A. That 

is all right.
Q. I can assure you that on my questioning nothing turns on that? 

A. Very well.
(Abovementioned rough sketch m.f.i. "44"). 40

Q. Of course if you looked at that upper floor in plan, again purely 
diagrammatically you would see that, wouldn't you? (showing) A. 
What is that, the positions of the trusses?
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Q. The upper floor in plan, looking downwards on to the upper floor in the 
partitioned by these large trusses, from roof to ceiling ? A. With Cof^ 
the trusses in one floor level that would be practically the case, yes. South Wales

in its
Q. So, so far as that went —— ? A. There would be very limited Equitable

Jurisdiction.

Q. And far from having flexibility you have the floor cluttered up 
with these wall to ceiling partitions, the partitions being the trusses? 
A. Your planning on that floor is restricted, yes. A

Q. In order to lay that floor out, you would have to have doors — - 
10 through the trusses, and you would have to so partition it off that your examination. 

design of partitioning would be moulded by the trusses. Is that so? 
A. Well, it is so general it means nothing to me. Would you give the 
sense of it again please ?

Q. In order to design the layout of that floor, you would have to 
have openings through the trusses for doors. Is that correct? A. 
Yes.

Q. And secondly, whatever design for the rooms you envisage 
would be governed by those trusses? A. Oh, that would be right. 
That phrasing would be correct. I object to the word "moulded".

2Q Q. If you carried out your concept of having the trusses 30 ft. to
3o ft. in height, the situation which you have just agreed is shown in
m.f.i. "45" would also pertain to the next two floors up above it? A.
It would not apply to either of the three floors to any or the same extent.

Q. It would not apply to any of them? A. No.
Q. I thought you said that you would have trusses 30 feet to 33 ft.

in height? A. Yes, but each floor would only be constructed to a
width of about 8 ft. or 10 ft. on each side. You would have three big-
areas in the wall. If you had one truss you would have three members
on one floor in each 30 feet. If you have a truss three floors deep, you

30 have a member one floor deep on each floor. The total obstruction is 
the same as divided between the three floors.

Q. Would you have the trusses 30 feet deep? A. Well, approxi­ 
mately that, depending on the exact storey height.

Q. If they were 30 feet or 33 feet deep, would they extend through 
three floors? A. Yes.

Q. If they extended through three floors, would they not interfere 
with the layout of the floor on each of the three floors ? A. They 
would interfere to some extent with the layout of each floor.

Q. You said — I do not know whether you meant it, but you cer- 
Aft tainly said it — at page 334 this : You were being asked about whether 

you could have a clear sort of unobstructed area as much as that on 
that substructure. You were being asked about the pillars and the 
open one or more areas free from columns. Do you remember ? 
A. Yes.
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inHM Q. And you said, in answer to the next question, which was this:
^New "Q- You could choose a level for it. At what levels could

South Woks vou iiave jt ? A. You could have it at any or all levels above
SgnitaUe the existing structure, subject to pertain restrictions. For

Jurisdiction. instance, you must have one at about the 4th floor level, no
Plaintiff's higher, and if you put the trusses in much lower than the 5th
Evidence. floor, vou must reduce the number of floors above." 

Xo. 20. A y os
A. T. Britten.

—— Q. Did you mean by that that you could have one or more than 
examination. one open area f A. Certainly—at different levels. ]Q

Q. Do you mean by that that you could have open areas at all 
levels? A. Yes, but with an area of that size you would have to 
have a considerable ceiling height in an open area. You see, you could 
not have them every 10 feet.

Q. But you are insisting on your ability to have open areas on 
all levels, are you? A. You could have open areas right to the top 
of the building if you wanted to.

Q. So you could have a space Hi? feet by 145 feet, an open space 
of that size, at every storey? A. At every second or third storey.

Q. But you said all storeys' A. I might have misled yon, but 20 
that is not what T intended to convey.
MIS HONOUR: Q. When you said "at any or all levels", what did you 
mean by that? A. What I meant was that you could have it at a 
number of different levels suitably spaced.

<i>. But what did you mean by "all":' A. Vou can have the 
whole space right up to the top of the building, if you wished, with 
open areas at suitable storey intervals.
HIS HONOR: He means the open areas could go up to the top but 
there would not be one at every floor.
A\7ITNESS: There could not possibly be one at every floor. ™
Mr WALLACE: Q. Do you say you could have an open area every 
second floor? A. Well, that is governed by architectural considera­ 
tions, not engineering considerations.

Q. But on your evidence, do you say you could have an open area 
82 feet by 145 feet at every second storey ? A. Yes.

Q. So that at every second storey yon would have what I have 
suggested, this interference or cluttering up of the floor by the parti­ 
tions, caused by the single-storey trusses? A. No.

Q. If you had an open area on every second floor, that would 
mean that your trusses were one floor in depth ? A. No. 40

Q. How much in depth? A. I would not have trusses at all 
for a single floor.
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(t). What do you mean by that:' Do you mean )>y that, that hi 
connection with the construction of, say, a ballroom on the limes Kerr 
plans about or on the fourth floor from George Street, you would not South Wales 
have trusses at all? A. No, that is a different question. What I j^^Ue 
was saying was if you have two open spaces one on top of the other, Jurisdiction. 
the floor of the upper open space which is carrying no walls above, Plaittt;ff. g 
could be carried on beams. Evidence.

Q. I am asking you in connection with your answer given ,a ^°- ~o.
moment or two ago—and let me preface my question by asking another ' \_2

10 one, to make it clear that I understand vour evidence. Do you sav Ooss-
TTi • j j i , ' " examination.you could have going up to the top open space, no open space, open 

space, no open space—alternatively going up to the top ! A. Yes, 
you could.

Q. If you had that alternate arrangement, it would involve, 
wouldn't it, having trusses one floor deep every alternate floor? A. 
Yes, that would.

Q. That is what I am asking you? A. But that is not what you 
were asking me before.

y. Do you say that your evidence at page 334 means that you 
20 could have open spaces at every alternate floor, the open spaces being 

82 feet by 145 feet in size ? A. Every alternate floor built you 
mean ?

Q. Let me ask you again: do you say you could build a building in 
which every alternate floor was an open space 82 by 145? A. Yes, 
but there would be no intervening floors then.

Q. Wait a moment, first of all the answer is "Yes, every alternate 
floor"? A. Do you mean every alternate floor level of the building, 
every 1>() feet?

Q. The second floor, the 4th, the 6th, the 8th and the 10th would 
30 be all open areas, 82 x 145 feet? A. Yes.

(,). That can be done? A. Yes, and there would be no interven­ 
ing floors if you did that.

(,). AYhat is in between them? A. Nothing.
Q. If there is nothing in between them, does that mean that the 

height of the so-called alternate floors is the height of two storeys ? 
A. At least two storeys.

( c). If you had nothing in between them and all you had were open 
areas, two storeys in height, they would not be alternate but they 
would be floors in succession ?——

40 HIS HONOR: The witness envisaged that you might have these tall 
areas taking up two floor levels.
Mr WALLACE: That is what 1 was putting.
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In the Q. Then, if you had a series of open areas two storeys in height,
^ew •vou WOUW nave them one on top of each other ? A. Yes. 

South Wales Q <g 0 yOU would not have open areas physically on alternate 
Equitable storeys but on each successive storey, and they would be two storeys 

jurisdiction. jn height? A. I am sorry. That is what I intended. 
Plaintiff's Q. Then, the height of those storeys would be what? A. 20 feet, 
Evidence. Qi. evcu more they would be required.
TB-tt ' y°u Jus t explain how the trusses would go when you have

! _ two storeys, one on top of each other, each 20 feet high and each an
Cross- open area 82 x 145 ? A. You would have no trusses. You would have inexamination. l n-inij- JUfloor beams for a single floor loading.

Q. You would have columns coming up ? A. No, floor beams, 
spreading 80 feet in floor depth.

Q. Floor beams, 82 feet long? A. And about 4 feet to 5 feet 
deep.

Q. How would you support the 145 feet length ? A. They span 
30 feet from beam to beam.

Q. 1 follow that. This 80 feet in width floor beam —— A. It 
should be 85, I think it is.

Q. That would be on the bottom of each of these two storeys? 20 
A. In each floor-ceiling, construction. You take about five feet for 
your floor and ceiling construction.

Q. But how would you pass through a beam 5 ft. in depth. Would 
not that impede progress through the beams? A. In between the 
floor and ceiling you would lose 5 feet in every floor for your floor and 
ceiling construction.
HIS HONOR: Q. Virtually you lose a floor in three, don't you? A. 
Yes, something like that.
Mr WALLACE : Q. You would lose a floor in three ? A, Yes. It is 
expensive construction. 30

Q. It is not only expensive construction, but also no practical man 
would envisage it, would he? A. I would not agree with that.

Q. At all events, the flexibility you speak about is flexibility in 
connection with the open area, not with the floor above it, if it is done 
the way I was putting to you first of all ? A. No.

Q. That is so, isn't it? A. I quite agree.
Q. I suppose you would agree that the taller the ceilings the fewer 

the floors? A. Certainly.
Q. The fewer the floors the less the load on the columns? A. 

Certainly. 40
Q. Would you agree with this : you would not at all build several 

open areas with only single-storeyed depth trusses. You would not 
do that? A. Could I have that question again?
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Q. You would not build them alternately. You would not build in the 
open areas every alternate floor by means of the use of single-storeyed cJ^t"o/nNew 
trusses, trusses of single-storeyed depth ? A. If I was asked to, by South Wales 
the architect and owner, Yes. Equitable

Q. I suppose a structural engineer can do almost anything? A. Jurtsdt<:tion. 
Well, we flatter ourselves that we can. Plaintiff's

Q. If the architect and owner wanted, and if the money is avail- ——
able 1' A Yes No. 20. 
dUie. A. IBS. A.T.Britten.

Q. But just to make quite clear what is involved, I suppose you -— 
10 N'ould agree that if you used the high ceiling heights to which you examination, 

referred on page 334 of your evidence, the maximum number of floors 
that you could put in would be 12? A. High ceiling height? Which 
high ceiling heights ? We were talking about 20 feet ceilings before.

Q. You mentioned about the high ceiling heights (Page 422 of 
transcript); ". . . but with such large spaces we generally have 
high ceiling heights in a continuous number-of floors" . . .? A. 
In a continuous number of floors ?

Q. I am only quoting what you said? A. Did 1 say "continu­ 
ous" in that sense? (Evidence shown to witness). I think the sense 

20 is here even if it does not make good English.
Air WALLACE : Q. Do you see the question "Q. You could choose 

a level for it. At what levels could you have it?" Do you see that? 
A. Yes.

Q. You Avere speaking of this so-called open area, weren't you? 
A. Yes.

Q. You said you could haA'e it at any or all levels above the existing 
structure. Stopping there, the only Avay you could not have it at all 
levels would be by having these open areas tAvo floors in depth, one 
aboAT e each other. Is that so ". A. Yes.

30 Q. In that way you could only get six floors ? A. I think you 
would get less than that—probably only five.

Q. ". . . subject to certain restrictions. For instance, you 
must have one at about the fourth floor level, no higher, and if you 
put the trusses in much lower than the 5th floor, you must reduce the 
number of floors abo\'e." Did you mean that, or is there some error 
tliere ? A. No, that is quite correct.

Q. That you must have one at about the 4th floor level ? A. You 
cannot go higher than the 4th floor.

Q. You can go lower, didn't you say ? A. You can go lower, Yes.
40 Q- You did not mean that y°u mllst uave ^ &t about the 4th floor 

level. What you meant was you must have it no higher than the 4th 
floor level ? A. You must have the open space commencing no higher 
than the 4th floor level and the trusses must not be much lower than
the 5th.
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in tM Q. You now say it must not be any higher than the 4th floor level?
rNew •&-• ^°- The floor of the open space must not be higher than the 4th,

South Walts and the trusses over them must not be lower than the 5th, unless you
SquM>k reduce the height of the building.

Jurisdiction. g j tilougilt yoll toid the ( iourt 011 Wednesday that you could have
Plaintiff's those trusses at the second or third floor? A. But you would have
Evidence. t() redueo the heigrjt of flic building over.

A T^Britten ^- ^u* you al '° say' u8' 7OU must have the open area at or about 
-— the fourth floor '! A. At or below.

examination. Q. No higher? A. No higher. 10
Q. ". . . and if yon put the trusses in much lower than the 5th 

floor, you must reduce the number of floors above" (page 422). A. 
You cannot take the building so high. 

Q. You adhere to that? A. Yes. 
(t). Quite sure of that? A. Yes.
Q. No doubt whatever? A. Well, you might gain one floor. 1 

would not guarantee to one floor, but you cannot have maximum 
development and bring your trusses down, right down, to the George 
Street level.

Q. Do you say if you put the trusses at the second or third floor 20 
above the George Street level you would have to reduce the height of 
the building in the centre ? A. For full development.

Q. Is that what you say? A. Yes.
()). i.)o you draw any distinction between what is involved in 

developing a centre for hotel purposes on the one hand, and developing 
it for some suggested departmental store on the other! A. In what 
souse do 1 draw the distinction?

Q. Would you agree the departmental store would have a very 
heavy load? A. In the floor area developed?

Q. The floor area ? A. Yes. ^Q 
Q. What, about 100 Ibs.:' A. 100 Ibs.; that would bo right.
Q. Whereas hotel and office are 40 Ibs. and .")() Ibs. respectively, 

aren't they* A. Plus partitions.
Q. I am leaving them out? A. They are important. You can­ 

not leave them out.
Q. 1 am not leaving them out in the ultimate; but 40 or 50 Ibs. witJi 

a comparison of 100 Ibs. in a departmental store? A.. It is not a 
comparison with a departmental store. That is my point.

Q. Yon are envisaging an open area for a departmental store? 
A. Yes. 4Q
HIS HONOR: Q. What do you add on for partitions? A. Generally 
40 or 50 Ibs.



Q. Another 40 or 50 Ibs. ? A. Yes. in the
Supreme

Q. So there is no difference, reallv? A. About 20 per cent. Court of New
• ' South Wales

Mr WALLACE: Q. What sort of partitions are yon envisaging • A- Em^ie 
An hotel would have brick walls; 41-inch brick walls. .Jurisdiction.

Q. Are you serious when you say that? A. 1 am talking about Plaintiff's 
the construction as shown on the plans. Evidence.

Q. Are you serious when you suggest that modern designing and A. T. Britten, 
structure provides for 47-inch brick walls as partitions in this sort of —— 
building? A. In this sort of building?

10 Q. For hotels and offices? A. Yes.
Q. Is it within your knowledge, or is it not, that terra cotta, which 

is much lighter than brick, is extensively used in modern buildings? 
A. Oh, yes.

Q. That is much lighter than brick, isn't it ? A. Yes.
Q. Have you heard of vermieulite ? A. Oh, yes, \ve use it.
Q. That is much lighter than brick, isn't it? A. Yes.
Q. What I am suggesting to you is that in modern construction, 

especially hotel construction and office construction brick partitions 
are simply not used? A. Thoy are used when the substructure is 

20 there to carry them.
Q. They are not used in practice, \vlmtevcr the substiTicture is? 

A. They are.
Q. Do you know what is used in the M.L.C.? A. Yes. 
Q. What is it—at North Sydney? A. It is that lightweight 

construction you are talking about.
Q. What? A. I am not sure of the exact form of it.
Q. But you said you know it ? A. T know the general type of 

construction. L do not know the general trade name they are using.
Q. What is the "general lype"? A. Lightweight construction 

30 ( t). Is that the nearest you can go? A. The nearest I can go 
with exactitude.

Q. You said you knew what it was?
HIS HONOR: He said he knew it was not brick. I think that is what 
he means.
Mr WALLACE: Q. If you use vermiculite or terra cotta, you get a 
much bigger difference than 20 per cent., don't you, between depart­ 
mental stores and hotels ? A. You get about 30 per cent, with terra 
cotta, and you would come down to about 40 per cent, with the other. 

Q. Going back to your evidence at page 422, I understand you 
,n to say now that what you meant in that sentence beginning "For
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in the instance, you must have one at about the 4th floor level" is that the 
cJ^qJTNeta °Pcn area must be in this case no lower than the 4th floor level? 
South Wales A. No, no higher.

Equitable Q. No higher than the 4th floor level, and the trusses ought not to 
Jurisdiction. fo G pu^ 'm iower fjian fne 5^ floor ;> A. . . . much lower than

Plaintiff's the 5th.

—— ' Q. You would say the 4th is the furthest you are prepared to go ? 
A T^Britten ^" ^es—Subject to check, of course.

;— Q. Then, do you remember you went on to say this: Having said 
examination, you must reduce the number of floors above, you added, after Sir \Q 

Grarfield asked you '' Q. Because of the load ?", " Or might have to, 
because of the load on the external columns; hut with such large spaces 
we generally have high ceiling heights in a continuous number of floors, 
and it is very unlikely you would be troubled by loads on the perimeter 
columns, and you could virtually say you could have it at any or all 
levels for all purposes". What do you mean by saying "You could 
have it at any or all levels for all purposes"? What is "it"? A. 
"it" is open space.

Q. So you finally deposed it to be your opinion that you could have 
open spaces at any or all levels for all purposes ? A. Well, virtually 20 
that.

Q. What do you mean by "virtually"? A. You could meet 
practically any requirement. You could design a requirement you could 
not meet but you could meet any requirement that could reasonably be 
required.

Q. When you say "for all purposes and at all levels", you now say 
provided they are two-storeys in height. Ts that what you mean? 
A. No.

Q. Did you say you could have an open area 82 x 145 one storey 
in height at all levels ? A. No. 30

Q. When you said "you could virtually say you could have open 
areas at all levels for all purposes", what did you mean? A. I 
meant you could meet any reasonable requirement for open spaces.

Q. You have said you could have it virtually at all levels for all 
purposes ? A. If you desired open space in that building, as far as 
the building is concerned, you could for all practical purposes have it 
where and when you wanted it.

Q. If I am the owner and I wanted an area 82 x 145 feet—an open 
area at every floor level, one storey high—you could do it? A. No 
one could do it because you have not got the head room. 40

Q. Then, if you could not do it, it is not correct to say you could 
virtually have it at all levels for all purposes? A. I said you could 
meet any reasonable normal requirement. That is not a sensible 
requirement at all.
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HIS HONOR : I think what he means is you could have it at any level in tu 
you should like, but you would lose one floor in every three.
WITNESS : No, you would lose more than that, because no sensible Soufn 
person would want a room of that size, only 10 ft. ceiling height. Equitable

Jurisdiction.
HIS HONOR : But if you had this large open area — you keep on saying —— 
high ceiling height? ' A. Yes. ' ' ^£

Q. The ceiling height would have to be so high according to the -^~ZQ 
scheme you have in mind, that when yon put them one on top of the A. T. Britten. 
other you would lose some of your floors? A. Yes.

10 Q. You said more than one in three? A. Yes, I would say you examination. 
would lose one floor for every open space yon would put in, to have a 
reasonably proportioned room.
SIR GARFIELD: It is all in the use of the word "levels".
HIS HONOR: I think it is clear now what the witness is saying.
Mr WALLACE: Q. Then you would agree, wouldn't you, that the 
1956 plan does not interfere structurally with facilities to put trasses 
in under any of the conditions yon have been talking about ? A. It 
does.

Q. In what way ? A. The truss to column 51 cannot lie lifted so 
20 high.

Q. Are you suggesting you could not put a truss in, to rest on 
column 51 in accordance with the 1956 building ? A. No, what L am 
saying in effect is — I should have said "floor". The floor on columns 
53-54 — that line of columns, 51 etc. — cannot be raised so high before 
you come to the first ——

Q. Why not? A. Because of the extra load you put on those 
columns.

Q. Have you worked it out? A. Yes.
Q. You have ? A. No. I have worked it out approximately. 

30 Q. Have you got the figures there? A. No, I have not got the 
figures there ; but it would be somewhere around that.

Q. All 1 asked yon is have you got the figures ? A. Not on those 
columns, no.

Q. Before I go to column 51, would you concede this, that if open 
areas were used over the 1954 building, assuming it had been con­ 
structed, the bedrooms down below and part of the 1954 plan would 
lose all light and air? A. They would have to be removed as bed­ 
rooms.

Q. They would have to be demolished. You would have, in effect, 
40 to start all over again? A. No.

Q. You would have to demolish all the bedrooms ? A. You would 
have to demolish some of the partitions and re-model for alternative 
use.
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in tht Q. You have drawn a lot of designs here for future development,
you? A. Yes. 

S<mln Uattles Q- ^ ou have had no architectural experience, have you ? A. No.
Jun^dicfon. Q- I w^l g° to column 51. I show you a couple of diagrams, and 

—— , I have had typed out some material which yon might follow with me 
and see whether you agree or disagree with it. First of all, if you look

—— at diagram A on the left — do you see that diagram? A. Yes. 
A. T.Britten. Q. Those shaded areas are around pillars. Do you follow? A.

c^s- Yes. 
examination. ^ ^^ ^ p^jars j iiave shown are 51, 53 and 55? A. Yes. 10

Q. They are representative of the floors and upper floors supported 
by those three pillars? A. The whole floor built on?

Q. Yes? A. The whole floor built on; that is correct.
Q. You can follow it from here. Diagram B shows how these 

loads are carried down to the 5th floor, where the loads from 53 and 55 
are carried by a truss and transferred to columns 51 and 57. Is that 
clear? A. Yes.

Q. An engineer, in computing the amount of load at this point 
would work out the loads coming vertically down on column 51, wouldn't 
he? A. Yes. 20

Q. And also the proportion of load transferred to column 51 at 
that point? A. Yes.
HIS HONOR: "that point" is marked with the letter "X".
Mv WALLACE: Q. We are finding out the load at the point "Y", 
which is where the steel meets the concrete? A. Yes.

Q. In computing the load coming in at that point from the truss, 
you would take half the weight of the truss, wouldn 't you ? A. Half 
the weight of the truss to there (indicating), Yes.

( t). No; to there, up to here (showing) ? A. Yes.
Q. And we will say the weight coming down 53, because 55 goes OQ 

over there to column 57. Is that right? Coming to the load on 51 first, 
working out the load on 51, the maximum total load on the reinforced 
concrete section of 51 — that is where it rests on the steel, at point "Y" 
— is then the load supported directly by it, plus the load of 53, coming 
down on to the truss, plus half the weight of the truss, plus the load 
supported directly off that floor, down to that point. Is that right? 
A. I would agree with you on these figures; if you like you can take it 
all as checked. I agree with you.

Q. Do you agree with these figures here showing the dimensions 
(showing) ? A. I would agree with this figure here for that form of 40 
construction and loading.
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HIS HONOR : The figure is 3,227,000. 1* the
Supreme

WITNESS : For that live loading and partition loading. sm
in its

Mr WALLACE : Q. So that is the approximate figure which you give 
as the maximum load 51 would carry? A. Xo, it is a little more than 
that. I said it could nearly be brought up to that figure by certain 
modifications of design.

No. 20.
Q. The only modification is £50 extra of concrete ? A. And a A - T- Britten. 

steel capping on the concrete. I agree they are only minor corrections. Cross-
examination. 

Q. Do you agree with these figures and method of computation?
10 A. For that live loading and partition loading.

(At this stage at the direction of His Honor the document that 
was shown to the witness was incorporated into the transcript, as 
follows :

" fitreiifjth of coin inn 51
From diagrum. "A" shows areas of upper floors supported by 
columns (51) (53) (56) respectively.
"B" shows how these loads are carried down to the fifth floor, 
where the loads from (53) and (55) are carried by a truss and 
transferred to Cols. (51) and (57).

20 Load on (51)
The Maximum total load on the reinforced concrete section of 
(51) — i.e. where it rests on the existing steel stanchion just above 
the third floor, is then —

the load supported directly by it
plus the load of (53) from the truss
plus half the weight of the truss
plus the load supported directly on it at the 4th floor.

Dimensions
The dimensions showing the column centres may be checked by 

30 plans in evidence (The Kerr plans are probably the easiest).
These dimensions give the following floor areas supported on 
each column.

(51) 29' 6" x 30' 0" equals 885 square feet.
(53) 28' 0" x 30' 0" equals 840 square feet.
(55) 28' 0" x 30' 0" equals 840 square feet.

Loadings
Assuming the whole building was developed as a departmental 
store.
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Jurisdiction.
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Cross- 
examination.

The live load for this occupancy is 100 pounds per sq. ft. The 
dead load of a flat-plate floor would be 125 pounds, per sq. ft. and 
10 pounds per square ft. is allowed for floor finishes giving a total 
load of 235 pounds per sq. ft.
Live Load Reductions
= (i) -08% per sq. ft. supported by member 

(ii) 100 X Dead load plus live load whichever
is the less.4-33 X live load 

(iii) 60%
(i) = -08 X 840 = 67-2% 

(ii) = 1-00 X 235 = 54%
4-33 X 100 

(iii) 60%
Therefore live load reduction is 54% of 100 pounds—54 pounds. 
Therefore load to be taken is total dead & live load

235 Ibs. per sq. ft. 
less live load reduction — 54

10

equals 181 Ibs. per sq. ft.

Loads on columns. 20
The load on the columns per floor is 181 pounds per sq. ft. multi­ 
plied by the area supported. To this has to be added the weight 
of the column itself from floor to floor.
Thus for each column—

(51) 885 x 181 .. .. .. .. .. 160,185
Average wt. of column . . . . .. 7,215

Total

(53) & (55) 840 x 181
Average wt. of column

167,400

152,040
6,960

159,000

30

Number of floors.
A department store would require at least a 12' 6" ceiling height
This allows of eleven stories above Carringtou St. as shown.
Total load on (51) (For simplicity the roof load is taken to be 
the same as a floor load).
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Load supported directly by (51)— in the 
9 floors of 167,000 Ibs. .. .. .. 1,503,000

Load of (53) from truss—
9 floors of 159,000 Ibs. .. .. .. 1,431,000 Equitable' ' ' Jurisdiction.

Half weight of truss .. .. .. .. 126,000 ——
° . ' Plaintiff's

Load supported directly at 4th floor .. . . 167,000 Evidence.
No. 20. 

3,227,000 A. T. Britten.

10 S1E GARFIELD: The witness said he agreed to what is sot out there, 
subject to that form of loading and that form of partitioning.

(Document called "Sketch to show loading on 51 and 57" ten­ 
dered and marked Exhibit "26").

Mr WALLACE: Those computations with which you have just agreed 
are made, aren't they, on the assumption that the whole building was 
developed as a departmental store? A. The whole building was 
developed as a departmental store? I would have to check on the 
loading for that. I am prepared to accept your assurance that they 
wore as a matter of fact.

20 Q. Look, here it is, "Assuming the whole building was developed 
as a departmental store, the live load for this occupancy is 100 Ibs. per 
square foot. The dead load of a flat plate floor would be 125 Ibs. etc." ? 
A. That would be right. I am not sure the live load reduction is applic­ 
able to departmental stores. It could apply. I am quite prepared to 
accept your assurance that it does, but I have not checked the loading.
HIS HONOR: What the witness says is he does not know at the moment 
that those are loadings for a departmental store.
Mr WALLACE: Q. Would you agree that the live load for a depart­ 
mental store occupancy is 100 Ibs. per square foot! A. Yes.

30 Q. And there would be 10 Ibs. per square foot allowed for floor 
finishing"? A. That is reasonable, Yes.

Q. And 125 Ibs. per square foot as being the dead load of a flat 
plate floor ? A. That might be a litle bit low, but not enough to worry 
about.

Q. Giving a total of 235 Ibs. per square foot ? A. Yes.
Q. That is 10 Ibs. for the floor finishing 5? A. Yes.
Q. On that basis, and the areas which we have taken as being the 

areas—the load areas for the columns in question—it follows, doesn't 
it, that these computations are on the basis that the building was 

40 developed as a departmental store? A. There is another factor 
coming in. The live load reductions at the last point on that page, 
which I have not checked ....

Cross- 
examination.
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in the Q. I thought you said you had been through it. Look, there are 
Txew three methods of computing a live load reduction, aren't there ? A. 

Smith Wales There are two methods I know of.
Equitable Q. Two methods, with a 60 ]>er cent, maximum? A. Yes, but I 

Jurisdiction. wanf; to check the loading which applies to a departmental store. That 
Plaintiff's is what I am not sure about. I can refer to a publication in my bag.

—— ' Q. As T understand it, if you look at pages 14 and 15 of that book- 
i?°B 2-?Ln let .... A. I wanted to make sure what the wording was there. F

'-—— ' just could not certify this figure for you. Yes, that is all right.
examination. Q- Will you agree now with these figures ? A. Yes, 1 agree with 10 

those figures.
Q. And will you therefore agree that those figures have been com­ 

puted on the assumption that the building Avas developed as a depart­ 
mental store? A. Yes.

Q. And therefore, if the 1956 plan is 5,000 instead of 3,000 for the 
reinforced concrete, as stress, and if the plates which you have said is a 
minor matter is enlarged .... A. And provision made for 
seating the truss.

Q. Yes, then you would now agree that even though you wanted to 
build a departmental store on that site, the 1956 plans permit it to be 20 
done? A. They permit it to be done, with proper precautions in 
construction, to keep your weight down to those figures.

Q. But I have given those figures. Assuming those figures are 
departmental store figures, which you admit are considerably heavier 
than an office or an hotel figure .... A. No.

Q. Well, they are heavier? A. For one floor; not for that 
column.

Q. I understand that what we have been doing is finding the total 
Aveight at the point marked "Y" if trusses were used and the building 
went up to the maximum height and Avas used and constructed for a ^n 
departmental store? A. I agree Avith that.

Q. Very well. Then I am putting it to you that on that basis the 
1956 plans, with those minor alterations I have suggested, permit the 
construction of such a building? A. Oh, Yes.

Q. The next matter is this. You have offered comments—appar­ 
ently it is not criticism, but I thought you had criticised—about the 
introduction of two additional columns, 5?>A and 55A? A. Yes.

Q. I Avant you to assume that the 1956 scheme has been con­ 
structed? A. Yes.

Q. There is one other thing I want to go back to before I come to 40 
columns 53A and 55A. At page 334 of the transcript, do you remember 
you said "For instance, you must have one at about the 4th floor level". 
That is the open area? A. Yes.
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Q. "no higher";! A. Yes in the
Q. What fourth floor do you mean ? A. Of Carrington Street. I Court of New 

think I said it was from Carrington Street stratum. South *?ales0 in its
Q. It is quite clear you mean from Carringtoii Street ? A. Yes. y^i*???* 
Q. As you say, it is the fourth floor from Carringtoii Street, you ™~7ff,

must agree, must you not, that the central so-called weak columns will Evidence!
go to the 6th floor; that is to say, the 4th floor above Carringtoii Street? —

A ~\T ' No. 20.
A. Yes. A. T. Britten.

Q. Before I come to columns 53A and O;JA, I think you have agreed <^ro"^. 
10 with me or you yourself have said that if you used brick partitions the examination, 

load on a hotel building' per square foot area is loss than on a depart­ 
mental store ? A. For one floor.

Q. If you used terra cotta or vcrmiculite the load Avould be con­ 
siderably less ? Lighter again, yes.

Q. And when you say "foi one floor", 1 presume what you have 
in mind is you would get more floors in hotel bedrooms than a depart­ 
mental store ? A. You would have reduction in more floors for the 
live load but not for the dead load.

Q. Going back to this document that I showed you, the contents
20 of which are on the notes, do you remember you agreed with me that

235 Ibs. is near enough to being accurate as the total number of pounds
pr. square foot in connection with a departmental store ? A. I think
that is right, Yes.

Q. 100 Ibs. plus ll!5 Ibs. plus 10 Ibs. for the floor finishing; that 
is near enough? A. I will agree with that—subject to special 
construction.

Q. Subject to what ? A. Special construction, to get that.
Q. But I am only 011 those weights? A. That is not normal 

weight. I say special construction would get you to that. 
3Q Q. Let us take that answer. Firstly, is 100 Ibs. correct? A. 

Yes.
Q. As the live load that the code envisages ? A. Yes.
Q. So there cannot be any special construction about that, can 

there? A. No.
Q. And 125 lb,s. as being the dead load of a flat plate floor; correct ? 

A. On a 30 x 30 foot panel that Avould involve high quality construction.
Q. What do you mean by that? A. Higher than standard.
Q. You have looked at the Stanley and Llewellyn calculations, 

haven't you ? A. Yes I looked at the calculations. I did not actually 
40 look through their floor design in any detail. I said I had looked 

at them mainly to check certain column loadings.
Q. Is it within your knowledge that they envisaged a lO^-inch 

slab? A. No.



374

* Q. It is not within your knowledge. Could you check that up, to 
WY'C)( . make sure they do ? A. I did not even look at such a figure. 
raks Q_ j-f j g -ni their calculations, isn't it. I thought you had seen 

Equitable the calculations ? A. I had a look at the calculations, but mainly to 
jurisdiction. compare certain column calculations—and with which I have agreed. 

Plaintiff's Q Assuming that they provide for a 10.1-inch slab, would you agree
—— that the normal and accepted dead load would be 12 Ibs. for every square 

A £'n^?l foot which is 1-inch deep? A. Yes.A. l. ±>ntten. A
—— Q. So that if it is a 104-inch slab the dead load is 123 Ibs. per 
""*u>n. square foot? A. Well, 126 to be exact, but we will not argue about JQ 

a pound.
Q. That is near enough, isn't it. There is no special construction 

wanted for that, is there ? A. To get down to that thickness there 
is.

Q. AY hat special construction is required to make a 10 i-inch slab 
of concrete? A. To carry that loading.

Q. AVhat loading? A. 100 Ibs. a foot live loading.
Q. Do you say there is some special construction required? A.

Yes.
Q. Or do you mean you are drawing a distinction between an 20 

ordinary beam and slab construction ? A. I am dealing with the 
quality of concrete.

Q. Are you suggesting that KH-inches is unduly thin? A. It 
requires a concrete strength higher than normal.

Q. What is normal? A. Normal would be 2,000 to 3,000 Ibs. 
concrete.

Q. Have yon some table to show that '! A. I think there is some 
reference to it here (indicating book).

Q. Will you show it to me? A. Yes. (produced).
Q. What is this, '' 2,000 Ibs. minimum conipressive strength, water- 39 

cement ratio", and this gives minimum volumes if poured in cement, 
nominal mix and so on? A. Yes.

Q. This is 3,000 Ibs. concrete we are dealing with, isn't it? A. 
Yes—but not for that loading.

Q. Have you seen these computations of Mr Llewellyn's. To help 
you, yon will find the object of the exercise is to show that a 10-inch 
slab is satisfactory. Do you follow that ? (showing) A. What is 
that, the gross or the nett depth of the steel?

Q. I point out to you this figure of 8i on that page as being the 
effective depth taken. Is that clear ? A. That is clear, yes. That 49 
means it is 10 inches for hotel loading.

Q. You would not want to doubt the accuracy of those computa­ 
tions, would you ? A. No, I am not questioning that.
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Q. If 10 inches is satisfactory, and I have taken 1(H inches, then in the 
we know that the weight is 1'2 Ibs. for every square foot one inch deep f cowrfo 
A. Wait a minute, I am trying to think how the depth would change South, 
with the increased loading in this design here.

Q. Do not forget there are two pillars, 53\ and SOA, which shorten ur 
the span. You have not overlooked that, have you? A. It is not on Plaintiffs 
the drawing you have shown me here. Evidence.

( L). I am dealing with the loads ? A. But not what you were A 
discussing with me before.

10 SIR GARFIEL1): Exhibit " 26 ".
WITNESS: Just make it clear what we are discussing.
Mr WALLACE: Q. I want to make sure that these figures with which 
you have agreed and which 1 thought you knew and were intimate with, 
represented the figures that relate to a building developed as a depart­ 
mental store? A. Yes.

Q. That is the object of my exercise at the moment, and I thought 
you more or less agreed with it ? A. But arc columns 53.\ and 55A 
in or not ''.

Q. 1 may be wrong, because I am dealing with the load on 51 at the 
20 point marked "Y"? A. Yes.

Q. All that we were stumbling about was this 1'J") Ibs. being the 
dead load of a flat plate floor? A. Yes.

(,). Then, I thought you first of all hesitated as to whether 10J 
inches was satisfactory ? A. I am still hesitating. I am trying to 
evaluate the difference in loading conditions between the two. This 
is calculated for 10 inches on one loading. I am trying to estimate what 
the figure should be for a heavier loading on this calculation.

Q. What heavier loading? A. A departmental store loading. 
This is done for the 1956 plan, isn't it, which is a hotel loading? 

30 Q. I think you will find that the loadings are over 100 Ibs. Just 
read it through? A. I find it very hard to follow other people's 
calculations. Would it suit the Court for me to examine them myself 
and to be questioned later?
HIS HONOR: Yes, it might be convenient if that were done.
Mr WALLACE: Q. You would at least agree with this, wouldn't you, 
that the dead load that I have given, 125 Ibs. is heavier than the 
ordinary beam and slab construction ? A. No, would it be on that 
standard? 30 x 30?

Q. I am suggesting a (5 inch slab is 73 Ibs. and the main beam and 
40 secondary beams 25 Ibs., a total of 100 Ibs. ? A. On a 30 x 30 panel?

Q. Yes? A. No, it would be more than that for the main and 
secondary beams, unless you used high strength concrete, when you 
might get it down to 105 or 110—with high strength concrete.
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in the, Q. At all events, you will agree the figure \ve have given, 125 Ibs., 
TNtw f°r that component of the 235 Ibs. is heavier than would be given in 

South Wales a beam and slab construction ? A. A normal beam and slab construc- 
Equifabte ^ou usm§' normal concrete would be about that figure. You would 

jurisdiction, have to use high strength concrete to reduce it.
Plaintiff's Q. Subject to that one residual doubt you would have about 125 Ibs.,
Evidence. ^QU ^Q agree faat the figures with which you have agreed are computed

No. 20. on the assumption that the building is developed as a departmental
A. TjJntten. gtore ? A That ig & reasonai,i ( , figure for that, I quite agree with

Cross- that. It might be a little bit more, but nothing worth arguing about. 10
examination.

Q. Would you agree with this: that if instead of a departmental 
store and if instead of the figure 235 Ibs. you were to consider hotel 
loadings, you would get the following result: firstly, the live load 
would be 40 Ibs., the dead load we will keep at 125 Ibs., the finish is 
10 Ibs. and then the partitioning, if you use modern methods, would 
be 30 Ibs., a total of 205 Ibs. instead of 235 Ibs. A. That would be 
about right for one floor, not for the column.

Q. I do not know why you add "one floor". AVe are engaged on 
one floor in order to find the total weight at the point "Y" on Exhibit 
"26"? A. Yes. 20

Q. Now, going to OOA and f>OA, would you regard it as an even 
worse feature than what you described as the overloading of column 51. 
Bo you remember that? A. 5IU and 55.\; a worse feature?

Q. Yes; at pages 425 and 42(i of the transcript ? A. Yes. They 
are worse features.

< L). That is what you said ? A. Yes.
Q. You said it was a much worse feature in your mind, and then 

YOU said that perhaps you should withdraw it as it was a matter of 
opinion. Have you looked at either Exhibit "H" or Exhibit "L2" 
recently. Those are the plans of the 1954 and the 1!>5(> designs ? A. I 30 
have looked at them, Yes.

g. I show you sheet 3 of "1,2" and Sheet GA of Exhibit "H". If 
you look at either of those plans, you find that the columns—not 53x 
or 55A—come up through various bedrooms, don't they! A. Yes.

Q. That is so with regard to Exhibit "H" and with regard to 
Exhibit "L2"?—A. Yes.

Q. All that 5oA and OOA do is come up against the wall. That is so, 
isn't it? A. In which design, in that design?

Q. Yes? A. Yes.
Q. As a matter of fact, they come up somewhere here, don't they? 40 

A. There they are (indicating).
Q. They are actually not as big as some of the other pillars that 

come up through the bedrooms? A. Much smaller.
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Q. And so far as the bedrooms are concerned, all that happens is in the 
you have on three floors of bedrooms and in two bedrooms on each 
floor a pillar in that sort of position ? A. In the 1956 design it goes 8<mth 
up throe floors, Yes.

,-. mi , . „ Jurisdiction.(.£. Hi at is, so tar as bedroom accommodation noes, no different'? —— 
A. You can forget it, Yes.

Q. At page 3X7 you said this: "By the nature of the construction ^0. 2<x 
of the building and what was built before, they" — that is 5;>,v and A- T - Britten. 
55A — "must extend from Carrington Street to I think it is the 8th

10 floor, 7th floor ceiling, where it is stepped back a little. T will check examination. 
on that number". Do you remember that ? A. Yes.

Q. Of course, that would not apply if you were building a depart­ 
mental store over 1956. That is obvious, isn't it; over it and to the 
east of it ? A. If you are building it over the 1956, without carrying 
the full extension?

(,). Building it to a departmental store over a full extension :' A. 
Assuming the 1956 plans are just constructed in the objective sense'

Q. Yes ? A. It would not apply, Yes — except to the third floor, 
fourth floor ceiling.

20 Q- What I am putting to you is this: that the only possible inter­ 
ference with open areas that could conceivably take place in connection 
with the 1956 plans, and assuming you did not take any avoiding action 
at all, would be a narrow strip about 15 feet wide would be eliminated 
from the length of 145 feet on two floors ? A. Xo . . . .

Q, Pardon me, three floors ? A. That is assuming the 1956 
plan is just carried to the full extent?

Q. Yes? A. It may be 16 feet or 17 feet. It is 17 feet column 
to column centre, so it would be about 16 feet: 16 feet, 3 floors, that is 
correct.

30 Q- That is if the designer or the developer took no avoiding action 
whatever, such as removing the bedroom walls and extending in to 
the full 15 feet or 16 feet by other methods? A. No, it would still 
foul the space where you removed the bedrooms. That is the point.

Q. The first step, I think yon agree with me, is, taking no avoiding 
action, the worst that can be said in regard to the development, if 
you want a large open area spare, is that you could not have it the 
full 145 feet length. There would bo 15 feet or 16 feet of it at the 
Carrington Street end unable to be extended; so there would be 130 
feet instead of 145 feet ? A. Yes.

40 Q. And if you only wanted it on the one floor, well, that would be 
the only thing that would happen. It would lie i:->0 feet long instead 
of 145 feet? A. Yes.
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Q. While I am on that, at page 4-27, when we were dealing with 
, the cantilevering over the step, under the 1956 plan .... A. Cantilever- 

South Wales ing over 53 and 55 to 53A and 55A? Yes?
in its

Equitable Q. The first thing T want to put to you about that is, first of all 
jurisdiction. «,__.._ _... ,„..,,. in that enntilcvpl . fd^ioii all over the place, and it is

Plaintiff's one of tlie most common method of construction? A. Oh, Yes, there
jvijente. -^ ^ Q ^^J^ ajjout that.

A.. T^Brittea Q- Secondly, the joint you wore speaking about, the no-contact, 
—— in order to ensure that no load was transmitted—do you remember 

. that? A. Yes. ^ 10
Q. That joint also is of a mere commonplace in construction? 

A. It frequently has to be used, Yes.
Q. Not only has it frequently to be used but also it is prescribed 

by Council by-law that it must be used in cases of buildings that are 
150 feet long? A. Because it has to be used.

Q. Yes; don't you know that? A. Yes, it has to be used there 
for a very different purpose, though.

Q. Don't you know it is a very common thing to have a cantilever 
projection of that sort, and one of these joints. The joint simply 
consists of putting a bit of masonite or cane-ite in. All they do is to 20 
put a piece of cane-ite where the beam comes into the wall, between the 
end of the beam and the wall? A. That is all you do in forming it.

Q. Then the bricks are built up on the beam. You have the canti­ 
lever beam coming from the column here, coming over here to that wall 
that has been stepped in. You have a piece of cane-ite or something 
there, between it and the wall, and then your partition is built up, and 
you only have caiie-ite or malthoid placed in between the bricks? A. 
It sounds very simple the way you put it, but it is not a fair picture.

Q. I am putting it to you that that is a very frequent occurrence 
in city buildings? A. Yes, I agree with you. 30

Q. And that it takes no maintenance whatever. What maintenance 
is required? A. What maintenance?

Q. It is a simple question ? A. What maintenance is required 
is that if it were a building that had no aesthetic quality, no main­ 
tenance is required, but if you are going to maintain appearance main­ 
tenance is required.

Q. What for? A. To maintain the appearance. If you could 
leave an open air gap or a gap filled with cane-ite or masonite and no 
architectural finish over it, what you say would be correct, there would 
be no maintenance; but you cannot do that in a building like a hotel 4Q 
or whatever it is normally used for.

Q. But if you take the beam, first of all, that is cantilevered in, 
the problem is to ensure that it does not transmit load? A. Yes.
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Q. All you do is put a bit of maltlioid or something between it and in the. 
the wall, and the floor goes over it.' A. No, the floor does not go Co^"tPof"^ew 
over it. That is the point. The floor has to be broken, to—— South Wah™

in its
Q. I meant the floor of the bedroom, or whatever it is? A. The fiquitabii- 

floor has to be broken at the joint. J»n«iicii,,a .

Q. But it is something which is not even seon ? A. I beg your E^dem*8 
pardon f —

No. 20.
Q. Have you ever seen one? A. Yes. A.T.Britten.
Q. Where have you seen this sort of building? A. I have seen <><««- 

10 a building. I have seen plenty with these straight walls and joins in exammatlon - 
them.

Q. Vou will agree with me it is a mere commonplace in const ruc­ 
tion f A. 1 object to your form of words. I do not like that form 
of words. They are not my words at all. I would not agree in those 
terms. I shall phrase it so that we can agree, but 1 object to words 
with that exaggerated meaning being put into my mouth.
HIS HONOR: You tell me? A. It is a common necessity in build­ 
ing construction.

Q. Is there any difficulty in doing it? A. There are a certain 
20 number of man hours of work. That is all.

Q. Is it very expensive ? A. Not very expensive in construction. 
Its main trouble is in maintenance, and it is quite a lot in maintaining 
it, in monetary cost.

(,). What is involved in maintaining it? A. What is involved in 
maintaining it is actually a little bit beyond my field. Structurally there 
is no maintenance. It is in the architectural finish and keeping the 
joint neat.
Mr WALLACE: Q. What you said on Wednesday was "That is a most 
objectionable and expensive construction to have, to construct and 

3Q maintain". Do you still adhere to that? A. The most ....
Q. Do you still adhere to it? A. I should like to amend it.
Q. It is wrong, is it? A. No.
Q. You adhere to it? A. It can lie interpreted in two ways.
Q. How can you interpret in two ways the statement "That is a 

most objectionable construction"? A. The word "an" should be 
inserted in front of "objectionable".

Q. "That is a most" what? A. "expensive" 1 mean. (Previous 
evidence shown).

Q. I put it to you bluntly that that evidence was wrong ? A. It 
4Q requires correction; I shall agree with you on that.

Q. It is wrong? A. As worded here it is wrong, Yes.
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in the Q. What do you want to correct? A. It should read "This is 
New a most objectionable and an expensive construction". The word "most" 

South Wales should not qualify "expensive".
in its

Equitable Q. "This is 51 most objectionable and an expensive construction 
junction. t0 have", and do you leave untouched the words "to construct and 

plaintiff's maintain"? A. Yes.
Evidence. _ TT

—— Q. Unqualified? A. \es.
No 20A. T. Britten. Q- I thought you told His Honor a few moments ago that it is
—— not expensive to construct? A. 1 am sorry if I conveyed that
Cross- L . J i/\ 

examination, impression. 10

Q. Do you still say something is expensive ? A. I said not very 
expensive.

Q. Have you ever gone into any figures so as to give- me an idea 
of what you say is involved? A. It is mainly an architectural 
matter.

Q. You have sworn that it is an expensive construction. What 
qualified you to swear that on your oath ? A. The objections various 
architects have raised to introducing them into buildings.

Q. Have you yourself had any experience in computing costs of 
such a construction? A. No, not the architectural part, the main 20 
part.

Q. I am talking about pounds shillings and pence, the cost of it ? 
A. Complete costs, No.

Q. What qualified you to say "It is a most objectionable construc­ 
tion to have"? A. The number of ....

Q. What is most objectionable about it ? A. That construction 
is most objectionable because of the number of jobs we have been called 
back to because the construction was not done properly. It is a most 
dangerous construction.

Q. What is dangerous about it ? A. That it would not be done 30 
properly. If it is not done properly you have a complete break-up of 
some parts of the work.

Q. Do you say you have seen this, yourself ? A. Yes, a number 
of joints, they have had to cut out.

Q. Not done properly; and you have a complete break-up of the 
work. Just elaborate how it is not done properly? A. You are 
supposed to build the brickwork with a joint in it, and keep that joint 
free. If anything falls into that joint and bridges it—and mortar is 
a great offender—it is very frequently followed by cracking of brick­ 
work or break-up of finishes. 4Q

Q. But suppose you put cane-ite in between; that is what the 
cane-ite is for, isn't it? A. I am talking about the brickwork, not 
the floor joint.



Q. So am 1—— in the
Supreme

HIS HONOR: (v>. 1 .suppose m the same token mortar falls in brick- Court of New
1 1 1 j ' 1 •. -i .1 4 in 11 • .1 J.1 • • j *SOM(A IVdfoswork and causes dampness too, doesn t it: A. v alls into the joint. in its
Q. You have to be careful that mortar does not get in ? A. Jurisdiction. 

Well, it is dangerous, because Ilie care is not alwavs taken. r>i~7n:.> » ' • Plaintiffs

Mr WALLACE: Q. I have shown you correctly enough, haven't I, Evidencc- 
in diagrammatical fashion what you yourself have described as a x<>. 20.

•i rm j • i • u • t i> \ \ T A. T. Britten.common necessity. That is true, isn t it. A. les. __
Q. All that is involved in this common necessity is to ensure examination. 

10 that no load is transmitted on to the wall Z by the beam Q. ? A. Yes.
Q. I have suggested that as a common necessity, as you call it, 

a piece of malthoid or cane-ite, is inserted between the end of the beam 
and the wall? A. That is correct.

Q. And when the bricklayer has to build it, he uses that wall. He 
does not have to build up here does he.' (indicating) A. He would 
have to build a wall running that way.

(t). If he has to build a wall at that end and it has to join up with 
that end, all the builder does is to put a thin strip of cane-ite in, the 
width of the brick:' A. That lias not been usual in the work I have 

20 seen.
(L). Can you see any practical reason why he cannot put a strip 

of cane-ite there and no mortar can fall down at all? A. I do not 
think that would be good.

(.,). What would be wrong with it? A. I think you would get 
sufficient bearing of mortar wedging between the cane-ite strip and 
the brickwork, to cause trouble; transmitting sufficient load to cause 
trouble. I would not like to do it without experiment.

Q. Vou would not deny that that insertion of the strip of cane-ite 
or malthoid for such matters is commonly done in Sydney 1' A. 1 

30 would not deny or affirm that, under those conditions.
Q. But what about Ordinance .">4, which makes it compulsory to 

have an expansion strip in the brickwork if it is 150 feet long. What 
about the strip of malthoid and cane-ite then? What is it called for?

Q. I thought yon agreed you knew about the ordinances. By-law 
.")4, Clause -i-ii" is "Expansion joints: Approved provision shall be 
made for expansion and contraction in all buildings over 150 feet in 
length"? A. Yes.

(.,). How do they make the expansion joints when they have two brick 
walls meeting ? A. You have a gap with the usual construction.

^0 Q- Don't you lill the gap in with cane-ite? A. Xo. 
(,). Are A'on sure 1? A. Yes.
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In the Q. How wide is the gap ? A. About half an inch, and you cover 
Sup™* it ; you don 't fin it in, you cover it.Court of Arw ' J ' •>

Souti Wales (^ What with? A. Some form of moulding; aluminium or tim-
EgnitaUe bcr moulding.

Jurisdiction.
—— Q. What about the mortar falling in ! A. That is the danger.

Plaintiff s
Evidence. Q Jt is compulsory by law to have an expansion joint '! A. Yes.

A T°Britten ^' ^° ^ ou sa^" *hat ^n Vl'ac^CQ people do not put malthoid or 
'— ' cano-itc in between? A. I have seen cases where it has been put in, 
'''."**;. and I have seen cases where it has not been clone.examination.

( t). The good builders put it in ? A. No. 10 
Q. The conscientious men ? A. No.

HIS HONOR: Q. Why is it less dangerous with the gap left there? 
A. I would say I would be suspicious that mortar wedging between 
cane-ite and brickwork would be just as effective in breaking up brick­ 
work as mortar wedging straight brickwork.

Q. One would be as bad as the other! A. Yes, one would be as 
bad as the other, but you would have small space to absorb small drop­ 
pings, with the open space.
.Mr WALLACE : Q. Will you agree it is practically a universal practice 
for all practical purposes amongst good builders to put malthoid in such 20 
joints, Avherover concrete meets concrete, and cane-ite wherever brick 
moots brick ? A. I would agree with the first part.

Q. You do ? A. With concrete meeting concrete.
Q. What about cane-ite in expansion joints when- brick meets 

brick? A. No.
Q. You have agreed, haven't you, that the so-called weak columns— 

1 think 5o and 55 fall within that description—are capable of being- 
extended three floors beyond what the Innes-Kerr design originally 
envisaged ? A. I would have to check on that. Can I have the Innes- 
Kerr drawings ? 30

(t). Yes. Have you seen Exhibit "18" before, that is, some compu­ 
tations by Mr Llewellyn, in his handwriting? A. I have not seen 
these before.

Q. Can you quickly pick up what it is intended to be ? A. I am 
afraid I would have to get a better light than this (The witness was 
given permission to leave the witness box in order to peruse the docu­ 
ment ).

Q. What I am doing is endeavouring to ascertain whether you will 
agree with me that these 53 and 55 columns are capable of going up 
three floors more than the bottom of the fourth floor, the historic floor ? 4Q 
A. That is the second floor, Carrington St. fourth floor, George St. ?
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Q. Yes. The bottom of the ballroom was the historic fourth floor In the 
from George St., second floor from Carrington St. I want you to agree 
with me, if you can, that columns 55 and 53 under modern conditions are South Wales 
fully capable of going up to the 7th historic floor or 5th floor from Equitable 
Carrington Street? A. Assuming the 1956 building has been erected Jurisdiction. 
and carried to its full height ? plaintiff's

Q. Yes, precisely that? A. It would go to the fourth floor with Evidence- 
.some constructions and the fifth floor with other constructions. Xo. 20.

A. T. BrittenQ. Measured from Carrington St. ? A. Measured from (Jarring- 
10 ton St. That would be in general agreement with those calculations I 

should think.
Q. Would you look at Exhibit "18" overnight? A. What do 

you want me to check on it ?
Q. I want you to look through it so that I can ask you some ques­ 

tions about it? A. What, you mean put a fifth floor with a certain 
loading ?

Q. A sixth floor? A. A sixth floor, George St. or Carrington 
St.?

Q. Seventh floor, George Street? A. I quite agree with that. 
20 There is no use my taking it home for that. I said fourth or fifth floor, 

Carrington St. according to the way of construction of the building.
(,). Ac-cording to what? A. According to whether you do light 

or heavy floor construction, and heavy floor loadings.
Q. I want it to the maximum floor loadings ? A. For that I 

would have to check.
Q. 100 Ibs. per square foot; and I want your concurrence that those 

two columns can go fully up to the 7th floor from George St. ? A. To

the 7th floor from George Street, assuming what construction; the full 
1956 building!

30 Q. Yes, assuming a departmental store; 100 Ibs. per square foot? 
A. Over what?

Q. Over such part of it as 53 and 55 are relevant too ? A. But 
what is the construction of 53A and 55A ?

Q. Departmental store ? A. Above the third floor ?
Q. That is right ? A. I agree with that right away. There is no 

need to take it home for that. If you have columns 53A and 55A only 
extending up to the third floor envisaged in the 1956 construction you 
said a departmental store over the third floor ?

Q. I want a departmental store oArer the whole building. That is 
4Q clear enough, isn't it? A. The important point is the construction. 

You want to assume on columns 53x and 55A ....
Q. Over the whole building! A. But that does not answer it.
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(^. Aren't OOA and o5.v in the whole building ! A. I do not know, 
depends on your calculation in the 1956 scheme. If it is a scheme 

South Wales for a departmental store that you were just discussing with me I can 
Equitable Sivc 7OU "Yes" without any further calculations.

jurisdiction. Q Onc of thege gildings you yourself drew on Exhibit "PP". . . . 
Plaintiff's A. I did not draw any. I did not draw any extensions to the 1956
Evidence. gchcme>

A.T.°BrTuen HIS ^OXOH: It was tho architect I think.
^. SIR GARFIELI): They were not extensions to the 1956 scheme, 

examination. Mr WALLACE: Q. You gave tlie Court tlu- impression the other day 10 
that a flat plate floor design was a long-standing method of construction, 
didn't you? A. Yes.

Q. Have you yourself ever designed one!' A. Yes. 
Q. Where? A. I designed some back in the early 20's. 
Q. Where' A. In the Department of Main Roads, and one for 

the Kastwood Hotel, a small one.
Q. Onc for which hotel? A. The East wood Hotel. That is the 

only one I have done since 1 left the Department. I did several in the 
Department back in the 20's.

Q. Back in the 1920's? A. Yes. 20
< t>. Do you see what this document is, what it purports to he 

(showing)? A. Yes.
Q. I want you to assume that that was issued in 194(5, in America? 

A. I will assume that, yes.
(,). It would be obvious, if there is any authenticity in this docu­ 

ment, that what I have been describing as flat plate was novel enough 
in America in 1946, wouldn't it? A. I have read the headlines only.

Q. Just read some of it and see what it features. (The witness 
was given permission to leave the witness box in order to read the 
document.) A. 1 am sorry; 1 cannot find it. I have not read it all 30 
through. \Yould you like me to read the whole lot '! I have looked 
through what 1 think would be the relevant parts.

Q. That is all you need do. I do not think it is at all iiecestsary 
to read it all. The question I ask you is, having looked at that docu­ 
ment would you agree that it would appear that flat plate construction 
in multiple-storeyed buildings was new in America in 1946? A. No.

Q. You had the record altered this morning by Sir G-arfielcl in that 
the word "code" should be "codes" in connection with flat plate, 
didn't you? A. Yes.

(j. You had the record altered so as to make the word "code" 11140 
reference to flat plale construction read "codes". Would you tell me 
any code in Australia to which there is any reft-reiice to flat plate con­ 
struction? A. Xot in Australia.



385

Q. Confining ourselves to Australia, will you agree that the Caltex in the 
building is the first building in Sydney, at all events, of a multiple- 
storeyed nature where the flat plate construction has been used ? A. South Wales 
I should neither agree nor disagree.

Q. You do not know of any other, do you? A. I know of single Jurisdiction- 
storeys. I do not know of multiple-storeys. Plaintiff's

Evidence.
Q. I am not speaking of single storeys ? A. You asked me " Any —— 

other?" A. Mien.
Q. You do not know of any multiple-storey building apart from Cross. 

10 Caltex which is of flat plate construction? A. I know there are examination. 
buildings.

Q. You do? A. Not earlier.
Q. Not earlier than Caltex? A. No.
Q. There is no reference to it in any of the Australian building 

codes? A. I could not say.
Q. You know of none? A. I know of none.
Q. Is it within your knowledge or have you heard that when the 

flat plate construction for Caltex was first put to the City Council 
Authorities they rejected it? A. Not to my knowledge.

20 Q. Are you able to agree this morning with what I was asking you 
last night about Mr Llewellyn's calculations and designs for a 10| 
inch reinforced concrete slab"? A. I thought we agreed on that last 
night.

Q. You agreed on the 101 inch? A. Yes.
Q. It therefore follows you agree with Mr Llewellyn's computa­ 

tions, and which we have had transcribed on to the notes? A. I 
agree with those computations, yes.

Q. They were on the basis, as we have agreed with each other, of 
the building being developed as a departmental store ? A. Yes.

30 Q. I suppose you would agree that if the building were developed 
as an hotel throughout you would have to have lightwells ? A. On a 
sort of plan covering the whole site?

Q. Yes? A. Yes, you would have to have lightwells then.
Q. Now I want to deal with the case of an hotel development, and 

I want you to assume that there are 4J inch brick partitions. Do you 
follow? A. Yes.

Q. I want to assume, as Mr. Nicholls has put on his 1956 plan, a
4i inch partition on those three storeys facing Carrington St., and
assuming that the whole site is developed as an hotel, and taking the

40 assumption that terracotta or vermiculite were not used but that 44
inch brick wall partitions were used. Do you follow? A. Yes.
SIR GAEFIELD: That asserts that Mr Nicholls uses brick partitions?

•38632—13
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in the Mr WALLACE: I have already said so.
Supreme

Court of New SIR GAEFIELD: That does not appear to be the fact from the speci-
South Wales „ ,•in its ncation.

Equitable
jurisdiction. Mr WALLACE: I want to assume it though.

Plaintiff's Q. I want to assume as follows: Firstly, that the site as a whole 
Evidence. ig developed as an hotel? A. Yes.

A T^Britten Q- Secondly, that terracotta or vermiculite are not used as parti-
—— tions but for some reason 4i inch brick walls are used for partitions.

examination. ^ou nave already agreed that we must also assume there would have
to be lightwells in areas. You say "Yes" to that? A. Yes. 10

Q. I could say at once correctly enough, could not I, that if you 
have big uninterrupted areas, you would by the nature of things not 
have partitions in those big uninterrupted areas; otherwise you would 
not want them? A. That is correct.

Q. But if you have an hotel over the whole site with lightwells, 
then, of course, there is less area of floor space to be carried? A. To 
be carried on the whole of 51 you mean?

Q. Yes, on 51? A. I am trying to remember the plan. You 
would be correct.

Q. You only have to remind yourself of the plans to accept the 20 
proposition, don't you? A. Yes.

Q. That if you have lightwells on an hotel development there 
would be less floor load to be carried on 51?——
SIE GARFIELD: Less than what?
HIS HONOR: Less than if you developed the whole site as a depart­ 
mental store.
Mr WALLACE: Less than if you developed the whole site without 
lightwells.
SIR GARFIELD: Is that the only distinction?
WITNESS: Yes, 51 would be at the re-entrant angle to the light court 39 
in all probability.
Mr WALLACE: Q. So at all events I could say there would be less 
floor area supported by 51. That would be obvious ? A. That would 
be obvious; there would be less floor area.

Q. Would you also agree that if you have an hotel construction 
with lightwells, you would have to revert to the beam and slab type of 
construction, and that would not lend itself to flat plate construction? 
A. Do you mean if you had the system as outlined by Mr Nicholls?

Q. Or as shown on your plans? A. That is your identification. 
You mean with the three lightwells? 40
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Q. Where there are lightwells? A. With three lightwells you in the 
would have an even slab on each side.
SIR GARFIELD: What is the answer to the question?

Equitable
AVITNESS: If you had three lightwells you would have beam and Jurisdiction. 
slab on each of the bays, wings each side. Plaintiff's
Mr WALLACE: Q. In other words, if you continued the 1954 plans 
upwards to the maximum height permitted by the law, whether it be A 
from the viewpoint of height or light, you would have to use beam and ' 
slab method of construction and not the flat plate construction? A. 

10 You would have to use beam and slab once you reached the floor of the 
three light courts. All light courts are involved.

Q. Could you look at those computations and say whether you can 
agree with them? A. I will have to ask for notice of that question.

Q. You can see what it is ! A. They are not actually computa­ 
tions, if I could so criticise them. I could answer you probably after 
lunch, when I have had time to check them. They look reasonable, but 
I would have to check them. If they are done by Mr Llewellyn, I 
would not argue.

Q. I can assure you they are in Mr Llewellyn's writing and are 
20 his computation f A. In that case ....

Q. If those figures are correct, he is assuming the work is done 
in 2,000 Ibs. per square inch concrete. Do you see that? A. Yes.

Q. And then he has worked out the dead load equals 112 Ibs. per 
square foot? A. Yes. That is for 2,000 Ibs. concrete.

Q. He has 5 inch slabs, and these sizes are for the main members 
and the subsidiary members? A. They look reasonable. I would 
not quarrel there.

Q. And the distances between the pillars are taken straight from 
the plans? A. Yes.

30 Q. The distances between the columns ? A. That is rather a 
slight variation. That is the general plan. That would appear 
reasonable.

Q. They look reasonable; and you can retain it and check it if 
you like ? A. I am prepared to accept it. I doubt whether it would 
warrant delaying the proceedings. Any efforts I made might not be 
appreciable. I might disagree by an inch with the depth, that is all.

Q. You think, from your knowledge of the plans, that that would 
be reasonably approximate ''. A. That is a reasonable design.

(Document as shown to the witness in.f.i. 47.)
40 Q. If that 112 Ibs., the dead load, is correct as the m.f.i. attains. 

.... A. Yes.
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in the Q. Then, for hotel loadings would you agree that you get something 
I am still on the 44 inch brick computation. You get the live 

South Wales load of 40? A. I am sorry, is this for columns or beams?
in its

Equitable Q. This is for pounds per square foot that would be involved? 
- coiumng or for beams?

Evidence! Q- For the columns ? A. 40 would be too high. 
No. 20. Q. That is against me? A. It is for you, I think.

A. T. Britten.
—— Q. You see what Mr Llewellyn has done here : he has taken off the 

examination ^ve ^oa(^ reductions .... A. At the end; that is all right.
Q. Just take it calmly and listen to me. I want this on the notes, 10 

and I want your concurrence with it. The live load is taken at 40 per 
square foot. We have heard that figure a dozen times, and that is 
correct, isn't it? A. Yes.

Q. The live load is 40 Ibs. ? A. Yes.
Q. The dead load which I have just shown you is 112 Ibs.? A. 

Yes, that would be about right; dead load slab.
Q. The finish would be 10 Ibs.? A. No, it could be more.
Q. I thought you agreed with 10 Ibs. yesterday? A. I said I 

would accept it for the purposes of that writing; and also you have 
more area here. 20

Q. More area? A. The beam areas.
Q. I am suggesting to you that 10 Ibs. for an hotel erected over the 

site with light areas would be very reasonable; a figure of 10 Ibs. is 
very reasonable? A. I think it is low.

Q. How low? A. Well, it could vary. You were talking before 
about a departmental store. Now you are on an hotel?

Q. Yes. A. Well, now, certain areas will have tiling.
Q. What, the bathrooms ? A. Bathrooms, yes. That is quite 

considerable. You also have a beam and slab design. There is more 
plastering down the sides of the beams that you do not have in the 30 
flat plate design. I would say your average finish might be getting up 
towards 20, possibly more. I would have to check areas and weights.

Q. So you do not agree with 10? A. I do not agree with 10.
Q. The 4i inch brick partition, what would you put that down to ? 

A. Can I have a look at the plans you are considering? The partitions 
in 4i inch brick constructed according to this plan would be 80 Ibs. 
to 90 Ibs. per square foot.

Q. Going back to the finish, where you said it might be 20 or more, 
if you had the bedrooms — if you consider the bedrooms — I suppose in 
an hotel like this all you would have would be carpet on the floor ? 40 
A. Yes.
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Q. I suggest that so far as the bedrooms are concerned it would in the. 
only be about 5 lbs.f A. On the top, yes. '

Q. And the bathrooms might get up to 20, and the average might 
well be only about 10 Ibs. What about that ? A. No, that is not Equitable 
all. That part, the finish on the top surface of the floors, would ******»*• 
probably be about 10 or 1'2. Then you have the finish underneath and Plaintiff's 
the finish on the bathroom walls, which is extra tiling, which you have Evidellce- 
not included in the weight of the finish. No. 20.

Q. I am suggesting 20 Ibs. would be an overall figure for the bath- ' L_2 
in rooms'? A. No, on the floor .... Crpas-
A " ' examination

Q. And 5 for the bedrooms? A. Yes.
Q. You would agree with 5 for the bedrooms'? A. 5, yes.
Q. There is much more space involved in the bedrooms than the 

bathrooms ? A. About 3 or 4 to 1, so just taking the finish on the 
horizontal finish of the floor you get about 10 Ibs.; but that is not all the 
finish.

Q. There is nothing more involved so far as the bedrooms are 
concerned, is there? A. There is the finish on the underside of the 
slab and the finish on the walls of the bathrooms.

20 Q- The finish on what? A. The underside of the slab or the 
ceiling over it.

Q. We are not taking that into account when we are speaking of 
finish. That is already taken into account, isn't it? A. No.

Q. Anyhow, the short position is you will not agree with 10? A. 
I would say about 20 with the total finish in work.

Q. Although you concede the floors of the bedrooms only involve 
about 5 Ibs.? A. More than that, 5 Ibs. and over—about 7-i, not 
counting beams.

Q. Are they figures that you have computed on some earlier occa- 
30 sion? A. No. they come from ....

Q. Never mind looking at that. Are they figures you have com­ 
puted on some earlier occasion, or are they merely figures you have 
arrived at while sitting in the witness box? A. You mean in what 
way? The 5 Ibs. for plaster finish is this code load.

Q. I asked you are the figures you have just given covering bath­ 
rooms and bedrooms and floors and ceilings—are they figures you have 
computed on any earlier occasion in relation to this hotel design? A. 
No.

Q. Then, with regard to the brick partitions, you have said some- 
40 thing to the tune of 80 Ibs. or 90 Ibs., have you! A. Yes.

Q. Didn't you say yesterday that brick partitions would only 
involve 40 Ibs. or 50 Ibs.? A. I was thinking in terms of an office 
building at that time, but this building here as drawn ....
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in the Q. You were thinking in terms of office buildings? A. Yes. I 
'f^New was thinking of the 1954 plan, but I was not anticipating as close a 

South Wales spacing of partitions as is shown here.
in its

Equitable Q. I am now asking you to look at the 1954 plans, which you were 
jurisdiction. thinking of yesterday? A. I might have been thinking of them. I 
Plaintiff's was thinking of this plan (indicating).
Evidence.

-— Q. That is the 1954 plan that you are looking at? A. I am sorry. 
A. T.°Britten. These are unusually closely spaced partitions.

Croga. Q. If you were thinking yesterday, when you volunteered, as I think 
examination. yOU (ji^ 40 or 50 j DSi f or brick partitions, you were in error if you were 10 

thinking of the 1954 plans. Is that the position? A. I was not 
thinking of the 1954 plan as it is here.

Q. The weight of the partition, if it is brick, depends on what, the 
size of the rooms and the number of partitions? A. It depends on 
the length of the partition in the area on which you are taking out the 
load.

Q. I am suggesting to you it would be a fair figure to say 40 Ibs. 
or 50 Ibs. for 4£ inch brick partitions in an hotel design ? A. In this 
design it is half the correct figure approximately.

Q. Can you show me how you work that out? A. Yes; I added 20 
up the length of these partitions per square foot.

Q. What area are you taking there in working out this figure? 
A. That is column 51 (showing).

Q. Where were you measuring when you said that my suggestion 
was half the figure ? A. I was measuring the area around column 51.

Q. Around some bathrooms ? A. I was measuring around 51.
Q. Were you measuring around two bathrooms? A. I was 

measuring two bathrooms and two bedrooms which are carried by 51.
Q. Supposing you measured a room 15 x 10, and supposing you had 

a number of rooms 15 x 10, what result would you get? A. I presume 30 
you would have about a 6 ft. passageway between them. Would that 
be right?

Q. I want to take the situation of, say, three bedrooms each 15 x 10, 
lying side by side. Just do that first of all, never mind anything else? 
A. I cannot do it from that. The information is insufficient.

Q. Why is it insufficient? A. Because what are the end walls of 
the bedroom. I can work out what the side walls are, but what happens 
at the end.

Q. Imagine four bedrooms each 15 x 10 ft. side by side; give me the 
two centre ones 1 A. The weight per square foot of 15 x 10 bedrooms 40 
side by side would be 15 x 9£ x 55—I am sorry, it would be 9^ x 55 over 
15 for the two end walls only. That would be somewhere around 35.
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Q. When you said 80 or 90, you were taking a small area, weren't in the 
you, where there was a concentration of bathrooms? A. I was taking Court' 
the average loading in the panel section, column 51. That is the next South Wales 
column in each direction; the average loading on those two panels. Equfabie

Q. The average loading, you say, on what columns? A. Of the Ju™dicti°n- 
area bounded by—— Plaintiff's

Q. That is 51 there (showing)! A. Yes, the areas bounded v̂ oe -
llv No. 20. 
"}•••• A. T. Britten

Q. 26? A. 26, 28, 53. —-Cross- 
10 Q. And 78 and 76? A. And 78 and 76, that is right. That is examination, 

not including the external walls; the internal partitions in that area. 
There are 11 in about 60 ft.

Q. If you take Exhibit L2, and if you go across .... A. There 
are 10 the other side of them. That is equivalent to two, that one 
(indicating); 10. That is not complete. There are other cross parti­ 
tions.

Q. Where are the other cross partitions'? A. In either case, 
those (indicating).

Q. 60 ft. you had then, did you. You were dealing with how many 
20 bedrooms I A. I was dealing with the numbers inside the centre 

lines of those columns.
Q. You were dealing with, on one side of, the corridor, the situation 

which had four bedrooms'? A. And four bathrooms. On the other 
eide you have six bedrooms and two bathrooms.
SIR GARFIELD: Can we identify this area? 
Mr WALLACE: I have done so by columns.

Q. Now, take sheet 3 of Exhibit L2. Could you work out the 
partition weights per foot. Say there are six bedrooms? A. Six 
bedrooms. Do we take the number between those columns?

30 Q. Between columns .... A. What about the dimensions? 
Can I get a scale out so that I can do some measuring here?

Q. Yes ....
SIR GARFIELD: He has assumed brick columns. 
Mr WALLACE: That is right; 4J inches. 
WITNESS: And exclude the external walls.
Mr WALLACE: Q. Yes. All 1 want you to work out is the weight 
per foot.
HIS HONOR: How can that area be described on the notes?
AVITNESS: Bedroom No. 5 to bedroom No. 10 inclusive; excluding 

40 the wall between bedroom 5 and bedroom 4 but including the wall 
between bedroom 10 and bedroom 11.
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in the SIB GABFIELD: What about the marginal walls?
Gourt^ofjfeui WITNESS: Excluding one end wall and including the other; not 

counting the external walls. Nearly 80 Ibs.
Mr WALLACE: Q. Now I want to ask you this: If you go back to 
Exhibit H, I want you to assume that instead of the partitions—you 
see, you have counted up as though there were two 4i inches? A. 

— That is debatable, I quite agree. 
A. T.°Britten. Q. Not only is it debatable .... A. It is shown here, that is

examination. Q. But in practice you would not have two 4^ inch brick partitions JQ 
separating two bathrooms just to get a duct for pipes in between, 
would you? A. Not for that purpose.

Q. The most you would have would be bricks on edge 3 inches 
or something less. You would not have 4^ inch brick partitions 
separating two continguous bathrooms, would you? A. Oh no, you 
would not.

Q. So that if you made an assumption that all these partitions 
which you have been computing between the bathrooms were of much 
lighter material, then it would reduce you down very materially, 
wouldn't it? A. In the bathrooms? 20

Q. Yes. That is where the partitions mount up? A. No, not 
very much. That is only ....

Q. Look, if you take this one line on Exhibit H, between column 
51 and column 76, you have got .... A. There are 11 walls of 
which four could be reduced to about two-thirds of their present size, 
or the size that you asked me to assume.

Q. I wish you would not anticipate my question. I was not going 
to say that? A. I am sorry. I am trying to expedite the proceed­ 
ings, that is all.

Q. You would say that four out of 11 would be reduced by how 30 
much? A. Four out of 11 would be reduced by one-third.

Q. Depending entirely on what material was used? A. If you 
had three inch brick on edge.

Q. One other way is this: you have said that so far as bedrooms 
are concerned you used the figure of 35 Ibs., didn't you? A. For 
one set of walls only.

Q. And any additional weight involved is concerned with bath­ 
rooms. Is that so? A. No, concerning the other walls of the bed­ 
room.

Q. I want you to assume that the problem is to find the dead weight ^Q 
of the partitions using 4J inch brick? A. Yes.

Q. Excepting in the bathroom. I think you agree that if you had 
4£ inch walls in an hotel you would not have them duplicated, so to speak,
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between bathrooms, would you? A. Xo, you would probably have int/ie 
the construction shown here; two ,'! inch brick, on edge. c<mrtPof"New 

Q. In the result, what I am putting to you is this: whether you s<ml̂ tsales 
develop the centre of that site as a departmental store or whether you Equitable 
develop it with lightwells as an hotel development, you would get much Junsdlcllon- 
the same result after allowing for live load reduction so far as the Plaintiff's 
loadings are concerned. I am assuming a 41 inch brick partition and Evidence- 
not terracotta or vermiculite '! A. Assuming 4i- inch brick parti- No. 20.

throughout? " A.T.Britten.

JO Q- Excepting in the bathrooms ? A. Except in the bathrooms, examination. 
yes.

Q. Do not forget the lightwell? A. I have the figure already 
calculated, by the way. I make it a shade less than the departmental 
store. I just remembered that figure ; I have it here. That is an hotel 
development.

Q. If you use terracotta or vermiculite the hotel loadings would 
be much less than for a departmental store ? A. Yes.

Q. Now I want to go to the matter you raised in your evidence 
about the cost of the trusses. Do you remember I A. Yes.

20 Q. You put it one way, that the additional cost of having trusses 
over ordinary columnar construction would be £8,000 per truss ? A. 
On a certain assumption as to loading on the truss.

Q. Let me remind you what you said. At the foot of p. 339 you 
were asked this question :

"Q. The question of economies protrudes into this, regarding 
the cost of using these trusses. Would the cost of building with 
these trusses be of a consequential magnitude. Tell us what 
would be the cost of putting in these trusses? A. It would 
not be very important in the cost of the building at all."

30 Do you remember that? — A. Yes.
Q. Then, over on p. 339, you said "Assuming the worst condition — 

that is, that you truss over at the lowest possible level immediately and 
carry the maximum building height full area thereon at heavy loading 
. . .'."? A. Yes.

Q. Then, lower down on the same page you said there would be 
"46 tons extra steel in one truss, compared with the column construc­ 
tion — which I estimated at 7, and I cannot read the second figure 
unfortunately, and then I allow for the concrete casing and the form­ 
ing. I can read the final figure for the truss construction of £8,900 for 

40 one truss. ' ' I think the assumption you make is that you use the most 
economic construction; that is the truss three floors deep? A. Yes.

Q. That concludes your evidence on that, but I want to ask you this : 
How did you make up that £8,900 ? A. From the truss I have made

•38632— 13A
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In the £7,700 ; the concrete casing and forming £1,200. Those are both excesses 
over the construction that would be there down to the same level if 

South Wales you did not have trusses. 
Equitable Q. By the truss £7,700 you mean the cost of the steel, do you"?

Plaintiff's Q Tne 46 tons extra steel? A. Yes.Evidence.
— Q. Those are the two items which go to make up the £8,900 and no 

A. T.°Britten. other items. Of course, they make up £8,900! A. Yes.
Crosg. Q. But, in order to erect the trusses, it is essential, isn't it, that the 

examination, stanchions should be strengthened? A. Which ones? 10
Q. The columns? A. Which columns?
Q. Let me invite your attention to the following columns. Columns 

51 and 76 would be involved in the truss, wouldn't they? A. Yes.
Q. Column 57 would be involved? A. Yes. 
Q. And 81? A. Yes.
Q. And 32? A. I do not think it would be 32. It would be 

these two here (indicating). There would be four more ; eight altogether 
would carry the trusses.

Q. I think you agreed with me that the steel — that is, column 51 — 
has been extended up to the position of the letter "Y" (Exhibit 2620 
shown) ? A. Yes, to there (indicating).

Q. That involved extending it. You know that was done a year or 
so ago by the defendant company through one floor? A. Yes.

Q. 76, which is also involved, was also extended to the same height 
through one floor? A. Yes.

Q. And columns 57 and 81, which are involved? A. Yes.
Q. They were extended through two floors, weren't they, in steel? 

A. I could not say.
Q. You could not say? A. No, I could 'not.
Q. I want you to assume that they were extended through two 39 

floors. All that sort of work would be a necessary preliminary to the 
construction of trusses? A. Yes.

Q. And all that sort of work was only necessary if you wanted to 
build trusses and not if you wanted to have ordinary columnar con­ 
struction throughout? A. No.

Q. I put it to you that those particular extensions are absolutely 
necessary in order to allow for the future construction of a truss? 
A. As constructed you mean?

Q. As they are now? A. Yes.
Q. If, however, you were only going to construct without trusses 49 

and without a large open area on the fourth floor and had columns 
going up merely to serve the floors to be erected on them — normal
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floors to be erected on them — there would not be the necessity to extend in the 
those steel columns to which I have referred up in the way I have 
suggested they have been extended ? A. No, instead of the eight South Wales 
large columns you would have 16 smaller columns? Equitable

Q. No. I am suggesting that the cost which has been involved in uns_ l̂
extending those large columns is a material component in estimating Plaintiff's
the cost of the trusses and must be added to the £8,900! A. I cannot v̂ J^ce -

No, 17. 
A. T. Britten.

HIS HONOR: Estimating the cost of truss construction? Cross- 
examination.

10 Mr WALLACE: Yes.
Q. Have you been down to see the way in which those columns 

have been extended? A. I have seen them going by. I have not 
been down to look at them particularly.

Q. If they have been extended in steel to a size which would 
envisage a truss of some kind, that would, of course, mean they would 
be extended in a stronger, thicker way, than would be necessary if the 
contemplated development had not envisaged a large open area on the 
fourth floor? A. Oh, certainly.

Q. All I am putting to you then is it follows, doesn't it, that if 
20 y°u extend a number of columns up in steel thicker than you would 

need for some other purpose, that involves very considerable expense; 
additional expense? A. No.

Q. Surely it is a very costly business, isn't it, extending steel 
columns! A. Yes.

Q. And the thicker they are—the stronger you extend them—the 
more costly it is ? A. Yes.

Q. Have you any idea—is it within your knowledge—that some 
nearly £40,000 has been spent on extending columns in the last two 
years! A. I would not be surprised what the figure was. I have no 

30 idea exactly how much work was done.
Q. You have not had occasion in connection with qualifying your­ 

self to give evidence to look at the extent to which a number of columns 
have been extended? A. No.

Q. Or the thickness by which they have been extended? A. I 
have only looked at the columns I was concerned with for purposes of 
my evidence.

Q. When you were purporting to give His Honor the cost of 
erecting the trusses, which you gave in chief to Sir Garfield—do you 
remember 1? A. Yes.

40 Q- Did you not think it would 1,? fair to include all items which 
were directly or indirectly involved in the erection of the trusses? 
A. Yes.
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in the Q. I put it you have omitted, in arriving at the figure of £8,900, 
take into account the extra cost involved in extending certain 

South Wales columns in a thicker and more expensive manner than would have been 
Equitable necessary if no large open area had been envisaged on the fourth 

jurisdiction, floor! A. Can I have the question repeated, please?
Q. You have omitted when arriving at the figure of £8,900 to take

V1 ence ' into account the extra expense involved in extending certain columns 
No. 20. in a thicker and stronger manner than would have been necessary if 

! _ ' the building had been developed without an open area and just by 
Cross- columns in the ordinary way? A. No. 10examination. ^ ^

Q. What I am putting to you is that instead of four trusses each 
costing, according to your figures, £8,900 extra, it would be more 
correct to say that each truss would cost somewhere between £12,000 
to £14,000 extra? A. No.

Q. And instead of its being worked out on a footage basis, being 
the figure you have given, it really works out at about £5/10/- ? A. I 
maintain my figure of 6/-.

Q. By the way, the higher you put the truss the further you would 
have to extend the columns in strength sufficient to carry it ? A. Yes.

Q. And the greater the cost of extending those columns? A. Yes. 20
Q. If I can just put this to you at this stage, to clarify what I 

am trying to obtain from you, you agree that the truss construction 
involves that the central columns are weaker than the columns which 
support the truss? A. Weaker and cheaper.

Q. And that the outside columns have to be heavier because after 
a certain stage they do not get the aid of the weaker columns? A. 
Yes.

Q. In the centre ? A. Yes.
Q. And that is why their extension has to be in a much more thicker 

and stronger design than if you had columns without trusses going 30 
right through the site? A. The stronger columns are stronger, and 
the weaker columns are weaker. The total cost is the same.

Q. Have you ever worked that out, or is that something you are 
saying on the spur of the moment? A. I have worked it out approxi­ 
mately.

Q. You are saying the total cost would be the same ? A. Yes. 
It might differ. It could not be exactly the same, but so far as we are 
concerned it is the same.
HIS HONOR : Q. The stronger columns .... A. The stronger 
columns have to be made larger and the weaker columns have to be made 40 
smaller than what you would do if they were all carrying equal loads, 
but the total area carried, the total area of column, the total cost is the 
same.
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Q. According to that, if you had weaker columns, what you are jnthe 
saying is you would have to have more in number? A. No. With the 
truss construction you have eight heavy columns and eight light South Wales 
columns. The total load carried on the eight columns is still the same.

Q. You mean what you lose on having to have stronger columns on Junsdtctlon- 
the strong ones is compensated for by not having to have the weaker Plaintiff's 
columns as strong as they otherwise might be? A. Yes. Evidence.
Mr WALLACE: Q. There is no doubt that the cost of steel fabricated A. 
columns is very much more expensive than the cost of reinforced con- 

10 crete columns! A. For the same loading, you mean! es
Q. Yes! A. Oh, certainly.
Q. In fact, steel fabricated columns are really very expensive, 

aren't they! A. That is a very vague way to put it.
Q. Why is it a vague way of putting it ? A. Well, what does it 

mean ?
Q. What does what mean? A. Well, I am used to putting things 

in terms of numbers, not in vague adverbs of quality.
Q. If you were considering the size of these columns at about the 

second or third floor level they would be roughly about 3 ft. x 3 ft. in 
20 section, wouldn't they? A. Which columns are these?

Q. The ordinary columns—not the columns that carry the trusses— 
but the ordinary columns which would be designed to go up, say, 150 ft. 
in this building? A. But in what construction?

Q. I am speaking of the ordinary reinforced concrete column? 
A. Eeinforced concrete column?

Q. Yes. Assuming you were not going in for these heavy trusses 
and the large space, the average column would be about 3 ft. x 3 ft.? 
A. In reinforced concrete at the second floor level?

Q. Yes ? A. Oh, a lot bigger than that; impracticably big. 
30 Q- What is impracticably big? 

HIS HONOR: The size of the columns. 
WITNESS: It would be getting on for 5 ft.
Mr WALLACE : Q. I am speaking of columns which carry the building 
without the truss conception? A. Yes.

Q. They would get thinner, of course, as you went upwards? A. 
Yes.

Q. Instead of 3 ft. square, you claim it would be 5 ft.? A. To 
carry the possible maximum development. I would say they would be 
made similar to the existing columns carrying the same loading. That 

40 is 28, isn't it?
Q. You would say 5 ft. x 5 ft., would you? A. Getting on for 

that; not quite, nearly 5 ft. X 5 ft.
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in the Q. That would be about how many yards; say, 20 to 25 square feet ? 
-A- Jt is ak°ut 10 yards per floor. It would be about 8 or 9 yards per 

South Wales floor height.
in its

Editable Q. That is per piece, or per floor as you put it! A. Yes.
Jurisdiction.

Q. They would only cost, even assuming your figure, about £400, 
wouldn't they ? A. It would not be as much as that. You could not 

— use them though.
No. 20.

A.T.Britten. Q. We will come to that. You would say something less than £400! 
c^- A. Yes.

examination. Q ^^ ̂  uge them {f ^ ̂ ^ 3 f t x 3 fU A Yes, that 10
would be reasonable.

Q. And instead of costing something under £400, the extension of 
the steel fabricated columns like 51 and 57 per floor, I suppose you 
would agree would cost about £4,000? A. It is possibly a bit higher 
in comparison. That has to be compared with £800. The ratio is a 
little higher than I would expect, but it would not be very far out.

Q. So you do not agree that were it not for the trusses all the 
columns could be erected in reinforced concrete? A. If all the 
columns in any case could be in reinforced concrete, it would be too 
much obstruction in the Wynyard concourse. 20

Q. Just take one of these plans in front of you. You do know the 
layout down there and what is on the site, don't you ? A. Generally. 
I would have to check back on the plans to answer any specific question, 
probably.

Q. You know that there are bedrooms overlooking George St.? 
A. Yes.

Q. Would you agree that they are supported on columns covered 
by the oblong 123, 142, 163 and 152? A. Yes, that is about right.

Q. Then, Wynyard Lane itself is supported by the two lines of 
central columns, isn't it. I will give you the lines I suggest; by the 3Q 
rectangle of columns comprised within 168, 83, 172 and 166 ? A. Yes.

Q. They are all supporting Wynyard Lane? A. Yes.
Q. There are two layers of ramps, so to speak, the George St. 

level and the Hunter St. level respectively? A. Yes.
Q. They lead through, so far as the subject site is concerned, right 

through from George St. to Carrington St. and then go further on? 
A. Yes.

Q. The two floors of ramps are supported respectively, aren't 
they, by the following rectangles of columns, namely 155, 4, 5 and 156? 
A. Yes. 40

Q. Would that be about right? A. That would be about right.
Q. And 6, 159, 160 and 91 A. Yes.
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Q. Furthermore, there is a very large railway goods lift on that in the 
corner, isn't there? A. The north west comer.

Q. And that goods lift is supported by columns 48, 49, 85, 74 and
70! A. Yes. Equitable

Jurisdiction.
Q. Then, there is a large cool room that the defendant has con- p] ~Tff, 

structed? A. I am not quite sure of the location of that one. Evidence!
Q. If you look at columns 4, 26, coming across to 76, 168, and No. 20. 

back to one .... A. Yes. That could be. I do not know. A " T- Britten-
Q. YOU do not knOW? A. No. exaction.

10 Q. But it is somewhere in that area? A. It could be.
Q. The cool room? A. It could be. I will probably accept your 

assurance. I do not know.
Q. And it would be supported by columns? A. I presume so, 

yes.
Mr WALLACE : Q. In the 1956 plan there would be, as we know, a 
concrete slab placed over the lounge room and other rooms on the 
Carrington Street level? A. Yes.

Q. And they would be supported by these columns in the centre 
and just to the west of Wynyard Lane? A. Yes.

20 Q. On that you agree? A. Yes.
Q. If you go back to the big columns, we have heard it said that 

they were capable of carrying somewhere about 6^ million Ibs. A. 
At which level?

Q. At the Wynyard Lane level, I think it is. Would you agree 
with that? A. That would be approximately correct, yes.

Q. And there would be no development, departmental store or 
otherwise, which could ever utilise such a load-carrying capacity? 
A. Yes, there could be such a development.

Q. What sort? A. A number of things. 
30 Q. Not a departmental store, anyway? A. Yes.

Q. But the departmental store that I have been through with you 
shows only 3 million 200,000 Ibs.? A. At ground floor level?

Q. At second floor level I A. Yes.
Q. You would only add 200,000 or 400,000 Ibs. more to that? 

A. You are assuming that the minimum specified in the code is the 
maximum.

Q. Don't you agree that the skill of the engineer lies in construct­ 
ing framework and columns which are sufficient for the project and 
for the purpose, but not too big? A. Yes.

40 Q- Otherwise unnecessary waste is incurred? A. Yes.
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Q. I then follow with you into the loadings involved at point Y. 
c<mrtPofmNew on Exhibit 26. If the site were developed as a departmental store .... 
South Wales A. On one assumption.

in its
e reSUlt °f 3'200'000 at that P°int> Why ? A"

assuming the maximum live load to be covered was 100 Ibs. 

the weight which is provided in the code? A. The

Plaintiff's a foot. 
Evidence.

Cross- Q. It is provided for in the code? A. It is the minimum weight
examination. provided f or in the code 1Q

A. T. Britten, minimum weight.
Q. It is provi 

pided for in 1
Q. And also the code itself contains a design factor of safety in that 

figure 1? A. Yes.
Q. Do you seriously say when they provide 100 Ibs. and you con­ 

struct to that code that there is not an inherent or an interior, so to 
speak, factor of safety? A. Not for all forms of commercial ....

Q. Leave out the supposition that you are going to give. It would 
be a store of 12 floors, each of them carrying rolls of linoleum in the 
centre of the floor, and just take the ordinary departmental store. The 
code envisaged is that the departmental store involves an averaging 
load of 100 Ibs. a foot? A. The minimum loading of 100 Ibs. a square 20 
foot. It is quite specific.

Q. I am not differing from you on that. I am only asking you. 
Bid I not receive a figure of 3,200,000 from you at point Y. in column 
51? A. Assuming 100 Ibs., the live load, the full live load.

Q. That would envisage a modern departmental store ? A. Some 
departmental store.

Q. If you carried down to the Wynyard lane level where it is 
planned for 61 million pounds loading you would only have to add on 
to that piece another three or four thousand pounds ? A. How many 
floors? You have to add on to Carrington .... 30

Q. Just look at this exhibit, (showing witness Exhibit CC) and 
look at point Y. will you! A. Was it the second floor, Carrington 
Street?

Q. I show you portion of Exhibit CC. The steel column calcula­ 
tions, and the folio of which deals with column 51. From that it appears 
that is designed to carry the third floor? A. That is in George Street, 
the first floor, Carrington Street.

Q. 6i million Ibs.? A. Yes.
Q. What I am really putting to you is that there is no rational 

practical, development on that area which could ever make use today 40 
of 6^ million Ibs. at the third floor, George Street level, column 
A. There is.
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Q. What! A. One is in building with floors over 100 Ibs. live in the
loads, or any special live load reduction, could easily in the third floors cJ
available at the Carrington Street impose over 5,000,000 itself. Then South Wales
you have somewhere in your building to provide a tower with water ^miitabie 
tanks and special equipment for ventilation or air conditioning. All jurisdiction.
that could easily be put in that particular area, which is a very favour- plaintiff,s
able place for it. It could lift the load up well over six millions. Evidence.

Q. Let me test that. A departmental store—a modern depart- NO. 20. 
mental store—would only impose a load of 3,200,000 Ibs. weight at that A- T- Britten- 

10 point marked Y. on Exhibit 26? A. On certain assumptions. You Cross- 
have to put up some walls, and you have been at me, Mr Wallace, to examination 
withdraw that, but I refuse to withdraw it—that it can be difficult.

Q. At that point Y., where is it in relation to a point from George 
Street? A. My understanding is it is the same point.

Q. That means a departmental store with 100 Ibs. weight would 
only impose that weight? A. A departmental store up to roof level, 
with 100 Ibs. live load, would impose about that weight.

Q. So in order to get up to six and half millions you have to double 
that weight? A. Yes.

20 Q- I will put this other question to you: that there is no develop­ 
ment of a hotel nature which could conceivably come anywhere near 
that limit of 6^ million Ibs. is there? A. I hesitate to say on that. 
The previous development—I do not know what limitations of a hotel 
tower development are.

Q. Do you realise I am asking you these questions in the light of 
modern Codes and live load reduction rates and so on ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you realise that the plans now in this Court known as the 
Inness-Kerr and Garden plans drawn up in the early thirties only 
envisaged a load of about 4i millions? A. I do not know that. I 

30 don't know.
Q. When you are speaking about water tanks and so on, you are 

aware that there are eight columns in that area which are said to carry 
over six million Ibs. at the third floor, George Street level? A. No, 
I do not think so.

Q. I can assure you that there are, according to the evidence? 
A. I don't think so.

Q. Column six says 5,115,000, third floor level, and 6^ millions 
at the mezzanine level, and it goes up to 6^ millions down below but at 
the third floor level it is only 5,115,000? " A. Yes.

.» Q. 96, which is another one of the columns in question is 5,395,000, 
4U third floor level; and 6,718,000 at its base. 112 is 5,819,000 at the third 

floor level and 7,357,000 at its base. The next one is on the other side, 
which would be 119, and is 5,140,000 third floor level, and 6,343,000 
at its base. 101: 5,466,000, third floor level and 6,811,000 at the base.
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in the 81 is the next. That is 5,360,000 at the third floor level and it only shows 
5,900,000, going- down until George Street. 57 is the last one— 5,256,000 

South Woks at the third floor level ....
in its

SIE GARFIELD: I thought I remembered one going to 4,000,000 
—— ' because I was curious in my mind as to why there should be such a 

difference. That is the figure I had in mind.
N"^7o. Mr WALLACE : It is my mistake. This one is 4,933,000 at the third 

A. TjBritten. floor ievel, which is 57.

examination Q' ^ ̂ want to put to you is this : That you cannot envisage any
' hotel development on that site, or office development, which would 10 
utilise those load capacities at the third floor level. A. Not for all 
columns.

Q. Having got that answer I will put the other one : Nor can you 
envisage such types of development using such capacity for any 
column? A. Yes.

Q. Which column? A. All.
Q. All? A. Yes ; in calculating my stress ....
Q. I thought you said a moment ago not for all ? ....

HIS HONOB: Not all together, but each one. He could envisage 
development where one or other was .... 20
Mr WALLACE: Q. What sort of development? A. Any usage; 
departmental store is one.

Q. I am speaking at the moment of hotel and office? A. Hotel? 
Hotel — I had only envisaged that loading being approached on 51, 57, 
if you like.

Q. When you say approach ; you can envisage it being reached on 
51 or 57? A. For a hotel.

Q. Under what circumstances? A. If you have a tower section 
for the various purposes which are required over the line of those 
columns, it must be at the Carrington Street end. That is the high 30 
end of the building.

Q. What sort of tower? A. A tower like such as will be built 
on top of any type of modern building.

Q. A tower like a tower that is built on every type of modern 
building? A. Yes.

Q. But there is no tower built on the top of the modern buildings 
going up now? A. Yes. There is always a fire tower, at least.

Q. You would say the presence of a tower would make up the 
difference between 3,300,000 and 6i million Ibs. ? Is that what you say? 
A. No. 40
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Q. We are only up to 3,300,000 Ibs.? A. I am sorry. The in the 
presence of the tower?

Q. We are only up to 3,300,000, not hotel development, approxi- 
mately. We know at that point it is 6i million Ibs. capacity ? A. Yes. Equitable,

Jurisdiction.
Q. Iii a hotel development what sort of tower could use another ——

3,200,000 Ibs.I A. I could not get it precisely, but I said "approach- £"££"
ing" in an hotel. —

No. 20.
Q. How near is the approach 1 A. I would say for hotel develop- A. T. Britten, 

ment it would be possible to get over 5 millions in these columns. ctoijs- 
10 Q. So it would be 1,700,000 Ibs. taken up in a tower, on coming on examination, 

to 51? A. Eh?
Q. There would be 1,700,000 Ibs. carried out and translated into 

51 as a result of the tower? Is that what you are saying? A. That 
would be right, yes. I can envisage a loading of that order.
HIS HONOR: Q. When you say you can envisage it have you in mind 
any particular kind of hotel or are you just envisaging things that 
could be put in some particular hotel that could be built, provided 
you had unlimited money and wanted unlimited equipment—a hotel 
that could be built there? You follow what I mean? A. Yes. 

20 Whether it is an entirely nebulous theory or something that could be 
translated into practice.

Q. Yes. Something that would be likely to be translated into an 
hotel? A. If you are allowed storeys in the hotel development, the 
maximum; you could get over the figures I am quoting.

Q. Do you mean the extent of what you build on it, or the weight 
or the quality? A. Something on the lines of what I said was 
unreasonable hotel development, in my outline.
Mr WALLACE: Q. Unreasonable? A. Yes.
HIS HONOUE: Q. Possible but unreasonable "? A. Yes, possible but 

30 unreasonable. I said an unreasonable hotel.
Mr WALLACE: Q. All I am putting to you is that you envisage an 
ordinary modern hotel such as a practical man with effective means 
would want to build. You cannot possibly envisage the utilisation to 
its maximum extent of column 51, can you ? A. Not for a hotel solely, 
no.

Q. So I think it comes to office buildings, what we have called 
in this City a commercial building? A. Commercial building, yes.

Q. This is a building with offices running through, only ;V) Ibs. floor 
loading? A. Not a commercial building, solely offices ....

40 Q. That is what I am speaking of? A. I am sorry, you said a 
commercial building. Offices to rent? That would bo something like 
80 Ibs. partition, 50 Ibs.—wait till I check on that one.
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in the Q. They would not be any more than a departmental store, would
New tney • A. Yes, much more. They could have much more. 

wales Q j am not Qn t « could have » i am on the practicalities 7 A. On 
Equitable the practicalities. I say they could be. You have 80 Ibs. for the parti-

Plaintiff's square foot.
—— ' Q. Can I just stop you in your .... (Sir Garfield asked 

A T^Britten that ^ne w^ness n°t be interrupted but allowed to complete his answer).
- — Q. When you said 80 Ibs. for the partitions, I do not want you to 

examination, assume the partitions in the City, not 4^ inch brick, I want you to assume \Q 
something much lighter, something much lighter to what is in fact built 
in the City? A. I am assuming what is reasonable.

Q. I am not asking you to assume 4^ inch brick. I am asking 
you .... A. I am working on what is reasonable. I do not know 
that. You cannot dictate to me on my own field.

Q. I cannot what? A. You cannot dictate to me in my own field.
Q. I am asking you to work it out on the basis that it has terra 

cotta partitions and it is not brick? A. That is not the question you 
asked me before.

Q. That is the one I am asking you ? A. On that false question 20 
you would get a figure very much lower than the capacity.

Q. Now, if you use brick what would you get? A. If you use 
brick? That could impose a loading of approximately 5,000,000 Ibs. at 
the third floor level, not counting any possible roof or tower loading.

Q. How did you work that out quickly? Just give me an outline? 
A. By interpolating between the two figures I have for the floor 
loadings.

Q. What figure did you use? A. I interpolated between the 
figure I had for 280 ....

Q. Never mind that? A. That is the figure I used. I used 250, 30 
and the total floor loading.

Q. What is the 250 you had? A. 80 Ibs. for partitions and 20 Ibs. 
for live load less reduction. That means you have a gross loading ....

Q. How did you make it up? I do not want you to work it out? 
A. About 132 for floor slab and about 17 for finishes. That comes to 
149—249.

Q. 132 for floor slabs? A. Yes.
Q. Where did you get that figure from? A. My estimate of it.
Q. Just estimated whilst in the box there ? Do you mean this : Is 

it 132 that you use which is higher than any figures I have been dealing 40 
with hitherto? Is that so? A. It is half an inch thicker than 10^. 
That is the way I estimated 10^ for a loading of 100. Then I have 130 
and I took another half.
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Q. Then you have got yourself up to what? A. 249 Ibs., 250. in the
Supreme

Q. 2.')5, and 2,300,000—odd—how do you get 249 coming to five Court of New 
millions? A. Say that again! *"%%*"

Q. Using a figure of 235 I got your concurrence on a loading of jurisdiction. 
3,200,000 Ibs. Now, when you are using 249 you have got a loading, as -7—7 , 
you told His Honor of five millions. How do you reconcile those ? Evidence!
A. In the first place you have the extra storeys. You take it up .... ——^ J J r NO. 20.

Q. Have you allowed the extra storey ? A. One extra storey. I A - T- Bntten- 
have 191 at 230. That is 210. To estimate it more accurately it is Cross-

10 4,800,000 Ibs. at that floor. examination.

Q. What type of building is this ? A. Office building. It has no 
heavy occupancy.

Q. Is that on the basis that the whole site is built over? A. Yes.
Q. What about the lightwells for an office building! A. Not 

required.
Q. Do you seriously say you would build a box-like building on the

whole site for office work with no lightwells in the centre? A. No.
No lightwells in the centre ? You need not have lightwells in the centre.
You must have a well on the outside because of the limitation of the

20 external columns. That is the only well you need have.
Q. You would have no lightwells at all in the centre of the building 

that would be 90 or 100 feet thick? A. Yes.
Q. Is that what you say ? A. Yes.
Q. Have you ever looked around and seen what is going on in the 

City in recent years ? What is at present being built in the City? A. 
Sometimes, yes.

Q. Can you call your mind to such buildings as Caltex, M.L.C. 
and Anzac House I A. Yes.

Q. Would you agree that those buildings are all narrow buildings 
30 with light going through them on both sides ? A. I do not think 

you could call Caltex House a narrow building.
Q. You do not! A. No. That is the trouble about not giving 

numbers with that type of thing.
Q. Never mind numbers. You do not call Caltex House a narrow 

building? A. No.
Q. You would not call it a thin slab type of building? A. It 

is?
Q. Do you know what a thin slab type building is? A. I would 

say one with thin slab type of floors.
40 Q. That is all you envisage? A. That is all that word conveys 

to me.
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In the Q. You do not know anything about the idea of having a rect- 
c<mrt"of"New angular shape—a thin building, not occupying the whole of the site, 
South Wales in order to get good light and air all around ? A. Yes, I know that.

in its 
Equitable Q. You do? A. YeS.

Jurisdiction,
—• Q. That would be the very antithesis, would it not, to what you 

Evidence, have in mind, when you were speaking a few moments ago 1 A. Yes.
NO. 20. Q. I want to come to these designs you did draw that are in Court; 

A. T^Britten. ^hat yOU did draw and hand into the Court? A. Designs?

examination. HIS HONOR: Diagrams.
WITNESS: Diagrams. 10
Mr WALLACE: Q. You do not hold yourself out to be an architect, 
do you? A. No.

Q. Do you remember telling His Honor that the liberalisation 
from 16 to 18 took place while you were going through the University? 
A. It commenced. It was commenced then.

Q. It was in the process of being changed to 18? A. Yes.

Mr WALLACE: It is at p. 446.
Q. I would just like to show you this folio of the Municipal 

Council of Sydney. (Shown to witness). See para. 18 deals with 
reinforcements, tensile or comprehensive stresses in steel not to exceed 20 
a certain poundage a square inch? A. We are not talking about 
reinforcements.

Q. Every stress in steel. That is not what you are talking about? 
A. We are talking about structural steel.

Q. You see where it says "by gazette in 1934 the figure 16,000 is 
changed to 18,000"? A. Yes.

Q. Do you say that has nothing to do with what you are talking 
about? A. That one has nothing to do with what I was talking 
about. We are talking about structural steel.

SIE GAEFIELD: Q. "That one" means para. 81? A. Yes. We 30 
were not discussing that at all.

Mr WALLACE: Q. Did you say this proclamation in the Govt. Gazette 
of 15th June, 1934, whereby 16,000 was changed to 18,000 has nothing 
to do with what you are talking about at that page of the transcript! 
A. It was related to it, but not what we were actually talking about.

Q. In what way was it related to it? A. In the same way. It 
was not actually the matter we were talking about.

Q. You were being asked by me was there a prior liberalisation, 
and you asked "for steel?" and you said the liberalisation on that
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would be from 16 to 18. I said, "for columns of steel carrying loads'?" in the 
and you asked me which code and I said, ' ' The same code that you were
speaking a!5out when you said that had gone to 20.2." South Wales

in its
In what way do you say it was related to that — this Govt. Gazette Equitable

of 1934? A. Actually 20.2 refers only to structural steel, not to Junsdlctlon-
reinforced. It is still the 18, but the two follow more or less parallel Plaintiff's
, , . , ' Evidence.nut are not necessarily the same. __

No. 20.
HIS HONOE : There must be some confusion, because the next ques- A. T. Britten. 
tions were:

10 "Q. But you know it Used to be 16?" examination.

and you said, "It used to be 16, I know, in days before I went to the 
University. It is a long while ago." Then you were asked "What 
was it when you were at the University?" and you said, "It was in 
the process of being changed to 18".
WITNESS: All those figures refer to structural steel, shapes and 
angles.
Mr WALLACE : Q. That is why you are referring to 20.2? A. Yes.

Q. The change from 16 to 20.2 seems to be a different one from 
16 to 18? A. It changed from 16 to 20 in the 20 's and then later 

20 on all this referred to structural steel.
HIS HONOE: Q. I was actually worried about the 20.2? A. The 
reinforcing steel has always been a different matter, and it has 
increased at different times.
Mr WALLACE (Showing witness Exh. ER) : This is Exh. EE I am 
showing you, which you compiled. By the way, were you asked to 
compile that or did you do that voluntarily? A. I was asked ....

Q. Were you asked to compile this! A. I was not given any 
specific request as to how I do it, but ....

Q. The first diagram has the maximum development, office or store. 
30 That is No. 1? A. Could I have my original calculations on this?

Q. I have not got anything of yours. You have got three sheets 
there? A. I gave you some calculations in regard to this matter.

Q. You gave me some? A. Yes.
SIE GAEFIELD : We passed them over to Mr Llewellyn right at the 
adjournment. They will be here after lunch.
Mr WALLACE: Q. With regard to that diagram, as it contains no 
lightwells at all, if you erected it over the 54 plan would you have to 
demolish the 54 building? A. You would have to demolish the 
partition between the rooms in many cases and remodel it, as I said 

40 before.
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in the Q. Would you have to take down the two wings connecting the 
George Street and the Carrington Street parts of the 54 plan? A. 

South Wales You would have a certain amount of tearing down and remodelling, 
Equitable and you would have new ....

—— Q. Just listen to the question .... A. To suit your new 
requirements.

No~2o Q- Would you have to take down the two wings connecting George 
A.T.Bntten. Street and Carrington Street in the 54 plan? A. Only partially, 

^. very partially.
examination. ,-> A -i i -,i ,1 i- i j n «> ITT- -inQ. And do away with the hghtwell? A. Yes. 10 

Q. And you would build over the whole site? A. Yes.
Q. Could you do that equally well with the 56 plan ? A. Which 

level?
Q. If you wanted to? A. That is the first floor, Carrington 

Street, you are talking about now!
Q. You told me you could erect design 1. At least, I assume from 

what you have said that you mean you could erect your design No. 1 
on Exh. BE over the area in lieu of the 54 building if it were con­ 
structed? A. You mean at that level?

Q. What level? A. The first floor, Carrington Street area; or 20 
do you mean the higher level, or what?

Q. Is not this design No. 1 a plan looking downward on some 
building that you say could be erected on the site! A. On one floor 
of the building.

Q. Do you envisage it going to the maximum height? A. The 
arrangement of that in the building is shown by sheet 2.

Q. Show me where? A. In this (indicating).
Q. Which one on sheet 2 deals with design No. 1? A. (Indicat­ 

ing). This one.
Q. Design A.? A. And design B. 30
Q. So you do envisage, going back to design 1 — design 1 going up 

to the maximum building height as one solid building occupying the 
whole site? A. No. You would have floor 2 or 3, whatever it is 
(indicating).

Q. If you take this part (indicating) ; that is the maximum height 
above George Street, is it not? A. Yes.

Q. That is so, isn't it? A. Yes.
SIE GAEFIELD: Can you identify what "this part" is, for the 
notes ?
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Mr WALLACE : Q. I am now showing you design A., on the second in ike 
sheet of Exh. EE. Do you say it represents the elevation of design 1
on the first sheet? A. No. It is a design using the floors .... South Wales

in its
Q. You do envisage a building occupying the whole of the area as Equitable 

going to the maximum height, facing George Street? A. Yes.
Q. And going to the maximum height facing Carrington Street? 

A. Yes. No, I am sorry to disagree. ——
Q. Then, to construct design A., you would have to pull down a A. T. Britten. 

considerable proportion of the 54 building if it were constructed? ~ —
10 A. No. examination.

Q. What would you do with the 54 building, in order to produce 
design A.? A. You would have to pull down some of the building 
and make some alterations and remodel it.

Q. Would you pull down the two wings connecting George Street 
and Carrington Street? A. No.

Q. You would do away with the lightwell? A. Yes.
Q. What portions of the 54 building would you have to pull down?

A. You would have to pull down? That would depend on how much
remodelling you have to do. There would have to be some walls pulled

20 down, some fresh openings in the walls made, and it would be a matter
of planning, which is not really my sphere.

Q. Which means you cannot answer the question? A. I cannot 
answer how much, no.

Q. If the 56 building were constructed could you erect design A 
on that ....
SIE GAEFIELD : Does that mean according to the plans and specifica­ 
tions, and to what level?
Mr WALLACE : I am asking ....
WITNESS: Could I build this building on the 56 plan?

30 Mr WALLACE: Q. Yes. If the 56 building were constructed? A. 
Not if this carried heavy loading.

Q. But you could do it on 54? A. Yes.
Q. Why could you do it on one and not the other? A. Because 

of column 51.
Q. Why is it because of column 51? A. Because this heavy 

loading would be too much load on 51.
Q. In what way? What figures are you saying that on? A. It 

could possibly be five, 5j millions without any possible extension here.
SIE GAEFIELD: Q. You mean in Carrington Street? A. Yes.

40 Mr WALLACE : Q. At what point would it be up to five or 54 millions ? 
A. The critical level. The top section.
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in the Q. Point Y. of Exh. 26? A. Yes. 
Court of New Q. Why would design A. put more load at point Y. than the con-

^ruction of a departmental store! A. It could be anything from 
Equitable 3 million to 4| million, depending on occupancy.

Jurisdiction. ,. _T . . n .,n—— Q. What is design A. supposed to represent? A. It was a build- 
Plaintiff's ing for commercial use.
Evidence. °

No~20 ^' What sort of building, a departmental store ? A. No. 
A. TVBntten. Q Then what? A. Any building for commercial use. I have 

Cross- notes "for departmental store this should be modified by deleting one
examination, gtorey". 10

Q. Because it would be too heavy? A. Because of ceiling height.
Q. Would this building that you envisage in design A. be more 

than 3,200,000 Ibs. at point A., which you agree would be the load the 
departmental store would put? A. Because it could be heavier 
loading.
HIS HONOR: Q. What do you envisage? A. I envisaged several 
office buildings which would increase it up towards 5 millions, or pos­ 
sibly a departmental store having heavier floor loads than 100 Ibs. 
We have designed them up to 200 Ibs. a square foot, on request.
Mr WALLACE: Q. Where? A. The biggest one we have designed 20 
was 200 Ibs., Greenaways hardware store at Blacktown — 150 at Murray 
Brothers store at Parramatta.

Q. What is the Blacktown building? A. A warehouse.
Q. You envisage that for any form of commercial building? A. 

Yes.
Q. For a commercial building having greater loads than a depart­ 

mental store? A. This is the minimum for a departmental store.
SIR GARFIELD : The witness has always insisted that these figures 
are the minimum for a departmental store. He has always said that.
HIS HONOR : Q. When you say the minimum you mean you envisage 30 
a departmental store with less than 100 Ibs. a foot? A. You are not 
allowed to do that by the Code. The Code sets the minimum value, 
not the maximum.
Mr WALLACE : Q. When you said the minimum or maximum, what 
did you mean by minimum?
SIR GARFIELD: "Not maximum".
Mr WALLACE: Q. When you say minimum, you mean that is 
the minimum scale to which you are allowed to build? A. Yes.

Q. Can you give me any modern building in the City which carries 
a load of 200 Ibs. to the foot ? Only something that you know — if you 40
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do happen to know of it"! A. That carries 200 Ibs. to the foot? I in the
can answer that one, but it would not be fair to your case because I CourT
can quote them. South Wales

in its
Q. Do you know yourself? A. Yes; the Mirror building. Equitable

Jurisdiction.
Q. The Mirror building? A. Yes. „ —_,

JriflmtllT 8

Q. With heavy machinery on it? A. Yes. It is not a fair com- Evidence- 
parison. You asked me that one, it is not a fair comparison. No. 20.

A. T. Britten.
Q. That is a matter for His Honor. We will depart from printing —— 

and we will depart from the Mirror building. Can you give me any examination. 
10 other building in the city, a modern building in the city? A. As I 

said before, I have had very little experience with the present city 
buildings, modern city buildings—but of similar buildings I know in 
the city ....

Q. In this design A. have you gone at all into the question of 
working out what would be the loads at any floor in any detail at all, 
or is it just something that you think is possible ? A. It is the loading 
estimates that I think are probable.
HIS HONOR: The question arises as to what happened about the notes 
of Mr Nicholls. Are they required back? If they are someone should 

20 tell Mr Nicholls to bring them back. If they are not required that nee«l 
not be done.
SIR GARFIELD: My friend asked questions involving them. My 
friend could not undertake not to ask that.
HIS HONOR: It is possible that they might be used again. 
Mr WALLACE: I will have inquiries made.
Mr WALLACE: Q. I return to Mr Britton his computations regarding 
the area. (Document handed to witness.)

Q. Your second diagram on the first sheet of Exh. RR relates to an 
office or store, apparently? A. Yes.

30 Q- Is that designed to go up to the maximum building height? 
A. I think you have misunderstood the position there. Those are only 
pictures of individual floors.

Q. Do you envisage that it could be taken up to maximum building 
height? A. I never envisaged—I only envisage such special uses as 
shown in the diagram on sheet 2.

Q. Which diagram on sheet 2 relates to No, 2 on sheet 1 ? A. It 
is used only in diagram A.

Q. As I understand diagram A, that goes up to the maximum 
height above George Street and the maximum height above Carrington 

40 Street? A. Yes.
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in the Q. On the assumption that you can go 150 feet above Carrington
Supreme Htrept? A Yp<? Court of New ° ll ee L • •a- * eb -

8mfn usale3 Q- To return to diagram 2; if you wanted to build that upwards to
Equitable the maximum height it would involve stripping the bedroom building

Jurisdiction. oyer the jightwells in the 54 plan? A. No. It is not used below the
Plaintiff's 8th floor, no relation to the bedrooms underneath.
Evidence.

—— Q. What would be the position up to the 8th floor? A. You 
A T°Britten would have one underneath two up to the 8th or 9th floor. You would

-— ' have 1 underneath 2 up to the 7th or 8th floor.
Cross- 

examination. Q. 1 up to 2; that means that the bedrooms and the wings on the 10
54 plan would have to be stripped down? A. No; remodelled.

Q. You would do away with the lightwell, for instance 1? A. You 
would do away with the lightwell, yes.

Q. And you would build in the centre of the lightwell? A. You 
would use the building in the centre of the lightwell.

Q. And you would have to pull down partitions and the wall? A. 
Some. That would depend on the details. I cannot give you the 
planning.

Q. I am suggesting to you that you would not have a hotel, accord­ 
ing to the design in 1—2 at all. You would not want an hotel like 20 
that at all today, would you? A. No. I never suggested it.

Q. If you had a store according to that design—I am sorry to 
retrace my steps, but I have forgotten; did you say design 1 are the 
upper floors of a building of which design 2 would be the lower floors? 
A. No, the other way around.

Q. And the thickness or width of the upper floors in design 2 would 
be approximately how much across there (indicating)? A. About 
89 feet.

Q. If you had that used as offices you would have somehow or other 
to let out offices covering a width of 89 feet. That is what it amounts 30 
to ? A. Yes, actually 87 feet—by the time you take the walls off.

Q. Design 3—does that represent .... A. The alterations to 
the two others.

Q. Just for the higher floors, or right up? A. As shown by 
diagram A. You had to read these two plans in conjunction to put 
yourself in order.

Q. I only want to make clear or quite certain with regard to 
diagram 3. You would have the whole area below, or up to the 
8th floor, and diagram 3 represents the top three or four floors? A. 
Yes. Those are the arrangements I have shown. 40

Q. Unless you had printing machinery or some exceptionally 
heavy loads the buildings envisaged by diagram 3 in conjunction with
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diagram A. would not east as heavy loads on point Y. in Exh. 26 as in the
would a departmental store built over the whole area? A. Yes,
they could thrust more. South Wales

in its
Q. But you have got on the upper three storeys lightwells in the Equitable 

centre and on the sides? A. Only in one alternative design. Jurisdiction.
Q. Take that alternative design. What I said is correct ? A. In 

that ease it would still apply. What I said would still apply in that 
ease, but not to such an extent. A T.°Britten.

Q'. If you assume that the lower eight storeys were just a depart- Crosa. 
10 mental store then you would have less load on point Y. in diagram 3 ? examination. 

A. Then what?
Q. Than if you had a departmental store over the whole area? 

A. I cannot quite follow you. Over the whole floors, you mean? The 
whole volume!

Q. If you use, as I understand your intention, a departmental 
store in accordance with design 1 plan up to the 8th floor and then 
an office building on the top three or four floors in accordance with 
design 3, you would not cast as much weight at point Y. as you 
would by having a departmental store right up to the top? A. About 

20 the same, possibly; or possibly not as much.
Q. Design 4 only applies on the assumption that you were allowed 

to build 150 feet above Carrington Street, that is so, isn't it? A. 
Yes.

Q. With regard to design 5, that goes with the plan of it and 
the elevation on sheet 2? A. It is used in C. and D.

Q. According to your views—you are only presenting structurally
and not architecturally views, I understand—you could have a hotel
developed with no interior lightwell in accordance with design 5 and in
which the width would be about what; 90 feet across? A. About 90

30 feet, yes. For three to 5 floors, depending on what ....
Q. What would you do above that or below it? A. Below three 

to four floors would be the construction at Carrington Street level. 
That is the bar and lounges and so on. Above that would be the bed­ 
rooms.

Q. Three to five floors of bedrooms? A. Three to five floors 
of public rooms, above those the bedrooms. Below that the construc­ 
tion of the Carrington Street level.

Q. But you could not have bedrooms below three to five floors of 
public rooms, could you? A. Nobody said that. I said they are 

4Q above.
HIS HONOE: They are sandwiched in between. You start off with 
the lounge, and then you have three or four floors—whatever it is— 
and then above that the bedrooms. That is what he says.
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In the Mr "WALL ACE: Q. (Indicating). That is another design .... A. 
-^ot a design. I am sorry, I cannot call these designs. You are flatter- 

Wales ing me too much.
in its

Equitable Q. That is another scheme which could be constructed in respect 
ictton. Qf ^.jie gg piangi if the buildings envisaged by the 56 plan were built?

Plaintiff's A. Yes. 
Evidence.
N~~2o ^' ^"ki8 *s merely your own version of the development of the 54 

A. T. Britten, plans, is it not? A. It is a probable hotel development that you 
would use in upper floors.

examination. Q But uging tlie 54 plang without alteration in the lower floors? 10 
A. No. They have to be altered in the public rooms in some designs, 
otherwise they would not be.

Q. And the plan on the second sheet is associated with the second 
and the third? A. B., C and D.

Q. And this is only on design 9 — you have said that is incorrect, 
Mr Mcholls is wrong? A. Yes.

Q. In what respect; would you mind telling me again? A. The 
most glaring fact is that he has omitted the liftwell.

Q. By omitting the lifts you mean he has omitted areas shown near 
the top left hand corner of design 8 and he has got what appears to be 20 
a lift area? A. No. That is projected from the 54 plan. He has 
omitted an area in 8 that is not in 9.

HIS HONOE : Q. Just make that clear to me ? A. That area there 
(indicating) has been omitted in 9 and that is where the lifts are in 
the plan.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Do you say that the 54 plans envisage lifts going 
up there! A. Yes.

Q. That is what I want to talk to you about straight away (show­ 
ing witness Exh. 8). You are not seriously suggesting, are you, that 
Mr Ham envisaged that area that has got ' ' lifts ' ' written inside it — 30 
a white area hatched around or surrounded by red and the word 
"lift" written in it in sheet BA — of Exhibit H., has been a lift well 
designed for the development of the 54 plans 1 A. I beg your pardon f

Q. I wish you would not show so much surprise. You do not state, 
do you, that that area which I have just shown you was envisaged by 
Mr Ham as an area for lifts going up in the development of his plans ? 
A. To be strictly accurate, I could not say. I have not discussed it 
with Mr Ham.

Q. Does it appear from this? A. Certainly.
Q. First of all, the only access shown on this area, GA, is to a bed- 40 

room, isn't it? A. Could I have the elevation on this?
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Q. Yes. I was coming to those? A. I can see immediately it In the 
does not reach the roof level. That makes it clear it is intended to be cmrt 
a future lift well for future use of lifts. South Wales

in its
Q. What was it that you were relying on for that statement? Equitable 

A. This (indicating) does not go up so far as the roof. unsjctum.
Q. What does not go up 1? A. Is not this George Street? Evidence!
Q. (Indicating). There is Carrington Street. A. I am sorry. NO.20.

I am on the wrong level. I was looking at the roof plan. I am sorry. A - T- Bntten-
That is the roof plan (indicating). It does not go up. ooss-

examination.
10 Q. That is the point I was putting to you ? A. What that means, 

it is a temporary cover.
Q. Have you noticed anything about the elevation ? Can you show 

me? A. The elevation sheet appears to be missing.
SIE GARFIELD: We have never had it. We have never been able to 
find it.
To Mr WALLACE: So far as I can deduce from the plans there is no 
obstruction of the lift well on any floor.

Q. It is apparent that he never envisaged that lift well at all, and 
it is not budgeted for in his plan, but on the contrary—— A. Yes, it 

20 it on his plan.
Q. If you look at this lift from over in this direction, from any 

elevation from this direction, you will find that he has built up over 
it and has not allowed for his extension? A. This plan shows it clear. 
It shows the clear size.

Q. Do you know what floors these are? A. These are the George 
Street data. This is the second floor level. That is the Carrington 
Street level. This is the third floor level, the first floor—Carrington 
Street—is here (indicates). This is the second floor level, the fourth 
floor—Carrington Street.

30 Q. What floor level is this? A. That is the alternative version 
of the second floor. They are different plans of the same thing. They 
are both the same level. One is more complete than the other but they 
are both the same plan and one has more work on it than the other.
SIR GARFIELD: It might be Exhibit 22 you are looking for.
Mr WALLACE: Q. That is the first floor level? A. That is the 
third floor, Carrington Street. This is the George Street data on the 
plans.

Q. Where is George Street here! A. On your right hand side. 
Carrington Street——

40 Q- What floor is that? A. That is the Hunter Street level down 
below.
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in the Q. Where is George Street? A. George Street is that end,
£« and here is the lif* shaft- 

8oufn Ttaales Q- Here is the lift shaft starting at that level, showing new work 
Equitabu for his plan? A. Yes.

Jurisdiction.
—^ t Q. If I go up to the mezzanine, that is still showing part of his

Evidence8 developmental work, and the lift is over near the George Street side?
— ' A. Yes.

No. 20.
A.T\Britten. Q. This is the George Street level (indicating). The lift is still 

Crosa. shown as going up there? A. And here is the first floor, which is
examination, the next level. 10

Q. Yes. I see we have the lift developed again? A. (Indicates). 
This would be the second floor level.

Q. This is the second floor level? A. It does not matter. One 
is more complete than the one you have here. That one is more com­ 
plete than the one you have there.

Q. Then there is the third floor level? A. The third floor level 
is here. Wait a minute——

Q. That is the whole lift well area, that area reserved for lifts? 
A. I would think that would be.

Q. I am putting to you that that is an area which he has reserved 20 
for one planned lift immediately and reserved for future lifts, in that 
rectangle shown on the roof? A. Commencing at the fourth floor 
level?

Q. No. I am not suggesting that it commences there ? A. That 
is what the plan shows. One lift comes down, and the other lift will 
not serve the floors lower than this. The next floor below is the third 
floor level, and that only has provision for one lift.

Q. That is so. That is precisely so, because down below—— 
A. That means your lift cannot serve below the fourth floor level.

Q. The third floor ? A. The fourth floor. You cannot have 30 
them without machinery. It must be the third floor before it would 
start. I do not think it is reasonable.

Q. That is the area he has reserved for lifts ? He has got one there. 
A. And machinery there, I would say (indicating).

Q. That is the only lift that appears in his 54 plan? A. No. 
Q. Because it is shown there. He does not show any development 

anywhere else? A. Yes. (Indicating). There it is there.
Q. That is so, but this area here—what do you say this is, marked 

in grey? A. That is the roof over the second floor level.
Q. You are not suggesting he intended access to the lift through 40 

a bedroom, are you? A. No. He intended future access through 
this place here. (Indicating.)
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Q. Will you go down another floor to the second floor again ? in the 
A. Yes. That is a more complete one. It is about here. (Indicates). 
Directly on to the Carringtou Street entrance.

in its
Q. Does he not show one with an elevation from here or there 

(indicating) ? A. What you are looking for is the section, where 
that letter H. is. It is a real architect's letter—you cannot read it. 
Section HH is the section you want which shows the lift well and its —— 
construction. . ^°- Z9-A. 1. .Britten

Q. Have you got section HH? A. Not in this. I have been ^^ 
10 right through these plans looking over sections. examination

Q. What is this one ? A. That is a plan at a low level. A further 
sheet here is a plan. I would like to see JJ, but it is not here.

Q. Perhaps I cannot carry that much further at the moment but 
at all events he does envisage a lift over in that portion I was showing 
you? A. He envisages a lift there and four lifts on the other portion, 
I would say from this plan.
SIR GARFIELD: There is an exhibit and a letter about it as to 
whether there were to be lifts over there or not.
Mr WALLACE: I would like to see it.

20 SIE GAEFIELD: The letter of 19/8/54 and Mr Ham's plan showing 
the elevation of the future development. Then you put in Exhibit 22, 
which is to the same effect. It is Exhibit E.
Mr WALLACE : Q. What is this over here that I point to? A. That 
is the lift well that accommodates one lift, and that is the one that 
accommodates four lifts.

Q. Have you not seen a plan where he shows three lifts in its 
bottom right hand corner? A. I have not.

Q. What makes you say it accommodates four lifts? You have
never seen that. That is just a deduction you are making? A. I am

30 deducing it from this fact: The bottom floor partition is shown there,
and you must have an even number of lifts. It is far too wide for two
lifts only.
SIR GARFIELD: It is about the 12th para, in the letter of the 19th 
August. And then you will find your Exhibit 22, which you put in, 
is——

Mr WALLACE: I cannot carry that any further at the moment. There 
is something which I have seen which does not appear to be with 
Exhibit H. Something I saw with Mr Nicholls recently.

Q. I want you to tell us something about these areas that you 
40 worked out. 'On the top sheet of Exhibit RR—do you have that? 

A. That is 1259/3?
* 38632—14
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in the Q. Yes. A. Yes.
Supreme

Court of New Q. You have there on your left hand side your computations with 
regard to Nicholls' development of the 56 plan? A. Yes.

Q- Amongst those computations you have got 11 floors at 8,360, 
—— total 91,960? A. Yes.

Plaintiff's
Evidence. Q. Can you tell me how you made it 8,360? A. Yes. It will 
No. 20. appear that 59.4 multiplied by 140.8 ——

'. — \ en' Q. What does the 59.4 represent? A. The width east to west 
Cr?ss- across the George Street block as noted on Exhibit H; or Exhibit 4,

examination. . _ a 1 r\
is it? 10 

Q. 59 feet? A. 59.4 feet.
Q. What is on the exhibit? I think Mr Bunning did give evidence 

it was 63 or 64 feet? A. That is not right. I could not agree with 
that. It is only a diagram and it is very inaccurate in scaling in 
several respects. You cannot scale it.

Q. How could you be sure you are right and Mr. Bunning is 
wrong? A. By this definition. A diagram — although you cannot 
scale you can take lines in projection and if you look at Mr Nicholls* 
scheme, section ABB, you see George Street in projection in its full 
height, and he shows here the ground floor, Carrington Street, common 20 
to both schemes. So you have got to go back to the 54 dimension plan 
for that dimension.

Q. Say that again? A. It is here "ground floor, Carrington 
Street, is common to both schemes."

Q. Ground floor Carrington Street, yes? A. Yes, is common 
to both schemes, and both schemes are in projection from the dimension 
of this block. The dimension of this block is the dimension of that block 
on the 54 plan which we have.

Q. What do you do from there? A. Go back to the 54 plan, 
which is dimentioned to 59.4^. 30

Q. What is the joke? A. Nothing.
Q. Suppose you do it this way, as Mr Bunning did ; assume this is 

150 feet in height, the maximum height? A. Yes.
Q. Then using that as a scale, scale the width that either these 

diagrams have given? A. You cannot scale to bring in contradiction 
to a dimension on those.

Q. Test it this way and see what answer you get, will you ? A. I 
will do it under protest.

Q. Do it under fifty protests.
HIS HONOE: Do it as an exercise in scaling. 4Q 

WITNESS : 150 feet scales 4.2 inches — 4.7 inches.
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Mr WALLACE: Q. Show me how you get 4.7 inches ? A. 150 scaled In the
at 4.7. Then the dimension scale there up to 2, that is 3.25 inch— cJ
150—64 feet in area. South wales

in its
Q. If you did use 64 feet you would of course get—I withdraw that. Equitable

Before I ask you that, you took a frontage of how many feet f A. 140 Jm~isdM°n-
feet, something. Plaintiff's

Evidence.
Q. Can you remember how much ? A. 140.8. ——
^ J No. 20.
Q. 140.8. Is that supposed to be the frontage to George Street ? A - T- Britten. 

A. Yes. cTo^- 
10 Q. If you were told that the frontage was more than that—was, say, examina lon- 

147 feet; that also would make a further difference to your result? 
A. Yes. That would increase it.

Q. The difference is between 140.8, multiplied by 59—which is how 
you get your 8360 on the third sheet on the one hand and what I suggest 
—147 multiplied by 64. That is the difference, is it not—which is the 
distinction? A. Between what?

Q. In order to get 8360 you have multiplied 140.8 by 59? A. Yes.
Q. And of course you would realise if your figures were wrong it 

should be 147 multiplied by 64, or eight? A. If my return of figures 
20 are wrong?

Q. Would you just listen to my question instead of galloping on. 
Your 8360 would be substantially altered ? A. If the correct figures 
were?

Q. 147 by 64? A. Yes. There would be a total difference. All 
the figures on this sheet here would be increased by a little over 10,000, 
which would be the maximum.

Q. In other words instead of 199',000 it would be somewhere about 
210 thousand? A. 210,000 would be right, if both those dimensions 
were as you state.

30 Q. On that third sheet you show the layout^-what you call the 
layout of E.—as giving 236,000, measured at above the ground floor 
with no mezzanine? A. Measured above the ground floor with no 
mezzanine, yes.

Q. Or with the mezanine, 245,000? A. Yes.
Q. In order to get that figure—I will take 245,000 just as an illus­ 

tration—you have concluded what we had to allow for the lift well 
areas shown in the north-western corner of design 8? A. Which one 
is E.? E? No. I am sorry ....

Q. You have included, in order to arrive at this figure, 245,000 or 
40 the 236,000 or the 211,000, you have included the lift well area to which 

I was referring earlier; namely that rectangular bulge shown in the 
north-western corner of design 8? A. No.
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in the Q. Have you not included that? A. No.
Q- Then I would like you to show me how you got 236,000. We are

South Wales oniy dealing with this design? A. Yes. Six floors type 9 ? 
Equitable Q. Yes. A. That is 21,450 square feet. That does not include

Jurisdiction.

Plaintiff's Q j>u£ that jg fae incorrect one you are working to? A. It is
— 1- e' the incorrect one, I admit for E. E. is the one suggested by Mr.

A ^B2^ Nicholls — they say it is incorrect. I am sorry. I thought I made that
A, it -DrittGH. -

—— clear.
Q- This third sheet shows under design E. the figure of 211,000 JQ 

236, and 245? A. Yes.
Q. And E., you say, is an elevation of the floor plan shown in 9? 

Is that what you are saying? A. Not only. It is an elevation 
following Exhibit 4.

Q. Would you mind telling me what figures you have worked out 
in respect of design 8 ? 'What does design 8 go with in sheet 2 ! A. 8 
goes with B, C or D.

Q. But you get entirely different results as between B. and D.? 
A. Yes.

Q. What I want to know is whether you have shown this particular 20 
design on sheet 2? A. No. 8? On B, C and D. Not C— B and D.

Q. B and D envisages a complete building between the two wings 
up to a certain height and then a continuation of the wings with a 
light well between them above that. Is that the position? A. No, 
not quite. I quite follow you, This is what that actually involved: 
B. involves three floors developed over the full area.

Q. The whole width! A. The full area. Two floors developed 
with two side courts but no centre courts. The first, 2nd, 3rd, 4th, 5th 
and 6th floors developed with three courts, and two floors on the George 
Street end only. 30
HIS HONOR: Q. The Carrington Street end only? A. Yes, I am 
sorry. Thank you.
Mr WALLACE : Q. Therefore the reason why B. and D. give such 
higher results than E. is mainly because E. simply continues up to the 
54 plans in the form of two wings with the lightwell between them. 
That is the main reason? A. No. The D. design have, in full width 
development.

Q. D.? A. Yes, D.
Q. That is to say, as regard the contrast between B. and E.t A. 

Between B. and E., yes. 40
Q. D. envisages something different from that which Mr Nicholls 

suggested, which is continuing up two wings with the light well between 
them? A. Yes.
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Q. That envisages what? A. It envisages three floors 90 feet in the 
wide in the middle and a lift tower.

Q. And the lift tower? A. Yes, the lift tower on the north-
West end. Equitable

Jurisdiction.
Q. Three floors full width? A. No. 90 feet wide. ——

Plaintiff's
Q. In accordance with .... A. Five or six. Evidence.

Mr WALLACE : Q. At least you can say this, can you not, that as No. 20. 
regards the 1954 plans themselves, all Mr Ham did with regard to ' ; _ " en' 
lifts was to show a shaft with a wall around it, and he actually used Cross- _ 

10 and intended for use in connection with his 1954 plans a new lift east examma lon- 
of Wynyard Lane, as I have shown you ? A. That is what I said in 
my evidence in chief.

Q. But that is some time ago. That is the position? A. That 
is the position, yes.
Mr WALLACE : I should like my friend if he has it to produce any 
section of that Exhibit H which may be missing, or any elevation.
SIR GA.RFIELD: I shall search for it. Somebody said he thought 
he had seen a section, but he obviously did not see one of ours. We 
shall look for it.

20 Mr WALLACE : Q. You would agree, wouldn 't you, that where you 
find a section of a building as some particular characteristic which 
involves extra cost but which was suitable for a light area, it would 
be good building construction to use it, as a light area if other require­ 
ments of the owner were satisfied? (No answer)

Q. Is that the sort of generality you do not like? A. I am 
trying to follow all the provisos. I am sorry to appear so dumb, but 
could you repeat it please! I was trying to take it down so that I 
could work out what it means.

Q. If you found some special characteristic which would involve 
30 a good deal of extra expense to develop but which was suitable for a 

light area, it would be good building to develop it as a light area! (No 
answer).

Q. You really find it necessary to write it down, do you! A. 
There are so many provisos that I want to find out what it means.

Q. Wouldn't it be good building construction to use it as a light 
area if the requirements of the building owner are otherwise ful­ 
filled? A. Do you mean "characteristic" in the first line?

Q. Yes? A. You said "some special characteristic which has 
a good deal of extra expense to develop ....

40 Q- I only want your answer. There is no need to read the ques­ 
tion out. If you cannot answer it just say so. Do you understand the 
question? A. No, I cannot understand the question,
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in the HIS HONOR : I understand the question. Surely the answer must be 
(Discussion ensued).

. If ^j. ig the question j would answer it "Yes", but the 
"special characteristic" in his question. If he said 

—— ' "special area" I would say yes to it. That is what bamboozled me at
Plaintiff's *•>,„ otart Evidence. tne Start>

No. 20. Mr WALLACE : Q. The next question is in regard to what you call the 
A.T.Britten, light area at the side. Do you remember? A. I called them courts 

I think, but we will take light areas.
^ Very well. Those areas affect the 1954 and the 1956 plans if 10 

they affect either, don't they? A. I beg your pardon!
Q. Those light courts have no particular significance with one of 

the 1956 or the 1954 plans? A. To their present level you mean?
Q. Yes? A. You mean the weak columns around the side have 

no effect on the present ... .1
Q. There is nothing special about them in relation to the 1954 

plans which does not apply to the 1956 plans, or vice versa? (No 
answer).

Q. Look, do you understand the question? A. I am afraid I do 
not understand the subject of it. 20

Q. I will take that answer. Do you remember telling us just 
before lunch that you would need in reinforced concrete a column nearly 
5 ft. x 5 ft. to carry a certain load? A. To carry maximum load.

Q. Is it within your knowledge that the concrete extension at point 
Y which you know will carry 3,300,000 Ibs. is 44 inches by 44 inches? 
A. What is it?

Q. Do you understand the question? A. The concrete extension 
at point Y will carry 3,000,000 . . . . ?

Q. Is it within your knowledge that the short concrete extension 
at point Y is 44 inches by 44 inches. Is that within your knowledge? 30 
A. Yes.

Q. You concede that that will carry 3,300,000 Ibs.? A. In 5,000 
Ibs. concrete?

Q. Yes. You have conceded that, haven't you? A. Yes. 

Re. RE-EXAMINED
examination gIB GARFJELD . Q ^hat doeg the geries of computations put to yOU

by my friend as emanating from Mr Llewellyn in relation to a load at 
point Y really represent? (Objected to; pressed).

Q. What does it represent to you? A. Do you mean in the last 
lot of calculations of the load at "Y"? There are two lots. There was 40 
one for a departmental store and one for another type.
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Q. Let us take them first for a departmental store. What does in the. 
it represent? A. It represented the maximum load that could occur cou^ 
at point Y, assuming you had the open area developed as a store with South Wales 
100 Ibs. live load on each floor, and 15 Ibs. weight of partitions, reduced Equitable 
by the standard live load reduction. Jurisdiction.

Q. Is it in your opinion reasonable to expect that the development Plaintiffs 
even for a departmental store would in practice be confined to those ^ ence' 
limits of load both of floor and of partitions ? A. I would be un- NO. 20. 
certain. I would have to seek advice from the owner. A. T. Britten.

]Q Q- But have you had experience of loadings put on various types exan^"ation 
of departmental store and other sort of things in practice! A. Yes.

Q. Judging by your experience are you able to say whether it is 
likely or not? A. It is quite probable.

Q. That they would be confined to those limitations? A. They 
would be exceeded.

Q. That is what I want to ask you ....
Mr WALLACE: I object to this. He said he has had no experience 
of city buildings.
HIS HONOR: That is so.

20 SIR GARFIELD: Q. Is there any difference between a tall building 
and a short one in relation to the live load that is put on per floor .... 
(Objected to; allowed).

Q. Assuming I was a departmental store owner and I have one 
store in Parramatta and another one in Sydney and I carry on the 
same type of business, would there be any difference in the live load 
which I will require to be carried in the place, depending solely on 
the height of the building I am going to have? A. No.

Q. Dealing with these live loadings at per floor? A. Yes.
Q. You have had experience of loadings of departmental stores, 

30 y°u say not in the city but out of the city? A. Murray Bros, at 
Parramatta is one. The other one I quoted is strictly not a depart­ 
mental store; only half of it is a hardware paint and plumbing place, 
and tools.

Q. How many storeys have Murray Bros, at Parramatta! A. 
It is now being constructed with basement, ground, first and part of 
second. It is designed to go to third.

Q. All being used for departmental stores? A. Except the base­ 
ment, which is only on the extensions, not on the existing building along­ 
side; is being designed as a shipping department too, which may not 

4Q be used for shopping purposes.
HIS HONOR: Q. What is the ground floor designed for? A. It is 
an extension to their main shopping floor
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in the Q. What is the next one up? A. The next one up is a second
sh°ppin§' floor -

Q- Just ordinary shopping? A. Yes.
Q- And tlle neXt OIle UP ; tllat iS the °ne Sti11 t0 g0 ' A' Tnere is

half the second floor built, but that has only temporary staff rooms at 
Plaintiff's 
Evidence.
N^20. SIR GARFLELD: Q. Has it been designed for a departmental store? 

A" TJ^tten> A. It has been designed for a departmental store, four storeys 
Re- eventually; ground, first, second and third on that area.

examination.
HIS HONOR: Q. What do you say was the loading on, we will say, the 10 
first floor? A. On all except the basement it was 150 Ibs. per square 
foot. The basement was designed for truck loadings.

SIR GARFIELD : Q. When you speak of this live load, that is in some 
way endeavouring to rate the loading according to the type of traffic 
and the use the floor is going to have? A. Yes. (Question objected 
to as being a leading one.)

Q. Tell me what the idea of a live load is in your own words? 
A. It is supposed to be the loading' that will come on the building that 
is not part of its own fixed weight.

Q. That should come upon it by its use? A. Yes. 20
Q. In the case of a departmental store, is it your experience — tell 

us if it is not — that a departmental store of necessity must have storage 
space? A. Yes.

Q. Which carries bulk goods and so on? A. Yes.
Q. Would you expect the live load of the storage portion ....

Mr WALLACE : Does that mean in the departmental store itself or 
in some remote warehouse?
SIR GARFIELD: In the store itself? A. The only ones I have 
actually been in and measured to storage spaces are those two I was 
telling you about. In each of those they were in the store building. 30

Q. Would you expect the live load in areas devoted to storage 
to come as low as 100 Ibs.? A. Oh no.

Q. What would be the order of the load if you were storing — take 
David Jones — silks or cottons? A. Well, it would depend on the 
storage height available. With a normal ceiling height and light goods 
it would be 150, but I have measured weights and computed loadings 
up to 350. That is in the case of the hardware store. The biggest I 
observed at Murray Bros, was about 200, 250, but I think that would 
be up to the upper limit.

Q. For a softgoods store? A. Yes, for a general merchandise 40 
place.
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Q. The other prerequisites of these computations of Mr Llewellyn •*» the 
was that there was a 15 Ibs. partition load? A. Yes. cw/o/ New 

Q. In the ca,se of a departmental score, are you able to tell us
whether or not the use of such light partitioning material would be Equitable 
likely? A. In the case of a departmental store, I think that estimate 
would be high.

Q. 15 would be high? A. 15 would be high, yes. NoTo
Q. That is because of the infrequency of the partitions? A. Yes, A- T- Britten.

very few partitions. Re-
examination.

10 Q. That point Y was at the top of the steel column? A. Yes.
Q. If the concrete extension of that steel column were carried up 

as specified — that is to say, in 3,000 Ibs. cement, and with the bedplate 
as shown on the structural drawings supplied in connection with L2 — 
what load would you be able to place upon the concrete extension? 
A. About 2,000,000 Ibs.

Q. Speaking of codes, these changes that were spoken of in the 
permissible loading of steel, do they apply to steel fabricated or in 
place before the date of the change in the code? A. Not necessarily.

Q. What do you mean by that? A. Well, it depends on whether 
20 the steel had been rolled to a new specification on which the code was 

based, or to the one on which the preceding code was based.
Q. Is this right, that what has been called the liberalising of the 

code is associated with improved techniques which result in a different 
physical property in the steel? (Objected to as being a leading 
question).

Q. What is it that causes this so-called liberalising ? A. Im­ 
proved physical properties of the steel.
Mr WALLACE : The witness is not qualified to say that.

SIR GrABFIELD : Q. Have you any other qualifications besides 
30 enginering qualifications that I mentioned to you in chief? A. Yes, 

I was in charge of the department's testing laboratory for a number 
of years.
Mr WALLACE: Q. What, the Main Eoads Board? A. Yes.
SIE GrABFIELD : Q. Have you any qualifications as a physicist. You 
say you have a science degree ? A. Yes.

Q. You gave us that before. If the steel column had been extended 
from the point Y as in those computations in the concrete as specified 
and on the bedplate as specified, could any of the various developments 
which you have envisaged on your Exhibit RE take place? A. "E" 

40 could, I think. I have not checked that in detail, but I would say it 
could.
* 38632— 14A
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in the Q. But not the others? A. Not the others, no.
Q- Assume it was carried up in concrete of 5,000 Ibs. to the sq. inch 

SoUln iLaks s*rength, would all the other developments which you li£,ve envisaged on 
Equitable BE be possible ? A. Most of them. Some of the fuller developments 

junction, w^n neavy loading could not, but most of them would be capable. 
Plaintiffs Q. Is that answered on the footing that the 1956 proposal had not 
^ ence' been carried beyond the then architectural plans? A. This does not 
NO. 20. concern the 1956 plans?

A. T. Britten.
—— Q. My question was whether these could be built if the 1956

pkns .... A. I am sorry. 10
Q. I want to be sure about this. Could these projected develop­ 

ments on Exhibit RE be built if the 1956 architectural plans were 
carried out but with concrete of 5,000 Ibs. to the square inch in the 
extension of the column 1 A. Yes, all but the heaviest.

Q. That is "A"? A. That is "A", and possibly "B"; "A" 
with light loading, not "A" with heavy loading; and "B", except with 
extremely heavy loading in some parts.

Q. Assume the 1956 plan to be carried to its full projection as 
shown on Exhibit 4, would any of these possible developments suggested 
by you on Exhibit EB be possible? A. If it had been carried to its 20 
full development as shown on the plans ?

Q. That is 1956. Would any of these on Exhibit EE have been 
possible—and the assumption is that they went up in concrete 5,000 Ibs. 
to the square inch? A. I think you could build "E".

Q. But none of the others? A. None of the others. That is 
assuming the 1956 plan went up to its full height in accordance with the 
plan now submitted.

Q. Yes, except that you change the strength of the cement? A. I 
should qualify that by this: you could build "E", I would say. The 
others you eould build if at the time of the extension suitable provision 39 
was made to carry the truss and the truss was not required at a level 
lower than the fourth floor Carrington St., the roof of the present con­ 
struction ; was not required at or below the fourth floor I should say.

Q. My friend asked you whether a loading or rather an occupancy 
of a building as an hotel commercial building would necessarily place 
less load on the point Y than the departmental store which he supposed 
for the purpose of the calculation? A. A hotel would not neces­ 
sarily ....

Q. Or commercial building? A. .... then a commercial build­ 
ing of 100 Ibs. live load, the one he was comparing it with. ^Q

Q. Besides the use of this building for one of these suggestions of 
yours, for hotel or commercial or departmental store purposes, have you 
actually given consideration yourself to any other possible use ? A.
Yes.
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Q. What other uses had you actually contemplated yourself? A. in the 
Well, use as public entertainment in open space.

Q. For public entertainment? A. Yes.
Q. Is that possibility .... (Objected to; allowed).
Q. Was that something you gave consideration to merely for the 

purpose of this case or did you consider it before ! A. Well, I had Evidence, 
not personally considered it before. I had heard about it. NoTo

Q. If any part of this open space were devoted to public entertain- A - T- Britten, 
ment, would that have any effect upon the live loading on these columns ? Re- 

10 A. It would reduce the total loading, because you cut out floors. examination.
Q. Because of the high ceiling ? A. Yes. You have fewer floors 

and less load.
Q. What are the height limits in relation to the light areas which 

are permitted by the By-laws of the Sydney Corporation ? A. Well, 
there are 24, I think it is, numerical limits.

Q. They vary with what? A. They vary with occupancy and 
whether they are side or centre.

Q. If you take a central light court that we have in one of these 
illustrations of 22 ft., what are the height limits in relation to the 

20 building T (Objected to).
Q. Have you got the By-law there ? A. Yes.

HIS HONOR: Q. Tell us the name of the By-law? A. It is By-law 
52 under the Sydney Corporation Act.
SIR GARFIELD: Q. Just give us the permissible heights, and if my 
friend wants to see what you read from, you can show it to him. What 
are the height limits for the various uses, if you have a central light 
court 22 ft. wide? (Objected to).
SIR GARFIELD: I shall tender the Ordinance later.

Q. You were asked something about partitions. It is suggested 
30 to you that light weight partitions are in common use in the construc­ 

tion of buildings. Have you had to deal with the construction of hotels, 
the structural side of hotels? A. Quite a number.

Q. Not city hotels; but hotels? A. Some city hotels.
Q. Of multiple storeys? A. Most of our city work has been 

re-modelling but some extension work; and we have had some con­ 
struction, some re-modelling, of a number of other hotels.

Q. Have you found in your experience that light-weight partitions 
or brick partitions are in general use? A. For hotel purposes in 
modern construction—I have done about 12 or 15 of such works person- 

40 ally, and all but one would be brick.
Q. Are they with the one firm of architects, or different firms of 

architects? A. Four firms of architects.
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in the Mr WALLACE: Q. Are they suburban hotels? A. Suburban and 
&ome city and some country.

°Uj,nits es SIR GARFIELD: Q. Where light partitions are used, has that any 
Equitable relationship to the available strength of the substructures? A. Yes, 

' light partitions are used generally in buildings of considerable height
^ecause °f the high cost of the lower sections of the columns and the 

' foundation with each increase in load on the floors.
A. T. Britten. Q. You mean they are used to obviate the need to put in a heavy 

^~ substructure? A. They do not reduce the size and cost of the sub- 
examination. structure and the foundations of the lower columns. 10

HIS HONOR: Q. In other words you are more likely to plan for light 
partitions in a tall building than in a one-storey building? A. Yes.
SIR GARFIELD: Q. Assume you have already a substructure that 
would bear the heavy partitions, would there be any factor of service­ 
ability or low cost of maintenance or anything of that sort which would 
cause one to lean towards light partitions rather than brick partitions 1 
A. No, you would lean towards the brick rather than the light.

Q. My friend asked you something about a straight joint. As 
far as you are concerned, what is your view as to the serviceability of 
the devices that he suggested to you? A. Well, the concrete work I 20 
was satisfied what ....

Q. With the malthoid? A. ... a malthoid or caneite parting 
strip in the concrete. With the brickwork I would not be happy to 
build brick against caneite both sides and use that as a parting strip 
on brick walls under those conditions.

Q. I wanted to ask you about Exhibit 4. Can you really scale off 
Exhibit 4? A. Do you mean you can practically measure it or you 
can use the figures when measured?

Q. Can you get a scale to apply to its different features. It has 
no scale on it? A. It has no scale on it, but you can estimate a 30 
scale by measuring other given dimensions, and you could actually 
measure physical distances on them, but I would not like to use them 
for any further deduction, for any work.

Q. Have you checked to see whether it is scaled to any common 
scale? A. No, the thing is a different scale on the two views.

Q. You took a figure of 140.8 as the length of the George St. 
frontage? A. Yes.

Q. Did you do that with any of the computations you made,
whether it was Exhibit H or L2? A. I did it in respect of the 
computations. 40

Q. So if it be an error it is a common error? A. I should like 
to check that before I leave the box, to see if I have made an error.
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HIS HONOR: Q. Where did you get it from, the 140.8? A. I got in the 
it by adding up the dimensions of the 1954 plans, and that is a weakness
in mv arithmetic, additions. 8°uth Wales

in its
SIB GARFIELD : Q. Have a look at the plan and see from where you 
got the 140.8? A. I got it by adding up this line of dimensions. 
When I look at it it certainly looks as if I have made a mistake there, 
either in the additions, or in the transcribing of the 146 to the other . . . ——

Q. According to the lease it is 147 ft. 9-l/8th inches ; but at any A- T.Britten. 
rate you used the figure 140.8 in all youv calculations so far as it Re- 

10 relates to the George St. frontage? A. Yes. examination.
Q. The other area you used for the purpose of getting to Mr 

Nicholls' floor development of "H" — you used the actual figure that 
you worked off Exhibit H? A. Yes. I made that 59 ft. 4.

Q. Mr Wallace put to you that if you constructed a scale for your­ 
self from the height of the diagram on Exhibit 4, you would get a 
width of the base line of the George St. building of some 60 ft. ? A. 
Well, it will vary on different plans. On the one he asked me to scale 
it on it is 64 ft.

Mr WALLACE : Q. Did you take into account the fact that there are 
20 15 shops in one and only nine in the other? ——

SIB GABFIELD : Q. I want you to make plain if you will why you used 
the 59 ft. 4 as being the width of the building to the George St. front­ 
age projected or contemplated by Mr Nicholls in Exhibit 4? A. 
Because as stated on the drawings the two blocks are comparable, and 
they are based on the same columns and governed by the same columns. 
Therefore they should be the same width in all plans. It does not 
matter much what particular dimension you take. You have a choice, 
but what he had determined I deduced from the 1954 plan.

Q. You then looked to the 1954 and found what the planned base 
30 of the building was to the George St. frontage? A. Yes, you would 

have got the same basis if you had taken any comparison.
Q. I open the 1954 up .... A. It was this plan I worked from.
Q. You worked from Sheet 6A, and that shows the westward line 

of the building as being along the line of columns from 171 to 164. Is 
that right? A. Yes.
Mr WALLACE : Is that from George St. 1
SIB GABFIELD : Yes.

Q. It is the George St. end, and it shows that the western line of 
the building runs along the line of columns 171 to 164? A. Yes.

40 Q. If you took Mr Wallace's suggestion that Mr Nicholls was 
really saying that the base line of the George St, building projected
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in the by him on Exhibit 4 was 64 ft. odd, what line of columns would support 
l^New tne western wall of the building 64 ft. back from George St.? A. 1 

South Wales would have to carry a cantilever.
Equitable Q. it would be over the line of columns? A. 5 ft. past them.

Jurisdiction.
Plaintiff's ^' ^n Edition, would he at some stage on the projected develop- 

meiit that he shows on Exhibit 4 have to employ a truss? A. He
jj~~T0 would have to between these two columns that correspond. 

A. i\Britten. Q These two end columns of the line of strong columns? A. Yes.

Q- H2 and 119. So, to get the floor areas that Mr Nicholls has 
in his comparison, you would need to cantilever to some 4 ft. or 5 ft. ? JQ 
A. Oh no, about 20 ft. it would be.
Mr WALLACE: Q. How do you get that! A. Well, the difference 
between — even correcting for the 146 feet will only make a difference 
of about 4. Your figure will be 203. Well, 203 from 234 is 31,000 in 
excess of the correct area in Mr Nicholls' scheme, correcting for the 
minor error in mine. That leaves about 31,000 to be accounted for. 
31,000 over 11 floors by 141 ft. gives you nearly 20 ft.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. That is all that would have to be carried and 
cantilevered? A. Yes, if that is the way it was to be made up.

Q. You have to start with the assumption Mr Wallace puts to 20 
you? A. Yes.
HIS HONOR: The width of the building was 64 ft. He says the 
result of that is you would have to cantilever, and the result of that is 
described.
SIR GARFIELB: I show you Exhibit P. That has numbered columns 
on it (showing). Assuming the full development which you have 
spoken of — and you have given us the loadings that 51 would carry? — 
A. Yes.

Q. Assuming a truss? A. Yes.
Q. If there were no truss put in but you were using some other 30 

heavy construction, would other columns besides 51 have to carry a 
lighter loading than 51? A. Well, 51, 53 and 55 would carry about 
the same loading. It would be a little bit more than half of what 51 
now carries.

Q. By "now carries" do you mean now designed to carry? A. 
Now designed to carry with the truss over.

Q. What about 28 and 30 ? A. They would carry about the same 
loading as those columns in position without the truss.

Q. What about columns 76 and 78, if you have not any trusses? 
A. Well, on 76 and its neighbours in that weak line of columns would 40 
be a little more than half of what 76 would carry with the truss on it.
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Q. Which of those are steel columns'? A. 26 and 38 are steel in the 
columns. They would carry loads similar to 51, 53 and 55. 136 and courf 
138 are steel columns, and they carry loads similar to 76 etc., in revised South Wales 
conditions in each case. Equitable

Q. Do you remember you calculated to me in chief the cost of these " l̂ _wn- 
trusses, assuming' as you have told us maximum development and with Plaintiff's

• -i V- -in A TT- Evidence.a maximum use loading on it™ A. Yes. _
No. 20.Q. You got 6/- per square foot? A. Yes. A.T.Britten.

Q. The load of such a development as you there assumed on column Re- 
10 51 I think you told us was of the order of 5,500,000 Ibs.? A. I did examination- 

not tell you, but ....
Q. I am sorry; would that be in the assumptions you were making 

for the purpose of computing the cost of the truss 1? A. I assumed 
2,700 Ibs. on the truss, which would make a bit over 5i thousand on 
column 51.

Q. 5| thousand or 54 million on column 51? A. Million, I mean. 
That would correspond to the load I took in the design of the truss.

Q. Do you remember my friend putting to you a suggestion that 
the load on column 51 could be brought down to 3,200,000 Ibs., or some- 

20 thing like that? A. Yes.
Q. If you used that loading on column 51 in assessing the cost of 

the truss to be used as you envisaged it to be used before, would that 
have any effect upon the cost of the truss? A. Yes, it would reduce 
it to about two-thirds, to about 4/- instead of 6/- per sq. ft. coverage.

Q. And the other matters you mentioned would remain constant? 
A. Yes.
SIR GARFIELD: Q. Amongst the plans that are now Exhibited before 
the Court, have you seen a set of preliminary structural drawings for 
a building to go to the permissible building height based on the Innes- 

30 Kerr plans? A. Preliminary only and not complete, but there are 
floor plans extending up to the roof level. They are only preliminary.

Q. Would you be able to point them out to us? A. Yes.
Q. You have looked at them to see that they do relate to the Innes- 

Kerr plans? A. Yes.
Mr WALLACE: (By permission). Q. Do you have a scale on you? 
A. It is in my bag.

Q. I show you Exhibit "4". I was suggesting to you yesterday
that your computations were based on two inaccuracies as regards the
developmental work shown on Exhibit "4"; firstly, that the frontage

40 was 147 feet and not 140? A. I agreed with you on that. That
was a mistake on my part,
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in the Q. Secondly, that the depth to which the 1956 George Street build- 
in# is taken is 64 feet and not 59? A- You suggested that.

Q- That is what * suggested. If you look a Exhibit "4", you 
justified taking 59 because 59 is scaled off from the 1954 plans! A. 
Dimensioned off.

Q- Dimensioned off from the 1954 drawings? A. Yes. 
— Q. You did that because of the note appearing on Exhibit "4", 

A. T. Britten, which says '' Note: Ground floor Carrington Street common to both 
~r~ schemes". A. Yes.
Xv6-

examination. Q_ Doesn't it appear to you that that note only relates to the JQ 
Carrington Street end of these plans up to Wynyard Lane? (Objected 
to on the ground that it does not arise out of the re-examination; 
allowed.)

Q. Does not that appear to you that the note can only apply to 
the Carrington Street end on both diagrams up to Wynyard Lane? 
A. I would say it could be read either way. It could be read the way 
you say.

Q. If you go through with a ruler from the Carrington Street 
level, you find, don't you, that you come out half-way up the floor 
from the George Street side, and that what the 1954 plans envisage ^Q 
is a raising of the roof and a sort of false roof, a false ceiling at the 
first floor of George Street. That is so, isn't it! A. Would you 
show me what you mean? You are talking about this floor here 
(indicating) ?

Q. I am just asking you now about that (showing) ? A. I would 
not quarrel with you on that.

Q. You see, there is nothing in common between the two develop­ 
ments on the George Street site, is there! A. I am quite prepared 
to agree with you there. You told me there was, when I first brought 
this matter up. 30

Q. I do not remember that, but I am asking you now, in the light 
of your construction of this note it is perfectly obvious that they have 
not got anything common—they are not common—on the George Street 
side? A. It is your construction ....

Q. Never mind "your construction". I am asking you now? A. 
I am asking you, for your construction. I am sorry.

Q. I am asking you a simple question. If you look at the two 
diagrams it is perfectly patent that they have nothing in common on 
the George Street first floor, isn't it? A. On the George Street first 
floor. 40

Q. On the Carrington Street level I mean, at the George Street 
end! A. Oh, I would agree with you on that. I do not know, but 
if you tell me that—it is your plan, not mine.
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Q. I am asking you about the plans 1 A. I cannot tell from the in the 
plan. I am depending on you for your construction. Court

Q. If you look at the two plans shown on Exhibit ".4", will you Soufn %sales 
not say, looking at them, that it is perfectly and demonstrably clear Equitable 
that they do not have a common floor at the Carrington Street level J"^°»- 
on the George Street component or the George Street building? A. Plaintiff's 
Neither have a floor at the Carrington Street level. There is nothing Evidence- 
in common or uncommon. No. 20.

Q. If you continue, taking the left-hand or the 1954 plan, the ' -— 
10 Carrington Street level of that plan to George Street, you see, you exan^ation 

come out in the middle of the 1954 construction? A. Yes.
Q. If you take the continuation of Carrington Street in the other 

plan you get a different position with regard to the floor of George 
Street? A. No. You cannot. They are both fixed already.

Q. Look, if you won't admit it I will leave it, to argue it later .... 
HIS HONOR: The witness says he will not admit it. 
Mr WALLACE : Very well. I will leave it.

Q. One other thing I want to ask you is this: If you met with a 
diagram such as this, with two buildings drawn on it on the same plan, 

20 you would assume, wouldn't you, that they were drawn to the same 
scale? A. If they were drawn on the same plan to a scale.

Q. You would assume that, wouldn't you? A. The scale is 32 to 
the inch by that.

Q. You find, don't you, that in both cases the maximum height of 
150 feet is identical? A. Yes.

Q. When scaled, isn't it? A. Yes.
Q. Now, if you compare the width of the 1956 building on the 

George Street side with the width of the 1954 building on the George 
Street side, you will find that the George Street width is considerably 

30 larger than the 1954 plan, isn't it? A. Yes.
Q. If you go to the 1954 plan shown on Exhibit "4", and if you 

find out what 59 feet represents in units .... A. Yes.
Q. You have said the 1954 plan is 59 feet? A. On this level 

(indicating).
Q. Yes. You find, using these units .... A. It does come to 

approximately 59; I will agree with that.
Q. Those units give you 18 units, don't they, which equals 59? 

A. Approximately, yes.
Q. If you come over here it is 20 units, and it scales out to 64, 

40 doesn't it? A. Yes, between 63 and 64.
Q. Is it within your knowledge that practically all the departmental 

stores in Sydney have been built to 100 Ibs. to the foot? A. I would 
not say "practically all"; I know some have.
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in the Q. "Would you say most of them are built to 100 Ibs.? A. I could
Supreme „,,*„„,,. Court of New nOt Say-

8™tn itsale3 Q- But y°u know that some of the largest departmental stores in 
Equitable the City are built to 100 Ibs.? A. I know sections of them are. I

Jurisdiction. cannot gay the whole gtore-

Evidence. SIB GABFIELD: Q. Did you compute what difference there would be
No~20 *n y°ur fl°or areas if you use 147 feet 6 inches instead of 140.8 feet

A. T. Britten, as the George Street frontage in all of them? A. I have not had time
~— to complete it, but I certainly intend to do so.

examination. Q Qan you work out mentally what it is? A. Well, it would be 10 
to the order of 4,000 to the George Street block; to the order of 4,000 
square feet. It does not matter whether it is this building, or this 
building (indicating). They are both the same.

Q. In relation to your larger sheet, having regard to all those pos­ 
sible developments, did you use 140.8 in respect of "L2"f A. I used 
it for everything.

Q. So, so far as comparisons are concerned it is a common error? 
A. Yes.

Q. My friend was asking you on the supposition that this diagram­ 
matic representation shows a building 64 feet wide? A. Yes. 20

Q. You told me yesterday that to do that you would have to canti­ 
lever out and use a truss ? A. Yes.

Q. Where would the truss be. Would it be within the building or 
out on the external walls ? A. It would have to be within the building.

Q. So, to get 64 feet, you not merely have to cantilever, but you 
have a truss somewhere in the middle of the building? A. Yes.

No. 21 
Evidence of D. W. Davies

No.21. SIB GAEFIELD: Q. What is your occupation? A. Assistant En- 
D. w. Davies. gineer of ^ New gouth ^ales Railways. 30
Examination. Q Ag guch) ^Q y(m haye drafting wor]j to do from tmie to time?

A. Yes.
Q. Did you draw the original of the print which I now show you? 

A. I did.
Q. Did you put on the annotations and colour it in? A. I did.
Q. To prepare that plan, what did you have regard to? A. I 

had regard to the areas reserved out of lease.
Q. That is to say, you had a look at the schedule in the lease ? A. 

The schedule in the lease; and attempted to rectify them and bring 
them on to this plan. 40
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Q. Did you look at any other plans for that purpose? A. No; in the 
it was mainly in conjunction with the lease that I drew them. court of New

Q. The lease; did you have a survey? A. Yes, the survey plan Soufn ^ah8 
in the lease. Equitable

Q. Did you have regard to Exhibit "L2"? A. Yes, definitely. "" 
Q. Does that plan accurately represent the impact of "L2" on 

certain areas reserved in the lease! A. As far as I can maintain, —
' No. 21. 

ves - D.W.Davies.

CBOSS-EXAMINED
10 Mr WALLACE: Q. There are three sheets in these plans, aren't

there? A. That is correct. examination.
Q. The first one I show you, No. 2, has coloured in dark red a 

small square as shown, hasn't it? A. That is right.
Q. That represents a column which would come up into the de­ 

signed plan where indicated? A. I do not know that I would call 
it a column.

Q. A duct? A. It is an area reserved out of lease.
Q. The second sheet I show you, No. 3, has coloured in pink a 

large area at the top representing in its entirety the reserve portion 
20 in that locality? A. Yes.

Q. Of that area, all of which total is coloured in pink, the only 
encroachment is the thin strip shown on the left of the large pink 
area? A. One feet seven and a quarter inches.

Q. If you had used the same notation as in the earlier sheet to 
show something reserved, that might have been in dark red. That 
would give you the same colouring? A. Well, I correct that in this 
regard. The portion reserved out of lease on that plan shown in dark 
red is the only portion to my knowledge in that area reserved out of 
lease. That is the entire area reserved out of lease to my knowledge, 

3Q in that area.
Q. The third sheet that I show you is the sheet numbered 6. Here 

you show a section in elevation, don't you? A. I do.
Q. Taken across the line AA, shown on your sheet No. 3? A. I 

think this was taken or meant to be read about the XX position on 
sheet number 2.

Q. Don't you know; you are the draftsman, aren't you? A. I 
would not definitely state it was in that position, as it would be in­ 
correctly shown.

Q. I am suggesting that it is intended to be a section across AA? 
40A. No.

Q. Where do you say it is a section across? A. It is about the 
position, not specifically in that position; about mark XX referred to 
on Sheet 2.
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in the Q. XX, shown on sheet 2, you say? A. That is right.
Ntw Q. What level is sheet 2? A. That is the ground floor plan.

South Wales
in its HIS HONOR: The ground floor of Carrington Street.

Equitable
Jurisdiction Mr WALLACE: Q. Your sheet number 6 shows three storeys of 

Plaintiff's bedrooms ? A. That is correct.
— ' Q. XX would only relate to a ground floor section, wouldn't it?

No. 21. A. No. 
D.W.Davies. ""'

-— Q. Whereas AA shown on sheet 3 is a plan of bedrooms, isn't it? 
examination. A. It is a section through the bedroom section.

Q. Anyhow, coming back to sheet 6, it shows in elevation the area 10 
reserved, which is shown in plan on sheet 31 A. That is correct.

Q. That elevation of the reserved area is all coloured in pink on 
sheet 6? A. That is correct.

Q. If you look at the plan further, you might get the impression, 
might you not, that that reserved area wherein the encroachment 
occurs as shown on the earlier sheet abuts on to bedrooms? A. 
Not if it is read with the note on this plan.

Q. In other words, to read this plan correctly, you have to imagine 
the bedrooms coming out towards you in stereoscopic fashion, and the 
pink area is away back or further away from the spectator than the 20 
bedrooms'? A. If you chose to do so, yes.

Q. That is the only way you can look at it, isn't it? A. Well, I 
placed this note on it: "The diagram shows the limit of reserved area 
taken at about XX position on sheet Number 2", and in brackets after, 
I put "on Shell House side of lift tower". I think if you read that 
note it is clearly understood where that section is represented to be.

Q. At all events, the reserved area shown in pink at no time gets 
near bedrooms, does it. It only abuts on to the staircase well? A. 
At that position, yes.

Q. At any position? A. To the best of my knowledge, no. 30
Q. It only goes up in height as shown in your sheet number 6 to 

about the middle of the second bedroom floor, doesn't it? A. That 
is right.

Q. And after that it is not reserved, and the lessee can, if he 
wishes, build over it? A. That is correct.

Q. Therefore, going back to your sheet number 3, as that stair 
well is shown as going up the whole three floors shown in the 1956 
plan, the only place in the 1956 building where this reserved area 
touches is the stairway? A. Yes.

Q. And I would suggest, therefore, that when you drew sheet 40 
number 6, it might appear from it, unless you were carefully to analyse 
the situation, that there was some continuity between the reserved
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area and the bedrooms, but that was not intended, was it? A. To in the 
my knowledge I do not see how it could be road that way with this note.

Q. It was not intended? A. No.
Equitable. 

-r-. Jurisdiction.KE-EXAMINED __
SIE GAEFIELD : Q. You have worked these up off Mr. Nicholl's draw- JS5 
ing? A. That is correct. ——

No. 21.
Q. And endeavoured to make as little interference with it as pos- D.w. Davies. 

sible? A. That is correct. Crogs
Q. You have taken, I gather, this line XX on the near-side of the examination. 

10 lift well in order to be able to get a sectional view? A. That is true. Be-
Q. These reserved areas you marked are not all the reserved areas 

but only those that seem to concern the plan? A. Only those in 
relation to the particular matter brought up here.

DEFENDANT'S EVIDENCE IN REPLY.
No. 22 

Further Evidence of H. A. Llewellyn
Mr WALLACE: You are on your former oath. Doubts have been Defendant's 
expressed by Mr Britton about the use of caneite or malthoid in these in^epty6 
end joints and cantilever construction that has been used? A. Yes. —- 

Q: Are they used, and if so to what extent? A. They are used H. A.
20 quite extensively. Mr Britton agreed with malthoid, because that is Llewellyn' 

to stop the wet concrete sticking to the already poured concrete. In Examination, 
the case of brickwork, the essential thing is that the mortar does not 
get between the new and the old, and the caneite is put there to make 
sure there is no mortar between the new and the old brickwork. It is 
called a dry point. The caneite is put vertically against the old wall, 
and the end of the new brick is abutted to it, with no mortar between 
the brick and the caneite.

Q. The next point is the loading for departmental stores. I think 
you know of your own knowledge about David Jones ? A. Yes. That

30 was designed in the office. It is David Jones', Market and Castlereagh 
Streets, known as the new store.

Q. What was the loading? A. 100-lb. per sq. foot. 
Q. With regard to the departmental stores, where is it usual for 

heavy goods to be stored ? A. In the basement or lower floors, where 
there is no light. The upper floors are reserved for selling floors 
usually.

Q. If you wanted to make the floor a concrete slab, heavy enough 
to take 150-lb., could that alter the loading of 100-lb. that you put on the 
column? A. Oh no. Quite often to give the building owner facilities

4Q to move departments—he may envisage sometimes having a heavier
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In the demand—the floor unit itself at his request may be designed for 150-lb. 
"^eu> Per s(l- ^°°^ but when you take the multiple floor loads down the column, 

South Wales then you revert to the minimum loading of 100-lb. per sq. foot, for quite 
Eguttabk obvious reasons: while you may have one heavy floor you almost cer- 

Junsdictim. tainly have an office floor or a couple of office floors, and, of course, 
Defendant's l^itQ often in Sydney stores have a restaurant—which are both 150-lb.

Evidence per Sq. foot, 
in reply.

—— Q. The truss, we have heard it agreed to, would be just as essential 
^'f2' in the 1954 as the 1956 plans on the George Street component? A. 

Llewellyn. That is right. At about the 4th floor on the original design; or we 10 
Examination, have proved we could extend the columns two or three floors more, but

—— above that height a truss would be required to span over the weak
Cross- -, 

examination. Columns.

CBOSS-EXAMINED
SIE GARFIELD: Q. Of course, you avoid this open joint if you pos­ 
sibly can, don't you, in the structure? A. Not when you are joining 
new to old.

Q. You cannot help it then ? A. In a continuous structure ....
Q. But you cannot help it? A. Except when you get over 150-ft, 

or the building is long enough to warrant an expansion joint. You do 20 
not put them in for the sake of putting them in.

Q. Is the caneite removed! A. It may be, but it is not usually.
Q. It would be more satisfactory if it were removed so that there 

is no risk of there being particles between the new and the old? A. 
Oh no.

Q. Don't you know the practice of putting in a batten and taking it 
out after ? A. We have tried it, but the bricklayer cannot get it out. 
It is impossible to get it out.

Q. Don't you know of the batten method? A. We have never 
used it. 30

Q. It is a building technique 1? A. In any method where you 
prevent the old brickwork adhering to the new ....

Q. The great problem is to secure that result? A. That is right.
Q. And the fact that you have to tie and secure it does add a 

building hazard? A. Well, the fact that you build new to old is the 
hazard.

Q. I want you to look at the lease for the moment and the reserva­ 
tions that are marked. You know the sub-structure plans prepared for 
the Innes-Kerr building? A. Yes.

Q. Those reservations in fact are made to accommodate themselves 40 
to the Innes-Kerr sub-structure? A. I am sorry, I cannot answer 
that. I have never checked the reservation in the dimension form.
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That has always been left to the architect, but you say this has been in the
made to suit the sub-structure. I am sorry, I know so little about this.
I thought the sub-structure was built to avoid these reservations. ^outk WaUa

0 in its
Q. If you look at the sub-structure plan, would you be able to Equitable

find on it for me those areas all worked into the plan? A. Yes, by un̂ lon-
checking these against the drawings. Defendant's

» ° ° Evidence
Q. I show you Sheet 0 of Y.3. You find the motor room ? A. in reply.

Yes. No- 22.
Q. That plan there corresponds with that (indicating). I have u^^y

10 shown you Sheet 0 of Y.3. Motor lift pit No. 8 corresponds with ——
reserved area lift well on level K. A. Yes.

Mr WALLACE: He has not agreed with that.

WITNESS: I cannot quite identify them, but it seems to be apparent 
that that runs that way; in other words, this comes through here (indi­ 
cating). It shows on that section "motor room", and apparently it 
would be on your left, but it does not say which way the section is taken. 
Are there dimensions on it?

SIR GARFIELD: The dimension is 29-ft. 6. 

HIS HONOR: It is roughly 29-ft. 6.

20 WITNESS: That is only a common centre line. That is obviously a 
section, and this is the Wynyard Lane level, and presumably the section 
is taken looking that way. There is nothing to indicate it.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. You just tell me on this plan, (showing) 
A. Level K.

Q. That is what I said to you before, that what is shown here as 
"motor lift pit" on Sheet 0 of Y.3 .... A. Put it this way; would 
appear to be reservation marked "Lift Well, Level K".

Q. Can you identify any of these others? A. I know that is the 
Plaza liftwell. There is no reservation on that area. That is the Rail- 

30 way liftwell, and that is the Plaza liftwell (indicating).
Q. That, at all events, is a railway liftwell? (showing) A. Yes. 
Q. This lift pit is not reserved? A. No, it is not reserved; that 

is, lift pits No's 3, 4, 5 and 6.

Mr WALLACE: Q. What was the number of that one? (indicating) 
A. Lift pit No. 8.
Mr WALLACE: That is a Railway lift pit. Lift pit No. 1 is not 
reserved.
SIR GARFIELD: Q. What is this? (showing) A. Vent shaft No. 1 
on Sheet 1.
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in the Q. That is it there in section, isn't it? A. I do not think so. 
tfew Tliat section is through that liftwell. That piece is nearer Wynyard 

South Wales Lane. That is an approach to the lift. That section is taken through 
EguM>h there. It would not show that, but it is shown on the plan, level C,

Jurisdiction, is 44.17.

Defendant's Q. You said 44.17? A. Yes. I cannot find the corresponding
Evidence ]„„„! in reply. leve1'

iwTo Q- 54.42 .... A. .... is first floor approximately, CarringtonJNo. 2,1.
H. A. Street.

Llewellyn.
— HIS HONOR: Q. 54.42 is on Sheet 9. A. on the first floor plan, 10

examination. Sheet 5.

SIR GARFIELD: Q. The vent shaft No. 1 shown in that plan corres­ 
ponds to the reserved air vent shaft area on Level B at 54.42? A. 
That is apparent.

Q. I have dealt with the lift wells. What is this air vent here? 
(showing) A. That is the same one.

Q. You are not saying, I gather, are you, that departmental stores 
may not require more than 100-lb. live load for their purposes ? A. 
As regards column loadings I am. As regards certain individual 
sections of the store, it may be desirable to allow for some small con- 20 
centration of heavier loading.
HIS HONOR: Q. That new one at David Jones, the departmental 
store, so far as your experience goes would that be a typical case? 
A. Oh yes. There are none that I can recall later than that in the 
City; but as evidence of it, when we check an existing store for altera­ 
tion the City Council is quite happy to accept 100-lb. per sq. foot as 
the loading on the floor.
Mr WALLACE: Q. My friend called it a hazard about putting caneite 
in when new brick is put up against the old. Is that of any practical 
importance in reality? A. "Hazard" is a coloured term, I think. 30 
It is a standard building practice. All building practices are hazards 
up to some extent I suppose.

No. 23 
Further Evidence of E. M. Nicholls

Mr WALLACE: Q. Look at the series of plans, Exhibit W/4. What 
date are they, July, 1930? A. Yes. There is another set. 

xammaion. Q you jlave geen ano£[ier se^ besides those before, have you! 
A. Yes.

Q. Would there be any plan of the first floor in that—(Ex. W"/l 
shown)? A. No. 40
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Q. You say you have seen plans different from either W/l or W/4? in the
A -y- Supreme 

-fl- * es - Court of New

HIS HONOR: Q. Where did you see them? A. In Mr Wallace's 8oufn^
Chambers. Equitable

Junsdwtwn.
Mr WALLACE: Q. You have seen what purports to be Kerr plans Def~^nt.s
. . . . (Objected to; rejected.) A. This might well do. Evidence

Q. What might well do, sheet 11 of W/l? A. Yes. ^H^7'
Q. I am not sure whether it is fair to contrast those because we g' M/ 

do not know what level that is. Have you seen anything in W/l or Niohoiis. 
10 W/4 which is identical with or similar to .... A. I do not know Examination, 

which W/l and W/4 are.
Q. Look, go through W/l, the sheets in W/l, and I will ask you, 

do you see anything there which is identical with or which is similar 
to the first floor level from George Street of Exhibit XX? A. No, 
there is nothing similar in this set.
HIS HONOR: Sir Garfield, it is necessary for me to understand these 
pleadings, and 5 (b) refers to a building and says "such building being 
in part in accordance with the plans and designs." What does the "in 
part" refer to?

20 SIR GARFIELD: I refer to the evidence that the facade was part of 
the final facade, so said in the specifications and so said in the corres­ 
pondence.
Mr WALLACE: Q. Now I ask you to look at the facade shown in 
W/l, and I ask you to compare that with the facade in XX. Is there 
a facade there; is there any resemblance between the two ? A. No, 
they are quite dissimilar.
Mr WALLACE: The witness is looking at sheet 13 of Exhibit W/l, 
which purports to be the railway entrance to the Hotel Plaza, George 
Street, under the Kerr plans.

30 Q. I show you Exhibit YY——(Showing) ....
HIS HONOR: Q. Does that bear any date on it? A. This seems to 
be the same as the one we have just looked at.
Mr WALLACE: Q. At any rate, it is Exhibit YY, and that certainly 
has the writing '' Stanley" on it. I again show you the sheet of Exhibit 
XX, which appears to have a front or facade to the twelve-bedroom 
plans set forth in XX, being the front to George Street. Is there any 
resemblance between those two? A. No, it is quite dissimilar.

Q. W/4 seems to be Kerr plans. What date is that——(Show­ 
ing) ? A. 1930.

40 Q- I again show you sheet 8 of W/4, and the facade sheet of XX. 
What do you say about those two ? A. Oh, they are quite dissimilar 
also.
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the Mr WALLACE : Mr Warden's specifications came out of the Licensing 
Court files ....
SIR GARFIELD-. No, not the one we tendered. The one that was 
given to us was the one we tendered.

Jurisdiction.
Defendant' ^r WALLACE : At any rate, there was one in a Licensing Court file. 

Evidence I want that file to go into evidence, or, alternatively, to have an admis- 
, because it shows that the Licensing Court, which made the order

No. 23. for the twelve bedrooms, did so at the instigation of the Licensing 
Nhinoiu Inspector under s. 40(a) back in 1941.

Examination. ^IR GARFIELD : I think that is apparent from a whole lot of corres- 10 
pondence. Your people were pressed into activity ....
HIS HONOR: As a matter of fact it is called "In the matter of an 
application under s. 40(2) of the Liquor Act by Jack Samuels, Licensee 
of the licensed premises."
SIR GARFIELD: I think it appears from the correspondence that 
they were being pressed to do something, but apparently it was done 
on an application by the licensee and not by 40 (a) procedure.
Mr WALLACE: Will my friend allow that which I show him to go 
on the notes ? There are several documents all pinned together as part 
of the same file. 20
SIR GARFIELD : I have no objection, of course subject to relevance. 
It can be noted that the plans and specifications which I tendered, 
Exhibit XX, were the subject of an application to the Licensing Court 
dated 3rd June, 1941, on behalf of the then licensee for permission 
to make material alterations and additions to the premises in accord­ 
ance therewith under s. 40(2) of the Liquor Act.
HIS HONOR: Those documents can now go back to the Licensing 
Court.
Mr WALLACE: Before my friend cross-examines I should clarify 
the positions of Exhibits 12 and H. 30
SIR GARFIELD : I object to this, because I want to ask the witness 
about it, and I do not want any statements made to him first.

ooga. CROSS-EXAMINED
examination. gIE GARFIELD . Q T^ai material did you look at for the purpose 

of compiling Exhibit 281 A. I had a set of drawings prepared by 
Ham, as I remember it comprising about 15 sheets, covering most of 
the sheets that were in the Licensing Court plans and including also 
quite a few sections.

Q. So you had more than Exhibit H, which we know contains no 
sections or elevations ? A. Exhibit H is the Licensing Court 40 
document?
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Q. Yes. You had something more than the Licensing Court in the 
documents? A. Yes.

Q. (Ex. 12 shown): Did you have anything except Exhibit 12 
or a copy of it? A. There could have been one more sheet.

Jurisdiction.Q. What was the subject matter of that sheet! A. I do not 
remember. I just remember that I counted 15 sheets.

Q. Aren't there 15 there? A. 14 are here. 
Q. And how many are in the one underneath? A. 11. 
Q. What do you think is the 15th sheet; what does it refer to? 

10 A. I am sorry, I do not recall.
Q. Where is the copy you looked at for the purpose of preparing examinatlon- 

Exhibit 28? A. I do not know where it is now. I had it loaned 
to me some while ago and then taken back from me.

Q. You have not got it? A. No.
Q. You cannot help us at all as to what you think, looking at those 

plans, is the missing sheet? ....
HIS HONOE: There were 25 altogether; 14 of one set and 11 of the 
other.
WITNESS: It says on the front "Set of 15 drawings".

20 SIE GAEFIELD: Q. By looking at them, can't you tell me what you 
think is the missing one? A. It could be sections. I am not sure.

Q. You cannot tell me? A. I cannot identify it.
Q. Which of these two sets of plans in Exhibit 12 did you work 

Exhibit 28 off? A. Off those. To the best of my knowledge this 
one.

Q. Plus one other sheet that you had? A. Yes.
Q. Did you have before you at all a copy of the survey of the 

site? A. No.
Q. Of the excavated site? A. I do not recall that. I had the 

3Q lease.
Q. You know, of course, that Mr Ham had a survey of the exca­ 

vated site? A. I do not know when he had a survey.
Q. You may take it that in a letter that is in evidence he writes 

to the Commissioner and says that he had had the excavated site with 
its columns surveyed, and he makes some> commendatory 'remarks 
about the nature of the work? A. Yes.

Q. At any rate you say you did not know that Mr Ham had had 
the excavated site surveyed? A. No.

Q. Or that he had available to him a Government survey? A. 
40 Well, the only implication I have is on this set of drawings. There are
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in the certain dimensions on the Carrington Street and George Street in little 
s^^1" 68 , an^ there is a notation which says "Dimensions shown thus 

South Wales from Railway survey.''
471 its

Equitable Q. So that would tell you that he had had some survey of what 
juriMion. j call the excavated site? A j would not know it applies to the
Defendant's excavated site.

Evidence
in reply. Q_ YOU made no inquiry before you made your criticisms as to 
No. 23. whether or not there was actually available for occupation any greater 

frontage than appeared to be described in the Metes and Bounds of 
the lease? A. No, I went by the lease. 10

examination. Q- Mr Ham may have drawn his plans, of course, having regard 
to the actual survey and the available area in the excavated site? A. 
I would not think so.

Q. By the way, the sheet you looked at just a moment ago was 
sheet No. 8, wasn't it? A. Yes.

Q. And that does bear an endorsement which indicates that Mr 
Ham had two surveys, a Railway survey and a private survey, doesn't 
it? A. Yes, there are two notes here on the plan.

Q. And they do indicate that he had available to him two sur­ 
veys?—(Objected to; allowed.) 20

Q. Did this note convey to your mind that he had available to 
him two surveys ? A. It implies to me there were two surveys made, 
one by the Railways, one by Gillham & Aitken.

Q. And that Mr Ham had both available to him when he was 
drawing these plans ? A. I would not say that.

Q. Let me read what it says on the plan: "Dimensions shown 
thus"—which means in a rectangle? A. Yes.

Q. "from Railway survey. Remainder from Grillham & Aitken 
survey"? A. Yes.

Q. That does not indicate to you that he had both those surveys 39 
available to him? A. Well, he could have. I don't really know.

Q. In your first criticism you say that the 1954 plan shows no 
over-all dimensions? A. That is quite right.

Q. Is that true of sheet 8? A. Yes.
Q. Doesn't that show an over-all dimension 173^ to Carrington 

St.? A. No, it simply says that is taken from a Railway survey.
Q. But it is marked off as it were to show which two points the 

distance is taken between? A. Yes.
Q. Do you notice that in some places he has his figures with plus 

or minus before them? A. Not on the figures I have gone through. 40
Q. You did not notice any? A. Not any major figures, no.
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Q. Of course, if there are any plus or minus signs it indicates that in the 
the dimension on the plan may need adjustment to accommodate itself cm^ 
to occupation, doesn't it? A. I would not take it that way at all. South Wales

in its
Q. What would you think plus over minus before a dimension on Egmtabk 

an architectural drawing means'? A. I would think, when you have _«^°»- 
a limit on the lease, YOU stick to the lease. Defendant's

Evidence
Q. My question was, what would you take from the sign plus over in reP]y-

minus in an architectural drawing ? A. I am sorry, I have never NO. 23.
ever seen it on an architectural drawing. -J^'J^° Nicholls.

10 Q. So it would not mean anything to you? A. No. ^^
Q. What you did to get your 171.92 was to tally up the individual examination - 

measurements across the Carrington Street frontage. Is that right! 
A. That is right.

Q. And ignored the 173J which is shown on the plan as the over-all 
available area! A. Yes, I have ignored that, as well as on George 
Street I have ignored the two conflicting dimensions. I have gone by 
the lease.

Q. Where are the two conflicting dimensions? A. On George 
Street you will find one with an over-all dimension, without the square, 

20 147—and it looks like 8J here—and then, in the little square showing 
the Railway area, 147 ft. 9J.

Q. Does not the presence of those two indicate to you that the 
architectural measurements are intended to be subject to some adjust­ 
ment, to accord with the available occupation? A. No.

Q. What do you think the two dimensions in the rectangle, 173J 
on the Carrington Street frontage and 147 ft. 9^ on the George Street 
frontage, are there for ? A. It simply is as it says, dimensions shown 
thus from Railway survey.

Q. It conveys no more to you than that ? A. No. I take it all 
30 the time that the lease is the limit.

Q. You do not attach, on the various individual measurements on 
the plan, any bearing upon them of these figures in the rectangle ? A. 
No; not relating to the rectangle.

Q. You just added up the several dimensions across the plan? 
A. Where there is no through dimension.

Q. By the way, I suppose the whole basis of your criticism in 
Exhibit 28 is on the assumption that all the details in Exhibit 12 had 
been unreservedly approved by the Railway Commissioner ? A. No, 
I had no such asumption.

40 Q. Did you assume one way or another whether the Railway Com­ 
missioner had approved of the detail in Exhibit 12, which you were 
criticising? A. No, it was not my function.
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Q. What was the purpose of your criticism? A. I was asked to 
discrepancies in the plan.
Q' ^ see > y°u were Just a searcher? A. Yes. 

Equitable Q j want to take you for the moment to your comment 4? A.
Jurisdiction. __ ^ J J

— Yes. 
Evidence Q- You have some dimensions in comment 4? A. Yes.

Q jjave yOU taken those from dimensions on the plan, or from 
No. 23. scaling the print? A. The ones on the left-hand side are from the 

Nichoik lease. The ones on the right-hand side, with one exception, are dimen- 
—— sions on the plan. 10Cross- 

examination. Q. What is the exception? A. The exception is 2 feet 4.5.
Q. You had merely a print of these plans, I take it? A. Yes.
Q. I suppose you will agree that you do not get accurate results by 

scaling off prints, do you? A. In long dimensions, no. In short 
dimensions the variation is so trifling as to be negligible.

Q. Let me take your list. You have made out the width of the 
building, you see, as being 5.54 inches in excess of the leased area, 
haven't you? A. Yes.

Q. I suppose you were very scrupulous in doing that? A. I 
tried to he careful, yes. 20

Q. Did you do this yourself? A. Yes.
Q. You see the fourth dimension you have got, 10.86? A. Yes.
Q. That is actually 10.66 on the plan, isn't it? A. No, 10.86.
Q. You think it is 10.86 ? A. If you look at my print it is 10.86.
Q. I suggest it is 10.66, and the point of the 6 has come down to 

touch the round of the 6 ....
HIS HONOR: On first look I thought it was 10.86. Then, when I 
thought of it as a 6, 1 think it is a 6.
SIB GABFIELD : Indeed, when you look closely, you can see it could 
not be an 8, because an 8 is made by crossing the item, whereby a 6 is 30 
straight.

Q. Did you scale it off in any way to check it? A. No, I did not 
scale those.

Q. Can you do it now ; is that a sufficiently small dimension for it 
to be accurate off the print ? A. I do not think it would be accurate 
to a couple of inches — not on this size. It scales about 10.86. It is 
nearer .86 than it is .66 by scale, so in that instance the dimensions 
correspond with the figures.

Q. At any rate, you took it as .86 for your purposes ? A. Yes. 
Q. You say this 2.45 is not a figure that is dimensioned on the 40 

plan? A. No.
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0. How did you work that out? A. By scale.^ J •* Supreme
Q. You did not need to scale it to find it out, did you! A. Well, Court of New

T T, .„,..., , ,. . South Wales1 could not nnd it through dimensions. ;ra its
Q. The dimension we are talking about is this through dimension, jurisdiction.

which on your figures there comes to the external wall? A. Yes. ——
J ° Defendants

Q. And the dimension across there goes to the centre of the Evidence 
column? A. Yes. ^

Q. To accommodate those two, you had to deduct the distance from E.'M. 
the centre of the columns to the external of that wall! A. That is Niohoiia.

10 right. Cross- 
examination .

Q. The centre of the column is dimensioned, isn't it; it is 1 ft. 9 
from the wall? A. Not at all.

Q. From the inside of the wall to the centre of the column? A. 
It is different, because this column is not this column—(Indicating).

Q. But they are on the same line of centres, aren't they? A. I 
do not know whether they are or not.

Q. Didn't you look; they are on the same line of centres, aren't 
they? A. I think they are not.
HIS HONOR: Do you mean the centre of the column is the same as the 

20 line of the centre of the other column?
SIR GARFIELD: Definitely.
HIS HONOR: I would not be prepared to say so straight away.
WITNESS: Where you take your dimensions is you have a dimension 
there, and you have a dimension there, and you have to take from there 
to there—(Indicating), and that is the little piece I scaled, and that is 
the 2 ft. 6 inches.

Q. I am suggesting that that centre and that centre are the same 
in relation to this wall—(Showing)? A. But they are not the same 
when drawn up.

30 Q. Turn up the sub-structure plans and see whether these two 
columns are not on a column line with common centres. Turn back 
to sheet 1? A. There is no indication exactly there.

Q. Anything which suggests to you that this line of columns is not 
in a common centre? A. They might not be.

Q. Is there anything on the plan which suggests it to you? A. 
Suggests not one way or the other.

Q. Your dimension was worked out for the purpose of this criti­ 
cism on the assumption that the architect had drawn the column posi­ 
tion with great precision, even to the matter of fractions of an inch! 

40 A. No.
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in the

South Wake 
Equitable

Defendant's
in reply, —

E°'M.' 
"

Q. But it must have been, must not it? A. No. He has drawn 
this and taken the dimension to it that way — (Indicating). He has 
taken the over-all dimension there, and the difference between the two 
ig the dimension I have got, which is added to the others.

Q Didn't you see the 1 ft. 9 for the centre of the column off the 
external wall to the inside of the brickwork on the return of the external 
wall? A. No, you are wrong there. It goes from the centre of the 
column apparently to the middle of the brickwork. It is not to the 
inside of the brickwork.

Q. To the inside? A. No, it is not to the inside. 10 
Q- You say it shows to the centre line of the brickwork 1 A. Yes.
Q. Did you observe that 1 ft. 9 was shown as a dimension from the 

centre line of the column to the centre line of the brickwork of the 
external wall? A. Yes, well, you cannot even tell what the centre 
line is there, because that brickwork is not built to the centre line. 
There is a cavity between the two four-and-a-halves.

Q. Hasn't the architect indicated to you by that line that it is a 
line to the centre line of the wall? A. No.

Q. What do you think the 1 ft. 9 represents? A. I simply do not 
know because it is so ambigiously drawn. 20

Q. Did you notice it when you were preparing this criticism? 
A. Yes.

Q. What did you think it meant? A. I did not know, and I still 
do not know.

Q. If the assumption is that the architect showed from the centre 
of column 171 to the centre of the brickwork on the external wall as 
1 ft. 9, the total distance from the centre of that column to the outside 
of the wall would be about another 4£ inches added on to 1 ft. 9, 
wouldn't it? A. Not necessarily.

Q. What would be it? A. There is a 2-inch cavity. 30
Q. What is the maximum you would think it would be, on those 

drawings? A. It could be an extra 6i.
Q. What did you say it could be? A. It could be 6| inches. 
Q. How thick would the whole wall be then ? A. 11 inches.
Q. Your reading of this architectural plan is, you think the archi­ 

tect may have shown what is drawn as a centre line as being a concentric 
line? A. Yes. I could not make out what it was.

Q. You, of course, had more than this plan to assist you in know­ 
ing where the line of columns would be, didn't you? A. I had the 
other plans here. 40

Q. And yoxi had drawn plans yourself? A. Indeed.
Q. And plans that concerned that very line of columns? A. No.
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Q. Didn't you have to consider where that line of columns was for in the 
the purpose of your plans I A. No, we did not touch them at all.

Q. And you did not look at any dimension of them, or their loca- 
tion? A. They did not affect any —— Equitable

Q. My question was, did you look at any dimension of them for ' " l̂ _w 
the purpose of preparing your own plans ? A. No, not in the manner Defendant's
yOU Suggest.

Q. You did not learn, when you were preparing your own plans, N^S. 
that that line of columns begining at 171 was on a common line of E - M -

t /-, i n \ -KT Nicholls.10 centres? A. No. __
Q. You would have had the structural drawings, Exhibit 10, at 

some stage, wouldn't you? A. I cannot see what you are looking at.
Q. (Ex. 10 shown) : You would have had this at some stage, 

wouldn't you? A. Yes.
Q. Is column 171 on there? A. No. This is all on the Carring- 

ton Street side.
Q. What I was showing you was George Street? A. Yes. 
Q. They are not on Exhibit 10? A. No.
Q. While I am here, do you see where I point to above the 1 ft. 9, a

20 line which indicates that the measurement here is taken to the inside
of that wall ; this measurement from that dot, 14 ft. lltf, is actually taken
from the inside of that wall? A. All these are part dimensions and
not the whole dimension. I took the whole dimension.

Q. I am calling your attention to that dimension. That shows, by 
the figure 11, that that is an 11-inch wall? A. Not necessarily.

Q. This figure 11 does not indicate that the wall is 11 inches thick? 
A. That is not where the dimension is.

Q. You do not think that that 11 indicates it is an 11-inch wall ? 
A. It could.

30 Q. That is the best you will go ? A. Yes.
Q. At this end it has 11, and here, it has the inch mark there? 

A. But you see an anomaly there. That is drawn to 11. That is only 
a 4| inch wall — (Indicating).

Q. You did not worry about this 1 ft. 9 either? A. No.
Q. You did not think that that centre line Avas in the centre of the 

brickwork for dimension purposes? A. No.
Q. Although you see that the dot, if it is opposite anything, is 

opposite the centre line. Indeed, it is on a continuation of that line. 
isn't it? A. This line is not drawn properly. In fact, it is not a 

40 line. It is a space.
Q. But that is where he is measuring to, isn't it? A. But you 

cannot measure to nothing. You must measure to something.
*38632— 15
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In the. Q. When you show 11 inches to a two 4J-inch brick wall, it is not 
_ possible to measure through the centre of that wall, because you say 

South Wales it is a space ? A. No, you say "to centre".
Equitable Q. You do not think that is what that plan is showing very

Jurisdiction, eloquently? A. No. On the contrary, I think it is most ambiguous.
Defendant's Q. if others think that 1 ft. 9 is to the centre of an 11 inch wall and

iiTrepty6 that the line of columns are on a common line of centres, then the dimen-
—- sion you have given as 2 ft. 4.5 inches would need to be altered, Avouldn't
EM. it ... .(Objected to; question withdrawn.)

Q. You see comment 5 here in the Exhibit? A. Yes. 10 
Q. Can you show me what you are referring to on Exhibit H ?——

HIS HONOR: I thought he said he referred to Exhibit 12.
SIR GARFIELD: I want to ask him can he show them to me on H.
WITNESS: Is H the Licensing Court set?
SIR GARFIELD: Q. Yes. Can you show me on H what it is you are 
criticising, if it is there? A. It is not there, but other similar ones 
are there.

Q. I did not ask you about anything else but this 98 and the 99? 
A. No, they came from ....

Q. This criticism does not appear from anything you see on H? 20 
A. No. On H you have to apply the numbers 96 and 112.

Q. But 98 and 99 .... A. They apply to the 15 sheet set and 
not to the others. The two others apply to the other.

Q. Of course, the sizes of columns are not drawn accurately by 
architects at any time, are they? A. Yes, of course they are.

Q. Do you do that? A. When I have the structural details, yes.
Q. Is comment 6 to be found on Exhibit HI A. No, it is not on 

Exhibit H.
Q. Now there is another group of ci'iticisms, where it start's "See 

second floor Carrington Street, ground floor George Street, for the 30 
following items"—about comment 12? A. Yes.

Q. Are these taken from Exhibit H or Exhibit 12? A. They 
were taken from 12, but they apply to both.

Q. You can find those in H, can you? A. Yes. 
Mr WALLACE: Which ones are you speaking of now? 
WITNESS: No. 12 onward; is that right?
SIR GARFIELD: Q. Yes. Take 12, for example. Just show us the 
item you are referring to? A. This air lock—(Indicating).

Q. What dimensions are shown on the plan? A. 2 ft. 6 x 4 ft. 6. 
Q. On the plan, are they? A. Yes. 40
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Q. Are you sure that is the floor dimension, or the door opening In the 
dimension? A. No, I think that is the——

Q. Just look again. That is a door opening, isn't it? A. I
do not think SO. Equitable

Jurisdiction.
Q. No so much from scaling, but by what it looks like ? A. I ——

am sorry, I have made a mistake in this. We scaled this, and there is Evidence*
one dimension, and we scaled the other, and there was no dimension, fa reply.

Q. So what you told me just a moment ago was inaccurate ? A. N°- %*•
-r-r .b. M.

J- 68. Nicholls.

10 Q. You took what dimension? A. There is a 4 ft. 6 inch dimen- cross- 
sion and it scales across here 3 feet, and you multiply those two, and examination, 
you get 13.5 square feet.

Q. But the 4 ft. 6 is not a floor dimension, is it; it is an opening 
dimension, a window or louvres or something? A. No, it certainly 
is not.

Q. The 4 ft. 6 is between these two points, and they are opposite 
that opening? A. They are not. These relate to that wall. They 
are the dimensions of the wall. That is the wall, and that is how you 
dimension to build the wall.

20 Q. You say that is the wall and not the opening? A. Yes.
Q. You say it is 4 feet 6. What is the width of the scale? A. 

Scale, 3 feet.
Mr WALLACE: Q. What is 3 feet? A. From there to there— 
(Indicating). We are a little full in the scale, but we took it at 3 feet.
SIR GAEFIELD: Q. What do you mean by "a little full"; a little 
more? A. No, a little less.

Q. Do you know whether or not the Council did in fact approve 
that which you criticised? A. I am not sure.

Q. You are not sure ? A. No, I do not know about that.
30 Q. Do you think the print is sufficiently accurate to warrant your 

scaling it? A. Oh, I think his 3 feet is.
Q. You do? A. Small dimensions, yes.
Q. Take Item No. 21, "Toilets and basins are all drawn too small." 

Do architects draw the toilet basins the right size, or simply draw 
them to show where they should be in position? A. If they have 
competent draftsmen they draw them to the right size.

Q. You must have missed a good point. I notice the toilets are 
drawn rectangular in that plan? A. I noticed that too.

Q. You did miss a good point ? A. Yes.
40 Q- Item 27 to 31 are founded on a comparison of some architects' 

plans and preliminary structural plans, aren't they? A. Yes.
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in the Q. Just open those up. These are said to be sub-structural plans 
"jVe«) ^na^ came from your possession at some time—(m.f.i.15 shown) f A.

South Wales Yes.
in, its "

Equitable. Q. They show this column 171 and the column from the centre of 
_!_*° ' which you were taking certain measurements, don't they? A. Yes. 

Defendant's They would appear down below to be concentric.
Evidence
m reply. Q There is no doubt about that. They have a line drawn through 
NO. 23. them, haven't they 1? A. Not through the centre. It so happens 
N^hoiis ^na^ ^nat ^ne *s no^ through the centre.

Cross. Q. But that indicates they are on a common line, they are on a 10 
examination, common axis? A. That is what you have said.

Q. Doesn't that indicate that to you? A. Not necessarily.
Q. Doesn't that indicate to you that they are on a common line 

of centres? A. Not necessarily.
Q. Does it in fact when you look at it now? A. No, it does not 

necessarily, no.
Q. Inside your own plans there is a survey in there, isn't there? 

A. Yes.
Q. That shows them on a common line of centres. There is no 

doubt about that? A. No, this is as poorly drawn as the previous 20 
architect's one.

Q. Doesn't it tell you they are on a common line of centres? A. 
No. The line is not even on the centre.

Q. "Does not that tell you whether it is a common line of centres? 
A. No. A surveyor's line is supposed to be an accurate line, and if 
you take the surveyor's line accurately it is out of centre. Perhaps 
it is out of centre.

Q. Where is column 171. Compare it on the plan and on the sur­ 
vey? A. That is this one, and that shows—as the previous one— 
quite a bit off centre. 30

Q. You say it does not show they are built on a common line of 
centres? A. Of course not. A surveyor's plan is supposed to be 
a careful plan, and this deliberately shows the centre line not on the 
centre of the columns.

Q. You say that indicates to you they are not on a common line 
of centres? A. It could. One would have to check with the surveyor 
as to whether it is careful drawing or whether it is a fact.

Q. You see, on the top of this survey it says "A plan showing the 
basement column centres", and it has a series of dimensions between 
points, where the lines cross. Does not that indicate to you that these 40 
lines were intended to be the centres of the columns! A. Well, if 
they are they are very badly drawn.
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Q. You see what the plan is headed and you see the dimensions? in the
A VAU Supreme

eb- Court of New
Q. Doesn't that convey to you that this line of columns, particularly Sout̂ l âales 

these two, are on a common centre ? A. They are not the ones we Equitable 
are talking about. We are talking of those two—(Indicating). Jurisdiction.

Q. Well, those two! A. It does not finally show it, no. Defendant's
. Evidence

(Six sub-structure sheets and survey plan, part of m.f.i. 15, in reply,
tendered; objected to as being irrelevant; admitted and No 23
marked Exhibit CCC.) E.'M.'

in ' Nicholls.
lu Q. Would you open up the 1954 plan in Exhibit 12 or H and tell 

me where is the main entrance of the hotel to which those plans relate; 
in C'arrington Street or George Street? A. Carrington Street. ——

Q. Is the main foyer there ? A. Yes.
Q. And reception desk and office? A. Yes.
Q. Would you look at the bedroom floor plan for the moment and 

indicate if there is one bedroom that is 6 feet 6 wide? A. Yes. It 
is 45. There is another one I observe here, No. 60. There might be 
more, I do not recall.

RE-EXAMINED Re- 
20 Mr AVALLACE: Q. You did your Exhibit 28 from the 15 drawings, examination- 

Exhibit 12? A. Yes.
Q. And have you also checked the 15 with the 11? A. Yes.
Q. Would it be correct to say that 75 % approximately of your 

comments apply to both? A. Yes.
Q. And 100% apply to the 1.1-sheet drawings! A. That is 

correct.
Q. Some of the comments, of course, are more important than 

others? A. Yes.
Q. When you said your comment No. 5 on columns 98 and 99 does 

30 not apply to H, do you wish to add that there were two columns in H, 
not 98 and 99, to which those comments did apply? A. Yes, 96 and 
112.

Q. By the way, your plans, I think you told His Honor, were of a 
preliminary nature, were they? A. On the actual drawing, nota­ 
tion says "Advanced working drawings".

Q. Whose is that, Mr Ham's? A. No, mine; the 1956 plans.
Q. What about Mr Ham's plan? A. I understand 15 sheets, 

with the sheets that wont to ... .(Objected to.)
HIS HONOR: Q. I have seen many of these drawings flourished before 

40 me. Is there a simple document anywhere where as it were you were 
looking down on the site and you saw the exact areas of first of all the 
1954 plan and then the 1956 plan ? A. There is none.
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in the Q. The only way to do it is to look at the plan? A. That is
Supreme nnrvppt Court of New C0ri ecl-

°Uin its Mr WALLACE: Q. It need not be to scale even; just drawings 1 A. 
Equitable jn that particular, I have done that—a simple diagram.Jurisdiction. r •> r o

—— Q. That is the isometric drawings? A. No, preceding that.
Defendant s

Evidence Q. Do you say it is in evidence? A. Yes, it is in evidence, the
m reply. comparative drawing of mine, showing the two plans and the two
NO. 23. elevations.' "F1 M
Nichoiis. Q. (Ex. 3 shown) ? A. This is correct, if you eliminate that— 

~^~ (Marked with a cross). 10
examination.
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No. 24 

Notice of Motion under Section 89 of the Conveyancing Act, in the
1010 tQSA Supreme 
1919-1954 Court of New

South Wales

TAKE NOTICE that by special leave this Honourable Court will be Equitable 
moved before the Honourable Charles McLelland a Judge of the Supreme u 
Court sitting in Equity at 10.0 a.m. this day or so soon thereafter during 
the hearing of this suit now current as counsel may be heard on behalf Mg^°feLn 
of Avrom Investments Proprietary Limited, the abovenamed defendant, c of the 
for the undermentioned declarations and orders AND FURTHER TAKE Act,

1919—1954.10 NOTICE that it is intended to use (inter aha) on the hearing of this 
application the evidence in this suit.

1. Declarations as to whether or not the demised land the subject 
of the said suit is affected by any restrictions as to its user contained 
in the lease referred to in the Statement of Claim filed in the said 
suit, and if so,

(a) The nature and extent thereof.

(b) Whether the same is or are enforceable, and, if so, by whom.

2. If and in the event of it being declared that the said demised land is 
subject to restrictions arising as aforesaid and that the same are 

20 enforceable, for an order that the restrictions which may be declared 
as aforesaid be modified

(a) so as to allow of the erection of a building on the said demised 
land substantially in accordance with the plans being 
exhibit 42 in the said suit, the drawings being exhibit 10 
in the said suit and the specifications being exhibit R in 
the said suit without the approval of the lessor to the said 
designs plans or specifications

(b) so as to allow of the erection of a building on the said demised 
land which is not in accordance or substantially in accordance 

30 with the plans being exhibit H in the said suit
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in ike (c) so as to allow of the erection of a building on the said demised
Court of New land which is not in accordance or substantially in accordance 

°Uin its with the plans being exhibit W1-W6 in the said suit
Equitable

u — ' (d) so as to allow of the erection on the said demised land of a 
Notice of building in accordance with designs plans and specifications

sger n°t approved by the lessor if the lessor should unreasonably 
refuse or fail to consent to the said designs plans and 

I 919-Ci954. specifications.

DATED this 4th day of April, 1957.



In tlie
W_ o r Supreme 
n°- " Court of New

Notes of McLelland, J. °" «*<*"**
Equitable

TUESDAY, 5th MARCH, 1957. 
SIR GARFIELD BARWICK Q.C. JENKYN Q.C. and H. JENKINS

for Plaintiff. McLeUand, J.

WALLACE Q.C. MEARES Q.C. SELBY and MAY for Defendant. 
BADHAM Q.C. and E. PERRIGNON to make a submission on behalf

of officer of Licensing Coxirt.
J. L. Fitzmaurice, Secretary of Licenses Reduction Board produces 

10 documents on subpoena duces tecum.
I refuse application by defendant for an adjournment.
I give defendant leave to amend statement of defence by adding

paragraphs 18 and 19 set out in document initialled by me and
placed with the papers.

SIR GARFIELD tenders copy lease : EXHIBIT '• J ". 
Tenders Permit to build on Wynyard Lane : EXHIBIT " E''. 
Tenders bundle of correspondence 26/9/40 to 20/6/41 : m.f.i. (1). 
Tenders bundle of letters 27/8/30 to 4/9/35 : m.f.i. (2). 
Plans of substructure : m.f.i. (3). 

20 Blue prints undated of superstructure : m.f.i. (4). 
Elevation of proposed Hotel: m.f.i. (5). 
Original tender and accompanying documents : m.f.i. (6). 
Tenders bundle of correspondence 28/8/42 to 12/3/51 : EXHIBIT " C ". 
Bundle of correspondence (14/2/45 to 13/4/53) re sub-structure repair :

EXHIBIT " D ". 
Bundle of correspondence (24/8/53 to 25/10/54) re 1954 plans and

approval: EXHIBIT " E ". 
SIR GARFIELD applies for injunction. 
I refuse the application.

30 WEDNESDAY, 6th MARCH, 1957.
Tenders minute of order 9/11/53 re application No. 9 and order to

carry out work of 9/11/53 : EXHIBIT " F ". 
Minute of order of 26/5/54 : EXHIBIT "G 1 '. 
Series of plans marked '" Approved " of 9/11/53 and plan of 26/5/54 :

EXHIBIT " H ". 
Application for extension of time of 28/9/55 plus statement:

EXHIBIT " J ". 
Application of 5/9/56 for variation : EXHIBIT " K ".

•38632— IS .A
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>_«*« 1956 plans referred to in Exhibit " K " : EXHIBIT " L ".
yew Application of 19/9/56 for authority to carry out work: EXHIBIT

South Wales " M " 
in its

Editable Bundle of correspondence (27/3/56 to 27/8/56) : EXHIBIT " N ". 
junsiuctoon. Transcript of evidence before Judge Rooney . EXHIBIT "0".

No°tefo'f Diagramatic sketches : EXHIBIT " P ".
MoLeiiand, j. WALLACE tenders bundle of rent accounts and receipts : EXHIBIT 1. 

WALLACE examines Eric Milton Nicholls. 
Tenders isometric diagram : EXHIBIT 2.
Sheet No. 10 : m.f.i. (7). 10 
Sheet No. 9 : m.f.i. (8). 
Schedule of area : m.f.i. (9). 
WALLACE tenders m.f.i. (9): EXHIBIT 3. 
Tenders m.f.i. (8) : EXHIBIT 4. 
Tenders document comparing schemes : EXHIBIT 5.

THURSDAY, 7th MARCH, 1957.
WALLACE tenders plan of proposed lift alteration : EXHIBIT 6.
SIR GARFIELD cross-examines.
Three sheets of structural steel drawings: m.f.i. (10).
Specifications : m.f.i. (11). 20
SIR GARFIELD tenders contract of 24/8/56 and 10 sheets : EXHIBIT"Q".
Letter of Instruction of 8/6/56 : m.f.i. (12). 
Plans of substructure : m.f.i. (13). 
Tenders m.f.i. 11 : EXHIBIT " R ". 
Copy of Exhibit 4 : m.f.i. (14).

MONDAY, llth MARCH, 1957. 
SIR GARFIELD continues cross-examination of Mr Nicholls.

TUESDAY, 12th MARCH, 1957.
Substructure plans of Mr Nicholls' : m.f.i. (15). OQ
List of utensils for kitchen : m.f.i. (16).
WALLACE re-examines.
SIR GARFIELD tenders m.f.i. (16): (list of utensils for kitchen) :

EXHIBIT " S ".
WALLACE tenders copy letter of instruction of 8/6/56 : EXHIBIT 7. 
Tenders plan of scheme to remove encroachment: EXHIBIT 8.
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Tenders Book of photographs: EXHIBIT 9. in the
Tenders m.f.i. (10) : EXHIBIT 10. coSfffi™
Tenders sketch of loads on beams : EXHIBIT 11. S°'fn ^ales
WALLACE examines Henry Arthur Llewellyn. Equitable

J J Jurisdiction.

WEDNESDAY, 13th MARCH, 1957. M ,' ' McLelland, J.

WALLACE continues examination. 
SIR GARFIELD cross-examines. 
Set of plans 25/6/56: m.f.i. (17). 
Plans: m.f.i. (18). 

10 Four sheets of plans: m.f.i. (19).
Bundle of engineering plans : m.f.i. (20).
Four sheets of tracings of architectural drawings : m.f.i. (21).

THURSDAY, 14th MARCH, 1957.
MR LLEWELLYN produces calculations re 1956 plans on subpoena

duces tecum.
WALLACE examines Walter Ralston Bunning. 
WALLACE re-examines Mr Llewellyn.
Set of plans sent by Sly & Russell to Railway Commissioner : 

EXHIBIT 12.

20 TUESDAY, 19th MARCH, 1957.
MR FOX now appears with Mr Wallace.
Allan Grant Crawford, solicitor, produces documents on subpoena

duces tecum.
WALLACE further examines Eric Milton Nicholls. 
SIR GARFIELD cross-examines. 
Document prepared by Mr Nicholls : m.f.i. (22). 
WALLACE further examines Henry Arthur Llewellyn. 
Work Sheets : m.f.i. (23). 
Structural plans : m.f.i. (24). 

30 SIR GARFIELD cross-examines. 
Sketch : EXHIBIT " T ". 
Book of plans Plaza Hotel : m.f.i. (25). 
WALLACE re-examines.
Tenders sketch of proposed truss : EXHIBIT 13. 
WALLACE further examines Walter Ralston Bunning. 
Tenders slide and accompanying pages of typescript : EXHIBIT 14.



460 

tutke Calculations of floor areas: m.f.i. (26).
Supreme -, TT A T T . ,-*-,-,Court of New WALLACE re-exammes.

Examines William Ray Laurie. 
gjR GARFIELD cross-examines.Jurisdiction. 

No. -25,

McL±nd!j. WEDNESDAY, 20th MARCH, 1957.
WALLACE further examines William Ray Laurie.
SIR GARFIELD cross-examines.
WALLACE re-examines.
WALLACE examines John Roland Harrowell.

THURSDAY, 21st MARCH, 1957. 10
WALLACE further examines Henry Arthur Llewellyn.
Bundle of plans: m.f.i. (27).
Tenders sketch of columns : EXHIBIT 15.
Sketch of proposed truss : EXHIBIT 16.
SIR GARFIELD cross-examines.
WALLACE further examines John Roland Harrowell.
Calculations: m.f.i. (28).
Summary of balance sheets : m.f.i. (29).
WALLACE examines Elizabeth Dorothea Randall.
Bundle of plans : m.f.i. (30). 20
Tenders m.f.i. (28) : EXHIBIT 17.

MONDAY, 25th MARCH, 1957.
Defendant's admissions : m.f.i. (31).
WALLACE further examines Henry Arthur Llewellyn.
Sheets showing result of calculations re Columns 53 and 55 : EXHIBIT

18. 
WALLACE examines Royle Stone Connolly.
Tenders summary of net profits 1943-1956 : EXHIBIT 19. (Admitted

subject to relevance and checking.) 
SIR GARFIELD cross-examines. 30
Tenders copy leasehold account and leasehold improvements account

from private ledger : EXHIBIT 20. 
Tenders m.f.i. (6) (original tender) : EXHIBIT 21. 
Tenders plan accompanying letter of 5/10/54 : EXHIBIT 22. 
Tenders agreement of 10/7/42 : EXHIBIT 23.
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SIR GARFIELD examines Thomas Maxwell Scott.
Tenders isometric diagram prepared by Mr Scott: EXHIBIT " U ". c
WALLACE cross-examines. ' 8outh *ales

tTl I f -S
Equitable 

Jurisdiction.

TUESDAY. 26th MARCH, 1957. Nn5 .
SIR GARFIELD continues examination. .\i/Leiiand, j. 
WALLACE cross-examines.
SIR GARFIELD examines Alexander Theodore Britten. 
Bundle of plans : m.f.i. (32). 
Bundle of plans : m.f.i. (33). 

10 Bundle of calculations : m.f.i. (34).
Document shown to Mr Britten: m.f.i. (35).
Bundle of blue prints : m.f.i. (36).
Further bundle of plans : m.f.i. (37).
Bundle of calculations : m.f.i. (38).
Specifications : m.f.i. (39).
Three files of correspondence : EXHIBIT " V ".
m.f.i. (4): EXHIBIT " Wl ".
m.f.i. (5): EXHIBIT " W2 ".
m.f.i. (30): EXHIBIT " TF3 ". KERR.

20 m.f.i. (32): EXHIBIT " TF4 ".
m.f.i. (33): EXHIBIT " W5 ".
m.f.i. (39): EXHIBIT " TF6 ".
Tenders so many of documents in File No. 4 as are mentioned in typed 

document which appears in front of file : EXHIBIT " X ".
Plans : EXHIBIT " X1 ".
File No. 5 : EXHIBIT " Y ".
m.f.i. (36): EXHIBIT " Yl ". Structural drawings: EXHIBIT 

" 72 ".
Architectural drawings : EXHIBIT " Y3 ". 

30 File No. 6 (as mentioned in list attached) : EXHIBIT " Z ".
Bundle of plans mentioned in " Z " : EXHIBIT " Zl'\
File No. 7 (as mentioned in this attached): EXHIBIT " AA ".
m.f.i. (13) : sub-structure plans : EXHIBIT " AAl ".
File No. 8 (as mentioned in list attached): EXHIBIT " BB ".
m.f.i. (35) (computations by Mr Stanley) : EXHIBIT " BBl ".
Tenders m.f.i. (38): (calculations): EXHIBIT " C'C ".
Letter of 29/9/47 : EXHIBIT " DD "
m.f.i. (25): EXHIBIT " DDl ".
Valuer General's valuation : EXHIBIT " BE ".
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WEDNESDAY, 27th MARCH, 1957.
Supreme
n* o/ N™ Fiie NO. 9 (as mentioned in list attached): EXHIBIT "FF", FileSouth Wales -NT

tn/fc -NO. —— .

Balance of Files No. 9 and 10 not tendered by plaintiff: EXHIBIT 
— 24FF. 

Notes2 of Plans marked " J " : EXHIBIT " FFl ".
, J. File NQ u ( as mentione(i in ^ attached) : EXHIBIT " ££ ". 

Balance of File No. 11 not tendered by plaintiff: EXHIBIT 25GG. 
Statement of Claim, Statement of Defence and Replication in Suit

No. 1102 of 1939 : EXHIBIT " HH ". 10 
File No. 12 (as mentioned in list attached) : EXHIBIT " JJ ". 
Draft agreement of execute lease : EXHIBIT " KK ". 
Two blue paints each endorsed by Mr Stanley : m.f.i. (40). 
Specifications (Warden) : m.f.i. (41). 
Letterhead from Mr Roberts : m.f.i. (42). 
File No. 13: EXHIBIT " LL ". 
Copy letter of 8/4/57 : m.f.i. (43).
Three letters of 22/5/47, 28/5/47 and 10/7/47 : EXHIBIT " MM ". 
File No. 14 : EXHIBIT " NN ".
Letter of 17/10/47 : EXHIBIT " 00 ". 20 
Minutes of conference of 24/11/54 signed by Ham, Stanley and

Llewellyn : EXHIBIT " PP ". 
SIR GARFIELD further examines Britten. 
Tenders Plan re Britten's evidence : EXHIBIT "QQ". 
Three sheets of plans prepared by Mr Britten : EXHIBIT " RR ". 
WALLACE cross-examines.

MONDAY, 1st APRIL, 1957.
WALLACE cross-examines Mr Britten.
Sketch drawn by Mr Wallace : m.f.i. (44).
Second sketch of trusses : m.f.i. (45). 30
Diagram: EXHIBIT 26.
Sketch: m.f.i. (46).
Calculations : m.f.i. (47).

TUESDAY, 2nd APRIL, 1957.
WALLACE continues cross-examination Mr Britten.
SIR GARFIELD re-examines.
Tenders By-Law No. 52 : EXHIBIT " SS ".
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WEDNESDAY, 3rd APRIL, 1957. 1*0*
SIR GARFIELD further re-examines Mr Britten. c°™t °f

South Wales
WALLACE further cross-examines Mr Britten. in its 
SIR GARFIELD further re-examines. Jurisdiction. 
SIR GARFIELD examines David Davis. x~5 
WALLACE cross-examines. 
SIR GARFIELD tenders three plans drawn by Mr Davis : EXHIBIT

Tenders letters marked " A " and " B " : EXHIBIT " UU ". 
10 m.f.i. (44) (45) and (46) tendered : EXHIBIT 27.

THURSDAY, 4th APRIL, 1947.
WALLACE further examines Llewellyn.
SIR GARFIELD cross-examines.
I permit notice of motion for declarations and relief under s. 89 of the

Conveyancing Act to be filed. I reserve the question of terms. 
SIR GARFIELD tenders file of correspondence : EXHIBIT "FT"'. 
Tenders file of letters and plans : EXHIBIT " WW ". 
Tenders Warden plans and specifications : EXHIBIT " XX ". 
Tenders blue prints of facade : EXHIBIT " YY ". 

20 Tenders Bundle of blue prints (1941) : EXHIBIT " ZZ ".
Tenders four letters of 10/2/56, 6/2/56, 20/1/56 and 9/6/55 : EXHIBIT"AAA".
Tenders letter dated 25/11/41 (m.f.i. 42): EXHIBIT " BBB ". 
Tenders statement of Mr Nicholls : EXHIBIT 28. 
Tenders tenancy agreements : EXHIBIT 29.
I allow plaintiff to amend statement of claim so as to make it 
conform to the document initialled by me and placed with papers.

MONDAY, 8th APRIL, 1957.
WALLACE further examines Eric Milton Nicholls.

30 Tenders six sheets and survey plan (part of m.f.i. (15) : EXHIBIT " CCC ".

TUESDAY, 9th APRIL, 1957.
SIR GARFIELD tenders Minute of 16/5/29 and document of 4/4/29 :

EXHIBIT " DDD ".
I give plaintiff leave to add John Birkett Wakefield as a party 
defendant,
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in the In lieu of all orders for amendments made heretofore since the 
mNe,w commencement of the hearing, I give leave to the plaintiff to 

South Wales amend the statement of claim in accordance with the document
Emiitabie now initialled by me and placed with the papers. 

jurisdiction. jn neu Of aj] orders made heretofore since the commencement of the 
NoTTo. hearing I give leave to the Defendant Avrom Investments Pty. 
Notes of Ltd. to amend the statement of defence in accordance with the 

c e an , . document initialled by me and placed with the papers.
I give leave to the plaintiff to amend the replication generally. Costs

of and occasioned by all amendments to be costs in the suit. \Q 
SIB GARFIELD addresses.
Tenders document setting out effect of documents in Licensing Court 

as to the area of licence : EXHIBIT " EEE ".

WEDNESDAY, 10th APEIL, 1957. 

SIR GARFIELD addresses.

THURSDAY, llth APRIL, 1957.

SIR GARFIELD addresses. 
MR WALLACE addresses.

MONDAY, 15th APRIL, 1957. 

MR WALLACE addresses. 20

TUESDAY, 16th APRIL, 1957. 

MR WALLACE addresses.

WEDNESDAY, 17th APRIL, 1957. 
MR WALLACE addresses.

THURSDAY, 18th APRIL, 1957.
MR WALLACE addresses.
I give leave to the plaintiff to amend the statement of claim in accordance 

with the document now initialled by me and placed with the papers. 
The plaintiff agrees that any amendments to the statement of 
defence arising out of these amendments to the statement of claim ^Q 
need not be under the Seal of the defendant company. Costs of 
the amendment reserved.

TUESDAY, 23rd APRIL, 1957. 
MR WALLACE addresses.
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WEDNESDAY. 24th APRIL, 1957. 
MR WALLACE addresses.

Smith Walt*
in its

MONDAY, 29th APRIL, 1957. ^MM.,H .
MR WALLACE addresses. No'teof 
List of admissions (m.f.i. 31): EXHIBIT 30. Midland, j.

MONDAY, 6th MAY. 1957. 
Stood over till 7th Mav. 1957.

TUESDAY. 7th MAY, 1957.
JENKINS for Plaintiff. 

10 FOX for Defendant,
Stood over till 8th May, 1957.

WEDNESDAY. 8th MAY. 1957.
JENKINS for Plaintiff.
FOX for Defendant.
I give the plaintiff leave to file an amended replication in accordance

with document initialled by me and placed with papers. I reserve
costs of this amendment.

MONDAY, 20th MAY, 1957.
JENKINS for Plaintiff. 

20 FOX for Defendant. 
I reserve my judgment.



4G6

IN THE SUPREME COURT
OF NEW SOUTH WALES

IN EQUITY
CORAM : McLELLAND, J.

CMR. FOR RAILWAYS V. AVROM INVEST­ 
MENTS PTY. LTD. & ANOR.

FRIDAY, 12th OCTOBER 1956 
TUESDAY, 16th OCTOBER 1956 
WEDNESDAY, 17th OCTOBER 1956 
FRIDAY, 2nd NOVEMBER 1956 
TUESDAY, 5th FEBRUARY 1957 
FRIDAY, 15th FEBRUARY 1957 
TUESDAY, 5th MARCH 1957 
WEDNESDAY, 6th MARCH 1957 
THURSDAY, 7th MARCH 1957 
MONDAY, llth MARCH 1957 
TUESDAY, 12th MARCH 1957 
WEDNESDAY, 13th MARCH 1957 
THURSDAY, 14th MARCH 1957 
TUESDAY, 19th MARCH 1957 
WEDNESDAY, 20th MARCH 1957 
THURSDAY, 21st MARCH 1957 
MONDAY, 25th MARCH 1957 
TUESDAY, 26th MARCH 1957 
WEDNESDAY, 27th MARCH 1957 
MONDAY, 1st APRIL 1957 
TUESDAY, 2nd APRIL 1957 
WEDNESDAY, 3rd APRIL 1957 
THURSDAY, 4th APRIL 1957 
MONDAY, 8th APRIL 1957 
TUESDAY, 9th APRIL 1957 
WEDNESDAY, 10th APRIL 1957 
THURSDAY, llth APRIL 1957 
MONDAY, 15th APRIL 1957 
TUESDAY, 16th APRIL 1957 
WEDNESDAY, 17th APRIL 1957 
THURSDAY, 18th APRIL 1957 
TUESDAY, 23rd APRIL 1957 
WEDNESDAY, 24th APRIL 1957 
MONDAY, 29th APRIL 1957 
MONDAY, 6th MAY 1957 
TUESDAY, 7th MAY 1957 
WEDNESDAY, 8th MAY 1957 
MONDAY, 20th MAY 1957 
COPY OF HIS HONOUR'S NOTES

Received 26/-
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No. 26 In-Ill*

Judgment of McLelland, J. court of New 
HIS HONOUR : This suit arises out of a lease of certain land situated in its
at Wynyard Railway Station, being partly under the Real Property Act 
and partly under Old System title granted by the plaintiff on the 26th 
June, 1941, to Rachel Gardiner and Permanent Trustee Company of. j?|ment' Of 
NTew South Wales Limited, which lease was on the 24th February, 1943, McLelland J., 
with the consent of the plaintiff transferred and assigned to the defen- Februarv 
dant, the defendant covenanting, inter alia, that any and every cove- 1958 

10 nant, condition, proviso, stipulation and agreement of the lease to be 
performed or observed by the lessee should be binding upon it as fully 
and effectually as in the lease set forth.

The lease is Exhibit "A".
The plaintiff is a body corporate and is the successor in title to 

and the office of an earlier body corporate.
I shall for convenience, except when some other reference is 

expedient, refer to both the corporations and their respective agents 
as the plaintiff.

The land on the surface covers an area lying between George Street 
20 ftfld Wynyard Lane, having frontages of about 14S feet to (Jeorge Street 

and to Wynyard Lane with a depth of about 91 feet, and an area lying 
between Wynyard Lane and Carrington Street, having a frontage of 
about 173 feet to Wynyard Lane and to Carrington Street with a depth 
of about 91 feet.

On the surface the land, therefore, goes through from George 
Street to Carrington Street but is divided by Wynyard Lane which 
is 20 feet wide.

Carrington Street is at a higher level than George Street being 
approximately two stories higher.

30 Underneath the land at the George Street frontage a subway 
enters from Hunter Street and the level at which this subway enters 
the land has been referred to as the Hunter Street level.

From the entrance at George Street, the subway proceeds in two 
passages through the land.

The Carrington Street boundary of the land beneath the surface is 
east of the entrances to Wynyard Railway Station itself. On the 
George Street level two passages enter from George Street and pro­ 
ceed on a ramp which slopes down to the railway station, each passage 
being 25 feet wide, being splayed out at the George Street entrance. 

40 These two passages represent the principal entrance from George 
Street to the railway station for members of the public and are 
exceedingly busy thoroughfares.

The lease arose out of a tender made by Mr M. McFadden, a 
solicitor, on the 6th April, 1927, which was accepted by the plaintiff 
some months later.
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intke At this time the plaintiff wa.s engaged in completing the under- 
Courtpr0f tNew 8'round railway and the railway station at Wynyard and the land in 
South Wales question, together with other land, had been resumed for railway

EguiMle Purposes.

, unsc ictwn. ^ large body of evidence relating to transactions and negotiations 
NO. 26. between Mr McFadden and a Mr Grardiner (for whom he was a trus- 

MoMandJ. ^ee ) an(^ theiv respective agents on the one hand and the plaintiff on 
nth the other which took place prior to the execution of the lease was 

1958—y> tendered on behalf of the plaintiff. To this evidence the defendant 
continued, objected, not on matters of form such as the proof of the posting and 10 

	receipt of letters and such like, but on matters of substance.
I took the course of admitting the evidence without passing judg­ 

ment on its admissibility or relevance as this appeared to me to be 
the only practical course in the circumstances, particularly since the 
question was raised in the suit of the reasonableness of the plaintiff in 
refusing to approve of certain plans submitted to it on behalf of the 
defendant.

It will be convenient, to set out tlie Facts appearing from this and 
from the other evidence in the suit without, at this stage, adverting to 
their admissibility or effect but which may possibly be relevant. 20

They emerge principally from a mass of documents, but T think I 
have gleaned all the facts which may possibly be relevant.

On the 6th April, 191*7, Mr McFadden sent in his tender in the 
following terms:—

"TO THE RAILWAY COMMISSIONERS FOR NEW SOTTH
WALES.

1, MATTHEW MoFADDEN of No. 90 Belmore Road Ramhvick 
do hereby tender Eighteen thousand five hundred pounds (£18500) per 
annum for the lease of certain lands described in the schedule hereunto 
annexed for the period of 60 years commencing from a date to be sub- 39 
sequently decided but not to be earlier than 1st January 1929 in accord­ 
ance with and subject to the Specification and Terms and Conditions 
annexed hereto and marked 'A'.

1 enclose herewith a Bank Cheque Bank Draft Post Office Money 
Order or Cash for the sum of Fifteen thousand pounds (£15,000) which 
sum shall be returned to me if this tender is unsuccessful but such sum 
shall be forfeited to the Railway Commissioners if the said tender be 
withdrawn after it has been opened whether the said tender has been 
accepted or not. If a successful tenderer 1 hereby agree that such 
sum shall be forfeited to the Commissioners if I fail to execute and 40 
deliver to them within twenty-eight days after being requested so to 
do a counterpart agreement and/or lease embodying the Specification 
Terms and Conditions of the Tender and Acceptance. I also agree to 
pay the Commissioners' legal costs and expenses incurred in and about
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the preparation and execution of the said agreement and/or lease and in tht. 
also all stamp duties chargeable. Upon completion of the counter- 
part agreement and/or lease the sum deposited as aforesaid shall be South Wales 
held by the Commissioners as security for the due performance and Equitable 
observance by me of the said Specification Terms and Conditions until Jurisdiction. 
the building is certified by the Commissioners as satisfactorily com- ^o. 20. 
pleted when Five thousand pounds (€5,000) shall be credited to the Judgment of 
Lessee's rent account, and Ten thousand pounds (f 10,000) shall become ° '' 
the property of the Lessors as a bonus to them on the transaction.

10 DATED at Sydney this sixth day of April in the year of Our Lord 
one thousand nine hundred and twenty-seven.

M. McFADDEN."
''SPECIFICATION A3D TKI!.\1S AND CoXDITIOKh OF SALE. 'A'.

The property will be leased in one line and for a term of sixty 
years.

The date of commencement of the said term of 60 years will be 
subsequently decided but will not be earlier than 1st January 1929.

The land was acquired for the purposes of the Commissioners and 
the Commissioners will lease same by virtue of the provisions of the 

20 Government Railways Act 1!)12 as amended. Xo other particulars or 
abstract of title shall be required by the Tenderer, nor shall any objec­ 
tion be taken to the Commissioners' title or to their power to lease the 
land, which the Tenderer shall assume was duly acquired and is now 
vested in the ('ommissioncrs in fee.

The lease will be subject to a rental of not less than Fifteen thou­ 
sand |)uunds (Kl5,000) per annum, which shall be paid by quarterly 
instalments in advance, and the payment of a bonus after acceptance 
of tender, of Ten thousand pounds (f 10,000) (the latter to be deducted 
by the Commissioners from the sum of Fifteen thousand pounds 

30 ({1.1,000), whieh is to be lodged with the tender).
The lease shall also he subject to the following additional terms 

and conditions:—
Kvery tenderer shall make his tender according to and upon the 

forms provided by the vendors (bein% form of tender and this form 
oi" Specification and terms and conditions) and shall lodge same (duly 
signed and or executed) together with a deposit to the value of Fifteen 
thousand pounds (215,000) at the omce of the Railway Commissioners 
for New South Wales, bridge Street, Sydney, not later than noon on 
Wednesday h'th April, ]927.

40 ^n the event of the tender being accepted the Commissioners may 
retain the deposit as such until the lease has been duly completed and 
charges paid as hereinafter provided and until the Commissioners duly 
certify that the building to be erected by the Lessee has been satis 
I'actorily completed, when the sum of Five thousand pounds (f5,000)
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in the shall be transferred to the credit of the Lessee's rent account and Ten 
'sew thousand pounds (£10,000) shall be paid into Consolidated Revenue as 

South Wales a bonus.
ill its

Equitable The tenderer shall be deemed to have lodged his tender after inspcc-
__w ' tiou of the premises, and with a full knowledge of the actual condition

j tte°' 26> f thereof and of the Commissioners' intention in regard thereto. Should
McLeiiand J., any wall lie a party wall the Tenderer shall make no objection on that

nth account.
t ebruary,
continued Without prejudice it is the intention of the Commissioners to clear

away all existing buildings and to excavate the sites to a. certain depth 10 
with due regard, however, to adjoining (private) property, and such 
excavation is expected to provide ample basement and sub-basement 
space as indicated on plans attached.

Through the lauds the Commissioners will construct a flat tube 
passage having a floor and roof both tarried on piers and leading from 
about the level of George Street and into the Wynyard Square Railway 
Station and appurtenances. The lessee may use such passageway within 
his curtilages and have access thereto from lifts, shops and offices, but 
such passage shall always remain under the control of the Commis­ 
sioners, Avlio may close same or any part as to them may seem necessary. 20

Should the Commissioners at any time notify the Lessee that they 
consider it necessary for him to render the tube passage immune from 
fire, the lessee shall forthwith provide suitable isolating doors, shutters 
or other satisfactory protection to passengers.

The lessee may subject to the requirements of the Commissioners 
also use all space above and below such tube passage consistent with the 
safety thereof, but the Commissioners at all times reserve the right 
to build and use such tube passage to a width of 50 feet clear in the 
narroAvest part, and have access to inspect, maintain, amend, effect such 
widening and or improve such passage and the parts thereof. 30

In the event of the Commissioner so deciding at any time the lessee 
shall allow the construction use and maintenance of a tube passage 
diverging from the aforesaid tube passage and leading therefrom across 
under George Street.

The Commissioners reserve the right to require the lessee at any 
time to provide forthwith suitable space (probably on Carringtou Street 
front only) for goods lift down to any required Railway level and also 
for ventilating shafts or areas necessary for the Commissioners' 
premises adjoining and such premises shall have means of access of a 
reasonable character to the building to be erected on the subject lauds. 40

AVithout prejudice reasonable effort will be made by the Commis­ 
sioners in exercising any reservations herein to meet the wishes of the 
Lessee.
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The Commissioners will not subject to their requirements for and in the 
about the tube passage prevent the lessee exercising any opportunity 
that may exist to use for interconnection any intervening space under South Wales 
Wynyard Lane, nor any space above a satisfactory height over such Egui^Me, 
lane; but the Commissioners' said requirements in regard to the tube Jurisdiction. 
passage shall be paramount. NoT^e.

The accepted tenderer shall complete the lease within fourteen days
of delivery of the particulars. nth

February,
Among the covenants to be included in the lease will be the follow- 1958—

] Q [nlr . _ continued.

The lessee shall erect upon the land within two (2) years from date 
of commencement of lease a building of not less value than One hundred 
and fifty thousand pounds (£150,000) and in accordance with plans and 
specifications to be approved by the Railway Commissioners, the Sydney 
Municipal Council, the Fire Commissioners, and any other public autho­ 
rity thereto authorised and such building shall be erected and main­ 
tained to their satisfaction and in accordance with the lawful require­ 
ments ordinances regulations and by-laws of the said Council and such 
building and all fencing and other appurtenances shall be of such design 

20 and construction as shall be deemed by competent authority to be appli­ 
cable to the premises and the locality.

The Lessee will covenant with the Commissioners to observe and 
fulfil the requirements of all Acts of Parliament rules, regulations, by­ 
laws and ordinances and requisitions thereunder and whether applying 
to the lessor or the lessee in the same manner as though the land were 
privately owned.

And to pay in full all rates, taxes, fees, charges, impositions, assess­
ments and outgoings whatsoever which are at the commencement of
the term or may at any time thereafter be levied or imposed upon the

30 premises or upon the Commissioners or lessee or on account of the
existence of a liquor license in respect thereof.

And to pay the rent; to repair; to insure in the joint names of the 
Commissioners and himself; that the Commissioners may enter and 
view the state of repair; that the Lessee will repair according to notice; 
that he will not assign without leave, that he will leave the premises 
in good repair. Proviso for re-entry by the Commissioners on non­ 
payment of rent or non-performance of covenants. Any other usual 
lease-hold conditions of the Commissioners will also apply.

The terms and conditions will be embodied in a lease to be prepared 
40 by the Solicitor for Railways, and the Lessee shall pay all the usual 

costs and charges of the Solicitor for Railways in such connection, and 
upon such being done and the building being satisfactorily erected the 
aforesaid deposit shall be divided and credited Five thousand pounds 
(£5,000) to the Lessee's rent account and Ten thousand pounds 
(£10,000) to Consolidated Revenue as hereinbefore provided.
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the The lessee shall have no power to debar the Commissioners and/or 
tllĉ r nominees using as they think fit any part of Wynyard Square 

Waks Railway Station and the approaches thereto or the appurtenances

Newsvending and bookstall rights are reserved to the Commis- 
Xo. 26. sioners.

J udgment 01

M°L iithdJ ' 11ue Commissioners reserve the right to carry any telegraph or 
February, other wires or cables, drains or pipes across the land and also to erect 
continued ail<^ u^v <-' unrestricted view and access to Railway notice boards, but

the Lessee shall have the right to display within or upon the leased 10 
premises approved signs relative to his trade and business.

The lessee at the expiration of the term shall close to the satis­ 
faction of the Commissioners any means of access from premises not 
owned by the Commissioners.

If the tenderer shall not pay his deposit as hereinbefore provided 
or shall fail to comply with these conditions or the covenants and 
conditions of the agreement and/or lease or any of them, all moneys 
which he shall have paid on account of his tender shall be absolutely 
forfeited to the Railway Commissioners, who shall be at liberty to 
rescind this contract or at their option to sue the tenderer for breach 20 
of contract or to resell the lease for the said term in any manner and 
upon such terms and conditions as they may think proper, and it shall 
not be necessary for the Commissioners previously to tender any lease 
of the premises or any part thereof to the tenderer nor to give notice 
of any such re-sale, and all loss and expenses consequent upon such re­ 
sale or upon any abortive attempt to re-sell or upon the tenderer making 
default under this contract and all damages which the Commissioners 
may sustain thereby shall be recoverable by them fronj the tenderer 
as and for liquidated damages, nor shall the tenderer so making 
default be entitled to any profit (if any) on the re-sale of the lease 30 
purchased by him.

The Commissioners shall not be bound to accept the highest or any 
tender but a rental higher than Fifteen thousand pounds (£15,000) per 
annum will be a favourable condition.

In the event of any dispute arising as to the meaning or effect of 
any of the terms and conditions herein contained or referred to or in 
any other relative matter, the decision of the Railway Commissioners 
shall be final and conclusive."

On the 27th July, 1!>'-7, the plaintiff wrote to Mr McFadden in 
the following terms : — ^Q

"Referring to your letter of the 25th June, 1927, on the sub­ 
ject of the tender submitted by you under date 6th April, 1927, 
for the lease of certain railway lands, situate in Wynyard Square.
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Sydney, as described in the Schedule annexed to such tender, in the 
for the period of 60 years, commencing from a date to be cofrf 
subsequently decided, but not earlier than the 1st January, 1929, South Wales 
I desire to inform you that the Commissioners are of the opinion Equitable 
that the rental value of the lease in question should not be less Jurisdiction. 
than £19,200/-/- por annum for the irhole term, and provided No 26 
you are prepared to amend your tender to this figure the Com- Judgment of 
missioners will accept same—the lease to be in strict accordance c \i^ '' 
with, and subject to, the Specification and Terms and Conditions February, 

10 submitted with your tender. continued.
On receipt of an intimation from you (which should be for­ 

warded not later than the 10th August proximo), agreeing to 
amend your tender as indicated above, and enclosing cheque for 
£15,000/-/-, the papers will be forwarded to the Solicitor for 
Railways for preparation of necessary documents."

On the 1st August, 1927, Mr McFadden wrote to the plaintiff 
in the following terms:—

"I am in receipt of yours of the 27th inst. and am
agreeable to the rental value therein mentioned viz., £19,200

20 being charged for the whole term of the lease of 60 years herein,
subject however to the payment of the deposit of £15,000 as
follows:—

The sum of £5000 to be paid by 10th August, £5000 six months 
thereafter, and £5000 by August 10th 1928.

My reason for requiring this accommodation in the matter of 
the payment of deposit is largely due to the fact that the original 
deposit has been diverted into other channels, and it would be 
most inconvenient to alter my present arrangements.

As the lease itself will not commence to operate before 1st 
30 January, 1929, the whole deposit on my suggested payments 

would be in hand some five months or thereabouts prior to such 
commencement.''

On the 10th August, 1927, the plaintiff wrote to Mr McFadden 
in the following terms:—

"Eeferring to your letter of the 1st instant, in reply to mine 
of the 27th ultimo, in connection with your tender for the lease 
of certain railway lands situate in Wynyard Square, Sydney, 
and intimating that you are prepared to amend your tender 
to provide for payment of rental at the rate of £19,200/-/- per 

40 year for the full term of the lease of 60 years, subject to your 
being permitted to make payment of the £15,000/-/- deposit 
necessary, in instalments as set out in your letter, I am directed 
to inform you that the matter has had consideration.
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in the In reply I have to state that the Commissioners are unable
New *° agree to your request to make payment of the £15,000/-/-

South Wales deposit on the basis indicated in your letter. They are, however,
Equitable agreeable to your making payment of this sum as follows:—

Jurisdiction. Firgt instalment of £5,000/-/- immediately; the second
NO. 26. instalment of a like amount to be paid within six (6) months

cMami j"f from the date of payment of the first instalment, and to bear
nth ' interest at the rate of 5%%, commencing on the 1st day after

February, the initiai instalment has been paid; final £5,000/-/- to be
continued. paid on the 10th August, 1928. 10

Alternatively the Commissioners are agreeable to your making 
payment of £10,000/-/- forthwith, and balance (£5,000/-/-) on 
the 10th August, 1928.

Awaiting your reply."
On the 10th August, 1927, Mr McFadden wrote to the plaintiff 

in the following terms:—
"I am in receipt of yours of the 10th instant herein, and beg 

to intimate my acceptance of your variation of my tender on the 
lines therein indicated.

Enclosed please find cheque for £5000 as agreed." 20
The man behind Mr McFadden was a Mr R. Gardiner, a well- 

known city business man. When this fact was first made known to 
the plaintiff in 1931 the plaintiff refused to recognise Mr Gardiner in 
the matter but on the 22nd November, 1933, Mr McFadden wrote to 
the plaintiff:—

"In this matter I have at all times been acting as Trustee 
for Mr Eeuben Gardiner although the tender and subsequent 
agreements were made in my name with the Commissioner for 
Railways.

I would be pleased if you would advise me whether you will 30 
consent to my release from all liability in connection with such 
agreements and to fresh agreements with you being prepared 
in the name of another nominee of Mr Gardiner."

and on the llth December, 1933, the plaintiff wrote to Mr McFadden:—
"In reply to your letter of the 22nd November, 1933, I wish

to advise that the Commissioner has no objection to assignment
of the above-mentioned lease to Mr Reuben Gardiner, or his
approved nominee."

In matters arising after that date, I shall refer to the person who 
made the tender as Mr Gardiner. 40

Mr Gardiner employed an architect, Mr Innes Kerr, to design 
a hotel building for the site and to prepare the architectural plans which 
were necessary. He also employed a firm of structural engineers,
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Messrs. James Bell & Co. Pty. Limited, to prepare the engineering in the 
details and drawings. The engineer who actually did the work was
a Mr Stanley. South Wales

in its
Mr Gardiner also employed an estate agent named Roberts to Equitable 

deal on his behalf with matters relating to the project. Jurisdiction.
The principal scheme in mind when Mr Innes Kerr prepared his Ju^ê ' of 

plans was the construction of a large hotel on the site to the full McLeiiand J., 
building limit utilising virtually the whole of the site with shops along- FekJ*ary 
side the ramps, and the architect and the engineer prepared plans and 1958— ' 

10 details to that end. The hotel was to be called the Plaza Hotel. continued.
On the 3rd December, 1928, Mr McFadden advised that detailed 

plans were nearing completion.
On the 29th December, 1928, Mr McFadden wrote to the plaintiff 

a letter which contained the following paragraph : —
". . . . I have to advise .... that regarding the excavation 
and steel construction on the above site to suit the requirements 
for erecting the building as now contemplated, it will be most 
essential to have good basement depth independent of that now 
proposed by the Commissioners, and the fact of the site being 

20 leasehold and eventually becoming the property of the Railway 
Commissioners, I ask that they excavate to the required depth 
to give ample basement accommodation for the Ramp Shops 
and Hotel, also to erect the necessary steel construction and 
concrete floors up to and including the roof over the whole area 
to Ramp Roof Height thereby relieving me of some portion of 
the capital expenditure which it is estimated will cost approxi­ 
mately £600,000 exclusive of furnishings."

It was apparently realised, as was stated on more than one occasion, 
that it would have been impracticable for the plaintiff and Mr 

30 McFadden to carry out independently their separate responsibilities 
of construction and the Railway Commissioner agreed to excavate as 
required and to construct a building to ramp roof height on the George 
Street entrance but not including finished floors, walls, and ceilings.

Some of the work was recognised as being properly chargeable 
against the plaintiff and some against Mr McFadden. It was estimated 
at the time that the work in question would involve a charge of £62,257 
against the plaintiff and £104,536 against Mr McFadden.

The cost of the work attributable to Mr McFadden was to be 
borne by the plaintiff and Mr McFadden was to pay &\% thereon by 

40 way of additional rent.
Mr McFadden also agreed to increase his guarantee deposit to 

£10,000.
Prior to the 26th September, 1929, preliminary plans had been 

handed to the plaintiff.
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in the In 1930, of course, the affects of the Economic Depression first 
yew manifested themselves and the worst of such affects continued through 

South Wales until 1935-1936 and perhaps later. It is necessary to consider the course 
Equitable °^ events in the light of such affects.

jurisdiction. By the 15th February> 1930) the ma;j or excavation work had been 
NO. 26. completed.

Judgment of
McLnthd J-> By tlle 27th Au§ust > 1930 > tnere had been delivered to the plaintiff 

February, by or on behalf of Mr McFadden:
continued. Preliminary architectural drawings from basement to the roof;

Preliminary engineering drawings from Wyiiyard Lane level 10 
to the roof;

Architectural working drawings from basement to third floor; 
Detailed drawings of structural design to the third floor; 
Preliminary structural drawings from the third floor to roof

level; 
Architects' specifications.

These plans were for a building to be built over Wynyard Lane of a 
large hotel covering the whole site extending up to the full permissible 
limit of 150 feet on the George Street frontage and up to 120 feet on 
the Carrington Street frontage. 20

These plans and any alterations or additions thereto I shall for 
convenience call the Innes Kerr plans.

On the 24th October, 1930, the Chief Civil Engineer of the plaintiff 
wrote to Mr McFadden:

"I am directed to inform you that the Railway Commissioners 
consider the general design of the Hotel 'Plaza' building to be 
satisfactory and, provided that certain requisitions are fulfilled, 
see no reason why the plans should not be submitted to the City 
Council and other statutory bodies for their approval."

Certain requisitions were then set out. 30 
The plans were apparently amended to meet these requisitions.
On the 23rd January, 1931, the plans were deposited with the City 

Council. On the 8th May, 1931, the plans were disapproved by the 
City Council on the ground that the building was being built over Wyn­ 
yard Lane. On the 15th July, 1931, Mr McFadden suggested that the 
plaintiff resume Wynyard Lane.

On the 2nd October, 1931, Mr McFadden by letter indicated that, 
if he could not build over Wynyard Lane, a new set of plans would be 
necessary and suggested that the existing plans in so far as the base­ 
ment and sub-basement were concerned be accepted as the basis for 40 
the construction of the building.
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On the 1st March, 1932, difficulties existing were discussed between in the 
the parties and a note made by the estate agent of the plaintiff at the court*™/™*! 
time indicates that discussions took place on various matters and his South Waits 
note includes the following: Equilabie

"Capital Involved. It was admitted that both parties would find Jurisdiction.
it difficult to negotiate for funds necessary to execute the several NO. 26.
liabilities which were approximately estimated at £100,000/-/- figment of
£ i i. j. j. i £ rrinn nrvA / / McLelland J.,for each party, or a total of £200,000/-/-. nth
Erection of Building. It was also agreed that it was not economi- iggg3^' 

10 cal at the present time to consider any expenditure as above, in continued. 
view of the difficulty of obtaining adequate returns in rentals 
etc.
Sectional occupation. This was desired to be permitted, but 
departmentally no objection was apparent to such occupation 
in approved locations and agreed conditions, yet it was prefer­ 
able that the same should be under separate agreements, as com­ 
pleted in the particular instance of the 'Plaza Hotel'.
Moratorium. All parties appeared to be unanimous that subject 
to the above limitations a Moratorium should be agreed upon, 

20 provided that conditions thereof contained no 'surprise', and 
was equitable to both parties.

I would add that Mr Bretnall concurs in the above conclu­ 
sions ..." 

(Mr Bretnall was at that time the Chief Commissioner for Eailways.)
About March, 1932, Wynyard Station was opened for railway 

traffic.
On the 23rd June, 1932, the plaintiff wrote to Mr McFadden asking 

whether, since approval by the City Council of the plans providing for 
a building over Wynyard Lane had not been obtained, did he require 

30 the sub-structural work to be as expensive, to which Mr McFadden 
replied on the 29th June, 1932: Will you please proceed with the work 
"according to the Plans and Computations delivered to your Depart­ 
ment in July, 1930".

On the 12th August, 1932, Mr McFadden wrote to the estate agent 
of the plaintiff:

'' The only alterations to the plans will be the elimination of the 
portion crossing the lane, otherwise they remain unaltered, even 
though the sub-structure may be heavier—I am prepared to have 
it so."

40 On the 17th October, 1932, the solicitor for Mr McFadden wrote 
to the plaintiff suggesting a moratorium of five years.

On the 7th December, 1932, the Secretary of the plaintiff wrote 
a letter to the Minister for Transport which contained the following 
paragraph:
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in the "The Department has to assume the lessee's ability to carry 
ou^ ^s Par^ °^ ^e bargain. It is known that he has good finan- 

South Wales cial backing, but to this the Department has no recourse and 
Editable would therefore face this risk, viz., that if upon completion of 

jurisdiction. our obligation by expenditure of the sums above referred to the 
NoTTe. lessee's principals decided not to go on, a judgment in favour of 

judgment of the Department for specific performance or damage would be 
MoL nthd J ' fruitless against the lessee himself. The Department would need 

February, to interest another investor in the property, and in this connec-
tion the Departmental engineers are of opinion that the founda- 10 
tion work above referred to would be adaptable for practically 
any use to which the site might be put.''

The foundation work here referred to was the excavations and the 
steel construction to ramp level.

On the 30th December, 1932, the solicitor for Mr McFadden wrote 
to the estate agent of the plaintiff that the plans already submitted 
would be the plans for which the sub-structure would be designed.

In March, 1933, some amended drawings were left by Mr Roberts 
with the estate agent of the plaintiff, being preliminary architectural 
drawing to Wynyard Lane level. The plaintiff requested structural 20 
drawings from Mr Stanley. By the 8th June, 1933, the parties had 
agreed on terms for payment of interest on the amount expended and 
to be expended by the plaintiff on excavation and sub-structure and 
for the recommencement of work on the sub-structure. The work was 
to be completed within one year and four months from the date of 
recommencement.

On the 6th February, 1934, Messrs. Roberts, Innes-Kerr and Stan­ 
ley handed to the plaintiff a first batch of amended plans of the pro­ 
posed Plaza Hotel with engineering calculations to the Chief Civil 
Engineer of the plaintiff. These plans were of floors up to the George 39 
Street level.

Similar information regarding the floors at a higher level was 
promised and also architects' plans and sections.

On the 2nd March, 1934, the plaintiff wrote to Mr Roberts asking 
for further information and plans to enable work on the sub-structure 
to proceed.

On the 14th June, 1934, Mr Innes-Kerr handed to the plaintiff cer­ 
tain calculations for the second and third floors.

On the 10th July, 1934, it was agreed that the time for completing 
the work on the sub-structure should be extended to one year ten months 40 
from the date of recommencement.

On the 7th November, 1934, although the whole of the plans were 
not to hand, sufficient were to hand to enable a commencement to be 
made of fabrication of steel work on the 26th November, 1934.
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On the 7th January, 1935, the actual erection of structural steel in the 
work on the site was expected by the plaintiff to begin at the end of court 
February, 1935, such day to be taken as the date of the recommencement South Wales
(..,', ' in its 

Ot the WOrk. Equitable

One of the buildings resumed on the area in question by the plaintiff J"mAcfeon - 
was a hotel known as the "Cafe Francais" Hotel and it seems that the NO. 26. 
plaintiff obtained the licence for this hotel as well as the land on which jJ^'Jiand j 
it was situated. At some time shortly after the acceptance of the ten- nth 
der, the benefit of the licence appears to have been made available to ^958—^ 

10 Mr McFadden or those he represented and applications were from time continued. 
to time made to the Licensing Court for the approval of temporary 
arrangements in relation to temorary premises, temporary bars and so 
on.

By reason of action taken before the Licensing Court, the lack of 
completion of the sub-structure, which prevented the erection of build­ 
ings necessary to meet licensing requirements, was a considerable em­ 
barrassment.

During 1935 certain details relating to columns and column loads 
were supplied to the plaintiff. In February, 1936, it was agreed that 

20 the time for completion of the work on the sub-structure should be 
extended to twenty-four months from the date of recommencement.

Prior to October, 1936, Mr Gardiner had been let into occupation 
of some small areas and had applied for further space to be made avail­ 
able to him.

On the 23rd October, 1936, four written tenancy agreements provid­ 
ing for weekly tenancies at weekly rents were entered into between 
the plaintiff and Mr Gardiner in respect of four areas occupied or to 
be occupied by him.

On the 13th November, 1936, two other similar tenancy agreements 
30 were entered into for two other areas and four other similar agree­ 

ments were entered into respectively on the 8th December, 1936, 23rd 
December, 1936, 12th November, 1937 and 18th January, 1938. Each of 
the agreements contained a clause in the following terms:—

'' This agreement is separate from and independent of the ten­ 
der of one Matthew McFadden for a building lease of certain land 
upon part of which the premises the subject of this agreement 
are situate which said tender is not nor is it to be deemed by 
this agreement to be in any wise affected."

By the 13th March, 1937, the work of the plaintiff on the sub-struc- 
40 ture was virtually completed.

On the 25th May, 1937, the plaintiff wrote to Mr Roberts a letter 
forwarding statement of expenditure on behalf of Mr Gardiner up to 
the cost period ended on the 13th March, 1937. The total figure shown 
was £108,105 Is. 5d.
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in the The final cost of the work on the sub-structure including excavating 
nNew anc^ columns which was recognised as properly charged against Mr 

South Wales Gardiner was £109,134 5s. 9d. This is the same sum as is mentioned 
Equitable in Covenant 3 of the lease which was subsequently executed. 

jurisdiction. r^g couimns wnich were constructed by the plaintiff under the 
NO. 26. arrangement were columns which were necessary to enable a building 

ScLaUand J* according *° ^e designs supplied by Mr G-ardiner 's experts to be con- 
nth ' structed on the land and were placed on the sites and according to the 

^1958—y> s^zes designed by such experts and approved by the plaintiff and in 
continued, accordance with the requirements of the plaintiff in connection with 10 

such approval. Some of the said columns support concrete ramps lead­ 
ing to the railway station but in some instances much smaller and in 
other instances smaller columns would have been sufficient for such 
purpose alone.

The plaintiff placed a good deal of reliance on the facts relating to 
these columns which in the evidence were for convenience referred to 
by numbers and the evidence relating to them supports the following 
conclusions:

The line of columns numbered 51, 76, 96 and 112 and the line of 
columns numbered 57, 81, 101 and 119 were constructed of a size and 20 
strength sufficient to permit the development above the fourth floor 
from the George Street level of the demised area lying between the 
lines of columns 51, 53, 55 and 57 and the line of columns 112, 114, 117 
and 119 to the full city building limits measured from George Street 
but as qualified by ordinances relating to light and air.

The design of the building originally proposed involved stopping 
columns numbered 53, 55, 78, 79, 98, 99, 114 and 117 at the floor level 
of the ballroom shown in the said design of the said building.

This was because the ballroom was to be without columns and the 
building was to be continued with internal columns above the ball- 30 
room.

As a result of such design and of the plaintiff building inter alia, 
columns numbered 53, 55, 78, 79, 98, 99, 114 and 117 according to such 
design, such columns are unable to carry any greater load than they 
were designed to carry in the said design except to the extent that 
greater loads are now permissible under altered and liberalised build­ 
ing ordinances and regulations.

In short, there was a central core of relatively weak columns and 
to the east and west some very large strong columns particularly two 
on the west. 40

The design of such building contemplated trussing or some other 
heavy form of construction over the said two lines of columns from 53 
to 114 inclusive and from 55 to 117 inclusive for development above 
the fourth floor from the George Street level of the demised area lying 
between the line of columns 51 to 57 inclusive and 112 to 119 inclusive.
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The line of columns 51, 76, 90 and 112 and the line of columns 57, /» the 
81, 101 and 119 were built of greater size and strength than they other- Co t̂p 
wise might have been in order to carry the loading to be imposed upon South Wales 
them by the said trusses over the line of columns 53, 57, 98 and 114 ^itabie 
and columns 55, 79, 99 and 117 in the development of the area between Jurisdiction. 
the line of columns 51, 53, 55 and 57 and the line of columns 112, 114, No _ 26
117 and 119. Judgment of

McLelland J. ,
Despite the nature of the particular design of the columns, I am 

satisfied, as were the plaintiff's engineers, that the foundation work 1958—' 
10 including the columns was adaptable for practically any use to which continued. 

the site might be put.
During 1937 it appears that the plaintiff had submitted a draft lease 

to Mr Schrader, Mr Gardiner's solicitor, and that various alterations 
were being suggested on behalf of Mr Gardiner and claims made for 
allowances by reason of changes in the situation since the tender was 
made and for reduced rent and similar matters. These negotiations 
continued in 1938.

Up to the 15th January, 1938, all payments of interest which were 
due by him up to that date had been paid by Mr Gardiner to the 

20 plaintiff.
On the 25th March, 1938, Mr Innes-Kerr wrote to the plaintiff 

forwarding plans of additional floors "proposed to be erected at the 
Plaza Hotel". These included a George Street elevation, certain 
sections, a roof plan and plans of the fourth floor, the third floor and 
part of the third floor.

On the 17th June, 1938, amended plans were lodged by Mr Innes- 
Kerr with the plaintiff. These were similar to the plans lodged on 
the 25th March, 1938, and had been altered to meet some minor objec­ 
tions to the earlier ones. It is quite clear that these plans indicated 

30 an intention, at any rate in the first instance, to build a building with 
two additional floors starting at the level over Wyuyard Lane consist­ 
ing principally of bedrooms and roofed over.

About the middle of the year Mr Gardiner was to have a conference 
with the plaintiff relating to the negotiations.

Prior to July, 1938, strong representations had been made to the 
Government on behalf of public bodies in connection with the entrances 
to the licensed premises from the Railway ramp at TVynyard Station 
and the display there of liquor advertisements.

On the 10th June, 1938, the Premier wrote to the Minister for 
40 Transport : —

"I think that the whole position with regard to the leasing of 
the property now known as the Plaza Hotel might well be 
reviewed by Ministers and 1 should be glad if you would

*38632— 16
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In the kindly have prepared and forwarded to me a memorandum deal- 
with the position.''

in its On the 17th August, 1938, Mr Gardiner wrote to the plaintiff in 
reference to the conference to be held by him. This letter was written 
on a letterhead containing a picture of a completed hotel with five floors 

Judgment' of below the street level in George Street and with the words across it 
McLeUand j., "under construction". Letters on this letterhead were sometimes there- 

February after used by Mr Gardiner and by Mr Koberts in their correspondence.
continued. On the 18th August, 1938, the plaintiff wrote to Mr. Gardiner a

letter in the following terms:— 10
"I have to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 17th 

instant regarding your request for an interview with the Com­ 
missioner in connection with the lease of the Plaza Hotel.

In reply, I am directed to say that the matter of the lease is 
under consideration by the Government in connection, it is under­ 
stood, with certain representations which have been made to it, 
and until the departmental papers are returned the Com­ 
missioner is not in a position to see you."

On the 8th September, 1938, the solicitors for Mr Gardiner wrote 
to the plaintiff complaining of '' unwarranted delay'' in finalising the 20 
lease—

"As you are aware, there is but one matter outstanding 
between the parties yet we were recently advised that the whole 
matter had now been referred to the Honourable The Premier."

On the 18th October, 1938, the Minister for Transport gave direc­ 
tions to the plaintiff to give effect to certain recommendations approved 
by Cabinet. These recommendations were in the following terms:—

" (1) That the original intention to use the portion of the premises 
abutting on the tube frontages as shops must be strictly 
adhered to; that under no circumstances will they be 30 
permitted to be used for the purpose of liquor bars or be 
allowed to form part of the licensed premises;

(2) That no entrance to the licensed premises will be permitted 
from the passage-ways;

(3) That no liquor advertisements will be permitted in the tube 
passage-ways;

(4) That shops fronting the tube passage-ways must not be used 
for liquor displays;

(5) That the use of the shops fronting the tube passage-ways 
must be confined to businesses not engaged in the manufac- 40 
ture or cooking of foodstuffs; and
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(6) That the Commissioner retain to himself full power to 
effectively control such shops and prevent the creation of 
offensive odours.'' South Wales

in its
These recommendations were submitted to Mr Gardiner's Equitable

Solicitors. Jurisdiction.

Mr Gardiner's solicitors did not agree with the terms as stated j^^nt' of 
and made counter proposals. McLeiiandJ,,

On the 31st January, 1939, the Minister for Transport wrote to the February, 
plaintiff informing him that the Government could in no way amend 

10 the recommendations numbered 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 and that the Government 
would not agree to any lease that did not conform with those 
recommendations.

In the meantime, throughout the period of the negotiations, Mr 
Gardiner was in difficulties with the licensing authorities by reason of 
the lack of accommodation to comply with licensing requirements and 
on the 6th March, 1939, a summons was received to show cause why 
the licence should not be cancelled.

On the 17th March, 1939, Mr Gardiner gave notice of action in 
respect of a proposed suit in equity for specific performance of an 

20 agreement for lease.
On the 31st March, 1939, a conference was held between the plaintiff 

and its solicitors on the one hand and Mr Gardiner and Mr Schrader 
his solicitor and Mr Roberts on the other hand to try and solve the 
problem relating to the entrances to Wynyard Station.

On the 18th April, 1939, the Minister for Transport wrote to the 
plaintiff that the preparation of the lease could now proceed but that 
a copy of the new lease should be submitted to him before execution.

Negotiations continued between the plaintiff and the defendant
and their respective advisers concerning the terms of the lease. Ques-

30 tions were raised in relation to reduction of rent, compensation for the
splaying of passages and reduced areas made available and relating
to the payment of interest and other like matters.

On the 27th June, 1939, the solicitor for the plaintiff wrote to the 
Secretary for Railways a letter which contained the following:—

"Because the concessions approved on my report of 16.5.39 
did not have the effect of bringing about a conclusion of negotia­ 
tions, the proposed Lessee's Solicitors have been notified that 
the Commissioner no longer holds himself bound to make them."

On the 3rd July, 1939, the Licensing Court refused to renew tho 
40 licence and Mr Gardiner lodged an appeal to Quarter Sessions against 

this decision. When the appeal came on for hearing, it was stood over 
to a day to be fixed in the following year.

In September, 1939, the Second World War commenced.
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in the. On the 16th September, 1939, negotiations not having been con- 
CourtPof"New eluded, Mr Gardiner filed and served a statement of claim against the 
South Wales plaintiff claiming specific performance of an alleged agreement for

Equitable lease-

NO. 26. following terms :
Judgment of

Of ciaim the agreement was referred to in the

"By an agreement in writing made on or about the sixth day 
February, of April One thousand nine hundred and twenty-seven the Com- 
ontinued missioners agreed to grant to the plaintiff and the plaintiff

agreed to accept from the Commissioners a lease of the said 10 
lands for the term of Sixty (60) years computed from

day of at the rental of Nineteen thousand 
two hundred pounds (£19,200) per annum and otherwise upon the 
terms and conditions therein and in a plan then agreed upon 
between the Commissioners and the plaintiff move particularly 
set forth."

The fact that the day of commencement of the lease was left blank 
indicates in the circumstances an understandable simplicity of 
expression.

It highlights an obvious difficulty and it is not surprising that, 20 
amongst the defences raised, was a paragraph in the following terms :

"In further answer to the Statement of Claim I say and it is 
the fact that although there were negotiations between the said 
Railway Commissioners and one Matthew McFadden for a 
lease of the lands described in the schedule to the Statement of 
Claim the said negotiations never resulted in a concluded 
contract. In particular I say and it is the fact that no agreement 
was ever made as to the date on which the proposed lease the 
subject of the said negotiations was to commence."

If it be relevant, I am of opinion that at this stage no enforceable 30 
agreement for lease had been concluded.

On the 13th October, 1939, the National Security (Capital Issues) 
Eegulations made under the provisions of the National Security Act, 
1939, were promulgated forbidding the formation of companies, the 
increase of capital of companies and the giving of security or mort­ 
gages without the consent of the Treasurer. From time to time there­ 
after amended regulations were promulgated controlling these matters.

On the -7th March, 1940, when the equity suit came on for hearing 
in the first instance, it was stood over to enable preparations to be 
made for trial, negotiations at this stage having practically ceased. 40

On the 26th June, 1940, the solicitor for the plaintiff wrote to the 
Secretary for Railways setting out the proposed lessee's case for con­ 
sideration in connection with "compensation" and reduction of rent,
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drawing attention to the outbreak of War and the consequent obscurity in the 
of prospects from a business point of view, the possible effect of the Co^"c 
regulations on the proposed lessee and stating, amongst other things: South Wales

in its
"It is extremely improbable that any other arrangement for Equitable 
the use of the land, to be leased could be made at present, and it Junsdlctlon- 
is certain that no arrangement could be made which would offer NO. 20. 
reasonable prospects of an adequate return on the capital McifSand x 
expended on the sub-structure. I am of the opinion that it will nth 
be in the interests of the Department, so far as these can be i95™y> 

10 foreseen, to carry on with the existing arrangement and to make continued. 
liberal concessions to the proposed Lessee for assisting him in 
his part of it.
The proposed Lessee is in a dilemma. He does not see his way 
to abandoning the venture because of the amount of money he 
has already invested in it, nor does he see his way clearly to 
carrying it on successfully. He feels, however, that the attempt 
to carry on offers both to himself and to the Department the 
better prospects, and he is prepared to make the attempt if the 
Department will make to him now a substantial concession and 

20 will reasonably consider further concessions in the future, if 
circumstances make them requisite. The probability of further 
concessions being sought is indicated by statements made during 
discussions that the venture is at present being run at a loss 
because of business falling off and of reductions of rents made 
for the purpose of keeping tenants."

On the 27th June, 1940, the appeal to Quarter Sessions was suc­ 
cessful and the licence was renewed till the 30th June, 1940, and there­ 
after the Licensing Court renewed the licence till the 30th June, 1941.

Prior to the 2nd October, 1940, Mr Gardiner had apparently made
3Q an application to the Department of the Treasury pursuant to the

National Security (Capital Issues) Regulations for on that day the
Treasury wrote to the plaintiff for information. On the 9th October,
1940, the plaintiff supplied the information.

On the 18th November, 1940, the National Security (Building Con­ 
trol) Regulations were promulgated to come into operation on the 5th 
December, 1940. Inter alia, these regulations contained Regulation 4 
in the following terms:

"A person shall not, without the consent in writing of the Trea­ 
surer, apply to a building authority for a building permit in 

4Q respect of the erection or alteration of any building, the esti­ 
mated cost of which exceeds £5,000."

By the 19th December, 1940, it seems that all the terms of the 
proposed lease had been settled between the parties except a question 
relating to window displays. On that day, Mr Gardiner wrote to 
the plaintiff on the question of window displays.
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in the On the 27th December, 1940, the plaintiff wrote to Mr Gardiner 
New suggesting for his consideration whether he would rather have what 

South Wales had been already offered than a formal decision based on the tender.
Equitable On the 7th January, 1941, the plaintiff wrote to Mr Gardiner

Jurisdiction. informing nim that, with respect to the outstanding point, he had
NO. 26. decided that the lease should be prepared in accordance with the

Judgment oftfmdpr MoLeUand J., lelluer-
nth On the 8th January, 1941, Mr Gardiner wrote to the plaintiff 

I958 ŷ' informing him that he was prepared to accept the decision that the 
continued, matters dealt with in clause 20 should be prepared in accordance with 10 

the tender, but in subsequent letters showed clearly that he differed 
from the plaintiff as to what was the result of applying what was in 
the tender.

While correspondence was passing on this subject, Mr Gardiner 
died on the 5th February, 1941.

By his will he appointed his wife Eachel Gardiner sole executrix 
and she appointed Permanent Trustee Co. of N.S.W. Limited to act 
as executor with her.

Mrs Gardiner took over the management of the Plaza Hotel.
On the 19th February, 1941, Eegulation 4 of the National Security 20 

(Building Control) Regulations was amended by adding at the end 
thereof the words '' or, in the case of a hotel, £1,000.''

On the 22nd April, 1941, Regulation 4 was again amended by substi­ 
tuting the word "three" for the word "five".

By the 19th May, 1941, Mrs Gardiner had been in touch with the 
Licensing Inspector and had submitted altered plans to him in accord­ 
ance with his requirements.

Since questions of the renewal of the licence were to come up 
before the Licensing Court on the 13th June, 1941, the question of 
completion of the lease was a question of urgency. QQ

On the 3rd June, 1941, an application was made on behalf of the 
licensee under section 40 (2) of the Liquor Act for approval of plans 
and specifications for work to be done on the licensed premises.

The executors indicated that they were willing to enter into a 
lease on the terms which had been agreed upon, apparently accepting 
the plaintiff's view as to window displays and on the 6th June, 1941, 
Mr Schrader, who was acting for Mrs Gardiner, purported to approve 
of a draft agreement to execute a lease on behalf of the executors.

On the llth June, 1941, the previous Building Control Regula­ 
tions were repealed and new National Security (Building Control) 40 
Regulations were promulgated. Regulation 6 was in the following 
terms:—

"6. (1) Subject to this regulation, a person shall not, without 
the consent in writing of the Treasurer, apply to a building
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authority for a building permit in respect of the erection or in the 
alteration of any building.

(2) The last preceding sub-regulation shall not apply to in its 
an application for a building permit in respect of — juriMctim

(a) the erection of a. building for use as a dwelling-house, No 2e. 
the estimated cost of which does not exceed Three Judgment of
j i n T McLelland J..thousand pounds; or llth

(b) any alteration — 1953^' 
(i) of a building (other than a hotel, a building con- coninue • 

10 taining shop premises or a dwelling-house) where
the estimated cost thereof, together with the cost 
of any alterations of that building in respect of 
which a building permit has been granted during 
the prescribed period, does not exceed One thou­ 
sand pounds ;

(ii) of a hotel or a building containing shop premises 
where the estimated cost thereof together with 
the cost of any alterations of that hotel or build­ 
ing in respect of which a building permit has

20 been granted during the prescribed period, does
not exceed Five hundred pounds; or

(iii) of a dwelling-house where the estimated cost 
thereof, together with the cost of any alterations 
of that dwelling-house in respect of which a build­ 
ing permit has been granted during the pre­ 
scribed period, does not exceed Two hundred and 
fifty pounds.

(3) In this regulation, 'the prescribed period' means —
(a) the period commencing on the date of commencement 

„„ of these Regulations and ending on the date on which 
the application for the building permit is made ; or

(b) the period of twelve months ending on the date on 
which the application for the building permit is made, 

whichever is the shorter."
The general position in the community having regard to the state 

of the War at this stage must, of course, be remembered.
On the llth June, 1941, the solicitor for Transport wrote to the 

Acting Secretary of the defendant a letter in the following terms :
"On behalf of the Executors of the estate of the late J. E.

4Q Gardiner, Mr "W. D. Schrader, Solicitor, has sent me a set of
plans and particulars of material alterations to the Plaza Hotel
(both attached hereto) for the bedroom accommodation to be
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built on the present structure, saying that such accommodation 
w^ ^e Pai"t °f the main structure, and that up to the present 

South wai^ time authority can only be obtained to expend the sum of
in its o-i o (\(\o 11 

Equitable *1U,UUU.
Jurischchon. r^g jeage wag printed, executed by Mrs Gardiner and Permanent 

NO. 26. Trustee Co. of N.S.W. Limited and on the 26th June, 1941, was executed 
STd j* by the plaintiff.
February ^n ^le same day the plaintiff executed a permit in the following 

1958— ' terms:—
continued

"THE COMMISSIONEB FOE RAILWAYS in exercise of the 10 
power conferred upon it by section twenty-five of the Transport 
(Division of Functions) Act, 1932-1940, in respect of the parcels 
of land in the City of Sydney between George Street and Wyn- 
yard Lane and Wynyard Lane and Carrington Street respec­ 
tively which were resumed for the purposes of the construction 
of and provision of access to Wynyard Railway Station permits 
the erection making or construction of a building or part of a 
building across or under Wynyard Lane but any such building 
shall be so constructed as to leave a clear space of not less than 
twenty feet above the surface of the roadway of such lane as it 20 
has been restored and as not to impede or restrict pedestrian or 
vehicular traffic in and along such lane." 

The power to give this permission had been created by section 25
of the Transport (Division of Functions) Act, 1932, which was assented
to on the 19th November, 1932.

On the same day the executors paid to the plaintiff an amount
which included the following:—

£9,928 11s. 5d. Interest up to and including 30/6/41. 
£661 1 Is. 8d. Rent up to and including 30/6/41.

It appears that the total of the rents payable under the weekly tenan- 30 
cies had been about £8,300 a year and in addition, of course, there had 
been the obligation to pay interest at 6£ per cent, on the amount allo­ 
cated to Mr McFadden and Mr Gardiner in respect of excavations 
and sub-structure.

The following facts relating to the area of the licence were admitted 
by the defendant subject to relevance:—

"In conjunction with an Application to the Metropolitan 
Licensing Court, made the 4th February, 1929, for an increase of 
the licensed area, a plan is lodged with the papers, which plan 
shows the whole of the area of the demised premises from George 40 
Street to Carrington Street, including Wynyard Lane, in 
accordance with dimensions virtually identical to those shown 
in the Lease (Exhibit A). This plan indicated an area with a 
frontage of 90 feet to George Street coloured pink and inscribed
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'Existing Hotel'. It also has inscribed the word 'shop' between in the 
such pink area and the northern boundary of the premises 
delineated in the plan. South Wales

in its
There is in the Licensing Court papers a set of plans endorsed 
'Approved' by the Chairman of the Court, under date 14th June, 
1937. The first of these plans is entitled 'areas for licensing No. 26. 
coloured pink' and included four (4) separate plans:— MoMiandj!, 

i. A Plan of the basement level showing the whole area of F ^u^
the demise from George Street to Carrington Street, 1958—' 

10 coloured pink (the goods lift is excluded). continued,
ii. A Plan of the Hunter Street level showing the whole 

area between George Street and Carrington Street, 
coloured pink with the exception of the two (2) ramps 
and the space between them. In such space however, 
the stairs leading up and down from that level are 
shown coloured pink.

iii. A Plan of the Mezzanine floor level. The whole of this 
floor is coloured pink.

iv. A Plan of the George Street level corresponding broadly
20 to the plan of the Hunter Street level insofar as it

excludes the two (2) ramps and the space between them
(but includes the stairs leading up and down) and also
excluding the shops flanking the sides of the ramps.

There are also two (2) further sheets showing detailed plans 
of the Mezzanine and George Street levels respectively.''

On the 30th June, 1941, the Licensing Court renewed the licence
until the 30th June, 1942, an undertaking being given on behalf of
the licensee that the bedroom and ancillary accommodation, estimated
to cost £10,000 and of which plans had already been approved would

30 be constructed within seven months.
The position in relation to the licensed area had not changed up 

to the 1st July, 1941, and has not changed up to the present time.
The lease is a formidable document. It was a lease of the subject 

land with certain reservations for a term of 60 years computed from 
1st July, 1941, yielding and paying the yearly rents stipulated as 
follows:—

"(a) For the first two years the yearly rent of nine thousand 
pounds (£9000/-/-) payable at the office of the Estate Agent 
for Railways or elsewhere in Sydney to the Lessor as it may 

4Q at any time or from time to time direct by equal quarterly instal­ 
ments of two thousand two hundred and fifty pounds (£2,250/-/-) 
in advance on the first day of the months of January April July 
and October in each and every one of the said two years free 
from any rate tax imposition or assessment whatsoever.

» 38632—16A
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(b) For the third fourth fifth sixth and seventh years of the 
said term of sixty years the yearly rent of fifteen thousand 
pounds (£15,000/-/-) payable at the office of the Estate Agent for 
Railways or elsewhere in Sydney to the Lessor as it may at any 
time or from time to time direct by equal quarterly instalments 
of three thousand seven hundred and fifty pounds (£3,750/-/-) 
in advance on the first day of the months of January April July 
and October in each and every one of the said five years free 
from any rate tax imposition or assessment whatsoever.
(c) For the eighth ninth tenth eleventh and twelfth years of 10 
the said term of sixty years the yearly rent of nineteen thousand 
two hundred pounds (£19,^00/-/-) payable at the office of the 
Estate Agent for Railways or elsewhere in Sydney to the Lessor 
as it may at any time or from time to time direct by equal 
quarterly instalments of four thousand eight hundred pounds 
(£4,800/-/-) in advance on the first day of the months of January 
April July and October in each and every one of the said five 
years free from any rate tax imposition or assessment what­ 
soever.

PROVIDED HOWEVER that if in any of the said five years 20 
that is the eighth the ninth the tenth the eleventh or the twelfth 
year of the said term of sixty years the net profit of the Lessee 
derived from or in connection with the demised premises and 
from or in connection with any sub-lease or tenancy or occupancy 
of the demised premises or any part of them by through or 
under the Lessee and from any trade business or occupation 
undertaken by or on behalf of the Lessee on or in connection 
with the demised premises or any part of them is more than ten 
per centum on the capital invested the said yearly rent of nine­ 
teen thousand two hundred pounds (£19,200/-/-) will be 30 
unaffected but if the said net profit is from nine per centum 
to ten per centum the said rent for the year in question will be 
subject to a rebate of one thousand pounds (£1,000/-/-) if the 
said net profit is from eight per centum to nine per centum the 
said rent for the year in question will be subject to a rebate of 
two thousand pounds (£2,000/-/-) if the said net profit is from 
seven per centum to eight per centum the said rent for the year 
in question will be subject to a rebate of three thousand pounds 
(£3,000/-/-) and if the Lessee makes no net profit or his net 
profit is less than seven per centum the said rent for the year 40 
in question will be subject to a rebate of four thousand pounds 
(£4,000/-/-) PROVIDED FURTHER that the Lessee will only 
become entitled to any rebate stipulated in this paragraph if 
the rent for the year in question and the interest payable by 
the Lessee under his covenant numbered 3 hereinafter contained 
has been duly paid and in addition the capital invested and the
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net profit are and each of them is ascertained or computed to 
the satisfaction of the Lessor after an examination on its behalf 
of the books accounts documents and records of the Lessee which South Wales 
examination the Lessee will permit and in all respects facilitate Equitable 
PEOVIDED FURTHER that the amounts specified as rebate Jurisdiction. 
will be reducible on a proportionate basis where the rate of NO. 26. 
net profit is not exactly the percentage specified but includes ^^™en* ° 
in addition a fraction of one per centum AND PROVIDED ° nth 
ALSO that any amount to which the Lessee may become entitled F!qS^' 

10 as rebate will not be paid or refunded to him but will be allowed continued. 
to him as a credit against rent due or to accrue due.
(d) And for the remaining forty eight years of the said 
term of sixty years the yearly rent of nineteen thousand two 
hundred pounds (£19,200/-/-) payable at the office of the Estate 
Agent for Railways or elsewhere in Sydney to the Lessor as it 
may at any time or from time to time direct by equal quarterly 
instalments of four thousand eight hundred pounds (£4,800/-/-) 
in advance on the first day of the months of January April July 
and October in each and every year free from any rate tax

20 imposition or assessment whatsoever AND ALSO YIELDING 
AND PAYING a proportionate part of the rent for the time 
being payable for any period which may elapse between any 
quarterly day of payment and the date of the determination 
of this lease in the event of it expiring otherwise than by eiHuxion 
of time such proportional rent to become payable immediately 
upon such determination PROVIDED that if the Lessor permits 
the Lessee to continue in occupation of the demised premises or 
any building to be erected or constructed on in under over 
through or along the same after the expiration by effluxion of

30 time or sooner determination from any cause whatever of the said 
term of sixty years the tenancy shall continue as a weekly tenancy 
only at a rental proportionate to the said sum of nineteen thou­ 
sand two hundred pounds (£19,200) subject to determination by 
one week's notice in writing given at any time or on any day by 
either party hereto."

The following are provisions of the lease which have been referred 
to as relevant;—

Covenants by the lessee:
"3. THAT during the said term of sixty years computed from 

4A the first day of July one thousand nine hundred and forty-one and 
during any subsequent occupation whatever by the Lessee of the 
demised premises or any building or other constructional work 
erected or constructed or to be erected or constructed thereon 
or any part thereof the Lessee will on the first day of each month 
of each and every year pay to the Lessor without any deduction
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whatever a sum equivalent to interest on the sum of one hundred 
and nine thousand one hundred and thirty four pounds five 
shillings and ninepence (£109,134 5s. 9d.) (which sum the Lessee 
hereby acknowledges has been expended by the Lessor at his 
request and on his behalf in the erection or construction of 
permanent improvements on the land hereby leased and under 
part of Wynyard Lane) at the same rate as may at any time or 
from time to time be debited against the Lessor for the corres­ 
ponding monthly period by the Colonial Treasurer or other officer 
person or authority for interest exchange sinking fund or any 10 
other charge on Railway Capital Debt and a certificate showing 
such rate by the Comptroller of Accounts and Audit for the 
time being of the Lessor or such other officer person or authority 
as may at any time or from time to time be deputed by the Lessor 
in respect thereof shall be final and conclusive and binding upon 
the parties hereto PROVIDED THAT if such rate be not known 
to the Lessor at the time of rendering any monthly account or at 
the time of payment by the Lessee of any monthly instalment of 
interest the interest exchange sinking fund or other charge shall 
be calculated at the rate last notified to the Lessor by the 20 
Colonial Treasurer or other officer person or authority and will 
be paid by the Lessee subject to any over payment being refunded 
or under payment made good by and between the parties hereto 
when the proper rate becomes known to the Lessor BUT the 
rate at which interest exchange sinking fund or any other charge 
on Railway Capital Debt shall be computed on the said sum of 
one hundred and nine thousand one hundred and thirty-four 
pounds five shillings and nine pence (£109,134 5s. 9d.) shall not 
exceed six and a half per centum (64%) per annum the first such 
payment of interest after the commencement of this lease being 30 
payable on the first day of August next AND in the event of 
the Lessee making default in the payment of any monthly instal­ 
ment of interest for the space of twenty-one (21) days the Lessor 
may without prejudice to any other remedy right or power it may 
have treat such default as a breach of the covenant for pay­ 
ment of rent and in any event any sum unpaid shall until pay­ 
ment be a charge upon the leasehold interest of the Lessee created 
by this lease PROVIDED THAT on the expiration of this lease 
by effluxion of time or in the event of this lease being deter­ 
mined by any means whatever prior to the date upon which it 40 
would have expired by effluxion of time the Lessee shall immedi­ 
ately upon such determination pay to the Lessor interest on the 
said sum of one hundred and nine thousand one hundred and 
thirty-four pounds five shillings and ninepence (£109,134 5d. 9d.) 
calculated at the said rate from the date on which the last pay­ 
ment of interest became due up to the date when this lease expired 
by effluxion of time or was otherwise determined.
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4. THAT the Lessee will within two (2) years from the date in the 
of the commencement of this lease expend a sum of not less than 
one hundred and fifty thousand pounds (£150,000) in erecting South w<Oea 
constructing and completing in a workmanlike and substantial EquUobU 
manner in every respect complying with any provision of any law Jurisdiction. 
statutory or otherwise having application thereto and to the No 26 
satisfaction of any civic licensing local public or statutory autho- Judgment of 
rity (hereinafter called the said authority) and the Lessor a new MoL^d J-> 
building on in under over through or along the demised premises February,

10 (hereinafter included in the expression 'said building" which 
expression shall include also the permanent improvements 
erected or constructed or other constructional work which has 
been carried out by the Lessor on the land hereby leased) and 
the said building shall be erected constructed and completed with 
external walls of stone brick concrete1 or other approved material 
and shall at all times be in accordance with such building design 
plan and specification as the said authority or the Lessor may in 
their absolute discretion approve and the plan and specification 
shall be completely prepared and submitted by the Lessee for the

20 approval of the Lessor within sixteen weeks from the date of 
commencement of this lease and the Lessee will within a period 
of six months from the commencement of this lease commence 
or cause to be commenced the erection and construction of the 
said building and shall thereafter diligently and continuously 
proceed with or cause to be proceeded with such erection and 
construction so that at the expiration of the said period of two 
(2) years from the date of the commencement of this lease the 
Lessee without cost to the Lessor shall have erected constructed 
and completed on in under over through or along the demised

30 premises the said building hereinbefore mentioned and shall 
have expended thereon the sum of not less than one hundred and 
fifty thousand pounds (£150,000) within the time aforesaid and 
the said building design plan and specification shall provide for 
the complete safety of the Lessor's passageway and the Lessee 
will only build subject to any requirements of the Lessor con­ 
cerning the absolute stability safety and well being in every 
respect of the Lessor's passageway AND so that the space be­ 
tween the said building and the column known as Number 155 
of the Lessor on the George Street level will be riot less than six

40 feet (6 ft.) AND there shall be no openings of any description 
onto any splayed alignment of the said building on or near the 
George Street frontage unless approved in writing by or on 
behalf of the Lessor AND the Lessee will at any time or from 
time to time produce and show to the Lessor on demand any 
book document paper bill account voucher and evidence relating 
to any money expended as aforesaid for material labour or any
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other item used or employed or upon which expenditure haft 
been made in and about the said building AND the said building 
shall be erected constructed and completed in a good workman­ 
like and substantial manner in accordance with the said building 
design plan and specification and in accordance with any require­ 
ment and subject at every reasonable time to inspection and 
approval of the said authority and the Lessor and in accor­ 
dance with any provision of any law statutory or otherwise hav­ 
ing application to such erection construction and completion AND 
the Lessee will use no old or second-hand material therein except 10 
such as shall be approved by the said authority and the Lessor 
AND the Lessee will if the said building be three or more storeys 
in height provide the same with ample cut-off escapes to the 
requirement and satisfaction of the said authority and the Lessor 
AND the Lessee will in case of any shop and dwelling in com­ 
bination so arrange them as to permit of the two portions being 
absolutely cut off from one another by a fire resisting wall floor 
and ceiling or other thing of separation or partition AND the 
Lessee will erect or construct any awning to be erected of the 
cantiliver or suspended type in accordance with a building design 20 
and plan and specification approved by the said authority and the 
Lessor AND the Lessee will use damp courses if any be required 
of material approved by the said authority and the Lessor AND 
the Lessee will not erect or construct a roof on the said building 
which contains any corrugated iron excresence or tank or any 
tower or other cowl cupola dome cistern or thing unless treated 
ornamentally and specially approved or permitted by the said 
authority and the Lessor AND the Lessee will in the course of 
such erection and construction as aforesaid make construct and 
complete any necessary drain and other convenience of the like 30 
or a different kind as may be required by the said authority and 
the Lessor and in accordance with any provision of any law 
statutory or otherwise having application thereto AND not­ 
withstanding anything hereinbefore contained the building 
design plan and specification of the said building shall be subject 
to the reasonable recrairements of the Lessor AND if durinar 
the erection construction and completion of the said building it 
shall in the opinion of the said authority or the Lessor be neces­ 
sary for the rmrpose of providing for the stability safety or well 40 
being thereof in any respect that any alteration or amendment 
should be made in or to the building design or plan or specifica­ 
tion thereof then and on every such occasion the Lessee at his 
own expense will immediately carry out such alteration or 
amendment as may be required by the said authority or the 
Lessor.
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5. THAT the lessee will during the said term well and suffi- in the 
ciently repair mantain pave cleanse amend and keep the demised C(̂ f 
premises and the said building with any appurtenance of either South Wales 
of them and any fixture or thing or any fitting thereto belonging Equitable 
or which at any time during the term shall be erected or con- Jurisdiction. 
structed or made by the Lessor or the Lessee when where and so No 26 
often as need shall be in good clean and substantial repair and Judgment of 
condition in all respects and replace any such fixture or thing or c \-^ '' 
any fitting as is requisite and as shall during the said term February,

10 become useless or unsuitable for use because of being worn out continued. 
broken beyond repair damaged beyond repair obsolete or out 
of date with a new or suitable one in keeping with the premises 
approved by the Lessor AND will also make and carry out any 
cleansing and any amendment alteration reparation or addition 
whether structural or otherwise which by virtue of any provi­ 
sion of any law statutory or otherwise having application thereto 
now or hereafter in force or by virtue of any requirement of the 
said authority may be required to be made or carried out by 
either the Lessor or the Lessee in or upon the demised premises

20 or the said building or any appurtenance of either of them.

9. THAT the Lessee will at Ms own expense and in a work­ 
manlike manner and with the best materials to the satisfaction 
of the said authority at any time or from time to time during 
the said term whenever the same shall be required or notified by 
the said authority or on being informed by the Lessor of such 
requirement or notification forthwith execute and do or cause 
to be executed and done internally or externally any such repair 
renovation alteration or other work whether structural or not 
and such cleansing using or application of paint or any other

30 material acceptable to the said authority or papering for the 
covering protection preservation or renovation of any present 
and future building appurtenance or fitting drain tap engine 
machine cistern trade or tenant's fixture and any convenience 
for the time being on the demised premises as the said authority 
shall require or notify AND in default thereof the Lessor may 
at any reasonable time and from time to time with or without 
any means of conveyance or transportation and any kind of 
tool implement material appliance merchandise article or thing 
enter return go pass and repass upon the demised premises and

40 the said building for the purpose of carrying out any such work 
and the cost thereof as certified by the Chief Civil Engineer of 
the Lessor or other officer or person deputed by it for the 
purpose shall be a debt due and owing by the Lessee to the 
Lessor and payable upon demand and the Lessor without preju­ 
dice to any other remedy right or power it may have may treat 
non-payment thereof as a breach of covenant.
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10. THAT the Lessee will during the said term keep and at 
the expiration or sooner determination thereof peaceably sur­ 
render and yield up unto the Lessor in good and substantial 
repair and condition reasonable wear and tear excepted the 
demised premises together with the said building and any appur­ 
tenance and fitting and together with any landlord's fixture or 
thing in the nature of or usually considered a landlord's fixture 
which at any time during the said term shall be fixed or belong­ 
ing to the demised premises or the said building and is then 
therein or thereon together with any property article and thing 10 
belonging to the Lessor now in or upon the demised premises or 
the said building or which shall be brought upon the demised 
premises or the said building in addition thereto including any 
renewal or replacement thereof.
11. THAT the Lessee will forthwith insure the said building 
and any appurtenance fixture and fitting and all of the plate 
glass therein in the full insurable value thereof in the joint names 
of the Lessor and the Lessee in such insurance office as the 
Lessor shall approve from loss damage or injury caused by fire 
and will during the erection and construction and upon the com- 20 
pletion of any building appurtenance fixture and fitting as shall 
be erected or constructed on in under over through or along the 
demised premises in pursuance of this lease likewise insure such 
building appurtenance fixture and fitting in the full insurable 
value thereof in the joint names of the Lessor and the Lessee in 
such insurance office as the Lessor shall approve and will during 
the said term duly renew or keep up any such insurance as afore­ 
said and will whenever required produce to the Lessor the policy 
of such insurance and the receipt for the premium for the then 
current year and will during the last ten years of the lease hereby 30 
granted hand any said policy of insurance to the Lessor together 
with the receipt for each annual premium AMD if at any time 
or from time to time the Lessee fail or omit to pay when due any 
premium of such insurance it shall be lawful for the Lessor to 
pay the same and any sum so paid by the Lessor for insurance 
shall be a debt due and owing by the Lessee to the Lessor and pay­ 
able upon demand and the Lessor without prejudice to any other 
remedy right or power it may have may treat non-payment 
thereof as a breach of covenant.
12. THAT in case the said building appurtenance fixture or 40 
fitting or any part thereof shall be destroyed or damaged by 
any means the Lessee will immediately proceed with the work 
of well and substantially rebuilding repairing and reinstating the 
same to the satisfaction of the said authority and the Lessor 
and in accordance with any provision of any law statutory or 
otherwise having application thereto PROVIDED that any
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plan and specification of such rebuilding repairing or reinstat- in the 
ing shall be first approved by the Lessor or an officer or persons c^ 
appointed by it for that purpose and during the erection or south Wales 
construction and upon completion of such rebuilding repair or ^guiMe 
reinstatement any provision herein contained relating to and Jurisdiction. 
governing insurance shall apply AND PROVIDED ALSO that sfoTTe. 
for the purposes of any such rebuilding repairing or reinstating Judgment of

, --IIJ.IT • j. £ McLelland J..any money recovered or received by tne Liessor in respect 01 lltij 
any insurance effected under the last preceding covenant shall February, 

10 be made available to the Lessee as required. continued.
16. THAT any building that may be erected or constructed 
on in under over through or along the demised premises in addi­ 
tion to or in substitution for the said building (which building 
shall where applicable be included in the phrase 'said building' 
where such phrase hereinafter appears) shall be erected or con­ 
structed in all respects in accordance with any provision herein 
contained relating to and governing the erection or construction 
and completing of the said building and shall be built in a work­ 
manlike and substantial manner and with external walls of stone

20 brick concrete or other approved material in accordance with 
any provision of any law statutory or otherwise having applica­ 
tion thereto and that any such building shall be erected or con­ 
structed in accordance with a building design and plan and 
specification to be approved by the Lessor or any officer of it 
authorized for such purpose and of the said authority and to its 
his and their satisfaction PROVIDED ALWAYS that in 
respect of any such building the Lessee shall be subject to simi­ 
lar covenants conditions agreements provisions and stipulations 
as are herein contained and shall be entitled to similar rights as

QQ are hereby granted to him in relation to the said building and 
the erection construction support maintenance and repair thereof.
17. THAT the Lessee his sub-lessee or sub-tenant will not 
during the said term assign transfer demise sublet or part with 
the possession of the demised premises or the said building or 
any part of either of them or by any act or deed procure the 
demised premises or the said building to be assigned transferred 
demised sublet or put into the possession of any person company 
or body corporate without the consent in writing of the Lessor 
first had and obtained PROVIDED FURTHER that in the 

40 event of the granting of any such consent in respect of that part 
of the demised premises which is now or may hereafter be 
licensed or otherwise authorized under any law statutory or 
otherwise having application to the use or conduct of any build­ 
ing premises or place as and for the trade or business of a 
licensed or otherwise authorized victualler hotelkeeper innkeeper 
or publican or retailer of any spirit wine spirituous or alcoholic
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or other liquor or as and for a place for the reception accommoda­ 
tion or entertainment of any traveller guest or other person (any 
licence permission or other authority allowing permitting or 
otherwise authorizing the conduct or carrying out of any such 
trade business purpose or use being hereinafter included in the 
phrase 'licence or other authority') the Lessee shall at his own 
expense arrange for the intending sub-lessee or assignee to 
enter into and execute a Power of Attorney in respect of any 
licence or other authority similar to that hereinafter contained 
or otherwise suitable and acceptable to the Lessor and no assign- 10 
ing or subletting hereunder shall be complete or effective until 
the written consent thereto of the Lessor shall have been obtained 
and so far as regards any part of the demised premises so 
licensed or authorized the said Power of Attorney from the 
sub-lessee or assignee shall have been duly executed and 
delivered to the Lessor without any expense to the Lessor 
PROVIDED FURTHER that it will not be a breach of this 
covenant by the Lessee for him his sub-lessee or sub-tenant to 
assign transfer demise sublet or part with the possession of any 
portion of the demised premises having an area of one thousand 20 
one hundred square feet or less if he has the consent of the 
Lessor to the kind of business to be carried on therein 
PROVIDED FURTHER that the Lessor will not unreasonably 
withhold consent to any subletting or mortgage of this lease 
whether in either case by way of assignment sub-demise or 
otherwise AND PROVIDED ALSO that for any consent of 
the Lessor given in respect of anything included in this covenant 
no fine or sum of money in the nature of a fine will be payable 
by the Lessee his sub-lessee or sub-tenant but the Lessor will 
not be precluded from requiring the payment of legal costs or 30 
any other expenses reasonably incurred in relation to any such 
consent.
19. THAT the lessee will not carry on nor permit to be carried 
on on the demised premises or in the said building or any part 
of either of them the business of a newsvendor or bookseller or 
vendor of any magazine periodical or publication whatever or any 
noxious noisome or offensive trade or objectionable user or any 
trade or user providing harbourage to rats or any other species 
of vermin nor will he carry on nor cause or permit to be carried 
on thereon or therein any art trade business occupation or call- ±Q 
ing of which he has not obtained the previous approval in writing 
of or on behalf of the Lessor which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld nor will he carry on nor cause or permit 
to be carried on thereon or therein any art trade business 
occupation or calling after receiving notice in writing from or 
on behalf of the Lessor of objection thereto nor will he use



499

the demised premises or the said building or any part of either in the 
of them in any manner nor for any purpose which the Board of cov/rt"of™New 
Fire Commissioners of New South Wales or any other person Sout̂  Wales 
or authority or the Lessor informs him in writing that they or Equitable 
any of them consider may cause or create an unreasonable fire Jurisdiction. 
hazard and the Lessee shall immediately upon being requested NO. 26. 
in writing so to do by the said Board person or authority or the jj^jf^^ j"f 
Lessor cease to use or cause the cessation of the use of the nth 
demised premises or the said building or any part of either of ^jjsa^'

10 them in the manner or for the purpose mentioned or described continued. 
in such notice and remove therefrom any material thing or 
article which he may in any such notice be required so to do 
and will at any time or from time to time take and continue 
effective steps for keeping the demised premises and the said 
building and every part of either of them clear of rats mice 
white ants wood borers and all other species of vermin and 
will not use exercise or carry on nor permit or suffer to be 
exercised or carried on in or upon the demised premises or the 
said building or any part of either of them any auction sale

20 and no act matter or thing whatsoever shall at any time during 
the continuance of this lease be done in or upon the demised 
premises or the said building or any part of either of them 
which will or may be or grow to the annoyance nuisance 
grievance damage or disturbance of the Lessor or the public 
or any occupier or owner of any neighbouring premises or which 
may cause or create an unreasonable fire hazard AND the 
decision of the Lessor as to what is a noxious noisome or offen­ 
sive trade or objectionable user or disapproved or unapproved 
art trade business occupation or calling or whether any trade

30 or business provides harbourage to rats or any other species of 
vermin or what is attractive to rats mice white ants wood borers 
or any other species of vermin or as to what causes or creates 
an unreasonable fire hazard shall be accepted by the Lessee as 
final and conclusive PROVIDED THAT the Lessor in the 
exercise of any power or authority under or in making any 
decision in respect of this covenant will not act arbitrarily but 
as far as in its opinion its or public convenience or requirements 
may permit will refrain from causing unreasonable inconvenience 
to or interference with the Lessee his sub-lessee or sub-tenant.

40 24. THAT with the exception of any building or part of a 
building erected made or constructed pursuant to any permission 
given by the Lessor under or by virtue of the Transport 
(Division of Functions) Act 1932 no building or other structure 
other than any awning or other projection beyond the building 
line which the said authority may permit to remain now or
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hereafter erected on the demised premises shall project beyond 
the building line of any street or lane.
29. THAT if and while the Lessee during the continuance of 
this Lease exercises or undertakes in or upon some part of the 
demised premises or the said building (hereinafter called 
licensed premises) the trade or business of a licensed or other­ 
wise authorized victualler hotelkeeper innkeeper or publican or 
retailer of spirit wine spirituous or alcoholic or other liquor or 
otherwise uses the licensed premises solely as and for a place for 
the reception accommodation or entertainment of any traveller JQ 
guest or other person resorting thereto or frequenting the same 
(such trade business purpose or use or any one of them being 
hereinafter included in the phrase 'hotel inn or public house') 
he will manage and conduct such hotel inn or public house in 
a proper quiet and orderly manner and so as not to afford any 
ground for any licence or other authority for the licensed 
premises or any part thereof (hereinafter referred to as 'any 
licence or other authority') being withdrawn or withheld from 
the licensed premises and will not do commit permit or omit or 
suffer to be done committed permitted or omitted nor shall there 20 
be done committed permitted or omitted or suffered to be done 
committed permitted or omitted by the licensee or person com­ 
pany or body corporate licensed or otherwise authorized to exer­ 
cise or undertake the said trade or business for the time being 
in or upon the licensed premises (hereinafter called 'licensee') 
nor done committed permitted omitted or suffered on the licensed 
premises any act matter or thing whatsoever the doing com­ 
mission permission or omission of which may either alone or in 
conjunction with the doing commission permission or omission 
of any other act matter or thing directly or indirectly render 39 
any licence or other authority liable to be taken away with held 
suppressed suspended forfeited lost or cancelled or become void 
or voidable in any manner howsoever or a renewal of any licence 
or other authority refused or directly or indirectly render the 
licensed premises liable to disqualification from being used as 
an hotel inn or public house AND will do any act matter or thing 
necessary for keeping any licence or other authority in existence 
and will not without the previous consent in writing of the Lessor 
transfer remove or part with the possession of any licence or 
other authority AND the Lessee shall arrange for or procure 4.9 
that all and every holder of any licence or other authority includ­ 
ing the present holder thereof shall abide by observe and per­ 
form any such term provision and condition of this covenant 
as is applicable to him and the Lessee shall immediately obtain 
from the present holder of any licence or other authority and 
contemporaneously with any assignment transfer or other setting
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over of any licence or other authority obtain from each new in the 
licensee a written undertaking in favour of the Lessor whereby court > 
such new licensee shall be bound to observe and perform every South Wales 
term provision and condition contained and described in this Equitable 
covenant and applicable to such new licensee. jurisdiction.

30. THAT if and Avhile the Lessee during the continuance of judgment of 
this lease exercises or undertakes in or upon the licensed premises McLeiiand J., 
the trade or business of an hotel inn or public house he will at February, 
Ms own expense apply for and endeavour to obtain any licence 1958—

10 or other authority or renewal thereof as is or may be necessary conmue • 
for using the licensed premises as and for an hotel inn or public 
house AND for that purpose will at least sixty days prior to 
the date of expiration of any licence or other authority or renewal 
thereof sign and execute in proper form any necessary applica­ 
tion for any licence or other authority or renewal thereof and 
duly lodge the same as required by any provision of any law 
statutory or otherwise having application thereto AND will 
appear at or before the Licensing or other proper Court or autho­ 
rity or person on any application for renewal or transfer of

20 any licence or other authority and will use his best endeavours 
to procure such renewal or transfer and will abstain from any 
opposition direct or indirect to such application AND the Lessee 
will immediately upon any such renewal being granted take up 
any Certificate or other document authorizing or directing the 
renewal of any licence or other authority from the Licensing or 
other Court or other authority officer or person and forthwith 
lodge the same at the Colonial Treasury or elsewhere as required 
by any provision of any law statutory or otherwise having appli­ 
cation thereto and will thereupon pay to the Colonial Treasurer

30 or other officer appointed for that pxirpose the necessary fee for 
the issue or renewal of any licence or other authority or other­ 
wise do or omit or cause to be done or omitted whatever may be 
required by any provision of any law statutory or otherwise hav­ 
ing application thereto to be done or omitted in the circumstances 
AND if the Lessee should fail to take up or lodge any such 
certificate or other document or pay any such fee at the time 
hereinbefore mentioned or otherwise to do or omit or cause to be 
done or omitted whatever may be required by any provision of 
any law statutory or otherwise having application thereto to be

, 0 done or omitted in the circumstances then it shall be lawful for 
the Lessor or any officer or person deputed by it for the purpose 
to take up or lodge such certificate or other document or pay 
such fee or otherwise to do or omit or cause to be done or omitted 
whatever may be required by any provision of any law statutory 
or otherwise having application thereto to be done or omitted 
in the circumstances and any fee and all the Lessor's costs and
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expenses in relation to any licence or other authority shall on 
demand in writing by the Lessor be paid to the Lessor by the 
Lessee and the Lessor without prejudice to any other remedy 
right or power it may have may treat non-payment thereof as a 
breach of covenant AND the lessee shall and will thirty-five 
days at least before the expiration or other sooner determination 
of this lease or of any renewal or extension thereof or before 
the expiration of any notice given to the Lessor by the Lessee 
of his intention of ceasing to exercise or undertake in or upon 
the licensed premises the trade or business of an hotel inn or 10 
public house sign and give or cause to be signed and given such 
notice of a renewal or transfer of any licence or other authority 
as may be required by any provision of any law statutory or 
otherwise having application thereto and allow such notice of a 
renewal or transfer of any licence or other authority as may 
be required by any provision of any law statutory or otherwise 
having application thereto to be affixed to the licensed premises 
to be thereto affixed and remain so affixed during such time as 
shall be necessary or expedient in that behalf and generally shall 
and will do and perform any such act deed matter and thing 20 
as shall be necessary to enable the Lessor or any person 
nominated or authorised by the Lessor to obtain the renewal of 
any licence or other authority or any new licence or other 
authority or the transfer of any licence or other authority then 
existing or in force and will or at the expiration of any notice 
given to the Lessor by the Lessee of his intention of ceasing to 
exercise or undertake in or upon the licensed premises the trade 
or business of an hotel inn or public house or at the expiration 
by effluxion of time or other sooner determination of this lease 
hand over to the Lessor or the Lessor's nominee any licence 30 
or other authority which shall absolutely belong to the Lessor 
subject to the payment by the Lessor to the Lessee of a due pro­ 
portion of any fee therefor for the unexpired term of any licence 
or other authority AND the Lessee shall arrange for or pro­ 
cure that all and every holder of any licence or other authority 
including the present holder thereof shall abide by observe and 
perform every such term provision and condition of this cove­ 
nant as is applicable to him and the Lessee shall immediately 
obtain from the present holder of any licence or other authority 
and contemporaneously with any assignment transfer or other 40 
setting over of any licence or other authority obtain from each 
new licensee an undertaking in favour of the Lessor whereby 
such new licensee shall be bound to observe and perform every 
term provision and condition contained and described in this
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covenant and applicable to such new licensee and shall forth- in the 
with hand such undertaking to the Lessor or any officer or person eJ^ 
deputed by it for the purpose. South Wales

in its
31. THAT if and while the Lessee during the continuance of Equitable 
this lease exercises or undertakes in or upon the licensed pre- uns lctlon" 
mises the trade or business of an hotel inn or public house the No- 26- 
Lessor or the Estate Agent for Railways or such other officer MciSiand J., 
or person as may at any time or from time to time be deputed llth 
by the Lessor for the purpose shall at any time or from time to 1953—y>

10 time be of opinion that the Lessee has been guilty of any breach continued. 
of or default under any proviso covenant condition stipulation 
or agreement herein contained or implied which may be likely 
to endanger or injure any licence or other authority or if any 
licensee for the time being of the licensed premises shall do or 
omit to do or suffer to be done or omitted anything which had 
it been done or omitted or been suffered to be done or omitted 
by the Lessee would have been a breach or non-observance or 
non-performance of any covenant herein contained or implied 
regarding any licence or other authority or use of the licensed

20 premises as an hotel inn or public house and the Lessor is of the 
opinion that the Lessee in the event of the licence or other autho­ 
rity for the licensed premises being declared void or cancelled 
or lapsing or being lost or taken away or a renewal of it being 
refused is unlikely to be able to obtain a licence or other authority 
new renewed or substituted for the licensed premises or to pay 
the sum hereinafter fixed in respect of the licence or other 
authority for the licensed premises then the Lessor may obtain ex 
parte or otherwise an interim mandatory injunction or any other 
authority for giving entry to and possession to the Estate Agent

30 for Eailways or any officer or person deputed by the Lessor 
for the purpose of the demised premises and the said building 
or may obtain the appointment ex parte and without security of 
an interim receiver or manager of the demised premises and the 
said building or any licence or other authority hotel or other 
business or may obtain a judgment for ejectment of the Lessee 
from the demised premises and the said building subject to a 
subsequent adjustment of rights PROVIDED ALWAYS that 
the Lessor shall not be liable in damages for any bona fide 
mistake.

40 33. THAT if and while the Lessee during the continuance 
of this lease exercises or undertakes in or upon the licensed pre­ 
mises the trade or business of an hotel inn or public house he 
without qualification of his liability for any breach of any cove­ 
nant condition proviso stipulation or agreement herein contained 
or implied doth hereby irrevocably appoint the Lessor and the 
Estate Agent for Railways or such officer or person as may from
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time to time be deputed by the Lessor for the purpose jointly 
and each of them severally his Attorneys and Attorney in the 
name of the Lessee and on his behalf to give sign publish exe­ 
cute date and perfect any notice deed summons application 
request consent authority appointment transfer memorandum 
sublease surrender assignment of or other document or admis­ 
sion relating to any licence or other authority issued or held in 
respect of the licensed premises or any other document in exer­ 
cise of any power covenant condition proviso stipulation or 
agreement herein contained or implied relating to any licence 10 
or other authority and for the Lessee and in his name and on his 
behalf to sign complete date or lodge any application for any 
licence or other authority or any renewal thereof and also to 
appear for him at or before the Licensing or any other Court or 
any other authority or person or to appoint a solicitor to appear 
and make such application to the said Court authority or person 
for him and in his name and on his behalf as may seem necessary 
and expedient to the Lessor or Estate Agent for Eailways or 
such officer or person as may from time to time be deputed by 
the Lessor for the purpose and otherwise to use their and his 20 
best endeavours to obtain any licence or other authority or 
renewal of any licence or other authority for the licensed pre­ 
mises AND ALSO for him and in his name and on his behalf 
to take up and lodge any such certificate or other document 
authorizing or directing the renewal of any licence or other 
authority and to pay any fee as aforesaid to the Colonial Trea­ 
surer or other proper authority officer or person and to take up 
and receive for him or other the person entitled thereto every 
licence or other authority or renewal thereof and to appoint a 
Solicitor to appear for the Lessee in any Court or before any 30 
authority or person and in his name and on his behalf to request 
apply for consent or submit to any transfer removal or renewal of 
any licence or other authority or to any negative or mandatory 
interim injunction or appointment of receiver or manager 
without security or to judgment in an ejectment action brought 
by the Lessor for the purpose of protecting any licence or other 
authority or for enforcing any positive or negative covenant 
herein contained or implied relating to any licence or other 
authority and generally to do sign execute carry out carry on 
or conduct consent to or dissent from in the Lessee's name and 40 
on his behalf any act thing business trade document or trans­ 
action which the Lessee has herein convenanted or agreed to 
do sign execute carry out carry on conduct or transact relating 
to any licence or other authority and to appoint or remove any 
substitute for or agent under any such attorney with such of 
the said powers as the attorney shall delegate to such substitute
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or agent and generally to act as effectually as the Lessee could in the 
do and the Lessee doth hereby ratify and confirm and agree to c^t 
ratify and confirm any such act deed matter and thing and to Smith, Wales 
recover from the Lessee any fee costs and expense of so acting Equitable 
as rent payable immediately under these presents together with Jurisdiction. 
interest thereon at the rate of six per centum per annum until NoTae. 
payment. Judgment of
^ J MeLellandJ.,
34. THAT if and while the Lessee during the continuance of 
this lease exercises or undertakes in or upon the licensed 1953— ' 

10 premises the trade or business of an hotel inn or public house continued. 
he will not at any time revoke the Power of Attorney herein 
contained or any power authority or licence hereby given or 
any other power authority or licence of the Lessor or Estate 
Agent for Railways for the time being or its or their agent or 
any officer or person or do or permit or suffer to be done or 
permitted any act deed matter or thing whereby the said Power 
of Attorney or other power authority and licence or any of them 
may become void or of no effect.
35. THAT the Lessee will contemporaneously with the delivery 

20 to him of this Deed of Lease hand to the Lessor or his Solicitor 
an irrevocable Power of Attorney from the person at that time 
holding the publican's licence or any other licence or authority 
in respect of the licensed premises in terms as similar as possible 
to those of the Power of Attorney herein granted by the Lessee 
appointing the Lessor and the Estate Agent for Railways for 
the time being or another officer or person directed by the Lessor 
jointly and each of them severally the attorneys and attorney 
of the person holding any abovementioned licence or other 
authority.

30 36. THAT if and while the Lessee during the continuance of 
this lease exercises or undertakes in or upon the licensed 
premises the trade or business of an hotel inn or public house 
he will whenever and so frequently as any licence or other 
authority which is now or shall hereafter be held or granted in 
respect of the licensed premises is assigned or transferred to 
another licensee or by any other means becomes held by another 
licensee immediately upon such assignment transfer or change 
becoming effective procure from the new licensee an irrevocable 
Power of Attorney in terms as similar as possible to those of

40 the Power of Attorney herein granted by the Lessee appointing 
the Lessor and the Estate Agent for Railways for the time being 
or another officer or person directed by the Lessor jointly and 
each of them severally his attorneys and attorney.
37. THAT on each and every occasion on which the Lessee shall 
for a period which the Lessor or the Estate Agent for Railways
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or such officer or person as may from time to time be deputed 
by the Lessor for the purpose considers unreasonable omit or 
neglect to pay moneys or to do anything or to erect or construct 
any building or effect any alteration addition repair covering 
protection preservation renovation painting papering washing 
stopping whitening colouring or cleansing or anything else which 
the Lessee has herein covenanted to pay do erect or effect then 
it shall be lawful for but not obligatory upon the Lessor and 
without prejudice to any right and power arising from such 
default to pay such money or do such thing or to erect construct 10 
or effect such building alteration addition repair covering 
protection preservation renovation painting papering washing 
stopping wjhitening colouring or cleansing or carry out any 
other works as if it were the Lessee and for the purpose of so 
doing the Lessor or its architect contractor or its his or their 
workman or other agent is hereby authorised to enter return go 
pass and repass with or without any means of conveyance or 
transportation or any manner of tool material appliance article 
or thing at any reasonable time upon any part of the demised 
premises or the said building and there to remain for the purpose 20 
of erecting or constructing such building or effecting such 
alteration addition repair covering protection preservation 
renovation painting papering washing stopping whitening 
colouring or cleansing or carrying out any other work and the 
Lessor may recover from the Lessee the amount so expended and 
the cost of the erection or construction of such building or the 
effecting of such alteration addition repair covering protection 
preservation renovation painting papering washing stopping 
whitening colouring or cleansing or other work with interest at 
the rate of six pounds per centum per annum from the time of 30 
such expenditure until payment and the Lessor for the recovery 
of the same shall have in addition to a right of action any remedy 
hereby or by any provision of any law statutory or otherwise 
having application thereto given for the recovery of the rent 
hereby reserved.

Covenant by the lessor:
THAT he paying the rent hereby reserved and performing 

every covenant hereinbefore on his part contained shall and may 
peaceably possess and enjoy the demised premises for the term 
hereby granted without any interruption or disturbance from 40 
the Lessor or any other person lawfully claiming from or under 
it AND THAT the Lessee may on or before the expiration by 
effluxion of time or other sooner determination of the lease hereby 
granted take remove and carry away from the demised premises 
or the said building any fixture fitting plant machinery utensil 
shelving counter safe or other article upon the demised premises
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or the said building in the nature of a trade or tenant's fixture 
brought upon the demised premises or the said building by the 
Lessee but the Lessee shall in such removal do no damage to the south Wales 
demised premises or the said building or shall forthwith make El b̂u 
good any damage which he may occasion thereto." Jurisdiction.
"AND IT IS HEREBY AGREED AND DECLARED by and N^ie.

between the parties hereto McifeUand J., 
I. THAT the Lessee will continue to exercise or undertake in February, 
or upon the licensed premises the trade or business of an hotel 1958—

10 inn or public house under or by virtue of the licence of the Lessor 
held by or on behalf of the Lessee at the time of the execution 
hereof or any renewal thereof or any new or substituted licence 
or other authority obtained or held by or on behalf of the Lessee 
in the place thereof but in case he may at any time desire to 
cease so to exercise or undertake such trade or business he may 
give to the Lessor in writing as long notice as practicable but at 
the least six months' notice to expire during the currency of the 
said licence or other authority or any renewal thereof or of any 
new or substituted licence or other authority obtained or held

20 by or on behalf of the Lessee in the place thereof of his intention 
of ceasing so to exercise or undertake such trade or business and 
upon the expiration of such notice or upon the complete and 
effectual performance by or on behalf of the Lessee of any trans­ 
fer handing over or other act in relation to the licence or other 
authority required of the Lessee by the Lessor under this lease 
and upon the observance and performance otherwise of any 
covenant on his part in relation to the said licence or other 
authority whichever shall be the later the provisions of this lease 
relating to the licence or other authority and to the exercise

30 or undertaking in or upon the licensed premises of the trade 
or business of an hotel inn or public house will not be binding 
upon the Lessee who will have no then future duty obligation 
or liability under them Provided that any notice by the Lessee 
of his intention of ceasing to exercise or undertake such trade 
or business shall immediately become of no force or effect for 
any purpose whatsoever if for any reason during the period of 
notice the licence or other authority shall be taken away with­ 
held suppressed suspended forfeited lost or cancelled or become 
void voidable or disqualified for renewal And the Lessee having

40 been duly discharged from any duty obligation or liability under 
the provisions of this lease relating to the licence or other 
authority and to the exercise or undertaking in or upon the 
licensed premises of the trade or business of an hotel inn or 
public house will not thereafter have any duty obligation or 
liability under them relating to a licence or other authority 
although he may at any time or from time to time exercise or
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undertake in or upon the demised premises or any part of them 
under or by virtue of any licence or other authority the trade 
or business of an hotel inn or public house.
V. THAT any covenant condition proviso stipulation and agree­ 
ment of this lease binding upon the Lessee shall bind the lease­ 
hold interest hereby created and every part thereof unto who­ 
soever hands the same may come and shall bind any person 
interested therein and the parties hereto mutually agree to 
request and direct the Registrar General to endorse accordingly 
every Certificate of Title now or hereafter comprising the said 10 
leasehold interest or any part thereof.
VIII. THAT if the rent hereby reserved or any part thereof or 
if the interest payable hereunder or any part thereof is in arrear 
for the space of twenty-one (21) days (although no formal 
demand therefor has been made) or in case default is made in 
the fulfilment of any covenant condition or stipulation herein 
contained whether expressed or implied and on the part of the 
Lessee or of any holder of any licence or other authority for 
the licensed premises or any part thereof to be performed or 
observed the Lessor may serve upon the Lessee a notice requir- 20 
ing payment of rent or interest as the case may be or if any 
default other than payment of rent or interest is in the opinion 
of the Lessor capable of remedy requiring the Lessee to remedy 
the same and in case the Lessor claims compensation in money 
for any default requiring the Lessee to pay the same and the 
Lessee fails within a reasonable time thereafter to pay such 
rent or interest to remedy such default or where compensation 
in money is required to pay reasonable compensation to the 
satisfaction of the Lessor the Lessor may re-enter upon the 
demised premises or any part thereof in the name of the whole 30 
and thereby determine the estate of the Lessee therein but with­ 
out releasing him from liability in respect of any non-payment 
or default PROVIDED HOWEVER that if the licence or other 
authority for the licensed premises has been declared void or 
has been cancelled or has lapsed been lost or taken away or a 
renewal of it refused and the Lessee within six months after 
the happening of any such event obtains a licence or other 
authority new renewed or substituted for the licensed premises 
or having used his best endeavours has been unable to obtain 
a licence or other authority new renewed or substituted for 40 
the licensed premises and pays to the Lessor the sum of ten 
thousand pounds (£10,000) as an amount agreed upon for this 
purpose only as the value of the licence or other authority for 
the licensed premises no right of re-entry shall accrue to the 
Lessor in respect of the said licence or other authority for the 
licensed premises having been declared void or having been



509

cancelled or having lapsed been lost or taken away or a renewal in the. 
of it having been refused. Cou

South Wales
IX. THAT any licence or other authority new renewed or sub- F in - itsu 
stituted for the licensed premises obtained by the Lessee for jurisdiction. 
replacing any licence or other authority for the licensed premises jT^g 
declared void or cancelled or which has lapsed been lost or taken judgment of 
away or of which a renewal has been refused shall be subject MoLeUand j., 
in all respects to any provision of this Lease applicable to the February, 
licence or other authority for the licensed premises existing at 19?8~~,

, i .. njl j • i o continued.10 the time or the execution hereof.

X. THAT upon the request of the Lessee and a payment in 
advance by him to the Lessor as hereinafter provided and sub­ 
ject to any covenant condition proviso stipulation and agreement 
in this clause contained the Lessor will grant to the Lessee leave 
and licence to use in common with the Lessor the area reserved 
out of this lease by the Lessor for access from Wynyard Lane to 
the goods lift of the Lessor such area being shown marked 
'approach' in the plan of level 'J' in the plan hereto annexed 
marked <D' TOGETHER WITH leave and licence to use the

20 goods lift of the Lessor which is constructed and installed on 
or over the land delineated in the plan hereto annexed marked 
with the letter 'D' if such goods lift is in the opinion of the 
Lessor in a condition fit for use at such times between the hours 
of six of the clock in the forenoon and five of the clock in the 
afternoon on Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday and 
Saturday other than during such periods of time aggregating 
in all three hours during each day at any time or from time to 
time chosen by the Lessor in its absolute discretion notice of 
which shall be given by the Lessor in writing during which, the

30 Lessor shall be entitled to the exclusive use of such goods lift 
for which aforesaid leave and licence the Lessee if the leave and 
licence is to continue for one calendar year will pay the sum 
of three hundreds pounds (£300) or if the said leave and licence 
is to continue for two or more calendar years will pay the sum 
of three hundreds pounds (£300) at or before the commencement 
of each calendar year during its currency and if the said leave 
and licence shall continue for a time involving a part of a 
calendar year will pay at or before the commencement of such 
part such proportion of the sum of three hundred pounds (£300)

40 as the part of the year bears to a calendar year PROVIDED 
THAT if at any other time the Lessor and the Lessee require 
the use of the lift simultaneously the Lessor shall have prefer­ 
ence and that if the Lessee requires the use of the goods lift 
and the Lessor is prepared to make it available between the hours 
of five of the clock in the afternoon and midnight and midnight
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and six of the clock in the forenoon on Monday Tuesday Wednes­ 
day Thursday Friday and Saturday or at any time on Sunday 
the Lessee may use the goods lift during such time provided he 
shall have given to the Lessor fourteen hours' notice of any such 
requirement on week days or twenty-four hours' notice of any 
such requirement on Sundays AND the Lessee will in any such 
case pay to the Lessor upon demand additionally to the said 
payment at the rate of three hundred pounds the cost actually 
incurred by the Lessor in making the said goods lift so available 
PBOVIDED FURTHER that upon the request of the Lessee the 10 
Lessor will extend the said goods lift as far up or down in the 
said building as the Lessee may require and the cost of doing so 
and of providing a lift service for the Lessor while preparation 
is being made for and during the construction and completion 
of such extension as certified by the Chief Civil Engineer of the 
Lessor or such other officer as may at any time or from time to 
time be deputed for that purpose will be paid by the Lessee to 
the Lessor upon demand in such amounts and at such times as 
the Lessor may require and upon completion of the work the 
Lessor will grant to the Lessee upon his request therefor leave 20 
and licence to use the said goods lift upon the terms and con­ 
ditions in this clause contained but whether or not such leave 
and licence has been requested or granted the Lessee will from 
time to time pay to the Lessor any cost of the operation after 
such extension of the said goods lift which exceeds the cost of 
its operation before such extension upon receiving from the 
Lessor a statement in writing showing the amount of such addi­ 
tional cost PROVIDED FURTHER that the goods lift will at 
all times be controlled and operated only by an employee of the 
Lessor deputed for that purpose THAT the Lessee will arrange 30 
his requirements in connection with the use of the goods lift 
so as to leave the services of the employee of the Lessor who will 
control and operate it as fully available to the Lessor as is 
reasonably practicable AND THAT the Lessee will not place nor 
cause to be placed on or in the goods lift any thing or things of 
or aggregating a weight exceeding eleven thousand pounds gross 
or of a nature likely to cause damage to it PROVIDED FUR­ 
THER that the Lessee will upon demand pay to the Lessor one 
half of the cost as certified by the Chief Civil Engineer for the 
time being of the Lessor or such other officer as may at any time 40 
or from time to time be deputed by the Lessor for that purpose 
of repairing and maintaining any floor wall and ceiling of the 
area reserved out of this lease by the Lessor for access from 
Wynyard Lane to the goods lift of the Lessor and shown marked 
'approach' on the plan of level 'J' in the plan hereto annexed 
marked 'D' and of any fittings or other things of any kind or 
nature appertaining thereto PROVIDED FURTHER that the
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said payment at the rate of three hundred pounds shall he in the 
reduced to a payment at the rate of two hundred pounds payable _. Supreme
. •..-. r J . , -if. • -I -i • j. j? i • n Court of Newin like manner as is nerembeiore provided in respect 01 the said south Wales 
sum of three hundred pounds from the first day of the calendar E in- itsbl 
year following that in which the Lessee installs a goods lift jurisdiction. 
adjacent to the goods lift of the Lessor subject to the Lessee N̂ g 
maintaining such lift in good repair and refraining from using judgment of 
the Lessor's goods lift for the carrying of loads which are within McLeiiand j. 
the capacity of the Lessee's said goods lift PROVIDED ALSO February, 

10 that the said annual payment at the rate of three hundred pounds 
whether so reduced or not may be reviewed by the Lessor after 
the expiration of ten years from the date of the commencement 
of this lease AND THAT in case of the breach non-observance 
or non-performance by the Lessee of any covenant condition 
proviso stipulation and agreement in this deed of lease con­ 
tained or implied on the part of the Lessee to be observed or 
performed the Lessor shall at any time thereafter be entitled 
to terminate the said licence without notice.
XI. THAT in the event of any dispute arising as to the mean- 

20 ing or effect of any covenant condition proviso stipulation agree­ 
ment or term herein contained or referred to or as to any other 
matter relative thereto the decision of the Lessor shall be final 
and conclusive but the Lessor will as far as to it seems practi­ 
cable refrain from making any decision which would unreason­ 
ably subject the Lessee to risk of forfeiture.
XII. THAT no approval or notice herein required to be given 
by or on behalf of the Lessor shall be effective for any purpose 
whatsoever unless it is in writing and any approval of the Lessor 
may at any time or from time to time be wholly or partly with-

30 drawn PROVIDED THAT the withdrawal of any approval 
shall not be made arbitrarily but the Lessor will as far as in its 
opinion its or public convenience or requirements may permit 
will refrain from causing unreasonable inconvenience to or 
interference with the Lessee his sub-lessee or sub-tenant AND 
PROVIDED ALSO that approval of a sub-letting will in no case 
be withdrawn unless the Lessee having been informed in writing 
of any objection thereto and having had such time for overcom­ 
ing such objection as is fixed by the Lessor (a request for reason­ 
able extension of which will be granted) has failed or refused

40 to do so."
The description of the land and reservations and plans annexed 

to the lease were also referred to but, in order to follow these, it is 
necessary to examine the original document.

Apart from the sub-structure there must have been at the date of 
the lease other structures on the land but what these precisely were the 
evidence does not enable me to say.
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in the In 1928 the cost of the Innes-Kerr building was estimated to be 
£600,000. At the date of the lease I am satisfied that the cost of such 

South Wales a building would have been substantially more, approximately perhaps 
EquMie £!>500,000. In 1954 the cost of such a building would probably have 

Jurisdiction, been several millions of pounds.
NO. 26. The plans and particulars of the proposed alterations were pre- 

j°! Pared on behalf of Mrs Gardiner and Permanent Trustee Co. of N.S.W. 
nth Limited by Mr Warden, an architect. The particulars of material 

1958^' alterations, prepared by Mr Warden and supplied to the plaintiff, con-
tained the following: 10

"It is proposed to carry up the existing reinforced concrete 
columns and steel stanchions to the new section to the sizes and 
heights required for the eventual building, also to construct a 
reinforced concrete slab over the new portion to form the 
roof of sufficient strength to form the floor slab of the 
eventual higher structure. The new facade, which will 
extend the whole frontage in George Street, is the perma­ 
nent front that will be used in the eventual higher structure, 
also the steel frames to the windows, this facade will be treated 
in texture bricks with a coloured ornamental coping on top." 20

On the 28th August, 1941, Permanent Trustee Co. of N.S.W. 
Limited wrote to the estate agent for the plaintiff as follows:—

"Towards the end of June, you had submitted to you, and 
approved of, certain plans for the additional accommodation 
required by the Licensing Authorities at the 'Plaza' Hotel.

As you are aware, the Executors are prohibited by Common­ 
wealth Government Eegulations, from complying with the build­ 
ing covenant provided for in Clause 4 of the lease, but the 
Capital Issues and Building Control Branch approved of an 
expenditure of £10,000/-/-. 30

Tenders were called, and the lowest of twelve tenders received 
was that of Messrs. Hutcherson Bros, amounting to £10,493/-/".

On further application to the Building Control Branch, formal 
consent was given to the expenditure of £ll,130/-/-, which repre­ 
sents the amount of the above tender, plus architect's fees at 
&%.

Since the plans were submitted to you, a slight alteration was 
considered advisable, so as to provide for a small office and 
kitchenette at the top of the stairs leading into the residential 
portion. This accommodation has been provided by reducing 40 
the size of the men's toilet.

The alteration meets with the approval of the City Council, 
and of the Licensing Authorities, and we shall be glad to have 
your formal approval as soon as possible.
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We have had a separate plan prepared, showing the altera- in the 
tions, and we forward it herewith for your inspection and reten- cm^
tion. South Wales

in its
The Contract with the Builder is before us, for signature, and Equitable

we understand he intends commencing his building on Monday uns
next. Your early reply will, therefore, be much appreciated. NO. 26.

Judgment of
A selection of bricks is being made for use in the facade of McLeUand j., 

the building, and if you would care to have a voice in the selec- February, 
tion, the writer would be pleased to so arrange." 19?8~~,-1 ° continued.

10 The offer contained in the last paragraph was subsequently 
accepted by the plaintiff.

On the 9th October, 1941, the Secretary of the plaintiff wrote to 
the Secretary of the Minister for Transport as follows:—

"The lease was completed recently and operates from the 
1st July, 1941.

There has been no variation in the terms of the Agreement for 
Lease in regard to the amount to be expended on the building, 
but such expenditure will doubtless be limited by National Emer­ 
gency legislation. The comparatively minor building now being 

20 erected is simply to comply with the requirements of the Liquor 
Act and does not represent the fulfilment of requirements of the 
erection of a building worth £150,000."

On the 20th October, 1941, Mr Stanley apparently received from 
the plaintiff copies of two plans of the original Innes-Kerr design. 
One showed the facade at George Street and the other showed the 
facade at Carrington Street. On copies remaining with the plaintiff, 
Mr Stanley wrote "Official facade copy received October 20th 1941", 
but under what circumstances, for what purpose and on whose behalf 
the evidence does not disclose. The facade, which is shown in the 

30 plans prepared by Mr Warden and sent to the plaintiff, is quite dis­ 
similar to that portion of the Innes-Kerr facade which disclosed the 
same storeys.

It seems that the executors employed Mr Roberts to do some 
managerial work for them in connection with the Plaza Hotel and 
shops and some letters were written by Mr Roberts to the plaintiff 
(to which I have already referred) using the letterhead showing "Hotel 
under Construction". The last in date appears to be the 25th Novem­ 
ber, 1941.

The plans prepared by Mr Warden were modified at various times 
40 to suit the requirements of the plaintiff and the building was completed 

on 30th November, 1942.
On the 10th July, 1942, the defendant entered into an agreement 

with Permanent Trustee Co. of N.S.W. Limited and Rachel Gardiner
•38632—17
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in the as executors of the will of Joseph Reuben Grardiner deceased to pur- 
™New cnase the interest of the executors in the lease for the sum of £56,364. 

South Wales By the agreement, it was provided that the purchaser should covenant 
EquttSbte ^° Pa^' Perf°rm an^ observe and to indemnify the executors against 

Jurisdiction, the rents and covenants of the lease. The executors were to be entitled 
No~26 to the rents an(l profits and were to pay and bear all rates, taxes and 

Judgment of outgoings up to the date of completion.
McLslland J.,

nth On the 28th August, 1942, a firm of accountants acting for the
Fi958^7' parties wrote to the Comptroller of Accounts of the plaintiff in the
continued, following terms: 10

"We are enclosing herewith cheques for £108:2:3 and 
£216: 4: 5 in settlement of your account re Estate J. E. Gardiner 
for £324:6:8.

You have probably been informed that the lease has now been 
purchased by Avrom Investments Proprietary Limited, and we 
would ask you to please send all correspondence in future, to the 
registered office in New South Wales, Eawson Chambers, 333 
Eawson Place, Sydney.

Will you kindly forward separate receipts for this payment.''
It seems, therefore, that the defendant must have gone into pos- 20 

session shortly before the date of this letter.
On the 24th February, 1943, the executors with the consent of the 

plaintiff transferred and assigned the lease to the defendant and, in 
consideration of such consent, the defendant for itself, its successors 
in title and permitted assigns expressly covenanted with the plaintiff 
that:

"(a) Any and every covenant condition proviso stipulation and 
agreement of the said Memorandum of Lease hereafter to 
be performed or observed by the Lessee shall be binding 
upon it and them as fully and effectually as in the said 30 
Memorandum of Lease set forth.

(b) Clause XIV of the said Memorandum of Lease shall not 
operate at law in equity or otherwise hereafter to affect the 
full performance and observance of any covenant condition 
proviso stipulation and agreement of the said Memorandum 
of Lease according to the tenor thereof by the said Trans­ 
feree its successors in title and permitted assign."

The word "lessee" wherever appearing in the Memorandum of 
Lease and in the Instrument of Lease was thereafter to be read and 
construed as meaning and referring to the defendant. 40

On the 24th January, 1944, the defendant wrote to the plaintiff 
requesting a reduction of rent to £9,000 per annum "until two years 
after such time as we are permitted to go ahead with the building 
scheme as provided for in clause 4 of the lease".
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On the 31st May, 1944, the National Security (Building Operations) in 
Regulations were promulgated. These replaced the earlier Building 
Control Regulations but for all purposes material to this suit continued South Wales 
to have the same effect as the earlier regulations. Equilable

On the 23rd May, 1944, the defendant, whilst writing to the plain- —— 
tiff concerning a complaint about ventilators which had been erected Ju^ê ' of
by tenants, wrote, inter alia: McLeiiand J.,

nth 
"..... We have taken steps to see that nothing of this nature, February,
or, for that matter, any building operations, are commenced continued. 

10 without due reference to you as provided in the lease."
On the 31st October, 194"), the defendant wrote to the plaintiff a 

letter in the following terms:—
"Since this Company acquired the Leasehold, of the Hotel and 
Arcades of Shops, certain expenditure has been incurred which 
it is considered would form part of the £150,000 to be spent by 
the Company, in accordance with the Lease.
Attached is a schedule giving details of this expenditure, and 
we should be glad if you would confirm the fact that these items 
may be included as part of that amount.

20 It is pointed out that this Company will be assisted in any 
negotiations it makes with the Taxation Department regarding 
the allowance of this expenditure under the heading of 'Lease­ 
hold Amortization', if we are in possession of a Certificate from 
your Department which recognises the amount."

The Schedule set out six items amounting to £638.
On the 21st December, 1945, the plaintiff wrote to the defendant 

that it did not consider that certain of the items totalling about £270 
could be regarded as part of the permanent structure but that the 
remaining items in the list were acceptable.

30 On the 16th January, 194G, The Building Operations and Building 
Materials Control Act, a New South Wales Act, was assented to to 
commence upon a day to be proclaimed which in fact was 4th February, 
1946.

On the 6th February, 1946, by regulation made under the National 
Security Act, the National Security (Building Operations) Regulations 
ceased to apply in New South Wales. Section 5 (1) of the Act provided:

"A person shall not, without the consent in writing of the 
Minister, commence or continue to carry out any building 
operations."

tr\ So far as is material, the effect of this Act was the same as the 
effect of the Building Operations Regulations.
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in the Section 26 of the Act was in the following terms : — 
Court of New "This Act shall remain in force until the thirtieth day of June,

oue thousand nine hundred and forty-six: Provided that the 
Equitable. Governor may from time to time by regulation extend the opera- 

Of ^g ^.^ £or Sucj1 peri0(j or periods as he may determine.
NO. 26. Any such period shall not exceed three months. ' '

J*., By a series of proclamations the operation of the Act was extended
., * lth until the 30th September, 1952.February, L '

°n the 28tl1 February> 1946> the defendant wrote a letter to the 
pja ' n^ jn ^e following terms : — 10

"Mr D. F. Cowell Ham has been appointed Architect to this 
Company for the building proposed for this site.

For this purpose, it is necessary that he have access to the 
original foundation plans and other relative information, all 
of which are held by the Department.

We ask that you will be good enough to allow him this privilege 
and shall appreciate any assistance which the Department can 
give in this connection."

and on the 7th May, 1946, the plaintiff supplied the plans as requested.
On the 12th June, 1946, an order was made under section 40A 20 

of the Liquor Act, 1912, as amended, requiring certain work to be 
done in the dining room, kitchen and bars.

Mr Cowell Ham, a Melbourne architect, and Mr Nicholls, a Sydney 
architect, were engaged by the defendant to plan and supervise the 
work.

On the 7th March, 1947, the defendant wrote a letter to the plaintiff 
which contained, inter alia, the following: —

"The third question was that of the re-adjustment of the 
rentals and term of the lease.

It was, of course, in the contemplation of the parties when 30 
the lease was entered into —

(a) That the Commissioners should have the ultimate benefit 
of the expenditure of a sum of £150,000 on the site, and

(b) That the Company should have the benefit of the full 
and economic use of the whole site.

The result of the war was to frustrate the intention of the 
parties with regard to both these matters.

The Commissioners have lost the benefit of the covenant to 
expend the moneys and the Company has lost six years benefit 
of the user of the site in respect of the following matters. 49

Firstly, the Company was unable to expend the £150,000 and 
was, therefore, unable to get the benefit of the site, except to 
a trifling extent above the George Street level.
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Secondly, the Company was unable by reason of building in the 
restrictions to let the Hunter Street level at all. Without tak- cour 
ing into account the improved rents which might have been South 
obtained therefor by the installation of ventilators and escalators Equilabk 
the loss to the Company has been, at the very least, at the rate Jurisdiction. 
of 4s. 4d. per square foot per annum, this being the sum at which, NO. 26. 
we understand, your officers valued the site some years ago in its Judgment of. , J jo McLelland J.,present state. nth

February,
Thirdly, and probably most importantly, the Company has 1958— 

10 been prevented from building out to its building line in George continued- 
Street, i.e. to within six feet of the pillars where the entrance 
is splayed at George Street and to the George Street building 
line in the centre. The sites which it has been compelled thus 
to leave idle and unproductive are of very great value, indeed 
we estimate that an additional rental of above £100 per week 
(say £5,000 p.a.) could be obtained from the letting of them.

Fourthly, the war-time legislation has pegged the rents of 
the premises at their unduly low 1939 figures and has prevented 
the Company from obtaining increased rents commensurate with 

20 the rising rent being paid under the Head Lease.
We do not know what view the Commissioners take of the 

effect which the rent fixing provisions of the Landlord and Tenant 
Regulations will have upon their right to receive the increased 
rent of £19,200 set out in the Lease. During our recent dis­ 
cussion, it was put upon the footing that the Lease provided for 
the increase. This however, does not appear to us necessarily 
to make it payable since the Regulations fix the rent regardless 
of the provisions of the Lease at that payable at the 1st March, 
1945. This, however, is an aspect which could be regularised by 

30 obtaining the Rent Controller's approval to any arrangement 
ultimately agreed to between us.

We concede that during the war the Lessee did obtain some 
compensation for the restrictions before mentioned by reason of 
its increased bar trade in the Hotel. This increase was, of 
course, due not only to the war but to the application of the 
Lessee's skill, enterprise and trading capacity to the situation 
which had arisen. To whatever extent this was a compensatory 
advantage it has now, of course, ceased to be so with the dis- 
bandment of the Forces and the departure of the Allied 

40 Troops."
In connection with these matters, the defendant made certain pro­ 

posals to the plaintiff.
On the 1st July, 1947 in a letter to the plaintiff the defendant 

said;
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in the "In addition, the recent pronouncements by Mr McGrirr con­ 
cerning his building programme appear to us to make the pos­ 
sibilities for permanent structure, grimmer than ever."

On the 10th July, 1947 the defendant wrote a letter to the plaintiff 
in the following terms:—

"We have read a letter dated 26th June 1947 written by your 
Chief Civil Engineer, Major General A. C. Fewtrell, to Mr D. F. 
Cowell Ham, suggesting that this Company write to you regard­ 
ing his connection with the work at present being carried out 
at Wynyard and with the proposed future building. 10

Mr Ham and Mr E. M. Nicholls have been retained as Archi­ 
tects in conjunction, to supervise the work at present being 
carried out at the Hotel Plaza. A large part of this work will be 
of a permanent nature but certain portions will have to be rebuilt 
when the ultimate building scheme is put in hand.

With regard to the development of the site as required under 
the terms of our lease, this has been treated as a matter entirely 
separate from the present work.

Mr Ham is the sole appointee of the Company to prepare 
designs covering an expenditure of £150,000, having regard of 20 
course to possible further development. Suggestions have been 
made by him and are being fully investigated by the Company 
and we hope shortly to be in a position to submit them for your 
Department's approval.

Mr Ham has advised us that he has retained Messrs Stanley 
and Llewellyn as Consultant Engineers for both projects."

Mr Stanley was the same Mr Stanley as had been associated 
with the Innes-Kerr plans and it was he of that firm and not Mr Llewel­ 
lyn who was doing the actual work.

On the 12th September, 1947, Mr Ham forwarded to the engineers 30 
branch of the plaintiff some diagrammatic plans of "the proposed 
future extensions which indicate the alternative positions of the major 
trusses." Alternative schemes in diagrammatic form are shown for 
buildings in part to the full height. Mr Ham's letter indicated that it 
was proposed to develop the Carrington Street frontage first.

On the 29th September, 1947, Mr Ham wrote to the plaintiff with 
a view to a conference between the parties concerning the proposed new 
building "for a discussion relative to the proposed accommodation 
that the Company is desirous of providing in the first section of the 
building". 40

On the 14th October, 1947, a conference was held and at the con­ 
ference Mr Ham indicated that the diagrams which had been forwarded 
wore subject to amendment.
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Amended plans continued to be prepared in connection with the in the 
work in the dining room, bars, etc. and this work was finally completed ctmrt 
by January, 1950. South Wales

On the 19th December, 1950, the defendant wrote a letter to the Equitable 
Secretary of the plaintiff in the following terms:— Jurisdiction.

'' The attached schedule sets out details of expenditure j No- 26 - 
incurred by this Company in carrying out construction work to MdUUand <£, 
Wynyard Leasehold property to comply with— i lth

a. Orders from the Licensing Court. 1958—
continued.

10 b. Orders from the City Council.
c. Improvements and additions to the property, which were 

not the subject of orders from Statutory Authorities.
These alterations have been made in accordance with plans 

submitted to, and approved by, the Commissioner for Railways, 
the Licensing Court and the City Council.

The costs were incurred during period March 1947 to June 
1950, and it is the submission of this Company that the total 
of £77,215-15-8 is portion of the Capital Expenditure of 
£150,000-0-0 to which it is committed under Clause 4 of the Lease.

20 We shall be glad if you will confer with the Commissioner on 
this matter and obtain his approval, or submit to us any further 
requisitions he may desire to make."

The Schedule set out details showing a total cost on building of 
£56,966/2/9 and a total cost 011 plant of £20,249/12/11.

Apart from an acknowledgment of this letter and of further corre­ 
spondence requesting a reply, there is no evidence to show what the 
plaintiff's attitude was.

Between the 14th February, 1945, and the 13th April, 1953, corre­ 
spondence passed between the parties relating to anti-corrosion mea- 

30 sures to be taken in respect of exposed steel work on the Carrington 
Street side of the premises and from time to time necessary work was 
•carried out by the plaintiff and paid for by the defendant or carried 
out by the defendant.

As I have already mentioned, the Building Operations and Build­ 
ing Materials Control Act, 1946, came to an end on the 30th September, 
1952.

I am satisfied that from the commencement of the lease until the 
30th September, 1952, it would not have been lawful for the defendant 
to have erected, constructed or completed a building in the terms of 

40 clause (4) of the lease.
There is no evidence that any application was ever made to the 

Treasurer under the National Security (Building Control) Regulations 
or to the Minister nnder thfe Building Operations and Building
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in the Materials Control Act for permission to erect a building of the nature 
,„„,. JrNew described in clause 4 of the Iease7 but it is clear that any such applica- 
'southWaUs tion could only have been a mere gesture and could not have succeeded. 

Editable During the period no hotels were allowed to be built. During the 
jurisdiction, period the Licensing Court obviously acted upon that view. It is 

No~26 fairly clear that during the period the parties, accepted the position 
judgment pf that an application for leave to erect a building of the nature described 
MoL nthd J ' in cl&use W could not have succeeded.

February, prior to 1954 the defen(jant had embarked upon the work of 
continued, remodelling the southern bars including the construction of new cool 10 

room and plans for this work had been approved by the plaintiff and 
approval for the doing of this work had been granted by the Licensing 
Court on the 21st March, 1953.

On the 14th July, 1953, the Metropolitan Licensing Inspector gave 
notice of intention to apply under section 40A of the Liquor Act, 1912- 
1946, for an order directing the construction, inter alia, of 200 bed­ 
rooms.

Section 40A of the Liquor Act as it then stood was in the following 
terms:—

"40A. (1) (a) Upon proof that public convenience requires addi- 20 
tional accommodation in, or the renovation, structural 
alteration, or rebuilding of any premises in respect of which a 
publican's license is held, the licensing court may order the owner 
of the premises to carry out, within a reasonable time to be set 
out in the order, the work specified in the order.

(b) Not less than thirty days' notice of intention to make appli­ 
cation for any order under this subsection shall be given to the 
owner and to the occupier of the premises, and to the clerk of 
the licensing court for the licensing district.

(c) The Notice shall set out reasonable particulars of the 30 
work which it is proposed to ask the court to order to be done.

(2) Where an order has been made under the last preceding 
subsection—

(a) the court may if it thinks fit authorise an increase or 
decrease of the area licensed, and thereafter renew the 
license for the premises with the area so increased or 
decreased;

(b) where an owner has carried out the work and he is not 
the occupier of the premises, the occupier shall, during 
the remainder of his tenancy, pay to the owner, by way 49 
of increase in the rent, an amount at the rate of eight 
pounds per centum per annum on the total amount 
expended by the owner in carrying out such work;
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No. 26.

nth

continued.

(c) where the work is not completed by the owner within in the 
the time specified in the order, the court may if it thinks 
fit, upon application made for the purpose, extend the South Wales

-, in its
Equitable

(d) if the owner fails to carry out the work within the time 
allowed by the court, the occupier may within the pre- 
scribed period make application to the court for an 
authority to carry out the same, and the provisions of 
subsection six of this section shall apply accordingly ;

10 (e) upon proof to the satisfaction of the court that—
(i) an owner has failed to comply with an order 

within the time allowed by the court, and that no 
authority as aforesaid has been granted to the 
occupier to carry out the work; or

(ii) an occupier has failed to carry out the work 
within the period specified in an authority 
granted to him under this subsection,

the court may suspend the license for such period as it thinks 
fit, or may cancel the license.

20 (3) The making of any such order shall not prevent the owner 
and occupier of any such premises from surrendering the license 
and receiving compensation in pursuance of section twelve of 
the Liquor (Amendment) Act, 1919.

(4) Pending the completion of any such work, the licensing 
court may renew the license for the premises notwithstanding 
the temporary non-provision of the required accommodation, 
or the temporary carrying on of the business on neighbouring 
premises or on part of the licensed premises, and on the com­ 
pletion of the work may thereafter renew the license for the 

30 premises so altered.
(5) In any award of compensation under Part II of the Liquor 

(Amendment) Act, 1919, in respect of the closing of any such 
premises, any additional loss arising through the carrying out 
of any work under an order made by the court in pursuance 
of this section shall be taken into consideration.

(6) Where the occupier of any such premises is not the owner 
thereof, and is not under covenant or agreement with the owner 
to do any work which the court may order under this section, 
the owner shall pay to such occupier any money expended by him 

40 pursuant to paragraph (d) of subsection two of this section in 
carrying out any such work, and in default such occupier shall, 
in addition to any other remedy available to him, be entitled to 
retain possession of the premises at the same rental he was 
paying at the time the expenditure was incurred, until the rent

*88632 — 17A
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accruing is sufficient to repay him the money expended as afore­ 
said, and such rent may be retained by him, and the authority of 
this Act shall be an answer to any action by the owner for the 
recovery of the same. The occupier shall pay to the owner 
during the remainder of his tenancy by way of increase in the 
rent an amount at the rate of six pounds per centum per annum 
on the total amount so expended by the occupier.

(6A) Where an order is made under subsection one of this 
section it shall be lawful for the owner of the licensed premises 
to which the order relates to authorise his architect and con- 10 
tractor, together with such of their employees as may be neces­ 
sary, to enter upon the licensed premises for purposes of or 
connected with the carrying out of the order, and such architect, 
contractor and employees may enter accordingly and do and 
perform all such acts matters and things as may be necessary or 
convenient for those purposes.

(7) For the purposes of this and the twenty-ninth section of 
this Act, 'additional accommodation' shall include the provision 
of additional sitting rooms and sleeping rooms and of facilities 
for the consumption of liquor at tables in lounges, gardens, under 20 
awnings or in the open air, the provision of a bottle department, 
the provision of bath facilities, the erection of garages for the 
accommodation of motor vehicles, the installation of a water stor­ 
age system in cases where a water supply service is not avail­ 
able, the provision of additional closets, privies and other sani­ 
tary necessities.

(8) The provisions of this section shall extend and apply to 
premises in respect of which an Australian wine license is held 
in like manner as those provisions apply to premises in respect 
of which a publican's license is held." 30

Certain amendments were made to the section by the Liquor 
(Amendment) Act, 1954, which commenced on the 1st February, 1955, 
including an amendment by which the following paragraph was added 
to the end of section 40A (2) :

"The court may, on application being made by the owner or 
occupier or district licensing inspector, subject to such conditions 
as it considers fit, revoke, or vary the terms of, an order made 
under paragraph (a) of subsection one of this section."

It will be convenient to refer also to the terms of section 40 (2) 
of the Liquor Act, 1912-1954, which are in the following terms, the 40 
words underlined having been added by the 1954 Act:

"40. (2) (a) In this subsection 'licensed premises' means 
premises in respect of which a publican's license or an Australian 
wine license or a spirit merchant's license is held.
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(b) Any owner or licensee of licensed premises, who is desirous In the 
of making any material alterations or additions thereto or of
increasing or decreasing the area of the licensed premises, shall 8outh 
apply to the court for authority so to do, and shall furnish Equitable 
the court with a properly drawn plan showing the character Junsdlcllon- 
of the alterations or additions or increase or decrease proposed No. 26.
, , , ^ —— -^——— — —— —— Judgment of 
to be made. McLellandJ.,

(c) On granting any such authority the court shall specify a 
period within which the proposed alterations or additions or 1953— Y' 

10 increase or decrease shall be completed, and the authority shall conhnued- 
remain in force until the expiration of such period or of such 
further period or periods (not exceeding six months at any one 
time) as the court, upon application made for the purpose, may 
allow.

(d) If any owner or licensee of licensed premises makes any 
material alteration or additions thereto or increase or decrease 
of area thereof without the authority of the court granted under 
this section he shall be liable to a penalty not exceeding one 
hundred pounds."

20 Mr Cowell Ham had prepared plans for additional accommodation. 
On the 3rd November, 1953 the solicitors for the defendant wrote 

to the solicitor for the plaintiff in the following terms : —
"Referring to your letter of the 19th October and our letter 

of the 23rd, we desire to inform you that as a result of confer­ 
ences we have held, our clients propose at the Hearing on the 9th 
instant to consent to the making of an Order for the construc­ 
tion of one hundred bedrooms with their ancillary sitting rooms 
bath and toilet facilities in accordance with Plans to be submitted 
for approval within six months, the work to be carried out 

30 within twelve months.
If as we expect this Order will be made on Monday next, we 

shall after obtaining the approval of the Licensing authorities 
to the Plans, submit them to the Commissioner for his approval 
before lodging them with the City Council for its approval." 

At all material times the licensee and nominal occupier of the 
hotel was John Bonaventure Limerick named a defendant in the suit 
but he, of course, was only the agent of the defendant.

On the 9th November, 1953 the application under section 40A 
came on for hearing and a consent order was made by the Licensing 

40 Court.
The minute of the proceedings before the Licensing Court is in the 

following terms: —
"APPLICATION BY THE METROPOLITAN LICENSING 
INSPECTOR FOR AN ORDER UNDER SECTION 4(k IN 
RESPECT OF THE 'PLAZA' HOTEL, SYDNEY.
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CHAIRMAN WE MAKE ORDER THEN FOR 100 BED­ 
ROOMS 4 TOILET BLOCKS AND ADEQUATE TOILET 
AND BATHROOMS.
PLANS TO BE LODGED BY 31st March, 1954, AND BUILD­ 
ING TO BE COMPLETED BY 31st March, 1955. 
ESTIMATED COST £200,000.
PLANS FOR CARRINGTON STREET EXTENSION TO BE 
LODGED AT SAME TIME. 
CARRINGTON STREET EXTENSION COST £50,000.

J. BLISS 10 
CHAIRMAN

R. M. STEWART MEMBER 
METROPOLITAN LICENSING COURT, 

42 Bridge Street, Sydney. 
9th Nov., 1953."

The order made by the Licensing- Court was in the following terms: 
"ORDER TO CARRY OUT WORK AT PREMISES IN 
RESPECT OF WHICH A PUBLICAN'S OR AN AUSTRA­ 
LIAN WINE LICENSE IS HELD

LIQUOR ACT, 1912, SECTION 40A. 
PREMISES: ' PLAZA' HOTEL,

293 George Street, SYDNEY.
LICENSING DISTRICT: METROPOLITAN. 
OWNER: Commissioner for Railways. 
OCCUPIER: John Bonaventure Limerick. 
IN PURSUANCE of the provisions of Section 40A of the Liquor 
Act, 1912, THE COURT DOTH ORDER that the work specified 
in the Schedule hereunder shall be carried out by the owner of 
the premises herein named by the 31st March, 1955. 
Schedule of work to be carried out:—
Construct an addition to the building in brick or concrete and 
to contain the undermentioned accommodation:— 
100 public bedrooms, 
four sitting rooms.
Adequate toilet blocks complete with baths, shower recesses, 

water closets and wash basins.
(PLANS TO BE LODGED BY 31si MARCH 1954)

GIVEN under my hand and the Seal of the said Court at 42 
Bridge Street, Sydney this ninth day of November 1953.

J. BLISS
Chairman and Licensing Magistrate 

constituting the Licensing Court for 
the Metropolitan Licensing District."

20

30

40
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On the 1st March, 1954, on the application of the defendant the in the 
time for lodging plans was extended to the 30th April, 1954. On the 
21st April, 1954, the solicitor for the defendant wrote to the Secretary South Wales 
for the plaintiff in the following terms: — Equitable 

"We forward you herewith a copy of the basic plans for addi- Jurisdiction. 
tions to be made to the existing Plaza Hotel building in com- NO . 26.
pliance with an order made under Section 4(k of the Liquor ^^™en* °f 
Act on the 9th November last, together with a copy of a letter nth
addressed to the Licensing Court by the Architect, Mr D. F. 

10 Cowell Ham, and formally seek your approval to these plans continued. 
as required by the terms of the Lease.

A copy of these plans has already been handed to a repre­ 
sentative of the Chief Civil Engineer, in order to expedite his 
consideration thereof and recommendations to you.

The Lessee, under the terms of the order, is obliged to lodge 
the plans with the Licensing Court for approval not later than 
the 30th instant, and we propose to lodge the plans and the letter 
from Mr Ham forthwith, requesting the Court to approve of 
them as sufficient compliance with the order made, having regard 

20 to the peculiar difficulties of the site and the enormous cost 
involved.

Following lodgement of the plans, it is likely that the matter 
will be listed some time late in May for the formal hearing of 
the application for approval and we should like very much to 
have your approval before this hearing.

We shall esteem it a favour therefore if you will give the
matter your urgent consideration, and if there is any matter
arising out of these plans and proposals on which you would
like further information, the writer, with the New South Wales

30 Manager of the Lessee Company, will be glad to confer with
you at a suitable time."

The plans provided for a building which did not cover the whole 
site and provided for an additional number of bedrooms to be placed 
on the 1st floor level above Carrington Street and on the 3rd floor 
level above George Street. In his letter, Mr. Ham estimated the cost 
of the structure equipment and furniture to be £380,000 and stated 
that the work was expected to take two years to complete.

On the 28th April, 1954, the plans were submitted by the defendant 
to the Court.

40 On the 7th May, 1954, the solicitors for the defendant forwarded 
an amended Sheet 5 to the Secretary for the plaintiff.

On the 21st May, 1954, the solicitor for the plaintiff wrote to the 
solicitors for the defendant in the following terms : —

"Your letters of 21st ultimo and 7th instant have been referred 
to me, and I am instructed that the Commissioner approves of
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the plans submitted with your letter of 21st ultimo as amended 
by the plan submitted with your letter of 7th instant, subject 
to the building being constructed in accordance with the require­ 
ments of any civil, licensing or other authorities, as well as the 
Commissioner, and subject, also, to the following modifications 
and conditions:—

1. The area on the first floor level between Wynyard Lane and 
Carrington Street which has not been allocated for any particu­ 
lar purpose is not to be used as a car parking area, and if used 
for storage the loading on the floor shall not exceed 100 Ibs. per JQ 
sq. ft. In this connection, it is noted that if the area in question 
is converted at any future date into shops or offices the entrance 
from the concourse on the second floor to the access stairway 
will have to be modified to meet the Commissioner's require­ 
ments, and the door opening into the bar will have to be bricked 
up if the Commissioner so requires.

2. A brick fence, not less than 6 ft. high, or similar type of 
fence, is to be erected on the Carrington Street boundary from 
the proposed building to Shell House.

3. The stairway from the Concourse on the second floor to 20 
Wynyard Lane is to be moved slightly towards Carrington 
Street so that at least 7 ft. 6 in. head room is provided to the 
underside of the floor of the male lavatory.

4. The 5 ft. 3 in. wide corridor at the Western end of the third 
floor shall not be reduced in width where columns occur to less 
than a width of 3 ft. 9 in.

5. Mechanical exhaust ventilation is to be provided to bath­ 
rooms and W.Cs. between bedrooms 29 and 30, those adjoining 
bedrooms 32, 51 and 52, and the bathrooms of bedrooms Nos. 1 
to 7, and 16 to 26, inclusive, on the third floor level, also the 30 
shops and W.C. in the female lavatory on the second floor level.

6. Provision is to be made to ventilate mechanically, at a 
future date, the existing offices and conveniences facing west on 
the first floor level, also the present unoccupied areas shown on 
drawing of this and other floor levels.

7. The existing ventilating ducts are to be carried up and 
discharged above the new roof level or as may be directed by 
the Department.

8. Exposed service pipes under the third floor level and over 
Wynyard Lane are to be encased where exposed to view, and 40 
the minimum height and clearance over Wynyard Lane are to 
be maintained. Adequate sized ducts for all services are to be 
provided on all floors sufficient for future extensions of the 
building.
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9. Provision is to be made in the construction of the building 
for the support of the new elevator and the installation, at a 
future date, when the building is carried up to the maximum South Wales 
height allowed by the building- regulations, of additional Equitable
elevators. Jurisdiction.

10. The columns, beams and other structural work are to be No. 26. 
designed and constructed so as to permit the building being j^Sand J., 
carried up to the full height allowed by the building regulations. llth

February,
11. Detail drawings, specifications and calculations of the 1958— 

10 structural work, mechanical ventilation, sewer and drainage, and continued- 
all other services, are to be submitted to the Department for 
approval before any work is commenced. These drawings are 
to have the approval of the Sydney City Council, Metropolitan 
Water, Sewerage and Drainage Board, and such other authorities 
as may be concerned, before being submitted.

12. The maintenance of the building, including all services and 
mechanical ventilation and other equipment, is to be carried out 
at all times to the satisfaction of the Department.

13. A window is to be provided in the W.C. of the female 
20 convenience in the beer garden provided for in amended Sheet 5 

of the plans."
On the 26th May, 1954, an application was made by the defendant 

to the Licensing Court.
A transcript of the proceedings and of the minute made by the 

Court is in the following terms:—
"APPLICATION No. 1

APPLICATION BY AVROM INVESTMENTS PTY. LTD. 
FOR APPROVAL OF PLANS ON ORDER UNDER SECTION 
4(k IN RESPECT OF PREMISES SITUATE AT GEORGE 

30 STREET, SYDNEY, AND KNOWN AS THE 'PLAZA' 
HOTEL.
Const. Taylor for the M.L.I. 
Mr. Wailes for the Applicant.
BENCH ...... The number of rooms is short of the
figure asked but is satisfactory. Alterations are sufficient and 
I offer no objection.
MR WAILES ..... There is an additional plan lodged. Sheet 
No. 5. This had to be substituted for the original one.
BENCH ...... Subject to the addition of that the plans are

40 approved.
MR WAILES .... I have copies of letters from the Railways. 
PRODUCES COPIES TO THE BENCH ....
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10

20

SUBJECT TO THE PROVISION OF ONE EXTRA W.C. FOR 
FEMALES AND FOUR URINALS AND WIDENING OF 
THE DOORWAY, PLANS ARE APPROVED. 
PLANS APPROVED SUBJECT TO ADDITIONS.

J. BLISS
Chairman. 

(Sgd.) G. Stewart
Member. 

18/4/55
Amendment approved 

(see papers 9/11/53) 
Metropolitan Licensing Court, 

42 Bridge Street, Sydney, 
26 May, 1954."

The notation under date 18/4/55 was obviously not on the minute as 
made on the 26th May, 1954, but I have included the notation for 
completeness.

These plans provided for 62 additional bedrooms with lounges and 
auxiliary facilities and, with the alterations made to them subsequently, 
I shall refer to them as the 1954 plans.

On the 4th June, 1954, the defendant let a contract for structural 
work on columns 76, 51 and 26 and for other associated work at a total 
cost of £16,237. This work was completed in May, 1955.

On the 6th August, 1954, the solicitors for the defendant wrote to 
the solicitor for the plaintiff in reference particularly to the condition 
10 referred to in the letter of the 21st May, 1954, and requesting a 
conference to discuss the difficulties involved.

On the 19th August, 1954, the solicitors for the defendant wrote 
a letter to the plaintiff in the following terms:— OQ

"We refer to the letter to us dated 21st May, 1954, from the 
Solicitor for Railways approving of the plans submitted by 
us for additions to the existing hotel building and to the confer­ 
ence with your officers on 18th instant at which in particular 
condition 10 as set out in the letter was discussed.

As you are aware, prior to the Licensing Court requiring the 
construction of additional bedrooms, the Lessee Company had 
embarked upon the remodelling of the Southern Bars including 
the construction of new cool rooms and its plans approved by 
you. 40

As a direct result of the new planning to provide additional 
bedrooms which involves construction on the Carrington Street 
frontage, it became both necessary and desirable to redesign the
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coolroom on the "Wynyard Lane level adjacent to Carrington 
Street and it was decided, on the economic factors involved, to< 
utilise the roof of this coolroom as an open beer garden. South

in ',
This involved the planning of a concrete slab for such roof Equitable

and the consequential amendment of the original plans for the uns_^°n-
Southern Bars to dovetail this work with the proposed new No. 26.

, Judgment of 
project. McLeUand J.,

Before, however, incurring the expense and time involved in February, 
preparing detailed plans and specifications for the new project 19?8~

,_ r i , • i ; i • i j n a .1 continued.10 it became necessary to consider the size and strength ot the 
various columns already on the site and upon which the whole 
construction depends.

These columns are of a very substantial nature as originally 
planned many years ago and entail costly construction at the 
present time.

It will be appreciated therefore that any unnecessary column 
construction will involve the Lessee Company in many thousands 
of pounds which could be better utilised in productive improve­ 
ments on the site.

20 It will also be appreciated that the Lessee Company proposes 
to expend on the present proposed development of the site alone, 
more than twice as much as it is obliged so to do in order to 
comply with the literal terms of its lease.

The Lessee Company realises, however, that literal compliance 
with the requirements of the lease would be an ineffectual and 
undesirable method of development and would probably result 
in great difficulty and expense for itself or its successors in 
further developing the site. The Lessee Company proposes to 
erect the building in accordance with the plans submitted and 

30 approved providing, in so doing, for the future upward exten­ 
sion of such building by itself or its successors to the full height 
permitted by the City Council.

It does not envisage building over any portion of the ground 
plan not built over in the present plans except for the corner 
on Carrington Street adjoining Shell House where provision 
already exists for four lifts. It is contemplated that this area 
will and must be built up in any further development.

To assist you in the following future possible development we 
attach a plan which shows the proposed layout of a bedroom 

40 floor. It is estimated that the areas outlined in red can be built 
up to the maximtim of 150 feet above George and Carrington 
Streets while the area in wide green hatching can be built up 
to 79 feet above Wynyard Lane and the area in narrow green 
hatching can be built up to 90 feet above Carrington Street (i.e.
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the bottom of the light Court). This should produce eleven 
floors on George Street (including the existing floors), twelve 
floors on Carrington Street and about seven floors in the inner 
portions. On both Street frontages there will be included a 
parapet about five feet high.

On both the George and Carrington Streets frontages it is 
estimated that the building can be constructed to the full height 
of 150 feet while in the centre the maximum height will vary 
and be somewhat less by reason of the light areas.

One reason why it is not thought possible or desirable to build \Q 
over or provide for building over the areas left vacant on the 
present plans is that at all stages of development and particularly 
as the building becomes higher it is necessary to provide light 
and air for the bedrooms etc.

If therefore these vacant areas are not to be built over it 
becomes uneconomic and indeed wasteful to construct any 
columns to an extent greater than is required to support the full 
building as envisaged.

Before, therefore, preparing detailed plans and obtaining 
engineering data required before such plans can be prepared, we 20 
consider it essential to have condition 10 abovementioned 
clarified.

What the Lessee Company proposes to do with your approval 
is so to construct the columns required for the support of the 
present proposed building as to permit future construction of 
that building (including the area adjoining Shell House above- 
mentioned) to the maximum height permitted by the City Council 
which will permit of some reduction in the dimensions of those 
columns by reason of the areas left vacant for the provision of 
light and air. A particular illustration may be given in regard 30 
to the rectangular columns against the building on the southern 
side between Wynyard Lane and Carrington Street. There are 
three such columns which are of substantial size but which, under 
the present plans, will support only the concrete slab over the 
coolroom which will also be the floor of the proposed beer garden.

As no further construction above this area is proposed, such 
columns become unnecessary and the slab can be adequately 
supported by other means such as a brick wall upon a steel beam 
across the tops of the columns as at present constructed which 
would result in a saving of some thousands of pounds. 40

Your concurrence to this proposal is therefore sought. If, 
however, for any particular purpose of the Eailway Department 
it is desired that such columns be constructed to greater dimen­ 
sions than would be required for this purpose two alternatives 
are proposed namely:
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(1) that the Department should bear the difference in cost, 
or

(2) that the term of the present lease be extended. 
In view of the requirements as to time of the Licensing Court 

and the fact that work upon the Southern Bars is in abeyance 
iintil a decision is reached, we request you to give this matter 
your urgent attention."

On the 5th October, 1954, the Secretary of the plaintiff wrote to the 
solicitors for the defendant in the following terms:—

10 "I refer to your letter (Reference 7) of the 19th August, 1954, 
further regarding the additions proposed to the existing hotel 
building, and wherein you advise that the Lessee Company pro­ 
poses, inter alia, to erect a building in accordance with the plans 
submitted and approved, providing, in so doing, for the future 
upward extension of such building by the Company, or its succes­ 
sors, to the full height permitted by the City Council.

As regards your statement that, before preparing detailed 
plans and obtaining the requisite engineering data which is 
necessary to enable such plans to be produced, you consider it 

20 essential to have Condition 10 dealing with the sizes and strength 
of the columns, etc., referred to in the letter dated 21st May, 1954, 
forwarded to you by the Solicitor for Railways, clarified, I have 
been directed by the Commissioner to advise you as follows:

1. All columns within the area, west of Wynyard Lane, 
coloured red on the plan enclosed herewith are to be 
constructed of sufficient strength to permit of the build­ 
ing on such area being carried to a height of 150 ft. 
above the existing level of Carrington Street.

2. All columns within the area, east of Wynyard Lane, 
30 coloured red on the plan enclosed herewith, are to be 

constructed of sufficient strength to permit of the build­ 
ing on such area being carried to a height of 150 ft. 
above the existing level of George Street.

3. All columns in the remaining areas, coloured green on the 
plan enclosed herewith, are to be constructed of sufficient 
strength to permit of the building on such areas being 
carried to a height of 105 feet above Carrington Street.

4. Columns in the cool room which are to support the beer 
garden on the plans submitted may be regarded as 

40 temporary columns and may be built to carry the actual 
loading to be imposed at present.

The Commissioner for Railways is not prepared to bear any 
of the expenditure for complying with the foregoing, nor is he 
agreeable to any extension of the term of the lease.
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As the area adjoining Shell House in Carrington Street does 
not appear to be fully developed, the Lessee Company is 
requested to submit a complete set of drawings showing the 
layout of the whole of the proposed future building, and I shall 
be glad if you will arrange for this to be done."

On the 23rd March, 1955, the defendant made an application to the 
Licensing Court for an extension of time until the 30th September, 
1955, and for the approval of substituted plans lodged with the Court. 
There is no evidence to indicate that these substituted plans were sub- 
mitted to or approved by the plaintiff. 10

These substituted plans did not vary in general principle from the 
former ones.

On the 18th April, 1955, the Licensing Court approved of the 
substituted plans and advice was sent to the defendant that no adverse 
action would be taken prior to the 30th September, 1955.

On the 6th May, 1955, a contract was let for structural work on 
further columns on the Carrington Street frontage at a total cost of 
£32,020/10/3. This work was for the extension of columns. These 
columns were so designed that no matter what building went up they 
would be capable of carrying the full load. Primarily they were to be 20 
constructed for the 1954 building but were suitable for use to carry 
any other building on the Carrington Street frontage.

These extensions were in fact completed.
On the 29th September, 1955, the defendant lodged an application 

for a further extension of time. With this application there was lodged 
a history which was put in evidence by the plaintiff of the action taken 
by the defendant pursuant to the Court's orders setting out in detail 
the many difficulties which had been encountered by the defendant.

In this history, the then "present position" was described as 
follows : — 30

"(1) Messrs W. E. Bassett & Associates advise that the final 
plans and specifications for electrical services, hot water 
services, mechanical ventilation and passenger service lift 
will be ready for the calling of tenders on the 6th and 10th 
December, 1955.

(2) With one week Mr Llewellyn will be in a position to make 
available to the Architect, Mr Ham, sufficient details of all 
structural work to enable bills of quantities to be prepared 
and for builders to tender.

(3) Mr Ham has completed his detailed plans which are sub- 40 
mitted herewith. These plans will have to be duplicated in 
larger scale by half inch plans, but only drawing work is 
involved and this should be completed within five or six 
weeks.
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(4) All the various plans and specifications will have to be finally in the 
submitted for approval to the City Council, the Railway Co 
Commissioner and certain of the plans will have to be South Wales 
approved by the Metropolitan Water, Sewerage and Drain- Equable. 
age Board and by the Board of Fire Commissioners. In Jurisdiction. 
addition, the plans will have to be submitted to the Town No 2e. 
Planning Section of the Cumberland County Council. Judgment of

/ McLelland J.,
(5) Notwithstanding the necessity of obtaining these various nth

consents, all designers have purposely maintained the closest 1958^' 
10 liaison with the authorities in question in order to save time continued. 

and it is hoped that there should not be any substantial 
delay in obtaining final approval from the authorities con­ 
cerned.

(6) The Quantity Surveyors have advised that they will be 
ready to have bills of quantities prepared ready for tenders 
on Wednesday, the 21st December, 1955.

(7) For the last eighteen mouths Mr Ham has devoted one-third 
of his own and of his office's time to the Plaza Hotel.

(8) It is anticipated that the cost of the building will be in the 
20 vicinity of £388,000.

(9) The necessary finance was arranged last year by the lessees 
for the construction of the building."

There is no direct evidence before me to show the course of the 
proceedings on the application for an extension of time but it is clear 
from the correspondence that before March, 1956, the Licensing Court 
had refused the application.

The appeal to Quarter Sessions from the decision of the Licensing 
Court was lodged by the defendant but was not prosecuted, and the 
appeal was accordingly dismissed. The Licensing Inspector took pro- 

30 ceedings for the suspension or cancellation of the licence.
The defendant had called for tenders for the major work of 

carrying out the proposed additions closing on the 12th March, 1956, 
and when the tenders were opened the lowest tender received was for 
£525,881.

In these circumstances, on the 27th March, 1956, the solicitors for 
the defendant wrote to the Secretary of the plaintiff setting out shortly 
the general position and asking for a conference with the object of 
discussing:

"1. Whether it is in the best interests of the Commissioner and 
40 the public to maintain the licence at Wynyard.

2. Whether the licence should be transferred elsewhere or 
surrendered.

3. Whether a substantial extension of the lease can be granted.
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4. "Whether the Commissioner will approve of a less costly type 
of construction."

On the 6th April, 1956, a conference was held between the parties 
but the conference did not bear any fruit.

On the 10th May, 1956, the solicitor for the defendant wrote to the 
plaintiff a letter in the following' terms:

"You will recall that on Friday the 6th April last the writer, 
together with one of the Directors and the Secretary of the 
abovenamed Company conferred with you and some of your 
Officers concerning the difficulties which the Company is 10 
encountering in carrying out the order for further construction 
made by the Licensing Court under the provisions of Section 40A 
of the Liquor Act, 1912, and you will recall that these discussions 
were entirely without prejudice and of an exploratory nature.

Since that conference a summons has been issued at the 
incidence of the Metropolitan Licensing Inspector calling upon 
the Licensee of the Plaza Hotel to show cause why his licence 
should not be suspended or cancelled, and notice of this summons 
has been served upon the Company and also possibly upon 
yourself. 20

This summons is returnable on the 28th inst. and we under­ 
stand will be adjourned until the following day for hearing.

Since the conference the Company has been giving constant 
consideration to the position and what could be done, and we 
have now been asked to write to you putting the position clearly 
before you and the possible courses to be followed.

Our client has always been aware of its obligations to the 
Licensing Authorities and also to you under the terms of the 
lease.

You will recall that our client acquired the lease in 1942 when 30 
World War II was at its height and it was not possible during 
the War or for some years thereafter to effect any major build­ 
ing construction.

Since acquiring the leasehold our client has consistently spent 
large sums of money upon the premises to provide the public 
with the most up-to-date drinking facilities in Sydney, and in 
fact to date have expended on the leasehold as a whole and on 
plant and equipment the sum of £275,005.0.0.

On the 26th March, 1947, the Company entered into an agree­ 
ment with Mr D. F. Cowell Ham, Architect and Consulting ^Q 
Engineer, for him to design a building to cost £150,000.0.0 at 
least with a provision covering further expenditure and on the 
15th October, 1957, it submitted proposals for the development of 
the site to the then Commissioner for Railways and suggested it
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expend the minimum of £250,000.0.0 in return for an extension of in the 
the lease for a further period of thirty-nine years. In the event court' 
this offer was refused on the 1st March. 1948. South Wales

in its
Prior to the order made by the Licensing Court on the 9th Equitable. 

November, 1953, many plans had been considered, but none of Jurisdiction - 
them were thought to be satisfactory. No. 26.

Judgment of
Following the making of the order by the Licensing Court McLeiiand j., 

plans were prepared for a building containing sixty-two Fe^^ 
additional bedrooms with lounges and ancillary facilities, the cost 1953— ' 

10 of which was estimated at £390,000.0.0. These plans were «"•*««'• 
approved by you and by the Court.

Our client made arrangements with its Bankers to finance the 
cost of this construction over and above its own resources and 
such finance, we believe, is still available.

Many delays due to technical difficulties occurred before 
tenders were finally called and during this time the Company 
went ahead with some of the basic work which would be required 
in any event for any structure and expended the sum of 
£52,600.0.0 in the extension of certain of the columns and the 

20 construction of certain concrete slabs.
On the 12th March 1956 tenders for the remainder of the 

construction were received, the lowest of which was £525,881.0.0. 
The estimated full cost of the work necessary to carry out the 
order of the Licensing Court is as follows:—

Moneys already expended. £ 52,600 0 0 
Lowest tender price. 525,881 0 0 
Architects' fees. 38,704 0 0 
Quantity Surveyors' fees. 5,206 0 0 
Furnishings, minimum 50,000 0 0

30 £672,391 0 0

in addition to which there are unknown amounts for Engineers' 
fees and fees due to other technical advisers.

While the Company is desirous of carrying out the order of the 
Licensing Court and of retaining the licence of the Hotel Plaza 
it is unable to provide the funds required out of its own reserves 
and while it has not yet received a definite answer from the 
Commonwealth Trading Bank to which it has made representa­ 
tions for additional financial assistance, it does not think that 
such assistance will be forthcoming.

40 In any event, even if the finance required were available, it is 
not economically possible having regard to the term of the lease 
still to run and known trading results, to recover the expenditure 
over the term of the lease and still show a reasonable profit.
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Our client and its technical advisers have been investigating 
methods of cheapening the cost of construction while still 
carrying out the requirements of the Licensing Court, but so far 
without success.

An application has been made by our client to another large 
company which conducts a number of hotels on the basis either 
of taking over the lease or of combining with our client for the 
purpose of carrying out the order, but these negotiations have 
so far been unsuccessful as that Company does not think the 
necessary investment could be recouped over the remaining term 10 
of the lease.

The Company's conduct of the Hotel Plaza at Wynyard has 
never been criticised and in fact it claims with some justification 
to have rectified many undesirable features associated with the 
Hotel when it acquired the lease thereof.

In our client's view the only way a residential hotel on the 
Wynyard side could be made to pay involves a long extension 
of the lease and the construction of a building providing for a 
very large number of bedrooms, dining rooms, lounges and the 
like to do which would entail very substantial expenditure and 20 
probably make it necessary to form a public company to provide 
the necessary finance.

It appears to our client impossible to develop the George 
Street portion only of the premises for the purposes of a hotel 
because of the difficulty of access thereto.

The possible courses which the Company sees available to it or 
to anyone else who may become the lessee, are:—

1. To get in large additional capital to enable the construc­ 
tion of a building much larger than the projected one 
which will involve an extension of the lease in order to 30 
make it economically practicable.

2. To surrender to the Commissioner part of the premises, 
namely the land lying between Wynyard Lane and 
Carrington Street together with the licence to enable 
the Commissioner if possible to lease this area with the 
licence to someone else financially able to erect the large 
hotel required leaving the residue of the land in the 
lease to our client for use as commercial premises.

3. The Commissioner may apply to transfer the licence 
elsewhere. 40

4. To allow the licence to be suspended or cancelled, in 
which case our clients may be involved in the payment 
of £10,000.0.0 to the Commissioner in terms of the lease.

5. To seek from the Licensing Authorities reduction of the 
amount of new construction at present ordered by them.
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As regards paragraph (1), on behalf of our client we now ask in the 
formally that the existing lease be extended for a period of at 
least forty-five years provided the Lessee expends on the South Wales 
construction of a building the sum of £750,000.0.0 at the least.

As regards paragraph (a) provision would need to be made uris KWn- 
on any surrender for the reimbursement to our client of the No- 26- 
amounts already expended on this particular portion of the lease M^eSand 
alone for cool rooms, extension of columns and the like. _ ,111;l1

February,
If the licence is transferred or taken from the Company it 1'?8~"I

..,.,, • (i • -IT- continued.
10 proposes to utilise the site tor commercial purposes including 

storage space, cold storage of goods in the existing cool rooms 
and the Hunter Street level in the first instance for the purpose 
of holding exhibitions, but if this latter proves unsuccessful, this 
area will be developed commercially as well.

The Company proposes at the hearing of the summons to 
endeavour to satisfy the Licensing Court that the licence should 
not be suspended or cancelled, but in the event of the Court being 
adverse to that it proposes to ask that the licence be suspended 
and not cancelled in order to give the Commissioner the 

20 opportunity of having it transferred.
On behalf of our client we seek the support of the 

Commissioner at the hearing of the summons and would welcome 
any suggestions concerning matters which might be put before 
the Licensing Court at the hearing or the attitude which our 
client should adopt.

While we cannot expect the Commissioner to give a firm 
answer concerning any of the proposals abovementioned, we feel 
that the matter should be discussed at an open conference with 
the Commissioner, which in view of the shortness of time 

30 available, we should like to have next Tuesday or Wednesday if 
at all possible. "

On the 25th May, 1956, the solicitor for the plaintiff wrote to the 
solicitors for the defendant a letter in the following terms:

" Your letter herein of 10th instant, addressed to The 
Commissioner for Railways, has been referred to me with 
instructions to inform you that, in respect of the five possible 
courses referred to on page 4 of your letter under reply, the 
Commissioner does not agree with those numbered 2, 3, 4 and 5, 
and that, in respect of course 1 therein, the Commissioner takes 

40 the view that your client Company is bound under Covenant 4 
of the lease of the premises in question, to construct a building 
in accordance with the plans approved by the Licensing Court 
and the Commissioner, as referred to on page 2 of your letter 
under reply.
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Jnfhe. In light of the above, I am further instructed to inform you
j that the Commissioner hereby requires your client Company to

South Wales construct a new building on the demised premises conforming
Editable w*th the plans referred to above, and that, in respect of Covenant

Jurisdiction. 4 of the lease, time is now to be regarded to be of the essence
No . 26. °f the contract, and unless a new building conforming with the

Judgment of plans referred to is constructed within eighteen months from
nthd ' the date hereof the Commissioner will enforce the conditions

February, contained in the lease in respect of a breach of covenant by the
	lessee." 10

On the 29th May, 1956, the Licensing Court made an order 
cancelling the licence as from the close of business on the 21st June, 
1956.

During the proceedings before the Court the defendant made it 
abundantly clear that it was a financial impossibility for it to build 
according to the 1954 plans and that for that reason it did not propose 
to do so.

On the 19th June, 1956, an application by the defendant for the 
renewal of the licence was refused by the Licensing Court.

The defendant through the licensee lodged an appeal to Quarter 20 
Sessions against both these orders.

All rent and the interest payable under clause 3 of the lease up till 
the 30th June, 1957, was paid to and accepted by the plaintiff.

The rent for the quarter ending 30th June, 1956, fell due on the 
1st April, 1956, and was received by the defendant on the 13th April, 
1956. An account dated 20th June, 1956, for interest under clause 3 in 
respect of the month of June was paid by cheque and posted by the 
defendant on the 28th June, 1956, and the receipt for this sum was dated 
4th July, 1956.

Eent and interest for periods subsequently to the 30th June, 1956, 30 
was tendered by the defendant to the plaintiff but the plaintiff refused 
to accept any further payments.

On the 8th June, 1956, the defendant retained a new architect, a 
Mr E. M. Nicholls, to design a new type of building which was to be 
economical and, in addition, to comply with the requirements of the 
Licensing Court. The original retainer to Mr Nicholls was in the 
following terms:—

"We refer to the discussion today at which we asked that you 
would be good enough to advise us about, and if found possible, 
to draw sketches for, a design and type of construction that would 40 
make it possible to construct a building on the Hotel Plaza site, 
with a broad framework as follows.

1. Cost: Not to exceed £300,000. including built-in furniture, 
but excluding other furnishings.
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2. Requirements : /» (he 
a. Immediate:

For 63 bedroms with ancillary services such as 
pantries and linen rooms etc. and with the following Equitable 
additions :— Jurisdiction.

A. Lounge accommodation enough to serve the Ju^ê .' of 
above with if possible a separate lounge for the house McLeiland J., 
guests, as distinct from the public lounge. February

B. Each bedroom to have a shower recess, pedestal, 19£?8~~, 
10 and hand wash basin. Any suites to have also a 

plunge bath.
C. The necessary bathroom and lavatory accommo­ 

dation (with plunge baths) on each bedroom floor, to 
satisfy the building requirements. These would 
presumably be blocks on each floor.

I). The built-in furniture to consist of wardrobe, 
dressing table, and fixed bed. The latter to operate 
as a lounge in the daytime.

E. Hot and cold running water in each bedroom.
20 F. Electric outlets in each room to provide if 

possible, for a radio relay from master receiver in 
basement.

G. Power outlet to provide easy usage for electric 
razors and bed lamp, also telephone.

H. Please also consider the question of mosquito 
protection. That is, if it is desirable and also possible 
to provide such protection with shutters instead of 
having to use nets.

I. The main entrance of the Hotel to be on
30 Oarrington Street level with foyer, office, booking 

desk etc., and entrance to lift.
J. Public and Saloon bars, bottle departments, 

shops to front on to Carrington Street. Area as large 
as is possible, with suggestion that area shown on 
present scheme modified as to shape and lay-out as 
your design would require. The cool room to serve 
these is already built on the West side of Wynyard 
Lane along the South boundary on the Wynyard Lane 
level.

40 K. Generally, the bedroom and lounge appoint­ 
ments will be of a standard applicable to a high class 
family type Hotel, which will consider its house trade 
to be a most profitable part of its business. It is not 
proposed to build a luxury hotel.
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b. Potential in foreseeable future: 
A. That another 37 bedrooms, making a total of 

100, will be built after the immediate require­ 
ments are satisfied.

B. That the areas over which we build are so 
designed as to structural strength as to permit 
building at any future time to the full limit 
of 150 feet.

C. That our design does not, as to the area over 
which we may not or do not, build, interfere 10 
with extensions by the Lessor at the end of the 
lease, which is in 45 years.

3. General.
A. Remember present dining room is on George Street 

frontage. Access from bedrooms to it. May consider 
if within cost limit, transfer to Carrington Street, or 
new dining room there, whilst retaining old one.

B. The limit of £300,000. is to include architects arid 
engineering fees.

C. If more than 63 bedrooms, because of the cost of 20 
construction being less, can be built, then so much 
the better. We realise that this letter leaves a wide 
latitude, and that is its intent. We do not want to 
restrict you, except as to cost, but wish to avail 
ourselves of your experience and knowledge.

We wish you to consider yourself as having complete freedom 
of design.

Yours faithfully,
(Sgd.) E. D. Randall

Acting Sydney Manager. 30
P.S. The shower and toilet area for each single room need not 
necessarily exceed about 5 ft. x 5 ft.—that is the area in the Sea 
View at Honolulu. But if the shower is not of the enclosed type 
some provision should be made so that the dressing gown and 
slippers of the occupier are protected from water."

Mr Nicholls immediately consulted with a structural engineer, 
Mr Llewellyn. Mr Llewellyn had been a partner with Mr Stanley 
in the firm of Messrs Stanley & Llewellyn from 1946. Mr Stanley had 
been associated with the Plaza Hotel and the various schemes in 
connection with it from the time Mr Gardiner was first interested in 40 
the project and he had been the structural engineer responsible for the 
engineering details in connection with the 1954 plans until the date of 
his death in June, 1955. Upon Mr Stanley's death, Mr Llewellyn took
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over the completion of the structural designs for the 1954 plans and of in the 
the preparation of the final documents required for the tenders. He was cou?tP 
thus conversant with the 1954 plans and with the structural difficulties South Wales 
relating to the site and also had knowledge of the sub-structure and of Equitable
the Various Columns. Jurisdiction.

Mr Nicholls, with the benefit of consultations with Mr Llewellyn, No. 26. 
designed and prepared plans for additions of a different type of Muc]fe™and J., 
construction from the 1954 plans, the principal features of which were nth 
a new building of three storeys on the (Jarrington Street frontage back i95g!f-y' 

10 to Wynyard Lane making provision for 76 additional bedrooms and continued. 
with a public bar, lounge and a coffee lounge on the Carrington Street 
level and with a shopping court on either side of Wynyard Lane with 
provision for nine new shops. These plans appear to have been 
completed on the 25th June, 1956. I shall refer to them as the 1956 
plans.

The extended columns which had been erected were suitable for 
the 1956 plans.

Mr Llewellyn made sufficient calculations and made sufficient 
preliminary steel drawings to enable a contractor to give a ceiling price 

20 for the construction of the scheme. These were apparently completed 
prior to the 25th June, 1956.

It was estimated that the cost of a building erected according to 
the 1956 plans would be £420,000.

On the 31st July, 1956, the plaintiff served upon the defendant a 
notice dated 31st July, 1956, under section 129 of the Conveyancing Act, 
1919-1943 in respect of certain alleged breaches by the defendant of the 
terms of the lease. After describing the relevant land, the notice 
proceeded in the following terms:

"With reference to the lease of the abovementioned premises 
30 dated the 26th day of June, 1941, from The Commissioner for 

Eailways to Eachel Gardiner and Permanent Trustee Company 
of New South Wales Limited duly transferred and assigned by 
the said Rachel Gardiner and Permanent Trustee Company of 
New South Wales Limited on the 14th day of February 1943 to 
Avrom Investments Pty. Limited the said Avrom Investments 
Pty. Limited expressly covenanting with The Commissioner for 
Eailways to observe the lessee's covenants in the said lease 
AND with reference to the covenants by the Lessee therein 
contained viz:—

40 Covenant 4: To expend not less than £150,000 in erecting a 
new building complying with any law statutory or other­ 
wise having application thereto and to the satisfaction of 

• any licensing authority and in accordance with such build­ 
ing design plan and specification as approved by the said 
Licensing Authority or The Commissioner for Eailways.
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Covenant 5: To make and carry out any amendment alteration 
reparation or addition whether structural or otherwise 
which by virtue of any provision of any law statutory or 
otherwise or by virtue of any requirement of any licensing 
authority may be required to be carried out by either the 
Lessor or Lessee.

Covenant 9: To execute at the Lessee's expense any repair 
renovation alteration or other works whether structural or 
not whenever the same shall be required or notified by the 
said licensing authority. 10

Covenant 29: Not to do commit permit or omit or suffer to be 
done committed permitted or omitted any act directly or 
indirectly rendering any licence liable to be taken away 
withheld suspended or cancelled or a renewal of such 
licence refused or directly or indirectly render the licensed 
premises liable to disqualification from being used as an 
hotel inn or public house.

Covenant 29: To keep any licence in existence.
Covenant 29: To arrange and procure that the holder of any 

licence observe and perform covenants. 20
Covenant 30: To apply for and endeavour to obtain any 

licence or renewal for using the licensed premises as an 
hotel inn or public house.

Covenant 30: To use best endeavours to obtain a renewal of 
licence.

Covenant 30: To abstain from any opposition direct or indi­ 
rect to an application for renewal of licence.

AND the breaches by you of the abovementioned covenants 
THE COMMISSIONER FOR RAILWAYS hereby gives you 
notice and requires you to remedy such breaches by— 30

(1) Commencing the erection of a building in accordance with 
plans approved by the Licensing Court and The Commis­ 
sioner for Railways.

(2) Carrying out the Order of the Licensing Court made on 
9th November, 1953, under Section 4(k of the Liquor Act, 
1912, as amended.

(3) Undertaking on the appeal from the Order of the Licens­ 
ing Court dated 29th May, 1956, cancelling the licence of 
the 'Plaza' Hotel, to comply with the said order under 
Section 40A of the Liquor Act. 40

(4) Submitting to whatever conditions may be imposed by 
the Court on appeal from the said order of the Licensing 
Court dated 29th May, 1956, in an endeavour to obtain 
a renewal of the licence.
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(5) Refraining from any action which may result in the in the 
appeal from the said order of the Licensing Court dated 
29th May, 1956, being dismissed, discontinued or not South 
prosecuted.

(6) Keeping the publican's licence for the 'Plaza' Hotel in Jurisdiction. 
existence. NO. 26.

(7) Arranging and procuring that the holder of the licence Siiand j°f 
of the 'Plaza' Hotel observes and performs the above- nth 
mentioned covenants and remedies the breaches thereof. lojjg^' 

10 (8) Endeavouring to obtain a renewal of the licence for the continued.
'Plaza' Hotel. 

(9) Using your best endeavours to obtain a renewal of licence
for the 'Plaza' Hotel.

(10) Abstaining from any opposition direct or indirect to the 
renewal of the licence.''

On the 1st August, 1956, the solicitors for the defendant wrote to 
the solicitor for the plaintiff a letter in the following terms:—

"We refer to your letter of the 25th May last to which we 
have delayed replying as the Company desired to consider its 

20 position fully in the light of the events which had happened and 
were still happening.

At this juncture we do not propose to deal in detail with the 
demand expressed in your letter or with the matters raised in 
the Notice of Breach of Covenant which was served on the 
Company on the 31st ultimo, as we hope that this will become 
unnecessary, but as you are aware, our client denies that it is 
in any way in breach of any of the covenants in the lease. You 
may rest assured, however, that the Company will do everything 
in its power and use its best endeavours to retain the licence 

30 on the hearing of the appeals.
The summons issued at the instance of the Metropolitan 

Licensing Inspector calling upon the Licensee to show cause why 
his licence should not be cancelled was heard by the Metro­ 
politan Licensing Court which on the 21st May last made an 
Order cancelling the licence as from the close of business on the 
21st June, and the application for the renewal of the licence 
which was for hearing the same day was stood over until the 
19th June on which date that application was also refused.

Appeals against both orders have been made to Quarter 
40 Sessions and are set down for hearing on the 28th inst.

Following the Order made by the Metropolitan Licensing 
Court on the 9th November, 1953, plans were prepared for a 
building containing, inter alia, sixty-three bedrooms and these 
plans were approved by the Licensing Court and The Commis­ 
sioner for Eailways, the estimated cost of the building being
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£390,000. While final details of these plans were being settled 
the Company undertook and carried out some of the basic work 
required for such building expending thereon a sum in excess 
of £50,000 apart from fees to its architect and other technical 
advisers.

The lowest tender received for the work was £525,881 which 
with other costs already or necessarily to be incurred made 
the project financially and economically unsound. The delays 
in preparing plans and calling for tenders and the enormous 
tender prices were, as you are aware, caused by the demands 10 
of the Department as to the basic structural design upon which 
it insisted.

The Company's architect advised the Company that he was 
unable to suggest any amendment of his plans to render the 
scheme practicable while at the same time conforming with the 
Department's requirements.

The Company then sought the advice of another architect and 
as a result fresh plans for the construction of a building have 
been prepared. These plans envisage seventy-six bedrooms on 
the Carrington Street frontage with a public bar, lounge, coffee 20 
lounge and other facilities on the Carrington Street level. The 
plans also provide for what is tantamount to a public concourse 
and passageway through from Carrington Street to Wynyard 
Lane and thence via steps and the existing Wynyard Eamps 
to George Street, thus providing convenient public access for 
passengers using the Government Bus Services.

The plans allow for the building to be continued to the full 
permissible height and will not obstruct or prevent development 
of the remainder of the site to the fullest possible extent. It 
is too difficult for us with our somewhat limited technical know- 30 
ledge of building to set out all matters relating to the building 
in this letter, and any information required can be supplied by 
the Company's architect and engineer at any time, but we hand 
you herewith a comprehensive and comparative statement 
prepared by the architect, Mr E. M. Nicholls.

Although not forming part of the proposed building and 
intended to form the subject of a separate work, the Company 
proposes to create a shopping concourse in Wynyard Lane by 
effectively widening the narrow area at present available to the 
public between the steps leading up through the proposed build- 40 
ing to Carrington Street. This will be roofed over and provide 
shelter for members of the public proceeding from Carrington 
Street to George Street. We have discussed the new plans 
with the Metropolitan Licensing Authorities. We have every 
reason to believe that such plans are fully acceptable to them, 
and are in fact awaiting their formal approval thereof.
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The cost will be a maximum of £392,000 exclusive of architects' in the 
and other fees and of the amount already expended as above- c f^o 
mentioned, and the proposed contractor estimates that the work South Wales 
will be completed within fourteen months from the time of com- B *™^e 
mencement, which is likely to be early November. Jurisdiction.

The Company proposes to enter into a contract forthwith with No - 26- 
the contractor for the construction of the proposed building, Mcifeiiand j!, 
such contract being subject of course to the approval of all _ llth

.,,/?. , . . , . j, ,, February,
necessary Authorities being given and to the Company 1953— 

10 succeeding in retaining the licence. continued.

The plans are being submitted forthwith to the City Council 
for its approval.

We hand you herewith a copy of the plans and specifications 
prepared by the Architect, Mr E. M. Nicholls together with a 
booklet containing photographs and floor layouts of modern 
hotels, which booklet we would ask you to return to us in due 
course. We now seek the approval of The Commissioner for 
Eailways to these plans and specifications in lieu of the plans 
formerly submitted and approved.

20 If the Commissioner's approval is given, we are advised by 
Senior Counsel that the Company's appeal to Quarter 
Sessions has every prospect of success. In this event, the Com­ 
pany will under the terms of its contract be obliged to proceed 
forthwith with the construction of the building, and the Commis­ 
sioner for Railways will have a building containing seventy six 
first class bedrooms with bathrooms and other facilities including 
telephone and radio costing well over £400,000 by the end of 1957. 
In addition the City of Sydney would have another first-class 
hotel in a central and desirable position in lieu of the partly

30 developed and unsightly area at present existing between 
Wynyard Lane and Carrington Street.

The contractors with whom the Company proposes to deal are 
Civil and Civic Contractors Pty. Limited who are at present 
engaged in the construction of the Caltex Building, and the 
quality of their work is, in the opinion of Air E. M. Nicholls, 
the best he has seen.

It will be appreciated that the Company has incurred consider­ 
able expenditure and devoted much time to the abovementionecl 
arrangements which are now firm, subject to the Commissioner's 

40 approval.
It is requested that a conference be held between the Com­ 

pany's representatives and the Commissioner to discuss the 
proposals.

•38632—18
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in the It is requested also that the Commissioner's technical advisers 
confer with Mr Nicholls and the Company's engineer Mr 

South Wales Llewellyn, and arrangements to inspect Caltex House and the 
EguMie ^Pe °^ construction employed therein can be made. 

jurisdiction. jn view Of the fact that the Quarter Sessions Appeals are to be 
NO. 26. heard on the 28th inst. urgent attention to these matters is 

requested.

1958- (Sgd.) Sly & Russell.
continued.

P.S. Since writing the above we have ascertained that the state- 10 
ment prepared by the architect and referred to at the bottom of 
page 2 has taken the form of a plan showing the comparative 
areas in the two sets of plans."

On the 14th August, 1956, the solicitor for the plaintiff wrote to the 
solicitors for the defendant a letter in the following terms : —

"Your letter of 1st August instant is acknowledged. The alle­ 
gations therein and particularly in the sixth paragraph thereof 
are, on my instructions, completely unfounded.

The Commissioner takes the view that the lessee was bound to 
erect the building which has been approved by him under the 20 
lease and which the Licensing Court on 31st May 1953 ordered 
the lessee to build, and the Commissioner does not propose to 
diminish his rights in this regard or to waive the breaches of 
covenant on the part of the lessee. ' '

On the 15th August, 1956, the solicitors for the defendant wrote a 
letter to the solicitors for the plaintiff in the following terms : —

"We refer to our letter of the 1st instant to which we have not 
received any reply or even an acknowledgement thereof.

As we pointed out the Appeals to Quarter Sessions relating to 
the license of the Hotel Plaza are to be heard on the 28th instant 30 
and we requested urgent attention to the matters raised in our 
letter which included a request for a conference between our 
client's representatives and the Commissioner for Railways.

As we also informed you we have every reason to believe that 
the plans submitted with our letter will be acceptable to the 
Licensing Authorities and that they will be approved by the City 
Council, and that if the Commissioner's approval is given thereto 
we have been advised by Senior Counsel that our client 's appeal 
to Quarter Sessions has every prospect of success.

Finance to carry out the proposed building has been for some 40 
time, and still is, available and our client has completed arrange­ 
ments with the proposed Contractor and will within the next week 
or so have entered into a firm contract for the erection of the
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building subject to certain conditions, of course, one of which is in the 
the Commissioner's approval to the plans and to the expenditure cma 
thereon of the specific sum involved. South Wales

in its
It will be seen, therefore, that the only matter still outstanding Equitable 

which is likely to prevent the construction of a first class hotel at Jurisdiction- 
Wynyard is the consent of the Commissioner. Without wishing No. 26. 
at this stage to deal further with the Notice of Breach of Siiand J 
Covenant served upon our client by the Commissioner dated the nth 
31st July last, we draw your attention to the numbered para- ^gj-g!^' 

10 graphs on pages 4 and 5. What the Commissioner requires continued. 
our client to do by such Notice is exactly what our client is 
endeavouring to do but to enable it so to do it is obvious that 
the consent of the Commissioner of Railways to the plans and 
specifications submitted is required.

We again ask you to deal with this matter as one of extreme 
urgency."

On the 17th August, 1956, the solicitor for the plaintiff wrote a 
letter to the solicitors for the defendant in the following terms:

"Your letters of 1st and 15th instant are acknowledged. The 
20 allegations therein, particularly in the sixth paragraph of the 

letter of 1st instant, are, on my instructions, completely 
unfounded.

The Commissioner takes the view that the lessee was bound 
to erect the building which has been approved by him under the 
lease and which the Licensing1 Court ordered the lessee to build 
in 1953, and in respect of which there was formal approval of 
plans by the Court in 1954. The Commissioner does not propose 
to diminish his rights in respect of the erection of the above- 
mentioned building, nor does he propose to waive the breaches 

30 of covenant on the part of the lessee.
It is pointed out that the Commissioner has spent £109,134 

at the request of the lessee in the erection of columns and sub­ 
structure (vide clause 3 of the lease) to support a building which 
would occupy substantially the whole of the land the subject of 
the lease, and the Commissioner has, in his view, always been 
entitled to have a building erected which would be based upon 
the whole of such columns and substructure. It is further pointed 
out that the expenditure of £109,134 was at a time when currency 
was at its pre-war value, and that the value of this expenditure 

4Q today approximates £450,000.
In 1953 when the plans for a building were submitted to the 

Commissioner by the lessee, the Commissioner, in approving such 
plans, made substantial concessions to the lessee in that the 
building would only occupy approximately two thirds of the 
site. It is certainly not now proposed by the Commissioner that
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his rights in respect of such building should be jettisoned so 
tnat ' in lieu of sucl1 building, there will be erected by the lessee 

South Wales a building which will occupy, at the most, no more than one third
in its nf ft, _ o4|p 

Equitable OI tne Slle '
Jurisdiction. it is not agreed that the lessee's present proposal is in

NO. 26. accordance with the requirements of the Notice of Breach of
Judgment of Covenant herein, but, on the contrary, the lessee has indicated

nth ' in no uncertain manner that it does not proposed to remedy the
February, breaches of covenant.

1958—
continued. The lessee is required at the hearing of the appeal to undertake 10 

to the Court that it will forthwith commence the erection of the 
building approved by the Commissioner and the Licensing Court 
in 1954, and to satisfy the Court that it will complete such 
building with a minimum of delay."

On the 22nd August, 1956, the solicitor for the defendant wrote a 
letter to the solicitor for the plaintiff in the following terms:—

"We acknowledge your letter of the 17th instant, contents of 
which are astonishing.

Adverting to your letter of the 25th May last and to the notice 
purporting to be under Section 129 of the Conveyancing Act 20 
of the 31st July last we find it somewhat difficult to appreciate 
the Commissioner's sudden assertion that breaches of the lease 
have occurred as prior to the receipt of such notice no allegations 
of any breach of covenant had been made at any time.

Apart from the allegation that the Lessee did not construct 
a new building within two years from the date of commencement 
of the term and that it did not carry out the additions within 
the time required under the Order made by the Licensing Court 
on the 9th November 1953, we know of no matter which could 
possibly be construed as a breach of any of the covenants and 30 
conditions of the lease.

If, therefore, there are any such known to you, we shall be 
glad to receive particulars and to be referred to the covenant 
alleged to be breached, and in this regard we refer particularly 
to the second and fifth paragraphs of your letter of the 17th 
instant and to the notice in which breaches of covenant are 
alleged but no details given.

As regards Clause 4 of the lease, apart from any other 
considerations if any breach did occur by reason of the failure 
of the Lessee to build within two years, such breach has been 40 
waived by the Commissioner by his subsequent acceptance of 
rent.

Clause 4 of the lease does not impose upon the Lessee the 
obligation to build any particular building or a building over 
the whole of the site and we therefore cannot agree that the
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Lessee is bound to carry out the additions, the plans of which in the 
were approved by the Licensing Court and the Commissioner C(̂ t" 
in 1954 nor that the Commissioner has the right now to stipulate South Wales 
what building must be erected or to set a fixed time for the Equitable 
erection of the building as set out in your letter of the 25th May Jurisdiction. 
last or to force the Lessee to expend on such building a sum No 26 
out of all proportion to the £150,000 mentioned in Clause 4. Judgment of

McLelland J..
In this connection we refer to the third paragraph of your * ltl1 

letter of 17th instant and would like to point out that the Lessee's 1958—y> 
10 obligation is to expend a minimum of £150,000. With the new continued. 

plans contemplated the building will cost well over £400,000 so 
that on any comparison of relative values the Lessee suffers 
from the depreciated value of currency just as much as the 
Commissioner.

With reference to your letter of the 17th August we think 
the Commissioner has overlooked the fact that the building 
contemplated by the plans approved in 1954 was not ordered by 
the Licensing Court.

The Court required certain additional construction and it was 
20 the Lessee who prepared the plans and submitted them to the 

Licensing Court as sufficient compliance with the Order. For 
good reason the Lessee now desires to comply with the Order 
by constructing a building in accordance with different and better 
plans, and these plans are acceptable to the Licensing Court.

Our client has noted with some amazement various statements 
in the Press attributed to a representative now in this country 
of the Hilton Group of Hotels to the effect that the Plaza site 
had been offered to the Hilton Group on which to erect a hotel.

It is also noted that contemporaneous in point of time with 
30 such statements, the Commissioner alleges for the first time, 

that the Lessee is in breach of the lease, and we are also surprised 
to notice that none of these statements attributed to the 
representative of the Hilton Group have been in any way denied 
by the Commissioner.

On the 15th inst. the Commissioner personally promised the 
Acting Manager in New South Wales of the Lessee that he would 
telephone her not later than yesterday and make an appointment 
for the Lessee's representatives to see him concerning the new 
plans.

4Q Yesterday the Secretary for Railways advised the Lessee's 
Acting Manager that your letter of the 17th inst. had the 
approval of the Commissioner and set out the official attitude 
of the Department and that the Commissioner did not propose 
to grant the desired interview.
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continued.

The plans for satisfying the requirements of the Licensing 
Authorities are the ones submitted to you with our letter of 
the 1st inst. which the Commissioner, despite our persistent 
requests, apparently refuses even to consider.

/ In our letter of the 1st inst. it was requested that the Commis­ 
sioner 's technical advisers confer with the Lessee's technical 
advisers so that any technical explanations could be given, but 
it is apparent to us from the foregoing that the Commissioner 
has at no time considered the plans, and at all times has refused 
so to do. 10

Upon the Lessee ascertaining that the construction of the 
original building planned by it was economically unsound as well 
as being in accordance with building ideas long out of date, it 
sought other advice and now has plans for a building which

(i) is economically practicable
(ii) provides facilities of a much higher standard and of 

considerably greater extent
(iii) can easily be extended to the maximum permissible

height 
(iv) will allow construction over other parts of the site 20
(v) is in accordance with modern conceptions of hotel 

construction, and
(vi) provides considerable benefits to the travelling public.

The Lessee has also arranged with a contractor whose work is 
of the highest standard to erect the building within approxi­ 
mately eighteen months from its commencement subject of course 
to the appeals to the Court of Quarter Sessions being successful.

The plans have been submitted to the Licensing authorities 
who have advised that such plans meet with the approval of 
the Licensing Magistrates and had they been submitted at an 30 
earlier stage they would have been acceptable as a compliance 
with the Order made on the 9th November, 1953.

The plans have also been submitted to the City Council and 
its approval thereto is expected any day.

Senior Counsel has advised that if, in addition, the consent 
of the Commissioner for Eailways be given to these plans the 
appeals to the Court of Quarter Sessions relating to the cancel­ 
lation and non-renewal of the licence have every chance of 
success.

It will be seen therefore that the consent of the Commissioner 40 
to the plans is the only matter outstanding which is likely to 
prevent the construction of a first class hotel building on the 
Wynyard site at a cost to the Lessee well in excess of £400,000.
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Turning now to the notice purporting to be under Section 129 in the 
of the Conveyancing Act and the requirements of the Commis- 
sioner as set out on pages 4 and 5 thereof, we would point out South Wales 
that what such notice requires the Lessee to do is exactly what 
the Lessee is endeavouring to do.

We cannot therefore see 'how the Lessee has indicated in no NO. 26. 
uncertain manner that it does not propose to remedy the breaches

£ j., • i i • i -i , i -^ ji jot covenant , assuming always, which we do not admit, that 
breaches of covenant have occurred.

nth

jurisdiction.-

J.,

10 If the Commissioner's consent to the plans is given the Lessee continued. 
will be able and in fact will be contractually bound, subject to 
the appeals being successful, to commence a building in accord­ 
ance with plans approved by the Licensing Authorities and the 
Commissioner as required by Clause 1 on page 4 of such notice 
and moreover the requirements of Clauses 2 to 10 inclusive on 
pages 4 and 5 of such notice will be satisfied again assuming 
that the appeals are successful.

We find it difficult therefore to understand why the Commis­
sioner by endeavouring to insist on the Lessee doing something

20 far in excess of the requirements imposed upon it under the
lease should by his own act render it impossible to observe the
terms thereof.

On the one hand the Commissioner by his notice of the 31st 
July last calls upon the Lessee to take certain action upon various 
matters and on the other by his refusal to consent to the new 
plans or even to consider them, renders it impossible for such 
action to be taken.

If the Commissioner for Eailways arbitrarily and unreason­ 
ably refuses his approval to the new plans submitted with or 

30 without amendments thereto and as a result the appeals to the 
Court of Quarter Sessions are unsuccessful then the loss of 
the publican's licence of the Hotel Plaza will be directly 
attributable to the Commissioner's attitude and our client will 
be compelled to avail itself of the legal remedies available to 
it consequent upon the damages it will suffer.

As the appeals are definitely listed for hearing on 28th instant 
we again ask the Commissioner as an extremely urgent matter 
to reconsider his attitude and we again seek the conference for 
which we asked in the first instance."

40 On the 24th August, 1956, a contract was entered into between the 
defendant and a building contractor to construct a building in accord­ 
ance with the 1956 plans for £433,800 subject to modifications in price 
as provided for in the said contract.

On the 24th August, 1956, the 1956 plans were approved by the 
Council of the City of Sydney. Prior thereto, the Council had received
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in the preliminary structural steel drawings, the practice being that the 
TNew Council, prior to giving their preliminary approval, need the general 

South Wales sizing and that as the job proceeds detailed drawings are submitted 
Equitable to the Council for approval.

Jurisdiction. The plang had keen gubmitted to the Jiire Board and the Chief
NO. 26. Secretary and no objections had been raised by these authorities.

Judgment of
McL<nthdJ" On the 27ttl Au£ust > 1956, the solicitor for the plaintiff wrote a 

February, letter to the solicitors for the defendant in the following terms : —
continued. "I acknowledge receipt of your letter of 22nd instant in reply

to mine of 17th instant. 10
In view of your client's refusal on 29th May, 1956, to erect 

the building as ordered by the Licensing Court, and as approved 
by the Commissioner, and in view of the attitude of your client 
before the Court which brought about the cancellation of the 
licence, it should scarcely be 'astonishing' that the Commis­ 
sioner is taking appropriate action necessary to protect his 
rights.

The attitude adopted by your client before the Licensing Court 
was subsequent to my letter of 25th May, 1956, in which your 
client was notified that it was required to construct a new build- 20 
ing conforming with plans approved by the Court and the Com­ 
missioner, and that unless such building was constructed the 
Commissioner would enforce the conditions contained in the 
lease in respect of a breach of covenant by the lessee. Despite 
this notice your client deliberately defied the Order of the Court 
and refused to erect the building. In this connection attention is 
drawn to the following extracts from the transcript taken during 
the proceedings before the Licensing Court on 29th May, 1956 : —

Statement Toy Counsel for Lessee : 'It is all very well for the 
Press to criticise us, but if anyone has any constructive 30 
ideas about the matter, we would like to know, because 
we have done all we can to ensure that this building will 
be built, and we can do no more. ' (Page 4).

' The only case, I think, that we can put to the Court is this : 
Is there anyone else who would carry out the require­ 
ments of the Court or, to put it alternatively — that the 
Building Lessee has done all in its power to do that 
which has been ordered. And that which has bees 
ordered is now completely without its power'.

'We have overcome them, and we have got our tenders — 40 
and then we get this blow ; the sum of £670,000, we sug­ 
gest, is an economical impracticability. We realise that 
having the license must be weighed with the burdens 
associated with the licence. But the burdens associated
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with this project would be that no one would ever want in ike 
the Licence.' (Page 6).

Evidence of Lessee's Secretary, Royal Stone Couuolly.
Sergeant Brownette: Equitable

Q. The conference with the Railway Commissioner so far —— 
as the building of this Hotel and the economic position was ,N°- 2(J- ,65 ^ Judgment of
concerned was abortive ? A. Yes. McLeiiand J.,

Q. The only thing that has arisen is that he has told you February, 
that the Railway Commissioners have told you to build the 19?8~~. 

10 Hotel? A. Yes. (Page 9). c™
Q. The Commissioner doesn't agree with Nos. 2, .'], 4 and 

5—he does not agree with any extension of the lease what­ 
soever f A. No.

Q. And the only thing he puts is that you are bound by 
covenant to complete the building? A. Yes.

Q. Have you come to the conclusion now that the Court 
can expect nothing from your Company in relation to the 
building of this Hotel? A. I don't think that is quite so.

Q. You have indicated to the Court that it is an economic 
20 and financial impossibility to build it? A. To the cost of 

say £635,000.
Q. You are not going to put another proposition to put! 

A. We have been considering any way to satisfy the Court.
Q. We can expect nothing from the Company in regard to 

the building? A. Not the completion.' (page 9).
Sergeant Brownette:

Q. You have indicated that it is an economic and financial 
impossibility for the Company to build the premises ? A. 
Yes.

30 Q. You say the Company refuses to build the premises? 
A. As set out in the plan—yes, they must—they can't build 
it', (page 10).

It is noted that the lessee admits that the failure to 'carry out 
the additions within the time required under the Order made by 
the Licensing Court' could well be construed as a breach of 
covenant. The 'additions' to which reference is made constitute 
the building approved by the Court and the Commissioner. Time 
was extended for compliance with the Court's Order until even­ 
tually on 29th May, 1956, during the course of proceedings before 

40 the Licensing Court, the lessee refused to erect the building 
approved by the Court and the Commissioner, and, because of 
such refusal, secured no further extension of time and brought 
about the cancellation of the Licence.

•38632—ISA
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The Notice under Section 129 of the Conveyancing Act is in 
accordance with the prescribed form, and leaves 110 doubt as to 
the breaches of covenant committed by the lessee. However, so 
that there may be no complaint in this regard you are advised 
again as to breaches of covenant as follows:—

CLAUSE 4: (Pages 5 and 6 of the Lease).
On 29th May, 1956, the lessee refused to erect, construct and 

complete a new building in every respect complying with any 
provision of any law, statutory or otherwise, having applica­ 
tion thereto and to the satisfaction of the Licensing Authority 10 
and the lessor in under over through or along the demised pre­ 
mises in accordance with such building design, plan and 
specification as the Licensing Authority and the lessor had 
approved under Clause 4.
CLAUSE 5: (Page 6 of the Lease).

On the 29th May, 1956, the lessee refused to make and carry 
out structural amendments alterations reparations or addi­ 
tions which, by virtue of the provisions of a law having appli­ 
cation to the demised premises (viz. the Liquor Act, 1912, as 
amended), and which, by virtue of the requirements of the 20 
Licensing Authority (viz. the Order of the Licensing Court 
under Section 40A of the Liquor Act), were required to be made 
or carried out in and upon the said demised premises.
CLAUSE 9: (Page 6 of the lease).

On the 29th May, 1956, the lessee, having been required 
and notified by the Licensing Authority (viz. the Order of the 
Licensing Court under Section 40A of the Liquor Act) to 
execute and do and cause to be executed and done structural 
repairs renovations alterations or other work, refused to 
execute or do or cause to be executed or done such structural 30 
repairs renovations alterations or other works.

CLAUSE 29: (page 10 of the Lease).
On 29th May, 1956, the lessee by its actions and omissions 

at the hearing before the Licensing Court rendered the licence 
liable to be cancelled and a renewal of such licence refused.
CLAUSE 29: (page 10 of the lease).

On 29th May, 1956, the lessee at the hearing before the 
Licensing Court refused to do an act necessary for keeping 
the licence in existence.
CLAUSE 29: (page 10 of the lease). 40

On 29th May, 1956, the lessee did not arrange for and pro­ 
cure that the holder of the said licence observed and performed
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the terms provisions and conditions of Clause 29 applicable in the 
to him, by reason of which non observance and non per- c'ourt 
formance the licence was cancelled. South Wale*

in it«
CLAUSE 30: (pages 10 and 11 of lease). Equitable

v ' Jurisdiction.
On 29th May, 1956, and on 19th June, 1956, the lessee did ——

"XT 9cnot endeavour to obtain a renewal of the licence. judgment of 
CLAUSE 30: (pages 10 and 11 of lease). McLeiiandJ,

On 29th May, 1956, and on 19th June, 1956, the lessee did 
not use its best endeavours to procure a renewal of such continued. 

10 licence.
CLAUSE 30: (pages 10 and 11 of lease).

On 29th May, 1956, and 19th June, 1956, the lessee did 
not abstain from acts and omissions which amounted to both 
direct and indirect opposition to an application for renewal 
of such licence.
In reference to the fifth paragraph of your letter under reply, 

attention is drawn again to my letter of 25th May, 1956, and, 
in view of the refusal of the lessee on the 29th May, 1956, to 
erect the building approved by the Licensing Court and the 

20 Commissioner, there was clearly a breach of Clause 4, which 
has not been waived by any acceptance of rent.

Where, as in this case, at the time of execution of the lease 
the lessor, at its own expense and at the request and on behalf 
of the lessee, had erected and constructed columns and sub­ 
structure over the whole of the demised site, surely it cannot 
be seriously suggested that the lessee is not under an obligation 
to erect a building occupying the whole of the demised site. When 
one considers, in addition, that the original tender and plans 
submitted provided for a building covering the whole area of 

30 the demised site, and that a special Act of Parliament was passed 
to enable Wynyard Lane to be built over to achieve this result, 
it renders your contention in this regard completely untenable. 
The attitude adopted in the sixth paragraph of your letter, there­ 
fore, cannot 'be supported, and the assertions that the Com­ 
missioner has no 'right now to stipulate what building must be 
erected or to set a fixed time for the erection' of such building, 
evidences either a complete misunderstanding of the position or 
an intention on the part of the lessee to evade its real obligations 
under the lease.

4Q With regard to your comments concerning the cost of the 
building and relative values, it is again emphasised that the 
Commissioner's expenditure on the foundations is equivalent 
to an expenditure of, approximately, £450,000 at the present 
value of money. It is pointed out that the lessee could have faced
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up to its obligations in respect of the building some years ago, 
and that, if it had done so, much of its complaint concerning 
cost of building would not have arisen. The Licensing Court, 
in its recent decision, commented that the lessee 'showed no 
sign of commencing to build the hotel as soon after 30th 
September, 1952, as was reasonable.'

It is not agreed that the plans approved by the Licensing 
Court in 1954 were not the subject of an Order under the Liquor 
Act. Attention is drawn to the following extract from page 1. 
of the transcript before the Licensing Court on 29th May, 1956— 10

'Sergeant Brownette: I understand Mr. Wales will admit 
that the order has not been complied with.

Mr. Wales: Yes.'
It is not possible, as a matter of law, to comply with an Order 

to build a particular building by refusing to build that building 
and offering to build another building which is not the subject 
of the Order. It is not understood what is meant by the phrase 
'these plans are acceptable to the Licensing Court', which 
appears at the end of paragraph (9) of your letter. The Com­ 
missioner knows of no application to the Licensing Court which 20 
has been made by the lessee or any person in respect of such 
plans, nor could any application to that Court, at this stage, be 
properly made or legally entertained.

In respect of the tenth and eleventh paragraphs of your letter, 
the lessee has no right to make such wrong and prejudicial 
insinuations, particularly when it is more than obvious that 
the Commissioner took his present stand on the 25th May, 1956. 
The Commissioner takes the view that the proper course for the 
lessee to adopt at the hearing of the pending appeal is to under­ 
take to erect the building approved by the Commissioner and 30 
the Court in 1954. If this undertaking were given, and adhered 
to, and if the licence were thereby preserved, I am instructed 
that the Commissioner would regard such actions on the part 
of the lessee as a substantial remedying of the breaches of 
covenant on its behalf.

I am instructed that the statement in paragraph 12 of your 
letter is incorrect.

In answer to the 14th and 15th paragraphs of your letter, 
you are referred to the fourth paragraph of my letter of 17th 
instant. Plans for a building occupying less than a third of the 40 
site do not merit serious consideration.

In any event, the allegations that the plans provide facilities 
of a much higher standard and of considerably greater extent
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made in paragraph 16 of your letter could not possibly be sub- in the
stantiated, especially when it is considered such plans are for cj^f
a building occupying- less than one third of the site. South Wales

The 'considerable benefits to the travelling public' would Equitable 
appear to consist solely in the fact that the lessee will be enabled Jurisdiction. 
to conduct two completely disconnected hotels under the one NO. 26.
licence. Judgment of

McLeuand J.,
The allegations in paragraph 18 of your letter must be llth-

unfounded, as the procedures and purported approvals therein 1953—y>
10 referred to would not, and could not, be entertained, or given. continued.

It is urged upon your client that there is one way, and only 
one way, in which the appeal could have the best chance of 
success, and that is for your client to undertake to erect the 
building the subject of the Order under section 40A of the Liquor 
Act.

The present predicament of the lessee is entirely one of its 
own making, and the cancellation of the licence followed upon 
the default of the lessee. In the circumstances, it is hardly 
appropriate to thrust plans upon the Commissioner a short time 

20 before the hearing of the lessee's appeal and to threaten the 
Commissioner with an action for damages because he will not 
diminish, or relinquish, his rights under the lease.

In conclusion, it is pointed out that when the requirement was 
made in the Notice under Section 129 of the Conveyancing Act, 
that the lessee submit to whatever conditions might be imposed 
on appeal from the Order of the Licensing Court, the Commis­ 
sioner had in mind that the Appellate Court would require an 
undertaking from the lessee that it would erect the building 
approved by the Licensing Court and the Commissioner in 1954.

30 Having regard to the views about the matter as expressed in 
this and earlier letters, it is felt that no good purpose can be 
achieved -by holding any further conferences to discuss the 
technical aspect of your most recent plans."

On the 28th August, 1956, the appeals to Quarter Sessions from 
the two decisions of the Licensing Court came on for hearing. Upon 
certain undertaking being given on behalf of the defendant, the Chair­ 
man of Quarter Sessions set aside the order for cancellation of the 
licence and set aside the order refusing the continuation of the licence 
and renewed the licence on payment of the prescribed fees. In the 

40 transcript of the proceedings the undertakings are referred to in the 
following terms:—

"The undertakings that have been agreed upon between the 
Crown and the lessee are these:—

(1) The lessee undertakes within 7 days from the date 
hereof to make application to the Licensing Court under
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in the Section 40 (A) (ii) to vary the terms of the order of the
rew Court made on the 9th of November, 1953, by ordering the

South Wales commencement and erection of a building in accordance with
Equitable *ne plans marked Exhibit 1 as varied by the requirements of

jurisdiction. the Council of the City of Sydney marked Exhibit 2.
NO. 26. (2) The lessee undertakes immediately upon such applica-

MU0ifeUand J°f ^on being made to apply to the said Court for its approval
nth '' of the said plans as varied.

1958—y> (3) The lessee undertakes within 2 months from the date 
continued. Of the Court's approval of the said plans as varied to use its 10 

best endeavours to obtain the approval of all the necessary 
authorities, including the lessor, to the erection of the said 
building in accordance with the said plans as varied.

It is intended between us that if in fact we are unable to 
satisfy the Licensing Court that we can either get the lessor 7 s 
approval, or build the building without approval, that the 
licence must be cancelled."

On the 5th September, 1956, the defendant made an application to 
the Licensing Court in the following terms:—

". . . for a variation of the Order made under the said Sec- 20 
tion on the 9th November, 1953, so as to require in lieu of the 
100 bedrooms 4 sitting rooms and other facilities as required by 
the said Order, the construction of 76 bedrooms and other facili­ 
ties as set out in plans prepared by Mr E. M. Nicholls, Architect 
and lodged herewith, at an estimated cost of £433,800, the work 
thereon to be commenced and completed on such dates as the 
Court considers reasonable in lieu of the dates of commencement 
and completion specified in such Order, and the said Company 
doth hereby apply for the approval of the Court to the said plans, 
upon the following grounds: 30

1. That the said plans provide a modern building suitable for 
the requirements of the site and capable of full future 
extension at a minimum of cost.

2. That the said plans are superior to and provide greater 
facilities than the plans previously approved by the 
Court.

3. That it is uneconomical to construct the building according 
to the said plans previously approved for reasons set 
out in the transcript of proceedings on 29th May, 1956, 
before the Court on the hearing of a summons calling 4Q 
upon the Licensee of the said hotel to show cause why 
Ids licence should not be suspended or cancelled and 
in the transcript of proceedings before the Court of 
Quarter Sessions on the 28th August, 1956, to both of 
\vhich the Company craves leave to refer."
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and the hearing of this application was fixed for the 18th October, 1956. in the
On the 19th September, 1956, the defendant lodged an application Court of New 

to the Licensing Court in the following terms : — Sout̂  ̂ sales
"AVROM INVESTMENTS PROPRIETARY LIMITED a 
Company duly registered under the Companies Act of the State
of Victoria and having its registered office at Number 229 Eliza- No- 26> 
beth Street Melbourne in the said State and registered as a MoLeiiand j., 
foreign company under the Companies Act of the State of New £lth- 
South Wales the registered office of which in New South Wales 1953— 7' 

10 is at Eoom 333 Eawson Chambers, Eawson Place, Sydney being continued. 
the occupier of the licensed premises known as the 'Plaza Hotel' 
situated at Number 291 George Street Sydney doth hereby pur­ 
suant to Section 4(k of the Liquor Act 1912 as amended apply 
to the Court for an authority to carry out the work specified in 
the Order made under the said Section on the 9th November, 1953, 
upon the ground that the Commissioner for Railways being the 
owner of the said licensed premises has failed to carry out the 
same within the time allowed by the Court."

With this application was a covering letter asking that it come on
20 for hearing at the same time as the other application. Counsel for the

defendant stated that this second application was filed in case without
it the Court might not have jurisdiction to consider the principal
application.

On the 4th October, 1956, the plaintiff commenced this suit by 
statement of claim.

On the 5th October, 1956, the plaintiff filed a notice of motion for an 
interlocutory injunction. The principal relief asked for at this stage 
was an injunction restraining the defendant from proceeding with its 
application to the Licensing Court. The motion was heard on the 14th, 

30 15th, 16th and 17th days of October, 1956, and in the result I held that 
the plaintiff had not satisfied me that, upon the balance of convenience, 
any order for an injunction should be made. I adjourned the motion 
until the hearing of the suit with liberty to either party to restore it to 
the list at any time.

On the 18th October, 1956, the defendant's application to vary 
the order made under section 4(k came on before the Licensing Court.

On the 2nd November, 1956, the plaintiff applied for an order 
which would finally dispose of the motion at that stage and some 
additional facts were placed before me. On this application, in lieu 

40 of the orders I made on the 17th October, 1956, I dismissed the motion 
and reserved the question of the costs of the motion and of the 
application.

The plaintiff then applied to the High Court of Australia for 
special leave to appeal from this order. The High Court granted special 
leave to appeal "subject to the condition that if the appeal pursuant
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in the to such leave be dismissed on any ground other than the ground that 
New ^ was or w°uld be right to refuse an interlocutory injunction on the 

South Wales balance of convenience, then the proposed appellant will submit to the 
Equitable dismissal of the suit in the Supreme Court in its equitable jurisdiction." 

jurisdiction. The High Court also ordered that, if the applicant declined to accept 
No 26. the condition, the application was to be dismissed with costs and gave 

Judgment of the applicant until the end of the High Court vacation (which was 
McLeUand j., the 8th February> 1957 ) to make tho election.

February, Qn the 5th FebruarV) ^57^ j indicated that the hearing of the suit 
continued, could be fixed for the 5th March, 1957, and that, if the plaintiff elected 10 

not to proceed with the appeal, the suit would be heard on that date.
The plaintiff elected not to pursue the appeal so that the applica­ 

tion for special leave stood dismissed with costs.
There had been many adjournments of the hearing before the 

Licensing Court and finally the day set aside for the hearing was the 
5th March, 1957.

On the 15th February, 1957, the defendant applied for an adjourn­ 
ment of the suit but this application I refused.

On the 5th March, 1957, the suit came on for hearing and on the 
same day the further hearing of the other application came on before 20 
the Licensing Court.

The application before the Licensing Court proceeded some 
distance but the further hearing was adjourned and still stands 
adjourned.

The hearing of the suit extended over a long period and from 
lime to time applications for the amendment of and the re-amendment 
of the pleadings were made, particularly by the plaintiff. As it 
appeared to me that the facts relating to the subject-matter of the 
amendments proposed from time to time were not really in dispute 
and that any prejudice could properly be compensated by an appro- 30 
priate order for costs, I saw fit to allow the amendments requested.

The issues as finally presented appear from the amended pleadings.
The amended statement of claim, after referring to the parties 

and the land in question, proceeded as follows:—
"4. ON the twenty sixth day of June One thousand nine hundred 
and forty one the Plaintiff as Lessor and one Rachel Grardiner 
and the Permanent Trustee Company of New South Wales 
Limited as Lessee executed a lease being a Memorandum of 
Lease under the Real Property Act and a Deed of Lease of 
the lands described in paragraph (3) hereof the said lands to 40 
be held by the said Rachel Grardiner and the Permanent Trustee 
Company of New South Wales (therein called 'Lessee') for the 
term of sixty years computed from the first day of July one 
thousand nine hundred and forty one subject to the exceptions
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provisos reservations conditions and covenants contained in in the 
the said lease and the Plaintiff craves leave to refer to the said Oof 
lease as if the same were fully set forth herein. Smith Wales

in its
5. THE Plaintiff prior to the execution of the said lease was Equitable 
requested by the Lessee referred to in the said lease to expend Junadtctton- 
certain moneys for the benefit and purposes of the said Lessee NO. 20. 
in the erection or construction of certain permanent improve- j^LeJJand J*. 
ments of the lands to be demised under the said lease and under nth 
a laneway known as Wynyard Lane in pursuance of designs 1953—y>

10 and detail drawings prepared by the lessee of columns and continued. 
substructure over substantially the whole of the demised lands 
of sufficient strength to support a building of thirteen floors 
to the maximum building height of one hundred and fifty feet 
and the said lessee then represented to the Plaintiff that if the 
plaintiff would agree to do the said work within the times and 
upon the conditions then stipulated the said lessee would erect 
upon such columns and substructure a building of thirteen floors 
to the maximum permissable building height according to certain 
designs then produced by the said Lessee to the plaintiff and

2o would spend in the construction of such building a sum of Six 
hundred thousand pounds (£600,000) and thereupon the plaintiff 
in pursuance of the said request and relying upon the said 
representation agreed to construct such permanent improve­ 
ments upon the land being the said columns and substructure 
within the times and upon the conditions aforesaid.
5&. THE Plaintiff in pursuance of the said agreement did there­ 
after erect such columns and substructure in accordance with 
the said designs and detailed drawings and in so doing expended 
a sum considerably in excess of the sum of One hundred and nine 

OQ thousand one hundred and thirty four pounds five shillings and 
nine pence (£109,134.5.9).
5s. SUBSEQUENTLY it was agreed between the plaintiff and 
the said Lessee that the Lessee should pay to the plaintiff 
interest upon One hundred and nine thousand one hundred and 
thirty four pounds five shillings and nine pence (£109,134.5.9) 
being part of the sum expended by the Plaintiff in the construc­ 
tion of the said columns and substructure at a rate of interest 
then mutually agreed upon between the plaintiff and the Lessee.
5c. PLANS and designs for the said building of thirteen 

.„ stories referred to in paragraph (5) hereof were submitted by 
the said Lessee to the Plaintiff and the Plaintiff approved such 
plans and designs.
5o. AFTER the granting of the said lease the said Lessee erected 
on part of the said land a certain building in accordance with 
plans and specifications submitted to and approved by the
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in the Plaintiff such approval being given without prejudice to the 
Plaintiff's rights or in derogation of the Lessee's obligations 

South Wales under Covenant 4 of the said lease and such building being in 
Equitable part in accordance with the plans and designs referred to in 

Jurisdiction. paragraph (Sx) hereof and in such part in performance pro 
NoTJe. tanto of the Lessee's obligation under the said covenant.

J f 6> BY the said lease tlie Lessee covenanted with the Plaintiff in 
nth ' respect of the said sum of One hundred and nine thousand one 

Fi958—y> hundred and thirty four pounds five shillings and nine pence 
continued. (£109,134.5.9) in the words and figures following that is to 10 

say—"
The terms of clause 3 of the lease are set out.

"7. UNDER the said lease the Lessee covenanted with the 
Plaintiff inter alia in the words and figures following, that is 
to say:—"

Here the following provisions of the lease are set out: 4, 5, 9, 10, 
12, 16,17, 29, 30, 31, 33, 34, 35, 36 and 37.

"8. UNDER the said lease the Plaintiff covenanted with the 
Lessee in, inter alia, the words following that is to say:—"

The covenant in the lease as to removal of fixtures, etc. is then 20 
set out.

"9. UNDER the said Lease the Plaintiff and the Lessee agreed 
and declared inter alia as follows:—"

I, V, VIII, IX, XI and XII of the lease are then set out.
"10. BY mutual consent of the Plaintiff and the Lessee the time 
for compliance by the Lessee with Covenant 4 as set forth in 
the seventh paragraph hereof was extended and on the 24th day 
of February, 1943, the said covenant remained to be complied 
with and performed by the Lessee.
10A. ALTERNATIVELY to paragraph 10 hereof the Plaintiff 30 
says that at the request of the said Lessee the Plaintiff before the 
expiry of the said two years acceded to a postponement of the 
times for compliance by the said Lessee with covenant 4 of the 
said Lease as set forth in paragraph (7) hereof. 
11. ON the said 24th day of February, 1943, the Lessee with 
the consent of the Plaintiff transferred and assigned to the 
Defendant Avrom Investments Proprietary Limited the estate 
and interest of the Lessee in the lands demised under the said 
lease and the said Defendant Avrom Investments Proprietary 
Limited entered into covenants with the Plaintiff in a Memoran- 40 
dum of Transfer of Lease and a Deed both executed on the 
said 24th day of February, 1943, in the words and figures 
following that is to say:—"

The terms of the memorandum of transfer of the lease and of the 
deed are then set out.
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IN further alternative to paragraph (10) the Plaintiff in the 
says that at the request of the Defendant Avrom Investments Cofr7 
Proprietary Limited the Plaintiff before the expiry of the said South Wales 
two years acceded to a postponement of the time for compliance Ecmitabif. 
by the said defendant with Covenant 4 of the said lease as set Jurisdiction. 
forth in paragraph (7) hereof. N^le. 
12. THE Defendant Avrom Investments Proprietary Limited ^J^* 
submitted to the Plaintiff plans and specifications for the erec- nth 
tion of a building in pursuance of Covenant 4 of the lease as set ^gea^' 

10 forth in paragraph (7) hereof and on the twenty-first day of continued. 
May, 1954, the Plaintiff approved such plans and specifications.
12A. ALTERNATIVELY to paragraphs (10), (10A ), (11), (12) 
hereof the Plaintiff says that the Defendant Avrom Investments 
Proprietary Limited did not comply with Covenant 4 of the 
lease within the time required by the said covenant whereupon 
the said Defendant became liable to the Plaintiff for damages 
for breach thereof and that thereafter it was agreed between 
the Plaintiff and the Defendant that the Defendant should build 
the building referred to in paragraph (5c) or a building utilising

2Q the columns and substructure referred to in clause 5 hereof and 
the full available area of the demised land to the Plaintiff's 
approval within a reasonable time and that the Plaintiff should 
accept the said promise of the Defendant in discharge of the 
Plaintiff's rights against the Defendant consequent upon the 
failure of the Defendant to build a building on the said land 
in accordance with Covenant 4 of the said lease within the said 
period of two years.
12s. AFTER the making of the agreement set forth in paragraph 
(12A) hereof the Plaintiff agreed in and about May, 1954, that the

o0 Defendant might build on the land a building according to certain 
plans and specifications then proffered by the Defendant to the 
Plaintiff and approved by the Plaintiff but so that such agreement 
and approval of the Plaintiff and the building of such building 
in accordance with such lastly mentioned plans should not release 
the Defendant from the agreement referred to in paragraph 
(12x) hereof.
12BB. ALTERNATIVELY to paragraph (10A ), (11), (12) and 
(12A ) hereof the Plaintiff says that the Defendant Avrom Invest­ 
ments Proprietary Limited did not comply with Covenant 4 of

40 the said lease within the time required by the said Covenant 
WHEREUPON the Defendant became liable to the Plaintiff for 
damages for breach thereof and that thereafter it was agreed 
between the Plaintiff and the Defendant that the Defendant 
should build the building according to certain plans and specifi­ 
cations approved by the Plaintiff at the request of the said 
Defendant on the twenty first day of May, 1954, and that the
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Plaintiff should accept the said promise of the Defendant in 
discharge of the Plaintiff's rights against the Defendant conse­ 
quent upon the failure of the Defendant to build the building on 
the said land in accordance with Covenant 4 of the said lease 
within the said period of 2 years.
12c. THE Defendant Avrom Investments Proprietary Limited 
pursuant to one of the agreements set forth in paragraph (12A) 
and (12sB) hereof, or to the approval mentioned in paragraph 
(12) or the approval mentioned in paragraph (12s) hereof com­ 
menced to erect the building referred to in paragraph (12A) 10 
hereof but after a time refused and neglected to continue with 
such erection.
12o. THE Plaintiff by notice in writing given on the 25th day of 
May, 1956, required the Defendant to erect such building the 
building in accordance with the plans and specifications approved 
by the Plaintiff on the twenty first day of May, 1954, within 
eighteen months from the said 25th day of May, 1956.
12s. THE Plaintiff submits that by reason of the matters herein 
alleged the Defendant at the date of institution of this suit was 
obliged to erect upon the full available area of the said land a 20 
building to the Plaintiff's approval which should utilise the said 
columns and substructure and to spend in its construction a sum 
of at least One hundred and fifty thousand pounds (£150,000). 
12EB. ALTERNATIVELY the Plaintiff submits that by reason 
of the matters herein alleged the Defendant at the date of the 
institution of this suit was obliged to erect on the said land a 
building in accordance with the said plans and specifications 
approved by the Plaintiff on the twenty first day of May, 1954.
13. ON the lands demised under the said lease were premises in 
respect of which a Publican's licence had been duly granted under 30 
the Liquor Act 1912 as amended, and the Plaintiff transferred 
or caused to be transferred such licence to a nominee of the 
original lessee named in the said lease and the Defendant John 
Bonaventure Limerick was at all material times until the twen­ 
tieth day of February, 1957, and the said Defendant John Birkett 
Wakefield is at present the holder of the said Publican's licence 
as the nominee of the Defendant Avrom Investments Proprietary 
Limited.
14. ON the 14th day of July, 1953, an application was made by 
the Metropolitan Licensing Inspector under Section 40A of the 40 
Liquor Act 1912 as amended for an Order for the construction 
of additional accommodation on the said premises referred to 
in paragraph 13 hereof and with the consent of the Defendants 
an Order was made by the Licensing Court of the Metropolitan 
District on 9th November, 1953, whereby a building containing



565

in the

10

20

. ft

No. 2«.
°

nth
1953— ' 

cc>ntmued.

100 bedrooms four sitting rooms and other facilities was required 
by the said Court to be built upon the lands demised in the said
lease. Smith Wales

15. ON the 26th day of May, 1954, the said Licensing Court in the Equitable 
said proceedings under Section 40A of the Liquor Act approved 
the plans referred to in paragraph (12) hereof and later the time 
for compliance with the order of the said Court of 9th November, 
1953, was extended to the 30th September, 1955.
16. THE said plans and specifications provided for a building 
which would occupy approximately two thirds of the lands 
demised under the said lease and would utilise most of the 
columns and the major part of the substructure which had been 
erected and constructed by the Plaintiff on the demised land as 
set forth in paragraph (5) hereof.
17. AFTER the 26th day of May, 1954, the Defendants com­ 
menced work on the erection of a building in accordance with the 
plans and specifications referred to in paragraph (12) hereof in 
that columns were extended, main beams were constructed and 
concreting done.
18- THE Defendants made an application to the Licensing Court 
for an extension of time beyond the 30th September, 1955, to 
comply with the said Order of the said Court and on the 20th 
day of October, 1955, the said Court in order to give the 
Defendants an opportunity of calling tenders for erection of a 
building on the lands demised in the said lease in accordance 
with the plans referred to in paragraph 1 hereof adjourned the 
application for an extension of time until the 23rd January, 
1956.
19. THE application for extension mentioned in the preceding 
paragraph came on for hearing on the 31st day of January, 
1956, before the said Licensing Court whereupon the said Court 
refused the application for extension of time.
20. THE Defendants lodged an appeal to the Court of Quarter 
Sessions and such appeal was heard on the 13th day of April, 
1956, when the Court dismissed the appeal and confirmed the 
order of the Licensing Court.
21. ON the 25th day of May, 1956, the Plaintiff required the 
Defendants to construct a building on the demised lands in 
accordance with the plans and specifications referred to in para- 
graph 12 hereof within a period of eighteen months from the 
said 25th May, 1956, and in this respect made time of the essence 
of the contract.
22. THE Defendants not having complied with the Order of the 
Licensing Court made on the ninth day of November, 1953, and 
varied on the 26th day of May, 1954, application was made by
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the Metropolitan Licensing Inspector for cancellation of the 
said publican's licence and on the 29th day of May, 1956, the 
Licensing Court duly cancelled the said licence.
23. ON the 19th day of June, 1956, the said Licensing Court 
refused an application for renewal of the said publican's licence.
24. THE Defendants appealed to the Court of Quarter Sessions 
against the cancellation of licence referred to in paragraph 22 
hereof and the refusal to renew the said licence referred to in 
paragraph 23 hereof.
25. THE defendants are unwilling or refuse to construct a 10 
building according to the plans and specifications referred to 
in paragraph 12 hereof and they have repeatedly so informed 
the Plaintiff.
26. ON 2nd August, 1956, the Defendants submitted to the 
Plaintiff certain plans (dated 25th June, 1956) and specifications 
for a building substantially different and considerably smaller 
and of less value than a building in accordance with the plans 
and specifications referred to in paragraph 12 hereof and 
requested the Plaintiff to approve such plans and specifications 
in lieu of the plans formerly submitted to and approved by the 20 
Plaintiff as set forth in paragraph 12 hereof.
27. THE Plaintiff refuses to approve of such substituted plans 
and specifications referred to in paragraph 26 hereof and has 
required the Defendants to construct the building approved by 
the Plaintiff and the Licensing Court as mentioned in para­ 
graphs 12 and 15 hereof.
28. UPON the said appeal referred to in paragraph 24 hereof 
coming on for hearing before the Court of Quarter Sessions 
the said Court allowed the appeals by the Defendants upon 
undertakings being given by the Defendants to the said Court 39 
that within 7 days from the 29th day of August, 1956, the 
the Defendants would make application under Section 4(k (2) 
of the Liquor Act to vary the order made by the Licensing Court 
on 9th November, 1953, by a further order that a building be 
commenced and erected in accordance with the plans referred 
to in paragraph 26 hereof, that the Defendants would immedi­ 
ately upon such application being made to the Licensing Court 
apply to such Court to approve the plans referred to in 
paragraph 26 hereof, and that within two months of the 
approval of the said plans by the Licensing Court the Defend- 40 
ants would use their best endeavours to obtain the consent of 
all necessary authorities including the Plaintiff to the construc­ 
tion of such building and also upon the Defendants agreeing 
that if they were unable to satisfy the Licensing Court that they 
could obtain the Plaintiff's approval of the last mentioned plans
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or that they could build the proposed building referred to in in the 
such plans without the approval of the Plaintiff the said cow 
publican's licence should be cancelled. South Wales

in its
29. THE Defendants have made the applications to the B^ld^en 
Licensing Court referred to in paragraph (28) hereof but such un̂ _lon - 
applications have not yet been heard by the said Court. T ,N°- 26- „

•rl • J Judgment of
30. THE Defendants have threatened and intend to build 
building upon the demised lands in accordance with the plans February, 
referred to in paragraph 26 hereof subject only to the approval 

10 of the Licensing Court and without the consent or approval of 
the Plaintiff.
31. THE Plaintiff fears that unless the Defendants be restrained 
by order of this Honourable Court the Defendant will attempt to 
build a building other than in accordance with the plans referred 
to in paragraph (12) hereof.
32. THE Plaintiff fears that unless the Defendants be restrained 
by order of this Honourable Court from applying under Section 
40A (2) of the Liquor Act for a variation of the existing Order of 
the said Licensing Court and from applying to the said Licensing 

20 Court for approval of the plans submitted to the Plaintiff on 2nd 
August, 1956, as set out in paragraph (26) hereof, the said last 
mentioned plans will be approved by the said Licensing Court in 
lieu of the plans approved by the Plaintiff and the said Licensing 
Court as set forth in paragraph (12) and (15) hereof."

The following relief was claimed : —
"1. That it may be declared that the Defendants are not entitled 
to build a building on the demised premises other than in accord­ 
ance with plans and specifications approved by the Plaintiff.
2. That it may be declared that the Defendant Avrom Invest- 

30 ments Proprietary Limited was and is bound under the said lease 
of the demised premises to build the building approved by the 
Plaintiff on the twenty first day of May, 1954, and by the 
Licensing Court on the twenty sixth day of May, 1954.
3. That it may be declared that an application by the Defendant 
under Section 40 or Section 40A of the Liquor Act, 1912, to the 
Licensing Court for its approval of plans and specifications which 
have not been approved by the Plaintiff for a building to be 
erected on the subject land is inconsistent with the performance 
by the Defendant of its covenants express and implied in the 

40 lease.
4. That it may be declared that an application by the Defen­ 
dant to the Licensing Court for an Order under Section 40A 
of the Liquor Act, 1912, that the Plaintiff build upon the subject
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land a building according to plans and specifications not approved 
by the Plaintiff is inconsistent with the performance by the 
Defendant of its covenants express and implied in the lease.
5. That the Defendants may be restrained from building a build­ 
ing on the demised lands other than in accordance with plans 
and specification approved by the Plaintiff.
6. That the Defendant Avrom Investments Proprietary Limited 
by itself or through any servant agent or person holding a licence 
under the Liquor Act 1912 as amended in respect of the demised 
land may be restrained from making or further proceeding with IQ 
an application to the Licensing Court of the Metropolitan District 
for variation of the Order of that Court made on 9th November, 
1953, under Section 40A of the Liquor Act 1912 as amended in 
respect of additions to the demised premises or for variation of 
the approval of that Court of 26th May, 1954, of certain plans for 
additions.
7. That the Defendant Avrom Investments Proprietary Limited 
by itself or through any servant agent or person holding a licence 
under the Liquor Act 1912 as amended in respect of the demised 
land may be restrained from making or further proceeding with 20 
an application to the Licensing Court of the Metropolitan District 
for approval of plans which have not been approved by the 
Plaintiff.
8. That the Defendant Avrom Investments Proprietary Limited 
by itself or through any servant agent or person holding a licence 
under the Liquor Act 1912 as amended in respect of the demised 
land may be restrained from making or proceeding with appli­ 
cations to the Licensing Court which are inconsistent with the 
Plaintiff's rights under the irrevocable power of attorney as set 
forth in the said lease. on 
SA. THAT an inquiry may be held as to damages suffered by 
the Plaintiff and that the Defendant Avrom Investments Pro­ 
prietary Limited may be ordered to pay the same to the Plaintiff.
9. That the Defendants may be ordered to pay the costs of the 
Plaintiff of this suit.
10. That the Plaintiff may have such further or other relief as 
the nature of the case may require.''

The amended statement of defence is in the following terms: 
1. IN answer to paragraph 4 of the Statement of Claim the 
Company does not admit that the documents therein referred to 4.9 
or the effect thereof are in the said paragraph sufficiently or 
correctly set forth.
'2. IN answer to paragraph 5 of the Statement of Claim the 
Company does not know and cannot admit that the Plaintiff prior 
to the execution of the said lease was requested by the Lessee 
referred to in the said lease to expend certain monevs for the
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benefit and the purposes of the said Lessee or at all in the erection in the 
or construction of certain permanent improvements on the lands Gourf 
to be demised under the said lease and under a laneway known as South Wales 
Wynyard Lane in pursuance of designs and detail drawings Equilabie 
prepared by the Lessee of columns and sub-structure over sub- Jurisdiction. 
stantially the whole of the said demised lands of sufficient No 2e. 
strength to support a building of thirteen floors to the maximum Judgment of 
building height of one hundred and fifty feet or that the said iit£ '' 
Lessee then represented to the Plaintiff that if the Plaintiff February,

•*- 1QPJC__

10 would agree to do the said work within the times and upon the continued. 
conditions then stipulated the said Lessee would erect upon such 
columns and sub-structure a building of thirteen floors to the 
maximum permissible building height according to certain 
designs then produced by the said Lessee to the Plaintiff and 
would spend in the construction of such building a sum of Six 
Hundred Thousand Pounds (£600,000.0.0) or that thereupon the 
Plaintiff in pursuance of the said request or relying upon the 
said representation or at all agreed to construct such permanent 
improvements on the land being the said columns and sub-

20 structure within the times and upon the conditions therein 
alleged.
2A. IN answer to paragraph SA of the Statement of Claim the 
Company does not know and cannot admit that the plaintiff 
in pursuance of the said agreement or at all did thereafter erect 
the columns and sub-structure therein referred to in accordance 
with the said designs and detailed drawings or that in so doing 
the Plaintiff expended a sum considerably or at all in excess of 
the sum of One Hundred and Nine Thousand One Hundred 
and Thirty Four Pounds Five Shillings and Ninepence 

30 (£109,134.5.9).
2s. IN answer to paragraph SB of the Statement of Claim the 
Company does not know and cannot admit that subsequently or 
at all it was agreed between the Plaintiff and the Lessee therein 
referred to that the said Lessee should pay to the Plaintiff 
interest upon One Hundred and Nine Thousand One Hundred 
and Thirty Four Pounds Five Shillings and Ninepence 
(£109,134.5.9) or that the said sum was part of a sum expended 
by the Plaintiff in the construction of columns and sub-structure 
therein referred to or that a rate of interest was then mutually 

40 agreed upon between the Plaintiff and the said Lessee.
2c. IN answer to paragraph 5c of the Statement of Claim the 
Company does not know and cannot admit that plans or designs 
for the building of thirteen stories referred to in paragraph 5 
of the Statement of Claim were submitted by the Lessee referred 
to in the said paragraph 5c to the Plaintiff or that the Plaintiff 
approved such plans and designs.
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2o. IN answer to paragraph 5o of the Statement of Claim the 
Company does not know and cannot admit that after the granting 
of the said lease or at all the Lessee therein referred to erected 
on part of the said land a certain building in accordance with 
plans and specifications submitted to and approved by the 
Plaintiff or that any such approval was given without prejudice 
to the Plaintiff's rights or in derogation of the Lessee's obliga­ 
tions under Covenant 4 of the said lease or that any such building 
was in part or at all in accordance with the plans and designs 
referred to in paragraph §A of the Statement of Claim or that 10 
in respect of such part such building was in part performance 
pro tanto of the Lessee's obligations under the said covenant.
3. IN answer to paragraphs 1, 8 and 9 of the Statement of Claim 
the Company does not admit that the covenants and terms are 
therein correctly or sufficiently set forth and the Company craves 
leave to refer to the said lease when produced as though the 
same were herein fully set forth.
4. IN answer to paragraph 10 of the Statement of Claim the 
Company does not know and cannot admit that by mutual consent 
of the Plaintiff and Lessee the time for compliance by the Lessee 20 
with the said Covenant 4 was extended, or that on the twenty 
fourth day of February One thousand nine hundred and forty 
three the said Covenant remained to be complied with or 
performed by the Lessee.
5. IN further answer to paragraph 10 of the Statement of Claim 
and in answer to the whole Statement of Claim the Company 
says that by reason of National Security (Building Operations) 
Eegulations made under the National Security Act, 1939-1943 
and the Building Operations and Building Materials Control 
Act, 1945 it became at the time of or shortly after the execution 39 
of the said lease and remained until the thirtieth day of 
September One thousand nine hundred and fifty two impossible 
lawfully to erect any building of the type and nature referred 
to in Clause 4 of the said lease and the Company says that by 
reason thereof the said Clause 4 was frustrated and was at 
all relevant times and still remains wholly void or inoperative.
SA. IN answer to paragraph 10A of the Statement of Claim the 
Company denies that at the request of the Lessee therein 
referred to the Plaintiff before the expiry of the said two (2) 
years acceded to a postponement of the times for compliance by 49 
the said Lessee with Covenant 4 of the said lease.
SB. IN answer to paragraph HA of the Statement of Claim the 
Company denies that at its request the Plaintiff before the 
expiry of the said two (2) years acceded to a postponement of 
the time for compliance by it with Covenant 4 of the said lease.
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6. IN answer to paragraph 12 of the Statement of Claim in the 
the Company admits that it submitted certain plans for the 
approval of the Plaintiff who purported to approve thereof but South Wales 
subject to many conditions and qualifications but save as afore- Equitable, 
said the Company denies that it submitted to the Plaintiff plans Jurisdiction. 
and specifications for the erection of a building in pursuance of 
the said Covenant 4 or that on the twenty first day of May One 
thousand nine hundred and fifty four or at any time the Plaintiff c nth 
approved such plans and specifications. February,

10 GA. IN answer to paragraph 12A of the Statement of Claim the continued. 
Company does not know and cannot admit that it did not comply 
with Covenant 4 of the said lease within the time required by the 
said covenant and that thereupon it became liable to the Plaintiff 
for damages for breach thereof and it denies that thereafter it 
was agreed between the Plaintiff and it that it should build the 
building referred to in paragraph 5&. of the Statement of Claim or 
a building utilising the columns and substructure referred to in 
Clause 5 of the Statement of Claim and the full available area of 
the demised land to the Plaintiff's approval or at all within a

20 reasonable or any other time or that the Plaintiff should accept 
any such promise in discharge of the Plaintiff's rights consequent 
upon its alleged failure to build a building on the said land in 
accordance with Covenant 4 of the said lease within the said 
period of two (2) years.
6s. IN the further alternative to the allegations and submissions 
made in paragraph 5 hereof and in further answer to paragraphs 
10 and 12A and in answer to paragraph 12BB of the Statement of 
Claim the Company says that by reason of National Security 
(Building Operations) Eegulations made under the National 

30 Security Act 1919-1943 and the Building Operations and Building 
Material Control Act 1945 it became at the time of or shortly 
after the execution of the said lease and remained until the thir­ 
tieth day of September One thousand nine hundred and fifty two 
impossible lawfully to erect any building of the type or nature 
referred to in Clause 4 of the said lease or referred to in para­ 
graphs 5 or SA of the Statement of Claim and by reason thereof 
the Company was excused from complying with the said clause 
within the said period of two (2) years.
6c. IN the further alternative to the allegations and submissions 

40 made in paragraph 5 hereof and in further answer to paragraphs 
12A and 12BB of the Statement of Claim the Company says that 
the agreements therein alleged were respectively not to be per­ 
formed within the space of one year of the making thereof and 
any such agreements were not nor was any memorandum or note 
thereof in writing signed by the Company or any person there­ 
unto by it lawfully authorised and the Company craves the benefit
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of the Statute of Frauds as a defence to this Suit in the same 
manner as if it had pleaded or demurred to the Statement of 
Claim.
60. IN further answer to paragraphs 12A and 12sB and in answer 
to paragraph 12B of the Statement of Claim the Company says 
that each of the agreements therein alleged would be or would 
be a variation of a contract for the sale or other disposition of 
land or an interest in land and the said agreements are not nor 
is any memorandum or note thereof in writing signed by the 
Company or any person thereunto lawfully authorised by the 10 
Company and the Company craves the benefit of S. 54A of the 
Conveyancing Act, 1919-1954 as a defence to this Suit in the same 
manner as if it had pleaded or demurred to the Statement of 
Claim.
GE. IN further answer to paragraphs 12A and 12sB of the State­ 
ment of Claim the Company says that each of the agreements 
therein alleged would be, or would be a variation of, a contract 
which was not to be performed within the space of one year of 
the making thereof and the said agreements are not nor is any 
memorandum or note thereof in writing signed by the Company 20 
or any person thereunto lawfully authorised by the Company 
and the Company craves the benefit of the Statute of Frauds as 
a defence to this Suit in the same manner as if it had pleaded or 
demurred to the Statement of Claim.
GF. ALTERNATIVELY to the matters hereinbefore alleged and 
in further answer to paragraph 12A of the Statement of Claim 
the Company says that the Plaintiff within the said period of two 
(2) years represented to the Lessee for the time being under the 
said lease and to the Company and led the Lessee and the Com­ 
pany to believe that he did not require and would not insist upon 30 
the erection of any building upon the demised land in compliance 
with the provisions of the said lease within the said period of 
two (2) years or any other fixed time and in reliance upon the 
said representation the Lessee did not erect the same within the 
said period of two (2) years and the Company submits that the 
Plaintiff ought not to be heard to say that the Lessee was bound 
to erect a building upon the said land within the said period or 
any other specific period or that its failure to erect such a build­ 
ing within the said period of two (2) years made it liable to the 
Plaintiff in damages. 40 
60. 72V answer to paragraph 12s of the Statement of Claim the 
Company does not know and cannot admit that after the 
making of the agreement set forth in paragraph 12A of the 
Statement of Claim or at all the Plaintiff agreed in and about 
May One thousand nine hundred and fifty-four or at any time 
that the Company might build on the land a building according
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to certain plans and specifications then proffered by it to the 
Plaintiff and approved by the Plaintiff or that any such agree-

x n i # li r.i • .•<«• ^i i "i T j> nment and approval ot the Plaintilt or the building ot sucn 
building in accordance with such lastly-mentioned plans should^ „.,

, ,, ~ ,, .1 XT. 4. Equitablenot release tne Company irom any agreement such as that jurisdiction. 
referred to in paragraph 12A of the Statement of Claim the N~6 
making of which the Company denies as aforesaid. Judgment of
GGG. IN further answer to paragraph 12BB of the Statement of c nth '' 
Claim the Company does not know and cannot admit that it February,

10 did not comply with Covenant 4 of the said lease within the time continued. 
required by the said covenant and that thereupon it became 
liable to the Plaintiff for damages for breach thereof and it 
denies that thereafter it was agreed between the Plaintiff and 
it that it should build a building according to certain plans and 
specifications approved by the Plaintiff at the request of the 
Defendant on the twenty-first day of May One thousand nine 
hundred and fifty-four (which said approval the Company also 
denies) or at all and that the Plaintiff should accept the said 
promise in discharge of the Plaintiff's rights against the Corn-

20 pany consequent upon its alleged failure to build a building 
on the said land in accordance with Covenant 4 of the said lease 
within the said period of two (2) years.
GH. 72V answer to paragraph 12c of the Statement of Claim the 
Company denies that pursuant to the said Agreements or either 
of them or to the said approvals or either of them or at all it 
commenced to erect the building referred to in paragraph 12A 
of the Statement of Claim.
6j. IN answer to paragraph 12o of the Statement of Claim the 
Company does not admit that the said notice or the effect thereof 

o~ is in the said paragraph sufficiently or correctly set forth. In 
further answer to the said paragraph the Company submits 
that the said notice was and is void and of no effect. 
6K. IN answer to paragraph 12E of the Statement of Claim the 
Company does not know and cannot admit that by reason of the 
matters alleged in the Statement of Claim it was obliged at the 
date of the institution of this Suit or at all to erect upon the full 
available area of the land in the said paragraph referred to a 
building to the Plaintiff's approval which should utilise the said 
columns and sub-structure or to spend in its construction a sum 
of at least One Hundred and Fifty Thousand Pounds (£150,000). 
BKK. IN answer to paragraph 12EE of the Statement of Claim 
the Company does not know and cannot admit that by reason of 
the matters alleged in the Statement of Claim it was obliged 
at the date of the institution of this Suit or at all to erect on the 
said land a building in accordance with the plans in the said 
paragraph referred to.
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BKKK. 7AT further answer to paragraphs 12s and 12eE of the 
Statement of Claim the Company says that any obligation to the 
effect therein respectively referred to would arise under an 
agreement for the sale or other disposition of land or an interest 
in land and the same is not nor is any memorandum or note 
thereof in writing signed by the Company or any person there­ 
unto lawfully authorised by it and the Company craves the 
benefit of Section 54A of the Conveyancing Act, 1919-1954, as a 
defence to this suit in the same manner as if it had pleaded 
or demurred to the Statement of Claim. 10
GKKKK. IN further answer to paragraphs 12E and I^EE of the 
Statement of Claim the Company says that any obligation to 
the effect therein respectively referred to would arise under 
an agreement which was not to be performed within the space 
of one (1) year of the making thereof and the same is not nor 
is any memorandum or note thereof in writing signed by the 
Company or any person thereunto lawfully authorised by it and 
the Company craves the benefit of the Statute of Frauds as a 
defence to this suit in the same manner as if it had pleaded or 
demurred to the Statement of Claim. 20
GL. IN answer to paragraph 14 of the Statement of Claim the 
Company does not admit that the Order of the Licensing Court 
therein referred to or the effect thereof is in the said paragraph 
correctly or sufficiently set forth.
7. 72V answer to paragraph 15 of the Statement of Claim the 
Company says that on the said twenty-sixth day of May One 
thousand nine hundred and fifty-four the said Licensing Court 
purported to approve of certain plans being the plans referred 
to in paragraph 6 hereof which purported approval the 
Company submits was invalid inoperative and of no effect in the 30 
law. Save as aforesaid the Company does not know and cannot 
admit that on the twenty-sixth day of May One thousand nine 
hundred and fifty-four the said Licensing Court in the said 
proceedings under Section 40A of the Liquor Act approved the 
plans referred to in paragraph 12 of the Statement of Claim or 
that later the time for compliance with the Order of the said 
Court of the ninth day of November One thousand nine hundred 
and fifty three was extended to the thirtieth day of September 
One thousand nine hundred and fifty five.
8. IN answer to paragraph 16 of the Statement of Claim the 40 
Company does not know and cannot admit that the said plans 
and specifications provided for a building which would occupy 
approximately two-thirds of the lands demised under the said 
lease and would utilise most of the columns and the major part 
of the sub-structure which had been erected and constructed by
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the Plaintiff on the demised lands as set forth in paragraph 5 
of the Statement of Claim.
9. IN answer to paragraph 17 of the Statement of Claim the South 
Company admits that subsequent to the twenty sixth day of Equitable 
May One thousand nine hundred and fifty four it carried out •7ttnafeiio 
certain foundation and other preliminary work which would be NO. 26. 
appropriate for any substantial building which might thereafter J^f^"^ 
be erected upon the said land but save as aforesaid the Company nth 
does not know and cannot admit that it commenced work on ^958^' 

10 the erection of a building in accordance with the plans and continued. 
specifications referred to in paragraph 12 of the Statement of 
Claim.
9A. IN answer to paragraph 18 of the Statement of Claim the 
Company says that it applied to the Licensing Court for an 
extension of time beyond the thirtieth day of September One 
thousand nine hundred and fifty five within which to erect the 
said building for which the Licensing Court had purported to 
approve the plans as aforesaid in order to give the Company 
an opportunity of calling tenders for the erection of a building

20 on the lands demised in the said lease and that the said Court 
adjourned the application for an extension of time until the 
twenty third day of January One thousand nine hundred and 
fifty six but save as aforesaid the Company does not know and 
cannot admit that it made an application to the Licensing Court 
for an extension of time beyond the thirtieth day of September 
One thousand nine hundred and fifty five to comply with the 
said Order of the said Court and that on the twentieth day of 
October One thousand nine hundred and fifty five the said Court 
in order to give the Defendants an opportunity of calling tenders

30 for erection of a building on the lands demised in the said lease 
in accordance with the plans referred to in paragraph 12 of 
the Statement of Claim adjourned the application for an exten­ 
sion of time until the twenty third day of January One thousand 
nine hundred and fifty six.
9B. IN answer to paragraph 19 of the Statement of Claim the 
Company says that it was the application referred to in para­ 
graph 9A hereof which came on for hearing on the thirty first 
day of January One thousand nine hundred and fifty six.
10. IN answer to paragraph 20 of the Statement of Claim the 

40 Company says that prior to the hearing of the said Appeal it 
informed the Court that it did not propose to prosecute the said 
Appeal and it did not attend before and did not ask to be heard 
by the Court when the Appeal was dealt with, and the Company 
further says that it was in these circumstances and not otherwise 
that the Court dismissed the said Appeal.
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l(k. IN answer to paragraph 21 of the Statement of Claim the 
Company says that the alleged requirement of the Plaintiff 
forms the subject of a written document and the Company does 
not admit that the same or the effect thereof is sufficiently or 
correctly set forth in the said paragraph. The Company further 
says that the Plaintiff was not entitled to make such a require­ 
ment and did not have the right in respect of such requirement 
to make time of the essence and that any attempt by him to do 
so was ineffectual for that purpose.
11. IN further answer to paragraph 21 of the Statement of 10 
Claim and in further answer to paragraph 10 of the Statement 
of Claim and in answer to the whole Statement of Claim the 
Company says that throughout the period from the twenty 
fourth day of February One thousand nine hundred and forty 
three to the thirtieth day of June One thousand nine hundred 
and fifty six the Company paid rent to the Plaintiff and the 
Plaintiff accepted rent from the Company in pursuance of the 
terms of the said lease and the Company further says that the 
last payment for such rent was accepted by the Plaintiff on the 
thirteenth day of April One thousand nine hundred and fifty six 20 
in respect of the quarter ending the thirtieth day of June One 
thousand nine hundred and fifty six and the Company further 
says that throughout such period the Plaintiff also accepted 
from the Company payment of interest under Clause 3 of the 
said lease and that the last payment of such interest was accepted 
by the Plaintiff on the fourth day of July One thousand nine 
hundred and fifty six in respect of the period ending the thirtieth 
day of June One thousand nine hundred and fifty six.
HA. IN answer to paragraph '22 of the Statement of Claim the 
Company denies that the Order of the Licensing Court made on 30 
the ninth day of November One thousand nine hundred and fifty 
three was varied on the twenty sixth day of May One thousand 
nine hundred and fifty four or at all.
12. IN answer to paragraph 26 of the Statement of Claim the 
Company says that the plans in the said paragraph mentioned are 
plans for a building which will cost over Four Hundred Thousand 
Pounds (£400,000.0.0) to erect and that a building in accordance 
with the plans and specifications referred to in Paragraph 12 of 
the Statement of Claim will cost substantially more to erect but 
save as aforesaid the Company denies that such firstmentioned 40 
plans are for a building considerably or at all smaller or of a less 
value than a building in accordance with the plans and specifica­ 
tions referred to in paragraph 12 of the Statement of Claim and 
the Company further says that the said firstmentioned plans are 
for a building which is better designed according to modern
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architectural standards and contains substantially more bedroom in, the 
and other accommodation and is more suitable efficient and con- Co^r0fm̂ eit 
venient as modern hotel premises having regard to the locality South Wales 
and conformation of the subject land than the building envisaged Equitable 
by the plans referred to in paragraph 12 of the Statement of Jurisdiction. 
Claim and the Company further says that the said firstmentioned j^Tae. 
plans are better adapted to future extension of the building Judgment of 
therein provided for than are the plans referred to in the said ° fj^ '' 
paragraph 12 of the Statement of Claim. February,1958— 

continued.
10 13. ALTERNATIVELY to the allegations and submissions made 

in paragraph 5 hereof the Company in answer to paragraph '11 
of the Statement of Claim and in further answer to the whole 
Statement of Claim submits that the said lease contains a cove­ 
nant condition or agreement against the making of improvements 
without the licence or consent of the Lessor and the Company 
charges the fact to be that the Plaintiff's refusal to approve of 
the Company's plans and specifications referred to in paragraph
26 of the Statement of Claim is an unreasonable withholding of 
the Plaintiff's licence or consent.

20 13A. ALTERNATIVELY to the allegations and submissions 
made in paragraph 5 hereof and in further answer to paragraph
27 of the Statement of Claim and to the whole Statement of Claim 
the Company says that the designs, plans and specifications 
referred to in paragraph 26 of the Statement of Claim were 
submitted by the Company to the Plaintiff for his approval and 
the Plaintiff refused to consider the said plans designs and 
specifications and rejected the same. The Company charges the 
fact to be that in rejecting the said plans designs and specifica­ 
tions the Plaintiff acted arbitrarily, capriciously, irrationally or 

30 unreasonably and that he exercised any discretion given to him 
on wrong principles, and that he rejected the said plans and 
refused or failed to approve of the same with a view to compelling 
the Company to erect a certain other building which would cost 
much more than the proposed building and several times One 
Hundred and Fifty Thousand Pounds (£150,000.0.0).

13s. IN the further alternative to the matters hereinbefore 
pleaded and in further answer to the whole of the Statement of 
Claim the Company says that it was a term or condition of the 
said lease that the Plaintiff would not unreasonably withhold its 

4Q approval of plans for a building to cost not less than One Hun­ 
dred and Fifty Thousand Pounds (£150,000.0.0) and that in 
withholding its approval of the plans referred to in paragraph 
26 of the Statement of Claim the Plaintiff is withholding its 
approval unreasonably.

3S632—19
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13c. IN the further alternative to the allegations and submissions 
made in paragraph 5 hereof and in further answer to the whole 
of the Statement of Claim the Company says that the Plaintiff 
has waived compliance with the said Clause 4.
13o. IN the further alternative to the allegations and submissions 
made in paragraph 5 hereof and in further answer to the whole 
of the Statement of Claim the Company says that the Plaintiff 
has waived compliance with any requirement of the said lease 
that designs plans and specifications for a building to be erected 
on the demised land by the Company should be submitted to and 
approved by the Plaintiff before such building was erected.
13s. IN the further alternative to the allegations and submissions 
made in paragraph 5 hereof and in further answer to the whole 
of the Statement of Claim the Company says that the Plaintiff 
has waived compliance with any requirement of the said lease 
that a building was to be erected constructed and completed by 
the Lessee within the period of two (2) years from the date of 
the commencement of the said lease.
14. IN answer to paragraph 30 of the Statement of Claim the 
Company denies that it has threatened to build a building upon , 
the demised lands in accordance with the plans referred to in 
paragraph 26 of the Statement of Claim subject only to the 
approval of the Licensing Court and without the consent or 
approval of the Plaintiff or that it intends so to do unless 
required or permitted by law.
15. IN further answer to paragraph 30 of the Statement of Claim 
and in further answer to the Statement of Claim the Company 
submits that on the true construction of the said lease and in the 
light of the facts hereinbefore alleged the Company is not 
required by law to obtain the approval of the Plaintiff to the 
plans referred to in paragraph 26 of the Statement of Claim.
16. IN answer to paragraph 31 of the Statement of Claim the 
Company does not know and cannot admit that the Plaintiff 
fears that unless the Defendants be restrained by Order of this 
Honourable Court the Defendants will attempt to build a building 
other than in accordance with the plans referred to in paragraph 
12 of the Statement of Claim.
17. IN answer to paragraph 32 of the Statement of Claim the 
Company does not know and cannot admit that the Plaintiff 
fears that unless the Defendants be restrained by Order of this 
Honourable Court from applying under Section 40A (2) of the 
Liquor Act for a variation of the existing Order of the said 
Licensing Court and from applying to the said Licensing Court 
for approval of the plans submitted to the Plaintiff on the second 
day of August One thousand nine hundred and fifty six as set

30
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out in paragraph 26 of the Statement of Claim the said last- hthe. 
mentioned plans will be approved by the said Licensing Court Co^p 
in lieu of the plans approved by the Plaintiff and the said Licen- South Wales 
sing Court as set forth in paragraphs 1'2 and 15 of the Statement E%citaUe
Of Claim. Jurisdiction.

I?A. IN the further alternative and in further answer to the No. 26. 
Statement of Claim the Company submits that in the exercise of Suand j° 
its discretion this Honourable Court will not grant the relief nth 
sought in the Statement of Claim on the ground that to do so ^i^g!^' 
would inflict undue hardship upon the Company in that continued.

(a) The Plaintiff has threatened and intends to eject the 
Company from the said premises if and when it obtains 
the said relief.

(b) The Plaintiff is seeking to prevent the Company from 
complying with its covenants under the said lease, and

(c) In so doing is endangering the said licence and the 
Company's interest therein, and also the Company's 
right of occupation of the said premises for the 
remainder of the term granted by the said lease.

(d) The Plaintiff seeks to compel the erection by the 
Defendant Company of a building which will cost 
several times the amount of One Hundred and Fifty 
Thousand Pounds (£150,000.0.0) referred to in Clause 4 
of the said lease and which will contain substantially 
fewer bedrooms and bathrooms and shops and which 
will produce much less income than the building 
referred to in Clause 2G of the Statement of Claim and 
which will cost much more to build than such last- 
mentioned building.

(e) The Defendant Company would suffer severe and con­ 
tinuing economic loss.

18. IN further answer to the whole Statement of Claim the 
Company submits that it discloses no equity against it and that 
the Plaintiff's proper remedy (if any) against the Company is 
in this Honourable Court in its Common Law Jurisdiction and 
the Company claims the same benefit as if it had demurred to 
the Statement of Claim."

The amended replication is in the following terms:—
"1. THE Plaintiff joins issue on the Statement of Defence of 
the Defendant Avrom Investments Proprietary Limited.
2. IN further reply to paragraph 5 of the Statement of Defence 
herein the Plaintiff submits in respect of the said Clause 4 that 
time was not of the essence of the promises made in the said 
clause.
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3. IN further reply to paragraph 5 of the Statement of Defence 
herein the Plaintiff says that if time was initially of the essence 
of the promises made in the said Clause 4 the Plaintiff waived 
its rights in respect of time until after the said thirtieth day of 
September One thousand nine hundred and fifty two when the 
Plaintiff made time of the essence by notice in writing to the 
Defendant Avrom Investments Proprietary Limited fixing a 
reasonable time for performance of such promises by the said 
Defendant.
4. IN further reply to paragraph 5 of the Statement of Defence 10 
herein the Plaintiff submits that the said Statutes and Eegula- 
tions did not excuse non-performance by the said Defendant 
Avrom Investments Proprietary Limited of the promises in the 
said Clause 4 from and after the said thirtieth day of September 
One thousand nine hundred and fifty two.
5. IN further reply to paragraph 6s of the Statement of Defence 
herein the Plaintiff repeats the replies as set forth in para­ 
graphs (2) (3) and (4) hereof.
6. IN further reply to paragraph 7 of the Statement of 
Defence herein the Plaintiff submits that the said approval of the 20 
Licensing Court operated and still operates as a judgment in 
rem in relation to the demised premises and that the said Defen­ 
dant Avrom Investments Proprietary Limited cannot be heard to 
say in this suit that the said approval was invalid inoperative or 
of no effect in the law.
7. IN further reply to paragraph 7 of the Statement of Defence 
herein the Plaintiff says that the Defendant Avrom Investments 
Proprietary Limited ought not to be admitted to say that the said 
approval of the Licensing Court was invalid inoperative and of 
no effect in the law because the Plaintiff says that before this 30 
suit the said Defendant as an Applicant in the said Licensing 
Court then being a court duly constituted and holden under the 
statutes relating to such a Court applied to the said Court for 
approval of the said plans as being the plans of the building to be 
built by the Plaintiff as owner of licensed premises under an 
order duly made by the said Court under Section 4Ck of the 
Liquor Act and the Plaintiff being represented on or having 
consented to such application to such Court for approval of the 
said plans the said Court in a judgment approved such plans and 
the said judgment remained and still remains in full force and 40 
effect and has not been appealed against quashed set aside or 
otherwise nullified according to the law.
8. IN further reply to paragraph 14 of the Statement of Defence 
herein the Plaintiff submits that the said paragraph 14 of the 
Statement of Defence is in itself a threat to build in accordance 
with the said plans.
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9. IN further reply to paragraph 15 of the Statement of Defence in the 
herein the Plaintiff submits that the said paragraph is a threat CofrT 
to build in accordance with the said plans." South Wales 

The rejoinder to the replication is a simple rejoinder of issue. Equitable 
After the suit had commenced, namely on the 4th April, 1957, the JuMictim- 

defendant filed a notice of motion for relief under section 89 of the No. 26. 
Conveying Act, 1919-1943 relying upon the evidence in the suit. The Suand J°! 
declarations and orders sought were in the following terms:— nth

February,
1. Declarations as to whether or not the demised land the 1958— 

10 subject of the said suit is affected by any restrictions as to its continued- 
user contained in the lease referred to in the Statement of Claim 
filed in the said suit, and if so,

(a) The nature and extent thereof;
(b) Whether the same is or are enforceable, and, if so, by 

whom.
2. If and in the event of it being declared that the said demised 
land is subject to restrictions arising as aforesaid and that the 
same are enforceable, for an order that the restrictions which 
may be declared as aforesaid be modified.

20 (a) so as to allow of the erection of a building on the said 
demised land substantially in accordance with the plans 
being Exhibit 12 in the said suit, the drawings being 
exhibit 10 in the said suit and the specifications being 
Exhibit B in the said suit without the approval of the 
lessor to the said designs plans or specifications;

(b) so as to allow of the erection of a building on the said 
demised land which is not in accordance or substantially 
in accordance with the plans being exhibit H in the said 
suit;

30 (c) so as to allow of the erection of a building on the said 
demised land which is not in accordance or substantially 
in accordance with the plans being exhibit Wl—6 in the 
said suit;

(d) so as to allow of the erection on the said demised land of 
a building in accordance with designs plans and speci­ 
fications not approved by the lessor if the lessor should 
unreasonably refuse or fail to consent to the said designs 
plans and specifications.''

Before dealing with the issues of law raised by the pleadings, it 
An will be convenient to deal with a number of other facts without at this 

stage adverting to their admissibility or effect.
There is first a series of facts relating to the 1954 plans and in the 

1956 plans, the use of the site, the use of the columns and similar 
questions which arose chiefly out of the defence that the plaintiff
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in the unreasonably refused to consent to the 1956 plans, which defence was 
primarily based on the provisions of section 133s of the Conveyancing 

South-Wal* Act, 1919-1943. 
Equitable On these questions a number of expert witnesses were called.

Jurisdiction. -
—— Each of the experts called on behalf of the defendant impressed 

Judgment of me as a reliable witness, and in particular Mr Nicholls, the architect, 
MoLeiiand J., and Mr. Llewellyn, the constructional engineer, impressed me as 

February, extremely capable, practical and reliable.
On behalf of the plaintiff, apart from an assistant engineer who 

gave some evidence relating to an encroachment shown in the 1956 plans, 10 
no officers of the plaintiff were called but evidence was given on behalf 
of the plaintiff by Mr Scott, an architect with considerable experience 
in hotel construction, and a Mr Britten, a constructional engineer.

Where the evidence of these witnesses was in conflict with those 
of the experts called on behalf of the defendant, I preferred the latter. 
I did not feel that I could place very much reliance on the evidence of 
Mr Britten.

A great deal of evidence was called but I do not propose to go 
through it in detail. The evidence satisfies me that the 1956 plans were 
plans of a substantial modern building with modern bedrooms and 20 
with adequate facilities which would be built over an area of about 
one-third of the site to be used in conjunction with the buildings already 
on the site, the erection of which would not prejudice the reasonable 
future development of the site, and, in particular, would not interfere 
with the reasonable future development of the centre of the site.

So far as a comparison of the 1954 and 1956 plans is concerned, 
the 1956 plans disclose the following advantages:—

(a) The design is better and more modern.
(b) Provision is made for a greater number of bedrooms.
(c) All the bedrooms have private bathrooms, whereas a con- 30 

siderable number in the 1954 plans have not.
(d) The bedrooms are of better design.
(e) There is more first-class accommodation.
(f) They make provision for a coffee lounge suitable for the 

provision of light meals. The 1954 plans make no such 
provision.

(g) They make greater use of the Carrington Street frontage 
which is more suitable for an entrance to an hotel than 
George Street, this frontage being more suitable for com­ 
mercial development. 40

(h) They make provision for a greater number of shops.
(j) They would permit of extensions to the building at less cost.
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(k) They would permit more flexibility so far as future develop- in the 
ment is concerned.

The building contemplated by the 1954 plans is spread over a 
larger area of the surface of the land than the building contemplated Equitable. 
by the 1956 plans but, what virtue arises from that fact by itself, I am un̂ __^ton- 
myself unable to see. No- 26 -

Judgment of
The cost of the building contemplated by the 1954 plans would MoL^£d J" 

be greater than the cost of the building contemplated by the 1956 plans February, 
but I do not think that cost alone can in the circumstances be treated 1^?8~,

.,...„, ,, continued.
, Q as necessarily a criterion of value or worth.

I also find that the structural information supplied by the defendant 
to the plaintiff in connection with the 1956 plans was as detailed as the 
information sent on the -1st April, 1954, with the 1954 plans and I 
find that the 1954 plans were not and could not reasonably be considered 
to be an instalment of the Innes-Kerr plans.

There is a document in evidence, Exhibit 17, setting out estimates 
of the financial result to the defendant which would accrue respectively 
from a building according to the 1954 plans and a building according 
to the 1956 plans. I accept these estimates as giving a substantially 

„„ accurate picture. I am satisfied from these figures and from the 
evidence generally that a building according to the 1956 plans would 
be a very much better economic proposition than a building according 
to the 1954 plans.

There are some features of the plans which were relied upon by 
the plaintiff.

By the colour used in the drawing of the roof slab, such slab 
appeared to go where it should not be. This proved only to be a 
mistake in colouring in that part of the drawing.

The plan in one place at the north-east corner disclosed an 
QQ encroachment of about two feet into a motor room, being one of the 

reserved areas of the lease. This was in fact an encroachment.
It is not a large encroachment and the wall in question could be 

brought in with no practical consequences to the structure.
The plan showed a small duct of about three feet by four feet 

which was reserved in the lease going through a water closet. This 
would require replanning of a small sector with no appreciable 
consequences.

In the plan two pillars supporting a slab roof are not shown but 
extension of existing pillars are planned to give the necessary support. 

40 No difficulty arises from this.
There was a series of facts relating to further development if the 

1956 plans were completed about which considerable evidence was 
given.
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In recent times amended and more liberal building ordinances and 
regulations make it now permissible to have greater loads on columns 
than was formerly the position at the time of the Innes-Kerr plans and 
for a considerable time thereafter.

I am satisfied that a building built according to the 1956 plans on 
the Carrington Street frontage could be extended to a height of 150 
feet above Carrington Street with the floors above the 7th floor from 
Carrington Street stepped back 16 feet on the Wynyard Lane side of 
the building and that such an extension would be adequately supported.

If the centre portion of the site were ever built to the full height, 10 
it would be necessary to use heavy trusses for the support of the upper 
floors above the 4th floor. These trusses preferably would be placed 
above the 4th floor level from George Street.

Provision for the support of such trusses at the Carrington Street 
side would be available from columns in the Carrington Street 
building.

If provision was made in advance for an appropriate set-back or 
bracket in the appropriate columns, the provision for support of the 
trusses would cause little difficulty or expense.

No provision was made in the 1954 plans relating to the use of 20 
trusses in any future development.

If the specification of the concrete used in some of the concrete 
columns which in the 1956 contract was 3,000 Ibs. to the square inch was 
changed to 5,000 Ibs. to the square inch, no question of the ability of 
such columns to withstand the additional weight could possibly arise 
and the extra cost of altering the specifications would be about £50.

If the central portion of the site were built upon to the full height, 
it would be structurally possible to fill in the internal recessed part of 
the Carrington Street building by the use of the cantilever principle.

I should also mention some inferences which I draw from the facts 3Q 
in evidence and from the circumstances.

The first is that no officers of the plaintiff gave consideration to 
the 1956 plans as plans presented to the plaintiff by the defendant 
foj- approval.

The experts called on behalf of the plaintiff were not experts 
who had been called in by the plaintiff to aid it in considering whether 
the plans should be approved or not but were called simply to indicate 
any defects in the plans or points of criticism of the plans as far as 
possible future development and like questions were concerned. There 
is no evidence that any of the matters raised by them were ever con- 40 
sddered by the plaintiff or its officers.

The next is that the real desire of the plaintiff is not to have a 
building constructed according to the 1954 plans but, conceiving that 
the defendant is under a legal obligation to build a building which
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utilises substantially the Avhole of the site and the substructure and
at the least a building according to the 1954 plans and knowing that
the defendant is unwilling and unable to do so, desires to use these South
circumstances to bring the legal relations between the defendant and
itself under the lease to an end. jurisdiction.

There was a series of facts elicited in connection with the defence 
of hardship and to some extent in connection with the defence based 
upon unreasonableness to approve the plans.

The defendant tendered evidence from officers of the defendant 
10 and from financial documents relating to its financial position.

Exhibit 19 represents a summary of the profit and loss account of 
the defendant for the years ended 30th June from 1943 to 1956 inclusive.

Exhibit 20 represents details of the defendant Company's Wynyard 
Leasehold Account and Wynyard Leasehold Improvement Account.

I accept these two documents as substantially accurate.
From the evidence which was given the following facts emerge : 

There has been a recession in profits after the year 1947.
In 1949 the rent under the terms of the lease increased 

from £15,000 to £19,200.
20 The amount for wages increased very considerably over the 

years. In 1952 the figure was £55,400 and in 1956 £72,000.
The amount payable in respect of rates increased considerably. 

In 1948 the rates amounted to £7,400 and in 1956 to £16,500.
For many years the rents of the shops have been affected by 

the relevant provisions of the Landlord and Tenant legislation.
Since 1942 the defendant has invested about £119,000 as capital 

in its leasehold account.
The arguments before me ranged over a wide area and a great 

multitude of authorities was cited to me but I shall confine myself to 
30 those submissions only which I think are necessary to be dealt with in 

order to arrive at a right conclusion.
It will first be expedient to deal with some of the particular allega­ 

tions of fact in the statement of claim.
Paragraph 5. The excavation and the sub-structure, including the 

columns, were made and erected under the circumstances which I 
have narrated. Mr McFadden did represent that the proposed 
lessee's then intention was to erect an hotel which was estimated 
to cost £600,000. Except for this, I find that the "representation" 
alleged has not been established.

40 Paragraph SA. The agreement referred to has not been made out to 
my satisfaction. Any sums expended over £l09,l.'>4/5 /9 were con­ 
sidered by the parties to be for the plaintiff's benefit.

•38032— 19A

No. 26.
°

February,
1958—



586

In the. Paragraph 5s. It was agreed between the plaintiff and Mr McFadden 
and their respective representatives that the proposed lessee would 

South Wales pay interest on £109,134/5/9.
Equitable. Paragraph 5c. The plans and designs for a building of 13 stories were 

Jurisdiction. approved to the extent which I have already narrated.
t of P'araffraph SD. After the granting of the lease, Mrs Grardiner and 

J*., Permanent Trustee Co. of N.S.W. Ltd. did erect the building to 
Februar meet the requirements of the Licensing authorities which I have 

1958— ' mentioned and which cost £11,130 in accordance with plans and 
continued. specifications submitted to and approved by the plaintiff. The 10 

other allegations have not been made out.
Paragraph 10. It has not been established that by mutual consent of 

the plaintiff and the lessee the time for compliance by the lessee 
with Covenant 4 was extended.

Paragraph 10A. I find that this allegation has not been made out. 
Paragraph HA. I find that this allegation has not been made out.
Paragraph 12. The defendant submitted the 1954 plans to the plaintiff 

in the circumstances and in the manner I have described and the 
plaintiff gave a conditional approval of the nature I have described.

Paragraph 12A. I find that the agreement alleged has not been made 20 
out.

Paragraph 12s. The plaintiff gave a conditional approval to the 1954 
plans of the nature and in the circumstances I have described. 
Apart from this, I find that the "agreement" and approval alleged 
has not been established.

Paragraph 12BB. I find that the agreement alleged has not been made 
out.

Paragraph 12c. The defendant extended the columns on the Carring- 
ton Street frontage at the total cost of £32,020 in the circumstances 
and in the manner I have referred to and did refuse to build a 30 
building according to the 1954 plans, but otherwise the allegations 
have not been made out.

Paragraph 12o. I have referred to the terms of the notice which speak 
for themselves.

Paragraphs 12a and 12EE are submissions of law. 
Paragraph 13. These facts were made out.

I shall not refer in detail to the allegations contained in paragraphs 
14-32 inclusive. I have already alluded in detail to the course of events 
following the making of the order under section 40A of the Liquor Act.

The particular agreements alleged by the plaintiff not having been 40 
established, the question then is whether the plaintiff is entitled to the 
relief which it seeks, having regard to the true construction of the 
lease and the events which took place subsequently to its execution.
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At the threshhold of this inquiry is the question : What is the 
true construction and effect of clause 4 of the lease and primarily what 
is the building which the lessee covenanted to build?

In this connection, the plaintiff submitted that, upon the true con- 
struction of clause 4, the building was a building —

(a) which occupied the whole available area of the site and 
utilised the whole of the structure. At times counsel for 
the plaintiff used the word "utilised" simply to mean "built 
over" but at other times he used the expression in the sense 

10 of "substantially utilised" which would mean make sub- 
stantial use of the capacity of the whole of the sub-structure. 
If the condition of utilisation of the sub-structure were to 
add anything to the condition of covering the whole of the 
available area, the latter construction of the use of "utilise" 
would I think be necessary.

(b) As a subsidiary submission the building was to be one built 
according to the Innes-Kerr plans.

(c) The building was to be a building which was approved by 
the plaintiff.

20 Submissions (a) and (b) were of particular importance to the 
plaintiff because, until plans were submitted for approval which were 
plans of a building of the nature covenanted to be built, the question 
of the lessor's approval would not really arise.

The submission so far as (a) is concerned was based on the pro­ 
vision that the new building was to be constructed "on in under over 
through or along the demised premises". "Over" meant, it was said, 
"over the whole", "through", it was said, means "through the whole" 
and "or along" meant "and along". The phrase is an extraordinary 
one but I see no reason to construe the words other than according to 

30 their literal meaning. The requirements are alternatives. A building 
would comply if it was built "on the demised premises" and on the 
demised premises does not necessitate building on the whole of the 
demised premises.

So far as (b) is concerned, it is sufficient to say that the clause 
simply requires that the plan and specification should be completely 
prepared and submitted by the lessee for the approval of the lessor 
within 16 weeks from the date of the commencement of the lease, that 
such words are quite clear and unambiguous and do not say anything 
about the Innes-Kerr plans.

4Q So far as (c) is concerned, the building was of course to be a 
building subject to the approval of plans in accordance with the clause.

In connection with the construction of clause 4 and in particular 
in connection with the submissions (a) and (b), the plaintiff argued 
that the lease should be construed in the light of the surrounding

in the.

south Wales
Equitable 

Jurisdiction.
NO. 26.

J°' 
nth

1953— Y' 
continued.
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in the circumstances, including the physical situation when the lease was 
TNew executed and the course and conduct and happenings from the tender 

South Wales onwards.
Equitable. I would agree that the physical situation is relevant but, where as 

Junsdwtwn. ^ere you have a document which expresses the final concluded deliberate 
No. 26. terms of the contract between the parties, the prior negotiations and 

ivnlf "Sand j"f agreements and the particular facts which occurred since the inception 
nth ' of the transaction cannot be legitimately referred to for the purpose 

^1958—y> °^ adding a term or of altering its ordinary legal construction. 
continued. rphg piaintiff in particular referred to the tender, the agreement 10 

by the plaintiff to excavate and to build the sub-structure, the represen­ 
tation as to the hotel which was intended to be built, the nature of 
the columns, their weight, their position, their cost, etc., and the Innes- 
Kerr plans showing a building of 13 stories.

I am of opinion that in the circumstances of this case these and 
the other events antecedent to the lease cannot legitimately be referred 
to. The words of the lease speak for themselves.

Quite apart from this consideration, if it had been intended that 
the new building described in clause 4 should either be a building 
covering the whole area and substantially utilising the whole of the 20 
sub-structure or a building conforming to the Innes-Kerr design, there 
was nothing to prevent this having been stated in clear and unmistak­ 
able terms and the draftsmanship was the draftsmanship of the lessor.

Having regard to the circumstances prevailing when the lease was 
executed, the lack of any reference to the position created by the 
National Security Eegulations is somewhat remarkable. Each of the 
parties no doubt was anxious that at long last 'some finality should be 
reached at any cost and the actions of the Licensing Court made an early 
finality essential so far as the licence was concerned, the retention of 
which was so important at that stage, but the provision of a specific 30 
time for building without any reference whatsoever to what was to 
happen if it was impossible to build (a situation which was then almost 
inevitable) and the inclusion of a great number of provisions which 
are all framed on the hypothesis that the new building was in fact 
erected raises some very difficult problems.

The original lessees could, of course, have completely prepared 
and submitted the plan and specification within the 16 weeks, but what 
of the building?

The parties were aware of the regulations at the time of the lease. 
This fact, I think, would imply no higher an obligation than that the 40 
lessees would use their best endeavours to obtain a permit to build: 
see Re Anglo-Russian Merchant Traders Ltd. and John Batt & Co. 
(London] Ltd. ((1917) 2 K.B. 679). This particular position was not 
alluded to by counsel on either side but it seems to me that it necessarily 
follows from the circumstances.
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If an application for a permit was not made, the onus of proving in the 
that it was no use attempting to make an application for a permit to comt' 
build because it was foredoomed to failure would, of course, be on the South Wales
Ipcqppc »'» »'<* 
16SSeeS- Equitable

In the present case, I am satisfied that at all relevant times until "" 
the 30th September, 1952, it would not have been of any use attempting T ,N°- 26- ,
, T T ,• n •, , , -n n T -i T P.I - Judgment ofto make an application for a permit to build a building of the nature MoLeUand J., 
described in clause 4 because such an application would have been fore- _ ' lth
i i i n - n February,doomed to failure. 1958—

continued.
10 Accordingly, the original lessees were excused by impossibility 

from building until the date of the assignment, namely, 24th February, 
1943, and the defendant was excused by impossibility from building 
until the 30th September, 1952. The defendant until the 30th Sep­ 
tember, 1952, at any rate would not accordingly have been liable for 
any damages.

But what of the obligation to build? Did it still subsist? Eleven 
years is a considerable time and many changes of circumstances had 
taken place.

The defendant argued that the obligation to build had come to an 
20 end and referred at length to the cases dealing with frustration arguing 

by analogy that, although these were cases dealing with the circum­ 
stances under which the whole contract came to an end (and in the 
present case the lease was not frustrated), similar principles should be 
applied to one complete term of a contract such as clause 4 of the lease.

The defendant also argued that, since the clause was broken once 
and for all as to the termination of the two years allowed for building, 
the acceptance of rent thereafter prevented the plaintiff from relying 
on the breach aw a breach of condition: Stc^Jinis i\ Junior Army and 
Navy Stores Ltd. ((1914) 2 Ch. 516); Larking v> Great Western 

30 (Nepcan) Gravel Ltd. (64 C.L.E. 221). If there was a breach once and 
for all, how could the lessee be subsequently liable for a future breach 
of the same obligation?

The plaintiff argued that, where there is a covenant to do a thing 
by a certain day, although failure to do the thing by that day can only 
be treated as a breach of condition if so treated immediately, none­ 
theless the covenant to do the thing remains.

The positive covenant to build on the land, it was said, remains 
assuming it was never varied by the parties notwithstanding the pass­ 
ing of the two year period. Such obligation was at the lowest to build 

4Q what the lessor approved.
Some very difficult questions are raised. For example, assuming 

that the impossibility to build had subsisted until there was but a few 
years of the lease to run, would the lessee still be liable to build in
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in the accordance with clause 4? However, on the view I have formed of 
rNew other matters, I do not think it necessary that these difficult questions 

South Wales should be resolved. 
Equitable I shall assume that an obligation of some kind to build in accordance

Jurisdiction. wjth clauge 4 gtm subsisted in 1953-

Judgment of ^G Positive obligation in clause 4 implied, I think, a negative, 
MoLeUand 3., namely that the defendant would not build a building unless the plan

February auc^ specification was approved by the plaintiff in the manner provided 
1958— ' for in clause 4 read so far as the section may be material in the light

continued. of section i33B of the Conveyancing Act, 1919-1943. 10
The plaintiff relied strongly upon such a negative covenant in the 

interlocutory proceedings and, although it was but faintly referred to 
at the hearing of the suit, the plaintiff still relied upon such a negative 
covenant at the hearing.

No specific reference to the terms of such an implied negative 
covenant are contained in the statement of claim but, since the lease is 
itself set out, that is I think a sufficient allegation.

The defendant was content to conduct the case on the basis that 
there was in existence at all relevant times a negative covenant of the 
nature I have described. 20

An implied negative covenant such as I have mentioned was not the 
only implication upon which the plaintiff sought to rely. It was argued 
that the agreement in clause 4 was one which called for the co-operation 
of both parties and that the case was one for the application of the 
principle referred to in Stirling v. Maitland ((1864) 6 B. & S. 840) by 
Cockburn C. J. at p. 852 in the following terms : —

' ' I look on the law to be that, if a party enters into an arrange­ 
ment which can only take effect by the continuance of a certain 
existing state of circumstances, there is an implied engagement 
on his part that he shall do nothing of his own motion to put an 30 
end to that state of circumstances, under which alone the arrange­ 
ment can be operative."

and applied in many subsequent cases. In Southern Foundries (1926) 
Ltd. v. SUrlaw ((1940) A.C. 701) Lord Atkin at p. 717 referred to the 
proposition in the following terms : —

' ' That proposition in my opinion is well established law. Person­ 
ally I should not so much base the law on an implied term, as on a 
positive rule of the law of contract that conduct of either pro- 
miser or promisee which can be said to amount to himself 'of his 
own motion' bringing about the impossibility of performance is 49 
in itself a breach. ' '

In the circumstances of the present case, I do not see how the 
plaintiff could succeed on the basis referred to if it could not succeed 
by reliance on a negative covenant such as I have referred to.
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Jurisdiction-
No. 26.

February,1958— 
continue •

It is necessary now to consider what is the result of the events in the 
which happened between the 30th September, 1952, and the date of the 
commencement of the suit. Sou^h

in ils
The first important fact is the making of the order under section Equitable 

4(k of the Liquor Act on the 9th November, 1953. Such an order is 
an order made upon an owner. It was argued for the plaintiff that as 
between lessor and lessee the obligation to carry out the order was 
placed upon the lessee under the terms of clause 5 of the lease. This I

-, , , , . , . ,do not think is correct.
10 The clause is primarily concerned with the repair and maintenance 

of the ' ' said building" which has not yet come into existence. It is true 
that in terms the words of the second part of the clause include the 
words "and will also make and carry out any alteration or addition 
whether structural or otherwise having application thereto now or 
hereafter in force or by virtue of any requirement of the said authority 
may be required to be made or carried out by either the lessor or the 
lessee in or upon the demised premises or the said building" and that 
these words may literally cover the order made but, having regard to 
the terms of the lease as a whole and to the context in which the words

20 appear, I do not think that they were intended to cover an order made 
under section 40A. Section 4(k was in force when the lease was executed 
and, if it had been intended that the lessee should undertake the possibly 
very heavy burden of such an order, one would have expected the burden 
to have been created in clear and unmistakable terms.

However, even if I were wrong on this question of the construction 
of clause 5, I do not think that the result would be affected. The fact 
that the burden of the order was on the defendant as between the 
parties would not, I think, if the provisions of clause 4 and of the 
implied covenant did not otherwise create rights to the relief asked for, 

30 of itself provide a basis for such relief.
Whether the defendant was bound as between itself and the plaintiff 

to carry out the order, it appears clear that it either thought it was so 
bound or deemed it expedient itself to endeavour to comply with it. 
After all, if the licence were lost, the most valuable part of the plaintiff's 
business would have disappeared.

The defendant obviously took over the burden of the conduct of 
the proceedings in the Licensing Court and since it was the occupier 
through its nominee was no doubt entitled to be heard.

The second important fact is the application made by the 
40 defendant on the 26th May, 1955, and the order purported to be made 

under it.
For the defendant, it was argued that this order was quite 

ineffective. It was said that there was no jurisdiction in the Licensing 
Court to approve plans under section 4(k. But, even if this were so, 
it is to be remembered that the person then making the application

J.,
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in the to build in accordance with the plans was the lessee and not the owner
CourToTNeta aS&inst whom the order had been made and a lessee in order to build
South Wales is required by section 40 (2) to have plans approved. In this connection,

Editable I ^0 not think that because section 40 (2) was not expressly referred
jurisdiction, to in the application, this is of vital importance.

NO. 26. Again, it was said that, as the Act then stood, the Court had no
Judgment of jurisdiction to vary the order from an order of 100 bedrooms to an

iith '' order for in fact 62 bedrooms but the order made on the 26th May,
February, 1955 might very well be considered as a new order and the sectionin eg__ " o «/
continued, might very well have given jurisdiction to make a new order. 10

However, I do not think it is necessary to determine these questions 
for the purposes of this suit and in such circumstances it would be 
inexpedient to do so.

The tentative views which I have expressed should not be taken 
to be decisions as to what the true position was.

Whether the plaintiff is entitled to the relief sought does not in 
the view I take in any way depend upon the question whether the order 
made on the 26th May, 1955, was or was not made with jurisdiction.

The third important fact is the submission of the original 1954 
plans and of the amended Sheet 5 for the approval of the plaintiff. 20

It is possible that the defendant submitted the plans in the belief 
that it was bound to do so under clause 4. If it was in error in this 
belief, that fact I do not think would affect the legal position arising 
but I shall assume that the defendant was bound to submit the plans 
for approval.

What was the legal result of what followed?
The plaintiff has argued that a stage was reached when the plaintiff 

by reason of the provisions of clause 4 and of its approval of the plans 
and of the approval of the plans by the Licensing Court became entitled 
to have specific performance to compel the defendant to build a building 30 
according to the 1954 plans.

I am of opinion, however, that no such stage was ever reached.
The approval given by the plaintiff was subject to many conditions, 

some of which required fulfilment before the building was commenced 
and there is no evidence that they were fulfilled.

On the 23rd March, 1955, substituted plans were lodged with and 
approved by the Licensing Court and, although these plans do not vary 
in general principle from the former ones, there is no evidence to show 
that the substituted plans were submitted to or approved by the 
plaintiff. 40

The facts set out in the history lodged by the defendant with the 
application for an extension of time on the 29th September, 1955, 
particularly the facts set out in paragraph 4 thereof, make it clear that 
the defendant was not on the 25th September, 1955, entitled as between 
itself and the plaintiff to go ahead with the building.
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I think it is clear that the plaintiff could not have obtained a decree in the. 
for specific performance on the '25th September, 1955, and the evidence <70f 
does not establish that after the 25th September, 1955, the position South Wales 
materially altered. Editable

The last important fact is the submission of the 1956 plans. Jurisdiction.
I am of opinion that until the building design, plan and specification No. 26. 

was so approved as to give the defendant the right then to go ahead JcifeUand j 
with the building, there is nothing iu the terms of clause 4 to prevent nth 
the defendant proffering to the plaintiff for approval substituted plans ^iggg!^' 

10 for a different kind of building and to have the plaintiff consider them, continued.
What then is the nature of the approval referred to in clause 4, 

remembering that clause 4 implies a negative covenant of the nature 
I have described!

For the plaintiff, it was argued that the plaintiff had an absolute 
discretion. For the defendant, it was argued that the plaintiff's right 
could not in any case be exercised arbitrarily or capriciously and had to 
be exercised in the light of the main purpose of the lease and not in 
derogation of the grant in the lease and in particular that the early 
words of clause 4 must be read subject to the phrase "and notwithstand- 

20 ing anything hereinbefore contained the building design and specifica­ 
tion of the said building shall be subject to the reasonable requirements 
of the lessor.'' This, it was said, had the effect of limiting the plaintiff's 
discretion to reasonable requirements.

For the plaintiff, it was argued that these words assume a prior 
approval of the building design, plan and specification. Although the 
lessor had approved the building design, plan and specification, the 
lessor could require reasonable variations of it. It was primarily 
intended to cover matters arising after approval and during construc­ 
tion.

30 The conclusion I have arrived at is that the defendant's contention 
as to the effect of the phrase "notwithstanding . . . etc." is 
correct.

The requirement that the building design plan and specification was 
to be such as the "said authority" may in their absolute discretion 
approve is in the circumstances an extraordinary one and the use of the 
word "or" also raises difficulties but I do not propose to spend any 
time on the construction of these words. I shall deal with the situation 
as if the words read "in accordance with such building design plan and 
specification as the lessor may in its absolute discretion approve".

40 A reading of the whole lease and of the first part of clause 4 does 
give the impression that the draftsman was primarily concerned with 
the protection of the lessor and leads to a suspicion that any words 
which he introduced would not have been intended to cut down rights 
already given to the lessor but the intention must be gathered from the 
words which are in fact used.
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in the If it were intended that the building design plan and specification, 
Oourt'oTNew notwithstanding that it had been approved by the lessor, should in 
South Wales addition from time to time be subject to the reasonable requirements of

Equitable ^e lessor, nothing would have been easier than to have said so. 
jurisdiction. jijjg W0rds following the phrase "notwithstanding . . . etc."

NO. 26. are very wide and do provide a substantial safeguard for the lessor
T^ f during construction.MoLelland J., °

nth The words "notwithstanding anything hereinbefore contained"
1958_ ' refer more naturally to the words used earlier in clause 4 than to

continued, something done in pursuance of the provisions of clause 4. 10
A consideration of the timetable of clause 4 ; complete preparation 

and submission within 16 weeks ; the necessity thereafter for the obtain­ 
ing of consents, involving consideration of the documents ; the building 
to be commenced within six months and to proceed continuously 
thereafter, suggests that finality was required.

I do not think that it is putting undue strain on the words to read 
them as meaning that, notwithstanding what has been said previously, 
namely that the building design plan and specification should be such as 
the lessor may in its absolute discretion approve, the building design 
plan and specification is to be subject only to the reasonable require- 20 
ments of the lessor.

I am of opinion that what the lessor insisted upon in 1956 were not 
reasonable requirements.

However, even if the construction which I have placed upon the 
phrase were wrong, the result would not be different.

Section 133s (2) of the Conveyancing Act, 1919-1943 is in the 
following terms: —

"In all leases whether made before or after the commencement 
of the Conveyancing (Amendment) Act, 1930, containing a cove­ 
nant, condition, or agreement against the making of improve- 30 
ments without license or consent, such covenant, condition, or 
agreement shall be deemed, notwithstanding any express provi­ 
sion to the contrary, to be subject to the proviso that such license 
or consent is not to be unreasonably withheld; but this proviso 
does not preclude the right to require as a condition of such 
license or consent the payment of a reasonable sum in respect 
of any damage to or diminution in the value of the premises or 
any neighbouring premises belonging to the lessor, and of any 
legal or other expenses properly incurred in connection with such 
license or consent nor, in the case of an improvement which does 40 
not add to the letting value of the holding, does it preclude the 
right to require as a condition of such license or consent, where 
such a requirement would be reasonable, an undertaking on the 
part of the lessee to reinstate the premises in the condition in 
which they were before the improvement was executed."
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I am of opinion that the word "improvements" covers a building in the. 
of the nature described in clause 4, that the negative covenant I have 
mentioned is contained in the lease, that such covenant is a covenant South Wales 
against the making of improvements without consent, and that the Equitable 
negative covenant is subject to the proviso mentioned in the section. Jurisdiction.

The question then is : Did the plaintiff reasonably refuse to NO . 2e.
approve ? SeOand J°f 

The plaintiff's response to the request that the 1956 plans be con- nth
sidered is contained in the letters of 14th August, 1956 and 17th August,

10 1956. continued.
The effect of these letters may be summarised thus :
The plaintiff takes the view that the defendant became bound to 

erect a building according to the 1954 plans.
The plaintiff takes the view that the plaintiff is entitled to have 

the defendant erect a building which would be based upon the whole 
of the columns and sub-structure.

The plaintiff takes the view that the plaintiff is entitled to have 
the defendant erect a building which covers the whole of the site.

Since it takes these views, the plaintiff will not consider the plans 
20 and will not approve of them.

For reasons which I have already given, the plaintiff's views 
were wrong and in my opinion the plaintiff should have considered 
the plans. I have already referred to the facts relating to the 1956 
plans and the proposed new building.

In all the circumstances, the conclusion I have reached is that 
approval to the 1956 plans was unreasonably withheld by the plaintiff. 
The effect of this conclusion is, that that part of the negative covenant 
relating to the approval of the lessor, so far as the 1956 plans are con­ 
cerned, no longer has effect. This does not mean, of course, that the 

30 defendant is relieved from an obligation not to build a building which 
otherwise does not comply with clause 4, that is approved by authority, 
to cost at least £150,000, providing for the complete safety of the 
lessor's passageway, subject to any requirements of the lessor concern­ 
ing the absolute stability, safety and well being in every respect of the 
lessor's passageway, etc., nor does it mean that the defendant can 
build anything in any of the reserved areas.

The 1956 plans disclose some errors relating to reserved areas 
which I have mentioned and the effect of these errors is, it was argued 
on behalf of the plaintiff, that T could not possibly find that approval 

40 was unreasonably withheld ; but this I do not think is the true position. 
They are in the circumstances but minor discrepancies and approval 
of the plans as plans would not permit the defendant to build on the 
reserved areas.

If the plaintiff's contention as to the effect of the "notwithstand­ 
ing ..." clause be correct, the plaintiff could always make further 
and reasonable requirements.
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in the The suit was obviously commenced for the particular purpose of 
'tfeto preventing the defendant from pursuing its application to the Licens- 

South Wales ing Court for a variation of the order made under section 40A and for 
Equitable ^e approval of the 1956 plans. Section 4(k and section 40 (2) of the 

Jurisdiction. Liquor Act gives the defendant statutory rights to pursue its applica- 
No- 26. ti°n- It is true that, if the order made under section 4(k be varied, a 

Judgment of neTv statutory obligation may be imposed upon the plaintiff but, if in 
iith ''the circumstances the defendant is not in so pursuing its application 

February, committing a breach of the implied covenant, I see no reason why the 
continued, defendant should be restrained from pursuing the application, even \Q 

though it is in the defendant's contemplation that at a future time, if 
the circumstances then enable it to do so and it considers it then 
expedient to do so, it will make an application under section 40A 
(2) (d).

I have used the word "may" in referring to the statutory obliga­ 
tion imposed upon the plaintiff because recently the High Court of 
Australia in Wynyard Investments Pty. Ltd. v. Commissioner for 
Railways (N.S.W.) (93 C.L.E. 376) held that section 4 (2) of the 
Transport (Division of Functions) Act, 1932-1952 (N.S.W.) means 
that for the purposes of any Act the Commissioner shall be deemed 20 
to represent the Crown as its servant or agent and it may very well 
be that, having regard to the principle that in order that the Crown 
should be bound by a statute it must be expressly named or be bound 
by necessary implication, the plaintiff is not bound by an order pur­ 
ported to be made under section 40A and would not be bound by the 
provisions of section 40A (2) (e) and would not be liable to a fine 
under the provisions of section 40A (2) (e).

I do not find it necessary to resolve this question. 
Amongst the relief claimed is paragraph 8 relating to the power 

of attorney provided for in clause 33 of the lease but no argument 30 
was addressed to me in respect to this and nothing, so far as I can 
see, has been proved to enable relief to be given in respect of it.

It is possible that in the future circumstances may arise in which 
the plaintiff may be able to obtain relief in this Court but at the present 
time I do not think that the plaintiff is entitled to any of the relief 
which it claims in the suit.

Having regard to the conclusion 1 have arrived at it is unnecessary 
for me to deal with the defence of hardship raised by the defendant 
or to deal with the application made by the defendant under section 
89 of the Conveyancing Act and I say nothing about either of these 49 
matters.

I dismiss the suit with costs, the defendant Company's costs to 
include the costs of the motion for an interlocutory injunction and of 
the proceedings before me on the 2nd November, 1956, and to include 
the costs of and occasioned by the amendments made by the plaintiff 
to the statement of claim and to the replication.
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. T -_ In the 
J\O. 27 Supreme

Court of New 
South WalesDecree »»»<*

Equitable

IN THE SUPREME COURT^I
OF NEW SOUTH WALES }• No. 1231 of 1956 

IN EQUITY J
BETWEEN THE COMMISSIONER FOR RAILWAYS

Plaintiff
— and —

AVROM INVESTMENTS PROPRIETARY
10 LIMITED and JOHN BONAVENTURE

LIMERICK
Defendants

AND BY AMENDMENT made the Eleventh day of April 
1957 pursuant to leave granted on the Ninth day of April 
1957
BETWEEN THE COMMISSIONER FOR RAILWAYS

Plaintiff
—— clJlCl ——

AVROM INVESTMENTS PROPRIETARY 
20 LIMITED

JOHN BONAVENTURE LIMERICK and 
JOHN BIRKETT WAKEFIELD

Defendants
TUESDAY the Eleventh day of February in the year of our 

Lord one thousand nine hundred and fifty eight.
THIS SUIT coming on to be heard before the Honourable Charles 
McLelland a Judge of the Supreme Court sitting in Equity on the 
fifth, sixth, seventh, eleventh, twelfth, thirteenth, fourteenth, nineteenth, 
twentieth, twenty first, twenty fifth, twenty sixth and twenty seventh

30 days of March 1957 and the first, second, third, fourth, eighth, ninth, 
tenth, eleventh, fifteenth, sixteenth, seventeenth, eighteenth, twenty 
third, twenty fourth and twenty ninth days of April 1957 and the 
sixth, seventh, eighth and twentieth days of May 1957 WHEREUPON 
AND UPON READING the pleadings filed herein AND UPON 
HEARING what was alleged by Sir Garfield Barwick Q.C. with whom 
was Mr. Jenkyn Q.C. and Mr. H. Jenkins of Counsel for the Plaintiff 
and by Mr. Wallace Q.C. with whom was Mr. Meares Q.C., Mr. Selby 
and Mr. May of Counsel for the Defendants THIS COURT DID grant 
leave to the Plaintiff to amend the statement of Claim and to the

40 defendants to amend the Statement of Defence in accordance with
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in the amendments already filed herein and to the plaintiff to amend the 
Supreme Replication generally AND such amendments having been made 

ai™ accordingly WHEREUPON AND UPON HEARING READ the 
Equable pipings as so amended as aforesaid AND UPON HEARING the 

Jurisdiction, oral evidence of Eric Milton Nicholls, Henry Arthur Llewellyn, Walter 
Nyj7 Ralston Bunning, William Ray Laurie, John Roland Harrowell, 
Decree. Elizabeth Dorothea Randall and Royle Stone Connolly called on behalf 

of the defendants and of Thomas Maxwell Scott, Alexander Theodore 
Britten and David Davis called on behalf of the plaintiff AND UPON 
READING AND EXAMINING the Exhibits put in evidence on behalf 10 
of the plaintiff and marked with the letters and figures A, B, C, D, E, 
F, G, H, J, K, L, M, N, 0, P, Q, R, S, T, U, V, Wl, W2, W3, W4, W5, 
W6, X, XI, Y, Yl, Y2, Y3, Z, Zl, AA, AAl, BB, BB1, CC, DD, DDl, 
EE, FF, FFl, GG, HH, JJ, KK, LL, MM, NN, 00, PP, QQ, RR, SS, 
TT, UU, VV, WW, XX, YY, ZZ, AAA, BBB, CCC, DDD, EEE, 
respectively and the Exhibits put in evidence on behalf of the defendants 
and marked with the figures and letters 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 
12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24FF, 25GG, 26, 27, 28, 
29, 30 respectively AND UPON HEARING what was alleged by the 
said Counsel for the said parties respectively THIS COURT DID ORDER 20 
that this suit should stand for Judgment AND the same standing in 
the paper this day for Judgment accordingly THIS COURT DOTH 
ORDER that this suit be and the same is hereby dismissed AND THIS 
COURT DOTH FURTHER ORDER that it be referred to the Deputy 
Registrar or Chief Clerk in Equity to tax and certify the costs of the 
defendants of this suit including the costs of and occasioned by the 
amendments made by the plaintiff to the said Statement of Claim and 
Replication AND that such costs when so taxed and certified be paid 
by the plaintiff to the defendants or their Solicitor within fourteen 
days after service upon the plaintiff or its Solicitor of an office copy 39 
of the certificate of such taxation.
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In the
Supreme

Court of New
South Wales

NO. 28 '»»«»
Equitable.

Jurisdiction.
Order allowing final leave to appeal to Her Majesty in Council —•

Order
THURSDAY the first day of May One thousand nine hundred allowing final

i H?L • i i leave toand fifty-eight appeal to
UPON MOTION made this day on behalf of the Appellant before the in council. 
Honourable Charles McLelland a Judge of the Supreme Court sitting 
in Equity pursuant to the Notice of Motion filed herein on the Twenty- 
ninth day of April One thousand nine hundred and fifty-eight WHERE­ 
UPON AND UPON READING the said Notice of Motion the Certificate

10 of the Acting Deputy Registrar in Equity of Compliance dated the 
thirtieth day of April last and the Affidavit of Alan Grant Crawford 
sworn the Thirtieth day of April last and both filed herein AND UPON 
HEARING what was alleged by Mr. H. Jenldns of Counsel for the 
AppeUant and Mr. Fox of Counsel for the Respondents THIS COURT 
DOTH ORDER that final leave to appeal to Her Majesty in Her Majesty's 
Privy Council from the whole of the Judgment and decree of the 
Honourable Charles McLelland Judge of the Supreme Court sitting in 
Equity as pronounced herein on the Eleventh day of February One 
thousand nine hundred and fifty-eight be and the same is hereby

20 granted to the Appellant.
C. D. IRWIN

Chief Clerk in Equity.
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In the NO. 29

Certificate of Deputy Registrar in Equity of the Supreme Court 
of New Soutn Wales verifying the transcript record

I RONALD THOMAS CLYDE STOREY of the City of Sydney in the 
gtate of New goutli Waleg Oommonwealtli of Australia Deputy

NO. 29. Registrar In Equity of the Supreme Court of the said State DO 
aiio^ndgerfinai HEREBY CERTIFY that the numbered sheets hereunto annexed and 

leave to contained in pages numbered one to six hundred and thirty inclusive 
Her*Majesty contain a true copy of all the documents relevant to the appeal by the 
in Council. Appellant The Commissioner for Railways to Her Majesty in Her 

Majesty's Privy Council from the decree made in suit instituted by 
Statement of Claim No. 1231 of 1956 by the Honourable Charles 
McLelland a Judge of the said Supreme Court sitting In Equity on the 
Eleventh day of February One thousand nine hundred and fifty-eight 
so far as the same have relation to the matters of the said appeal together 
with the reasons for the said decree given by the said Judge and that 
the sheets hereunto annexed and contained in pages numbered i to x 
contain an index of all the papers documents and exhibits in the said 
suit included in the annexed transcript record and of all the papers 
documents and exhibits in the said suit not reproduced in the annexed 
transcript record which true copy and index are remitted to the Privy 
Council pursuant to the Order of his late Majesty King Edward The 
Seventh in his late Majesty's Privy Council of the Second day of April 
in the year of Our Lord One thousand nine hundred and nine. 

IN FAITH AND TESTIMONY whereof I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the said 
Supreme Court in its Equitable Jurisdiction to be 
affixed this 28th day of May in the year of Our Lord 
one thousand nine hundred and fifty-eight.

R. T. C. STOREY (L.S.) 
Deputy Registrar In Equity of the 
Supreme Court of New South Wales.

- 30

allowing final Certificate of Chief Justice
applauo I the HONOURABLE SIR KENNETH WHISTLER STREET Knight

Her Majesty Commander of the Most Distinguished Order of St. Michael and
in Council. ^ George Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of New South Wales

DO HEREBY CERTIFY that Ronald Thomas Clyde Storey who has
signed the Certificate above written is the Deputy Registrar In Equity
of the said Supreme Court and that he has the custody of the records
of the said Supreme Court in its equitable jurisdiction.

IN FAITH AND TESTIMONY whereof I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the said 
Supreme Court to be affixed this 28th day of May in 
the year of Our Lord one thousand nine hundred and 
fifty-eight.

K. W. STREET (L.S.) 
Chief Justice of the Supreme 
Court of New South Wales.
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EXHIBIT E

1. Letter from Avrom Investments Proprietary Limited to Commissioner for Exhibit
Railways, dated 24th August, 1953 E

On the 20th instant we sought, through Mr. Smith (Works Officer), L Letter
from Avrom

an appointment to discuss with you various matters arising out of investments
.... * " Proprietarythe application by the Metropolitan Licensing' Inspector to the Licens- Limited to 

ing Court under Section 4()A of the Liquor Act for an order directing sioner for
the construction, inter alia, of 200 public bedrooms. We were unable 
to obtain an appointment with you but we understood from our con- ~4t i 9g|ust 

10 versation with Mr. Smith that no financial assistance in connection 
with any work which may be ordered, could be expected from you.

As you are the owner of the land upon which the Hotel is erected 
and therefore have a considerable interest in any construction which 
may take place altogether apart from the matter of the license, we 
wished to discuss with you not only the possibility of financial 
assistance, but also the reaching of a general agreement in principle 
on the proposal to be put by us to the Licensing Court so that if and 
when an order is made, the work ordered to be done will not be objec­ 
tionable to you. We feel that any building operations carried out 

20 now must affect the usefulness of the site in your hands at the termina­ 
tion of the lease.

The funds which are available to us are only sufficient to enable 
the construction of a strictly limited number of rooms, having regard 
to the special nature of the building and especially its foundations and 
the special structural work necessary in order to support any sub­ 
stantial construction above a certain level. We, therefore, seek a 
conference with you at the earliest opportunity and shall be glad if 
you will let us know at least seven to ten days ahead what would be 
a convenient time. You will understand that our directors reside in 

30 Melbourne and it is not easy for them to come to Sydney at short notice, 
although they are prepared to make a special trip for the purpose of 
such a conference. As regards the possibility of financial assistance, 
if in fact you are unable under any circumstances to assist financially, 
we would appreciate an early reply clearly indicating this fact, so as 
to assist us in formulating our proposals to be submitted to the 
Licensing Court.
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Exhibit 2. Letter from Solicitor for Railways to Messrs. Sly & Russell, dated 25th
August, 1953E

2. Letter
from 

Solicitor
for 

Railways to

Sly &
Russell,

dated 25th
August,

1933

With reference to my Mr. Paterson's telephonic conversation with 
your Mr. Wailes on Thursday last, regarding the Application herein 
under Section 4(k of the Liquor Act, 1912, as amended, which is listed 
for hearing before the Licensing Court on Monday next, 31st instant, 
when the latter indicated that you would write to the Department 
regarding the matter:-my instructions are that, up to the present, no 
such communication has been received. However, in the light of the 
position generally, and particularly having regard to your client's 10 
obligations and covenants under the lease, it is assumed that it will 
take the requisite steps to comply with the Notice, or any other order 
the Licensing Court may make, and it would be appreciated if, prior 
to the hearing, you will indicate what steps it is proposed to take in 
order to meet the situation.

3. Letter
from 

Secretary
for

Railways
to Avrom

Investments
Proprietary

Limited,
dated 25th

August,
1953

3. Letter from Secretary for Railways to Avrom Investments Proprietary 
Limited, dated 25th August, 1953

Eeferring to your letter, No. ESC/JM, of the 24th August, 1953, 
addressed to the Commissioner for Eailways, as already intimated 
to you by Mr. E. Smith per telephone, the Commissioner is not prepared 20 
to make any financial assistance available for the carrying out of any 
work which may be ordered by the Licensing Court, and it is felt that 
the conference sought prior to the submission to the Department of 
plans etc., of any building contemplated by you would be premature. 
However, the matter will receive further consideration in the light of 
the information asked for by the Solicitor for Eailways in his letter of 
today's date to your Solicitors.

4. Letter 4. Letter from Solicitor for Railways to Sly & Russell, dated 25th August, 1953
from 

Solicitor
for

1953

With reference to my Mr. Paterson's telephonic conversation with 
Railways your Mr. Wailes on Thursday last, regarding the Application herein 3Q 

to sly & under Section 40A of the Liquor Act, 1912, as amended, which is listed 
datedS 25th ^or hearing before the Licensing Court on Monday next, 31st instant, 

when the latter indicated that you would write to the Department 
regarding the matter: my instructions are that, up to the present, no 
such communication has been received. However, in the light of the 
position generally, and particularly having regard to your client's obli­ 
gations and covenants under the lease, it is assumed that it will take the 
requisite steps to comply with the Notice, or any other order the 
Licensing Court may make, and it would be appreciated if, prior to the 
hearing, you will indicate what steps it is proposed to take in order to 4Q 
meet the situation.
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5. Letter from Sly & Russell to Solicitor for Railways, dated 25th August, 1953
We are in receipt of your letter of to-day's date, and we are 

informed that since the writer's conversation with your Mr. Paterson 
the Lessee Company has written direct to the Commissioner for Rail­ 
ways seeking an interview for the purpose of discussing matters arising 
out of this application.

For your information the application has been already adjourned 
by the Licensing Court until the 7th of September, and on that date we 
propose to seek a further adjournment.

Exhibit

E

5. Letter
from Sly &
Russell to
Solicitor

for
Railways,

dated 25th
August,

1953

August, 
1953

10 6. Letter from Solicitor for Railways to Sly & Russell, dated 26th August, 1953 6. Letter
from

I am in receipt of your letter of 25th instant, and am instructed Solicitor for 
that your client Company wrote to the Commissioner on 24th August, 
requesting, inter alia, that a conference be arranged with the Directors 
of the Company. I am further instructed that the above letter was 
replied to on 25th idem, in the following terms:—

"Referring to your letter, No. RSC/JM, of the 24th August, 
1953, addressed to the Commissioner for Railways, as already 
intimated to you by Mr. R. Smith, per telephone, the Commis­ 
sioner is not prepared to make any financial assistance available 

20 for the carrying out of any work which may be ordered by the 
Licensing Court, and it is felt that the conference sought prior 
to the submission to the Department of plans etc., of any building 
contemplated by you would be premature. However, the matter 
will receive further consideration in the light of the information 
asked for by the Solicitor for Railways in his letter of today's 
date to your Solicitors.''

It will be appreciated if you will let me have the information 
requested in my letter of 25th August as soon as possible.

October, 
1953

7. Letter from Solicitor for Railways to Sly & Russell, dated 19th October, 1953 7. Letter
from

30 With reference to my letters herein of 25th and 26th August: it is Solicitor for 
noted that information has not yet been furnished as to what steps your g^^Ruaseu 
client is taking to meet the position in regard to its covenants under dated 19th 
the lease relating to building construction or in regard to the require­ 
ments of the Licensing Court.

As the application before the Licensing Court on 7th September 
was adjourned on the ground that plans and specification of a new 
building were being prepared, and the matter will be again before the 
Court on 9th November, it would be appreciated if full details of such 
plans, etc., are made available for the Department's consideration, 

40 without delay.
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Exhibit 8. Letter from Sly & Russell to Solicitor for Railways, dated 23rd October, 1953
E We acknowledge your letter of the 19th instant, and do not quite 

8. better appreciate what you mean by meeting the position in regard to our 
, fro™ „ client's covenants under the lease relating to building construction.Sly & Russell ° °

for Eaawa°rs ^s re§'ards the pending application to the Licensing Court under
dated 23rd' Section 4(>A of the Liquor Act, our client has not yet determined what

Oo1t905b3er> proposals it intends to place before the Court. When these proposals
are completed, we will communicate with you again. We might mention
that on the 9th proximo we expect a date to be fixed for the actual
hearing of the application. 10

9 Letter 9- Letter from Sly & Russell to Solicitor for Railways, dated 3rd November, 
from 1953

Sly & Russell
for R°aawa°ys Referring to your letter of the 19th October and our letter of the 

dated 3rd 23rd, we desire to inform you that as a result of conferences we have 
held, our clients propose at the Hearing on the 9th instant to consent 
to the making of an Order for the construction of one hundred bed­ 
rooms with their ancilliary sitting rooms bath and toilet facilities in 
accordance with Plans to be submitted for approval within six months, 
the work to be carried out within twelve months.

If as we expect this Order will be made on Monday next, we shall 20 
after obtaining the approval of the Licensing authorities to the Plans, 
submit them to the Commissioner for his approval before lodging them 
with the City Council for its approval.

10. Letter 10. Letter from Sly & Russell to Secretary for Railways, dated 21st April, 
from 1954

Sly & Russell
for iiaUwa-ra ^e f°rward you herewith a copy of the basic plans for additions 

dated 2ist' to be made to the existing Plaza Hotel building in compliance with an 
order made under Section 4(k of the Liquor Act on the 9th November 
last, together with a copy of a letter addressed to the Licensing Court 
by the Architect, Mr. D. F. Cowell Ham, and formally seek your 30 
approval to these plans as required by the terms of the Lease.

A copy of these plans has already been handed to a representative 
of the Chief Civil Engineer, in order to expedite his consideration 
thereof and recommendations to you.

The Lessee, under the terms of the order, is obliged to lodge the 
plans with the Licensing Court for approval not later than the 30th 
instant, and we propose to lodge the plans and the letter from Mr 
Ham forthwith, requesting the Court to approve of them as sufficient 
compliance with the order made, having regard to the peculiar difficul­ 
ties of the site and the enormous cost involved. 40
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Following lodgement of the plans, it is likely that the matter will 
be listed some time late in May for the formal hearing of the applica­ 
tion for approval and we should like very much to have your approval 
before this hearing.

We shall esteem it a favour therefore if you will give the matter 
your urgent consideration, and if there is any matter arising out of 
these plans and proposals on which you would like further information, 
the writer, with the New South Wales Manager of the Lessee Company, 
will be glad to confer with you at a suitable time.

10 11. Letter from D. F. Cowell Ham to the Registrar, Licensing Court, Sydney,
dated 13th April, 1954

The proposed additions to the above hotel are to be constructed 
with steel, reinforced concrete and brickwork to carry out the type 
of structure which has been used in the existing sections and so 
comply with the Railway Commissioners' requirements.

The additional number of bedrooms will be placed on the First 
Floor level above Carrington Street on the Third floor level above 
George Street.

The proposed additions will provide a fully serviced hotel with 
20 the following accommodation:—

The main residential entrance will be from the level of Carring­ 
ton Street, adjoining which will be the administrative offices of the Hotel 
Company, with staff lavatories conveniently placed. The Concourse 
Entrance will be near the centre of the site and will be flanked by shops 
and provided with staircases leading to the lower levels.

One Bar approached from Carrington Street and flanked with 
an open deck and male lavatories is placed on the Southern side of the 
Concourse Entrance.

The present scheme provides for one elevator on the Eastern side 
30 of Wynyard Lane which will service the internal traffic between the 

present Dining Room and Lounges on the George Street mezzanine and 
the upper Bedroom Floors.

The existing bedrooms on the First floor to George Street will 
be connected to George Street and the new residential floor above by 
two staircases at the North and South end of the central passage of 
the building and a staircase from a central Lounge.

The existing bedrooms and toilets are to be remodelled and will 
provide this section witli block toilets for each sex and two Lounges. 
Portions of this floor will be serviced by exhaust ventilation. 

40 The Third floor level will be devoted entirely to bedrooms and 
residential services as follows:—

Single bedroom serviced with toilet and bathroom, Five; 
Single bedroom serviced with toilet and shower, Eleven; 
Single bedroom serviced with common toilet and showers, 
Fourteen. Total, Thirty (30).

Exhibit 

E

S1y &
for Railways,

1954'

11. Letter
from

D. F. Cowell
Ham to the
Registrar,
Licensing

Court,
Sydney,

dated 13th
April,
1954
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Exhibit Double bedrooms serviced with toilet and bathroom, Fourteen ; 
Double bedrooms serviced with toilet and shower, Ten; 
Double bedrooms serviced with common toilets and showers, 
Eight Total> Thirty-two (32). Grand total, (62).

Ham to the1 Room service facilities in Liquor and meals are situated near the 
Registrar, elevator and will provide continuous service.

Court?8 Bedrooms without separate toilets, bathrooms or showers will
, ou have basins with hot and cold water in each case.dated 13th

April, Finishing Surfaces:
Private Entrance, Bar, Concourse Shops : Will have tiled floors 10 
and rendered walls above tiled dados. Plaster ceilings are to 
be painted in lead and oil to match the other painted surfaces. 
Bedrooms : Will be finished with rendered surfaces painted in 
lead and oil with polished or painted furniture built into the 
structure.
Bathrooms, Showers & Toilets : Will, in all cases, be tiled on 
floors and up to six feet on walls. Finish above dado on walls 
and to ceilings to be enamelled plaster.
Plumbing fittings are to be superstandard. In the case of inter­ 
nal bathrooms, mechanical ventilation will be provided. 20
Floors : W'ill be concrete covered with wall to wall carpet to bed­ 
rooms, lounges and passages. To bathrooms and toilets, finished 
in tile.
Electrical services : Included will be ample illumination and 
cleaning points.
Externally. The fronts are to be faced in tapestry bricks with 
some sandstone trimming.
Flat Roof: The flat roof will be insulated and will provide a 
service to guests for open air recreation, with male and female 
toilets. 30 
Estimated cost: The estimated cost of the structure, equipment 
and furniture is Three hundred and eighty thousand Pounds 
(£380,000), and the work is expected to take two years to 
complete.

12. Letter 12. Letter from Sly & Russell to Secretary for Railways, dated 7th May, 1954
sly & Russell On the 21st of April we forwarded you a copy of the basic plans 
to Secretary for additions to be made to the existing Plaza Hotel building in com- 
°dated ^th"' pliaiice with an order made by the Licensing Court, and we requested 

your approval thereto.
In addition to these plans we now enclose another copy of Sheet 5 40 

which varies from the original layout for the Carrington Street level 
and adds to it an area shown as a beergarden.
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13. Letter from Secretary for Railways to Avrom Investments Proprietary Exhibit 
Limited, dated 13th May, 1954 ",r

With reference to the telephone conversation which an Officer of i3.~£etter 
thrs Department had with you recently relative to the parking of from 
motor vehicles on the roof of the Plaza Hotel, I have to advise that

May, 
1954

the matter has been investigated further. It is considered that the to 
continued use of this area as a car park will possibly lead to deteriora- Proprietary 
tion of the concrete owing to dripping of oils and grease from the cars, 
and that the movement of relatively heavy bodies over the concrete 

10 is likely to cause cracks to develop and permit seepage of water to 
business premises beneath. The present practice, therefore, is to be 
discontinued forthwith and I shall be glad to have your early advice 
that alternative arrangements have been made for future parking of 
these vehicles.

14. Letter from Solicitor for Railways to Sly & Russell, dated 21st May, 1954 u. Letter
from

Your letters of 21st ultimo and 7th instant have been referred to Solicitor for 
me, and I am instructed that the Commissioner approves of the plans siyViiusseii, 
submitted with your letter of 21st ultimo as amended by the plan dated 21st 
submitted with your letter of 7th instant, subject to the building being 

20 constructed in accordance with the requirements of any civil, licensing 
or other authorities, as well as the Commissioner, and subject, also, 
to the following modifications and conditions : —

1. The area on the first floor level between Wynyard Lane and 
Carrington Street which has not been allocated for any 
particular purpose is not to be used as a car parking area, 
and if used for storage the loading on the floor shall not 
exceed 100 Ibs. per sq. ft. In this connection, it is noted 
that if the area in question is converted at any future date 
into shops or offices the entrance from the concourse on the 
second floor to the access stairway will have to be modified 
to meet the Commissioner's requirements, and the door 
opening into the bar will have to be bricked up if the Com­ 
missioner so requires.

2. A brick fence, not less than 6 ft. high, or similar type of 
fence, is to be erected on the Carrington Street boundary 
from the proposed building to Shell House.

3. The stairway from the Concourse on the second floor to 
Wynyard Lane is to be moved slightly towards Carrington 
Street so that at least 7' 6" head room is provided to the 

40 underside of the floor of the male lavatory.
4. The 5' 3" wide corridor at the Western end of the third 

floor shall not be reduced in width where columns occur 
to less than a width of 3' 9".

30
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5. Mechanical exhaust ventilation is to be provided to bathroom 
and W.Cs. between bedrooms 29 and 30, those adjoining- 
bedrooms 32, 51 and 52, and the bathrooms of bedrooms 
Nos. 1 to 7, and 16 to 26, inclusive, on the third floor level, 
also the shops and W.C. in the female lavatory on the second 
floor level.

6. Provision is to be made to ventilate mechanically, at a future 
date, the existing offices and conveniences facing west on 
the first floor level, also the present unoccupied areas shown 
on drawing of this and other floor levels. 10

7. The existing ventilating ducts are to be carried up and dis­ 
charged above the new roof level or as may be directed by 
the Department.

8. Exposed service pipes under the third floor level and over 
Wynyard Lane are to be encased where exposed to view, 
and the minimum height and clearance over Wynyard Lane 
are to be maintained. Adequate sized ducts for all services 
are to be provided on all floors sufficient for future exten­ 
sions of the building.

9. Provision is to be made in the construction of the building 20 
for the support of the new elevator and the installation, 
at a future date, when the building is carried up to the 
maximum height allowed by the building regulations, of 
additional elevators.

10. The columns, beams and other structural work are to be 
designed and constructed so as to permit the building being 
carried up to the full height allowed by the building 
regulations.

11. Detail drawings, specifications and calculations of the 
structural work, mechanical ventilation, sewer and drain- 30 
age, and all other services, are to be submitted to the 
Department for approval before any work is commenced. 
These drawings are to have the approval of the Sydney 
City Council, Metropolitan Water, Sewerage & Drainage 
Board, and such other authorities as may be concerned, 
before being submitted.

12. The maintenance of the building, including all services and 
mechanical ventilation and other equipment, is to be carried 
out at all times to the satisfaction of the Department.

13. A window is to be provided in the W.C. of the female con- 40 
venience in the beer garden provided for in amended Sheet 
5 of the plans.
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15. Letter from Avrom Investments Proprietary Limited to Secretary for Exhibit 
Railways, dated 15th June, 1954 "jif 

We refer to your letter of 13th May, 1954, and cannot recall a
recent conversation with an Officer of the Department on the subject from Avrom 
matter, although the Writer does recall some casual reference some p^*Stary
12-15 months ago. Limited to

Secretary for
Whilst appreciating the reasons mentioned in your letter, we Railways, 

should like to point out that there is no general parking of motor a junejd 
vehicles in the area adjoining tho Carrington street frontage, and no 1954 

10 charge is, or ever has been made for parking there. That is, it is not 
public parking, and such parking as there is, is restricted to the private 
cars of the Officers of this Company and, in the main, to its professional 
contacts, such as its Architects, Accountants, and Solicitors. It is 
true that certain of the tenants of the Ramp shops use the area from 
time to time, and we are glad to have your letter for the purpose of 
supporting action we had already instituted before it was received, 
concerning abuse of the privilege by some of them.

As you know, access to the area is by locked gates from the Lane, 
but you may not know that it is by key issued and recorded by us, 

20 an-d that the parking is supervised by our employees, so that no 
unauthorised person make use of the area.

Concerning the two specific points mentioned in your letter: that 
is, deterioration by oil, and weight, it is clear that if this were in fact 
the case, we should be as concerned as you, because of our commit­ 
ments under the Head Lease.

It does not seem to us though, that as parking has been done for 
very many years, any deterioration by oils would surely have been 
apparent by now, if any had in fact occurred. We can see no sign 
that this is so, nor can our Engineers.

30 As to weight of motor vehicles, we repeat that they are only 
private cars, mostly small or medium types. We received a letter 
dated 21st May, 1954 from the Solicitor for Railways dealing with the 
proposed new building at Wynyard. In this was mentioned a loading 
not in excess of 100 Ibs. per square foot. We found this indeed surpris­ 
ing, and asked our Construction Engineers, who as you know were 
retained on the original structure, for advice on the point.

They assure us that no possible damage could be caused by the
parked cars and that, in fact, the structure can easily bear many times
the weight now upon it. We may add that over the years, we have

40 had no trouble by water seepage into our shops by reason of the
cars parked above.

We feel sure you will understand the great inconvenience that 
would be caused to us if the parking arrangements were to stop. 
This is particularly so now, because of the frequent visits by our
» 38632—20
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Exhibit professional Consultants, made necessary by the projected new build-
~jjT ing. In any event, when building on the area begins, no doubt some
— alteration will be necessary to present arrangments.

15. Letter J °

investments We shall appreciate it if you will re-consider your objections in the
Proprietary light Of tMg letter.
Limited to

Secretary for
Railways,

dated 15th
June,
l9^ 16. Letter from Sly & Russell to Solicitor for Railways, dated 6th August, 1954
from r We refer to your letter to us of 21st May last, Clause 10 of which 

Sly & Russell js not clear to us under the circumstances.
to Solicitor 

for Railways
dated 6th As you know, the plans referred to in your letter do not cover 

^1964*' ^e wno^ e °^ the ground site and while provision will be made to permit 10 
of the upward extension of the building to the maximum height and 
manner permitted by the City Council's requirements over the area 
which it is proposed to cover with building, it is not proposed to make 
plans for building over those portions of the ground site which are left 
vacant other than the corner where the land adjoins the Shell Com­ 
pany's building in Carrington Street where it is recognized that provi­ 
sion will have to be made for lifts etc. if further floors are added at a 
later date.

Apart from the not inconsiderable other difficulties of constructing 
a building on a site of this nature, the very vital question arises now as 20 
to the size and strength of the columns on which the building and any 
future construction will rest.

In view of the very large cost involved in column construction it is 
essential for us to know at this juncture exactly which columns have 
to be carried up to any particular height and the dimensions etc. of 
them. As this may involve a question of policy with the Commissioner 
for Railways, we feel that a conference should be held at which should 
be present not only the Commissioner's technical officers but also some­ 
one who can speak with authority on the other matters involved. We 
propose that the Lessee should be represented at that conference by the 30 
writer and one of its Directors, its Sydney Manager and Mr. Ham the 
architect who prepared the plans, and if thought desirable, Mr. Stanley 
the engineer who is concerned with the size of the columns.

In view of the fact that the Lessee is pressed for time by the 
Licensing Court and this particular matter is vital to the preparation 
of any detailed plans and specifications, we shall be grateful if you 
can arrange such a conference and indicate to us when it will be con­ 
venient to have it. If possible, we would like several days notice so 
that we can advise those interested parties who reside in Melbourne.
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17. Letter from Sly & Russell to Commissioner for Railways, dated
19th August, 1954

We refer to the letter to us dated 21st May, 1954 from the Solicitor 
for Eailways approving of the plans submitted by us for additions to 
the existing hotel building and to the conference with your officers on 
18th instant at which in particular condition 10 as set out in the letter 
was discussed.

As you are aware, prior to the Licensing Court requiring the con­ 
struction of additional bedrooms, the Lessee Company had embarked 

10 upon the remodelling of the Southern Bars including the construction 
of new cool rooms and its plans approved by you.

As a direct result of the new planning to provide additional bed­ 
rooms which involves construction on the Carrington Street frontage, 
it became both necessary and desirable to redesign the coolroom on 
the Wynyard Lane level adjacent to Carrington Street and it was 
decided, on the economic factors involved, to utilise the roof of this 
coolroom as an open beer garden.

This involved the planning of a concrete slab for such roof and the 
consequential amendment of the original plans for the Southern Bars 

20 to dovetail this work with the proposed new project.

Before, however, incurring the expense and time involved in pre­ 
paring detailed plans and specifications for the new project it became 
necessary to consider the size and strength of the various columns 
already on the site and upon which the whole construction depends.

These columns are of a very substantial nature as originally 
planned many years ago and entail costly construction at the present 
time.

It will be appreciated therefore that any unnecessary column con­ 
struction will involve the Lessee Company in many thousands of pounds 

30 which could be better utilised in productive improvements on the site.

It will also be appreciated that the Lessee Company proposes to 
expend on the present proposed development of the site alone, more 
than twice as much as it is obliged so to do in order to comply with the 
literal terms of its lease.

The Lessee Company realises, however, that literal compliance with 
the requirements of the lease, would be an ineffectual and undesirable 
method of development and would probably result in great difficulty 
and expense for itself or its successors in further developing the site. 
The Lessee Company proposes to erect the building in accordance with 

40 the plans submitted and approved providiivj, in so doing, for the future 
upward extension of such building by itself or its successors to the full 
height permitted by the City Council.
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sioner for 
Railways, 

dated 19th 
August, 

1954

It does not envisage building over any portion of the ground plan 
not built over in the present plans except for the corner on Carrington 
iStreet adjoining Shell House where provision already exists for four 
lifts. It is contemplated that this area will and must be built up in any 
further development.

To assist you in following future possible development we attach a 
plan which shows the proposed layout of a bedroom floor. It is esti­ 
mated that the areas outlined in red can be built up to the maximum of 
150 feet above George and Carrington Streets while the area in wide 
green hatching can be built up to 79 feet above Wynyard Lane and the 10 
area in narrow green hatching can be built up to 90 feet above Carring­ 
ton Street (i.e. the bottom of the light Court). This should produce 
eleven floors on George Street (including the existing floors), twelve 
floors on Carrington Street and about seven floors in the inner portions. 
On both Street frontages there will be included a parapet about five feet 
high.

On both the George and Carrington Streets frontages it is esti­ 
mated that the building can be constructed to the full height of 150 feet 
while in the centre the maximum height will vary and be somewhat less 
by reason of the light areas. 20

One reason why it is not thought possible or desirable to build over 
or provide for building over the areas left vacant on the present plans 
is that at all stages of development and particularly as the building 
becomes higher it is necessary to provide light and air for the bedrooms 
etc.

If therefore these vacant areas are not to be built over it becomes 
uneconomic and indeed wasteful to construct any columns to an extent 
greater than is required to support the full building as envisaged.

Before, therefore, preparing detailed plans and obtaining engineer­ 
ing data required before such plans can be prepared, we consider it 30 
essential to have condition 10 abovementioned clarified.

What the Lessee Company proposes to do, with your approval, is so 
to construct the columns required for the support of the present pro­ 
posed building as to permit future construction of that building 
(including the area adjoining Shell House abovementioned) to the 
maximum height permitted by the City Council which will permit of 
some reduction in the dimensions of those columns by reason of the 
areas left vacant for the provision of light and air. A particular illus­ 
tration may be given in regard to the rectangular columns against the 
building on the southern side between Wynyard Lane and Carrington 40 
Street. There are three such columns which are of substantial size but 
which, under the present plans, will support only the concrete slab over 
the coolroom which will also be the floor of the proposed beer garden.
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As no further construction above this area is proposed, such Exhibit
columns become unnecessary and the slab can be adequately supported E
by other means such as a brick wall upon a steel beam across the tops ——
of the columns as at present constructed which would result in a saving " er
of some thousands of pounds. S1y &

to Commis-

Your concurrence to this proposal is therefore sought. If, however, 
for any particular purpose of the Railway Department it is desired dated 19th 
that such columns be constructed to greater dimensions than would be jf^f' 
required for this purpose two alternatives are proposed namely ;

10 (1) that the Department should bear the difference in cost, or 

(2) that the term of the present lease be extended.

In view of the requirements as to time of the Licensing Court and 
the fact that work upon the Southern Bars is in abeyance until a deci­ 
sion is reached, we request you to give this matter your urgent 
attention.

18. Letter from Secretary for Railways to Sly & Russell, dated 5th October, is. Letter
IQCJ from
1!>M Secretary

I refer to your letter (Reference 7) of the 19th August, 1954, for Byways 
• further regarding the additions proposed to the existing hotel building, siy& Russell, 

20 and wherein you advise that the Lessee Company proposes, inter alia, d£jtetdb5th 
to erect a building in accordance with the plans submitted and approved, 1954 
providing, in so doing, for the future upward extension of such building 
by the Company, or its successors, to the full height permitted by the 
City Council.

As regards your statement that, before preparing detailed plans 
and obtaining the requisite engineering data which is necessary to 
enable such plans to be produced, you consider it essential to have 
Condition 10 dealing with the sizes and strength of the columns etc., 
referred to in the letter dated 21st May, 1954, forwarded to you by 

30 the Solicitor for Railways, clarified, I have been directed by the Com­ 
missioner to advise you as follows :

1. All columns within the area, west of Wynyard Lane, coloured 
red on the plan enclosed herewith are to be constructed of 
sufficient strength to permit of the building on such area 
being carried to a height of 150-ft. above the existing level 
of Carrington Street.

2. All columns within the area, east of Wynyard Lane, coloured
red on the plan enclosed herewith, are to be constructed of
sufficient strength to permit of the building on such area

40 being carried to a height of 150-ft. above the existing level
of George Street.
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3. All columns in the remaining areas, coloured green on the 
plan enclosed herewith, are to be constructed of sufficient 
strength to permit of the building on such areas being carried 
to a height of 105-ft. above Carrington Street.

4. Columns in the cool room which are to support the beer 
garden on the plans submitted may be regarded as tem­ 
porary columns and may be built to carry the actual loading 
to be imposed at present.

The Commissioner for Railways is not prepared to bear any of 
of the expenditure for complying with the foregoing, nor is he agree-10 
able to any extension of the term of the lease.

As the area adjoining Shell House in Carrington Street does not 
appear to be fully developed, the Lessee Company is requested to 
submit a complete set of drawings showing the layout of the whole 
of the proposed future building, and I shall be glad if you will arrange 
for this to be done.

19. Letter from Secretary for Railways to Messrs. Stanley & Llewellyn, dated
25th October, 1954

Referring to your letter of the 8th October, 1954, regarding plans 
of proposed additions to the Plaza Hotel, which your Mr Stanley left 20 
at this office of the Railway Chief Civil Engineer on the 29th September, 
1954, I have to inform you that the drawing concerned, viz:—

O.W.L. 1. dated 21.9.54: Details of steel columns S.76 
O.W.L. 2. dated 14.9.54: Details of steel columns S. 26

have been checked and are satisfactory, so far as this Department is 
concerned.

Exhibit

1. Applica-

EXHIBIT J 

1. Application for Extension of Time to Carry Out Section 40A Order

IN THE LICENSING COURT FOR THE METROPOLITAN
LICENSING DISTRICT HOLDEN AT SYDNEY 30

Extension AVROM INVESTMENTS PROPRIETARY LIMITED a Company
of Time to duly registered under the Companies Act of the State of Victoria and
section^ol iiavino its registered office at Number '229 Elizabeth Street, Melbourne

Order in the said State and registered as a foreign company under the
Companies Act of the State of New South Wales the registered office
of which in New South Wales is at Room 333, Rawson Chambers,
Rawson Place, Sydney being the owner of the licensed premises known
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as the "Plaza Hotel" situated at Number 291 George Street Sydney 
doth hereby pursuant to Section 40,v of the Liquor Act 1912 as amended 
apply to the Court for an extension of time until the 31st March, 1956 
within which to carry out the additions to the said "Plaza Hotel" 
ordered to be clone by the Court on the 9th of November 1953 upon 
the following grounds :—

1. Since the application of the Company dated the 22nd March 
1955 for an extension of time until the 30th September, 
1955 most of the matters causing delay as mentioned in

10 paragraph 11 of the Company's said application have been 
satisfactorily adjusted except for the receipt by the Com­ 
pany's Architect of the engineering drawings and details 
which on the 28th February 1955 the Company's Consulting 
Engineers, Messrs. Stanley & Llewellyn had stated would 
be available by the 30th April, 1955 which would have enabled 
the Company's Architect to complete his plans and speci­ 
fications as mentioned in paragraph 15 of the Company's 
said application. Attached hereto is a copy of a letter 
written by Messrs. Stanley & Llewellyn to Mr. D. F. Cowell

20 Ham, the Company's Architect dated the 16th March, 1955 
which indicates that they wore proceeding with the technical 
calculations required and encountering some difficulty in 
regard thereto.

2. On the llth day of June, 1955 Mr. Malcolm Stanley of Messrs. 
Stanley & Llewellyn, who was the member of that firm 
actually engaged on the work, was accidentally killed while 
crossing the railway line near his home.

3. Subsequently investigations have failed to produce the com­ 
putations and engineering data relating to the bedroom 

30 scheme on which the late Mr. Stanley was working, and 
it is assumed that he had them with him when he met his 
death and that they were destroyed, as it was a known 
custom of his to carry a satchel with him almost always.

4. The Company immediately conferred with Mr. H. A. 
Llewellyn of Messrs. Stanley & Llewellyn who immediately 
made investigations into the matter with a view to complet­ 
ing the drawings and engineering data required, but he 
informed the Company's Architect that he was compelled 
to commence his investigations and calculations from the 

40 beginning in the absence of any papers containing the work 
already done by the late Mr. Stanley.

5. At the Company's request he dealt first with the calculations 
and drawings required for the erection of additional columns 
on the site and then proceed with the work required for 
the further construction of the bedroom scheme.
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6. The drawings and calculations for such further construction 
have been partly completed and the Company's Architect 
is now proceeding with the completion of his detailed plans 
and specifications as quickly as possible concurrently with 
which Quantity Surveyors are calculating the necessary Bill 
of Quantities which is essential for the calling of tenders.

7. Such drawings and calculations necessitated conferences 
between the Company's Architect and Mr. Llewellyn and 
with the Engineers for the Department of Railways.

8. Attached hereto is a letter from Mr. D. E. Cowell Ham the 10 
Company's Architect reporting the position and giving esti­ 
mates of times within which the documents required for the 
calling of tenders are likely to be completed, from which it 
will be seen that the Architect expects to complete his plans, 
specifications and quantities by the 1st day of December, 
1955 and to be in a position to call for tenders immediately 
after receipt of written approval from the Commissioner 
for Railways.

9. As the Company realised that completion of the preparation 
of the plans and specifications and other data for the whole 20 
bedroom project would still take a considerable time it 
decided that it could proceed with the construction of a 
further five columns and for the extension of the three 
columns already installed as these were a basic part of the 
future work and could be proceeded with independently. By 
letter of the 26th April 1955 the Contractors already engaged 
on other work at the hotel quoted for the fabrication and 
erection of five columns additional to the three columns 
referred to in paragraph 5 of the Company's prior applica­ 
tion and for the further extension of these three columns 30 
at the price of Thirty Two Thousand and Twenty Pounds 
Ten Shillings and Threepence (£32,020.10.3), and attached 
hereto is a copy of the Contractor's quotation. This quota­ 
tion was accepted by the Company on the 6th day of May 
1955 and the prefabrication of such columns is at present 
being undertaken by Luke Muras Limited as sub-contractors 
to T. C. Whittle Pty. Limited.

10. Due to the initial delay in receiving the calculations and 
drawings of Messrs. Stanley and Llewellyn for the reasons 
earlier set forth and the delays encountered by Luke Muras 40 
Limited in obtaining the steel required and to pressure of 
work already on hand by that Company, it is not expected 
that the first of these additional columns will be available 
for delivery and installation until the 31st October, 1955.
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11. The work actually completed to date by the Company form- Exhibit 
ing part of the bedroom scheme and solely attributable to j 
it consists of the construction of a reinforced concrete roof 
over the cool room between "Wynyard Lane and Carrington 
Street to form part of the floor on the Carving-ton Street Extension 
level, and the erection of three reinforced steel and concrete carrj^Out 
columns required to support this slab and the further eon- Section 4(u 
struction of the bedroom scheme at a cost of over Fifteen Or er 
Thousand Pounds (£15,000.0.0).

10 12. Work for which the Company has already entered into a bind­ 
ing contract and which forms part of and is solely attri­ 
butable to the bedroom scheme is the erection of five more 
columns required to support the building and an extension 
of three columns mentioned in paragraph 9 hereof at a con­ 
tract price of Thirty Two Thousand and Twenty Pounds 
Ten Shillings and Threepence (£32,020.10.3). 

13. The Company undertakes to advise the Court as soon as 
tenders have been called and again when a contract has been 
let for the remainder of the work involved in the bedroom

20 scheme, and when making application to the Court for a 
further extension of time the Company will be in a position 
to give much fuller information as to the actual progress 
made and as to estimated times for completion of the whole 
work.

No. 2 NO. 2
Submissions by Applicant for Extension of Time submissions

1. TENURE OF APPLICANT: by Applicant
for Extension

(a) Lease from the Commissioner for Railways registered on of Time
the 15th August, 1941. The lease was assigned by the lessees, 

30 Rachel Gardiner and Permanent Trustee Company of New 
South Wales (Limited) to the applicant on the 24th February, 
1943.

(b) The lease has approximately 46 years to run.
(c) The annual amount payable by the applicant to the Commis­ 

sioner thereunder is:— 
(i) £19,200 rent, 
(ii) 4,500 payment of interest on certain moneys

expended by the Commissioner, 
(iii) 16,000 rates.

40 £39,700

(d) By Clause 16, any building erected by the lessees on the subject 
property is to be in accordance with the design, plans and 
specifications to be approved by the lessor.
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Submissions
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for Extension

of Time

2. HISTORY OF THE MATTER BEFORE THE COURT:
(a) 14th July, 1953 Notice from Metropolitan Licensing Inspec­ 

tor of intention to apply for an Order under S. 40A of the 
Liquor Act.

(b) 9th November, 1953 Hearing of the application when the 
Court made an order for 100 bedrooms and ancillary rooms. 
The plans to be submitted by the 31st March, 1954. Work to 
be completed by 30th March, 1955 at an estimated cost of 
£200,000.

(c) 1st March, 1954 Time extended for lodgment of plans until 10 
30th April, 1954.

(d) 28th April, 1954 Plans submitted to the Court.
(e) 26th May, 1954 Plans approved by the Court.
(f) 23rd March, 1955 application for extension of time until the 

30th September, 1955 and for approval to substituted plans 
lodged with the Court.

(g) 18th April, 1955 Advice from the Court that no adverse 
action would be taken prior to the 30th September, 1955.

(h) 29th September, 1955 application lodged for further extension 
of time. 20

3. HISTORY OF ACTION TAKEN PURSUANT TO THE COURT'S 
ORDERS:
(1) On the 27th May, 1954 Mr. Stanley, the Structural Engineer, 

appointed by the lessee and was instructed forthwith to proceed 
with the necessary structural plans and specifications.

(2) Mr. Ham, the Company's Architect, proceeded to prepare his 
detailed plans.

(3) The building had been planned and built at a time when the 
By-laws relating to buildings were very much less stringent 
than they have been for some years past. 30

(4) The construction of a large number of columns on which to 
support the building was quite unsuitable to the lessee's plans 
to erect substantial bedroom accommodation on the subject 
premises.

(5) The plans drawn by Mr. Gardiner's Architects could not be 
carried out to any extent in view of the new building code.

(6) On the 21st May, 1954 the Commissioner for Railways advised 
that he would not approve of the plans submitted to the Court 
without certain alterations being made thereto, but in par­ 
ticular refused approval unless the columns, beams and other 40 
structural work were designed and constructed so as to permit 
the building being carried up to the full height allowed by 
the Building Regulations. From then until the 6th August,
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a period of ten weeks, Mr. Stanley was engaged in endeavour- Exhibit 
ing to prepare a structural design which would render the ~J~ 
erection of the proposed building practicable. Numerous —— 
conferences were held with the lessee's Architect and with the °' 
Eailway authorities and great engineering difficulties were Submissions 
experienced in connection with extending the columns in such ^, Elusion 
a way as to support the building as required by the Eailway of Time 
Commissioner. In this connection, Mr. Ham and Mr. Stanley 
held many conferences and on more than one occasion Mr. 

10 Stanley took the view that the scheme was impossible of 
performance.

(7) In the light of substantial difficulties which became more 
evident as research continued, a letter was addressed to the 
Solicitor for Railways on the 6th August, 1954 requesting a 
conference.

(8) This conference was duly held and was attended by the Com­ 
pany's advisers, when the structural problems were put to 
the Commissioner for Railways' representatives.

(9) Following on the conference a further letter was addressed to 
20 the Commissioner for Railways dated the 19th August, 1954 

requesting a modification of the Commissioner's demands in 
regard to structural work.

(10) From the date of this letter until a reply was received on the 
5th October, 1954 the lessee's Solicitors contacted the Railway 
authorities on the 7th and 23rd days of September and on 
the 1st October requesting that in view of the time factor a 
decision be reached at the earliest possible moment.

(11) On the 5th October, 1954 the Commissioner for Railways 
agreed to modification of his demands.

30 (12) Messrs. Stanley and Ham were directed to proceed with 
engineering and architectural plans and specifications pur­ 
suant to the modified structural plan agreed upon by the 
Commissioner for Railways.

(!.'}) In that month Messrs. Crisp & "Wolferstan were retained as 
Quantity Surveyors and Messrs. A\T . E. Bassett & Associates 
were retained to design the ventilation system. The Quantity 
Surveyors were retained at this early stage rather than when 
all the plans and specifications had been drawn in order that 
they could proceed with bills of quantities in respect of such 

40 matters as soon as they were finalised and, in this connection 
complete coloured plans were completed by Mr. Ham in 
November, less than one month after the Commissioner for 
Railways modifications and the same were forwarded to the 
Quantity Surveyors.
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Exhibit (14) The closest liaison was essential between the ventilation
~J~ engineering, the structural engineers, the Architects, the
—— Department of Railways, the City Council and the Railways
°' 2 authorities in the detailed preparation of all the various plans

Submissions as they proceeded, it being appreciated that it was essential
for Extension that there should be a dovetailing of planning for the purpose

of Time of saving as much time as possible, but the substantial problem
	was initially and has remained a structural one.

(15) Mr. Stanley devoted substantially the whole of his time to 
the project and was working at night on it. As he proceeded 10 
with his plans at different levels fresh problems would be 
encountered and on five occasions he formed the view that 
particular problems were, substantially speaking, insoluble. 
These problems were however ironed out as a result of his 
visits to Melbourne and of Mr. Ham's visits to Sydney and 
conferences between the experts and the lessee. As problems 
were met Mr. Ham had to prepare further complete new sets 
of plans. This was done on some five or six different occa­ 
sions, the sets of plans being in the shape of the ones now 
produced to the Court as the final plans. 20

(16) On the 26th April, 1955 Mr. Stanley, in a letter to Mr. Ham, 
referred to the problems as being "difficult engineering prob­ 
lems which came only once in a lifetime".

(17) Notwithstanding all these difficulties, Mr. Stanley advised that 
his preliminary drawings would be available on the 20th 
April, 1955.

(18) On the 22nd April, 1955 the building owners, after discussion 
with their Solicitors, wrote to Mr. Ham formally stressing 
the vital necessity to proceed with all necessary expedition.

(19) On the llth May, 1955 Mr. Ham wrote to Mr. Stanley stressing 30 
the urgency of the matter despite the difficulties of the problem.

(20) In order to save time and to proceed with what work which 
could safely be done, a contract was let on the 4th June, 1954 
to T. C. Whittle Pty. Ltd. for structural work on columns 
76, 51 and 26 and for other associated work at a total cost 
of £16,237. This work was completed in May of 1955 and 
is solely associated with the bedroom scheme.

(21) On the 6th May, 1955 a further contract was let to T. C. Whittle 
Pty. Ltd. for structural work on five further columns—num­ 
bers 28, 30, 32, 57 and 81, at a total cost of £32,020.10.3. The 40 
lessee authorised this work on the 28th February, 1955. It 
is anticipated that work will be started on these columns, which 
has been delayed because of steel shortages, within the next 
two weeks, and the columns will be erected well before build­ 
ing commences.
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(22) Plans and specifications for an electrical sub-station plant for Exhibit 
the building when completed were prepared under instructions ~y~ 
from the lessee by W. E. Bassett & Associates. These plans —— 
have been submitted to the Chief Secretary, the Board of No^2 
Fire Commissioners and the Department of Railways and submissions 
have been approved in principle. ^ Extension

(23) On the llth June, 1955 Mr. Stanley died. of Time
(24) On the 13th June, 1955 his partner, Mr. Llewellyn was

approached by the lessee's Architect and undertook to continue
10 with the preparation of the structural plans and specifications.

(25) Although Mr. Llewellyn had the disorganisation of his firm 
to cope with, due to Mr. Stanley's death, and also had his other 
partner away in America, he spent three weeks immediately 
following on Mr. Stanley's death working constantly until late 
hours in the night, endeavouring to sort out the records left by 
Mr. Stanley. He discovered certain preliminary drawings but 
practically no other records, and it was accordingly necessary 
for him to commence calculations de novo. He possessed cer­ 
tain knowledge of the matter as a result of many discussions 

20 with Mr. Stanley concerning the problems that had been 
encountered, and the lessee maintains that no criticism can be 
levelled at it for appointing Mr. Llewellyn in Mr. Stanley's 
place.

(26) Some three weeks after Mr. Stanley's death Mr. Llewellyn 
had made sufficient preliminary investigations to detail one 
of his engineers to concentrate on the problem. Since that time 
a draughtsman has been permanently employed and the 
engineer has devoted all such time of his as was necessary 
in the preparation of scale drawings and calculations for the 

30 draughtsman.
(27) From June, 1955 until now Mr. Llewellyn has maintained the 

closest liaison with the Architect, the ventilation engineers and 
the Council, the Railway Commissioner, the Metropolitan 
Water, Sewerage and Drainage Board and Plumbing- 
Designers, F. Hill & Co. who have been engaged on the plumb­ 
ing problem for a considerable period of time.

(28) Example of the difficulties associated with the project is con­ 
tained in Mr. Stanley's letter to Mr. Ham of the 16th March, 
1955. As a result of this letter substantial alterations had 

40 to be made in Mr. Ham's plans and the necessity to make 
alterations has been continuing right up-to-date, the last altera­ 
tion being made only a matter of a few weeks ago.

(29) The mechanical ventilation problem has been of prime impor­ 
tance because of the columns and supporting beams necessary
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Exhibit and it has been necessary to integrate these problems with
~J~" those of the structural engineer and of the Architect at all
— times.

No. 2
—7-. (30) All preliminary drafts and drawings of the ventilating

b/^pHcant engineers W. E. Bassett & Associates and of the structural
for Extension engineers have been submitted to the Quantity Surveyors,

me immediately they have been prepared, in order to enable
preliminary work to be done so that as much time can be saved
as possible.

The Architect and Engineers have maintained that the 10 
problems of building on the existing columns and of continuing 
the columns as directed by the Commissioner for Railways 
has almost trebled the work ordinarily involved in the normal 
building, and Mr. Llewellyn maintains that the engineering 
problems are the most difficult he has ever encountered.

(31) Two additional substantial causes of delay were, Mr. Stanley's 
death and the months taken in finally getting the Commissioner 
for Railways to modify his initial requirements.

4. PRESENT POSITION:
(1) Messrs. W. E. Bassett & Associates advise that the final plans 20 

and specifications for electrical services, hot water services, 
mechanical ventilation and passenger service lift will be ready 
for the calling of tenders on the 6th and 10th December, 1955.

(2) With one week Mr. Llewellyn will be in a position to make 
available to the Architect, Mr. Ham, sufficient details of all 
structural work to enable bills of quantities to be prepared 
and for builders to tender.

(3) Mr. Ham has completed his detailed plans which are sub­ 
mitted herewith. These plans will have to be duplicated in 
larger scale by half inch plans, but only drawing work is 30 
involved and this should be completed within five or six weeks.

(4) All the various plans and specifications will have to be finally 
submitted for approval to the City Council, the Railway 
Commissioner and certain of the plans will have to be approved 
by the Metropolitan Water, Sewerage and Drainage Board 
and by the Board of Fire Commissioners. In addition, the ; 
plans will have to be submitted to the Town Planning Section 
of the Cumberland County Council.

(5) Notwithstanding the necessity of obtaining these various con­ 
sents, all designers have purposely maintained the closest 40 
liaison with the authorities in question in order to save time 
and it is hoped that there should not be any substantial delay 
in obtaining final approval from the authorities concerned.
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No. 2

(6) The Quantity Surveyors have advised that they will be ready Exhibit 
to have bills of quantities prepared ready for tenders on ~~J~~ 
Wednesday the 21st December. 1955.

(7) For the last eighteen months Mr. Ham has devoted one- 
third of his own and of his office's time to the Plaza Hotel.

(8) It is anticipated that the cost of the building will be in the 
vicinity of £388,000.

(9) The necessary finance was arranged last year by the lessees 
for the construction of the building.

of

10 EXHIBIT N
(Apart from the letter hereunder, this exhibit is not reproduced)

Letter from Sly & Russell, Solicitors, to the Secretary for Railways, 
dated 27th March, 1956

He Avrom Investments Proprietary Limited and Wynyard Lease
As you are aware, in 1953 the Metropolitan Licensing Court made 

an Order under section 40A of the Liquor Act calling upon the above- 
named Company as lessee of, inter alia, the Hotel Plaza to construct 
additional bedrooms and other accommodation and finally approved of 
plans providing for an additional sixty four bedrooms with lounge 

20 rooms and other consequential facilities.
The plans for the proposed additions were approved by the Com­ 

missioner for Eailways, and on the 12th hist the tenders for the major 
portion of the proposed work closed. The lowest tender received was 
£525,881.0.0 although the estimated figure was £390,000.0.0.

Apart from other moneys which the lessee has expended on the 
site the lessee has expended moneys or incurred liabilities directly 
attributable to the proposed new construction as follows:—

£ s. d. 
Construction of columns .. . . . . 32,520 0 0

30 Construction of concrete slab between
Wynyard Lane and Carrington Street 14,992 0 0

Architects' fees .. .. .. .. 21,067 0 0
together with fees due to Quantity Surveyors, plumbing and mechanical 
engineers. In addition, the cost of furnishings, such as carpets, bedding 
and the like must be taken into account, and will probably exceed 
£50,000.0.0.

This unexpectedly huge actual and potential expenditure has 
caused the Company to consider its position, having regard to the un- 
expired residue of the lease which is only forty five years, and to the

Exhibit

Letter
Sly & Russell,

Solicitors, 
secretary

March, 
1956
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economic possibility of expending such a large total sum and being 
akje |.0 reeover n during the residue of the lease while still making 

N a reasonable profit.
^n an aPplication by the Company to the Metropolitan Licensing 

o' Court for an extension of the time within which the order made in 1953 
for RaiTa"7 was ^° nave been completed, the Court saw fit to refuse the applica- 
"dated mh*' tion, leaving the way open to the Metropolitan Licensing Inspector 

^° ca^ uPon the Company to show cause why the licence should not 
be suspended or cancelled. This action has not been taken to date 
because the Company lodged an appeal to Quarter Sessions from the 10 
refusal of the Metropolitan Licensing Court, and this appeal is listed 
for the Quarter Sessions commencing on the 4th April.

It is unlikely that the Company will prosecute this appeal as even 
if successful it would only postpone temporarily the need for close 
consideration of the position, for even if the large sum required could 
be found it is not economically possible to proceed with the proposal as 
it is at present.

It will be appreciated that large expenditure of a capital nature 
on a leasehold property is only economic for a lessee where the sum 
expended can be recouped after taxation together with reasonable 20 
profits over the term of the lease.

To assist the Company in determining what is .the best course for 
it to follow, having regard to the particular site, the Directors desire 
an urgent conference with the Commissioner for Railways himself 
with the object of discussing the following:

1. Whether it is in the best interests of the Commissioner and 
the Public to maintain the licence at Wynyard.

2. Whether the licence should be transferred elsewhere or 
surrendered.

3. Whether a substantial extension of the lease can be granted. 30
4. Whether the Commissioner will approve of a less costly type 

of construction.
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EXHIBIT AAA
Four Letters

I. Letter from Secretary for Railways to Avrom Investments Pty. Ltd.,
dated 9th June, 1955

I have been directed by the Commissioner for Railways to inform 
you that an inspection by an officer of this Department of the work 
at present being carried out in the construction of reinforced columns 
and main beams for the main structure of the Plaza Hotel reveals un­ 
satisfactory work in the reinforced concrete construction. 

10 In the main structure the columns and beams throughout are badly 
honeycombed and the bars and stirrups are exposed, while the vertical 
bars in the columns are unevenly spaced, and on one face all of the bars 
can be seen for a length of 18 inches. The main beam on the Carring- 
ton Street frontage shows that the formwork had sagged during pour­ 
ing, and that it had not been cleaned out beforehand. The underside 
of the beam is badly honeycombed, bars are exposed, and the concrete 
can be removed with the fingers up to the main bars.

As to the cool room, it is reported that the underside of the floor 
beams is badly honeycombed throughout, and bars and stirrups are 

20 exposed.
The view is held that the reason for the defects mentioned is that 

the concrete poured on 2.5.55 and 3.5.55 was not properly placed and 
packed.

Mr Malcolm Stanley of Stanley and Llewellyn, Consulting 
Engineers for the work in question is aware of the position outlined 
above, and 1 shall be glad if you will advise me at an early date of 
the proposals for remedying the defects mentioned, in order that this 
Department may be assured that the corrective steps will be to its 
satisfaction, and that the structure will be capable of carrying the 

30 designed loading.
Awaiting your reply.

2. Letter from Secretary for Railways to Messrs. Ham and Morris, Architects,
dated 20th January, 1956

Re Plaza Hotel
Referring to your letter of the 16th January, 1956, intimating that 

Messrs. T. C. Whittle Pty. Ltd., intend erecting various structural steel 
columns for the Plaza Hotel building at Wynyard, commencing on 
Saturday, 21st January, 1956, which will necessitate cordoning off 
a portion of the Northern rampway, I have to inform you that while 

40 the arrangements proposed are generally satisfactory so far as this 
Department is concerned, the precautions which were taken for the 
erection of the steel columns on the 18th December, 1954, may be 
adopted with the following modifications, viz.—

(1) The R.S.Js. supporting the mobile crane to be increased to 
22 in. x 7 in. x 75-lb. in lieu of 20 in. x Gi.in. x 65-lb. to

•38632—21
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accommodate the additional weight of steel columns to be 
lifted into position.

(2) Steel columns Nos. 26, 51 and 76 between the second and 
third floor levels to be erected from the northern side only, 
and the concrete casing around the protruding second floor 
ribs to be chipped off and reinforcement bent down to facili­ 
tate the lifting of columns, and the placing of the crane as 
near the column as possible.

Barricading similar to that previously used will be acceptable, 
subject to it being erected, and subsequently removed, to the entire 10 
satisfaction of the Eailway Chief Civil Engineer.

It is to be definitely understood that the Commissioner for Rail­ 
ways must be fully indemnified against all claims of any kind to pro­ 
perty and/or persons arising from the erection of the columns and/or 
the barricading.

A representative of this Department will be in attendance during 
the operations.

3. Letter from Messrs. Ham & Morris, Architects, to The Secretary, 
Department of Railways, dated 6th February, 1956

Hotel Plaza: Contract 2 20 
In furtherance of your telephone request we advise having been 

informed by T. C. Whittle Pty. Ltd. that the erection of the structural 
steel columns for the above Hotel building will be proceeded with on 
llth and 12th Feb. 1956, weather permitting.

4. Letter from the Secretary for Railways to Messrs. Ham and Morris, Architects,
dated 10th February, 1956

Your letter of the 6th February, 1956, stating that you have been 
informed by T. C. Whittle Pty. Ltd., the erection of structural steel 
columns for the Hotel Plaza building will, weather permitting, be under­ 
taken on the llth and 12th February, 1956, was not received by me 30 
until yesterday afternoon.

It is understood that your Mr Morris this morning advised an 
official of this Department, because of the prevailing inclement weather, 
the work proposed to be carried out this coming weekend would not 
now be proceeded with, but that it would be undertaken on the 18th 
and 19th February, 1956, provided the weather then was suitable.

The arrangements planned are considered satisfactory so far as 
this Department is concerned, subject, of course, to the work being 
carried out strictly in accordance with the conditions, etc., set out in 
my letter to you of the 20th January, 1956. 40

Any advice which it may be necessary to give to the Police Depart­ 
ment or to any other authorities is not a matter for this Department's 
attention.
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EXHIBIT 5 
Comparison of Previous and Present Schemes

Previous Scheme

Bedroom Accommodation.
Bedrooms: 64. 
Twin Beds. ... 
Double Beds. 
Single Beds....

10
Twin Beds, with Baths 
Twin Beds, with Showers ... 
Double Beds, with Baths ... 
Double Beds, with Showers 
Single Beds, with Bath 
Single Beds, with Showers

23
9

32

64

12
5
4
4
5

13

43
20

Thus : 6 Twin Rooms 
1 Double Room 

14 Single Rooms

= 12 persons, 
= 2 „

28

28 persons rely on public pan and bath 
facilities.

30
Persons Accommodated.

23 Twin Beds. = 
9 Double Beds. = 

32 Single Beds. =

46 persons.
18 „ 
32 „

96 „

Bedroom Units
Bedrooms designed on obsolete basis— 

wardrobes are along Bedroom walls and 
Bath and Shower Rooms, where they occur, 

40 open directly off Bedroom.
These two factors tend to make room 

small and destroy Bed-Lounge character.
Bedrooms are often odd shapes; twin 

bedrooms are sometimes only 7' 11J" wide; 
single bedrooms are often only 6' 6" wide 
for half their length and one is only 5' 6" 
wide for this length.

Present Scheme

Exhibit 

5

Comparison
of Previous
and Present

Schemes

Bedroom Accommodation.
Bedrooms: 76 
Twin Beds. ... 
Double Beds. 
Single Beds.

Twin Beds, with Baths . 
Double Beds, with Baths . 
Single Beds, with Showers

39
3

34

76

39
3

34

76

Persons Accommodated
39 Twin Beds. = 78 persons. 

3 Double Beds. = 6 „ 
34 Single Beds. = 34 „

118 „

Bedroom Units
Bedroom Units designed on world wide 

standard modern basis. From the corridor 
one uniformly enters a lobby, on one side 
of which is a wardrobe, and on the other 
side the entry to Bath or Shower Room.

The Bedrooms thus have a clear spacious 
Bed-Lounge character.

Bedrooms are generally of uniform square 
shape; no bedroom is narrower than 9 6"
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Exhibit
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of Previous
and Present

Schemes

Comparison of Previous and Present Schemes—continued.

Previous Scheme

Bedroom Units—continued
Some Single Booms are only 93 sq. ft. 

in area and some Twin Rooms only 128 sq. 
ft. area.

Almost no two rooms have the same size 
and arrangement.
Sun to Bedrooms

15 Bedrooms are without sun.

Outlook from Bedrooms
10 Bedrooms overlook Wynyard Park. 
15 Bedrooms overlook George Street;

which is very noisy. 
39 Bedrooms are in light wells.

64

Effect of Extension of Building on Bedrooms.
If another floor is added Bedrooms Nos. 39, 

40 and 41 would have to be abandoned as 
bedrooms as necessary lift and vestibule 
thereto would cut off light and air.
Access to Public Toilets from Bedrooms 

without Toilet Facilities.
A man occupying some of the bedrooms 

without toilet facilities would have to walk 
up to 200 ft. to a public toilet. If all the 
3 pans at 200 ft. distance were in use, then 
a climb to the roof toilets is necessary, 
involving another 72 ft. of covered walk and 
then 48 ft. of uncovered walk on the roof.
Accommodation at Carrington Street Level.

Bar with 202 lineal feet of counter 
frontage.

Female Bar and Lounge Toilets:
3 Pans 
2 Basins

Male Bar and Lounge Toilets:
2 Pans
2 Basins 

Shops: 4.
Hotel Foyer and Drinking Lounge com­ 

bined.

Present Scheme

Bedroom Units—continued
The smallest Single Bedroom is 130 square 

feet and the smallest twin Boom is 153 sq. 
feet.

Bedrooms are substantially uniform in 
size and arrangement.
Sun to Bedrooms

2 Bedrooms are without sun. JQ

Outlook from Bedrooms
39 Bedrooms overlook Wynyard Park. 
37 Bedrooms overlook Boof Garden and 

Wynyard Shopping Court.

76

As bedrooms are elevated on 2nd and 3rd 
floors, they get further away from city 
noises. 20
Effect of Extension of Building on Bedrooms.

No bedroom affected if additional floor 
or floors are added.

All bedrooms have full toilet facilities.

Accommodation at Carrington Street Level. 
Bar with 211 lineal feet of frontage. 
Female Bar and Lounge Toilets :

3 Pans
3 Basins

Male Bar and Lounge Toilets :
3 Pans
3 Basins 

Shops: 6.
Separate Drinking Lounge.
Coffee Shop for quick breakfasts and light 

meals to seat 100 persons.

30
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Comparison of Previous and Present Schemes—continued.

Previous Scheme

Development at Wynyard Lane Level. 
Shops: 4.
These shops are built on the building line 

thus perpetuating the narrowness of this 
lane.

Pedestrians when walking from the present 
stairs across Wynyard Lane and up the stairs 

10 to Carrington Street have no roof over 
Wynyard Lane. To gain partial cover they 
must go to right or left of direct route and 
go under the Bedrooms above to gain 
shelter.

Extent of Immediate Building Work. 
At Wynyard Lane Level: 4 shops. 
At Carrington St. Level:

15,743 sq. ft. gross of floor area. 
1st Bedroom Floor:

20 21,682 sq. ft. gross of floor area. 
Total floor area : 37,425 sq. ft.

Potential Development of Site.
The use of Light Courts as a basis element 

in the design determines the future develop­ 
ment in two manners:

(i) 2nd and 3rd class Bedroom or 
future office space is inevitably 
created.

(ii) The centre core of the building 
drops off at the 6th Floor due to 
City Council angle of light re­ 
quirements.

Presupposing a maximum development to 
150 ft. height, the gross sq. ft. floor space 
possible would be :—

1st Class Space 134,350 sq. ft. 
2nd „ „ 39,170 „ „ 
3rd „ „ 32,280 „ „

40 Total area 205,800

Present Scheme

Development at Wynyard Lane Level. 
Shops: 9.
These shops are grouped around a 

Shopping Court about 50 ft. wide and 80 ft. 
long.

The Shopping Court has a covered way 
on each side 80 ft. long and average 10 ft. 
wide, furthermore a 37 ft. wide roof covers 
Wynyard Lane over the direct route from 
the present stairs from George Street Ramps 
to the new stair to Carrington Street. As 
this will be the only covered way to the Bus 
Ranks in Carrington Street, it will be a most 
busy thoroughfare.

Extent of Immediate Building Work. 
At Wynyard Lane Level: 9 shops. 
At Carrington St. Level:

15,743 sq. ft. gross of floor area. 
1st, 2nd and 3rd Bedroom Floors :

26,643 sq. ft. gross of floor area. 
Total floor area : 42,386 sq. ft.
Extra floor area at above levels : 4,961 sq. 

ft.

Potential Development of Site.
The use of " slab " type of planning with 

a central corridor creates only 1st class 
Bedrooms or future office space.

Exhibit

Comparison
of Previous
and Present

Schemes

Presupposing a maximum development to 
150 ft. height, the gross sq. ft. floor space 
possible would be :—

1st Class Space 234,200 sq. ft. 
2nd „ „ Nil
3rd „ „ Nil

Total area 234,200 „
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srs,

AVROM INVESTMENTS PROPRIETARY LIMITED.

Year ended 
30th June-

1943 ...

1944 ...
1945 ...
1946 ...
1947 ...
1948 ...
1949 ...
1950 ...
1951 ...
1952 ...
1953 ...
1954 ...
1955 ...
1956 ...

HOTEL PLAZA and WYNYARD SHOPS.

Liquor.

25,697

43,371
54,673
60,558
53,332
35,513
32,730
32,185
43,104
48,276
53,446
39,515
35,644
39,529

Restaurant. Accommoda­ 
tion. Tobacco.

(Includes Restaurant, Accommoda­
tion and Tobacco).

2,733
8,190
6,984
2,177
6,834

11,194
7,486
8,565

12,971
9,114
2,848
7,734

10,780

32
729
733

1,056
1,507
2,743
1,493
1,967
3,016
3,190
3,436
3,257
3,263

254
1,217
1,652
2,489
2,935
4,134
4,182
4,551
5,011
3,271
3,142
3,229
4,829

Sundry.

680

31
164
168
170
137
158
145
171

8,566
441
212
204

2,035

TOTAL.

26,377

40,383
63,515
68,629
52,758
30,144
23,085
27,532
37,294
45,866
44,854
36,585
28,086
32,350

COMPARISON— PROFITS AND LOSSES.

Adminis­ 
trative 

Expenses.

...
5,747
6,790
8,107
7,384
6,909
7,744
8,846

10,116
11,217
12,387
12,688
14,270

Profit.

26,377

40,383
57,768
61,839
44,651
22,760
16,176
19,788
28,448
35,750
33,637
24,198
15,398
18,080

SHOPS 
Profit or 

Loss.

5,181

2,407
1,930
1,339

288
1,143
3,984
4,956
6,416
8,813
6,104
6,079
5,462
3,334

NET 
RESULT.

31,558

42,790
59,698
63,178
44,939
21,617
12,192
14,832
22,032
26,937
27,533
18,119

9,936
14,746

OSGSo

ZtoZics=Losses.


